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A. After we fired the shot my mate went back first to the place. }Ie got in, I suppose, 5 or 6 feet, it 
may be 3 feet, off the face; there was a lamp in his hand, a flare lamp, and it lit up and blazed all over 
the roof, you know. 
1899. Q. You say it blazed all over the roof: how far did it blaze P A. Perhaps 10 feet back, I suppose. 
Just a bit of a flap you know : a bit of a flare back. 
1900. Q. Did it burn your mate P A. No. It \vasa very small quantity of gas and it would just go 
close to the roof. Of course my mate popped himself back out of the road. lie had his lamp up like 
this [ismdicating] looking to see what the shot had done. - 
1901. Q. How long was that after the shot had been fired P A. About a minute. I know I was stopping, 
having a drink, at the time. 
1902. Q. Had the smoke cleared away at that time? A. Pretty well. It could not get away extra 
quick. 
1003. Q. And was anything done after that happened by either you or your mate? A. I told the deputy 
when he came in about it. 
1904. Q. Who was it you told? A. David Evans. 
1905. Q. What was he? The day deputy P A. The day depute. 
1900. Q. What was it you told Evans P A. 1 told him when he came in about 130-I go out at 2-that 
there was a bit of gas lit up in the place. " Oh," he said, ' there is no gas here." I said, " No, it is 
burnt now. It has been here right cnoiighi." 'I'hcn I told him that we had not air enou,li to clean it 
out properly ; and he said, " The brattice is well up at the face." I said, " Yes, but there is no room at 
the back of it." I showed him where there was not room. This place was broken away 1 yards wide for 
about 4 yards in ; and there were ponits and curves put in, and the brattice the other side, until actually 
there was not room enough for the air to come round at the back of it. We took the air in at the road 
and there was no space for it to go back : in fact, I could not get to the back of it. I described that to 
him, and lie said, " Oh, well, you have not far to go now." 
1907. AIr. Wade.] Q. You mean that the brattice was too close to the rib P A. Yes. 
1908. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. No room between the face and the brattice P A. No. It was wide enough 
in the place. It opened on to 8 yards wide, and back here it was only 4 yards, or hardly that. There 
was a lump that I could not get past between the brattice and the coal at the back of it. I told him 
there was not enough space, such as I had been used to having, and he said, ' Oh, you will be finished 
directly." 
1909. ALe. Lysaqht.] Q. Could you show at all where this herd 40 was? Did you travel the 0th Right rope 
road to get to your place? A At that quarter this road was not started. It was started the following 
quarter. 
1010. Q. Did you turn into the 6th Right to get to your working place? A. I turned in just exactly 
opposite Mat's Flat. 
1911. his honor.] There may have been some change in this No. 40 ; if there has been Mr. Rogers 
could explain it. 
1912. Mr. Lysaqlzt.] Perhaps Mr. Rogers could show him exactly where he was working ? 
1913. AIr. Roqars.] Q. You know James' heading? A. Yes. 
1914. Mr. Rogers.] These were forty at that time (iedicatinq on time plan the bords cfl fames' headinq). 
1915. HTitnees.] it would be somewhere down James' heading I was working ; somewhere off ,James' 
heading. 
1916. AIr. Lysaqlmf.] Q. Can you say what time in the quarter it was? A. I could not tell you exactly. 
1917. Q. Was it two quarters before the disaster? A Yes. 
1918. Q Was it about Christmas time? A. It must have been the quarter after Christmas. 
1919. Q. Just try and think whether it was after Christmas P Yes, it was. 
1920. Q. About how long P A. it is like four quarters back. It was in the first quarter of the year. 
1921. Mr. Robertson ] Q. Last year P A. Yes, at the beginning of last Year. That is when it was. 
1922. Ate. Lijsaghf.] Q. No iv, can you tell us any other occasion when anything happened to you? A. About 
a week afterwards it lit up again. 
1923. Q. I want the full details of that. "Lit up" is no information to us ? A. I went back after I 
had fired a shot. I went back to look what the shot had done. 
1921. Q. Was this in the same place P A. The same place. And I went back with my lamp on my 
head, hooked on my cap. 
1025. Q. How long after the shot had been fired P A. About a minute, perhaps, or something like that. 
And when I got back near the face there was a bit of a light up again, of course. I reported that to Mr. 
Evans the same way. 
1926. Q. When it lit up again, what did You do? Did i.t burn you? A. No. I felt it warm, and I 
popped back. It was a light on my CC I felt it a bit lint on my face. 
1927. Q. how far were you from the face'? A. About 3 feet, I suppose, when it lit; something like 
that. 
1928. Q. What happened then P A. When Mr. Evans came in I reported to him, and lie told me the 
same tlnng-that we would soon be finished there. 
1929. Q. Do you know how far it went back? A. Four or five yards back from time face. 
1.930. Mr. Wade.] Q. Did you see it P A. (iii, yes. It was no trouble to see it. 
1931. Q. Did you see how far it went back P A. I saw it blaze up to the bord, and then conic back to 
the face and knock itself out. 
1932 Q. What time did von see Mr. Evans? A. Somewhere about 1. o'clock, or between 1 and 2. He 
generally used to be round about that time. 
1933. Q. What did you say to him P A. I told him the gas lit UI)  again; and he told inc the same yarn, 
that we would be finished there sou ; that we were near the distance-the bowl was very near down the 
di stzi mice. 
1931. Mv. Bruce Smith.] Q. J5t tell me exactly what he said? A. lIe said, " Oh, there could not be 
any gas ; it was only me fitncy''-well, to make it appear that I did not know what it was at aH. But I 
know better than that. I had seen a bit of gas before that day. 
1935. Q. lie told you you would seon be out of the district P A. Yes, he said the place would soon be 
stopped ; it would soon be far enough driven ; and we were nearhv done there. 
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IIJAJ. .21&. Lr,saj)lt..] Q. Was your mate with you on that occasion? A. Yes; he was present both 
times. 
1937. Q. Was your mate prosent when you had this conversation with Evans? A. Yes. 
1938. Mr. Bruce S';nith.j Q. Is your mate alive now? A. Yes he is working at Mount Keinbla. 
1939. Mr. .Lysaqht.] Q. Do you know of any other place? A. I never saw any gas in any other place. 
The next place to me I heard a man telling Evans when he was coming out (Iirterrvpec7). 
1940. Q. Now, let me have the particulars of it. 
1041. Mr. JVaee.] I would ask the Court if it would not be more regular to ascerlain if the man is alive 
whom be heard speaking to Evans; and, if so, would not it be better to have that man? 
1942. Mr. ]iv.saqlrt.] I want to confirm it while I have this witness here. 
1943. His Honor.] This is not a conversation with this witness, but a conversation with Evans which this 
witness overheard. Tinder the circumstances that is admissible. The other man may be able to confirm 
it; but the evidence of a conversation given by a person who heard it is just as good as the evidence 
given by the person who spoke. 
1944. Mr. Lysagiif.] Q. What bord was it that you speak of where you heard the conversation ? A. 
Thirty.nine bord, the next bord to mine. 
1915. Q. Who was working it? A. Fred. Jackson. I was just waiting for him when I was going home. 
1940. Q. Where is he now? A. lie is working at Mount Keinbia. 
1917. Q. What was the conversation that you heard? A. I was sitting waiting while Jackson put his 
clothes on to go out at 2 o'clock ; and I heard him say, " Thtre is gas lit up in our place to-day, Dave." 
1948. Q. Who is " Dave " ? A Dave Evans. 
1949. Q. TIe was speaking to David Evans? A. Yes. 
1950. Q. What else? A. That is all I heard him say. And he said, "I will go and see your mate." 
1951. Q. Who said that? A. Dave. Dave was going down the bord at the time to look at the place. 
1952. Q. When was that ? A It was about the same week as when it lit up on my head. I could not 
say to a day or two. I did not take any notice of it exactly. 
1953. Q. Now, is there any occasion that a-eu knew of the cxistene of gas whcn it was reported, in your 
recollection of Kembla? A. I have heard mcii talk about iLbefore. 
1954. Q. 1-lave you heard them talk to officials P A. No 
1955. Q. Then I do not want it. is that all you want to say about the presence of gas in Kembla? A. 
Yes. 
1950. Mr. Lyseqiti.] Might [ ask Your ijonor again the scope of Your I-Toner's ruling regarding this 
Opening of the safety-lamp in Kembia. I run instructed this morning that it has become a serious matter 
there ; and this witness himself had to speak to the shot-firer about opening the lamp. 
1957. His Honor.] That is a question, of course, that would have to be decided, on the policy or the 
expediency of allowing a certain amount of latitude to a shot-firer and you contend now that it is 
permissible to you to show that shot-firers at present are not as careful as they ought to be. 
1958. JlTr. Lysoqht.] Yes, Your honor; and Mr. Wale contended veter1ay, in effect, to a witness that 
it was not a dangerous practice to open a 1-amp and fire the fuse in that way if certain conditions were 
observed. 
1959. Ills honor.] Supposing that all tire precautions which are prescribed by the Act were observed 
do you suggest then that there might be a danger P 
1960. Mr. Lysaght.] There might stilt be a danger. in practice these precautions are iaotat all observed 
and, therrfore, it is an unwise escape to allow them to have. 1 submit aho that it is very difficult in 
practice to make them observe these precautions ; and this gives a loophole which may cause disaster. 
1961. His Honor.] You say in effect that that loop-hole is taken advantage of in an improper manuel, 
for the purpose of giving force to your contention that the loophole should not be allowed at all. 
1962. Mc. Bruce Smith.] The fact of its being a practice now does not throw any light on the danger of 
it. The danger of it can be shown by abstract evidence, by the opinions of competent men that it is a 
dangerous practice. It is not necessary to go into evidence as to what is being done. 
1963. His Honor.] That is rather a difficult question. It is more ta  question of common-sense than of 
law. 
1964. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I think the evidence will satisfy your Honor that there is more danger of 
ignition of gas from the shot itself than from the uaked light. My friend wants to get evidence of what 
is being done; but that does not throw any light on the problem of the danger of doing it. 
1905. His Honor.] It stands in this way : The contention is that it is legit imate to show how human 
nature will work in the future by showing how it has worked in the past. To take an extreme case, if 
you go away from this country altogether, and go to South Africa, it might be ruegested that in a mine 
worked by black labour a certain provision always accepted in England, where white labour is used, was 
not expedient because it gave a. litt'e too much latitude to the peculiar operations of the negro mind. In 
that case it appears quite clean that it wourd be permissible to show that, rin spite of past experience that 
nuder other conditions it was quite safe to give this latitude, the facts disclosed that it was unsafe to give 
the latitude under tlioe peculiar conditions. 
1906. Mr.. Bruce Smith.] That evidence of its unsafety is abstract evidence. I do not object to that. 
1967. His Honor.] llcre the suggestion comes a little closer home. It is suggested that, owing to the 
peculiar operations of the Caucasian mind, it is not safe to allow this latitude. 
1968. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But the bald evidence that a certain practice is going on does not show the 
danger of the practice. If it could be shown to be dangerous, I would lihme evidence of that kind to be 
given by practical men. 
1909. His Honor.] The evidence that the practice permitted by the rule is going on, in the face of the 
absence of evidence that any accident has followed from it, is rather proof of its expediency than of its 
inexpediency ; and, therefore, it would not be airy evidence to show that it is inexpedient. 
1970. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But I say that the fact of the thing being done is no proof of the danger of 
it -has no hearing on the question of the danger of it. 
1971. His II'.nor ] But SUI)l ose it could be shown that it was clone several times, and some small accident 
had followed? 
1972. AIr. Bruce S,iri/h.] Their I would admit it at once. 
1973. Ills honor.] Mr. Lvsaght, are you going to show that any accident has followed from this practice 
being adopted? 
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1974. Mr. Lyrcqlif.] No. But I do propose to show that all the conditions were there for a very serious 
eipio Sian. A lamp was unloeke I and a fuse Ii ccl in a pilco that tva dusty ; the precautions necessary 
were not taken and this person was present. 
1075. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Is this siuca the explosion ? 
1976. Air. Lqsaq/mt.] Ye. Your lloiior will see how iinjmrt lilt this matter is, and that, if you allow the 
loophole iii the Act for the unlocking of the safety_lamp to 1itht a use, the whole safety of the mine is 
dependent UOfl the strict observaHee of the precautions for watering. 
1977. Mr. Brucc Smith.] Thit can all be disposed at by a hypothesis. if it is going on is it dangerous P 
I 97$. M. I_ysaqht.] I would ask leave to show that it is going on, and to show that they do take 
advantage of this loophole in an improper way ; and therefore this loophole should not be there for 
them to take advau (age of. 
1979. his .Ilomwr.] You wish to show that the whole thing is inexpedient, because in practice one or other 
of the precautions presrribcd is commonly omitted and therefore it is not really expedient to allow a 
lophole with such a complicated mass of precautions that it is very likely that those precautions will, 
some of them, be omitted, and the result of such -Ili omission would probably be an accident. You say 
in point of fact that, although there has not been an accident, it is only an accident that there has not 
been an accident? 
1980. jlIr. Lysoqhit.] Precisely. 
1981. His honor.] And that is practically equivalent to the happening of an accident. 
1982. Aim'. Wlsde.] I take the same objection as I took the other day in regard to this matter. In the 
first place it is absolutoly outside the scope of the Commission to deal with a practice that has arisen 
rince the disaster. 
19d3. his honor.] This is a practice that I understand at in'cselit is sought to be proved by evidence of 
what occurred before the disaster. 
19 3 1. AIr. Lysoqhmt.] Evideicce subsequent to the disaster. 
1085. His honor.] Evidence of a stlte of affiuirs continuing slilCe the disaster P 
1983. Mr. Lmjs qht.] There were no safety_lamps used before the disaster. 
1987. His Ironer.] We want to imderstaiid this clearly. 
11)88. Mr. I'Vlu/c.] Safety-lamps have been introduced, I think,during tile last two m f onths and a hal— 
somewhere about October—and tile allogat ion is -- and I will assume it is proved—that under the 
operations in the mine the safety_lamp is opened and a shot is fired. I point out that that is outside the 
scope of the Commission. - 
11)89. His Honor.] It is not suggested by Mr. Lysaght for a moment that this course of action had 
anything to do with the explosion itself. That cannot by any p  Issihility be suggested. There is no 
doubt about that.. It is entirely confined to the question of recoulmendatioll. 
1990. Mr. Lquvjht.j Certainly, your ilotuor. 
19 1. His honor.] Now, the question of recomnmeuldation isa question of recoininenda l lon in reiatioil to 
the P )ssulmi lit y of an cx piosmi —time p  ' ssibi ity of an explosion proba biy arising, we may say certainly 
arising, from the presence of i ulfianlmnahie gas and the suggestien is that it was the presence of ulfiam-
mable gas t.at led to this explosion. The (.ourt has evervi 1mg therefore to do ith the question of the 
future trea tinent of all ma ters concerned with the possibii ly of explosions arising train the existence of 
gas in the mine and, therefore, it seems to [is all that this is a matter connected with that part of the 
duty of the Commission winch is to i nqui ic into \vha t sllal 1 be done in tile future, what shall be prescribed 
in the future, in relation to that particular important matter wh:eh is immediately witilni the cognizance 
of the Commission. it is diferent altogether from the question of what lcd up to the accident. 
1992. Mr. Wlude.] It brings it back to the same point, that may fiee:d, Mr. Bruce Smith, put to the Court, 
that a host of witnesses of the fact that this practice is being adopted now does not carry the case any 
further : because it might be said on all sides We adnit that the pract ic is being adopted which the 
Act allows, of safety_lamps being uniocked to light the fuse to fire the shots but still it is -a question of 
argumneilt as to the dry and dusty conditions of the mine, and the pos.ibilily of the presence of gas." 
And, even supposing nothing at all is proved in tills case, the question is whether the rule laid down in 
the Coal-mines Regulation Act, under Rule 12, is suffleiciut, as a matter of fact or a matter of prudence, 
or whether it ought not to be limited in the way suggested on the general ground of the fallibility of 
human nature. If this question is go:ie into, as I said yesterdav, we shall be compel led to go into every detail 
with regard to all these matters, and to cleai with the question of gas having been present there, of gas 
having been found or not, and of gas having been cleared away or not; and, further, whether the place was 
dry and dusty. On all these questions it will involve the calling of evidence in rebuttal: and, whether the 
Commission come to the conclusion that the Cempamly have or have not answered the contentions advanced 
here, they will not be any further ahead than at the present moment ; because there is this consideration, 
that there has been no accident resulting from it. if there lied been an accident it would emnpimasise this 
proposition, that the general rule should be further limited and qualified. It is net for the PU0SC of 
shielding any person in the mine that I object because there is a perfectly clear remedy open to anybody 
aggrieved by the ection of coal-mine officials. They have full po\vdr to prosecute either the Manager, who 
has a knowledge of these things and allows them to be done, or to poseetitc any official of the mine, other 
than mile Nanaier, who allows these things to be clone. If a man has clone wrong by the violation of this 
rule, he can be punished under the Act. Whether this rule is advisable or not is a question iviliCh seems 
to inc entirely an abstract question, Which can be argued from a h1e1us11i  of the words, and the words only, 
of this general rule here, and nothing inure. I say, lviiatevcr the conclusioll is that Mr. Lysagilt proposes 
to prove, if it is proved or not, the Cofirt will not be any further ahead. If no accident be proved as the 
result of this practice the matter should simply be confined to the abstract view of the question. 
1993. His Honor.] The Court takes this view of it : this is a very important rule, if advantage is taken 
of any concession which is allowed by the rules, it is very imnportailt that every precaution prescribed by 
the rules should in all cases be adhered to, and carried out. It is suggested, and it is properly suggested, 
that the rule is not a good one that the precautions are too complicated. For the purpose of showing 
that in point of fiuct that is so, it is sought to plove by particular cases, repeated cases, that those 
precautions are being overlookecl—tivat, we will say, one or other of them is being overlooked—and it us 
sought to found upon that fact the conclusion that in point of fact it is illexpedleilt that the rule should 
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remain as it is. The Court thinks that on the whole that evidence is properly tendered, and allows the 
evidence to be given, whatever inconvenience may follow, or whatever time may even be possibly wasted 
by the answering of that evidence. The Court does not think it proper to retuse to hear the evidence; 
although the Court may be quite as well able to judge of the expediency of the rule without it as with it. 
That may be so. The Court does not see its ways to reject the evidence. 
1094. J1Ir. Wade.] I have one other objection besides Mr. Bruce Sm.1h's. 
1fi95. his Honor.] You are objecting to the evidence of concrete cases of violations of this rule being 
admitted? 
1996. AIr. Wade.] Quite so. 
1997. His Ilonorj The Court admits evidence of specific cases. Of course their value varies with their 
number. 
1998. AIr. Bruce Sari//i.] I think I ought to say as representing the Chief Inspector that, if this practice 
is going on, and is deemed to be dangerous by the miners to the extent represented by Mr. Lysaght, they 
ought at once to make some representations to the Department with regard to the continuance of what 
they deem to be a dangerous practice. 
1999. his Honor ] This Court is not going into the question of what the miners ought to do. 
2000. AIr. Bruce 8ini//i.] I mean in addition to the inquiry now going on. This is the first time that it 
has been brought to the Chief Inspector's notice that the miners are in a state of fear with regard to this 
practice going on. 
2001. His Honor.] This inquiry cannot go into that quest iofl. 
2002. ]I[r. Ly.aqltt.] \ir. Bruce Smith will permit me to say that the Inspectors can see that practice if 
they go and look. 
2003. His Honor.] If that evidence is given it may,  help Mr. Atkinson himself to come to some 
conclusion. 
2004. Mr. Ioysa,qJrt.] Q. Now, I want you to tell us when, rceently, a shot was fired at Kemlila in your 
working place, and by whom. And give us the particulars of how it was fired. Where were you working? 
At what number PA. I am working in the second drive, No. 1 District. 
2005. Q. What is it, a pillar or a bord? A. A lord. 
2000. Q. Do you know the number of the bord? A. Sixty-five. 
2007, Q. Is that the bord where a shot was fired that I am going to speak of? A. Yes. 

(Mr. Rogers said that No. 05 is not marked on the plan : it is a new place. He indicated its 
locality on the plan). 

2008. AIr. Lysaq/tt.] Q. Taking the condition of that particular bord, is it or is it not what you would call 
a dusty place P A. Yes, the coal is very dry itself'. 
2009. Q. Is it or is it not a dusty placer A. Yes, it is a bit dusty. 
2010. Q. And can you give us the day that the shot was fired in that place, and by whom? A. Well, I 
worked in it three days; and we fired each day. 
201L Q. Take the first day you worked in it, when was that P A. The Monday after Christmas; that is 
when I started. - 
2012. His I[onoi] Q. This Christmas P A. Yes. 
2013. AIr. Lyseg/it.] Q. Aed what was the n e x t day you worked P A. Tuesday-  and Wednesday. 
2014. Q. Now, on the Monday after Christmas who fired the shot? A. John Forsythe. 
2015. Q. What is lie P A. Tie is what we call the fireman or deputy, or whatever they term it. 
2016. Q. Is lie the person appointed to fire shots PAT suppme so. lie cones there at any rate. 
2017. Q. About whst time was this shot fired on the 1\lordav P A. About 2 o'clock, I believe. 
2018. Q. At the time of the firing of the shot were there prnsent those dusty conditions? A. Oh yes, 
it was a little bit dusty. 
2019. Q. Was anything done towards watering the place P 
2020. AJr. Made.7  I think the best thing is to ask him what was done. 
2021. Air. Irisaq/tt.] Q. Tell us exactly what was done by the shot-firer, and how the shot was fired? 
A. When the shot-firer came in lie said Are you ready P" I said Yes." So lie took his knife out 
and cut the fLise ofi. We leave it hanging on the hole, the bunch of fuse ; and lie unlocks his lamp, and 
screws the bottom off, and lights if. 
2022. Q. Lights it with what? A. With his lamp, the naked light. And Iliad not been used to seeing 
suchlike in my time before in my life. I told him 1 did not think it was good enough for me to be 
working with a locked 1-imp, and his lighting the shot with ,in unlocked lamp: I did not feel comfortable, 
and did not like it; and I said I had been in mines where the lamps had been locked for years and I had 
never seen one unlocked. 
2023. Q. What answer did-Forsythe make to you P A. I do not know what sort of answer, lie did 
not say much. I said " Ii are you not got a bit of wire and guys f" ; and he said No, there are no guys 
in my lamp." That is, wire guys to put wires through to light it. 
2024. Q. And he said "No, there are no-no in my lamp" P A. lIe said no, lie could not get at it ; there 
was no other way but to unscrew it ; not with that lamp be had. 
2025. Q. After he fired the fuse what happened P A. Tho shot exploded then and knocked down the coal. 
2026. Q. Did you notice any further result from the explosion of the shot P A. Well, -it was a bit 
smoky and (lusty for a nun ute or two, but not hirg in och. 
2027. Q. WThat do you mean? A. The dust rose along with the smoke as we were going back. 
2028. AIr. IVade.] Q. You say no,, very inueli P A. I  say not very much. A. little dust and smoke uhen 
we were going back. 
2020. Q. Now, is that all that the shot-firer did P A. Yes, that is all lie did. 
2030. Q. Was an\thiing at all done to water the vicinity where the shot was being fired? A. I never 
saw any. 
2031. V. If it had been done must you have seen it? A. I should have felt it too. 
2032. Q. In your opinion was that a dangenyms thing to do P A. I thought it looked very dangerous to 
have a naked light to light that shot. 
20:33. Q. As a practical miner? A. Yes. Though it might be safe enough, it didnot look safe and it 
did not look comfortable ; that is my meaning. 
2034. Q. As a practical miner, in i-our opinion it was a dangerous thing to do P A. Yes, it did not look 
comfortable at all, 2035. 
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2035. Q. Was there only one shot fired that day ? A. That is all. 
2036. Q. Tell its exactly what happened on the Tuesday P A. We fired two shots on Tuesday. 
2037. Q. Give me the full details of it P A. The same way exactly as we did on Monday. 
2038. Q. What were the conditions as to dust ,' A. Just the same. We fired the shot, and a couple of 
hours afterwards we fired another one. 
2039. Q. And on those occasions did the explosion of the shot raise the dust P A. Just about the s:une. 
2040. Q. About how high was it the dust was raised on each occasion, roughly P A. When I was going 
back to the shot there was smoke and dust all though the place a haze of it, and smoke on the top. 
2011. Q. But the dust you saw was permeated through the whole place? A. Yes, a certain amount of 
it, dust and smoke. 
2012. Q. On the Tuesday did you say anything to him about that? A. Oh, we just had a bit of a laugh 
then. We got more used to it. You can get used to anything ; you get hardened to anything like that. 
2013. Q. Now, were any precautions taken on the Tuesday regarding watering that vicinity P A. No. 
2011. Q. On the Wednesday what happened? A. We fired one shot on the Wednesday. 
2015. Q. In the same way? A. Yes. 
2016. Q. Forsythe? A. Yes. 
2017. Q In what way did lie fire it P A. Just the same way as the other,,;. 
2018. Q. Were the conditions the same ? A. Just about the same then. 
2019. Q. And after the explosion what about the dust rising? After the shot had been fired, after it had 
(lone its work, what about the dust rising in the place P A. It would not be bad; it settles down you 
see after a few minutes. 
2050. Q. But did it rise P A. Yes, of course it rose with the shot exploding. 
2051. T. And settled down again? A. Yes. 
2051 Q. On the Wednesday were any precautions taken as regards water? A. I never saw anything; no 
change at all. 
2053. Q. Are those the three occasions you speak of? A. Yes. 
2051. Q. Now, do you consider, as a practical miner, that it is essential to the safety of the mine that the 
safety-lamp should not be used to fire a fuse P A. it is more satisfactory to me to see them use the wire 
than to use the naked light. 
2035. Q. Do you consider it is essential to the safety of the mine, as a practical miner? A. Yes, I do. 
2050. Q. In all the mines that you have worked in in any other part of the world, have you known the 
safety-lamp to be used to fire the fuse? A. Not the naked light; never. I have always been used to 
lighting with touch-paper, and I reckon it is the safest thing you can have, too. I do not believe in fuse 
even to light the shot. 
2057. Q. What is touch-paper? A. You make it with saltpet re. The fuse blazcs, spits, as we term it. 
The last time I was at Kembla I have seen the fuse blaze. That was the first quarter wa worked after 
the explosion, like-the last quarter we term it. 
2058. Q. You are a member of the Union ? A. Yes. 
2039. Q. Recommendation No. 1 [Recomneadation ruu/l ;-what do you say in support of that recom-
inendation? A. I support that at any rate. You cannot get too much of that, at any rate. 
2060. Q. Give me some reasons why it is essential that deputies and shot-firers should have this theoretical 
knowledge ? A. You mean, like, being examined P 
2061. Q. Yes, by the Examining Board ? A Yes ; because some men are sent to a- job to do it and are 
not competent for the job. Plenty of mcii a bit favoured, or a relation, or anything of that-they send 
them to the haildiest, easiest job, with the biggest money. That is how I look at it. 
2062. Q. As far as you observed from the shot_firing by this shot-firer Forsythe in this way, in your 
opinion did Ife appreciate the danger that was there ? A. lie appreciated what I said, that I did not 
think it was hardly fair to unlock that light to do that. 
2003. Q. Did lie appreciate it ? A. Yes ; lie agreed with me that it was not right. 
2064. Q. Did lie give any reason for continuing that practice though it was not right P A. No ; he said 
the other man had been doing it before they had changed shifts, lie had been on night shift-the other 
man. The ground had been standing idle for a while. 
2065. Q. The only reason lie gave was that the other man had been doing it before? A. Yes; the other 
man on the other shift. 
2006. Q. Well now, have you anything else to add why deputies in particular and shot-firers should pass 
,in exrunination ? A. 1 say they should for the safety of the people that work in the mine. I have seen 
any amount of different bosses and deputies in mines in my travels. I have seen broken-down butchers 
come and get a job straight away as boss, and they had no experience or anything. 
2067. Mr. Bruce Smit/i.] Q. Here, or in England P A. In Quee:island that was. I could not stand him 
very long; I know too much. 
2068. sir. .Lysaght.] Q. What was lie? A. Deputy. 
2069. Mr. JVade.] That was in Queensland. 

070. Witness.] I am just saying where men get shoved into billets where they are not qualified to do 
the work. 
2071. Mr. Lysa,qJmt.i Q. In this State can you point out cases where men who, in your opinion, were 
incompetent, were appointed as deputies and shot-firers, leavimig out Kembla P 
2072. AIr. Wade.] Take Kembla. 
2073. Mr. Lysaq/it.] Q. Take John Morrison, if volt like ; the man who did not inspect the wastes. I 
will just read you something. David Evans' evidence 

My duties as day deputy would not include looking for gas, and Kembla Mine may have been full of gas and et I 
not know, and it was not in duty to look for it. 

If a day deputy stated that, would you consider lie was a competent man to be a day deputy -- 
2071. Mv. Wade.] I object to that. It is outside the scope of the iuquiz y.  The only qucctiou is whither 
they (deputies) should be examiu cr1. 
2075. his honor.] '1 hat is a matter for argnmnent from the evidence before the Court, rather than a matter 
to be pitt to a particular witncs. 11 do not say that it woulrl yot be legitimate to put a question Ifte that 
to Mr. Atkinson ; possibly it might. 

.ilfr. Lqcaght.] Very well. 
2070. 
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2070. Q. Now, coming to Recommendatoa No. 2 [Recommendation read] ;-is that, in your opinion, a 
wise and necessary,  precautioi ? A. I have an opinion that they should order Davy lamps if it is necessary, 
or safety-lamps. 
2077. Q. And with whom would you leave the deciding of that? A. The Inspector should be the man 
for it, in my opinion. 
2078. Q. o. 3 [Recommendation Xo. 3 usa read] P A. I agree with the fan. You cannot beat a fan 
for regular air. 
2070. Q. Now, you can say as much as you want to on that matler. What reasons have you for supporting 
this particular recommendation? A. Because a furnace is never kept regular; it cannot be kept regular. 
If it is fired UI) it will pull for awhile, and it will dull down again ; and a fan is one continual pull-more 
pull altogether, more strength, and regular. 
2083. Q. In what other way is a furnace objectionable? A. It makes a difference sometimes which way 
the wind is blowing outside a mine; and it does not make any difference to a fan at all. In my opinion, it 
does not. And that is about the main one, too, the way the wind blows. 
2031. Q. But, in ease of a disaster, what are the advantages of a fan? A. Do you mean to prevent a 
disaster? 
2082. Q. In case of a disaster, in what way would a furnace be distinctly objectionable? A. I do not 
know. 
2083. Q. Supposing the disaster in Kenabla had happened in the shaft section instead of in No. I Right? 
A. It would have gone up the shaft for a certainty. 
2034. Q. What would be the most probable result P A. I could not tell you that. 
2085. Q. What would be the effect on the fire ;-had an explosion of this magnitnde originated in the 
shaft district, what would have been the probable consequences ? A. It would go up the upcast shaft. 
2086. Q. What would follow from that? A. It would strip the whole shaft. It would wreck it. 
2087. Q. What would follow from that? A. Of course we would be all smothered in a few minutes. 
Of course the job would stop at once-no upcast, no air. 
2088. Q. In any part of the mine? A. No. 
2080. Q. Now, Recommendation No. 4 [Recommendation No. 4 was read] ;-I do not know what you 
would say upon that matter, as to the sealing off of the wastes, or as to whether they should be 
ventilated? A. I do not know exactly what they term wastes. What they tern) wastes in the Old 
Country is the country that stands on pillars not drawn out. 
2393. Q. Well, alter the pillars have been drawn A. Oh, that should close all up. You would want 
nothing there. It is supposed to fall bodily. 
2091. Q. But if it does not close all up ? A. Then you must block it up-that is my opinion. 
2092. 9. Seal it off? A. Yes. 
2093. 9. Bcommenda'ion No. 5, All places except prospecting drives to have cut-throughs not more 
than 30 yards apart" P A: Yes I will agree with that, too. 
2091. Q. From your general experience, what has been the distance of cut-througlis in England ;-how 
far have they been apart asa general experence? A. I think about 30 yards and 3-5 yards but it just 
depends on the nature of the roof over them. 
203.5. Q. In your opinion, voul:i cut-throughs 30 yards away from one another interfere with the safety 
of the roof in any way? A. If it is a weak roof it would. The bigger the pillar, the better for the 
roof. 
2096. Q. But would it interfere to a material extent, say, with the general run of roofs? A. No I do 
not think it would. 
2397. 9. And do you consider that .30 yards apart wouli be a reasonable distance? A. Yes, I think so. 
2308. 9. Recommendation No. U, "Inspection with locked safety lamp in all cases." There is an 
exception in the Act which provides that they need not inspect in the morning if gas has not been 
discovered for twelve months before ;-do you think that exception should be abolished, and that there 
should be an iuspeJion with a safety lamp in every place? A. Yes, there should be. 
2009. Q. Recommendation No. 7 ;-are you familiar with the use of the hydrogen flame? A. No, I 
am not. 
2103. Q. You do not understand that? A. No, I do not. 
2101. 9. Do you considei it expedient to have a monthly examination with a lamp that will show less 
than 2 per cent. of gas? A. I can hardly tell what 2 per cent, of gas is. I could tell the thickness of it 
myself if I tried it. 
2102. 9. Recommendation No. S [the Recommenduf ion was read] ; what do you say to that ;-do you 
think that 500 cubic feet of air should be supplied for the consumption of a horse per minute, in your 
opinion? A. I do not exactly understand the measurement of air myself. 
2103. His honor.] It is very clear that none of the miners pretend to understand that. They contend 
that, if 1)0 cubic feet are necessary for a man, more ought to be provided for a horse. It is very clear 
that 100 cubic feet is the amount required for it man, with a margin added; and if a horse requires five 
times as much as a man, you do not want to multiply both man and margin. If a man requires 60 cubic 
feet, and 40 cubic feet is the margin, and the multiplier 5, yen would multiply 60 by 5, and add the 
margin, 43. 
2101. Mr. Lmjsa,qJlt.] Q. Recommendation No. 9, "All doors erected so as to close and remain closed of 
own motion" P A. 1 agree with that. That is very good. 
2105. Q. Is that the practice in England in collieries? A. There is a boy to open the door and shut it 
agam ml. 
2406. Q. But were they, as far as you know, self-closing doors? A. Some had. 
2107. Q. And (Recommendation No. 10) "Double doors on drives between main intakes and returns 
and main headings "; you understand-the double doors instead of the single doors ;-you approve of 
that? A. Yes. - 
2103. 9 " Extra supply of safety lamps an I their requisites, equal to one-third of number of persons 
employed below ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use" (No. 12) P A. That 
would be very handy. 
2100. 9. What was your experience at Kembla? A. I could not find any after the disaster. 
2110. 9. Did you look? I. Yes ; because I wanted to get hold of a good lamp. 

2111. 
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2111. Q. How long were you delayed P A. I think there were some came. 
2112. Q. Where (lid they come from? A. 1 do net know. I saw them come in some cases. I do not 
know where they came from. 
2113. Q. Until thoc lamps came from outside quarters, could you get a lamp to go into the some? 

No, I could not. There were only fuur we found, 1 think, altogether; and I could not get one cf 
them. 
2114, Q. And if you had been able to get a lamp immediately, do you think you could have rendered 
greater assistance in saving life P A. A lot of us could. We could have got further in sooner. 
2115. Q. (Reconrnendation ATe. 13 was read.) Do You know anything about the watering of coal-mines ? 
A. I have seen them watered in places, but not many. 
2116. lIly. Bruce Smith.] Q. Where is that-at Home P A. Yes, on the dusty roads. 
2117. lily. Lqsaqht.] Q. Do they water the travelling roads too, as well as the haulage roads P A. In 
some places they do-where it is a bit dusty. 
2118. Q. You might tell us on an average how often you saw Mr. Rogers, say, in a month or three 
months or a week-how often did you see Mr. Rogers unders'round ? A. I could not tell you. I have 
heard tell of him many a time when I have not seen him. 
2119. how often have you seen him underground? How often has he come to your place? A. About 
six or seven times, perhaps. 
2120. Q. In two years? A. Yes. I could not tell you exactly how many times. 
2121. Q. (Recommendation No. 10 was read.) In7 your opinion, are those manholes now quite large 
enough in case of accident or any skips getting away; or would they be better enlarged? A. What is 
the size P 
2122. Mr. Lysaght.1 They are 3 x 4 x G. 
2123. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But you are telling him. 
2124. Mr. Lsaqht.] Tie knows the size ; but he does not know the lineal measurement. 
2125. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But there is a lot of this eidcnce in uhich you ask, "Do you remember all 
this ',"  and he says "Yes''; and that does not help the Comunrission at all, unless he gives some 
cx peric'n cc. 
21 25. His Ilmwr.j Not at all. The question is whether his experience is that the manholes are not big 
nough. 

2127. lIly. Li/sag/it.] Q. In your experience are these manholes large enough to provide for danger P A. 
I do not know What size these are; but what 1 have been used to are 0 x 6. 
2128. Q. In whxt collieries were these manholes 0 x 0 P A. In the Old Coun u ry  : but, of course, I did not 
notice very much anywhere else. 
2129. _11is honor.] Q You mean 6 x 0 ehatever the height might be P A. I mean in from the rope to 
give us room to get in. 
2130. Q. It has nothing to do with the height P A. No. 4 feet is the height of some, but that is the 
square (; x 0 x 4.. 
21.31. Mr. Lysag/it.] Q. (Rcominendaf ion Eo. 18 was read.) I think that has been touched when I.e 
was giving his evidence generally. If you think that instruction should regularly be given as to how they 
call get out of the mine P A. Oh, yes. 
2132. Q. Do you know all the ways to get out of Kemabla P A. There is one road I do not know very 
well to get out. 
2 3:3• Q. Which one is that? A. What they call the do) light tunnel, from the shaft. 
2134. Q. how many ways of getting out are there in Kembla? A. There are fbur tunnels that I know 
of besides the shaft; and I count that a way too. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade 

2135 Q. have you not found out these different roads out just by yourself P A. I have only been 
compelled to find one road out : that was the day of the explosion. 
2136. Q. it is not an answer to my question. have you found out the rest for yourself; or were you 
taken out specially P A. No. I have been in the other roads. That is all I know. 
2137. Q. I want to know, have you found them out for yourself, or has some official taken you round and 
shown you ? A. No official. 
2138. You found them out for yourself? A. Yes. 
2139. Q. And the only one you do not know very well is this one round by the shaft daylight tunnel to 
the extreme left of the plan P A. Yes. 
2140. Q. That is the one that goes round by the face of the old long-wall workings? A. Yes. 
2111. Q. That is a tremendously long way round ? A. Yes. 
2112. Q. Miles and miles? A. I do not say miles and miles, but perhaps it would be a couple of miles. 
2143. Q. Not more than that P A. It cannot be much more than that; perhaps less. 
2114. Q. Now, how did you find your way out on the day of the disaster; just by using your common 
seuse? A. Yes. I found the way by mee ting the frdsh air. 
2145. Q. You could tell when the breeze was coming in; and you always kept your face to the breeze? 
A. Yes. 
2140. Q. And you got out along a road you had not travelled before? A. Yes. I had never seen it 
before. 
2147. Q. Now, about these manholes in England, 6 x 6; do you know how far apart they are? A. I 
could not tell you-20 yards, I think, we used to have them. Then there was one in between on time 
other side ; so that if you missed this you could get that one. 
2148. Do you know how wide the roads were? A. We had different widths there. We had double 
roads in some places. They used to run what we call engine sets. 
2149. Q. Were they all 0 x 6? A. That is what we used to reckon to make them. 
21.50. Q. You have koown of no trouble in New South Wales from the manholes being too small P A. I 
never heard tell of It anyway. I nevcr heard tell of' any working man grumbling about the manholes 
being too small ; in fact, in Mount Kembla there is not much danger, because it is a very steady rope. If 
it had bI'en running an engine plane, that is where you want the manholes. 
2151. Q. With an engine plane you have no time to get out of the way if you are walking on the 
rails P A. No. 
2132. Q. You said you approved of a monthly inspection-do you remember saying that? A. Yes. 

2153. 
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2153. By whom? You did not tell us that, I think P A. By the officials of the mine, I should say. 
2154. But they inspect every morning, do they not? A. Yes, but the monthly inspection is to go through 
all the old air-roads. 
2 155. Q. You would not suggest a special inspection for as once a month in addition to the daily inspection? 
A. What I mean is about the special inspection. I thought it would be the Inspector who would go 
round once monthly thoroughly to see that these other men have done it; to see that everything bad 
been kept right. 
2156. Q. You know that every working place is examined for gas before the man starts work in the morning? 
A. I believe that. 
2157. Q. It ought to be done every day? A. If it is not, it should be. 
2158. Q. And you know it ought to be examined again during the daytime? A. Yes; before a shot is 
lit up it should, in my opinion. 
2159. Q. And you know that the workmen themselves are supposed to examine the place whilst at work? 
A. Oh, yes. 
2160. Q. Look mt for gas or unsafe roof, or anything like that? A. Yes. I always trust to myself 
for anything like that. 
2161. Q. Well, if it has been examined in that way day after day for a whole month by the deputies, do 
you see any reason for the deputy again making a special examination at the end of the month for gas ? 
A rell sometimes if there are three or four men togethergoing round, tPe bosses and all the lot, they 
might hunt something up that the other men would not be bothering to think about. 
2162. Q. What would they hunt up in the way of gas ;-if the deputy could not find it, and the miner 
in his place could not find it, what would you expect the deputy to find? A. Not in the working place. 
2163. Q. You do not think there should be any examination of the working places? A. Nc', not if they 
are examined in the morning. 
2164. Q. Now we come to the waste worliings -you think there should be a special inspection of the 
waste workings once a month ? A. Yes, I think that. 
2105. Q. Do you know that is done now, in Keinbla, at all events? A. I do not know whether it is 
done now or not. I never saw any report book. 
216. Q. And, if the miner has reason to think that matters are not going quite straight, he can always 
get the check-inspectors to go round, can be not, on behalf of the body of men? A. I do not know 
whether be can always get them, lie can get them only so often. 
2167. Q. You know you have the right to send them round, if you like ? A Y s. 
2168. Q. I suppose you will admit that you have got some competent men at Mount Kembla Mine, who 
are fit to act as check inspectors? A. I could not say there were many. 
2109. Q. Two will do, you know, even in Kembla itself? A. Oh, you would find two right enough. 
2170. Q. You could find two fully competent men in Kembla to act as check inspectors? A. Oh, ys. 
2171. Q. And you could easily pick out other competent men from other parts of the district? A. Yes. 
2172. Q. And, if they do their work properly, it ought to be a proper check on any carelessness on the 
part of the Managers? A. It ought to be. That is what we send them round for. 
2173. Q. And, as a practical man, von know when gas is present by the cap on your safety-lamp? A. I 
have found it out once like that. 
2174. Q. And you know it? A. I have found it out once like that. Yes, I know that was gas that time. 
2175. Q. That is the ordinary safety-lamp ;-what did you use, the Davy? A. When I found the gas? 
I thought you meant when it lit up. 
2176. 12.  That was the naked light? A. Yes. 
2177. Q. I am talking about the safety-lamp? A. r would use the Davy r,ther than anything. 
2178. Q. And you know that on the Davy lamp a cap appears on the flame? A. Yes. 
2179. Q. And that has always been regarded by practical miners as a good enough guide for the presence 
of gas? A. Oh, es ; it is a good guide. 1 would trust myself anywhere with one of them. 
2180. Q. Then, would you be satisfied ifou had competent check--inspectors, and they examined with 
the ordinary safety-lamp to look for gas? A. Yes, certainly. I could not help it: if we picked the 
men I should be satisfied. But, of course, the more inspecting the better. You cannot inspect too much. 
2181. Q. But there is such a thing as money? A. And there is life there, too. I consider myself as 
well as money. 
2182. Q. You would trust your own fellow-men, your check.inspectors, to look after your life? A. Yes; 
if I picked them. 
2183. Q. You have the right to choose the men yourself? A. I have a say in it. 
2184. Q. In regard to eut-throughs, you say that you would have them 30 yards apart, in England, 
unless the roof was bad P A. Yes. 
2185. Q. Did you not also say that the bigger the pillar with a bad roof the safer? A. Yes. Where 
there is a rotten roof it will not do to work with too small pillars. 
2186. Q. Do you know what the size of pillars is in England? A. They work different sizes, according 
to the strength of the roof. 
2187. Q. Take a place with a big cover overhead? A. A strong roof? 
218$. Q. No, with a weak roof;- do you know what size the pillars run to there? A. I have been in 
places where the bore itself is only 14 feet n-ide. 
2189. Q. And what would be the size of the pillar? A. About 25 yards square. I could not say 
exactly. 
2100. Q. And then 14 feet space again, and 25 yards pillar again? A. Yes. That is only where there 
is a bad roof. 
2191. Q. And, the deeper you are, the wider, the bigger, your pillar ought to be? A. Yes. 
2192. Q. The deeper you are below the surface? A. Yes; the stronger you get the roof. 
2193. Q. Is it not a fact that the deeper you are from the surface the bigger your pillar ought to be? 
A. Yes; and you can take a wider drive in to start with. You would drive the place wider. Instead of 
being 14 feet, you could take them, perhaps, S or 9 yards wide, if you bad a strong roof. 
2194. Q. I want to get this general question settled first of all: as it practical man, will you say that the 
deeper you are below the surface the bigger your pillars ought to be? A. Yes; 1 would say that. My 
real meaning is, with small pillars you get better air round. Smaller pillars, better ventilation. 
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2195. Q. Do you recommend as a practical man small pillars in a big mine? A. Yes. There are a lot 
of different ways of pillaring. 
2190. Q. Would you recommend as a practical man small pillars in a big mine P A. Not too small. 
2197. Q. Ycu have to sacrifice some of your ventilation in a deep mine for the safety of your roof? A. 
Yes. 
219S. Q. Now, with regard to the wastes, is it not your idea as a practical man that, when the pillar coal 
is taken out and the timber is drawn, the roof is supposed to fall down and close up? A. It is supposed 
to to close bodily as I term it. 
2199. Q. To close up tight? A. Yes. 
2200. Q. And is it not the idea that in that way you make that part of the mine more solid ? A. It will 
get settled after a time. 
2201. Q. And it helps the other part of the mine too P A. Oh, it helps the other and eases the weight. 
2202. Q. Now, with regard to the furnace, you said that if an explosion had taken place near the shaft it 
would have rushed up the shaft? A. it should do so. 
2203. Q. What did you say then, that it would wreck the shaft? A. It could not help it. 
2204, Q. How do you mean? A. It would shift the timber and bricks that would be there out of their 
places. 
2205. Q. And fill the shaft right up? A. I do not know that it would fill it right up; but it would 
more or less block it. 
2200. Q. It would more or less block the air-shaft? A. It would block the furnace. 
2207. Q. It would block the air running up to the surface P It would disturb the air current? A. There 
would be nothing to force it up there if the furnace was stopped. 
2208. Q. if the shaft was blocked it would block the passage and stop the air getting UI) to the surface? 
A. Yes. 
2209. Q. Is that what you mean by wrecking P A. Yes. 
2210. Q. And would not the same thing happen if you had a fan PA. It would for a time. 
2211. Q. And when you got the shaft cleared out and the passage clear again you would restore the 
ventilation? A. Yes; but where I have seen the fans they have always a spare engine and fan. 
2212. Q. If there is an explosion there is the same trouble whether it is a furnace or a fan? A. If it is 
closed up. 
2213. Q. Do you know of any case yourself where the shaft has been wrecked like that and closed up P 
A. I know of one in Durham ; but it did not close it right up. 
2214. Q. What was the ventilation there 1? A . It was a downcast. 
2215. 9. I am talking of upcasts P A. The explosion caused this. 
2210. 9. I want to know if you know of a case of an upc'ast where it was wrecked by an explosion P 
A. That is my opinion. 
2217. Q. That is what I want to get at. It is only theory? A. My experience shows mc. that I will get 
better air and more constantly with a fan than with a furnace. 
2218. Q. Do you want to say that a furnace, is dangerous or that it is not so good as a fan P .1. I o 
not say it is dangerous ; but it is not so good asafan, because it is not as constant. 
2219. 9. Now, you said with regard to the first matter, the exanin:ition of deputies and shot-firers, that 
relationship has shoved then) into a big lob P A. Sometimes. 
2220. 9. Do you know of any in this district? A. No. 
2221. 9. Do you know of one in this district? A. No. 
2222. 9. Do you know of one in New South Wales? A. I have only worked in this mine in Now South 
Wales, 
2223. Q. You do not know ? A. I have heard talk one way and another. 
2221. 0. Do you know of one instance where it has been abused in that way ? A. I do not know of one 
instance at present; but I know it would be a fair way to examine. 
2225. Q. You mean there is always that risk P A. Yes, 
2226 Q. Now let us come to the question of the explosion-you think it began over here, somewhere 
near Tost. and Bunn's place'? A. Yes. 
2227. Q. Were you down the No. 1 main level at all P A. I came along somewhere across into that, to 
come round to this here 5th Right. 
2228. Q. Now, you know where the 5th Right is, where that joins the main No. 1 ? A. Yes ; I wom lied 
there two quarters. 
2229. Q. Were you in the main No. 1 tunnel outbye of No. 5 Right any time after time explosion? A. 
Only that time when I came across there. 
2230. Q. Then you crossed inbve of No. 5 Right ? A.. I came from the old No. S through Powell's Flat. 
2231. Q. Along No. 4 Left travelling road, then upwards towards Test and Ilunn's 1)10cc? A. Yes. 
2232. Q. And then you crossed into P A. f'u. I think I came down a little and then crossed, 
2233. Q. Then you only just crossed No. 1 mnaimm road? A. Yes. 
2234. Q. Then you were not down on No. 4 Right at all ,  A. No. I was not down here to this other 
rope road. 
22:35. Q. You were not down at No. 4 Right at all P A. No. I was not in that place at all. I went 
round that rope road after. 
2236. Q. Now, what do you think-you told us that walking down No. 4. Left travelling road you found 
the dust on the side of the props near this No. 1 road? A. Yes. 
2237. Q. What direction do you think that skewed P A. It sholved that the force had come like meeting 
me as I was coming up. 
2238 9. You think that the force of the cxploAon had come from No. 1 main road into No. 4 Left towards 
Stafford's Flat P .1. My opinion was, when I saw it, that when the explosion occurred it gave a force like 
back towards this SO. 
2239. Q. Never mini about that at pm'eaent you saw on thus N'o. 1 travelling road, between Stafford's 
Flat and No. 1 main level, dust on the side of time props nearest No. 1 main level P A. Yes, nearest this 
way. 
2210. Q. Now, whieh way do you think that shows the explosion travelled P A. Well, of course it forced 
some dust that way towards the shaft. 

16825 29-8 241. 
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2241. Q. You think that showed that the explosion travelled from No. 1 level toward's Stafford's Flat? 
A. I do not know which way it travelled. 
2242. Q. What do you think that shows about the direction in which the explosion travelled. You saw 
soot or dust on the props in the travelling road, the 4th Left, between No. 1 main level and Stafford's 
Flat? A. Yes. 
2243. Q. And you think the explosion travelled in that road P A. A part of the force. 
2244. Q. A part of the explosion? A. Yes. 
2215. Q. Which way do you think that travelled, from No. I towards Stafford's. Flat, or from Stafford's 
Flat towards No. 1? A. Towards No. 1 the main force of it travellej, from what I can see of it. 
2216. Q. What direction do von think this explosion was going when it put this dust on the side of the 
props nearest to No. 1? A. My opinion was that the explosion was coining towards No. 1 main 
headin . 
2217. Q. Well, after that we gct to the 4th Left travelling road P A. Yes. 
2248. Q. You told us the props  had the dust on the opposite side to you as you were walking towards 
No. 1? A. Yes 
2249. Q. Now, how do you think the explosion travelled in that 4th Left-the way you were walking or 
in the opposite way to what you were walking? A. Of course the force of it came towards meeting me- 
some of it rather. 
2230. Q. And it put the dust on the props on the side it came from? A. Yes, on the side it came 
from. 
2251. Q. Did you make any attempt to trace this-- to trace the cause of this explosion? A. No, I was 
not allowed, 
2232. Q. I want to know did you? A. I did not. I was only taken round with the deputy. 
22.53. Q. And you say that in that 4th Left travelling road you think there had been flame? A. The 4th 
Left P 1 was not there. 
22.5-I. Q. You have been telling us about it? A. The 5th Left-oh, the 4th Left-I know now. 
2255. Q. Do you say there had been flame coming down that road? A. I do not think there would be zn 

much flame. It was like a concussion. 
2236. Q. Do you think there had been any flame? A. I do not think there had been any flame where I 
first noticed the dust 
2257. Q. Do you think there had bren any flame in the No. 4 Left travelling road? A. Yes, towards the 
main heading there had. 
22S. Q. You did not examine the dust, did you? A. I did not examine tho dust. I could see it was a 
sort of grey-looking dust. 
2239. Q. i)id you see the appearance as if the dust had been blown by wind in No.4 left travelliug road? 
A. Yes, it looked blown by wind, of course. 
2260. Q. It was more like wind than anything else? A. I knew it must have been carried by wind by 
the way it was hung on the props. 
2261. Q. You know the feeling you get on the drum of your ears if you get a heavy pressure of air on 
them. A. Yes. 
2262. Q. Was that the kind of feeling you had on the 31st? A. No, it was more a shaking sound. It 
seemed it weight on the drum of the ear, and it seenied like a motion with the pressure. 
2263. Q, Did you hear any sound? A. I heard no sound. Teat n-as the first I noticed of it. 
2261. You say you were in two sina0 explosions bofore ; take the first one, wh2rc your shirt was taken 
off sour back. Who was with you at the time P A. My brother. 
265. Q. Was be the cause of the explosion? A. No; another man that was working with us. 
2266. Q. In the same place? A. He was not directly in the same place. We were just having tucker 
then ; having " crib," as we call it. 
2267. Q. \'hat did the man do? A. We were working with the naked lights. After we had our tucker 
we went back to work this hole in the canch, and as soon as he got wear the place it lit up and went over 
us to the main face ; and it came back then on the same road, and took my shirt off as it came back. 
2268. Q. How far did it travel? A. About 50 yards up and came back. 
2260. ç.  That was more like what happened to you in your hord 40 this time last year than like the 
explosion on July 3 1st? A. Of course, in boyd 40 there was not half so much of it. 
2270. Q. It did not travel all over the mine and wreck the mine like this thing in July ? A. No, it 
knocked two or three trap-doors down, and two or three stoppings and that like, and went out to the back 
heading ; and it stopped there; there was too much air for it there. 
2271. Q. And the second explosion, was that thesame kind of thing? A. Yes. There were six or seven 
men burnt the second time; and two of them died. 
2272. Q. But there was no report P A. Oh yes, a certairf amount of report, of course, like an explosion; 
like an explosion of pow-der, only more louder and shriller and sharper. 
2273. Q. \Tou say that it was like an explosion of powder? A. Only shriller like. 
2274. Q. You mean lander P A. Sharper. 
2275. Q. You never felt an explosion like that one that took place in Kembla ? A. 11 never felt one as 
severe as that was. 
2276. Q. Now, coming to these times when you say you saw gas, do I understand the position to be this, 
that if the brattice had been arranged properly the air current would have carried away what gas there 
was? A. I quite think it would have swept it out. 
2277. Q. If the current had been properly arranged, if the brattice had been put in the right place? 
A. Yes; there was plenty of air if it had been shoved round the place. 
2278. Q. Plenty of air to clear away the gas if the brattice had been arranged poper5v. A. Yes. 
2279. Q. Your complaint was with regard to the brattice not bring properly arranged? A. Yes. 
2280. Q. That applies to both those occasions? A. Just in the one place. 
2281. Q. In No. 40? A. Yes. 
2282. Q. Are you not always supposed to wait a good time till the smoke clears away after a shot 
before you go back to the place? A. I have not seen any Rules or Regulations. 
2283. Q. Never mind about Rules, is not that your experience? A. i\ly experience is not to go back too 
soon if I know she is w'arm with the smoke. 2281. 
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2281. Q. Is not your experience that you wait some time to go back P A. If you had time. If you 
wanted to go back to fill a skip you would, but if you had full skips you would wait to do it. 
2285. Q. in both these cases there had been a new face opened UI)  by the shot? A. Yes. 
2280. Q.  flow much coal was brought down by the shot? A. I suppose about. 7 or 8 tons. 
2287. Q. Now, let us come to these shots fired by Forsythe-had you worked with safety-lamps in 
England? A. Yes. 
2288. Q. Were they gassy mines you worked in? A. Yes. 
2289. Q. Would you call them very gassy? A. The one 1 worked in was very gassy, in the county of 
Durham; a mine called Washington Colliery. 
2200. Q. 1 want to know was gas always there? A. Oh, yes; there were always safety..lamps there all 
through that mine. 
2201. Q. Could you always find gas, every clay? A. We always used to keep everything locked. 
2292, Q. Could you find gas any day with the safety-lamp? A. In some parts of the mine you could. 
2293. Q. In communication with the air current? A. Yes; if there were any little pot-holes in the roof 
there would be gas in. 
2294. Q. Now, how old was this bord that you were working at, No. 05, the other day when the shot 
were fired? A. No. 65 ? 
2205. Q. flow long  had you broken into that place? A. I just came to it on the Monday. That was 
the first day. it had not been working very long before; not long, I know. 
2290. Q. Then the dust, even on the third day, was only about three days' dust? A. They had been 
working in it before us. 
2297. Q. I want to know how far the bord was in? A. I can tell you exactly, because they measured it 
the day I was there. 
229. Q. Tell us then? A. About 18 yards in. 
2299. Q. The men had been working, I suppose, something about a little over a month, would that not be 
so P A. I do not know how long the men had been working before us. I was strange when I came, 
and started there. 
2300. Q. There had not been very much driven in the bor&], beyond just the skip coming in and taking 
the coal out? A. That is all. 
2301. Q. I suppose you do not know whether as had been found, whether there had been any sign of 
gas or not in that bord on the examination before work commenced? A. I always looked for myself 
before I went in. 
2302. Q. Did you find any gas? A. No. 
2:30:3. Q. As fhr as you know it was perfectly free of gas P A. Yes. 
2301. Q. And it has been all along ? A. Since I have been in it. 
2305. Q. Do you know this, that any part of the mine that is really dusty is heavily watered during the 
night? Do you know that is a fact nowadays P A. I know of one place I worked in, it was done on 
one night. They put a skip of water in. Still it did not need it. 
2300. Q. They only water when it is wanted ? A. It was a dry,  place just started ; and it was never 
needed after ards. 
2307. Q. That is since you began work after the accident ? A. Yes. 
23JS. Air. Bruce Sm/tim.] Q. That is the place you are in now? A. No. I worked three months in that 
one that I am speaking of, about the water. It was in a pillar. 
2309. Air. WaJe. I Q. Now, you talk about a fuse blazing at times-do you know where those fuses 
were lit P A. Yes, in the same place I am speaking about the watering. 
2310. Q. What were they lit with? A. With a wire. 
2311. Q. It was the wire that made the blaze, not a naked light? A. It was a naked light after it 
blazed. 
2312. Q. But it was lit with a wire? A. Yes; but still they do not blaze every time. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Bruce Smith. 

2213. Q. Where were you working when this watering was carried on? A. In the shaft section. 
2314. Q. That was after the accident? A. Yes. 
2315. Q. Had it ever been watered before? A. I could not tell you. 
2310. Q. To your knowledge? A. It had not been until we started. 
2317. Q. But after the accident you saw it watered? A. I saw water in my place. 
2318. Q. Was it watered with one of those tank skips and a spray? A. I never saw how it was watered. 
I found the water in next morning. 
2:319. Q. You said just now " One skip of water" F A. That is what I estimated. I saw it lying across 
the place. 
2320. Q.  Before that was (lone was the dust lying about there? A. Yes, a little dust before that. 
2321. Q. You considered it slightly dusty before? A. Yes. 
2322. Q. And what was the effect of this watering? A. It settled the dust. 
2323. Q. I mean in your opinion it rendered it more safe? A. Yes. 
2324. Q. But you cannot tell how it was done, or when? A. It was done in the night. 
2325. Q.  How long were you in the place after that before this calamity took place ? A. I was in there 
three months after that-well, thirteen weeks. 
2320. Q. It was after the accident and after this watering? A. Yes. - 
2327. Q. Was it watered again after that? A. T never saw any water in after that. 
2328. Q.  Do you mean to say that the dampness produced by the one watering was sufficient to keep the 
dust down ? If it was not watered again for thirteen weeks, did it get dusty again P A. No. The coal 
was naturally damp when we got working it. 
2:329. Q. Then how did it become dusty If A. It had been standing idle for six, or eight, or ten, weeks. 
2330. Q. it had been stanchng for some time; and this watering was done before you began again? 
A. We worked for one day ; and then this watering was done the next night. 
2:3:31. Q. And after you began working there it was watered at night? A. Yes. 
2332. Q. Aol after that it did not need water? A. It was naturally damp. 
2333. Q. You have spoken of the danger, in case of explosion, to the upcast ? A. Yes. 
2331. Q. Vill you tell time Commission what greater danger there is to the upcast where there is a fire 
in use than where a fan is used P A. I could not tell you. . 2335. 
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2335. Q. You see you have undertaken to tell the Commission here that you think a change ought to be 
made in the Mount Kembla Mine by substituting a fan for a fire and the only reason you give for it is 
that if there were an accident near the upeast it might bring down the walls of the upcast and stop the 
orifice in the mine P A. Yes. 
2331. Q. Now, I want you to tell the Commission what would prevent that from happening if there were 
a fan on the to1) instead of a fire at the bottom P A. I was not meaning in that way at all. I was 
meaning the regulating the air by the fan preventing an explosion. That is what I was trying to get at. 
2337. Q. I know you spoke of the irregularity ; but I want to pass that for the present. Are you in a 
position to show the Commission that there would be any less danger to the upcast from an explosion 
where there was a fan than where there was a fire? A. I could not say that. 
2333. Q. Then your only reason is what you call the regularity of the fan Fe A. Yes, that is my only 
reason. 
23:39. Q. As a practical man P A. Yes. 
2310. Q, Have you had any reason in Mount Kembla Mine, as a practical man, to find fault with the 
regularity of the air? A. Yes. 
234[. Q. have you complained to anybody? A. I have complained to the deputy. 
2342. Q. Which Deputy? A. To the different ones at the time in the different sections I have been in. 
2313. Q. What have you complained ? A. Toll him it was very (lull to-day, and that sort of thing. 
2341. Q. A nd you have been in mines with a fan P A. Yes. 
23 t5. Q. And you have never had to complain in that way P A. Yes. 
2346. Q. So far as you know, except that there is a little more regularity where a fan is used than where a 
fire is used, that is your only reason? A. Yes. 
2317. Q. I want to get at the bottom of your knowledge. You know nothing with reference to the 
greater danger of the breaking down of the upcast; and you say that even with the fan it is not very 
much more regular P A. No. 
2348. Q. Have you the slightest idea what it costs to change a mine like the Mount Kembla from a fire to 
a fan? A. It would cost a good bit at Mount Kembla. 
2349. Q. That is rather vague, a good bit? A. I could not tell. 
2350. Q. You have never considered that A. I will tell you what I have considered. I know that 
there is an engine on the top of the shaft now and I know it would be very handy for the job. 
351. Q. Du you know whether it would cost £100 or £1,000? A. I know it would not cost £1,000. 

2352. Q. That is the extent of your knowledge P A. I do not go to estimate the cost of it. 
2.353. Q. You have told us about this shot that was fired: was that place as dusty as the one you went 
to last quarter where they watered P A. \Vhich shot do you mean 
2351. Q The shot that was fired in the way that you disapproved, by the opening of the safety-lamp? 
A. That is this quarter. 
2355. Q. You told us that was a little dusty P A. Yes. 
2356. Q. Was that as dusty as the place you went to last quarter whore they watered? A. No, not 
quite so dusty. 
23.57. Q. What do you consider the most dusty part of that mine, with all your experience of it? A. I 
have not been all over it. 
2:3.58. Q. I know that. What is the most dusty part of it P A. The 5th Right. 
2359. Q. That is the 5th Right off No. 1? A. Off No. 1 main tunnel. 
2300. Q. What about the 4th Left? A. It was always damp enough that way. 
2301. Q. Is there any  difference in the amount of dust in that mine in the summer aid in the winter? 
A. Oh, I quite think that the air comiug from the daylight is damper air. 
2302. Q. I am not talking now of theory, but of your practical experience in the mine. Is there any 
difference in the amount of dust in that mine in the summer and in the winter? A. it is always dry 
and dusty in the summer. 
2313. Q. How does the present condition of dustiness compare with what it was, say, four months ago P 
A I have not been working in time same part where it was dusty since the explosion time. 
2.361. Q. Have you seen any part lately that you saw four months ago P A. Ncr. I have not been in 
that district since. 
2305. Q. And you cannot speak generally as to whether what anyone saw now would be a fair sample of 
what it was four months ago before the explosion? A. I know the same part where I saw that dust is 
not working yet, not much of it. 
2306. Q. You canuot compare now any part with what it was before the explosion? A. No. I have 
not been in that part since. 
2367. Q. Now, you spoke of the time of the explosion, about telling somebody that the wheeler was 

blown to blazes." Those were your words P .4. Laidlaw said that to me. 
2368. Q. Did von find out afterwards what lie was referring to-the horse or the man? A. The wheeler 
was blown up the road. 
2369. Q. Was he referring to the horse or the man? A. The man. 
2370. Q. Did you find out afterwards where he was blown? A. I found him then. 
2371.. Q. Was he lying down? A. Jack Laidlaw had hold of him. 
2372. Q. I want you to tell me where he was, and in what direction he was blown P A. He was in 
90 bord. 
2373.. Q. You know the north and south-was lie blown down south or north? A. lie was blown up 
these bords, up 130 herd. 
2374. Q. Iea11y blown up towards the working P A. Yes. 
2375. Q. W hat was his name? A. Cliff. Ilammon. 
2376. Q. tie is al:ve now P A. Yes. lie has lust started to work here again. 
2171. Q. Did you crook to him aL crmvards? A. After I got him through the bratLice, where there was 
L..1tc•i mile. 
2:378 Q. \Vlmat: did he tell you P A. Tie said " Hy horse is lying down there." 
2379. Q. Did you go and see time horse P A. I said No, never mind your horse." 
2ISO. (3. Do you know where the horse was bhown P A. Only shifted among the props. 
2381. (3. Was he blown in the same direction? A. The same direction, inbve. 
23s2. (3. Now, in 

(i
describing the explosion you said it went one way and another; and you waved your 

arm like that. mmtatin y)-what do you mean by that A. My meaning is it was like a shot going off. 
2383. 
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2383. Q. Is that something you saw or something you imagined? A. I know the smoke was up, and 
dust up, near where Cliff. 1-{ammon was. 
2384. (7 I want to know what you saw to cause you to say it went that way and that way (imifafinq) ? 
A. That was the time I went up those other bords : it went in different ways. But you have me in 
DO-bord now. 
2355. Q. That was on the day of the explosion? A. Yes. 
2:389. Q. You said it went one way and another, and you did this (waving his arm) ; what do you mean 
by that ;-did you have experience of its going in different ways ? A. Yes ; it was (Interrupted). 
2387. Q. What were you referring to when you said that ;-what part of the mine were you referring 
to ? A. To the 5th Right. 
2388. Q. Near Test's bord? A. No. 
2389. (7. You were not rpeaking of the shaft district? A. No. 
23,00. (7. Now, I want you to tell the Commission-you see it is a rather significant and suggestive 
gesticulation-you say it went right and left, one way and another P A. It must have gone in different 
directions to get round the props : that is my opinion of it. 
2:191. Q. Did you form the conclusion that the forces went in different directions ? A. It would do. 
2302. Q. That is theory ;-but I want to know what it did do in your experience P A. In my experience 
it spun all round the props, because it was all round the props. 
2393. In some places you foumid it on one side only, and in others all round ? A. As you come to get up 
more I found it all round. 
2391.. Q. 1. do not know whether you fo.nied the opinion that it was simply one explosion from one 
centre, or whether there was a series of explosions P A. I have noticed only the one. I only felt that one. 
2395. Q. Have you had any experience of coal dust explosions ;-do you know anything about them 
theoretically P A. No. 1 never read an thing. 
2396. Q. Now, will you tell me which you consider more dangerous, lighting a fuse at the naked flame of 
a lamp by opening the lamp, or firing a shot with gunpowder P A. The gunpowder will explode gas 
from my experience. 
2397. Q. \ hieh, in your experience, is more dangerous, firing a shot of gunpowder where there is gas, 
or opening a lamp where there is gas? A. Opening a loop would be dangerous. 
2398. (7. Which is more dangerous in your opinion? A. I say the naked light is dangerous. 
2309. (7. The naked liget in your opinion is more dangerous than firing a shot with gunpowder? A. In 
my opinion. - 
2-IPO. (7. You did not object to firing a charge of gunpowder? A. No. Too much powder in the hole 
will explode the gas if there is any there. 1 would like to hold the charge myself. 
2101. Q. You told Mr. Wade that you did not know o( any ease in this district in which either a relative 
or a favourite has been put into a responsible position P A. No only the talk I have heard. 
2402. Q. You said you had seen the roads watered at home ? A. Yes. 
2403. Q. In what mines had you seen them watered P A. I had seen them in the Dudley Colliery where 
I was working. 
2101.. Q. how many years ago? A. Twenty-five years ago. 
2405. Q. You tell the Commission that twenty-five years ago it was the practice in the Dudley Mine, in 
England, to water the roads ? A. Yes. 
2406. Q. how were they watered then? A. They used to be watered with tanks; iron tanks. 
2107. Q. Skip tanks? A. Yes, on the night shift always. 
2408. (7. You have seen these used: how did they water-with a hose or spray? A. They used to have 
an old pipe and let it run out. 
2109. Q. Just on the ground P A. Yes. 
2110. Q. But no spray on the sides or the roof? A. No, only just to keep the dust down on the haulage 
road as we call it. 
2411. (7. And that was regularly done there? A. Yes, if it got too dry. 
2112. (7. Now, was the Dudley a more dusty mine than Mount Kenibla? A. Yes, in parts. 
2413. Q. And less dusty inparts P 1, Yes. 
2111. Q. And more in parts? A. Yes. 
2415. Q. On the whole, was it as dusty as Mount Kembla? A Well, I believe that Mount Kembla is 
more dusty. 
2416. Q. And how long were you in the Dudley P A. Five years. I went there as a boy. 
2117. 0. And that system of waterig the mine was carried out the whole five years you were there P 
A. Yes, for anything 1 know. I was not always there to see. 
2418. (7. As far as you know it was a regular system twenty-live years ago? A. Yes. 

Re-examination by Mr. Lysaght 
21.19, (7. Do you know whether a special payment was made for the watering at Dudley Mine? 

(Mr. Wade objected). 
21-20. Mr. Lysaglit.] I want to show that it was not casually done by a contractor for getting out 
material, as it is in the evidence that it was done at Mount Kembla. 
21.21. Mv. Wade.] That is not in the evidence. 

Examination by His Honor 

2422. Q. When you speak of a pipe, just explain how the pipe was used? A. The pipe was on the tank, 
just an inch pipe or so, and it was let run as they ran along the road. 
2423. (7. Was the pipe put from side to side ? A. It was in the centre between the two rails. 
2121. (7. Was there anything to distribute the water across the line of the road; or did t only run down 
the centre of the roah A. Just d own the centre, and let it run as it could, like. 

Re-cross-examination by ML'. Bruce Snotli. 
2423. Q. Was it reilly a ineons of getting rid oF the water? A. No, to keep the dust down and keep the 
road sound-to keep the sleepers solid. 
2426. Q. Do you know that even before this exploion it was customary to get rid of water in the Mount 
Kembla Mine from some places where there was a great accumulation, by taking it in and letting it drop 
all along the road oui of a tank, turning a tap on? A. Yes, I know that. 
2427. Q. Do you consider that was done to lay the dust ? A. Not altogether; to get rid of the water. 

243. 
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2428. Q. From your experience in Dudley, was it done for the same purpose P A. No. 
2429. Q. Had you any superabundance of water in the I)udley Colliery P A. Oh, any amount of water. 
2130. Q. Were these tanks used to carry the water away in places where the water was in the way of 
the line P A. In these places I am speaking of the tank-s were sent along specially to water the road. 
2431. Q. I-Tow do you know that? A. Because the dust was lying along on the engine plane, we call it, 
hauling big ropes. 

Re. examination by Mr. Lysaglit :- 

2432. 0. While you were working in the 5th Right, which you say was dusty, was any part of it ever 
watered before the disaster P A. 1 never saw any. 
2133. Q. Now, you spoke about this, that at times the air was slack, and you complained to the deputy, 
can you remember any time shortly before the disaster complaining about the air being slack, and, if so, 
when ;-just think now as carefully  as you can, before the 31st .July, as to any complaint you made 
concerning the air being slack, and your asking for better air P A. I never did, the last two quarters 
before the explosion, because I was in the 5th Right getting the first air almost. 

Examination by Mr. Robertson 

2134. Q. At the Dudley Colliery you are referring to, what was the system of haulage, main and tail? 
A. Yes. 
2435. Q. And, of course, the speed of the main and tail rope is very great? A. It is ; yes. 
2436. Q. And it is necessary to keep a very good road? A. It is. 
2437. Q. And without the watering would it have been possible to keep a good road P A. That is what 
I know it was to keep the road solid. 
2438. Q. And with the main and tail rope system, owing to the great speed more dust is produced P A. 
Oh, yes, certainly. 
2439. Q. And what is the system at Mount Kembla? A. It is the endless rope here. 
2140. Q. A very slow speed P A Yes. 
2441. Q. No dust is produced? A. It could not lift the dust. There would be very little dust lifted by 
the speed at Mount Kembla. It would be very light (dust) if it did. 
2412. Q. Does it produce much dust P A. No, 
2143. Q. It is a very slow speed? A. Yes, about a mile or 2 miles an hour. 
2411. Q. Irrespective of the necessity for keeping a good road, do you think the roads at Dudley should 
have been watered? A. I do not think they would, so much. 
2445. Q. It was a matter of keeping a gcod road? A. Yes. 
2446. Q. Do you know whether this systematic watering was in force at any other colliery at that time? 
A. I never heard of it. 
2447. Q. In your examination of the workings some time after the explosion, you speak of having found 
soot? A. Yes. 
2448. Q. Were not you mistaken? Was not that fine dust? A. That is what it seemed to me. 
2110. Q You know the difference between dust and soot? A. it was different dust from what I had 
seen in Mount Kembla Mine before. 
2150. Q. It was not the soot you get from a chimney ? It did not stick to your fngers P A. No. It 
was a very gray dust. I noticed it was a new dust for Mount Kfmhla. 
2151 Q. In the place you have referred to, when some shots were fired by Forsythe, was there any gas 
there? A. No. 
2452. Q. What was the explosive used? A. Powder. 
2453. Q. Gunpowder? A. Yes. 
2151. Q. You said something about manholes. You are aware, of course, that there are hundreds of 
manholes very much larger than the statutory requirements? A. Yes, there are some larger. Yes, a 
bord in with a stopping put in is a manhole. 
2455. Q. As a matter of fact, the majority of the manholes are very large? A. Yes, I daresav they are. 
I never took much notice. 

Examination by His ilonox' 

2456. Q. That dust you speak of which you call soot-did you notice aivy thing as to its smell ? A. Yes. 
2457. Q. What did you notice as to the smell P A. I could not tell what sort of a smell it is like. The 
mine smells in parts to.day just the same. - 
2458. Q. Yes, but when you judged it to be soot, when you called it soot, did you go by the smell of it 
or by the feel of it P A. By the feel-all the place smelling the same in that way. 
2459. Q. And it was different from what you saw before P A. It was different dust. 

[At this stage Mr. W. H. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings.] 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie: - 

2400. Q. how did lie fire the shot? A. He tried the roof where the shot was to be fired. He put his 
lamp up to the roof and brought it back again. 
2461. Q. What do they do to learn whether the hole is properly charged? A. We are supposed to have 
it ready for them. 
2462. What means are taken to learn whether the hole is in the solid? A. He comes back after the 
shot has gone off. 
246-3. Q. Not before? A. No. 
246 t. Q. Do they make any inquiries as to measurements? A. A man may ask what depth the shot is 
fired but I only saw one man measure the hole. 
2165. Q. Do you advocate ventilation by fans instead of by furnace? A. Yes, I know itis more regular 
air, and gives greater safety. 
2466. Q. Do you allow the question of cost to come in P A. Yes, to a certain extent. 
2467. Q. Then you allow yourself to be in danger if the question of cost comcs in P A. I would not have 
the danger for all the money they have got..' 
246'S. AIr. Wade.] We have not taken any exception to that. 
2469. His honor.] I know you have not done so. 
2470. Mr. Bruce Semi/li.] I would like to say, of course, that there is a limit to the question. If that 
were not so, you would never run trains, for instance, more than at the rate of 10 miles per hour, and 
ships would have to go to sea side by side for fear that one would be wreck-cd. All I want to know is 
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whether the witnesses have taken into consideration the question of expense in connection with that of 
the danger. 
2471. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. Do you think it practictebic to have fan p0\Ver at Mount Kembla P A. Yes, I 
think it is, because the air is so irregular because of the wind. 
2172. AIr. Bruce Smith.] My idea of the matter jast referred to is this : that it is a question of the 
adoption or otherwise of irnprovd machinery. The question was raised in connection with a spark 
arrester being attached to a train. They had a spark arrester, but the question was raised whether or 
not they ought to have the best spark arrester ; and it was pointed, out that to have the best spark 
arrester always attached to trains would mean constant expenditure, because of the constant improve-
ments that are made in arresters. 

Re-examined by Mr. Lysaglit :- 

2473. Q. Upon what do you base your statement with reference to the shots that were fired? A. I 
said that he brought the lamp up to the roof, and put it a few feet above where the shot would be letoff; 
that is, that the shot would. be  2 feet below the roof. 
2474. Q. What sort of lamp was it P J. It was a Glennie, or some kind of a safety-lamp like that. 

Mis. FRANK McDONALD was sworn and examined as under :- 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lvsaght :- 

2475. Q. What is your name? A. Frank McDonald. 
2470. Q. What are you? A. I am a miner, working at Mount Keira Colliery. 
2177. Q. how long have you been there P A. About twenty-seven years. 
2178. Q. have you worked in other mines besides? A. No. 
2479. Q. Are you a member of the Delegate Board of the Miners' Union? A. Yes. 
24S0. Q. Did you attend a meeting when certain recommendations were made, to be submitted to the 
Commission? A. Yes. 
2181. Q. Were you one of the persons who went to the Kemnbla Mine after the explosion? A. I went 
there, but did not go inside. I was simply making stretchers to got the men out. 
2482. Q. Do you know anything with regard to the number of safety-lamps available when you got there ? 
A. There were no safety-lamps there, or if there were any (Inte)-rupfel). 
2493. Q. Do you know whether there was any cli{liculty experienced in getting lamps? A. Yes ; there 
was a great deal of difficulty experienced in getting lamps. They had to send alonr the coast for lamps 
in order to get into the mine. In fact there was a great deal of delay on account of there not being 
sufficient lamps. 
21.94. Q. In your opinion, did that delay operate as a factor iii preventing men's lives from being saved? 
A. Of course, they would have got in much quicker if there had been lamps there. 
2 t5. Q. Dii you have to go into the Mount. Kenbla Mine to make an inspection? A. No. 
2186. (7. Then you know nothing of the case from your own knowledge P A. No. 
21S7. Q. Now, with regard to these recommendations. The first is that Managers, under-managers, 
deputies, and shot-firers, should hold certificates of competency by examination, and that they should 
have five years' practical mninitig experience before being eligible for their positions. I want you to say if 
you can support that recommendation; and, if so, what are your reasons? A Of course, the muan who 
takes the position of Manager should be one of the most competent men in the State ; and the under-
manager should know where there is danger, the same as the Manager should, and the deputy and the 
shot-firers ought to know the same thing. A shot..Iirer should know whether there is any gas in a mitre 
before he allows a shot to be fired, and a deputy should know whether there is gas there before be allows 
the men to go into the place. 
2183. Q. Do you know whether there are at present in this district persons who have qualified them-
selves for certificates by examination who are not employed in any of those respective positions-I mean 
working miners who have qualified themselves for such positions by examination, A. I know there are 
several ; but I cannot name them just now. 
2189. (7. Do you know who examined those persons? A. They are examined by a Commission of three 
persons ; I do not know whether it is called a Commission. 
2190. Q. They have to proceed to Sydney? A. Yes ; Sydney or Newcastle. 
2-191. Q. Are there a number of working miners u ho have submitted themselves to those examinations 
and obtained Certificates of Competency ? A. Yes. 
21.92. Q. Would the examination which these persons have passed be sufficient (Interrupted). 
2193. AIr. Wade.] how can a working man know anything about these examinations ? 
2 191. His Honor.] It is difficult, unless he has been there. 
2195. i1Ii. Lysaqist.] Q. Have you studied fcr one P A. No. 
2196. Q. Do you know the scope of them P A. N o. 
2-107. 0. 1)o you know what Certificates are issued by the Board P A. I know by seeing it in the Press 
that Certificates of Competency are issued for the positions. 
2-198. (7. What positions? A. Managers, underground managers. 
2190. (7. I do not think that certificates are issued at present for deputies P A. I think deputies, too. 
2500. (7. Would the lact of these persons having to submit themselves to examination cause any hardship, 
or do you think there would be any difficulty in obtaining persons in this district, who are qualified for 
these posifons by examination P .1. Noire whatever. 
2501. ilIi. Ii ado] (7. With regard to Managers and under-managers I think the question is beyond 
argument, and. the Act compels it. \\T0  say that a mart should have some practical knowledge and some 
scientific knowledge to help blur, but the question is whether men like deputies and shot-firers should 
pass examinations. 
2502. AIr. Lqnaq/mt ] There are persons at present holding positions of I\Ianagrrs who have no certificate. 
The question would be whether a maim of this kind would be stiff eligible to hold such a posi ion. 
2303. ILls honor.] The question is their whether a mart who now holds the position through service only 
should pass an examination to allow bin to continue to told the position. 
2501. Au'. Lqsrg tn.]  If the Commission makes any recommendation it might alow such persons sonic 
little time to qualify themselves, as it ought be thought that they hal some vested right in their service 
We think that it is no, fair to ask men to work under officials who have not certificates ; it is on the 
grou mid of ...mcml afei.y that this reconimendatiomm is made. 2505 
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2505. Q. Now, with regard to the recommendation that Inspectors shall be vested with absolute power to 
order the use of safety-lamps P A. I quite agree with that, because if a colliery is dangerous the men most 
likely to find it out are the Inspectors, and they should have absolute power to order the safety-lamps. 
2506. Q. Can you give, of your own knowledge, any instance where it -has been suggested that they 
should be used and the suggestion has not been carried out-? A. Personally I do not know. 
2507. Q. What do you say to the proposition that ventilation by furnace should be prohibited, and that 
fans should be substituted P A. I agree with that. The atmosphere has such a terrible eff€ct upon a 
furnace; and in fact in many cases I have known it reverse the furnace; and instead of the air coming 
in the intake, the return air came in.- In the furnace at Keira if a strong westerly wind is blowing, the 
wind will come down the shaft and send the air back, and the return air will be the intake. I think that 
is a strong reason why fans should be put on and many a time the air is hanging in the balance, and is 
neither going one way or the other. 
2508. Q. Have you still a furnace at Keira P A. Yes. 
2509. Q. And still these conditions? A It happens principally in the winter, when the wind comes 
from the west. It comes clown over the lull, and comes into the furnace as I have said. They have got 
some systein of blocking the wind, to reverse it; but the block has it tendency to prevent the air coining 
forward. 
2510. Q. how often in the year has it happened at Keira that the air has been reversed in that way, to 
your knowledge P A. I cannot say. 
2.5 11. Q. Roughly? A. The westerly winds in these parts will blow about three days in succession. In 
the morning, if it was reversed, they would not get the air back again until the colliery was set running; 
it might be two or three days in that way. 
2512. Q. Would you set the skips working P A. Yes, to assist the furnace to reverse her. 
25l:3. Q. In the meantime what are the miners doing for air P A. You have got the west wind, although 
it may not act in the same faluon. but have, the west wind going round. The worst part is when the 
furnace is in the balance, and there is equal p1'e55u1e at both ends. 
2.511. Q. Would the west wind come into contact with the foul air ? A. Yes, you have the smoke and 
foul air backing up to your worlcing face. 
2515. Q. And you have any accumulation of gas that should go up the iipcast brought back to the 
mine P 1. Yes. 
2516. Q. Is that your own experience at Keira P A. Yes, when this particular wind is blowing. 
251.7. Q. 'Then you were speaking about when the air was stationary P A. That would occur just about 
the same time, perhaps in the same day. It would be principally in the morning and during the night 
time when there was no movement excepting on the surface. It would be a case of seeing which would 
get the best of it—the current or the furnace, and the air in the mine would be in the balance. 
2518. Q. What would the men in the mine be doing for fresh air? A. There would not be much air 
travelling then, things would be very steady. 
2510. Q. Regarding your general experience of Keira, what sort of air have you had as a general rule? 
A. In some sections fairly good, and in other sections very indifferent. A good deal depends on the 
distance the air has to travel. 
2520. Q. In addition to what you have mentioned, are there any other reasons why a furnace is 
objectionable from a safety standpoint? A. Of course, a furnace might be put out by black-damp or 
any occurrence like t"at. 
2521. Q. Do you know what a dumb drift is? A. To carry the return air over a furnace. 
2522. Q. Does the air go straight over? A. I cannot say. The furnace has been repaired lately; but I 
cannot say whether the return air goes straight over, or whether there is a dumb drift. 
2523. Q. How long ago is it since it was repaired? A. It has been repaired some little time; but I 
cannot say how long ago. 

(The Court adjourned, at 1 p.m., and assembled again at 2 p.m.) 

AFTERNOON. 

(On resuming after lunch, at 2 p.m., Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence 
and proceedings.) 

Mis. FRANK McDONALD, previously sworn, was further examined as under:- 

2524. lIly. Lysaq/it.] Q. We were speaking of the dumb drift :—do you know whether there is one in the 
furnace at Keira? A. I do not know. 
2525. Q. In adchtion to what you have told us as to the advantages of a fan, what disadvantages, if any, 
does the use of a furnace involve, so faa as the afet-y of the mine is concerned? A. Suppose in the sect-ion 
in which the furnace is an accident happened, the some as at Mount Kembla, well, then, it would probably 
be destroyed and that would cause great- damage and disturb the regular air current-. 
2526. Q. And what would be the result following from that? A. There would probably be some damage 
done to the shaft in that case ; and the result would be that no air would be going up the shaft, and the 
whole thing would be stopped, and the air would stand still or caine back on the men, and smother them. 
2527. Q. Now, taking your mimic at Keira, do you think it would be fairly practmcable and fairly economical 
to have a fan placed there ? A. 'Yes, quite practicable, and economical too. Of comse, I (10 not know 
much about it ; but they would not require the coal for a furnace. 
2528. Jfi boom..] After all, it strikes me that a Commission constituted as this is—and there aie members 
here who are thorough experts in the matter—_is quite as competent to deal will's this question of the 
superiority or fans over furnaces as any miner is. Of course, it is admitted that a fan is superior to a 
furnace: and the various physical reasons are obvious to anyone who knows anything about things generally 
2529 .Jfr. Lysciyht.] I only put these c1uestions with a view of showing whether these men considered the 
question of expense, or whether they made these recommendations recklessly. 
2530. A/s. Bruce Sm-fib.] \Ve have had a large number of witnesses who have said that these suggestions 
have been recommended ; but we do not know by whom. 
2531. i[c. Lyso,q/mt.] Q. The recommendations which we have been speaking about, were they discussed by 
the members of the Delegate Board ? A. Yes. 
25:32. Q. Were they unanimously adopted? A. Yes. 2532k. 
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2532k. Q. Some of them were suggested by the lodges and recommended to the Delegate Board? A. Yes. 
2533. Q. Now, with regard to the proposal that waste workings shall be absolutely sealed off and 
surrounded by return airways, such airways not to come in contact with the intake? A. lain thoroughly 
of opinion that the air from the waste workings should not go round the mine after it has gone round the 
waste workings. 
2534. Q. If it is impracticable to ventilate large wastes, what would you do with them ? A. Seal them off. 
2535. Q. Now it is proposed that all places, except prospecting (irives, should have cut-throughs not more 
than 30 yards apart ? A. I think that 30 yards is quite far enough to drive before you make a cut-through, 
because you may have to go another 35 yards before you connect them. The ordinary course .is 12 to 15 yards. 
2536. Q. Do you think that cut-througlis within 30 yards of each other would weaken the roof in any way 
so as to make it dangerous? A. No. 
2537. Q. You say that as a practical miner? A. Yes. If there were 30 yards block of coal, or even 
12 yards, the roof would not be weakened in any way. 
2538. Q. And, after you had got one cut-through driven in 30 yards, what would you do with the one you 
had just passed? A. Simply brick it up, in order to carry the air round to the next one. 
2539. Q. Is there any leakage of air resulting from the bratticing system? A. Yes, there is. When you 
have got up to about 30 yards very often the air will not follow you; that is when it is not close-and it 
is hard to keep it close. 
2540. Q. Can you say whether it happens that the air very often does not reach the place where a man is 
actually working the coal, or, if it does, it is reduced, and only in small quantities 1 A. That is so. I 
would not say that the air never reaches the men ; but there are plenty of times when it does not. The 
conditions are very often different. 
2541. Q. Do you know anything about the provision which should be made for the supply of 100 cubic feet 
of air for every man, boy, and horse, and to be forced in and through the working places ? A. Yes. 
2542. Q. What do you say as to carrying this out in connection with the bratticing system ;-is that 
condition fulfilled I A. It is, in some places ; but in other places it is not. As a matter of fact, you cannot 
tell; you cannot take 100 feet of air to the face ; it would not register 100 feet unless you got it into 
a very small face. 
2543. Q. What do you say as to the proposal to make an inspection with locked safety-lamps in all cases ; 
how are the examinations made at Keira? A. It used to be witllan open safety-lamp ; and then they used 
to try it with a locked safety-lamp. They would often unlock it and try it on the roof. If there is any gas 
there, the only one who would suffer would be the man who tested it. They do not do it now. 
2544. Q. There is a recommendation that monthly examinations shall be made, and a report by the deputies 
and District Inspectors, the examination to be made with a hydrogen flame? A. The idea is that the 
ordinary safety-lamp will not find less than 2 per cent, of gas, but the hydrogen flame will find per cent., 
or a small fraction at least ; therefore we recomniend the use of this kind of lamp. 
2545. Q. With regard to the proposition that 500 cubic feet of air be provided 'for each horse, instead of 
100 feet as at present, what do you say to that? A. I think that is a fair thing. We take it for granted 
that a horse consumes more air than a human being does. 
2546. Q. Then there is a recommendation that all doors shall be erected so as to close and remain closed of 
their own motion? A. Yes. 
2547. Q. Have you any at Keira which close of their own motion? A. Yes, there is no particular force 
behind them ; but they are put on such a slant that they will follow you back. All (10015 ought to be 
made so that they will close behind you. 
2548. Q. \Vould you relieve any man or any person from closing a door if it was found open? A. I would 
be very severe on men if they left a door open. 
2549. Q. Now, with regard to double doors on drives between main intakes and returns and main headings-
do you think those necessary? A. Yes. 
2550. Q. What about the weekly measurement of air in each section, and the report thereof being sent to 
the Inspector? A. It is a wise provision that some official should make a weekly inspection and report the 
same, so that we may know what quantity of air is travelling. 
2551. Q. Where would you have the measurements taken ? A. In the intake and in all the returns. 
2552. Q. Do you mean in the intake and in each section? A. Yes. 
2553. Q. There isarecommendation that travelling and haulage roads, and other places necessary, be 
propei'ly watered? A. I think, in view of the report that coal-dust is a great source of danger, it is right 
and proper that these roads should be watered. 
2554. Q. Are there any appliances at Keira 1 A. Only time ordinary tubs. 
2555. Q. Are there any dusty roads? A. They are not (lusty just now ; they have been attended to. 
2556. Q. Is that only since the Kembla disaster? A. In some cases before, and in some cases afterwards. 
2557. Q. Have you any appliances for watering besides the tubs ; any hose or anything else? A. Not that 
I am aware of. 
2558. Q. There is a proposal that Managers should be compelled to give more personal time and attention 
to the management of the colliery. What has been your expel'ience concerning the Manager going under-
ground? A. The Manager would not be there for a month at a time-that is, in my place. I know nothing 
about anyone else. 
2559. Q. What is the average time you see the Manager in your place? A. Well, Mr. Jones has been 
there, at the mine, for twelve months or so ; and 1 have seen hun in my working-place three or four times. 
2560. Q. It is suggested that the manholes should be enlarged? A. I say that they should be at least 4 
feet wide. Some @f them are very narrow. Every time that they make them now they are improving on 
that. They should be 6 feet high and 6 fet back. 
2561. Q. Do you know of any cases where  they have been found too small for an emergency? A. I have 
known, inyears gone back, times when we had to crush four or five inca into one place. 
2562. Q. There is a recommendation thab instruction should be given regularly to employees on the means 
of escape ;-now what would you suggest ? A. I would suggest in collieries with gas, where there are many 
ways out, that the deputies, once a month, or once a quarter, should go round and take the men out by these 
ways, so that if anything happened the men would have a good idea of the different ways out of the mine. 
2563. Q. Would you interfere with the working of the colliery ? A. No ; I simply pi'opose that the deputy 
should take you out when you are knocking-off, to give you an opportunity of knowing your way out. 
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2.564. Q. Now I will read to you, with reference to the proposal that the Coal Mines Act should forbid a 
black list of eniployees heiiig kept, a passage from p. 271 of Abel, having reference to the necessity of an 
Act for the protection of (lisehargedi employees ;-do you think that a provision like that would be of any 
service : and what would be the effect of it? A. I think that a section of that description is very necessary. 
2565. Q. Wht effect would it have on the men, if these knew there was such a provision? 
2566 .Jfr. fl'ade.] I object to that question. 
2567. lI-is honor.] The suggestion, if carried out, would be to crystallise the Common Law f,rm of 
procedure, and t give a criminal instead of a evil remedy. 
256$. Mr. Lyswj/it.] We say that if such a provision were iii existence it would conduce to the safety of the 
mine, because men would not be frightened to report the presence of gas, and so on. 
2559. his Uonor.] It would, to a certain extent, icc ure miners who have caule of complaint,. an making 
those complaints. 
2370. Mr. Li,sa1it.] Q. A recommendation is made that safety-lamps shall not be opened for shot flung ? 
A. We use the open light at Keira. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Wade :- 
2571. Q. Do you consider all coal-dust a source of. danger in a mine? A. Well, I am not an expert at 
that sort of thing. 
2372. Q. Can you give me an answer? A. No, I cannot. 
2573. Q. What part of the mine do you wont watered? A. The reason I say it should be watered is 
because, from evidence which has been tendered, and which appears in the Press every now and again, it is 
thought that coal-dust is dangerous; and, if that is the case, why should not the mine be watered 
2.574. Q. What, the part which is dangerous ? A. No ; the whole of it, if it 5 dusty. 
2575. Q. Do you know whether all coal-dust is dangerous, or only dust in certain conditions? A. I do not 
know. 
2576. Q. Was the question of whether all coal-dust is dangerous discussed at the Delegates' Meeting ? 
A. The matter came up, and the general view was that, if there was gas there, and also coal-dust, if the 
gas ignited it would gather up the dust, and that would add to the explosion. 
2577. Q. Do you mean that it is only to be watered if there is gas in the mine ? A. We do not know 
whether there is gas in a mine or not. 
2578. Q. You do not? A. No. 
2579. Q. How is that ? A. I cannot tell whether there is gas in a mine or not. 
2580. Q. Do you not think the examination by the deputy is a fair guide -? A. Yes. 
2531. Q. Do you not know you have a right to examine the report book in the morning? A. Yes. But 
suppose they do not report a case of gas ? 
2532. Q. Do you know of a single case of a deputy not reporting gas? A. No. 
2533. Mr. Lpsaçh&] There is evidence before the Commission that the deputies do not report it. 
2584. 1113 Jionai..1 It is only,  a question of human fallibility after all. 
2585. dir. [rain] It would be a gross criminal act on the part of a deputy if lie found gas and did not 
report it. 
2536. his honor.] There is the question of degree which comes in. It has been disclosed that the question 
of degree has conic in. An infinitesimal case of gas has not been reported. But what to one man would 
be an infinitesimal quantity of gas, in another man's idea would be an appreciable (luafltity. 
2387. Mr. Wade.] Q. You say that you have only seen Mr. Jones, the present Manager, four times in 
twelve months ? A. That is at my working-place. 
25.8. Q. Now the mine is working ten hours every day, and out of that ten hours you are only in eight 
hours, or peraap.s less ? A. More. 
2389. Q. Are you at your woiking-place more than eight hours? A. Yes. 
2.590. Q. How long are you at your working-place? A. I suppose about nine hours. 
2591. Q. Have you a front and hack shift at Mount Keira? A. No. 
2592. Q. Do you mean to say that both men go in and conic out together at Mount Keira? A. Yes. 
2593. Q. They do? A. Yes. 
2594. Q. Do you see the under-manager at any time (luring the year at your place? A. Of course. 
2595. Q. And the deputy, do you see him daily? A. Yes, twice a day. 
2596. Q. Now, with regard to cut-throughs, do you say that brattice is not a sufficient appliance to 
ventilate a working-face by itself? A. When you get a certain distance in -[inter-iupted]. 
2.597. Q. Oh, yes, you say that after you get 30 yards it is not sufficient? A. in some cases, at all events. 
Say that a place is being driven where there is not much ventiationfor instanco, say in No. 4-and 
it is a long way in; when you get in, not the main heading, but the hack heading, and you have brattice there, 
the air comes along the cut-through, and up and behind to the next heading. In a little time the air escapes, 
and will not follow any further; and perhaps you have another 10 or 20 yards to go on working in. 
2598. Q. You mean to say that when you are a long way from the mouth of the mine brattice will not 
ventilate sufficiently? A. If there is a great quantity of air it may do. 
2599. Q. Then if you have a current of air brattice will carry it along? A. No, because it escapes. It 
may carry a small quantity along. 
2600. Q. Do you say that it is dangerous to work for more than 30 yards on a cut-through with brattice? 
A. Yes, it is dangerous unless there is sufficient air there. 
2601. Q. Yet you work for more than 30 yards with brattice in a prospecting drive. Why is it dangerous 
in the one instance and not in the other 1 A. You are closer to the tunnel mouth in the prospecting drive. 
2602. Q. Always? A. Not always. 
2603. Q. You say that it is dang

rea
erous when driving a bord, but that it will do in a prospecting drive? 

A. I do not see that it makes a gt deal o difference. If you are prospecting for coal near the tunnel 
mouth it is all right, because yo u can always carry the air easier than a long (llstance in. You can carry 
the air easier at the tunnel mouth. 
2604. Q. You can make bords there? A. It is not wise; but you work under better conditions near the 
tunnel mouth. 
2605. Q. If you are working a bord near the tunnel mouth, are you content to have brattice for more than 
30 yards without a cut-through? A. You are in a better condition near the tunnel mouth. 
2606. Q. Then why do you allow men to work prospecting drives? A. I have already told you, 2607. 
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2607. his honor.] Does it not follow that if a drive is a prospecting one there is no place to put a 
cut-through into from it. how can you put in a cut-through when there is nothing else 
2608. dir. JVrnle.] I recognise that. 
2609. Q. In prospecting drives you have brattice for a good deal more than 30 yards without a cut-through 
A. Yes. 
2610. Q. And the men work in them ? A. Yes. 
2611. Q. And do the work satisfactoi'ilv 1 A. I cannot say that. 
2612. Q. You have never heard of their boing injured? A. I cannot say that I have. 
2613. Q. Do you say that there were no safety-lamps at Keinlla when you got there 1 A. A few. 
2614. Q. Did you see any? A. Three or four. 
2615. 9. Do you say that is all there were in the mine 1 A. Before I saw them some of them were gone. 
Those were dirty, and had no wick in them and we had to fix them up. I say that, if there had been 
more lamps there, there would have been more lives saved. 
2616. Q. Do you know that a telegram was sent from here before 2 o'clock for more safety-lamps? A. Well, 
we do not want that kind of thing to occur again. 
2617. Q. Do you know that the first of these lamps arrived at the colliery about 4 o'clock 1 A. I could not 
say what time. It was some hours after the explosion. 
2618. Q. Is not after-damp the chief cause of men's death in an explosionI A. You are asking inc questions 
on matters which I (10 not understand anything about, more than I have icad. 
2619. Q. You tell us that furnaces are dangerous ;-do you know that after-danip cornea because of the 
ventilation in the inside of the mine being deranged, and the air currents going in all directions I A. Yes; 
but if the furnace was gone it would be worse. 
2620. Q. Do you not know that an explosion tears down the brattice? A. I know it generally does. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith 
2621. Q. You are a member of the Delegate Board? A. Yes, 
2622. 9. How many are there of you? A. Nine, from nine collieries. 
2623. 9. When you sat toconsiderthesereeommendations, you discussed them? A. Theycamefrorn thieLodgcs. 
2624. Q. Can you identify which Lbdge they caine from? A. I cannot say. 
2625. 9. Are you a member of any Lodge ? A. Yes. 
2626. 9. Did you take part in the discussion? A. Yes. 
2627. 9. Which one is from your lodge? A The one recommending not more than 30 yards without cut- 
through. 
2628. 9. Is that the only one? A. I took part in the discussion of the whole lot of them. 
2629. dfr. Lysaq/i'.] I object to any specific instructions being referred to in this matter. The witness is 
being asked what specific matter he brought forward ; and this would show the Managers what matters 
were dealt with beforehand. 
2630. I/is honor.] I think the Delegate Board may be treated as a body, and that the witnesses should 
be examined as to their own information ; but I think that the inner working's should be left alone. 
2631. AIr. l3ruce Smith.] Q. 1 do not want to know anything about the inner working of these bodies, I 
want to know to what extent these delegates have formulated these recommendations. Out of all these 
there is only one which you took part in originating ? A. I do not mean that. 
2632. Q. There.  is only one of the whole twenty which you took part in originating ? A. It came from the 
lodge I represent. That is what I mean to convey ; but I may or may not have taken part in it. 
2633. 9. Then one is the most you took part in originating? A. Yes. 
2634. 9. Have you ever been a check-inspector you uself? A. No. 
2335. 9. Have you taken part in electing them I A. You see it is a j>b that you want competent men for. 
2636. Q. What do you consider the qualifications? A. A man who has a good knowledge of gases and 
works in a gassy mine. 
2637. Q. How do you account for the fact that, whilst one of the recommendations suggests that there 
should be weekly takings of air by some officer, when the miners have the opportunity for doing this work 
themselves they do not (10 it, say once in six months? A. It is very harti to get men competent to make 
a thorough inspection. We find it unsatisfactory. The men who are appointed do not go sufficiently 
into it. 
2639. 9. Why not? A. Because of the time at their disposal, and otherwise. 
2640. Q. Does the Lodge, or body, who appoints them offer them pt inent ? A. Yes, it pays them. 
2611. 9. And yet you find difficulty in getting them ? A. Yes, in obtaining proper men. 
2612. 9. Do you not know you can go anywhere in a neighbourhood for men ? A. Yes. 
2643. 9. And yet there is a difficulty in getting competent men to do it? A. There are plenty of men 
competent, but they would not take the Jo!) on. 
2644. Q. Although you consider that the safety of the miners depends largely on it, you cannot get men to 
take the Jo?) on-to go and investigate the ventilation in the interest of their fellow men ? A. That is so. 
2645. Q. This is a matter on which the miners consider the safety of their class depends. There are men 
competent enough to do the work but you cannot get them to take it on? A. That is how it has been. 
2646. Q. Do you know, with regard to time amount of air that ought to be provided for horses and men, 
how many cubic feet of air are required by a man? A. 100 cubic feet. 
2647. 9. I do not mean requimed by the Act? A. I have no it en. 
2648. 9. Do you know whether it is 10, 80, or 100 feet? A. No. 
2649. 9. Or for a horse? A. No. 
2650. 9. You do not know how much is enough to leave a large margin? A. I say that if it takes 100 
cubic feet for a man it ought to take more than 100 cubic feet for a horse. 
2651. 9. You do not know how much margin of air 100 feet leaves for a man? A. No. 
2652. 9. You do not know whether it leaves 50 or 100 per cent. margin? A. No. 

Examination by Mr. Robertson 
2653. 9. Your experience is c'nnlined entirely to the Mount Keira Colliery 1 A. That is might. 
2654. 9. There is only one system of working there ? I. Only omie system. 
2655. 9. You have no knowledge of an other system? A. No. Omd if the system at time mine. 2656. 
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2656. Q. You cannot say whether under different conditions a different method of working would be 
necessary A. Not unless I knew the different conditions. 
2657. Q. I mean under different conditions from those you find at Mount Keira? A. I cannot say that. 
I do not know what the different conditions would be. 
2658. Q. You ask for cut-throughs to be put in every 30 yards. If that had the effect of reducing the 
size of the pillars, and pillars larger than 30 yards were required, what would you do then? A. Thirty 

yards of pillars would be plenty. 
2659. Q. I will put it another way. If it was found necessary to have pillars about 100 yards square to 
support the strata above, how would you get on with cut-throughs only 30 yards apart? A. I do not think 
it would be necessary to have pillars of that size. 
2660. Q. Would you be surprised to learn that there are collieries in your own ditrict where it is 
necessary to have 100 yard pillars? A. I would be surprised. 
2661. Q. I will tell you that it is a fact; so that cut-throughs every 30 yards would hardly be suited to 
them? A. No, they would not. 
2662. Q. Do you know that according to the Mines Act adequate ventilation must be supplied? A. Yes. 

2663. Q. Does it matter to you how that adequate ventilation is supplied? A. Not so long as it is supplied. 

2664. Q. It does not matter whether it is behind a brick wall or through a cut-through or a brattice, so 
long as you get it? A. No, so long as we get it; but we do not get it. 
2665. Q. You say that ventilation should be secured by cut-throughs, and that it cannot be secured without 
cut-throughs? A. Our experience is that it cannot. We find that the air slackens off with a brattice, and 
that it will not follow you. 
2666. Q. If you are told that in a gassy mine in this district a heading without cut-throughs was carried 
in for 700 or 800 yards, and that the ventilation was sufficient, would that alter your opinion? A. 
What was the width of the heading? 
2667. Q. A 10-foot heading; and I mention that to show that it can be supplied? A. Well, I would not 
care to work in it. So long as you can get ventilation it is all right, but we cannot get it. If you can 
give ventilation I admit that the provision as to cut-throughs may not be necessary. 
2668. Q. You ask for a record of the ventilation to be taken every week. You, yourselves, as miners, can have 
that ventilation taken? A. Yes, we can take it ourselves, but would it not be better for some official to take it? 
2669. Q. A Government official can go at any time? A. Yes. 
2670. Q. You ask for return airways to be watered, as well as the haulage roads? A. I do not think I 
said return airways, but the travelling roads. 
2671. Q. But is it not necessary to water other parts of the mine where dust may lie? A. Yes. 
2672. Q. How will you do that? A. There are different ways of doing it. 
2673. Q. Tell us one? A. You can have the same way that we have, you can go along with a cask of 
water as you go along. 
2674. How would you get water along the travelling roads where there are no rails? A. I think it would 
be a hard matter, unless you laid pipes down and had a hose. 
2675. Q. Would it not be a difficult matter to take water in all parts of the mine where dust may 
accumulate? A. It could be done with pipes. 
2676. Q. It would be rather an expensive matter, would it not? A. When once down in a travelling road 
the pipes would last for many years. 
2677. Q. You said that there was difficulty in obtaining competent. men to inspect the mine. Do you 
consider that Mr. Ritchie and Mr. Wynn are not sufficiently competent to inspect and report? A. They 
may have done it; but that is a good while ago. 
2678. Q. They have the power to go anywhere in a mine ? A. Yes, but we find it difficult to get men to inspect. 
2679. Q. Could you not get Mr. Wynn? A. I could not say. He resigned from the position. 
2680. Q. Now as to manholes. I suppose you know that a large number of the manholes in every colliery 
are more than the statutory size? A. Yes, most of them are 10 feet. 
2681. Q. It is only under special conditions that they are the size the Act requires? A. We want them all 
to be large. 
2682. Q. You cannot give me any instance of men being injured, because they were not large enough? A. I 
cannot say. I have seen a lot of us jammed into one small one. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie 

2683. Q. Is there any reason why the bratticing is not carried up 1 A. I cannot say. 
2684. Q. If a disaster were to happen causing a blast you would not be more than 30 yards ahead of the air 
under your proposal, but under the present system of bratticing you may be 800 yards ahead of the air, 
through the brattice being blown off entirely 1 A. Yes. 
2685. Q. Is that one of your reasons why you want cut-throughs? A. Yes. 
2686. Q. Is that your principal reason? A. Yes. 
2687. Q. Is there any difficulty in getting independent persons to inspect the mine? A. Yes. 
2688. Q. You cannot appoint Mining Engineers? A. No. 
2689. Q. You can only inspect at.stated periods? A. That is right. 
2690. Q. You can only do it once a month? A. Yes. 
2691. Air. Wade.] The rule says from time to time. At least once a month. 
2692. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Have you known of cases of men taking the position, and that the company has 
made it a cause of complaint? A. Casually the matter has come before us. 
2693. Q. And that is why you think it is necessary that the Act should be made more stringent, and the 
inspection be made apart from the miners altogether? A. Yes. 
2694. Q. You regard the miners as being under the thumb of the Managers to some extent? A. Yes, 
necessarily they are. 

Re-examined by Mr. Robertson 
2695. Q. Do you know there have been a great many inspections in the district by miners I A. No. 
2696. Q. Did you ever hear of anyone that has suffered? A. No; but I have heard them talking about it. 

[The Conimission, at 3 p.m., adjourned until 11 30 a.m, on the following Tuesday. 

TUESDA F, 
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TUESDAY, 13 JAEUARY, 1903, 1130 a,m. 

[The Commission met at the Court House, WoUongong.] 

C. E. R. MURRAY, ESQ., D.C.J. (PRESIDENT). 
D. A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ., COMMISSIONER. I P. RITCHIE, ESQ., COMMISSIONER. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of— 

(a) the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c. (victims of the explosion) 
(5) the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) 
(c) the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (The Southern Miners' Union.) 

Mr. C. G. Wade (Barrister-at-Law) instructed by Mr. F. Curtiss, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla 
Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of the Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

(The usual order was made for all witnesses to retire from the Court Room). 

2697. (His Honor stated that two witnesses had been subpmnaed by the Commission for this morning. 
His Honor suggested that it would probably be most convenient if they were examined by Mr. Lysaght first. 
Mr. Bruce Smith suggested that, as he represented the Crown, and therefore had no special interests to watch 
over, he nnglit undertake the examination of any witnesses called by the Commission. This was agreed to.) 

Mr. JAMES SILCOCK was sworn, and examined as under :— 

(This witness was called by the Commission at his own request. His examination-in-chief was, therefore, 
conducted by Mr. Bruce Smith.) 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

2698. Q. What is your name? A. James Silcock. 
2699. Q. What are you? A. A miner. 
2700. Q. What is the extent of your experience, in point of time? A. About twenty-three years. 
2700,. Q. And how much of that twenty-three years has been in the Colonies, and how much in England, 
or Wales, or Scotland ? A. I have been about thirteen years in the Colonies, and ten in Yorkshire. 
2701. Q. In what capacity did you acquire your experience in Yorkshire? A. The first job that I went on 
I went with the deputies at night-time inspecting places, as a boy, and from that to wheeling, putting, and 
coal getting. 
2702. Q. And of the ten years in Yorkshire, how many years were you coal getting? A. I might say 
about two years getting coal ; but, I will be four or five years in connection with the coal face that is, 
what they call putting, tramming, along the tramline. 
2703. Q. What do you mean by putting? A. That is putting the trucks, filling them and shoving them 
out to the fiats. 
2704. Q. And in the thirteen years you have spent here what capacity were you in I A. A miner. 

2705. Q. All the time? A. All the time. 
2706. Q. Getting coal? A. Yes, getting coal. 
2707. Q. Have you ever occupied any other position, such as deputy? A. No. 
2708. Q. Now, what mines have you been in? A. In the Vale of Clwydd, the New Vale, Hermitage, and 
Mount Kembla. Those are the four. 
2709. Q. How long in Mount Kembla? A. About five years this February. 
2710. Q. During your work in the Mount Kembla Mine have you ever had any experience of gas? A. Well, 
I have seen small flashes of gas. 
2711. Q. What do you call a small flash ? A. After we have fired a shot and the shot has hung; that is, 
has not been knocked down on the ground —[Interruptecl,] 
2712. Q. How do you mean the shot has not been ; you mean after the coal has not been knocked down I 
A. Yes; you go to have a look to see what work your shot has done; and your light on your head has 
probably ignited a small quantity of ga. and causcd it to flash along the roof. 
2713. Q. Over your head? A. Over your head. 
2714. Q. For any length of time? A. Probably two or three seconds. 
2715. Q. How many times during your five years in Kembla has that occurred? A. I dare say I noticed 
that about twice. 
2716. Q. How long ago? A. Probably twelve months, or a little over. 
2717. Q. On both occasions? A. On both occasions. 
2718. Q. Both occasions about twelve months ago? A. Or a little over. 
2719. Q. Did you report that to anybody? A. I did not report time gas; but I reported the insufficiency 
of air—the bad air. 
2720. Q. You did not report the gas to anybody? A. No. 
2721. Q. Why was that? A. The reason why I did not report the gas was this: that I always considered 
that, if a man was to report everything that he saw in a colliery, he would not be long there. There was 
no protection for the miner at all. 
2722. Q. Apart from reporting everything you saw, why did you not report gas ? A. I did not think there 
was that sufficient quantity to report it. 
2723. Q. You did not think there was sufficient quantity to be what ? A. To be dangerous. 
72 I. Q. But 1 suppose YOU know that where a little gas conies from a great (JULUitity may come from? 

A. It is quite pm'obae, yes. 2725. 
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2725. Q. Did you know that the Mount Kembla Mine was recognised generally as •a non-gassy mine? 
A. Well, they presume that, of course. 
2726. Q. I mean that is how it was talked about? A. Yes. 
2727. Q. Well, when you found gas on two occasions, did you consider that was a correct description of 
it ? A. Well, the reason-that some people would put this gas down to be through powder smoke. 
2728. Q. What do you put it down to? A. I put it down to gas. 
2729. Q. What else have you ever seen in that mine ? You were telling us about the ventilation ; what 
was your experience of the ventilation I A. The ventilation in pillars was bad ; for this reason, that tirere 
was never any brattice carried into these pillar works in Kembla. There was never any brattice used in 
Mount Kembla that ever I saw in pillar work. 
2730. Q. Did you ever complain of that? A. I have complained of the air being bad. 
2731. Q. To whom ? A. To David Evans, the deputy. 
2732. Q. More than once? A. Yes, on several occasions. 
2733. Q. How long ago? A. Well, about the same time as I discovered that gas. 
2734. Q. Which do you think is more dangerous-want of brattice or the explosion of gas? A. Well, if 
the brattice was put there, it is probable there would be no explosion. 
273.5. Q. That is not my question. Which do you think is more dangerous-the badness of the air, such 
as you complain of; or the occasional explosion of gas, such as you have experienced? A. I should say that 
both would be combined. 
2736. Q. Suppose you have this gas, and the brattice is put up, and you get good air, and yet you have 
the gas. Take that as one case. And suppose you never found that gas at all, but considered the air 
bad ; which do you think would be the most dangerous? A. If the air was good, as you say, there would 
be no gas. 
2737. Q. I ask, if you experienced them singly, which do you think is the more dangerous? A. The gas. 
2738. Q. That being so, how is it yo1 reported the want of air and did not report the gas? A. Because I 
thought of my position. 
2739. Q. Just tell me about that. Have you had any experience of anything resulting from a report 
about gas? A. Well, I took the Bailey case at the (ilebe, for instance. 
2740. Q. A Newcastle case? A. A Newcastle case. 
2741. Q. That was your guide? A. Yes. 
2742. Q. Do you know of any other case; or had you heard of any other case? A. No; I do not know as 
I do; but I took that as a guiue. 
2743. Q. Did you ever follow that case up to see if it was a genuine case of a man being dismissed? 
A. Well, as far as I read in the newspapers. 
2744. Mr JVade.] Q. Were those Mr. May's letters you read? A. No, not Mr. May's at all. I followed 
that case very closely in the newspapers. 
2745. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You mean the examination? A. Mr. Bailey's case. 
2746. Q. Did you see it in the form of letters or the reports of the examination at Newcastle? A. Yes, 
2747. Q. What you meant I suppose was, that, assuming that to be correct, you thought it would be better 
for you not to report it? A. Yes. 
2748. Q. And that is the only instance which you know of, in which you knew of such a thing taking 
place ? A. Well, I knew other cases. Sometimes a man has seen a thing take place in a mine.-
[!nteri.uptec/] 
2749. Q. What sort of thing? A. Any sort of thing. 
27.50. Q. Tell me something you know of, not merely a rumour that is floating about in the air? A. I do 
not know of anything particular; but I know this, that the deputies never like anyone to make himself 
too officious in reporting anything. 
27.51. Q. You are speaking so generally, that is of not much use to the Commission. Can you give any 
specific instance in which the deputies have discouraged men from making complaints about anything that 
is going on in the mine ? [ [Vitaess did not answer.] 
2752. Q. You do not know anything ;-it is just a sort of general belief in your mind that they do 
discourage them? A. Yes, they do. 
2753. Q. But you cannot tell what the belief is based upon; is that it;-you cannot tell me of any case 
that you based your belief upon that they would discourage you ? A. Yes, on the Glebe case. 
2754. Q. Well, now, have you had any particular experience in the Mount Kembla Mine that you wish to 
communicate to the Court here, which you think of importance? A. I might say that I wish to conimuni-
cate this: that as far as the colliery was concerned, I came to the conclusion that it was undermanned 
officially. 
27.5,5. Q. Now, by what class of men ? A. By deputies. 
2756. Q. What is your standard for that? A. Well, about a fortnight before.-[Interrupted.] 
2757. Q. No, no ; that is your reason. I mean to say, why do you say it is undermanned? A. Because 
the deputies were always complaining of being overworked. 
2758. Q. Will you tell me what defuties made those complaints? A. Yes. There was Mr. Dungey. He 
used to complain very often about Mr. Nelson neglecting to put his brattice up. 
2759. Q. The man who complained, and the man complained of are both dead, are they not? A. Yes. 
2760. Q. Dungey used to complain of what? A. lie used to complain of Mr. Nelson neglecting to put up 
his share of brattice in the bords in the day time, and throwing the whole of his share of the work on to his 
(Dungey's) shoulders. That was a continual complaint. 
2761. Q. Beyond these two? A. Beyond these two, William McMurray complained about Davie Evans 
throwing the work on to him in the night-time, down in the shaft section. 
2762. Q. Was McMurray a day deputy? A. He was a night deputy. 
2763. Q. And Dave Evans was a day deputy? A. Yes. 
2764. Q. And I understand that McMurray complained that Evans had thrown the work on to him to be 
clone at night. A. That is so. 
2765. Q. How long would that be ago? A. I cannot say the date. Let me see: it would be about six 
weeks before the disaster. 
2766. Q. McMurray is dead too. What was the particular work that McMurray complained that Evans 
had thrown on his shoulders? A. That is, neglecting to put up the brattice in the hords. 2767. 
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2767. Q. You mean extending the brattice as the work went on? A. Yes. Letting it fall back. 2768. Q. Is there anything else, I mean anything that your experience enables you to speak about? A. As 
regards this particular affiuir of Evans and McMuiray's, I might say that six weeks before the disaster, 
when Mr. Leitch left, it was mooted -[InterrupteL] 
2769. Q. What was Leitch's position ? A. He was under-manager before Mr. Nelson. It was proposed 
to get him up a testimonial. 
2770. Q. Among the miners? A. And the officials. I was one of that testimonial committee; and I was 
appointed to interview the Manager, to ask him would he allow the deputies to see the men as they went 
round their work, to see if they would give any donations towards this testimonial. 
2771. Q. Towards the testimonial for the under-manager? A. For Mr. Leitch, the under-manager. 
went to interview Mr. Rogers in his own private othee at the house ; and he told me he would rather not. 
One reason was that Mr. Leitch had always set his back against it. 
2772. Q. Against having a presentation? A. Against having testimonials. And another thing was this: 
he advanced this reason : that a deputy might be asking a man for a subscription, when at the same time 
he could see that he wanted a sprag or a prop put up, and he would not care to offend that man, as he 
would be frightened that he would riot get a subscription. 
2773. Mr. Robertson.] Q. I would like you to repeat that, please? A. When the deputy went round, 
probably the person that he was asking for a subscription from might require a sprag. 
2774. Mr. Bruce Smith.] 0' . What is a sprag? A. A sprag to sprag up the coal. 
2775. (7.A prop? A. it is a short prop put against the coal and the floor. 
2776. (7. Now, just repeat that, in the same words, if possible, " That the man who was asked for a 
subscription might want a sprag." A. Yes, a sprag or a prop ; and at the same time lie would be asking for 
a subscription, and lie would not do his duty. That is what it was. 
2777. Q. There was a conflict of motives, interests? A. Yes. After that he said he had had complaints 
from one of the night deputies that the other deputy had not been doing his share of work. He did 
not mention the name of the deputy to me then ; but he said, "  I will let you know in the morning." 
2778. Q. He told you he would let you know? A. He said, "I will see them all together in the office in 
the morning and I will tell Nelson to let you know whether they can take on the subscription or not." 
2779. (7. Go round for a subscription, not take it on? A. Yes. 
2780. (7.What have you to iay against that? What is your objection to the position he took up? A. I have nothing against Mr. Roger's for that. 
2781. Q. You do not complain of this? A. No. 
2782. His honor.] What the witness wishes to convey is that Mr. Rogers' own answer suggested that 
there was some friction amongst the deputies, which was founded upon the fact that one deputy thought 
another deputy was not doing his work. 
2783. Witness.] Yes. 
2784. Mr. Bruce Smilhi.] Q. Then that preliminary story about the subscription is not a matter you 
complain of it is only an introduction to what you have to say? A. It is only an introduction. 2785. Q. Are those time suggestions that you have to make with regard to the Mount Kenibla Mine ; or 
are there any others -which you make as a miner? A. I should suggest that the furnace be done away 
with, and a fan substituted, and also that a winding gauge be put clown that air shaft. 
2786. 0. You 'night give your reasons for the fan being substituted for the furnace? A. I believe it would be the best way of ventilating the mine. 
2787. Q. In what way the bast? A. You can get more volume of air by a fan, I always think, than 
with a furnace. 
2788. Q. Have you had experience of fans? A. All the collieries I worked in in Yorkshire are worked by fans. 
2789. Q. And how about the other mines you have mentioned out here? A. I have never seen fans, only in the Lithgow Valley. 
2790. Q. All the others you worked in here had the furnace? A. Yes ; but they were small mines 
compared to Mount Kembla. 
2791. Q. Then your opinion is based on the belief that a fan would produce a better draught. Is that it? A. Yes. 
2792. Q. Is there any other suggestion? A. The suggestion would be this, that it would he the means of 
putting on a cage, putting guide ropes and a cage, to wind the men up and down in case of emergency. 
2793. (7. And a winding engine? A. Yes, a small winding engine. The same engine would very nearly do to work the fan. 
279 t. Q. You think that would be an advantage? A. I think it would be a great advantage. 2795. (7. Have you considered what that would cost-how it would affect the cost of producing coal? I 
only want to know if you have gone into it at all. A. No. I did not go into it. 2796. Q. Is there anything else you could suggest? A. I should suggest that these men, shot-firing, should 
have a certi6cate of sonic kind to show their competency. 
2797. Q. The shot-6mers? A. The shot-firers and deputies. 
2798. (7. What do you consider they require to know in order to do that work as it should be done? A. 
Well, I should think they require to know the constituents of gases. 
2799. Q. The constituents of gas? A. Yes, all that gas really is. 
2800. (7. But if you know gas when you see it, or when you find it, would not that be sufficient? A. Well, yes. 2801. (7. Then you do not want to know its constituent parts? A. So long as they know when they are amongst it. 
2802. Q. So long as they know gas when they find it? A. That is it: when they are amongst it. 2803. And you think they ought to be examined for that? A. Yes, 280t. Q. Do not you think every miner knows gas when lie sees it with a safety lamp? A. No; I do not think so. 
2805. Q. You know it, do you not? A. I would know it if I saw it. 
2806. Q. Have you passed any examination? A. No. 
2807. (7.Have you attempted to pass an examination? A. No. 2808. (7. Have you attended lectures at all? A. No. 
2809. (7. Do you consider you are qualified to be a shot-firer? A. No. 2810. 
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2810. Q. But you think they should have a certificate showing that they really know how to discover gas? 
A. Yes. 
2811. Q. Now, pass on to any other suggestion you have? A. One thing that I do not believe in is 
drawing brattice out of headings that have been driven 70 or 80 yards distance without cut-throughs. 
2812. Q. How far apart do you think the cut-throughs should be as a maximum? A. They did at one 

time use to be 30 yards. 
2813. Q. In which mine do you mean? A. In Mount Kembla. 
2814. Q. Do you mean all 30 yards? A. Of late years they have been driven as high as 90 with brattice. 
2815. Q. And you think that is?-A. I think that is too far. 
2816. Q. You think that is too far from a ventilating point of view? A. Yes. I might say that there 

was a heading there _-____-[Imterrupted.] 
2817. Q. Do you know anything about the defects of the roof-I mean the weight over that part of the 
mine where these long pillars are put? A. The weight 
2818. Q. Yes. Have you considered that at all? A. No. I have never considered that. 
2819. Q. You know of course that the heavier the weight you have over any part of the mine the greater 
the pillars, or the more frequent? A. They should be. 
2820. Q. But you have not considered that at all in expressing the opinion that they should never be more 
than 30 yards apart? A. They are not 30 yards apart as a rule. 
2821. Q. But you put that down as a maximum? A. That is a maximum distance. 
2822. Q. Have you read at all upon mining? A. Not much. 
2823. Q. Are you aware that in many English mines the pillars are 70 yards square? A. I never heard 
tell of one. I have known them to be 50. 
2824. Q. Fifty yards square? A. Yes; but to be carried up by brattice all the way. 
2825. Q. Did the brattice answer? A. The brattice answered; yes. 
2826. Q. Well, you have just considered it from a ventilating point of view, without respect to other 
considerations? A. That is it. 
2827. Q. Are there any other officials in the mine who, you think, ought to have certificates, who do not 
have certificates at present ? A. Well --[Interrupted.] 
2828. Q. You said deputies, did you? A. Yes. 
2828. Q. Deputies and shot-firers? A. Yes. 
2829. Q. Now, about safety lamps : have you formed any opinion about those as regards the Mount Kembla 
Mine? You said that all you have seen of gas was not dangerous. Now, does that lead you to the opinion 
that safety lamps ought to be used in that mine for getting coal? A. I quite believe that safety lamps 
should be used in the mine. 
2830. Q. And no naked lights? A. No naked lights,-in any mine for that matter. 
2831. Q. Now, are there any other suggestions that you want to make in regard to the management of the 
mine-those that have occurred to yourself-I do not want things that have occurred to other people that 
you merely endorse because they have been proposed; but anything that occurs to you as the result of 
your own experience? A. I should suggest that the Manager go through a first-class examination, a thorough 
examination. 
2832. Q. Which Manager? A. The head Manager. 
2833. Q. Of which mine? A. Of any mine. 
2834. Q. They do, do they not? A. They do now; but they have not all done so. 
2835. Q. But you are not referring to any particular Manager? A. No. 
2836. Q. You know, of course, that, when the examination system was introduced, certain Managers who 
had been Managers for many years were allowed to continue in that capacity by reason of their great 
practical experience? A. Quite so. 
2837. Q. But you do not approve of that? A. No. I do not altogether approve of it. 
2838. Q. You think that although they have been Managers for tell years or twenty years they should be 
subjected to examination? A. Yes. I think they have had time to qualify themselves a little. 
2839. Q. That is about all you want to suggest? A. That is all, I think. 
2840. His honor.] This witness went into the mine on the 9th August. 
2841. ilfr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You went into the mine after the explosion-how long after? A. About eight 

or nine days. 
2842. Q. You went in with a party in order to report, did you not? A. Yes. 
2843. Q. Did you take any notes of what you saw? A. No. I take it from memory. 
2844. Q. Have you a good memory? A. Pretty fair. 
2845. Q. Now, tell me how long you were in; about five hours, I think? A. It might be a little more. I 

would not be sure. 
2846. Q. Did you go in again after that? A. I have been working in Since, but not in that part. 
2847. Q. From all you saw did you form any conclusion as to, first, where the seat of this explosion was? 
A. I came to the opinion that there had been an explosion round about where the Aitkens were working. 
2848. Q. That is the conclusion you came to? A. One conclusion, yes. 
2849. Q. That is as to the locality? A. Yes. 
2850. Q. Did you form any opinion from what you saw as to the cause? A. Well, I took it to be gas. 

2851. Q. Did you form an opinion; and when I say, did you form an opinion, I mean also had you reasons 
for forming that opinion? A. My reasons for forming that opinion were these -_---[fnterreptecl]. 
2852. Q. You formed the opinion that it was about Aitken's place, and that it was caused by gas? A. Yes. 
2853. Q. Take the locality first-why did you come to that conclusion about Aitken's place? A. Because 
the men had got no chance to get away from where they were found; Aitken and son, and Annesley and 
his mate; Tost and his mate, and Purcell. 
2854. Q. You formed the opinion from what you saw of their position that they had not had a chance to 
get out of the mine? A. That they had not shifted. 
2855. Q. In your opinion they were found just where they were working? A. Further than that, I went 
by the timber that was charred and burnt-the inside of the goaf in Aitken's place. 
2856. Q. Do you understand a map? Look at this. This is No. 1 Right; and Aitken was working up 
here [indicating the position of Aitken's working place]. Where did you see this charred wood that leads 
you to this conclusion? A. Somewhere in here. 2857. 
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2857. (7. About the first cut-through before you came to their place? A. Yes, on the low side. 
2858. (7. What do you call the low side? A. On the left-hand side of the tunnel. 
5859. (7. That is the west side ? A. Yes. 
2860. 0. On the west side of where the Aitkens were working ? A. Yes. 
2861. 0. You say the burning was on that side of the posts ? A. No. I saw the burning was on the side 
of the posts next to the goaf. 
2862. Q. But on the west side ? A. On the west side of their working place. 
2863. (7. Was the goaf on the west side of where they were working A. No. The goaf was this way. 
2864. (7. Did you notice many posts burnt in that way ? ii. Yes, about ten or fourteen. 
2865. (7. And all burnt uniformly on that side? A. Yes. 
2866. (7. And not on the other ? A. Yes. 
2867. (7. Burnt on the side on which they were working? A. No. 
2868. Q. They were burnt on the side next to the waste? A. Yes. 
2869. JI'is honor.] Q. Which waste? 
2870. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Seventeen perches. 
2871. Q. Which side of the goaf ;-on that side or this side? A. On that side, where they were working. 
2872. AIr. Bruce Smith.] At all events, I think your Honor may take this from hini, that the charring of 
these posts was on the side nearest the goaf. 
2873. (7. Is that so? A. Yes. 
2874. (7. Does that lead you to any conclusion as to what part the goaf itself played in this matter? A. 
I came tu this conclusion, from the coal where these mcii were working, that they must have been only 
working there about half a day on that coal ; that they had drawn their timber the day previous from the 
back of this stook and it had fallen in, and had driven the gas out and that the gas was lit at their 
lights. 
2875. And you really think it was lighted at their naked lights as they worked ? A. Yes. 
2876. Q. Another instance you said was that you found these men lying just where they had worked I 
A. Yes. 
2877. Q. They had not got away at all ; and it had been very sudden ? A. Yes. 
2878. Q. That is as to the locality ;-now, why do you form the opinion that it was gas 1 A. Because these 
men were burnt, and the timber was charred. 
2879. Q. That is burning ; and the burning must have been from some inflammable 1 A. Substance. 
2880. (7. Did you notice at all in your visit the direction in which the forces had gone ? A. There was one 
thing in particular at the bottom of this waste that struck my attention that was two skips-the way in 
which they were driven. 
2881. (7. How were they driven ? A. They were driven more. on their side. 
2882. (7. Were they driven north, south, east, or west -were they driven away from the goal ? A. 
Opposite the goaf. They were driven more on their side. 
2883. Q. Opposite the end of the goaf ? A. Yes. They were driven sidewas irstead of being driven 
end way. 
2884. Q. They were turnet over on their side away from the goaf ;_suppose that iTench is the gOaf, then 
they were thrown out here [indicatinq a direction at right-anales to tie beiuh] ? A. Yes, that is right. 
2885. Q. Was that the only sign of force that you noticed particularly ? A. About that pruticulir place. 
2886. Q. Did you not notice it in other places ? A. I noticed it from the 4th Right outwards, that the 
force had all been driven out of the tunnel mouth. 
2887. (7. Without telling me exactly what tiungs you saw, did you see indications of force going in more 
ways than on(,  ? A. Yes. 
2888. Q. In how many (lirections ? A. Oh, in three or four directions. That is outward from No. 4 ]light. 
2889. (7.Are there any other conclusions you came to except those as to where it took place, and the cause 
of its taking place? A. I came to the conclusion that it took place at Aitken's and travelled (lo\Vn the 
main tunnel (No. 1 Right), until it got to the 4th Right ; and then met the full accumulation of gas and 
then travelled outwards to the main tunnel. 
2890. Q. What do you call the main tunnel-the No. 1 Right? A. I call it the main tunnel right out to 
the surface. 
2891. Q. That is No. 1 Bight? A. Yes, No. 1 Bight. 
2892. You think that this explosion met all accumulation of gas I A. Yes. 
2893. The first explosion met an accumulation of gas ? A. I think it was lighted in the first place at 
Aitken's travelled from Aitken's down the main road -[Interrupted.] 
2891. Q. How did it get to the main road: because it is a long way off? A. Yes, quite so. 
2895. You think it went down to the No. 1 Right? A. Yes. 
2896. Q. And then down the No. 1 Right itself ? A. I think it got lit in the first place at Aitken's and 
came down from that place to the main tunnel. 
2897. Q. That is No. I Right? A. Yes, as fur as the 4th Right : and it met the whole accumulation of 
gas there that had n )me out of the 4th B ighit workings. Of ci )urse in my opinion there was lots of gas 
in the 4th Right workings. 
2898. Q. Wliiit reason have you for thinking that there was all accumulation of gas in the 4th Right 
A. Because there have been thousands of tons of coal buried there. 
2899. Q. In that waste? A. In that 35-acre waste workings. 
2900. Q. Is that your only reason ? A. My reason is that there has been too much coal left there in that 
waste working. 
2901. his honor.] Q. Coal that had been hewn I A. Coal that hirel been accidentally buried through falls 
and had been allowed to remain there. 
2902. lIfe. liruce Smith.] Q. In your time ? A. Yes. 
2903. Q. To what extent had coal been buried there ? A. I have seen the pillars buried. 
2904. Q. Through falls all round them ? A. Through nelect by bad falls all round them. 
2905. Q. The falls never being cleared away to get the coal out ? A. That is true. 
2906. Q. You say the roof fell all round the pillrir in sonic cases through neglect ; neglect of what kind 
A. \Vell, through saving a little expense. 
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2907. Q. A little expense would have kept the roof up and have enabled them to get these pillars out 
A. Yes. 
2908. Q. Was there any other reason for supposing that it met with a quantity of gas when it got to No. 4 
Right? A. I took this reason, that, going in the main tunnel, everything was knocked out from the 
4th Right : there was a terrible amount of in till we came to the 4th Right. When we came to 
the 4th Right, there was no obstruction further in. 
2909. Q. Further in or further out? A. In towards the workings. All the obstruction took place from 
the 4th Right outside. 
2910. Q. Here is Aitken's [indicating the position of Aitken's working place on the map], and you believe 
the explosion came out here to No. 1 and then went down to No. 4 Right ?-Which do you call the No. 4 
Right-down here? A. Somewhere about here-that is more like it (inclicatinq Yo. 4 ItiyJct on the Plan). 
2911. Q. And you think the explosion came down the main tunnel until it reached No. 4 Right? A. Yes. 
2912. Q. What happened then ? A. It ended here, and then came out and down the main tunnel. 
2913. Q. You think it ended there (No. 4 Right) and lighted the gas on the goaf (the 35-acre goaf), and 
then what did it do? A. Came out of the main tunnel and right out of the pit-right out at the mouth. 
2914. Q. Why do you think that the indications you saw of the force going down the main tunnel were 
not menely a continuation of the force coming down there (from Aitken's working place) ? Why do you 
suppose it took a turn here and then came out again? A. Well, because gas is a thing that will spread in 
all directions. 
2915. Q. Admitting that, how do you explain to the Commission that the forces which you saw coming 
down here (from Aitken's working place, through No. 1 Right to No. 4 Right) and going clown here 
(down No. 1 Right from No. 4 Right to mouth of main tunnel) were not simply one continuous force I 
A. Because the force from this direction down here (in No. 1 Right, between No. 4 Right and the direction 
of Aitken's working place) was not as great as that down here (in No. 1 Right, between No. 4 Right and 
mouth of main tunnel). 
2916. Q. Then you say that the damage done from the point of No. 1 Right opposite the goaf (the 17-
perches goaf) down to No. 4 Right was not as great as from No. 4 Right out 1 A. Yes; not by half. 
2917. (7. And that leads you to the conclusion that it must have entered the goaf (the 35-acre goaf) and 
come out again with renewed and increased force? A. That is it. 
2918. Q. Why do you say the indications were greater down to the No. 4 Right than beyond No. 4 Right? 
A. I say the forces were less down to the Fourth Right than they were from the Fourth Right out. 
2919. (7. \Vhv do you say that? A. On account of this waste working. 
2920. (7. That is tho cause of it: but what led you to suppose it was a greater force out than in 1 A. By 
the destruction that was done. 
2921. (7. You saw more indications of destruction 1 A. Yes. 
2922. (7. You mean heavier weights moved, and all that sort of thing 1 A. Yes; and more falls, and so on. 
2923. (7. Are there any other conclusions you drew from your visit that would be of value, do you think 
A. Another reason that made me come to the conclusion that it would be gas round Aitken's place is 
this: that the air travelling in the main tunnel was not diverted into the proper channel : that was, that 
there was not a door on to1) of the 3rd Left rope road, where there should have been one. 
292 1. Q. You will have to locate that, I am afraid, otherwise it will not convey anything. [The Witness 
explained his evidence by the Plan.] 
2925. Q. Now, your evidence is this, that as the air was going up No. 1 Right_which you call the main 
tunnel-instead of going on past No. 3 Left it went into No. 3 Left for want of doors ; and in that way 
the air, instead of going round by Aitken's place - A. Would travel round towards the furnaces? 
2926. Q. Did you ever observe that there were no doors on No. 3 Left before the accident? A. Yes ; I 
observed that there were none. 
2927. dIr. Wade.] Q. Did you say "had observed" 1 A. Yes I had observed, because I had worked down 
there before. 
2928. AIr. Robertson. Q. Do you know the Third Left? A. It is the furthest rope road into the left. 
2929. AIr. Robertson. It is not a rope road at all. 
2930. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. That is not what you mean? This is the rope road here (pointing it out on. 
the Plan)? A. I made a mistake ; that is the one I mean, the Fourth Left. 
2931. Mr. Bruce Smith.] He alters his evidence, your Honor, this way : Instead of No. 3 Left he says it 
is the rope road, No. 4 Left : he says there is no door there, and there should have been one door or two 
doors, and that the want of them allowed the air to run straight down towards the furnace. 
2932. JVitness.] Yes. 
2933. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. In addition to observing this, had you ever complained of it? A. No; I never 
complained of it. 
2934. (7. Did you ever communicate your observations to anybody else? A. No. 
2935. (7. Had you ever worked in any place which was affected by the want of a door there? A. I cannot 
say that I have. I was only down there one quarter. 
2936. (7. Where were you 1-Near Aitken's place? A. No; it was in Nees and Stafford's place. 
2937. (7. Did you look at that place where you say the door should have been after the accident? A. Yes. 
2938. (7. Did you see any signs of a door that had been blown away there? A. Not in the rope road-I 
did not. 
2939. (7. I mean in the rope road? A. No. 
2940. (7. And I understand you to say  there never had been one? A. Not to my knowledge. 
2941. (7. When had you ever worked in that part of the mine-How long before? A. I was down that 
section the cavil before. 
2942. Q. Did you go that way in? A. Sometimes I used to go down the rope road, and sometimes down 
the back heading. 
2943. Q. You used to go in No. 1 Right, and down that rope ruad? A. Yes, sometimes; and sometimes 
down the travelling road. 
2944. (7. The travelling road going parallel with that road 1 A. Yes. 
2945 (7 C in you say of your  ou mm I nos lede that there was mnsufiu a mit in ,emng into those ph wes where 
Amtken was? A. No, I cannot siy that. 

2946. 
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2946. Q. It is a conjecture of yours, from your knowing or your believing that there was no door there? 
A. No. I could feel a greater volume of air travelling clown there than you could in the main tunnel-the 
amount travelling backwards and forwards. 
2916k Q. Do you know anything about coal-dust at all-about lts inflammable nature or anything of that 
sort ? A. No. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade :- 
2947. Q. You were subpolnaed to come here? A. Yes. 
2948. Q. Do you know how your name was first mentioned ;--did you offer to give evidence to anybody? 
A. Yes. 
2919. Q. To whom did you offer? A. The Secretary. 
2950. Q. When was that? A. Probably a week ago. 
2951. Q. Did you believe that you had information that would be useful to the Court when you volunteered 
to give evidence ? A. Yes. 
[If is ho no? suggested that it would be better for Mr. Lysaght to examine the witness before Mr. Wade 
cross-emaminecl.] 

Cross-examination by Mr. Lysaght :- 
2952. Q. You said something about there being no brattiding carried into the pillars ;-what pillars did 
you refer to? A. I referred to all the pillars. 
2953. Q. If the bratticing was not carried there, how were those pillars ventilated 1 A. By cut-throughs. 
2954. Q. Was not that superior to the bratticing? A. I should not think so, for this reason : that bratticing 
has been put in since this disaster, into the pillars. 
2955. Q. You mean in addition to the cut-throughs I A. Certainly. 
2956. Q. How far would not be bratticed ;.---liow far from the face was not bratticed ? A. What ? the 
pillars 
2957. Q. Yes? A. There was never any brattice at all. 
2958. Q. How far would the men be working from a cut-through without any brattice ?. A. About 
20 yards. 
2959. Q. How was the air carried up to these men? A. It had to travel over the falls the best way it 
could. 
2960. Q. I understand that no provision was macic to carry the air 20 yards to the face? A. Only by cut- 
throughs. 
2961. Q. I mean, where there were cut-throughs, and the face had been driven 20 yards up, was no 
provision made to carry the air up to the men working in thst place ? A. Not in a pillar. 
2962. Q. Was that the case where you were working in Nees' and Stafford's place I A. No ; that was a 
heading. 
296:3. Q. Was it the case in the pillars in this No. 1 Right where Aitken and son were? A. No; their 
pillar was nearly finished. 
2964. Q. Do you know of any pillars in that vicinity where that was the case? A. Well, there was 
Annesley-----the only case that I know of. 
2965. Q. Any others I A. I do not remeniber any others. We do not go in any pillars there. 
2966. Q. Do I understand this: that the air coming along would pass through a cut-through, and the men 
might be 20 yards away up at the face without any air, no bratticing having been put to carry it away I 
2967. [ui. Wade objected to the form of the question. He considered it should be put separately in 
sections.] 
296$. Mr. Lyseglnt.] Q. Do I understand that with the exception of cut-throughs there were no means of 
carrying the air to the working place ? A. Yes, in pillars. 
2969. Q. Then would it happen that those men would be without air in those working places in pillars? 
A. Only what was frovided by the cut-throughs. 
2970. Q. If men were working 20 yards from a cut-through, what means had they of getting fresh air? 
A. They had no means. They had no brattice. 
2971. Q. They had no means at all? A. That is right. 
2972. 0. When you complained to Evans of the deficiency of air, what did he say? A. Just shuffled it off. 
2973. Q. What did he say? A. I could not remember what he said. I could not relnember the exact 
words. 
2974. Q. Give us the substance of them 1 A. He might say, "You are too soft for this country," or anything 
like that, or push it off in a by-way. I could not tell the exact words. 
2975. Q. Did he do anything to improve the ventilation? A. No. 
2976. Q. Did he treat the complaint with contempt? A. More of that description. 
2977. Mr. Wade.] Do not lead the witness. 
2978. Mr. Lysayh&] I am cross-examining. 
2979. His honor.] It is not supposed to be cross-examination. 
2980. Air- Lysaght.] Q. When you say the pit was undermanned, as far as deputies are concerned, what do 
you suggest as a remedy? A. I suggest more deputies. 
2981. Q. What for ;-the day or the night? A. Both day and night. 
2982. Q. Do you know of your own knowledge where any deputy has neglected any duty throught want 
of time? A. I have had occasion to be on night work. I have known deputies not to examine the places 
in accordance with the Act. 
2983. Q. What deputy I A. Dungey, the night deputy. 
2 98 1. Q. 1-Tow long ago? A. Probably two years or more ago. It might be two years ago. 
2985. Q. How oftcn 1 A. Oh, on several occasions, 
2986. (3. In what parts of the mine I A. In No. 1 District. 
2987. Q. What do you mean when you say he did not examine in accordance with the Act? A. He did 
not examine twice in the one night. 
2988. Q. Did he examine the places within three hours of the men starting work? A. No ; not all the 
places. 
2989. Q About how many places in the No. 1 Right were not examined by him within three hours of the 
men starting work? A. Sometimes they would vary. Sometimes there would be a dozen, sometimes more. 
2990. Q. In what 1 A. In a night. 2991. 
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2991. Q. At that time what was your duty? A. I was lifting stone for the contractor, in place of other 
men like. 
2992. Q. At night-time? A. At night-time. 
2993. Q Do you know of any other deputies besides Dungev not properly examining? A. MeMurray; 
down in the shaft district. 
2994. Q. When ? A. Oh, about the same time. 
2995. Q. What do you say about him? A. About ten or twelve places only used to be examined once 
throughout the night shift. 
2 )96. Q. Were they examined within three hours of the men starting work? A. No. They were examined 
at about 10 o'clock at night. There would be so many marked up for the night men to go in and lift 
stone : they would put the numbers on the board. The night deputy used to go in with the night shift men 
at 9 o'clock, to get those men to work. He used to go in to these places first to let these men get to work to 
lift the stone up. He would, perhaps, go into No. 12, the first number on the b.)ard, and he would pass 
that. Then he would go on to No. 50. He would pass lots of places to get on to these, on purpose, to 
oblige the night-shift men. These places would not be examined again until the following night. 
2997. Q. By him? A. By him. 
2998. Q. Do you know whether they (Dungey and McMurray) marked these working places as safe at that 
time? A. Yes. 
2999. Q. Did you ever say anything to Dungey or McMurray concerning that? A. No; I did not. It 
would he more than my position was worth. 
3000. Q. You did not report gas when you found it? A. No. 
3001. Q. Do you know whether other persons did report gas in your presence ? A. No. I could not say 
that I do. 
3002. A. .Have you ever known the air to become reversed in Kembla? A. Yes. 
3003. Q. How often ? A. Well, two or three times. 
3004. A. When was the last occasion? A. Of course, I cannot give you the date exactly. I used to notice 
this on a Sunday night more especially than any other time. I daresay it would be between two and three 
years ago that I noticed it particularly. 
300.5. Q. Do you know what the cause was? A. I put that down to be through letting  the furnace run 
down. 
3000. Q. Have you noticed that reversal of the air at any time when the pit was working 1 A. No; I 
cannot say that I did. 
3007. Q. How often, say in one year, have you noticed that reversal of the air? A. Well, the job that I 
was on was more an obliging job, the stone-lifting work. I used to go and do it to obiige the contractor 
when he was a man short. 
3003. Q. Did you not get paid for it 1 A. Certainly. 
3009. Q. How often in one year did you observe this air being reversed? A. Probably two or three times 
on Sunday night. 
3010. Q. In a year 7 A. Yes. 
3 ) 11. Q. And that was two years ago, I think you said? A. Yes, two years, or a little more. 
3012. Q. When you say it was more than your job was worth to mention these omissions, do you know of 
any occasion when any official has objected to a report being made to him? A. Any official has objected 
to it ? 
3013. Q. Yes. Do you know a man who has reported and been snubbed, or anything like that? A. I 
cannot say that I do but I know for a fact that colliery officials do not like a miner--a man who is 
underneath them-to report anything to them as a rule : because they think they (the miners) are making 
themselves know as much as they (the officials) know. The officials do not like a man to know as much as 
they know. It is not all sweetmeat-a miners life. 
3014. Q. Have you seen the safety-lamps used to fire the shots since the disaster in Kembla? A. I saw 
the ;e little Davy lamps used. 
3015. Q. Who used them A. James Peace. 
3016. Q. What was he? A. A shot-firer. 
301. Q. But how (lid he ignite the fuse A. He had a bit of wire. 
3018. Q. Oh, well, I do not want to deal with him. Do you know of any occasion when a lamp has been 
opened to light the fuse? A. No, I will not say that. 
3019. Q. When you were inspecting after the dint ter, did you go inside that little goaf-that 17 perches 
goaf 1 A. We went as far as we could get. 
3020. Q. Did you discover any gas there? A. No. We discovered gas in Tost's hoed. 
3021. Q. You (lid not tell us anything about that? A. No, because I was not asked. 
3022. Q. But did not Mr. Smith ask you if you had anything else to say? A. It is quite possible; and I 
might not think about that.. 
3023. Q. Where did you discover gas on this inspection? A. It was in Tommy Tost's bord-Tost and 
Bunn's bord. 
3024. Q. Who discovered it? A. Mr. May discovered it first, 
:1025. Q. What sort cf lamp had lie? A. A hydrogen lamp. 
3026. 0. Do you know what the proportion was? A. About a quarter per cent. I know this, that Mr, 
Ritchie tried afterwards with a safety-lamp, and he could not discover it. 
3027. (7. Do you know whether the hydrogen lamp was tried in that small goaf? A. I could not say that. 
3028. (7. Speaking of the cut-throughs. In your opinion, would cut-throughs 30 yards apart make the 
roof in any way dangerous? A .1 do not mean the width of the cut_throughs to be 30 yards. 
3029. Q. It cut-throughs are (lrLv( n over 30 yards, will that weaken the roof in any way, in your opinion 
a-;a practical miner ? A. o, it will not, provided the cut- througos are put th ough narrow. 
330. (7. And what slze would von recommend ? A. I wouid say about 9 feet; 9 feet is plent wide enough. 
3031. (7. Were you in the mine the day of time disaster? A. Yes. 
3032. (7. Where were you working? A. In the shaft section, No. 12. 
3033. (7. Do you know anything about the supply of safety-lamps that were at the mine I A. Yes. 
3034. (7. What was the supply? A. Well, there were no lamps at all. 
3 03 5. Mr. Wade. 1 Q. No safety-lamps? A. No safety-lamps to be had. 3036. 
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3036. Mr. Lysag/tt.] Q. What was your own experience? A. My experience was this that when the 
accident took place I was working along with my mate in the shaft section. I was on the 7 oclock shift, 
from 7 o'clocIc till .1 and that is how 
:1037. Q. You did escape ? A. Yes. T was \rolking, and the only intimation I had was a ringing in the 
ears ; but, being subject to that, I did not notice it. 
3038. Q. When you escaped, what un! you (10 ;-wilere did von go to 1 A. I came out to the flat. There 
were about twenty men lying at the fiat. After being at the flat, trying to ring up on the telephone, I 
and two more caine up the travelling road as far as the No. 2 and there we came across a big fall, and 
met Johnmiv Morrisen with a saetv-lamp, and lie (lirected us out of the mine. 
3039. Q. \Vlien you got out, did you look for any safety-lamps ? A. I did not look for any safety-lamps 
there and then. 
3040. Q. How do you know there were no safety-lamps there 1 A. I know there were safety-lamps on the 
pcn1es, but not in order. 
3041. Q. How do you know ? A. Because I have seen them in the workshops. 
3012. Q. How many have you seen not in order? A. Oh, they were not in order. 
3043. Q. Did you examine them ? A. No but I can tell you this, that men were using lamps with rags 
and they were continually coming out of the tunnel mouth to light, because they could not get the lamps to 
burn. 
3044. Q. That was after the disaster ? A. Yes. The rescuers were continually coming out of the mouth 
because they could not get their lamps to burn. 
3015. Q. You say they were burning rags-why I A. There was not a proper lamp wick to trim the lamps 
with. 
3046. Q. You saw that yourself? A. Yes. 
3047. Q. Had there been a proper and adequate supply of safety-lamps, would a number of men have been 
saved 1 A. Undoubtedly. I believe all the men lying on that thit could have Feen saved. 
3048. Q. Then would you approve of a recommendation that an extra supply of safety-lamps and their 
requisites, equal to one-third of the number of pers -ns employed below ground, be kept constantly in good 
order and ready for use at each colliery (Recommendation No. 12) 1 A. Undoubtedly. I always thought 
that was so. 
3049. Q. You might tell in(-, in your experience of Kembla, how often have you seen Mr. Rogers in your 
working place I A. I do not suppose I have seen Mr. Rogers inside that mine above five times in five 
years. 
3050. Q. Do you approve of a reconimnendation that Managers be compelled to give more personal time and 
attention to the management of their collieries (Recommerrdation No. 14)1 A. I do. 
3051. Q. You nmight tell miie whether you knew each means of escape from the Kembla ?dine 1 A. No 
Only one. 
3052. Q. Did you know your way out when Morrison met you-or had you to ask your way out? A. r 
knew where I was when I left Morrison. 
3053. Q. But up to that time did you know where you were 1 A. Up to that time I knew I was in the 
travelling way. 
3054. 9. Did you know that way out 1 A. Yes. That is the way in. 
3055. 9. Is that the only way you knew out? A. That is the only way that I knew. 
3036. 9. In your opinion, should the miners be instructed on all the means of escape (Recommendation 
No. 18)? A. Yes, certainly. 
3057. 9. By whom 1 A. By the colliery Manager, or by the officials, whoever they are. 
3058. 9. Now, speaking of this reason for not reporting and not painting thugs out to the deputies, ill 
your opinion, should there be an Act or a clause in the Coal-mines Act to pieverit a black list being l6ept 
At a colliery? A. I am quite in accord with that (Recommendation No 19). 
3059. Q. Do you know of any case where a persox has been discharged, and prevented from getting 
employment at another colliery ? A. Yes. 
3060. Q. You might tell us that? A. John Heron's case. 
3061. 9. Where was he working ? A. At Mount Kemnbla. 
3062. 9. When 1 A. Up to scarcely twelve months' ago-three or four mouths before the disaster. 
3063. 9. Do you know who discharged him 1 A. lie was not actually discharged. He was working on 
the stone ; and lie asked Mi. Rogers for a job omi the coal. 
3064. Mr. J!Tade.]  Q. Were you present at the time ;-did you hear this I A. I know it of my own 
knowledge. 
3065. 9. Were you there at the time ? A. Yes, I was in Mount Kenibia at the time. 
3066. 9. Were you present when he spoke to Mr. Rogers ? A. No. 
3067. Mr. JVade.] I object to this evidence. 
306 dir. Lyseg/ut.] 9. Never mind what he said to Mr. Rogers. Do you know that he left Mount Kemnbla 
Colliery I A. Yes. 
3069. 9. Do you know if he got employment at any other colliery? 
3070. Mr. Wade.] I object. - 
3071. Air. Lysatj/ct.]  Q. Did he get employment at another colliery I A. Not for a considerable time. He 
is not working at a colliery now. 
3072. Q. Do you know whether he was discharged from the colliery where he got employment? 
3073. dir. JJ'acie.] All he can say is that Heron left. 
3074. lVi1ns] I could not say whether he got (lischarged, or whether lie left. 
3075. Mr. Lujsw,/ut.] 9. Do you know whether any steps were taken to pre\ent him getting employment I 
3076. dIr. Wade.] I object to this. 
:31077. dIr. L!/saq/lt.] If lie knows of his own kniowcdge of anything that was done oi said - 
3073. His honor.] It seems to he almost jrnpossble that the witness could know. 
3079. 3/i. Igsuu,Il.] T have ni infornmation from him. I thought, perhais,  lie immight have been present at 
some particamlar inter\-'iew. - 

(At 1 p' the Commission adjourned until 2 p.m.) 

AFTERNOON. 
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AFTEitNOON. 

(On resuming after lunch, Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings ) 

JAMES SILCOCK, previously sworn, was further examined as under:- 
3081. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. How were the stoppings bricked olf in Keinbia? A. I have never seen any 
bricked off. 
3082. Q. How were they stopped P A. With dirt. 
3083. Q. Anything else P A. Nothing else. Packed up with stones and dirt. 
3081. Q. Have you observed, any stoppiugs so packed up, whether they have given way? A. Yes, they 
will sink in time. 
3085. Q. Was anything done to remedy that? A. Not that I am aware of. There was never any 
quantity of shift men emp]oyed to do anything. 
3 SG. Q. Can you give me any idea whether the leakage of air was considerable through that? A. The 
air would natnrally escape. I cannot give any idea how much it would be. 
3087. Q. You said something about a heading having the brattice withdrawn? A. I mean there was in 
the next heading to me where Peace and Stafford worked. It was withdrawn to a distance of from 70 to 
90 yards-it drifted up that distance ; and the brattice was taken out ; and cut-throughs were made 
afterwards. 
3088. Q. After the brattice was taken out, how long was it before the cut-throughs were put in? 
A. Some considerable time. The first one would take a month. 
30S9. Q. in the meantime what provision was made to ventilate that heading? A. None. 
3090. Q. Do you know whether any gas or anything noxious accuniulaed there P A. I cannot say. That 
would be a most likely place for gas to accnnulate. There would be no air to drive it out. 
3091. Q. how long was it left for any ga to accumulate in P A. Three months to my knowledge. 
3092. Q. Do I understand you to say that there were not sufficient deputies and not sufficient shift-men 
employed to do the work? A. That is true. 
3093. Q. Can you give me any instances where work was urgently required and there were no men to do 
it ? A. There were plenty of eases where miners had to do their own work. 
3o94. Q. Did any accidents result from there not being men enough to do it? A. I cannot say. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Wade. 

3095. Q. Do you say that the Company stinted the number of shift-men to save the expense? A. Yes, I do. 
3090. Q. Do you suggest that the Company worked this No. 4 Bight so as to bury coal to save 
expense? A. I will go as far as that. 
3097. Q. Will you say this, that, through the Company being stingy xith money, the Company endangered 
the lives of the miners P A. 'Yes, I say that. 
3008. Q. You knew of this business before the disaster, did you not? A. Yes, I knew of it. 
3099. Q. You did not come to time inquest to giee evidence? A. No, I was not asked. 
3100. Q. You did not offer? A. No. 
3101. Q. You were about the Court? A. I was here one day. 
3102. Q. During the inquest? A. During the inquest. 
3103. Q. Since the inquest, you have been discharged ? A. No, I will not say that. 
3101. Q. Will you say that you have not? A. It is as good. I have not been discharged. I will Ave 
you an explanation. You have asked for it; and you shall get i. 
3105. His Honor.] You can say,  anything you like afterwards by way of explanation. 
3100. AIr. JVua'ej Q. Did you leave of your own accord? A. I saw that the time had come when I 
would have to go. 
31u. Q. There were some strained relations between you and the Nanager? A. Not up to then. 
3108. Q. Were there before you left ? A. Not that I am aware of. 
3109. Q. You say that you took it that you were as good as disinised-now explain? A. We commenced 
work in a cavil. 1 cavilled a pillar, and that pillar would only last a few weeks. It was understood that 
when a man cavilled a pillar only to last a few weeks that there was a place appointed for him when 
be had finished. I-Ic knew this before the cavils were drawn-he knew the place where be had to go to 
when he had finished that particular work. In this case of mine it was not so. I was not aware of where 
I I-mad to go at all. I could never get to know until my place was finished. When it was finished 
Mr. Rogers, or the under-manager, put me in one of the worst places in the pit. 
3110. Q. Do you think that it was intentional P A. I am sure of it. 
3111. Q. On whose part was it intentional-the Marager or the under-manaerP A. Both combined.. 
3112. Q. A combination to injure you? A. Yes ; and the only reason I know of was giving evidence 
before the Arbitration Court. 
3113. Q. That is what you think? A. That is what I think yet. 
3114. Q. You gave evidence early in June last? A. Yes. 
3115. Q. And the explosion was the last day in July? A. Yes. 
3110. Q. And the Company opened work for the miners on what day ? A. I cannot tell you. 
3117. Q. Give us the month ? A. I cannot tell you. 
3118. Q. Was it early in September? A. It might be. 
8119. Q. "as it aftei the inquest was finished in this Court? A. I believe it was. 
3120. Q. You applied to be taken on again ? A. Oh, yes ; I was an old hand. 
121. Q. They took you on? A. They could not do otherwise. 

3122. Q. Do you mean they could not refuse your A. No; I consider that I was an old hand. I was 
thrown out of work through no fault of mine, and I had a right to go back. 
3123. Q. Did you ask to be taken back? A. I put my name down. 
3124. Q. They had a right to object to your name? A. I will not admit that. 
3125. Q. You think you had a right to go back whether the Company wished it or not? A. That is a 
right which I think I had--a just claim, as one of the unfortunates who had suffered by the disaster. 
3120. Q. Now, you were talking about the Arbitration Court ;-Mr. Justice Cohen was the Judge? 
A. Yes. 
3127. Q. Do you remember his making some commeats on your evidence? A. I do not know that I 
remember it. . 3128. 
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3128. Q. Did you hear him say that " Silcock has given evidence in a very unsatisfactory manner"? A. I 
did not hear it. You would not take my word for it. 
3129. Q. Do you remember that happening P 
3130. Mr. Lz,'saqht.] The witness has said that he does not remember. 
3131. His Honorj lie has denied it. 
3132. Mr. Wu1e.J Q. Now, have you discussed with anybody where you think the explosion began. 
A. No. 
3133. Q. Have you discissed anything about grievances and danger? A. No; I have had no chance of 
discussing with anybody. 
3134. Q. TJntil you caine here? A. Until I came here. 
3135. Q. You kept these things to yourself about the danger in the mine for all these months; and some 
of them for years? A. Yes. 
3136. Q. When was it you left the mine? A. Oh, about eight weeks ago, as near as I can guess. It 
might be more perhaps. 
3137. Q. Is there any living body who, you will say, has been neglectful of his work? A. I say Davie 
Evans has been neglectful of his work in not looking for gas. 
3138. Q. G-ive us an instance? A. In not looking for gas. 
3139. Q. Did you follow him over the pit? A. Certainly not. 
3140. Q. Did you only see hin in the working place,;? A. Yes. 
3141. Q. Did you not see that the working place had been examined every morning before you went to 
it? A. Every morning-we took that for granted. 
3112. Q. Is there not a mark on your place? A. Yes. 
3143. Q. You saw gas twelve months ago? A. In my working place. 
3144. Q. Over twelve months ago P A. Yes. 
3115. Q. During the last twelve months, if Evans had looked for gas, lie would not have found it? A. I 
would not say that. 
3116. Q. Did you see it yourself? A. I saw it on this occasion. 
3117. Q. have you seen any sign of gas in a working place for the last twelve months ?A. lean only 
name these particular times. 
3148. Q. have you anything else against Evans in the way of neglect of duty P A. I say in not searching 
for gas. 
3149. Q. Anything else? A. In not remedying the air when it is complained about. 
3150. Q. 110w often was it complained about P A. On several occasions. 
3151. Q. You mentioned about the brattice being withdrawn for a distance of from 70 to 00 yards; and 
you say that it was a month before it was remedied? A. Yes; and it may be longer. 
3 i 52. 9. Do you say men were working there PA. No ; it was an abandoned \vorlcing. 
3153. 9. Do you say that you were there in the heading 9 A. No ; I am not sure of the district. 
8151. 9. Were you in the place three months P A. I was there part of it. 
3155. 9. You say it was an abandoned place P A. There were a couple of sticks put about it. 
3156. 9. Showing that it was fenced off P A. Yes ; that is the way at Kembla. 
3137. 9. You know what it means, that you are not to go inside those sticks? A. That is true. 
3133. 9. You know that the place is not working, and that it is against the rule for any miner to enter 
it? A. I maintain they had no right to take the brattice out. 
3159. Q. Do you say there was no provision made for carrying the air outside the two sticks? A. I saw 
no provision. 
3160. Q. The air had free access up to 90 yards of the place? A. They could not get any air into the 
place. It could not get up fern-ant of brattice. 
:3161. 9. Did the ordinary air current run past the heading? A. Certainly. 
3162. 9. Was it blocked off? A. Not to imiy knowledge. 
316:3. 9. Your complanit about the shift-meu is that you are compelled to do work which you think the 
shift-men ought to do P A. Yes. 
3161.. The work was done all the same? A. By the miners. 
3163. 9. Instead of by the shift-men? A Yes; but it throws the whole responsibility on the miners. 
3163. 9. You prefer it should be done by the shift-men, and the miners be relieved of the responsibility. 
A. I believe there is too much responsibility thrown omi the miners. 
3 [67. Q. What is the responsibility you complain of? A. The responsibility of a man having to be 
responsible for his own working place. 
3168. Q. You complain because a man has to examine his own working place to see that it is safe? A. 
Yes ; because it takes the responsibility off time deputy and places it on the miner. 
3169. Q. You believe in having a man there continually during the day to see that your place is safe? 
A. Just the same as in other ports of the world. 
3170. 9. 'l'ake Kembla P A. I take Kembla the same as I take Yorkshire. - 
3 1 1. 9. You say that there should be an official pretty well on the watch during the day to see that it is 
safe, rather than you should see it is safe for rourelves. A. No ; I say that the day deputy has as 
mmmcli might to look for gas in the d mvtime as the night deputy has at night. 
3172. 9. What is your complaint about the responsibility put on you P A. I say it is making a man act 
as deputy who is only, a miner. 
3173. 9. Looking for gas? A. Yes 
3174. 9. You complain of that ?A. Yes; there ought to be officials to do the work. 
3173. Q. And that you should be relieved of the work P A. To a certain extent. I think the day deputy 
should search for gas as well as the night one. 
2 17G. Q. Do von say that the miners should not be compelled to search for gas? A. I say that the 
responsibility should not be thrown omi the miner. 
3177. 9. \Vhat about the timbering P A. I think they should do that, although there are parts of the 
world where the de1lllties do it. 
3175. Q. With rc.gtrd to the stoppings. Is your complaint that they were built improperly in the first 
it stance P A. They always were. 
3179. Q. how far back P A. Since the pit started. - 

3180. 
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3180. Q. When they became out of order were no steps taken to remedy it? A. Not that I am aware of. 
3181. Q. Anyone could see thein in that state? A. Yes. 
3182. Q. The Government Inspectors could see them P A. Yes. 
3183. Q. Would they remedy it? A. I would not place too much reliance on them. 
3184. Q. Would you suggest that the Government Inspectors, if they saw the stoppings in a dangerous 
state, would not take steps to remedy it? A. They might recommend it to be done ; but I would not 
expect the Government. Inspector to be more than a human being. 
3185. Q. Is that what you say? A. 1 have been in the pit five years, and haveaot seen the Government 
Inspector once in my place. 
3186. Q. You say that you saw Mr. Rogers there five times in five years, now you say that you o.11y saw 

the Government Inspector there once? A. Yes. 
31S7. Q. Do you say they are not there more often? A. I cannot say that. 
3188. Q. Could you come across these stoppings anywhere? A. Yes. 
3180. Q. It would not be much trouble to find them? A. No. 
3190. Q. The Government Inspector could find this stopping you complain about? A. Yes. 
2191. Q. Did things go on in the same condition until the disaster-the stoppings not remerjied and the 
place not improved? A. That is so. 
3192. Q. And how long did you stop in this careless place? A. Until the quarter was up. 
3193. Q. I mean in Mount Kcmbla? A. Five years. 
3101. Q. Did you leave there during the five years? A. No. I had five years continuously. 
3195, Q. I want to make this cer ;-you say the deputies used to neglect their work ; has that been 
mentioned by you to anybody? A. No. 
3106. Q. You were a delegate to the Kembla Lodge? A. Yes. 
3107. Q. Up to when? A. Two months ago. 
3108. Q. Up to the time you left the mine? A. Yes. 
3199. Q. For how many years? A. Three. 
3200. Q. Was it not the duty of yourself, as a delegate, to look after matters in the mine that affected 
the miners? A. I do not know about the inside of the mine. 
3201. Q. Will you answer "No "? A. I say no ; nothing in the mine. 
3202. Q. It was not your duty to look after matters inside the mine that affected the miners ? A. The 

check-inspectors are paid for that job. 
3203. Q. Was it part of your duty to point out anything in the way of danger inside the mine? A. No; 

I would not say that. 
3201. Q. You would not say that? .4. No. 
3205. Q. Did you have no concern with it? A. I say that it was my duty to point out any danger to 
the Manager. 
3200. Q. That will do If the Manager did not attend to it, was it your duty to report the thing to the 
Lodge? A. Yes ; I will say that. 
3207. Q. What parts of the mine have you worked in ;-you told us of the shaft district P A. All 

round it. 
3208. Q. Except the 5th Right? A. I have been in the 4th Right. 
3200. Q. How long ago? A. Three years or two and a half years ago. 
3210. Q. Were you working on the pillars? A. Yes; on the tommy dodde. 
3211. Q. Now, come to the time that you saw gas ; that was twelve months or more ago ;-they were 
both after firing shots? A. Yes. 
3212. Q. Did you notice whether there were any remains of the hole to be seen in the place? A. There 

was nothing like that. 
3213. Q. Did you see where the hole had been bored? A. I always bore my hole dceper. I hole my 
coal 4 feet and bore my hole 3 feet. 
3214. Q. When the shot had been fired, and the coal brought down, was there any part of the shot-hole 
left? A. I cannot say; the coal will not fall down. It is when the coal is hanging, and there is not 
enough powder to get it down; it is then that you see the gas. 
3215. Q. The shot goes off, and the coal has not fallen you simply crack it, and you have a hole left 
in the face where time powder has been in. A. Yes. 
3216. Q. That was the way you saw gas on both occasions? A. Yes. 
3217. Q. You complain of want of vcntdation ? A. Yes. 
3218. Q. But you went on working there? A. But I might not have been firing. 
32 It). Q. Did you have any further trouble with gas during the quarter? A. I cannot remember. A 
man is not always firing shots in pIlars. 
3220. Q. As to the brattice being ailowefi to throw back ;-you mean it was not kept sufficiently to the 
face? A. Yes. 
3221. Q. You have a right to ask it to be put forward P A. Yes. 
3222. Q. Did you complain to the under-manager? A. Yes, I could. 
3223. Q. H he did not remedy it, you could complain to the Manager? A. Yes. 
3224. Q. Did you take that course? A. No ; 1 complained to the deputy. Once I complained to the 
under-manager and Manager I might as well clear out of the mine. 
3225. Q. What is his duty as deputy P A. I shoull like to say that I remember once Leitch came to 
me. 1 was working in a heading vhh ii I had to drive 0 feet. I asked Mr. Rogers  how he want d it 
driven. He told me. Leitch came to me and got on to me because I went over his head and went to 
Rogers. lIe said I hal no right to go to Rogers -I should have come to him. 
3220. Q. You missed Leitch in the inttter ? A. Yes; i\Ir. Rogers gave me a chance of speaking to him. 
3227. Q. Now, in a crne where you complained to a. lower olflcial, and he declined to grant Your request, 
'von have a right to appeal to the higher official P A. Yes; and what then? 1 here are plenty of ways 
of punishing a man besides one in a coal-uric. 
3228. Q. Now, you have spoken about pillars where there were no cut-throughs wilbin 20 yards of 1.1 e 
face? A. 1 have said that there was no brattice in the pillars. 
3220. Q. Do you know of pillars where there arc no cut-throughs within 20 yards of the face P A. I have 
seen pillars 20 yards long. 
3230. Q. A distance of 80 yards to the nearest cut-through? A. Yes. 3231. 
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3231. Q. And no brattice there? A. No brattice. 
32:32. (7. Those are not the places you have worked in, are they? A. I saw one in the next place to mine. 
3233. Q. Of those that you speak of, what has been the trouble to you? A. Bad air. 
32:31. Q. What do you mean? A. Insufficient air. 
3233. Q. Is that all? A. Yes. 
3236. (7. You mean to say that the air was not circulating freely enough P A. Yes. 
3237. (7. And I suppose the place is hot ? A. Yes. 
3238. (7. You say the deputies used to miss examininz sometimes twelve places in the mine ;-have you 
mentioned that to anyone other than ourselves ? A I have not mentioned it to anyone. 
3230. Q. You mean that under the Rules of the Act, and the Special Rules of the Colliery, the deputy 
has to examine all the working places; and mark them off as being safe, within three hours before the 
men commence to work; you say that idlci\iurrav and Dungey missed as many as twelve in the course of 
an examination ;-cali you give us the year for that-the date? A. Well, I can, pretty well. It is more 
than three years ago. 
3210. Q. It is a common practice ? A. Yes. 
3241. Q. You consider it to be dangerous P Yes. 
32-12. Q. Did you then, when you knew of it going on? A. Yes, I knew they were not carrying out the 
rules ; but it had nothing to do with me. 
3213. (7. Do you consider it dangerous ? A. I certainly did. 
3211. (7. You never spoke to Me1urray about it, to Leitch, or Rogers, or even to the miners? A. No. 
I might as well pack up my things and walk away. 
32-15. (7. Did you think it involved danger to yourself ? A. Yes; but you have to put up with many 
things in a coal-mine. 
3246, (. Was the real reason that you did not report gas after the firing of the shots because you were 
frightened P A. That is a fact. 
3217. Q. Is not this true, that you did not think it sufficient gas to be dangerous, and not worth while 
reporting? A. I thought more about myself. 
32 IS. Q. Do you remember saying that you did not think it sulficient to be dangerous P A. Yes, that is 
right. If a man were to report everything he saw he would never work again in his life. 
3210. Q. You know there is a rule that if you find inflammable gas you have to report it? A. I know 
tbat rule all the time. 
3230. Q. Now, with regard to the furnace. It is three years since you found the air reversed on a Sunday 
night P A. It may be less. 
3231. Q. Is not this a fact, that it was at one time the practice to ease the ventilation down and to bank 
the furnace fire? A. Yes. 
3232. Q. You know that the order came out that ventilation must be kept going at the week end as well as 
during the week, and.since then it has P A. No, it has not. Shortly afterwards it went on the same as 
before. 
3253. (). Give us the date? A. I cannot tell you the date, but it is since a minute issued by the Chief 
inspector that the same thing has occurred. 
3251. (7. how often? A. It has been once or twice, to my knowledge. 
3255. (7. Did you report that? A. No. 
325G. (7. Did you tell the miners about it? A. No ; if I have to work in it coal-mine for 100 years I 
would report nothing. 
3257. Q. There were a number of miners called upon to give evidence at the inquest? A. Yes. 
3238. (7. Are they working at the mine still ? A. Yes. 
3230. (7. There were a number of men called upon for the plaintiff in the action against the Company in 
Sydney for neglect? A. 1 know nothing about the case. 
3260. Q. Do you not know that Qainn was a witness ? A. I have nothing to do with that. Ai to Quinn, 
I believe he was called ; but I will not have anything to do with it. 
3261. Q. A number of men went to give evidence for Brownlee P A. Yes ; and some have been promoted. 
3262. Q. Of those who were called for the plaintiff? A. No, of those who were called for the Company. 
3263. (. Do you want to suggest that the men are not qualified for the positions they have got-that they 
have been shovel into them P A. Yes. 
3261. (). Because they gave evidence in favour of Brownlee ? A. I am talking about the Company's case 
-those who gave evidence for the Company. 
:3265. (). You said the men promoted by the Company were not qualified for it P A. I say that. 
3266. (. Do not you say that they have given evidence on behalf of the Company P A. 1 know one, at- 
all 

t 
all events. 
3267. (). Do you suggest that he has been promoted improperly because he gave evidence ? A. I do not 
know. I had the nudge one time. 
3268. (7. You will not say it P I will not say it. 
3260. (7. You think it? A. I think it. I had the same nudge myself once. I could have had a good 
job there if I had been the same as some of them. 
3270. (). Do you say that they gave untruthful evidence for the Company? A. I have nothing to do 
with it. 
3271. (7. Do you think it? A. I know plenty about the men. I will not have anything to do with the 
case. 
3272. (7. Do you think it was a reward for giving mtruthful evidence P A. My personal opinion is that 
the men who have the positions there are not qualified for them. 
3273. (7. Do you think they have been rewarded improperly P A. I think so myself. 
3274. (7. Because of untruthful evidence? A. Yes, it is only a personal thing. 
3275. (7. You know rope road No. 4 Left, off No. 1 P A. Yes. 
3276. (7. You know No. 4 Right, off No. 1 ? A. Yes. 
3277. (7. Did you examine the places to see where the force ivent ? A. Along the travelling road. 
3278. (7. You did not go into the rope road P A. No. 
3270. 0. Where the skins are ? A. No. 
3280. There was no sign of force in the travelling road? A. No. 
3281. Q. Between No. 1 Left and No. 4 Right, you do not know whit was in the mciii level P A. I have 
no idea what the signs were I did not see it. 3282. 
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3282. Q. You say the explosion began where this cross is on the plan near the 17-perch geaf? A. Yes. 
3283. Q. Did you trace it? How did it go P A. I took it from the skips lying cn the sie. I traced it 
down the cut-throughs close to the face, out towards No. 1 main level, it came out of No. 1, opposite 
to Morris' cut-through. 
3284. Q. Did you trace it from Aithen's to No. 1 main level P A. The things were blown about in all direc-
tions anywhere. 
3285. Q. From Aithen's place to No. 1 level, did you trace the explosion or not? A. We traced it as far 
as the tunnel. 
3286. Q. From Aitkon's place, what did you seeP A. Very little damage done. 
3287. Q. Did you see anything between Aitken's place and No. I main level? A. I saw falls, and timber 
blown about. 
3288. Q. Where P A. Towards the tunnel. 
3289. Q. Towards No. 1 main level P A. It was blown in all directions. 
3290. Q. In that short space P A. There was not much damage done at all; but it was in all directions. 
3291. What did you see in No. 1 main level P A. A little damage; only a horse between No. 4 Left 
and No. 5 Right. 
3292. Q. Have you no idea how the force went P A. It simply came down towards the tunnel. 
3203. Q. Which heading? A. Down the main tunnel. 
3294. Q. Which heading P A. Down the main tunnel. 
3205. Q. There was nothing in the back heading P A. I did not go into the back heading there. 
3290. Q. You see a C marked on the plan at the 4th Left travelling  road. You tell us there was no 
door there of any kind? A. In the rope-road. 
3297. Q. How long was it to your knowledge without a door P A. Up to a mouth or five weeks before 
the disaster. 
3298. Q. What happened five weeks before the dioaster P A. I was working there. 
3209. Q. You were not in the 4th Left again before the disaster P A. No. 
3300. Q.  You do not know what was done in those five weeks P A. No. 
3301. Q. You say that after the explosion occurred there was no door there at all P A. No, there was not. 
3302. Q. You say that you saw timber charred at Aitken's place. What do you mean P Do you mean it 
had the same appearance as if it had been burnt in the bush P A. It was scorched. 
3303. Q. Scorched is not charred P A. It had all the aPpearance of having been in the flames. 
3304. Q. How much of it P A. About half way down from the roof. 
3305. Q. All round P A. No, on one side. 
3306. Q. Do you know that the props in the Kemnbla Mine have come from the bush? A. Yes. 
3307. Q. They may have been burnt before they caine into the mine? A. Yes, but not like that. 
3308. Q. This was charred foni some other cause than a fire in the bush P A. Yes. 
3309. Q. Anybody could see it? A. Yes. 
3310. Q. Was ihere about 3 feet of it P A. Yes. It was only on the one side. 
3311. Q.  Which side'? A. It was on the side facing A ilken's place-that is the waste. 
3312. Q. Are those the only ones you saw ? A. I did not see any more like that. 
3313. Q.  Do you remember which side it would be on-the side facing No. 1 level, or the ether side? 
A. It would be on neither side. It was facing towards the waste. 
3314. Q. Was that towards the face P It wduld be facing either No. 1 level or the opposite way-
towards the face or opposite the face P A. It was on the side nearest the goaf. Nearest to the waste, 
opposite where the roof fell. 
3314-. Q. The charred side of the timber was facing  the level P A. No, not facing the level. 
3315. Q. Was it at angles with it? A. It would be at right-angles to it. 
3310. Q. Did you see any,  paper lying near Aitken's place- loose paper not burned? A. No, I could not 
say that I did ; I saw an old coat. 

W 3317. Q. ith paper in the poelcet? A. It seemed to have boen burnt. 
3318. Q.  Do you say the paper was burnt? A. The coat looked as if it had been burnt. 
3319. Q. Did you look at it? A. We had not time. There were a good many people there. The 
inspection was too limited. 
3320. Q. You say that thousands of tons of coal have been buried in the 4th Right, as the roof has 
fallen in? A. The roof has fallen all round. 
3321. Q. Has it been jammed up tight P A. Yes. The stooks have been left in. I believe there are 
thousands of tons buried there, 

ZD 

3322. Q. Tell us what you know of pillars being buried? A. There was a pillar 16 yards long. 
3323. Q. That has been buried for years P A. There are others besides. 
3324. Q. You have not been there since ? A. There have been men working there since I was there. 
332.5. Q. You say that flame went in into No. 4 Bight from No. 1 level. Did you see it P A. No. 
3326. Q. Did you see anything to support that theory P A. No. 
3327. Q. Is it guess work ? A. Yes, guess work. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaght : - 

3328. Q. What is the name of the man you say was promoted after giving evidence in the BrownIe-c 
case? A. Livmgstone. It is a shot-firer's job. 
3329. Q. Do you know whether he passed an examination P A. No, he never saw gas in his life. 
3330. Q. Do you know what experience lie had had in mining? A. I do not think he had had any 
excepting at Mount Kembla. 
3331. Q. How long was lie working there? A. Some years. 

Further cross-examined by Ni'. Wade 

3332. Q. Give us tho names of the men who were improperly promoted by the Company ? A. Living. 
stone was one. 
3333. Q. Is he one who was improperly prcmoftd? A. I do not say thai. I ray lie got the job 
afterwards. 

33.34. 
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3331. Do you say he was improperly iomoftd  say yes or Ito P 4. I say that because he had not the 
qualifications. 
3335. Q. Is that the reason P A. That is the reason. 
3330. Q. 1)0 you say that it was because he gave evi(lence for the Company? A. No, I did not say that. 
I said that I thought so. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 
3337. Q. What do you mean by saying that you had some nudge yourself P A. At the time of the 
Arbitration Couft we went to inspect the Mount Keinbia Mice; and we had a bit of trouble in getting 
the Court to inspect one deficient place. 
3333. Q. What do you mean by a deficient place? A. An inferior working place. And we had a few 
words about it. 
3339. Q.  Who are " we "P A. Me and Mr. Nelson and Mr. Rogers. We had a few words about it. 
33 1). Q. That was the first intimation ? A. That was when Mr. Rogers gave me the nudge. He gave 
me the nudge not to go to this place at all, as much as to say, you are not to go. lie gave me the nudge 
to be quiet. That was, if 1 liked to be bought over I could have been. 
3311. Q. That is your idea, or your inerpretation ? A. Yes. I took it from that that he meant 
something. 
3312. Q. Did he say anything? A. No. But he said this; we had a few words, and he said, "If you 
are going to take a party to inspect the worst of the places I am going to take them to the best." Ho 
got regularly wild over it. 
3313. Q. Was this before he gave you the nudge? A. lie gave me that before; but I would not take it. 
3311. (1. What was the date of this visit? A. I Ciink it was three weeks before the disaster when the 
Court visited the mine. 
33 15. Q.  There was only one visit. A. Yes. 
3310. Q. It was then that the nudge took place, and that this statement was made by Mr. Rogers-that 
if you showed them the worst places he would show them the best ? A. Yes. 
3317. Q. When did the nudge take place? A. On the same day. 
3348. Q. How long was there between the nudge and the conversation? A. It was on the same day 
altogether. 
3319. Q. That is what you mean when you say you had the nudge yourself? A. Yes. 
3:350. Q. What did Nelson say? A. Mr. Nelson on this occasion swore me down that a man had been 
paid £1 extra for the work 
3351. Q. Before Mr. Rogers? A. Yes. Mr. Rogers said lie would make me go before the man and 
prove it. I got the pay ticket to piove that a man did not get it. 
:3352. Q. Did you show the tickets to Mr. Rogers? A. I showed the tickets to the Court. 
3:353 Q. Did this nudging question come before the Court? A. No. 
3354 (1. Did this conversation, that von now statu took place between Rogers, Nelson, and yourself, 
come before the Court? A. No. But the paitics were all there; and Mr. Wade was there too. 
3355. Q. Was the eonveration in the presence of the members of the Arbitration Court P J. They w ro 
all within hearing. We were on the flat. Everybody could hear the conversation. 
3350. Q. Anybody could hear it P A. Yes. 
357. Q. You tell the Court that Mr. Rogers said within the hearing of the members of the Arbitration 

Court If you take them to the worst places I will take them to the best" P A. Yes. 
3353. Q. He said that aloud and in their hearing ? A. Yes. 
33.59. Q. He did not say anything which ho wshed to conceal from them? A. Mr. Rogers did not want 
them to see these two places. 
3300. Q. You do not irican to suggest that when Mr. Rogers made this statement as to what he was going 
to do-that he macic it behind the backs of the Court to another person? A. He said it in their presence. 
They could hear it. 
3301. Q. Did Nelson say anything else at that time? A. Nelson on the following day went- and got a 
paper signed, wrote it out, for Jacky Oaltes and Hidcicll, that they had received a pound, when they 
had not. 
3:302. (7. Did you see it? A. They refused to do it. 
3303. (7. That did not come to the Court ? A. No, it did not come to the Court. 
3301. Q. Are they about here now P A. They are here now. They received nothing at that particular 
pay. 
33-5. Q. Did Rogers say that the men had received the pound extra? A. Yes. 

36U. Q. You said that pillars must have been buried amounting to thousands of tons of coal-is that an 
inference ? A. I know of them myself, besides the stooks. 
.3307. Q. What was the measurement P A. 10 yards. 
3303. (7. By :30 yards long? A. Yes. 

And 2 yards high P A. Yes. They wanted inc to get the -pillar out on dangerous ground, but 
I refused. 

Examined by Mr. Robertson 

3370. Q. About your knowledge of the methods of getting coal in Yorkshire P A. They work there on 
the longwall system. 
3:371. Q. You referred to some colliery where it is necessary to leave large pillars to support the roof? 
A. It is always necessary to leave large pillars, especially near the travelling ways or rope roads or 
an', thing like that. 
3372. (7. 1 suppose you know the greater the depth of the colliery the larger the size of the pillars P 
.I. Yes. 
3373. Q. I think you said that they left pillars 70 yards square P A. I do not think I said that. 
:3371. M. Bimice S'wm11i.] 1 asked him if he knew their extent. 
3374k. Wi/nesnj I said I lirew them to be 50 yards square. 
3:375. Mv. Robertson.] Q. I suppose they know how to work coal in Yorkshire, and how to ventilate a 
mine ? A. Ycs. 
3376. Q. Was the ventilation good in that mine there? A. Yes. 

3377. 
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3377. (). So that with 70 yard pillars and 70 yards of bratticing there was no difficulty in obtaining 
ventilation P A. They put up brattice where required. They are particular in Yorkshire. 
3378. Q. But even in those places it is not necessary in all eases to have brattice, and there is no difficulty 
in ventilating 70 yards with brattice P A. Well, it is such a long time since that I have pretty well 
forgotten. 
3379. Q. I think you said you had not seen Mr. Rogers more than five times in five years? A. Yes, in 
my working place. 
3380. Q. You ask that the Managers should give more attention to their duties ;-do you know anything 
of the duties of Managers, what they have to do? A. No, I am not well acquainted with their duties. 
3381. 0. Mr. Hogers' time may be fully employed? A. It may. 
3382. (). If it is fully employed, he cannot give any more attention to the mine, can he ? A. I think he 
should find time to go in there at least once a month. 
3383. Q. You cannot say whether his time is fully employed or not P A. I cannot say. 
3384.. (9. It may be? A. It may be; but I hardly think so. 
3383. (9. Now, you have referred to a place driven from 70 to 90 yards, and the brattice was removed, 
and the place remained without brattice for three months ;-do you know whether any gas accumulated ? 
A. 1 could not tell you. I would not like to go and see. 
3 186. (). If any gas had been given off by the coal, 1 think there was every probability that it would have 
made itself felt? A. Yes. 
3387. Q. Then either brattice was not required or the coal did not give off gas (Xe (iliSiLP)'.) 

33S8. (2. Talking of the reversal of the air, do you say it was due to the furnace being let go down 
A. Yes. Knocking off the furnace men on the Friday night until the following Sunday night. 
33S9. Q. I understand you to say that the air might fall off through inattention to the furnace? A. Yes. 
3390. Q. The same thing would apply to the fan? A. Yes, if it was not attended to. 
3391. (2.  They both want to be attended to P A. Yes. 
3392. Q. So far as continued ventilation is concerned you are as likely to get it with a furnace as with a 
fan P A. No, I am in favour of a fan. 
3393. Q. But if you have no attention given to it it will not work? A. No ; but it will not require so 
much coal to keep the fan going. I think furnaces are out of date. 
3394. Q. I think you said that it was the Check Inspectors duty to examine for gas ;-if you knew of the 
existence of gas, would it not be your duty to report it to the Check Inspector? A. tTnfortunately at 
Mount Kembla we have been for several years without Check Inspectors. 
3395. Q. I{ow is that? A. We can never get men of standing for that work. 
3393. Q. Did not Mr. Wynn examine? A. Two or three years ago. 
3397. Q. Has he not examined lately? A. I do not know, to be sure. 
3398. Q. Is it not your own fault if the place has not. been examined P You can appoint a mau at any 
time? A. We have the power to appoint them from time to time; but men do not care about taking the 
responsibility. 
3399. Q. What men? A. No man cares about taking the responsibility of Check Inspector. 
3400. (2. Why P A. It requires a certain amount of ability. 
3401. Q. Are there not men on the South Coast? A. I am speaking about Mount Kembla. 
3402. (9. You are not bound to appoint them from Mount Kembla? A. We have them from the district. 
3403. (2. Is not Mr. Wynn competent? A. I think lie is a competent luau. 
3104. Q. In addition to the Check Inspectors, you can report to the Government Inspectors, can not you? 
A. You can do lots of things if you want to get the sack. 
3405. Q. Do you think the Government Inspectors would divulge the names P A. I would not trust 
some of them. I would not trust my own brother. 
3406. Q. You have little confidence in human nature? A. I have suffered enough through it; and I 
have good reason, to be sure. 
3407. Q. With reference to the door in No. 4. Left. For anything you know time ventilation may have 
been controlled by a door elsewhere P A. I could not say that. 
:3408. (9. Was there a door at Stafford's Flat or Powell's Flat P A. I do not know that I ever saw one. 
3409. (2. In taking out pillars I suppose you are aware that in the best regulated collieries stooks must 
be left to support a bad roof P A. A lot of the coal might be got that is not got here. 
3410. Q. What is the Yorkshire practice ? A. They do not leave any stocks in Yorkshire. All the coal 
is got even to the roof. They work on the longwall system there. 
3411. (9. 'I'hen there are no pillars P A. In some parts they work with pillars too. 
3412. (9. You say that they secure the pillars? A. Yes ; and they get all that is to be got out of it. 
They have as many as fifty shift-men working at night. 
3413. (9. You say that they get the pillars without loss P .i. I never knew them leave coal at all. 
3414. (2. They work it with absolutely no loss ? ..1. Well, with very little loss. 
3415. (9. What does it mean ; does it not mean they leave stooks? A. Well, I never knew them waste 
coal. I am satisfied that coal in Mount Kembla is being lost carelessly. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie 

3410. (9. You have been on the night-shift when the Examining Deputy has been at work? A. Yes. 
3417. (9. What method did the deputies adopt? A. The night deputy would go in along with us. We 
would go as far as Adam's Flat or Mat's Flat at 9 o'clock at night. When we got there the deputy 
would get to know the number of places where we had to lift stone, from No. I to 20, and so on. Tie 
would go round to the next number ; but sometimes I have seen us go into the place before the deputy 
had got there; and we would have to withdraw. 
3418. Q. I-Lire you seen them examine the face? A. I have seen them esamine the face of the bords, 
but not climb on to the waste. 
3410. (9. What did lie do P A. He would have a small Davy lamp; and he would try both corners. 
3420. (9. What about the waste? A. I have never seen a deputy, until Mr. Hotchkis came, climb up 
to the waste to examine for gas. 
3421. Q. have you been working there when they have been examining a waste? A. I could see them-
occasionally. 
3422. Q. What would they do? A. They would walk up to the face, and lint on it the day of the month; 
but they would never get on to the top of the waite. 3123. 
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3123. Q. 'Would they never make any effort P A. I never saw them make an effort. 
3124. Q.  Where would they put the lamp ? A. Up to the face. 
3425. Q. I am talking about the waste? A. I have never seen them examine the waste. 
3420. Q. Have you ever been present when an examination of the waste was made-there are two 
examination,; made? A. It is the night examination that I am talking about. 
3127. Q. Have you. been present when they have been doing an examination in the waste workings? 
A. I have been there in the daytime ; but 1 never saw the deputies examine anything in the daytime. 
3428. Q. There are two examinations which have to be made-a night examination of the roads used and 
the workings. There is a weekly examination of the waste working. Have you ever been there whrn 
an examination of the waste workings was made? A. No, not about the waste workings. 1 understand 
the question now. 
3428f. Q. What does the deputy do when he corees into the face P A. Oh, stand by the skip, and say 

how are you getting on, old chap." Just a few words, and aivav. 
3 128 S. Q.  J List ask you how you are getting on P A. Yes, 
3129. Q. That is quite a regular performance? A. Oh, yes, an everyday performance. 
3430. Q. Did they go round every day P A. Yes, the day deputy. 
3131. (. That is all you ever saw them doing P A. Yes. 
3132. ci. Now, do you know whether the officials knew of the air being reversed on the occasion of w hilm 
you are speaking P A. Yes, the night deputy knew, at 4 ocleck the following morning, before getting 
to work. 
3133. Q. Did they stop you P A. No. 
3131. Q.  \Vho knew ? A. Dungey and McMnrray. 
3133. Q. Was there anybody else who knew P A. I was not a constant band at the stone work. 
3130. Q. Did the Manager or underground-manager know about the air being reversed P A. I cannot 
say. 
3137. Q.  Were you not prevented from going in P A. No. 
3135. ). Although they knew the air was reversed P A. You could tell it at the mouth. 
3139. Q.  You advocate that a Manager should hold a certificate only by examination? A. Yes. 
3140. Q.  And do you consider that if the Manager is to be qualified he should give more attention to 
mining matters and less to clerical work P A. Yes. 
3111. Q.  Now, talking of the Check Inspectors, do you know anything about Mr. Wynn's qualifications? 
A. Only what 1 have heard. 
3142. Q. have you had any experience, at the miners' meetings, of the difficulty of getting people to 
accept this position ? A. Yes. 
3413, Q. What are the reasons P A. Several reasons. One reason is because they have not the qualifi 
catmons, and another reason is that if a man was to put down what is errect lie would lose his billet. 
3411. Q. If they returned something black in tte eyes of the Manager, would they be dismissed P A. 
Yes; I know of a man who got dismissed in the Vale of Clwydd Colliery in Lithigow. 

Re-examined by Mr. Robertson 

34.1.5. Q. Do you say that the deputies who were appointed to examine the places every day in the mine 
mud not examine them after 12 o'clock P A. Do iou mean the places where the stone was picked up ? 
3410. Q. You said that as many as twelve places were missed ? A. I said that the first time they vent 
into the place they would put the day of the month there at 10 o'clock or 10 30, and it would not be 
inspected afterwards. 
347. Q. \\ hat  time do you start work P A. We are inside the tunnel at 9 o'clock. 
34-I8). Q. When would you leave off P A. eveu o'clock in the morning. 
3143. Q. You would only be working in your own place? A. In different places. 
31S0. (). When voti were lifting stone, you would only be lifting it in one place, and not in a dozen places? 
A. Yes ; I would, be w'orking in a dozen places in the one night. 
3151. Q.  And the deputies made no further examination than that in the first instance P A. Yes, that 
is quite right. 

Mit. JONATI-TAN MAY was called and sworn, and, took his place in the Witness Box, and 
addressing the Commissioners, said 

3132. 1 would like to make a statement before I am examined by Mr, Bruce Smith. 
3133. Mr. Been? S'ini//,.j I do not know whether the witness will give his evidence in the Way that I want 
to arrange it. 
3-151. ills Hc.nor.] I might say that your evidence at the inquest is being used here. 
3155. The iVi/ness.] I have sumnariscdl my evidence and my ideas with a view of preventing accidents in 
the future ; and I would like to give them to the Court. I may say that I have written a statement 
summnarisilig lily views. 
3150. ills Honor. If that is so, it would be just as well for the witness to be allowed to read it, and then 
the MS. could be handed to the Court. 
3137. Q.  What is your name ? A. Jonathan May. 
3458. Q.  And your occupation P A. My present occupation is that of Lecturer on i\flnirig, Geology, and 
Nining Surveying, and I have charge of Technical Education in the lllaw'am'ra District. 
3139. ills ifono-r.] I think now you might read your statement. 
3100. Mr. Wade.] If we could go on with the examination of the witness now, the document might be 
made an appendix to the Ilepom't of the Commission. 
3101. ills IIo)mor.] I think it would be best for the witness to read it; and then we should know what it 
is all about. [Jile. B'aq them read a nut/en statement, u'i,icim he han dud in.] 
3402. JIll'. Bruce iSnmitii.] I would ask that the witness would hand this statement to the Court, and that 
I may be allowed to have it to-night to mark certain passages to which I object. A great deal of it is It 

tirade of abuse, referring to people who occmmpv official positions, and the rest is a gratuitous self-
glorifk atiomi of himself and details of reforms \vhiclm have not been appreciated. OF course, it would have 

been 
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been open to me, as ho went from one passaga t. another, to have objvcled to the statements as being 
irrelevant; but I did not take that course ; and I now ask that I may have the document, so that I can 
mark the passages to which I object ; and bring them before the Court in the morning. 
3103. IRs honor.] That document is not conclusively in evidence as vet, but it is a statement upon which 
tbe evidence of Mr. May will be given and it was, in fact, arranged that it should be handed to the 
Secretary. The only thing is whether anyone else wishes to have the opportunity of looking through it. 
3104. Mr. Wade.] I have no questions to ask. 
3465. Mr. Lysaq/it.] I would like to see the document myself. 
3400. (It was then arranged that Type-written copies of the document should be handed to Counsel as early 
as possible.) 

[Tl:e Commission, at 410 p.m., aijourned to 10 o'clock the following morning]. 

WEDiYESDITY, 14 L1NUAI?Y, 1003, 10 (5.V1. 

[The Commission met at the Court house, W'ollonqonq.J 

C. F. R. MURRAY, ESQ., D.C.J. (PIIEsIDENT). 
D. A. W. HOBERTSON, ESQ,, CoMMIssIoNER. D. RITCHIE, ESQ, CoarrIssIoNEn. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-atLaw, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on 
behalf of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of— 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c. (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) ; and 
the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. C. G. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. F. Curtiss, appeared on behalf of the Mount 
Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of Mount Kembla Mine). 

(\Ir. J. Garhick, Secretary to the Commission, was pre'sent to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings). 

(The usual order was made that any person who expected to be called as a witness before the Court should 
retire from the Court Room). 

3107. ]JIr. Bruce Smith.] I have had an opportunity, Your Ilonor, since yesterday, of reading through 
this statement of Mr. May's ; and I am going to ask the Court to follow me for a moment while I point 
out certain passages which I submit would have been objectionable if they had been given by him as a 
witness, from statement to statement. First of all I refer to page 0 of the statement. On the seventh 
line it says : "A proper system of Government mines inspection would have prevented the Bulli explosion. 
The plan of the Dudley Mine which I herewith submit shows that the ventilation was grossly defective in 
exactly the same detail as the Bulli Colliery. At Bulli the ventilation of the Hill End No. 1 and No. 2 
headings was dependent on two single doors, as shown on the plan, either of which becoming deranged 
would allow gas to accumulate in No, 1 or No. 2 heading, where the explosion occurred. All the 
ventilation of Dudley depended on one single door." 
31.68. I submit that that evidence simply has no bearing whatever upon this iuquiry. If Mr. May were 
going to apply the facts of the Dudley disaster and the Bulli disaster to the Monnt Kembla disaster, of 
course he is bound to connect them in some way by showing some set of parallel circumstances. But 
this is simply a bald statement of his here, which is not in any way connected by him with the matter 
which is in hand before the Court now. It is merely burdening the evidence of the Court. If any 
member of the Court could say that that throws a vestige of' Ught upon this matter, even by looking at his 
maps, which of course we are bound to take as part of this, I should have no objection to it. Your honor 
sees exactly what It is : "A proper system of Government mines inspection would have prevented the 
Bulli explosion." It looks very much like seizing upon an opportunity to throw a doubt upon the whole 
system of mines inspection at the time of these disasters, without ccnnecting tlu m with this disaster. 
The Court will understand, that I would not for a moment attempt to stop Mr. May from giving what 
evidence he chooses, however injurious it might be to the administration of the Derartment,  if be only 
connects it with this series of inquiries which the Court is appointed to look into. The Bulli disaster was 
eight years before the Coal Mines Act was passed, as pointed out by Mr. Wade. I take that passage 
therefore which I have read, down to the word door" ; and I submit that, until Mr. May is prepared to 
connect tnemn that passage should he taken out of this part of the evidence at all events. I should 
propose that he take them out; and if he likes to give it again in his oral evidence, and so connect it, 
then he may do so; but at present it should come out of this statement, which will go in as a complete 
document in itself: and I would suggest to the Court that it would be better to deal with these statements 
one by one. 
3-109. Ris Hcsior.] It seems to me that the greater part of this is so far disconnected with the question 
before the Commission that it is very difficult to understand how it can be considered to be fairly evidence 
in this case. I was looking to see if there was any special suggestion afterwards as to ventilation, with 
which that statement of what happened in those mines was in any way connected. I do not think 
there is. 
3470. AIr. Bruce Smith.] There is another course I might suggest; and that is for me to go through all 
the passages to which I offer cbjections; and then, if Your I-honor and your fellow Commissioners are 
impressed with my argument, to simply exclude the document for the present, leaving it to Mr. May to 
use it as the basis of his oral evidence that is, to have it before him like a set of notes. It will not 
preclude him from attempting to give any part of it; but it will come in in his oral evidence. 

(I-us Honor conferred with his colleagues.) 3471. 
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3171. Mr. Lysriq/it.] Might I point out to Your honor that if I am entitled to avail myself of any 
evidence, from whatever source it may come, 1 would submit that that part of the evidence oljected to by 
Mr. Bruce Smith is admissibie evidence as in support of recommendations No. 7 and 10 from the Delegate 
l3oard. Your Honor will see that the statement that ' it proper svstcm of Government mines inspection 
would have prevented tire Bulli explosion," supports the recommendation for the monthly inspection by 
the Inspectors with the hydrogen flame which we asked for and the statement that '' at Bulli the 
ventilation of the lull lEnd No. I and 2 headings was dapeudent on two single doors,'' and that ' all the 
ventilation of Dudley depended on one single door," sup ports our recoinniendation that double doors 
should be furnished in eol1iercs. (Recommendation No. 10 
3172. Ills honor.] We determine that the best way in which to rule is this that, each party utmhising 
this document as muc Ii as he chooses, merely for his own information, Mr. May should be examined 
irrespective of the document: this document not being coasidei'erl to be in evidence at all now, on account 
of its peculiar nature, Mr. May should be exrnincd first of all by Mr. Bruce Smith, then by Mr. Lysaght 
and by Mr. Wade, as fully as it may appear to the Commission that he should be examined ; but 
afterwards, finally, if anything which happens to come in in this document has not been touched upon, 

* that Mr. May should have an opportunity of volunteering evidence ; when, if it should turn out that that 
evidence is, in the opimmiun of the Commission, immaterial, of course it should not be admitted. It appears 
to us that this document itself departs so far from the intention of this Commission, or of this inquiry. 
that it ought not to go in now as part of the evidence in the case as it stands; but it may form a useful 
basis for the examination of Mr. May by anyone concerned on this inquiry ; and for that purpose only, 
it seems to us at present, it ought to be used. You will have an opportunity, seeing  what is here, of 
putting any questions that you think appropriate to Mr. May when he is in the box. 
3173. Mr. Liiseqlit.] I was anxious to avoid having a duplication of all this matter, which is already down 
as evidence, by a number of questions from rue. 
3173- His honor.] I think it will be shorter in the long run, and it will appear, certainly, on the notes 
in a better form, in the way we have determined, tli:oi if this, I can only say, very remarkable document, 
is put in, and then has to be cut down. It is better to consider it at preseilt as not put in. It has been 
copied out; but it can now be struck out of the evidence, and not be considered to be put in evidence. 
Mr. May can now go into the box and answer any questions that may be put to bin. 
3471. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I shall give Mr. May an opportunity of explaining anything that may be in 
here which I think myself justified in asking him. 

Mn. JONAThAN MAY, previously sworn, was recalled and further examined as under 

(This witness was called at his own request, and the Commission asked Mr. Bruce Smith, as a matter of 
convenience, to conduct his examination in chief.) 

Examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 
3175. Q. Your name is Jonathan May? A. Yes. 
31.70. Q. And your occupation is at present that of Lecturer on Mining, Geology, and iMine Surveying P 
A. Yes. 
3 177. Q. And you have charge of Technical Education in the Illaivarra District P A. Yes; and I am a 
Mining Engineer and Colliery Manager by profession ; an-1 I hold a certificate of competency under the 
Imperial Act. 
8478. Q. You may have a copy of this (the s'atenreat handed in by Mr. May on the previous day) before 
you? A. Yes. 
3 179. Q. The evidence you are about to give is based on personal observation in the mine? A. Yes, 
3180. Q. Supported by nearly forty years' mining experience ? A. Yes. 
3131, Q. Incluhing the best practice 'generating'';—I do not know what that means? A. ' Generating" 
is the production of air currents. 
31S2. (). I am not talking of the etymology of the words, I am talking of the way the words are put herm P 
A. The best practice of generating. 
3483. Q. The word " of is left out ;—" including the best practice of generating and distributing air 
current in the gaseous mines of the North of England, and a fifteen years' experience and observance of 
tire weak points of our Colonial ventilation P A. Yes. 
3181. 0. "And with an intimate acquaintance with general mining literature, and that descriptive of 
coal-dust and explosive experiments ; also with the official publications boariirg on colliery explosions 
issued by the Imperial Iio:ne Office, and the transacfions of different engineering institutes " ;—that is 
wimat you want to s ry P A. Yc.r, 
3 1.85. Q. And I unclerst.tmrd that you have made a careful analysis and correlation of the Bulli, Stockton, 
Burwood, and Kembla, disasters, with a view to suggesting certaimr amnendnrents in the Coal Mines Act to 
prevent their recurrence? A. Yes. 
3183. Q. Now, with regard to the Monnt Kenibla disaster, I think on the 31st of Julyou entered the 
mine with a rescue party by the travelling road P 
31,37. His honor.] I think a good deal of what Mr. May has put in this statement appears in his evidence 
at the inquest. 
3183. Mr. While.] A page and a half of it does. 
3189. ills Ifonor.] Yes. 
3193. Mr. Bruce Serif/u.] (). On the 31st of July, with a rescue party, you entered the mine by the 
ravelling road, and rca ehed a point in No. 6 rope road near the furnace door ? A. Yes. 

3191. Q. Now, what you saw when you macic that iisit was given by you before the Coroner's Jury ? 
A. Oh, it is very brief. 
3192. Q. It is pretty brief here ;—you know no more facts of that visit—that is, by personal obscuration—
now than you did then, (to you P A. Not by personal observation. 
31-93. (7. That is what I mneaur P A. Oh, no. 
3 liii. (7. Now, the conclusions with reg:rrd to the contributing causes of this accident I see you have 
tatc d under tirree heads ? A. Yes. 

31-95. (7. I umme:rn, you came to the conclusion, first, that the working face gave off fire-damp P A. Yes. 
3-199. (7. You came to a second conclusion, that the bords being driven 100 to 150 yards with brattice 
were a great source of danger? A. Yes, 

3407 
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3197. Q. "For the following reasons" you say, "(a) The deputy's examination could be some hours 
before the workman entered his place " ;-what do you mean by " could be P A. There is only one 
examining deputy. 
3198. Q. How do you know that? A. In that district-in No. 1 district: there were two examining 
deputies for the whole pit. 
3499. Q. For the whole pit, night and day P A. No; two night deputies : two examining deputies. 
3500. Q. Two day examining deputies? A. Oh, no; the day deputy does not examine. 
3501. Q. Very well, then ;-two examining for the whole pit? A. For the whole pit. 
3502. Q. Now, what do you mean by saying that "The deputy's examination could be some hours before 
the workman entered his place "P A. He had to examine half the mine, and then go and meet the inca 
at 0 o'clock. 
3503. Q. And you mean to say that the earlier ones would, be examined some hours before the workmen 
entered. them P A. The earlier ones. 
3504. Q. I thought that was what you meant ;-on account of the large amount of examining he had to 
do, those which he examined first would only have been seen some hours before the men went to work- 
that is your view about it? A. Yes. - 
3505. Q. Then I understand you to say that, as he only took a safety-lamp with him, he could only detect 
gas when it reached. 2 per cent. P A. Yes; 2 per cent, to 2 2' per cent. 
3506. Q. Then you say that " 1 per cent, of gas w-ith a blown out shot, as at '2 bord, is well known to be 
dangerous" P A. Yes. 
3507. Q. Are you aware when the blown-out shot at 72 took place? A. No. 
3508. Q. You have heard, have you not, that it took place some days before P A. I could not say. 
3509. Q. Then you do not know of your own knowledge that it took place within a month of this 
accident? A. I think it was some time previously. 
3510. Q. I hope you are more accurate with your students than you are with my questions ;-you do not 
know of your own knowledge that that blown-out shot did not take place as far back as a month before 
the accident? A. My impression was that it took place within twenty-four hours of the explosion. 
3511. Q. I asked. you if you knew just now, and you said you did not know : and I now ask you if of 
your own knowledge you are aware that it took place within even a month before? A. Not of my own 
knowledge. 
3512. Q. You do not know;-you have got an impression on your mind? A. Yes, 
3313. Q. Do you know of any evidence that has been given before the Coroner and the Coroner's Jury as 
to that blown-out shot P A. I think I heard. Mr. Atkinson state that the blown-out shot inbord 72 had 
in significance in his mind with regard to the explosion. That is where I got my impression. 
331t. Q. I am asking you whether you remember any evidence before the Coroner and Coroner's Jury as 
to the time at which that blown-out shot took place? A. That is the only thing in my mind. 
3515. Q. That has not anything to do with it: that is only as to whether it has cigniOcance ? A. Yes. 
3516. Q. Then you do not know anything as to the 72 bord 'P A. Excepting that there was a blown- )ut 
shot, showing that a blown-out shot was possible and was dangerous under the conditions. 
3517. Q. If it had taken place at time same time when 1 per cent, of gas was present, it would be 
dangerous? A. Yes. 
3318. Q. Now, what is your authority-and I ask this for info rmat i on-what is your authority for saying 
that 1 per cent. of gas is dangerous in the presence of a blown-out shot P A. All the coal-dust 
experiments. 
3510. Q. Would you point to one; I would like the Commission to have any one placed before them 
you have not mentioned coal-dust yet, do you see? A. The deputy's examination could only detect 
2 per cent, to 2i-  per cent. of CH4, whereas 1 per cent. of gas with a blown-out shot is dangerous. 
3520. Q. There is nothing about coal-dust there ;-is there anything else about coal-dust in that 
statement? A. There would be in my mind. 
3321. Q. Is there anything about coal-dust in that statement-yes or no? A. There is nothing about 
coal-dust in this statement. 
3522. Q. Now you import coal-dust ;-you have justnow told the Commission that I per cent. of gas, 
such as you could not find with a safety-lamp, is dangerous, and well known to be dangerous : and I ak 
you for your authority for that? A. The Coal-Dust Experiments Commission. 
3523. Q. Can you point to the passage ;-have you got it with you? A. Oh dear no. I have almost 
forgotten these things ; it is so many years since they were done. 
3521. Q. And you do not think it is Nvorth while to revive it for the information of the Royal Cominisson P 
A. I am sure they will have it. 
3525. Q. I understand you to say that the danger would depend upon the presence also of coal-dust? 
A. Exactly. 
3526.. Q. I believe you have made a calculation as to the number of yards of explosive atmosphere in 
certain bords which could not be detected under certain conditions? A. Yes -1,600 to 2,400 cubic yards. 
3527. Q. Will you just repeat that statement? A. Yes. It is "1,600 to 2,400 cubic yards of an explosive 
atmosphere in several bords which could not be detected by the examination practised; and only i'equied 
a blower of gas, or even the concussion of a fall, to raise it to an explosive condition, without a shot." 
3328. Q. That is with a light, I suppose ? A. With a naked light. 
3529. Q. But you have not said so (in the statement) ;-the naked light is an important element in some 
of these things ? A. The naked lights were in the bords. 
3330. Q. Then we can add, " with It naked. light" P A. " Without a shot," it says ; therefore we can 
imply, it is a naked light. 
3531. Q. Look at the next. You want to say something there. ' The mine was an old one," you say? 
A. Yes. 
3332. Q. And "the air was dependent on a large number of," you say, "probably slack stoppings and 
doors." Are you able to go further than that? Did you examine some of these stoppings yourself? 
A. I examined some of the stoppings which were built with rubbish-the usual rubbish stoppings. 
3533. Q. "The mine was an old one, with the air dependent on a large number of probably slack stoppings 
and doors; the air current was prod uceci by a furnace which was approaching, if it had not then reached, 
time point of inadequacy; " you want to say that? A. Yes. 

3531. 
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3534. Q. And you want to say this: "The more serious danger aspect ";-just look at that. Is that the 
proper wording? A. The more serious danger of the mine ventilation. 
3535. Q. "The more serious danger of the mine ventilation was its liability to great fluctuations from two 
causes"? A. Yes. 
3536. Q. " First the quantity of air produced by a furnace is as the square root of the difference between 
the temperature of the upcast shaft and the intake or downcast shaft. For illustration, assuming 53,500 
cubic feet of air passing through the mine about 6 am. with an inlet temperature of 40 degrees and the 
upcast at 121 degrees, or it difference of 81 degrees." Then there is a full stop ? A. Yes. 
3537. Q. "If the inlet temperature were increased to 72 degrees about noon, this would reduce the 
difference to 49 degrees, and the quantity of air s111g would be reduced as the square root of 81 
degrees"? A. Is to the square root of 49 degrees, so is 58.500 to 45,500. 

(The proportion is stated in figures thus -As 81 : 49 : 5S500 : 45,500.) 
353S. Q.  A reduction of 13,000 cubic feet or 23 per cent. ? A. Yes 
3539. Q. You wish to make that statement P A. Yes. 
3510. Q.  And you submit that as throwing light on this accident ? A. Only as an illustration. The 
quantity of air might be very much less than 45,000; in fact the quantity of air might be almost reversed 
under those conditions. 
3541. Q. Did you ever say anything about the air being reversed in this mine prior to the appointment of 
this Commission? A. About the air being reversed ? 
3542. Q. Yes; in your evidence before the Coroner and the Coroner's Jury? A. I knew then that 
(Interrupted). 
3543. (2. That is not my question? A. I have not said so. 
3544. (2. I ask you did you before the Coroner and the Coroner's Jury ever say anything about the air being 
reversed in this mine? A. Oh dear no. 
3515. Q. Then you went on to say this: "Those two phenomena are well known to practical men along 
the coast"? A. Yes. We have only quoted one. 
3546. Q. Which is the second ? A. The second is that " strong westerly winds may occasionally even 
reverse the ventilation" ; which is a very serious matter. 
35-17. Q. Did you ever say anything about strong westerly winds possibly reversing the ventilation, when 
you were before the Coroner and the Coroner's Jury? A. I do not remember. 
3518, Q. Then you go on to say, "The air being taken past the edge of the small goaves near the face on 
to naked lights, in view of the difficulty of examining or ventilating anywhere but their edge, was another 
serious source of danger " P A. Yes; a very serious source of danger. 
3519, Q. That is one sentence P Is it? A. Yes. 
3550. Q. Would you mind, telling me what that means P Oh, never mind, I will not trouble you. It will 
be understood by the " practical men on the coast." Then you go on to say " between Stafford's gannon 
bord and Morrison's bord --." (Interrupted). 
3551. His 1102201.] That is meant for Morris' bord. 
3552. Witness.] I always say Morrison in that case; but I think it is Morris, Your Worship. 
3553, A1y. Bruce Smith.] Q. " Between Stafford's gannon bord and Morris' bord there were several 
places which clearly suggested all the conditions of an explosion ; but I believe the explosion occurred 
through the doors on which the ventilation of the face workings of No. 1 Left between Morris' and 
Stafford's going bord becoming deranged allowed the gas to accumulate in No. 1 main and back heading, 
that being the highest point in the workings; and was ignited by Morris' or his son's naked light." You 
wish to say that? A. Yes. 
3551. Q. " The initiatory direction of the force and flame was from the face of No. 1 heading straight 
down No. 1 rope road ; the first lateral expansion of flame and force being west, between the face and the 
15-acre goaf " ? A. Yes. 
3555. Q. " The last holing or heading near the face showing distinct evidence of being traversed by flame 
and force near where Aitken and son worked"? A. Yes. 
3556. Q. That is all you have to say about the conclusions that you have drawn? A. Those are my 
conclusions ; Yes. 
3557. Q. When you were examined before the Coroner you marked a plan, did you not? A. Yes. 
3558. his Honor.] It would be as well to get this sentence into grammatical form. 
3559. (The sentence was then altered to read as follows :-" Strong westerly winds may occasionally even 
reverse the air current. The -air being taken past the edge of the small goaves near the face on to naked 
lights, in view of the difficulty of examining or ventilating anywhere but their edge, was another serious 
source of danger. Between Stafford's gannon bord and Morris' bord there were several places which 
(-learly suggested all the conditions of an explosion; but I believe the explosion occurred through the 
doors on which the ventilation of the face workings of No. 1 Left, between Morris' and Stafford's going 
bord, depended becoming deranged ; and that allowed the gas to accumulate in No. 1 main and back 
heading, that being the highest point in the workings ; and that that gas was ignited by Morris' or his 
son's naked light.") 
3500. his J-ionor.] That makes it intelligible. 
3561. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You come now to "Suggested Coal-mines Act Amendments"? A. Yes. 
3502. (2. " Before stating the amendments to the Coal-mines Act which I believe the safety of our mining 
operations imperatively demands, I would like to refer to some colliery explosions and disasters in New 
South Tales, upon which the suggested amendments are principally based. In the Bulli disaster all the 
conditions of the mine pointed clearly to an explosion, as shown by the plan I herewith submit " ? A. Do 
you want the plan? - 
3503. Q. No; because there was no doubt about the Bulhi disaster being caused by an explosion? A. 
Yes; and any other mine under the same conditions would have an explosion. 
3501. Q. I am only dealing with what you said. Would you like to add to that? 

.565. Ills honor.] Mr. Bruce Smith, I think you are, perhaps, being sight of the decision of the Court 
that this statement is not supposed to have been said anywhere. 
3566. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I luite  understand that, your I lonor. 
3567, Q. What do you want to add to that : "un the Buili disaster all the conditions of the mine pointed 
clearly to an explosion, as shown by the plan I bcewitls submit "P A. And an explosion would have 
occurred at any mine under similar conditiont - 3568, 
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3568. Q. Then you go on to say that the presence of gas was well known to the workmen " in the. Bulli 
Mine; and Fireman Crawford's evidence and cross-examination by the (Bulli) Commission shows how 
frequent and how easy it is for workmen and firemen to know of the cxistence of gas and dangerous 
conditions in a mine, and yet be utterly helpless to prevent an explosion." That is what you want to 
say? A. Yes. 
3569. Q. Now, you want to say that "a proper system of mines inspection would have prevented the 
Bulli explosion"? A. Yes. 
3570, Q. Would you just tell the Commission how you arrive at that conclusion-as shortly as possible? 
J. (Witness ex/ubited to the Commission aplan of the But/i Mine, hg which he illustrated his answer.) 
The air is travelling in the main tunnel towards the Hill End district. Where No. 1 and No. 2 headings 
are turned to the north-east there are two doors, one door from the main road, and a door in a cross-cut 
and the air is dependent upon these two doors for ventilating the heading where the explosion occurred. 
The air was compelled, you see, to go up here (pointing on the plan). 
3571. His honor.] Q. These are single doors? - A. Single doors. Either of these doors being left open, 
or when opened for the traffic or the passage of coal, it cut. off the air from No. 1 and No. 2 headings, 
and left those two headings directly subject to an explosion of gas. This coal from the vicinity of headings 
Nos. 3 and 4 used to come out through the door on the main road; and at every passage of the coal the 
air was cut off from the other places, the No 1 and No. 2 headings, where the explosion occurred. Any 
inau accustomed to the handling of the ventilating currents of a gaseous mine would have at once put his 
finger on that. That door should have been dnplicated 
3572. Mr. Wade.] Q. You were not in the State then? A. No. 
:357212-. Q. You were not here? A. No; I was not here then. 
3573. His Honor.] The Commission was a-cry strongly impressed before this evidence was given at all 
with the expediency of double doors under such conditions as these, without going further into the question 
so it is hardly w-orth while to labour it. You do not dispute it I understand, do you, Mr. Bruce Smith 
You do not yourself dispute the expediency, I presume, of double doors under these important conditions 
of ventilation, such as Mr. May is describing. 
3574. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I think Mr. Atkinson favours the double-door principle certainly. 
3575. AIr. Atkinson.] Yes. 
3576. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I think he would probably include that in his recommendations. 
3577. His Honor.] So I should imagine. 
3578. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But this does not go on at any length here, your Honor; so that we need not 
raise a question now as to that part of it. 
3579. Mr. Lysaqht.] May I take it that I need not call any further evidence in support of the rocom-
naendat.ion concerning double doors (No. 10) ? 
3580. His Honor.] Probably it will not be necessary to doso. 
3581. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Following on that, Mr. May, you wish to say that all the ventilation of Dudley 
Mine depended on one single door? A. That the plan of the Dudley i'Iine which I herewith submit shows 
that the ventilation was grossly defective in exactly the same details as the Bulli Colliery. 
3582. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Do you wish to have that part. your Honor? It is a repetition of the last evidence. 
3583. His Honor.] It is not necessary to labour the question. I understand now that the Dudley Mine 
suffered from the same defect. 
3584. Witness.] All the ventilation of Dudley depended on that one door. (Witness pointed out the 
door on the plan of Dudley Mine.) 
3585. Ills Honor.] Q. That is the same defect as you found in Bulli? A. Yes, exactly. 
3586. JEIr. Robertson.] It did not all depend on that one door. It depended on it to a large extent; but 
it would not affect the ventilation here and here (indicating Certain pol-tions of the mine on the plan). 
3587. Witness.] As soon as that door was open the air would short-circuit here (indicating a point on 
the plan). 
3588. dEfr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Mr. May simply mentions to the Commission that the same cause which 
contributed to the Bulli explosion contributed to the Dudley explosion, and you say that is because there 
was only one door where two should have been placed ? A. Yes. It is on these two explosions that I 
say that a proper system of Government mines' inspection would have prevented the Bulli explosion, and 
also the Dudley explosion. 
3589. Q. Now, among the suggestions which you malcefor amendments in the Mines Act is this, under the 
heading " Agent or Viewer" : " In any mine where a consulting engineer, viewer, agent, or managing 
director, or other person, has power to give directiens'as to the mode of conducting the works of a mine, 
either above or below ground, he shall enter all such directions which bear on the ventilation, method of 
working, or coal-dust precautions, in a book to be kept at the mine for that purpose." That is a suggestion 
you make? A. Yes. 
3590. Q. And you suggest also that "in every ease the names shall be published." What do you mean 
by the "names " there? A. The "name " it should he. In every case the name of the person 
(Interrupted). 
3501. Q. " Should be published in the special rules; and the periodical visits to and into the mine should 
be reported'? A. Yes. I might add that that was eliminated from the Mines Bill which Mr. Rogers 
and another Commission sat on. 
3592. Q. Yes, I know. Now, under the heading of "Manager" you suggest that the certificate of service 
should be abolished? A. Yes. 
3593. Q. Is that with regard to the future or the past, or both? A. Will, I think (Interrupted). 
3594. Q. Existing managers who have a service certificate-do you propose that that should be abolished? 
A. Give them a curtain length of time to qualify. 
3595. Q. Then you also suggest that in each mine where more than one Manager and one under-manager's 
certificate of service has been granted the circumstances should be carefully investigated by this Court ? 
A. Yes. 
3596. Q. Do you mean by this Commission P A. Yes. I mean by this present Commission, for the simple 
reason that there are men holding certificates of service that have obtained them by perhaps questionable 
methods. I might explain. 
3597. Q. Yes? A. Under the English Act-the Imperial Act-when the Mines Act came into force the 
manager of the mine obtained a certificate - (Interrupted), 3598. 
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Q. By reason of his service? A. By reason of his service. In New South Wales the Manager of a 
mine obtained a certificate, and, the underground-manager. 

Q. And the under-manager obtained what ? A. A certificate of service. 
36v0. Q. As under-manager ? A. Yes but you will find that in some mines there were more than one 
Manager's certificate granted: and that there were two or three certificates of service for under-manager 
granted. 
3601. Q. Are you aware that under tije Coal Mines Regulation Act a provision was macic that not only 
the men who were Managers at the time the Act was passed should have a certificate of service, but also 
that Managers who could show that they had had fiveyears' exprience before that date, although not 
acting as Manager at that time P 
360. his honor.] I think it was one year's experience within five years of the date. 
3003. il&. Bruce mifh.J Yes. 
3C01. Q. Are you aware of that P A. I am quite aware of the reading ; and I am quite aware of places 
where either three or four under-managers' ccrt:fleatcs were granted. 
3005. Q. Under what circumstances ? A. I Could not tell you. I know there is only one Manager and 
one under-manager at a mine. 
3006. Q.  Do you mean to say that certificates were granted to under-managers who did not come within 
the provisions of the Act ? A. 'Ihat is my meaning : that this was done very objectionably: and that the 
conditions should be investigated. 
3607. Q. That is not the question. I will take them separately. First, I will take managers : do I 
understand you to tell the Commission that you know of any cases in which Managers received certificates 
of service who had not served for twelve months within five years previously of the Act? A. I have no 
intention of saying so. 
3608. Q. I do not want to know it you have any intention ; but you do not say so P A. No. 
3609. Q. Do you wish the Commission to understand that any certificates of service were granted to men, 
on the ground of their being Managers at the time, who were not Managers at the time P 
3610. ills Hossor.] I understand Mr. May is not question big the legal right of these Managers and 
under-managers to have obtained service certificates but he is questioning the policy of the law in 
allowing them, under the law, to obtain the certiBtes under the eircuinstanees-is that so P A. 1 
believe, Your ilonor, time law has been stretched in certain cases. 
3611. Q. Is not your recommendation " That certificates of service be abolished " a suggestion for a 
radical amendment of the Act? A. I have also suggested that this Court should investigate it. 
3612. Mr. Bruce Sun//i.] Q. Do you suggest that any of those who now hold Managers' or under_nianagers' 
certificates have got them contrary to law P A. I could not say. 
3613. (). But you do suggest that some men have got them who are not competent to hold the position? 
A. I do suggest that in the Glebe Mine, Burwood, \Vallsend, and Clifton that the number of certificates 
issued for Manager and under-arourd manager of those mines should be investigated. 
3011. (7. By some tribunal? A. 1 suggested this Court. 
3615. (7. 1 understand that there is no suggestion that any of those certificates have been granted illegally? 
3616. His Honor.] Q. But do you suggest, Mr. May, as you apparently via here, that the law should be 
altered with regard to the granting of what may be called service certificates? A. Law at the beginning 
should only have recognised the Manager and under-ground manager. 
3617. Q. That is retrospectively recognised ? .1. And retrospectively only in certain cases. I know 
that certain clerks i- (I12terruy,tcc7). 
3(LS. Q. You suggest the alteration of the law retrospectively ? A. I should suggest to abolish -- 
(In/errupted). 
3019. Mr. Bruce Smith.] 0. Existing ones? A. Yes, existing ones : but give them a certain time to qualify. 
3020. his himior.] Q. Do you suegest requalification by examination or requahfication by proof of 
certain service, and also some proof of competency P A. A re-qualification by proof of legitimate service, 
but particularly by passing in examination. 
3021. (7. But do you suggest a requaliuication by proof of certain service added to some further proof, 
besides service, of competency irrespective of examination, or not? A. No. I prefer that certificates 
of service be abolished within a given time ; and let them pass the usual examination. 
3622. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You suggest " lliat time Manager of every mine shall examine the working 
conditions of each working-place at least once a fortnight "P A. Yes. 
3623. (7. " And as much oftencr as the conditiocs may require "P A. Yes. 
3624. (7. Then you have some suggestions to make with regard to the air measurement : " That all air 
measurement records shall contain the quantity of air leaving the last man in each split" ? A. Yes. 
3625. Q. ''That in any mine ventilated by furnace and drift the temperature of the atmosphere be 
carefully observed on time clay the air is measu:ed ; also the direction of the wind at the time of measure-
ment with regard to the adit or adits "P A. Yes. It is quite possible to get a very large quantity of 
air travelling in a mine like Kembla with the wind blowing from the east: and it is just possible that a 
strong wind from the west might reverse the current. 
3620. (7. You know that evidence of that has been given by miners P A. I have just heard it. 
3627. (7. But you did not give any evidence yourself before the Coroner or the Coroner's JuryP A. I 
explained the atmospheric conditions. 
362. Q. I did not ask you- for that. Did you give any evidence as to the possibility of the air being 
reversed? A. No. 
3620. Q. Now, you snake suggestions about the system of examination by workmen : " That the system 
of inspection by workmen be abolished as being a useless farce and a shelter for incompetent manage-
ment"? A. Yes. 
3630. Q. Will you tell the Commission why the practice of the woelcmen making these check-inspections 
is a useless farce P A. Your 1-Tonor, there is no average workman dare state the conditions of the mine 
fairly and fearlessly, because his bread and butter depends on it. 
2031. (). Do you mean to say that time terrorism is so great that these men would be afraid to enter in time 
check-inspectors' book the real state of things that they found P A. Yes. 
3032. (7. Then you say also that "The appointment of a cliArict check-inspector is a recognition of this 
fact, and is in example also of miners t mixing theinsel yes to do work weal]v and ineffcct ually, which a 
proper system of mines inspection would and was designed to do ''P A. Yes. 3033. 
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3033. Q. You say "The workmen are debarred from appointing competent men; and this limitation should 
be removed from the Act." Why are they debarred from appointing competent men? A. It has to 
be one of themselves. 
3634. Q. Whom do you mean by "one of themselves" P A. It has to be a miner. I do not think that 
they could select a miner if he has obtained a first-class certificate of competency. 
3635. Q. Why not? What is to prevent tliem? A. You have got the Act there. 
:36:36. Q. Here is the Act. I will hand it to you. Show me. If you say that is the cause, I want you to 
point out to the Commission what is there in the Act to prevent the miners froin appointing one of their 
own class who has obtained a first-class certificate of competency? A. Is it so? 
3637. Q. I do not know. I want you to find it? A. Have not you got it? 
3638. Q.  I want you to tell us what you base that statement on? A. What page is it? You people have 
to deal with it regularly. 
3630. Q.  I am asking Mr. May to point out in the Act anything that would prevent the miners from 
appointing one of their own class who has obtained a first-class certificate of competency? 
3610. His Honor,] Mr. May knows the Act, I think. 
3611. .Mr. Bruce Smith.1 He says he does. I want him to show me: but he is asking me to show him. 
3642. His Honor.] He will find it if you give him time. 
3643. Mr. Robertscn.] Thirty-nine. 
3611, Mr. Ritchie.] Rule 39 of the General Rules is, I think, what you are looking for-page 37.. 
3645. Mr. Biwee Smith.] Section 47, Rule 39. 
3646. Witness.] That persons employed in a mine may from time to time appoint two of their number or 
any two oersons not being mining engineers. 
3647. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Yes P A. Then, if one of their number obtains a first-class certificate, what 
is he? 
3648. Q. I am not being examined, fortunately. You must tell us ;-is that the part of the Act under 
which you say that a practical miner could not be appointed as a check-inspector if he had passed an 
examination? A. There is not a single instance in New South Wales where one has been appointed. 
3649. Q. Is that the part of the Act ;--I only want it: then we will pass on? A. That is the part of too 
Net I referred to. 
3650. Q. Then, apart from passing the examinations for which I believe you deliver lectures, do I under-
stand you to say that the workmen are not competent for this position because they have not been fortunate 
enough to pass one of these e.x aminatjons for which you deliver lectures? A. That is my opnmon 
certainly not, unless they are qualified, or unless, like a Manager of a mine, they have taken a certificate 
of competency, they are not in a position to deal with these things. 
3651. Q. And in order to get that certificate, I suppose that in this district they would have to work 
through a. series of lectures under yourself? A. No, not necessarily ; some of them do it by private study 
in this district; and very smart fellows, too. 
3632. Q. Howevor, you think it a farce and a shelter for incompetent management? A. Yes; and that is 
one reason whyt lie brattice trick has been performed so often. 
3333. Q. What do you mean by that ;-is it a confidence trick? A. Yes. 
3331. Q. What is the brattice trick? A. If 20,000 cubic feet of air was coining through that door and 
10,000 went through there, and 10,000 through here, the brattice trick is that, if the check-inspector was 
in there, they would put a brattice here and force all the air up. 
3655.Q. Whilst the inspection was going on? A. Yes. 
3656. Q. You think that is the practice? A. That is a well-known performance. 
3657. Q. Have you seen it done? A. No. 
31358. Q. How do you know it is done? A. From the reports of my acquaintances. 
3859. Q. That is from hearsay? A. Yes. 
3660. Q. You depend, then, entirely upon what you are told? A. I have seen it proved in a Court. 
3661. Q. In a Court? A. That it had been done. 
3662. Q. You have heard that it has been done? A. Yes. 
3663. Q. Do you think that is w-idely practiced? A. It is too widely practiced, I am afraid: 
3664. Q. That is really a dishonest trick, of closing up one outlet in oder to increase the discharge through 
another? A. Yes I could give you an illustration. 
3665. Q. I think the Courtunderstand it. You say, "This limitation should be removed from the Act";-
what limitation P A. That they could appoint a man with a first-class certificate or a mining engineer-
anybody they choose. 
3666. Q. Whether he is a practcal miner or not? A. You trust them to look after that; they will look 
after that. 
31367. Q. Then you suggest that each Inspector under the Act should be made personal]y responsible for 
the adm:rnstration of the Act in his own district P A. Yes. 
BibS. Q. In what way do you propose that responsibility-crimninallv or civilly? A. That lie is responsible 
for the administra:ion of the Act in his district. 
36130. Q. That is what you said ; but I asked you to explain it further : what do you mean? A. If tl.o 
ventilation in his district is bad, he is the man that has it to explain, and that nobody else must be asked, 
but he must explain, what is the reason. 
670. Q. You suggest that " Each Inspector shall make a quarterly report of the conditions of the mineS 

in his district, which shall be promptly published and distributed to the Schools of Arts in the Nining 
Dstrmets"? A. Yes. 
3071. Q. That is, for the information of the miners P A. Yes. 
3672. Q. Then you give some examples of fear on the part of the men to report, do you not P A. Yes. 
3673. Q. And you quote one from the Bulli Commission? A. Yes. 
3674. Q. The case of ,Tames Crawford, a deputy at Bulh for some years," who " described at time Bulk 
Commission an occasion in the mine when he told a miner, 'I will not fire this shot for you, as the place 
is f1l1 of gas for 12 yards hack.' Q. 3378, p. 109) "P A. Yes. 
307.5 Q. ' Mr. Crawford atterwards obtained woik as a deputy at another mine. When the Inspector 
and i\Iunager went through the mine The Inspector suggestively asked the denuty 'if he ever found 
any vnrds of gas now'''? A. Yes. 
3676. Q. You give that as an. instanco P A. As an illustration. 337?. 
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3677. (7. You said he said "suggestively"? A. Yes. 
3678. (7. You do not know of the motive, any more than that it is an inference on your part? A. Yes. 
3079. 9. The motive there is an inference on your part P A. Yes. 
3080. 9. I do not propose to ask you of No. 2 unless, of course, it is of your own knowledge? A. The 
first is of my own knowledge. 
3081. Q. But you read it ((7. 3378) P A. Yes; but 1 did not read the Act myself. 
3682. Q. Which Act? A. He afterwards obtained work as a deputy; that is my own personal experience. 
Of course, I heard the Inspector ask him that. 
3683. Q. You mean he got a situation after lie made that statement? A. Yes; and I heard the Inspector 
ask this man this question, "If he ever found any yards of gas now ?" 
3684. Q. What was the answer? A. The answer was that the deputy hung his head and looked very 
(Interrupted). 
3685. 9. That is not an answer? A. That is the answer. 
3680. 9. Did he say "no" or " Yes "? A I forget now. 
3087. 9. You remember the question, but you forget the answer, though you remember that he hung his 
head? A. Yes. 
3688. 9. With regard to No. 2, you say "Mr. Green gave some evidence as to the cost of bratticing 
bords"? A. Yes. 
3689. Q. And "On the 10th May he was dismissed from his employment at the Glebe Mine"? A. Yes. 
That is about six weeks after he gave the evidence. 
3000. (7. Are you able to say of your own knowledge what connection there was between his giving evidence 
and his dismissal P A. Only his own opinion. 
3691. Q. You do not know that of your own knowledge. I take it that will not be evidence, Your Honor. 
Where is this man Green P A. He is dead. 1-Ic lost his Lie in an accident. 
3692. His Honor.] The connection of ideas is rather too vague to form anything in the nature of 
evidence. 
3093, Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Then you wish to say that "At the Balmain inquiry Charles Demond, a 
witness, when asked why he did not complain when he knew that his own and others' lives were in danger, 
replied, 'I hal a father and brother working at the mine and I thought we would be discharged if I 
complained ' '' P A. Yes. 
3691. Q. You wish to say that "The most glaring illustration of the boycott is embodied in an inquiry 
w hich a mine official has on several different occasions asked the Mines Department for, and it has been 
rolused." I see you make some reference to the Bailey matter there P A. Yes. 
3095. (). That Bailey matter was fully iniuired into by a special Commission-was it not ? A. Yes. 
3093. Q. Mr. Wade? A. Not a Commission like this. 
3607. Q. No. That was one ; and this is three. The matter was fully inquired into and reported upon 
by a Commission? A. Yes. 
3608. Q. At the time that Mr. Wade was appointed, I believe a Commission was suggested which would 
include you? A. Indeed. I do not remember at present; but that would have been a very good 
Commission. 
3699. Q. But that Bailey matter has been very fully goue into, has it not;-and the Commission can see 
that for themselves P A. The Bailey matter has not been investigated yet. 
3700. Q. Was not Mr. Wade appointed as a Commission? A. Yes; but the dismissal of a Deputy for 
reporting gas has not been investigated. 
3701. 9. But the Bailey matter was fully ,one into, and Bailey was heard, was he not, before Mr. Wade? 
A. There were only three matters, the brattice - (in terrupte(1). 
3702. Q. I want you to answer my question. Was not Mr. Bailey heard on a Commission before 
Mr. Wade? Was he not examined by me for a whole day at Newcastle P A. Yes. 
3703. 9. And you mean to say that the real facts did not come out? A. That the real facts of his 
dismissal for reporting gas were not investigated. 
3701. (. Were you invited by me on that occasion to go into Court and give evidence? A. No. Your 
Honor, I sent a note to Mr. Bruce Smith asking him to put me in the witness box; but he very discreetly 
refused to do it. 
3705. Q. You wanted to be examined in chief by me instead of being cross-examined? A. Your discretion 
was utterly admirable, I admit. 
3700. Q. Were you not ordered out of Co art by Mr. Wade, as Commissioner, on the ground that you 
might be a witness ? A. Yes. 
3707. Q. And were you not asked to go into the witness-box and submit yourself to cross-examination P 
A. I do not remember; I sent a note (Interrupted). 
370S. Q. You can tell inc about the note afterwards. You must answer my questions. Were you not 
mked to go into the witness-box and submit your.elF to cross-examination P A. I do not remember. I 
remember writing a note to Mr. A. J. Brow-n, and a(i.ng him to see that Mr. Bruce Smith had charged me 
with conspiring with a deputy in connection with his dismissal for reporting gas, and of conspiring with a 
deputy in connection with Mr. Weir, who was burnt, as it was reported, and that Mr. Taft was carried 
out on his mate's back, and that was not reported; and Mr. Bruce Smith charged me with conspiring with 
this deputy: and I wrote a letter to Mr. Bruce Smith and asked him to put me in the witness-box. 
3709. Q. And lie declined to do it? A. Yes. 
3710. Q. And be asked you to submit yourself to cross.examination P A. No. I do not remember that. 
3711. Q. You do not remember that? A. No. 
3712. Q. heave outthc next fo:rmatters altogether? A. Willyouleave those out? It is avery serious matter. 
3713. Q. I do not want to leave out the fourth, but that is the Bailey matter. That is all to be had? 
A. But will the Mines Department not have that inquiry P Do they refuse to hold that inquiry P 
3714. Q. I cannot say. 1 have nothing to do with them, except that I hold a brief for them occasionally. 
Now, I would like to ask you a question or two on my own account, You were examined before tha 
Coroner and the Coroner's Jury, were you not? A. Yes. 
3715. Q. And you had a. lithograph such as that which is on the blackboard, now for your special use in 
marking indications which you wished to refer to ? A. Yes. 
3716. (The map which was used by Mr. May at the Coroner's inquest was produced and placed on the 
easel. It is Exhibit No, 9.) 3717, 
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3717. Q. Now, when you were before the Coroner and the Coroner's Jury, this lithograph was shown to 
you, and you were asked to locate the accident, were you not-the caine of the accident P l. Yes. 
371.8, Q. And you hesitated then to make any circle within which, in your opinion, the accident had 
originated? A. Yes. 
3719. Q. And then I began to ask you whether it was on this side,-that is to say, the west side of the 
shaft district,-did I not? A. Yes. 
3723. Q. And you said 'No," and I put a cross to exclude that? A. Yes. 
3721. (1. Then you excluded this 22-acre goaf? A. No. 0 Left. 
3722. Q. And then did you not exclude the whole of that square between No. 1 District, No. 0 Right of 
the shaft district, and the continuation of the daylight adit? A. Oh dear no I You asked me to draw 
a line. 
3723. Q. And you would not at first? A. And then you asked me to draw an area, and that is it. 
3724. Q. That suits my purpose; the area within which, in your opinion, it had taken place covered the 
whole of the workings and past workings on the east side of No. 1 Right, and the whole of the space 
included in the big cross on the west side of No. I Right P A. No. Nr. Bruce Smith asked me to take a 
pencil and mark on the plan, after asking " Did it occur there ?" ' Did it occur here P' be said would I 
take a pencil and mark the area in which I was satisfied it did occur. I took my pencil and ran it round 
here (pointing to the wavy red line on the plan). 
3725. Q. Did I not then ask you after that whether you would go any nearer than that? A. I declined 
to go any nearer, for the simple reason that if I had gone any nearer Mr. Bruce Smith would have wanted the 
circle reduced again and again. 
3720. Q. You declined to define it any more closely than by going round there and there (pointing to time 
map). Did I not point out to you that that included two-thirds of the mine ? A. Quite right. I did it 
purposely. 
3727. Q. That is the nearest you would go at the time ? A. Yes. 
3728. Q. And you submitted that, as some help to the Coroner and the Coroner's Jury in locating the 
place? A. My object was that I knew you would require it reduced then, and I had no intention to go 
any nearer then. 
3729. Q. But you will go a little nearer now? A. Oh, yes. I could then. 
3730. Q. You could then? Did you not say you could not? 
3731. His Honor.] Mr. May said he ''would not "; not be "could not." 
3732. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did you say this "I would not attempt to fix any particular spot where it 
was likely to have originated " P A. No, "I would not attempt." That is right. 
3733. Q. Was not that before I began to examine you? A. Have you a copy? 
3734. Q. Had you not given that answer before I began my cross-examination? A. Would you mind 
giving me a copy? 
3735. Q. Look at this. The cross-examination begins there (indicating). Did you not say that, before 
even my cross-examination began? A. Yes that I would not even attempt to fix any particular spot 
where it was likely to have originated. 
3730. Q. Did you not say in my cross-examination? A. Let me have a copy. 
3737. Q. You can have that copy for the present if you like. Did you not say in my cross- ex and nation, 
"I have not form€d a conclusion as to where it took place" (p. 43, Inquest) P A. I said, I have not 
formed a conclusion as to where it took place; in forming my conclusion, I have not obtained the whole 
of the data." 
3738. Q. That is another sentence. You see there is a semi-colon there. You said, " I have not formed 
a conclusion as to where it took place ?" A. Because I had not got the whole of the data. Really, I 
must have a copy of this evidence. 
3739. Q. Did you not say just now that you knew at the time-that you would not give an answer because 
you knew I would follow it up by wanting you to reduce your circle? 

(By His Honor's direction, a copy of the Corone)-'s Inquest depositions was handed to the witness 
temporarily.) 
3740. Q. Shut that up for a moment and give me the whole of your brain power. You admit that you 
said then that von had not formed a conclusion as to where it took place P A. Where is it P 
3741. Q. You read it just now? A. At the bottom of page 43, "1 have formed a conclusion as to the 
cause of this disaster. I have not formed a conclusion as to where it took place." 
3712. Q. That is quite clear. You had not formed then P A. A conclusion as to where it took place. 
3713. Q. Whst do you mean by telling the Commission just now that you could have one nearer, but, 
that you would not do so because you expected I should ask you to reduce your circle? A. At that time, 
yes. 
37431  Did you know then, or had you formed a conclusion as to where it had, taken place? A. I had 
formed a conclusion. 
3744 Q. As to where it took placa? A. Not a conclusion. I was waiting for further data. My mind 
was an open one. 
3745. Q.  You admit now that you had not formed a conclusion then? A. Oh, yes, I had. 
3740. His Honor.] Q. Do you mean to say that you had formed a sort of provisional conclusion? A. I 
really wished to know -- (Interrupted.) 
3747. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I wish you would answer His Honor's question. 
3748. His Honor.] Q. Is it a fact that you had formed a sort of provisional conclusion? A. A sort of 
provisional conclusion. Of course, my mind was an open one. 
3719. Q. Leaving your mind open P A. Yes. 
3753. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Well, it is not open now? A. Yes, if you give me some data. 
8751. Q. Will you give the Commission what fresh data have come to you since then, to enable you to 
tell us now that it took place in the neighbourhood of Morris' working place P A. The data, your 
honor, were these I was anxious to know- where these men between Stafford's going board and this 
heading - (Interru))ted ) 
3752. Q. Name it? A. Between Stafford's going bord and the end of No. 1, or Morris' place if you 
choose, I was anxious to know where these men should be found. 
3753. Q. Where they should be found? A. Where they should be found when they were dead. 
37.54. Q. Where they were found? A. Yes. And not having been found in this Stafford's Flat, I wanted 

on to know the conditis under which Stafford's Flat was, That is all. Ongoing into the mine I at once 
spotted 
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spotted this place between Morris' place across the face. I at once fastened upon that point ; and we 
went across here 40C) yards to the vest, and then back on to this goaf (the 15-i--acre goaf). I wanted to 
know the condition as much as possible of these places, and where the men were. Now-, I understand 
some of the men walked right back this way (indic-afinq). 
3755. Q. Have you ever been to those places since? A. No. 
3750. Q. Had not you paid that visit to the mine which you are now describing to the Commission before 
you gave your evidence, which I have been pointing out to you P A. Yes. 
3757. Q. Now, will you tell the Commission what fresh data have you obtained since you gave that 
evidence? A. I have obtained that these men were back out of their places. 
3755. Q. Where dd s-ou obtain that? A. From the published evidence. I was in the Court and heard it. 
3759. Q. Before yougave your own evidence or after? A. Oh, no, after. After I gave my evidence. 
3700. Q. Then the position of \vlat men has enabled you to locate the cause? A. From this point-
(In terrup ted). 
3701. Q. Name the men? A. Oh, you do not supply me with a copy-I ought to have had a plan with 
the names. I would like to have had that. 
3702. Q. You cannot go beyond that-the position of some men? A. That these men were found close 
to their working place. 
3703. His honor.] Q. Which men? A. Morris and son, Tost and son, Aitken and son ; you see from 
that goaf here (indicaUnq the 17-perches goof). These men could not get away. 
3701. Mr. Wade.] Q. What men could not get away? A. Aitken and son, and Tost. I had no plan at 
the time to mark my observations. 
3795. Mr. Ritchie] Tost and Bunn. 
3790. .Mi-. Bruce South.] Can you tell me who gave evidence of these facts P Name the people who 
gave evidence of these facts which supplied you with this additional data? A. Johnny Morrison-I am 
just speaking from memory-and Evans. The rescue party : I do not know who they were. 
3767. Q. Now, sir, had not the whole of those given their evidence before you gave your evidence? A. I 
could not say. 
3708. Q. Did not you tell the Commission just now that you had not sufficient data because you had not 
at that time heard where these men were found P A. Exactly. 
3709. Q. Now, sir, will you swear that the whole of that evidence had not been given in your own presence 
at the time you gave your evidence P A. .1 will swear that Johnny Morrison had given his evidence before 
I came into the witness-box. 
3770. Q. And had lie not given evidence of the position of all these men? A. Possibly, but I was not 
here then. 
3771. 9. had not Evans given his evidence before you did? A. Possibly. 
3772. 9. Did you not read their evidence in the paper before you gave your evidence? A. That is possible. 
3773. Q. Then 1 may take it, for the information of the Conimission, that you may have known of those 
facts from readingthc report of these witnesses' evidence before you told mc that you had not formed 
a conclusion P A. That I had formed a conclusion. 
3774. Q. Therefore if you had read their evidence before you gave yours-(Tnfe)-rupte(j.)? A. If I had. 
3775. Q. If you had read it, then their evidence is not the additional data P A. It may be somebody else. 
3770. Q. Only you could not name them, could you? You could not name anybody else? A. No 
3777. Q. So that you really do not know whether you have had any additional data since you gave your 
evidence before the Coroner? A. Yes, I have. 
3778. 9. And you cannot name the nature of the evidnce which constitutes the additional data P A. Oh, 
Yes. 
3779. 9. What is it? A. The nature of the evidence was that, on my visit to the mine and when I gave 
evidence, I knew the conditions-(Interruip/eu/). 
37S0. Q. I am not asking you what you knew-1 am asking you what you ascertained afterwards ? J. I 
am going to say what I ascertained afterwards. I will tell you what I knew then and what I found out 
afterwards. 1 knew the condition of these places, the condition from the 17-perches goaf, from Morris' 
place along the heading past the 17-perches goaf for about 400 yards : but I wanted to know the 
conditions in which the men were found, and the horses that were connected with them between the 
point I had penetrated to and Stafford's going bard. 

Examination by Mr. Lysaght 

3781. Q. Did you observe whether there were any safety-lamps available on the day of the disaster 
at Kembla? A. Safety-lamps P 
3782. Q. To go into the mine? A. I got hold of one. I got one. I think it belonged to somebody else 
though : I think I ahmcst stole it. 
3783. 9. Was there a sufficient supply of safety-lamps for rescue purposes P A I did not observe that. 
3784. 9. Did you experience any difficulty in getting a lamp P A. 1 0ot a lamp, but it burnt very badly: I 
can tell you that much. 
3785. Q. Do von know whether there was any difficulty in getting safety-lamps P A. I heard the men 
complain about the difficulty ; but I could not say of my own knowledge. 
3780. 9. I want you to show on that plan the goaves that -the intake air passed. I want you to hook 
carefully at it, so that it can go down on the depositions ; the goat-es that the intake air passed P A. The 
intake air passes the east edge of the 35-acre goaf; it pascs the north-east corner of the 35-acre goaf. 
The intake air also passes time south end of the 35-acre goat. Is this ventilating current right on this plan? 
3787. AIr. Bruce S'ini/hu.] Q. Cannot you remember which way the air went P (By direction of His 
hIonoi, a pious, on schick the intake air wrs tinted blue and the re/uris air was tinted Veil, was sow to the 
wi/mess.) 

um 
- 

3788. His Honor (to Air. iys-ughit). This is marked on the.e plan; and you can ask Mr. May his opinion, 
founded upon this information. 
3789. Mr. Lysaqhit.] 9. Do you know whether the eastern side of that 35-acre goaf was securely bricked 
off, or were there any entrances into the eastern side? A. I never travelled along this cross-cut heading 
rope road. I could not say. 

3790. 
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3790. Q. When you said that the position of the goaf was such that, had CH4  been one of the goaf gases, 
some of the workmen would have been burnt as they passed for years along the travelling road at the 
edge of the goaf with naked lights, where did you mean? A. I was referring to this cross-cut heading 
rope road. I was referring to every place in the mine where the intake air went past the goaf edge. 
3791. Q. But did you know where there were any outlets for gas anywhere there? A. Oh, it is not 
a customary thing, stopping off a goaf. 
3702. Q. No; but did you know whether there was any outlet there? A. No; I do not know it. My 
idea was that the goaf would be quite open, as it is shown here (on the plan), and that the travelling 
road would pass the edge of the goaf with the intake air. 
3703. Q. But did you know of any place where it was open? A. Yes. 
3794. Q. That is what I want to know? A. I had not a plan of the mice. 
3705. Q. But show tue there? A. As we came down here we went into the goaf from the travelling road 
just a short distance, and we found some gas there (4th Right). It was probably black damp: at least 
it was an extinctive gas, anyhow. 
3700. Q. Is that the place you mean? I want to know where you meant that the positions of the goaves 
were such that had persons passed they would have been burnt ;-where would they have been burnt in 
passing P A. Passing this li.acre goaf. It was quite open ; and men travelling to and fro there, if 
there had been any fire-damp in that goaf, must have caught it some time. 
3707. Q. Did you know of any entrance to this goaf, with the exception of the 4th Right, where men 
might have got gas? Down here? (Cross-cut heading Hope Road.) 
3798. His Honor.] Mr. May said he never went down that side. 
3700. Mr. Lysaglit.] Q. Did you mean that the only two places where men could have been burnt were 
the 3rd Right and the 4th Right, in the 35-acre goaf? A. Oh, dear, no. 
3300. liis Honor.] Mr. May has already said that he assumes-especially when he looks at the plan, and 
because it is the practice, that these outlets from the goaf were open on the east side, the north side, as 
well as on the west side-that they were open where they appear on the plan. 
3S01. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Then you mean that in each of these places where they appear open men might 
have been burnt? A. Exactly ; if fire-damp was present in the goaf. 
3802. Q. And, in your opinion, the system of a[lowing the intake to pass a waste working is bad 
ventilation? A. It is not properly ventilated; no. 
3803. Q. Now, concerning these slack stoppings ;-did you observe whether any of the stoppings had 
crumbled awaythat had been made of slack A. I noticed some were blown out, and I just examined 
them. Slack stoppings are it very bad practice; and they are comrni in the district. 
3804. Q. How should the stoppings be sealed off? A. With brickwork or good building stone. It is a 
common thing to lose 50 and 00 per cent. of the air passing into a mine through the defective stoppings 
built in this fashion. 
3805. Mr. Wade.] Q. You are speaking now of the ordinary stoppings? A. Of the slack stoppings 
particularly. 
3805*. AIi. Lysagltt.] Q. Those were the stoppings you observed in Kembla? A. I observed somewhere 
there. 
3800. Q. You said the furnace had reached the point of inadequacy? A. Yes. 
3807. Q. In what way? A. That the mine was an extensive one. A furnace that might do for a mine in 
its earlier stages soon arrives at a point where it is inadeqaate to produce the quantity of air required; 
but my great objection to that furnace was its fluctuation, owing to the wind and atmospheric temperature. 
380S. -Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did you ever go to the-furnace? A. No. 
3800. Q. Did you ever see the furnace in your lire? A. No. 
3810. Llfr. Wcu?e.] Q. Have you seen a photograph of it? A. I have not seen a photograph of it. 
3811. His Honor.] I meant to ask Mr. May that, because that seems to be an important qualification of 
his evidence. 
3S12. Mr. Lysaqlmt.] Q. Did you take the measurement of the air when you were examining? A. No. 
381.3. His Honor.] Q. I understand you do not know the measurements even of the furnace? A. No. 
3814. Q. Or the size of the shaft? A. Twelve feet, I think. 
3815. Mr. Wiule.] Q. You do not know the height of the shaft? A. 420 feet, I believe. 
3810. AIr. Bruce Smith.] That is the extent of your knowledge. 
3817. Mr. Lqsaqlmt.] Q. \Vhat was the condition of the air when you were examining about Aitken's 
place? A. Oh, the condition of the air after an explosion is not any,  criterion at all. 
3818. Q. No, no ; what was the condition of the air? A. It was very warm. 
3810. Q. Can you give me the name of any Manager who improperly obtained a certificate of service? 
A. Stephen Powell. 
3820. Q. What colliery? A. At New Lambton. 
3S21. Q. When ? A. Oh, since the passing of the Mines Act ; I could not tell you, I am sure. 
3822. Q. Is he a Mining Manager now? A. I do not know. I know he has got a first-class certificate of 
service. 
3823. Q. Where is he now? A. lIe is in New South Wales. 
3824. Q. Do you know where? A. No. 
3825. Q. Do you know of anybody else? A. Yes, I know of anothr instance; but these are no worse, 
perhaps, than others. 
3826. Q. But who is he? A. I could not tell you. 
3827. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. But of whom are you speaking? A. It was two glaring instances whieh 
occurred in Newcastle while I was there. I will supply you with the names afterwards. 
3828. Mr. Lysaq/mt.] Q. I want to know the names? A. I have given you one name; and I will give you 
the other when I get. it. 
3829. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. A glaring case? A. Yes. 
3830. Mr. Lysa.qht.] Q. I want to get the names down ? A. I will give you the names. I will send 
them to the Court. 
3831. Q. Do you know of any Manager in this district who obtained a certificate of service improperly in 
your opinion? A. I have no knowledge of the circumstances. 
3832. Q. Do you know of any under-manager in this district who obtained a certificate of service 
improper1y? A. I have no knowledge of the circumstances. 3S33. 
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333. Q. Concerning this black list recommendation, penalising, boycotting, and black-listing (Recom. 
No. 19) ;-with the exception of the Bailey case, do you know of your own knowledge of a black list 
being kept at a colliery? 
3831. 2IL'. Wade.] I object to this question. The clear imputation is that there was a black list kept in 
Bailey's case. 
3835. )IL'. Lysaqlii.] Q. Leaving Bailey's case out of consideration altogether, do you know of a black-list 
being kept at any colliery in Now South Wales at the present time? A, Not in the least. They would 
have more sense than to let me know. 
3836. Q. I am not talking about their sense now ;-do you know of it? A. I know nothing of it. 
3837. Q. " Inspectors to be vested with absolute powers to order use of safety-lamps," (Recom. No. 2). 
In your opinion should the Inspectors have that absolute power? A. Most certainly not. 
3838. Q. Then upon whom could yoa place that absolute power to order the use of safety-lamps P A. I 
would place that power in the hands of a Board which I would suggest for investigating mining 
accidents. 
3839. Mr. Bruce Smitls.] Q. Would you allow lawyers to be represented? A. The Chairman should be a 
District Court Judge, or other gentleman possessing legal qualifications. 
3810. .Afr. Lysaqht.] Q. Then, do I understand that before you would ordt r safety-lamps to be used in a 
pit, the necessity of them would have to be investigated by this Court that you suggest? A. Safety-
lamps are often put into mines improperly, when the true remedy is to give them ventilation. 
3811. Q. Then do I understand that before there would be a power to order the use of safety-lamps in a 
pit the necessity of them would have to be investigated by this Board that you sugg 
they would then have to understand the ventilation conditions of the mine before th

est? A. Yes ; and 
ey gave that order. 

3812. Q. Then, in the meantime, while the Board were investigating, what would become of the safety of 
the mine ? A. If you had a competent Manager at the mine, be Would look after the safety of the men. 
3813. Q. If a sudden development took place in a mine, showing the presence of gas, who should have 
the power to order safety-lamps at once in that mine ? A. The Inspector has power to withdraw the men 
in case of danger. 
3811. Q. That is not ,in answer to my question ; --who should have power to order the safety-lamps in 
that mine ? A. If safety-lamps were requisite, then the Inspector and the Manager would put them there 
in the meantime. 
3513. Q. Well, do you say the Inspector should have that power ? A. The Inspector should not. The 
Inspector is not the Manager of the mine and you ac nmkiimg the Inspector manage too much of the 
mine. 
3846. Q. Well, do you say that tl1e 'Manager only should have the power to order the immediate intro-
duction of safety-lamps? A. Certainly not. TIme Manager, if be is held responsible for every detail of 
the management in his mine, instt ad of slipping it on to somebody else-if he is held responsible, and he 
is a competent Manager-if the conditions are not good enough lie will soon stop that district. 
3517. Q. here is a recommendation th:4 inspectors be ested with powers to order the introduction of 
safety-lamps. You say that a Board should investigate and order them ;-I want to know, pending the 
investigation by this Board, who is going to have the power to order them and enforce them ? A. The 
manager is responsible. 
3848. Q. I know be is ;-I want to know who is to have the power to order them? Who is to have the 
power to enforce the use of the safety-lamps pending this investigation by your Board? A. The Inspector 
now has the power. 
3849. Q. Never mind who has it now ;-I want to know who should have the absolute power to order the 
use of safety-lamps pending the investigation by the Board? A. lie has the power now. 
3830. Q. In your opinion, should he have it? A. TIc has it now. 
3851. His Honor.] Q. Should that continue? 
3852. ALP. Lysaqlmt.] Q. Should that continne? A. At present the Inspector has the power to order the 
use of safety-lamps in the mine ; and the Manager has the power to say, "You can jump up." 
3853. Q. Should be have the power to order the use of safety-lamps and enforce it ? A. No. 
3851. Q. Never mind about the power which the Inspectors have now. I want to know, pending the 
investigation by this Board, who should have the power to order safety-lamps, and put in force that 
order? A. Now, we will not get any nearer : shall I explain the position? 
3855. Q. Please tell me who? A. You will not get any nearer if you talk for half-an-hour. We have the 
English Act to guide us; and I will explain to you ifyou choose. If you do not choose you can go on. 
3856. Q. Who should have the power to order, pending the investigation? A. I tell you that the Inspector on 
has power to act. 
3857. Q. Is it right for him to have that power? Then, if be should not, who should? A. The Inspector 
now has power to order safety-lamps; and the Manager has power to say, "I am not going to put 
safety-lamps in." 
3858. Q. Then who should have the power to enforce their being put in? A. The Court I refer to. 
3859. Q. But pending the investigation by that Court ? A The Manager is held responsible for the 
condition of the mine. 
3860. Q. But I want to know -['lnierrupm'ed.] A. O-o on, my friend. 
3861. Q. Would you have no power in existence to compel their introduction, pending the investigation by 
the Court P A. I would not have power given to an Inspector to say to a Manager " You must do this; 
and you must do the other." The English Act recognises this, that the Manager is responsible, not the 
Inspector; and the Inspector, if any conditions are unsafe, draws the attention of the Manager to them 
and if the Manager refuses to alter it, he then takes action under the arbitration clauses. And you cannot 
alter it. 
3802. Q. That being so, do you say that no person should have the power to enforce the use of safety-
lamps pending the investigation by your Board? A. Oh, well, you can get no further with me. 
3803. ALe. Lqsaqht.] Your honor will see that this is a very logical question. 
3864. His honor.] Mr. May seems to oh1eet to answer that (jucst ion. You have put it a great many 
times in diflerent ways. 
3805. Q. Cannot you answer that, Mr. May? What would you suggest in that case? A. I object, Your 
Worslup, to any Inspector going to a mine - (Interrupted). 

16825 26-Z 3866. 



	

	

178 
Witness-J. May, 14 January, 103. 

3866. Q. Never mind about that. In case an Inspector considers that he has discovered a condition of 
things which has suddenly arisen, and is such that safety_lamps should at once be used, what would you 
suggest as to the provisionaluse of safety_lamps pending an investigation by the Court P What would 
you propose, as to whether they ought to be provided or not P A. E±actly the provision that is now in 
the English Act, and the present Act. 
3867. Q. \Vhat is that? A. That the Inspector can order the use of safety-lamps; and the Inspector can 
then appeal to the Arbitration Clauses of the Act ; but the Manager is held responsible for the safety of 
the men pending that inquiry. 
3S672'-. Mr. Robertson.] Would you be surprised to learn that be cannot take the case to arbitration? 
A. The Inspector cannot? 
3868. Q. Yes. A. I thought we had the same clause as the English Act. 
3869. Q. We have? A. I can give you an illustration. 
3869f. AIr. Robertson.] ut lie cannot take sitcit a case to arbitration. 
3870. lIfe. Bruce Smith.] Q. Perhaps you can find it for the Commission; I cannot. 
3871. Mr. Lgsuqht.] There is nothing here about arbitration at all in the Act in the way you suggest. 
3872. AIr. Bruce S,ii/th.] Q. Diii YOU not say that you were under the impression that the Act enabled the 
Inspector to order, the Manager to object, and the issue to be sent to arbitration? A. But if lie did not 
go to arbitration, and any accident occurred, then the Manager would be distinctly responsible. 
3873. Q. You are under the impression that that is in the Act? A. Yes. That is the spirit of the English 
Act, I am sure. 
3874. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. But we have not got the English Act in force here exactly? A. Your Honor, 
this is the clause I refer to. 
3875. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Your honor might look at section 20 of the Coal Mines Regulation Act, No. 12 
Vietaria. 22 September, 1806. 
3876. Mr. Lysaqif.] Q. What I ain putting to von is this : pending, if you like, the arbitration, who is to 
have the power to order the use of safeties P Suppose there is itnmnediate danger there P A. Now, would 
you mind my reading the English Act, and also the other P 
3877. Ris Honor.] No, just answer the question. 
3878. Witness.] Oh, I could not get any further with the question at all. 
3879. AIr. Lqsoq/it.1 (7. Assuming the Arbitration Court would take a month to determine the auestion, 
who, in that interval, should have the absolute power to order the use of safety_lamps and enforce that 
order? A. You could not give anybody power. 
3880. Q. You would not give anybody power? A. No. The Manager should be held distinctly 
responsible. The moment you touch his responsibility you undermine the whole business. 
3881. ills Honor.] Q. You think that the best policy is that, if the Inspector should call attention to the 
necessity for using safety_lamps, the Manager shall then have the responsibility cast upon him for miny 
consequences that may follow from his neglectt to use them P A. Exactly. "if the owner, agent, or 
Manager of the mine objects to remedy the mattepr complained of in the notice, lie may send his objection 
in writing, stating the grounds thereof, to the Minister ; and thereupon the matter shall be determined by 
arbitration in manner provided by this Act." (C. M. R. Act, section 20, subsection 2.) 
3882. Mr. Robertson.] You must take that in connection with section 20. You-will find that section 20 
and its subsections refer to any matters which are not specially provided against by any express provision 
of the Act or any special rule. Lamps are specifically provided-for in the Act; and there is no power to 
take such a question as that to arbitration. 
3883. Mr. Lysaq/it.] Q. Do not you see that safety-lamps are provided for by, an express provition by 
General Rule 8, and therefore that arbitration clause will not apply P 
3884. His Honor.] It is not necessary to cross-examine Mr. May upon this. It is not for him to say 
what the proper construction of the Act is. It is only for him to say what lie thinks would be, as a 
matter of expediency, the best provision to have in a future Act. 
3885. AIr. Lgsoght.] (7. You say you would give no one that power pending the .invcsfigation? 
A. Pending the investigation. 
3886. Q. Then would not that leave open a very big source of danger of an explosion pending the 
investigation? A. It would be well to have some Court which would deal promptly with the matter; 
and such a Court I have suggested. 
3887. Q. And pending that prompt dealing, the danger would remain? A. Yes. 
3888. His Honor.] (7. Mr. May would suggest, pertmaps, that the Court should have power to make some 
such order pending the result of the arbitration P A. That is his Honor's suggestion. 
3S89. Air. Lysaqht.] (). Do you adopt that P A. Yes. 
3800. (7. That that Court should have some power to make a provisional order? A. Yes. 
3891. Mr. Bruce Suit/i.] Q. In the nature of an interim ml unction P 
3892. His Honor.] Yes, in the nature of an interim injunction. 
3893. TVifoess.1 Managers ought to be responsible for the management of every detail of the mine. 
3891. Mr. Ly.saght.] Q. We are not dealing with that at present ; now (Recommendation No. 4, "Waste 
workings to be absolutely sealed off, and surrounded by return airways, such return airways not to come 
in contact with intake " ;-what is your view of that recommendation? A. The return air coming in 
contact with the intake P 
3895. Q. Yes;-that the waste workings should be surrounded by return airways P A. I do not quite see 
the force of that suggestion. 
3890. His Honor.] Mr. May does not appear to understand that, and there is one part of it that the 
Commission have not yet fathomed. How the intake and return air can come in contact with one another 
is a mystery which the Commission has not yet solved. 
3897. Mr. ilmjsoqht.] I will leave that. 
3898. Q. "All places except prospecting drives to have cut-throughs not more titan 30 yards apart 
(Recommendation No. 5) ;-what do you say to that P A. I have already stated these long pillars to be 
a serious source of danger : but von must make a distinction between a mine which has a large quantity 
of air and a mine where it is just scrub and go-where it is on the verge of being reversed. You must 
make a distinction there. 
3809. His Honor.] Q. But, Mr. May. I thought von contended all along that such a condition as what 
you have just now suggested never ought to exist at all? A. It ought not to exist. 3S99. 
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3S99h Q. That is defective ventilation ;--but supposing that the initial ventilation is such as it should be? 
3900. Mr. Lysaqht.) Q. What would be the proper distance for the eut-throughs in such a case as that? 

ic A. Where the ventilation of the mine is effective, the you can carry air a considerable distance : and it 
is done in practice. 
3901. Q. 1 do not know what you call a considerable distance ;-the question I put to you is : what, in 
your opinion, would be a proper distance for cut-throughs, assuming the ventilation initially was 
adequate? A. I have always found that 33 yards was a very fair distance for cut-throughs. 
3902. Q. In your opinion, would cut-thronghs at 30 yards in any way weaken the roof? A. The object 
of the long pillar is to save yard-work-to save the price of the brattice. 
3903. Q. No. 0, " Inspection with locked safety-lamp in all cases ' ;-you are aware of the exception that 
they need not inspect every morning where gas has not been found in the previous twelve months? 
3901. His honor.] Oh, well, that is accepted. 
3905. A. Pardon me you say 'locked safety-lamp." You examine those two headings-No. 1 main and 
back heading-as a deputy. You go into No. 1 heading to examine the place. If workmen are coming 
there with naked lights, a proper system of inspection is that the deputy should screw his lamp bottom 
off and burn his mark on there to show there has been an inspection with a naked light. Then I presume 
lie would lock his safety-lamp and go into the back heading, and then unscrew his lamp off to make an 
inspection. Now, you see the absurdity of that position. 
3900. AIr, Bruce S,nitlm.1 Q. Is this what you say is done, or should be done P 
3907. Mr. Lyseqlmf.] Q. Is this what you say is done, or should be done P A. The method that we 
adopt in examining places (Interrupted). 
390. (7. Do you know whether that is done, that you have said P A. Oh, no. 
3909. (7. Do you say it should be done? A. If a lamp has to be locked, do you not see that in every 
place a man must unlock his lamp. 
3910. Q. Do you say it should be done? A. I only say that under a proper system of inspection you 
would not ask the deputy to lock his lamp to go from that place to there (indicating on the map the No. 1 
main heading and the Ho. 1 hoc/c heading). 
3911. Q. 1 ask you if it is right for him to lock his safety-lamp? A. It is perfectly right for his lamp to 
be locked if lie is making an inspection for safety-lamps but if lie is making an inspection for naked 
lights it is absurd for hitn to lock his lamp. 
3912. Q. " Monthly examination and report by deputies and District Inspector with hydrogen flame 
(Recommendation No. 7). Do you support that recommendation P A. No. 
3913. Q: Why P A. Because you are putting it upon the District Inspector and the workmen's Inspector; 
which is an incompetent inspeetion-(Ioterrmtpteo?). 
3911.. (7. 1 said deputies and the district inspector A. ANTO are mixing them. 
3915. (7. 1 (10 not mean the two at the same time, but an inspection by each at different times P A. The 
under-manager should make the inspection i-nth the imydroeu flame. 
3016. Q. Do von say lie should make P once a in )nth ? A. lie should make it oftener than that. As 
frequently as lie mv, it he is going to tire shots in a place wI-ere there is coal-dust. 
3917. Q. But I say a general inspection, to enable him to determine the safety of the whole mine P A. It 
would be a very desicable thing to have a monthly inspcction with a hydrogen flame under those 
Coflditons. 
3918. Q. And you would have that done by the deputies and District inspector? A. By the Manager and 
the under-manager ; but as to the district cheek-inspection it should be abolished. 
3)19. Q. Not the check inspection at all ; but by the Government Inspector? A. He ought to know the 
condition of evcr- mine vift respect to the existence of ,,is. 
3920. Q. Ought the Government I uspector to examine the condition of every mine onc.e a month with the 
hydrogen tl.mmneP A . Yes, certainly. 
3021. (7. " All doors ereetel so as to close and remain closed of own motion " (Recommendation No. 9). 
What do you say to that ? A. it is a co:nmou pit practice for all doors to fall to of themselves. That is, 
to fall naturally. 
3022. Q. Could that be done P A. A. competent Manager will see that it is done. It argues incom- 
petency (Li ferrup fed). 
3923. (7. I.)o you think it siould be done? A. Yes. It is remarbable to hear it stated. It is a self- 
evident truth. 
3924. Q. " Travelling and haulage roads and other places necessary to be properly watered " (R.ecom- 
nicndation No. 13) P A. Yes, that is a very sensible provision. 
3925. Q. " Managers compelled to give mere personal time and attention to management of colliery" 
(Recommendation No. 11) PA. I think it is very wrong for the Manager or the inspectors to hold the 
workmen responsible for Immanaging a mine ; very wrong. 
3020. (7. '' $ize of manholes enlarged " (Recommendation No. 10). They are 3 x 4 x 6 now. 
3927. .lhIr. flade.] I object to th t. It is not in the evidence at all, 
3928. AIr. Lysaqht.] I am telling i\Ir. May now. 
3929. Q. Is the size of a manhole 3 a 4 a 0 an adequate size? A. It is a common thing to make your 
refuge hole 6 feet square and 0 feet from the rails. 
39:30. dIr. Wade.] Q. That vaul1 be 3 feet deep P A. It all depends on where the road is. 
3931. Mr. Lijsaght.] (7. "Instruction to employees regularly on mea ns of escape " (Recommendation 
No. 18). 
Whoni would you have give the men this instruction P A. (.)h, the deputy should once a month travel 
out by the return airway or other travelling way, to familiarise the men with it. That is a common 
1ra.etiee in many mines. 
3932. Q. ' Safety_lamps not to be unlocked for shot flrin " (Recommendation No. 20) P A. I am almost 
astounded to hear of safety-lamps being opened. it is astoumiding to me. 
39:33, Q. For that purleose P A. Yes. I h:mve never heard of ut until coming out here where explosions 
have been. I have heard of explosiomis where that praetice was frequently in ol)eralon. 
3931. Q. And can any estimate be made of the danger that arises from such a prictice P A. It is an evidence 
of very serious mismnanigduiemit, and it is certainly to meaemnarkable thing that lamps should be opened 
to light shots. 
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Cross-examined by Mr. Wade : 
3935. Q. Under no conditions is it safe, do you say, to open a safety-lamp to fire a shot? I will put it 
this way: do you say that it is unsafe under any conditions to open a lamp to fire a shot? A. It is not 
a question of safety; but I have never heard tell of it. 
3930. Q. Do you say it is unsafe under any conditions to open a safety-lamp for the purpose of firing a 
shot ? A. I simply say it is a very wrong practice. 
3937. Q. "Yes" or "No," or " I do not know," will do for me? A. I will give you conditions where it 
might be safe. 
3938. Q. Will you answer my question? A. No. Excuse me: I have no reply to it. I will only have 
to say " Yes," " No," or " I do not know." 
3939. Q. What are you going to say? A. Oh, I know; and you will not allow me to say. 
3940. Q. Now, please say yes or no. It is either safe or it is not safe? A. It may be safe with one 
explosive, and not with another. It is perfectly well known. 
3941. Q. Then you would not say it is unsafe under any conditions? A. I am not going to say it is 
unsafe under any conditions. 
3942. Q. Will you say under some conditions it is safe-.----[Interi-upted] ? A. Under no-[Interrupfed]. 
3943. Q. Listen to the question, please. Will you say under some conditions it is safe to open a safety-
lamp for the purpose of firing a shot? A. if you had a-[Jnterrupted. 
3944. Q. Is that so, yes or no? A. Yes, if we had it in a quarry outside here. 
3945. Q. Now, we come to Kembla: do you say it is unsafe under any conditions to unlock a safety-lamp 
to fire a shot in Mount Kembla? A. It is unsafe under any conditions. It is a wrong practice. 
3940. Q. What is the risk you run in lighting a shot with an open safety-lamp? A. You ought to be, 
and, as a rule, very likely you would be, fined. 
3947. Q. Never mind the fine: what is the risk? A. The risk is that you are inside a caution-board, 
where no naked lights are used. 
3948. Q. What is the risk to the man's bodily health or his life? A. The risk is that it is establishing a 
system which is wrong. 
3949. Q. I ask you again what is the risk to a man's bodily health or his life : and I will go on a dozen 
times until I get an answer. You answer that question. Can you answer it A. I can only say that it 
is a wrong practice, that is all. 
3950. Q. Can you answer that question? Tell me what the risk is? A. The practice is wrong. 
3951. Q. Will you kindly answer,mv question? Can you tell me what the risk is? A. The risk is that 
you show workmen that you have an open light at a point where an open light ought not to be. 
39.52. Q. Then what is the risk you run? A. You are discarding proper mining practice. 
3953. Q. What do you expect to follow? A. You expect the men to say, "The deputy opens his light; 
why should not I open mine ?" 
3954. Q. What do you expect to follow then? A. An explosion. 
3955. Q. Then, supposing the workman observes the rule and does not open his lamp when he is told not 
to, I ask you again what is the risk of firing a shot with a naked light? A. That is the only matter that 
I have to say, that you can go into the place ancl open your light and light a shct; but, under Managers 
that understand these matters, you would not do that a second time. 
3,956. Q. I will suppose the i\lanager is absolutely incompetent, that lie is a fool. I ask you what is the 
risk a man runs, say, in Mount Kembla, if the lamp is opened for the purpose of firing a shot? A. That 
you could go into the mine and open the lamp and light the shot. 
3957. Q. What would you expect to follow? A. It is just possible that no explosion may follow; but 
it is a wrong practice. 
3958. Q. Supposing you know there is no gas? A. Very well. 
3958k. Q. Supposing you know the place is not dry and dusty? A. Yes. 
3959. What is the risk then ? A. The risk is that you have the caution-board up beside you. The risk 
is that you will be fined or be sent to gaol. 
3900. Q. But tell me the risk to the miner, to his bodily health? A. He can open it, I admit. You can 
go into Helensburgh and open it if you like. 
fi00I.. Q. Can you tell me of any bodily risk he incurs? A. The risk is that it is a wrong practice, a 
dangerous practice, and utterly opposed to all the proper practice of mining. 
3962. Q. Are not the elements of risk the possible presence of coal-dust and fire-damp? A. There may 
be none. 
3963. Q. There may be none at all? A. But that does not say it is the practice. 
3904. Q. I have not said a word about practice. I am talking about danger to a man's life. 
3905. His Honor.l Q. You mean physical danger, quite apart from the question of demoralisation? 
3900. 11i1ness.] Assuming there is no gas there, then there is no immediate danger if you fire with 
powder particularly; but, then, where you use safety-lamps, the rule is that you fire with some of the 
higher explosives. And you can apply the same principle to the breach of every rule connected with 
mining as you do here; because it is a wroig practice. 
3967. Q. I understand you to say that there may be no immediate risk ; but you say there is a resultant 
risk in allowing practically the breach of a very wholesome rule? A. Yes, A caution-board is placed at 
a certain point, stating that no naked light is allowed beyond that point; and he opens his light where he 
knows that no naked lights are allowed. 
3968. Mr. Wade.1 Q. What man P A. The deputy. 
3969. Q.  Do you know of any provision in the Act about it? A. It is not in the English Act. It is not 
in this. 
3970. Q. What do you mean by "this "P Do you mean the present Coal Mines Regulation Act? A. 
Yes. 
3971. Q. That prohibits a safety-lamp being unlocked under any conditions? A. On the inbye side of 
the caution-board. 
3972. Q. Do you say it prohibits a safety-lamp being unlocked in a mine under any conditions? A. The 
IRegulations say that no safety-lamps shall be unlocked inside a caution-board. 
3973. Q. Supposing safety-lamps are used throughout a mine, you do not have a caution-board then? 
A. Yes. 
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3973k. Q. Where is it? A. At the mouth. You have a caution-board, No naked lights or matches, or 
pipes, allowed beyond this point." 
3974. Q. Do you know whether the present Act deals with that matter of allowing naked lights for shot 
firing? A. I could not say. 
3975. Q. Now, coming to the explosion, has the information you have gathered since you gave evidence 
caused you to alter your opinion ? A. No. 
3976. Q. Only to confirm it? A. My opinion was then in abeyance. I wanted more light. 
3977. Q. But, in your own mind, you had flied upon a place for the start of the explosion? A. In my 
own mind. 
3978. Q. Yes or no, please ? A. Yes. 
3979. Q. But you did not choose to tell the Court or the Jury, or anybody else, what that precise spot 
was? A. What my conclusion was? 
3980. Q. What the precise spot was? A. It was not a precise spot. I had two. I had three. Hero is 
one; there is one (pointing to the map). 
3981. Q. That is one spot between No. 1 Right and No. 0 Shaft District ? A. Yes. 
3982. Q. Was there more than one spot between No. 1 Right and No. 0 Shaft District? A. That in any 
bord between No. 1 and Stafford's going bord there were all the conditions of an explosion. 
3083. Q. I am not talking about that. You have told us that at the Coroner's Inquest you had fixed in 
your mind upon the spot where the accident occurred ? A. One spot-I have got three, I tell you. 
3984. Q. Did you say to me just now you had fixed upon one spot in your own mind at the Coroner's 
Inquest, or at that time, at which the explosion was initiated? A. What do you mean by one spot? I do 
not understand what you ineau. I would call No. 1 heading one spot; and I would call this another spot. 
That is two spots. And that goaf was in my mind too. These are spots. 
3985. His Honor.] Q. But the most probable place for the explosion-? A. The most probable source of 
the explosion-when looking at the plan in the office-the most probable point of the explosion to me 
was where Morris and son worked. After examining that, I had noted the condition of this i-acre goaf 
and these two places. I had suspended my judgment to get information about that goaf and those places 
(i-acre goaf and Stafford's going bord). 
3980. .Me. Wicde.] Q. Now, is this correct, that you have told us that you knew of three likely places 
between No. 1 Right and thy No. U shaft heading? A. I said there were a dozen, in my evidence. 
3987. Q. Do you say, now, that at the Coroner's Inquest you had fixed upon at least three places between 

o. 1 Right and No. 0 shaft heading where the explosion might have taken place? A. Might have thken 
place then : my mind inclined towards these three places. 
3988. Q. ]nclincd towards those three? A. Yes. 
3989. Q. Did you have an opinion at the time you give evidence at the Coroner's Court that Morris' 
place, to the right of No. 1 heading, was the most likely place;-yes or no to that? A. I will not say 
yes or no. 
3990. Q. Then say you cannot? A. My mind was in suspension waiting for further evidence. 
3991. Q. Had you in your mind at the time of giving evidence at the Coroner's Court Morris' place or 
Morris' light as being a likely point for the explosion to start from ? A. Most certainly I had it as a 
likely spot. 
3992. Q. Now, you are quite clear about that? A. Quite clear of that. 
3993. Q. And you would not call that between No. I heading and No. U shaft heading? A. No, not that. 
3994. Q. Now, did you not swear at the Coroner's Court that the conclusion you hadcoine to was, "I have 
formed the conclusion that the disaster occurr.d between No. 1 Right and No. 0 shaft heading" ? A. 
Quite right. 
3995. Then you had excluded at that time, evidently, Morris' place? A. I took the last man - 
(In terrup fed). 
3990. Q. Now, listen to me,-you told me a. minute ago that Morris' place would not be between No. 1 
Right and No. 6. shaft heading? A. Did I? [At Mr. Wade's request the shorthand writer read over the 
evidence on this point.] 
3997. Q. Now, do you want to alter that? A. I want to alter that to this extent, that, when entering time 
mine, I took from the last man who was killed in No. 1 Right to the last man I knew had escaped to the 
right of No. 6. I took that area between the face and this 15-acre goaf as being the likely spot to fasten 
my attention on. 
3998. Q. Very interesting, but not an answer to my question-do you want to alter the statement you 
made just now, when you said that Morris' place is not between No. 1 Right and No. 6 shaft heading? 
A. Oh, certainly, it must be altered, because it is between No. I Right and No. 6 shaft heading. 
3999. Q. Is not Morris' place right outside the back heading of No. 1 Right? A. It is exactly in No.1 Right. 
4000. Q. Then if it is in No. 1 Right it cannot be between that and No. 6 shaft heading? A. It is in 
No. 1 Right; and it is between No. 1 Right and No. 6 shaft heading. Of course it is. 
4001. Q. Now, is it not a fact that the first that you heard of the suggestion that Morris' light was the 
spot at which the accident happened was when Mr. Atkinson was examined? A. No, certainly not. 
4002. Q. Tell me one person who gave evidence of it in this Court before? A. But it doys not need to 
be a person who gave evidence of it. 
4003. Q. Tell me any person who mentioned this to you ? A. I did not talk to anybody one word 
about that explosion. 1 kept it in my own breast. 
4004. Q. What was your reason? A. Because I knew I had to meet you. I was not going to give my 
opinion until I was here. 
4005. Q. Why did you not give it when you were there at the Coroner's Court ;-why did you not give it 
when you came here? A. I had a very good reason for it. 
1009. Q. You decided not to give it, you said? A. Yes. 
4007. Q. If you can give it to-day, why did you not give it at the laat Court P A. For the simple reason 
that you decided to put me in this box to squeeze me for information. 
4008. Q. Do you know who called you? A. You did ; you said I am going to call Mr. May." 
4009. Q. Are you aware that the Coroner subpmnaed you P A. Oh, yes, with your instructions. 
4010. Q. Are you aware that the Coroner told you to leave the Court when the inquest was first opened, 
and I was not even here? A. Did you arrange it before you went away? 
4011. Q. What do you aocuse me of? A. Did you arrange with the Coroner before you went away? 

012. 



	

	

	

	

 

	

	
	

1S2 
Witness-J. May, 14 January, 1903. 

4012. Q. Do you mean to say that I arranged with the Coroner to have you subpmnaed on my behalf? 
A. That you stood up in this Court and said that you would call me as a witness. 
4013. Q. Do you say that I arranged with the Coroner behind your back to have you called? A. Oh, I 
would not say anything of the sort; I would not dream of it. 
4014. Q. Then, whether I called you or not, why could you not have givento the Court here and the Jury 
the whole of the knowledge that you had at that time? A. For the simple reason that I was waiting for 
further information. 

[4t 1 o'clock the Inquiry was adjourned until 2 p.m.] 

AFTERNOON. 

4015. On resuming at 2 p.m., Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings. 

Mn. JONATHAN MAY, previously sworn, was further examined as under 

4016. Mr. Wade.] Q. You made some statement to-day that you attributed the explosion to some door which 
I suppose short-circuited the air, and took the proper supply away from the men on the face at No. 1 level? 
A. Yes. 
4017. Q. Is that based on evidence or on thesry? A. With the doors (Interrupted.) 
4018. Q. Is there any evidence that you know of? A. Here on this plan is an indication that the air in 
No. 1 main level goes direct to the outbye side of the inmost west heading in No. 1 Right, and it is 
then diverted through a cut-through up No. 1 back heading, and then returns and passes along the face 
of those workings. 
4019. Q. I want you to say whether you had any evidence that the doors there, being open, short-circuited 
the air that ought to go to the face? A. My evidence was that this - (fnterruptéd.) 
4020. Q. I do not want to know what your evidence was ; and I will repeat my question [Question repeated]? 
A. I only have the evidence of the plan, which shows that the air was dependent on doors which were 
single doors; and this co-relates Kembla with Burwood and Dulli. 
4021. Q. Now show me the doors which you rely upon as having tended to short-circuit the air ? A. There 
is a single door at the outbye side of No. 4 Right, a single canvas door at No. 4 Right, a single 
canvas door on No. 4 Left, and, on both the travelling and the rope-rcad, •a single door-a wooden 
door-opposite No. 4 Left, and a sin2le door at No. 5 Right. I see there are three single doors 
near No. .5 Right and a single door on No. 1 main level. The ventilation of the face of No. 1 heading 
and No. 1 back.heading is dependent on one canvas door, and if that was defective the air would be 
taken offi - 
4022. Q. Can you tell me of any one of these doors that was deranged? A. No. 
4023. Q. Then it is pure theory ? A. It is no theory at all. 
4024. Q. Can you tell me of any facts 1 A. It is an actual fact in mining that doors, especially single doors, 
are dangerous, and that they are wrong both in theory and practice. 
4025. Q. You are going on the theory that single doors are dangerous-that all single doors are dangerous? 
A. Yes. 
4026. Q. But you have no proof of the doors being deranged on the day of the accident? A. No. Only 
that the current was dependent on several single doors, it is on that point that I connect the Bulk and 
the Burwood disasters. 
4027. Q. Now, is this correct : " That a fall of the roof will tend to heat the air by compression" ? A. Yes. 
4028. Q. Have you made any experiments as to what extent that will follow? A. No, it would not be 
practicahie to make any experiment like that in a mine. 
4029. Q. Do you know at what point coal-dust will ignite from compression of air? A. No; I do not 
remember. 
4030. Q. Now, one word as to the check-inspectors : do you say that miners are not competent to become 
check-inspectors. They are either competent or not competent? A. To become a check-inspector a man 
most hold the same qualifications as a Manager holds. 
4031. Q. Do you say whether miners are competent or not l A. Not according to my argument. 
4032. Q. I suppose, if a man can detect gas with a safety-lamp, that is sufficient knowledge t o have to 
make an examination for gas 1 A. No. ' 
4033. Q. What do you want to know? A. You want to understand the method of carrying air currents in 
a mine. 
4034. Q. I am talking about finding  gas is not that sufficient knowledge to have to detect gas? A. If he 
can do it. 
4035. Q. Now, you were asked about safety-limps is this the position which you take up-that although 
you may find gas in a mine it is not therefore necessary to put in safety-lamps? A. That is the position 
I take up. 
4036. Q. That the ventilation may be improved so as to dissipate all traces of inflammable gas? A. Yes. 
4037. Q. And that if gas is found in a mine the first question is, is the ventilation defective? A. Yes. 
4038. Q. And if you find the defect? A. You remedy it. 
4039. Q. But when you find the ventilation is absolutely perfect in the highest point of the mine, and you 
still find inflammable gas, you would put in safety-lamps ? A. Yes. I would like to illustrate the position. 
Assuming you find that the ventilation has been reversed, you would not put safety-lamps in a mine; but 
you. would put in a fan and improve the ventilation. 
4010. Q. You know the general method of ventilating pillar workings? A. Yes. 
4041. Q. Is not the air allowed to circulate past a pillar working and over a waste? A: It does not go  over 
the waste as a rule, but past the edge of the goaf. 
4041 2 Q. When you are taking the pillars out cannot you ventilate the pillars by a current of air, if it is 
turned over the waste and along the pillars ? A. No, it is not done. 
4042. Q. You never heard of it? A. It is not done. - 
4043. Q. It is not done? A. Nowhere. I would not dream of it. 
4044. Q. You say it is dangerous? A. It is not practicable. - 
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4045. Q. If there was only a fall of 3 or 4 feet in the waste could it be done? A. That is not a goaf. 
4046. Q. I said a waste 1 A. They are synonymous terms. 
4047. Q.  You know that the roof may fall in '3 or 4 feet. Cannot you ventilate a pillar working by air 
directed across that waste? A. You would not do it. 
40 tS. Q. Can you do itsay yes or no? A. The whole thing is impracticable. 
4019. Q. Can you do it? A. If the air goes across it, yes. 
4050. his honor.] is there any statement which you wish to make? I may say that all this matter which 
you have gone into of your own private affairs with the Department is not in the nature of evidence in 
this case. It is not only quite immaterial to this inquiry, but it is of such a nature that I would suggest 
that it is not judicious that it should be gone further into. The best thing to do is to proceed no further 
with it. It is outside the scope of this inquiry to search into the question whether you have been fairly, 
or unfairly treated, or what has been done in matters between yourself and some Lepartrnent ; but if you 
have any evidence to offer or any other suggestions to make we shall be happy to hear them. 
4051. Witness.] I understand that my statement that a proper system of names inspection would be 
desirable can be put before the Court. 
4052. his honor.] That has already been gone into to some extent. 
4053. Witness.i May I be permitted to suggest that all inquiries into mining disasters or serious mining 
conditions shall be by a Court of competent persons practically experienced in mining matters, representing 
workmen and propretars ; assisted or presided over by a District Court Judge (Interrupted). 
4051. J[c. Bruce Sasith.] I question whether this matter is within the ternis of the Commission. 
4055. His honor.] It has beengone into to a certain extent. 
4056. Jfr. Brw'e 'inith.] It will occupy a great deal of the Court's time unnecessarily and the Commission 
is only concerned about inquiring into the cause of the Mount Kemhila disaster and the prevention of other 
similar disasters. It has not to inquire into the constitution of a Court of Inquiry into disasters generally. 
4057. his hlonor.i Excepting that I presume that Mr. May desires to suggest that the existence of such a 
tribunal, always ready, would have the efiect of keeping mining managers up to the mark. 
4058. AIr. Bruce Smith.] That is circuitous reasoning. 
4 059. lli Honor.] That is the only way in which it can he material to this inquiry. 
4060. Witness.] 1 suggest that such investigation shall commence \vithmill one calendar month of every 
colliery explosion where lives are lost, and every other disaster resulting in a loss of four or more lives. In 
each case which such Court shall investigate, the coronial inquiry shall be limited to the cause of death, and 
that no lawyers be permitted to appear in such Court on either side ; that workmen's representatives be 
elected annually by ballot of the Miners' Lodges of the Newcastle, Lithgow, and Illawarra Districts, there 
being three separate districts for the purpose; the voting to be cumulative in each district. Now, as to 
Government inspection. 
4061. his honor.] The further you go, the more I am inclined to think with Mr. Bruce Smith, that this 
is outside the scope of the Inquiry. 

[The Commissioners then conferred on the matter.] 
4062. his honor.] We have decided to let you go into this matter. Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4, on your statement 
in this matter, have already been gone into, and No. 6 has also been gone into ; but we think that it is 
going too far to enter into that matter. 1-lave you anything to say with regard to No. I? 
4063. Witness.] That is, " That the present system of mines inspection is an utter failure, tested by the 
explosions of gas at Bulli, Dudley, Burwoed, and Kembla." 
4061. his honor.] Q. You think that if there had been a better system these explosions would not have 
occurred? A. That is what it comes to. Experienced men would have understood it. No. 2 is that the 
system should be rearranged on the following basis - (interrupted). 
4065. his honor.] Q. You propose the establishment of independent Inspection Districts, with a competent 
man experienced in the best practice of ventilating and working gaseous mines appointed to each district. 
Just explain what you mean by independent Inspection Districts " ? A. That each Inspector shall have a 
district assigned to him ; and that he shall be responsible for the administration of the Act in that district. 
in the event of any explosion occurring, that Inspector must show that he took all reasonable Precautions 
-not by any other persons  but by himself personally. 
4066. His Honor.] Q. There is to be no overlapping of the Inspectors' Disti'icts? A. No. 
4067. Q. Is there at present 1 A. I do not know. In the event, say, of the Kembla disaster, the Inspector 
would have ascertained what percentage of gas the deputies could find, the likelihood of *the reversal of the 
air current, and all other dangers which may have contributed to the accident. 
4068. His honor.] Q. That would have been done under the present system. You say--if the inspection had 
been as it should have been. I wish you would answer my question. You say here practically that if the 
Inspector who inspected the Mount Kembla Mine had been sufficiently careful, lie would have detected 
enough to have prevented the explosion occurring ;-now what is the difference between the new system 
which you propose and the present system I A. Under the present system, the man has first to report to 
the Chief Inspector ; but under the new system of inspection he would do the duty himself. 
4069. 9. Each Inspector would have the same status 1 A. Yes. 
4070. 9. And would have a special district assigned to himself 1 A. Yes, and be responsible for it. 
4071. Q. You think that the responsibility you mention in the fourth heading-" Each Inspector to be
made personally responsible for the administration of the Act in his own district "-would, as his 
responsibility would be undivided, be more effective ? A. Yes. 
4072. Q. You propose that r  Each Inspector shall make a quarterly report on the conditions of the mines in 
his district, which shall be promptly published and distributed to the Schools of Art in the mining districts." 
What dines this addition mean 1 A. At present the reports are embodied in the Chief Inspector's report 
under that addition they would be presented separately. 
4073. Q. If you wish to say anything about any of these suggestions, you are at liberty to do so ; but we 
hold that No. 7, which proposes ''that the appointment of Inspectors be taken out of the hands of the 
1)0] ilicimin and dL'partmentah head," Shall not 1w guile into : and No, 5, which proposes that "iii the event of 
an explosion or other disaster no lawyer should be perniitted to be present at the Court of Inquiry," is - an 
absurdity ; and it apparently proposes to debar persons from a right which they are supposed to have of 

clmoosimmg 



	

	

	

184 
Wrtne-ss-J. May, 14 January, 1903. 

choosing those whom they prefer to represent them .A. The only thing which I would like to say is, that 
I believe that, if these suggestions were carried out, they would make the working of the mines more 
satisfactory. They would reduce accidents, and improve the ventilation; arid circumstances like the 
brattice trick and other things would be utterly impossible. May I ask whether you exclude from the 
inquiry that portion where a deputy asks for a report upon his case? 
4074. Q. That is Bailey's case? A. Yes. 
4074 k. I do not think that it is proper that such a matter as that should be argued before this Court. I do 
not think it is within the scope of the Inquiry. 

Examined by Mr. Robertson 

4075. Q. In the evidence before the Coroner's Court you said this, "To show that a fall of very hard stone 
has been suspected of igniting gas without the intervention of any light. I do not at present commit 
myself to that view ; Buddle is my authority ; I will bring you the book Buddle to morrow ' ;-have you 
got it? A. It simply went to prove that explosions used to occur with the od Flint Mill. The next proof 
was by Sir Warrington Smythe, where he raid it was proved by Mr. Thomas Southern (Interrupted). 
4076. fr. Rcbertson.] I know that case. 
4077. AIr. Bruce Sniit/r.i  Buddle was produced in 1856, and did not bear out the contention of the witness. 
4078. Mr. Robertson.] Q. You think that with perfect ventilation safety-lamps may not be necessary ? 
A. I believe that. We hear too much about the introduction of safet-]amps ; and it would seem as if 
safety-lamps were going to be made an apology for bad ventilaion. 
4079. Q. Is not that contrary to experience? A. I do not think so. 
4080. Q. Do you not know that where the men work with safety-lamps there is better ventilation I A. 
Gaseous mines are always better ventilated. If, instead of improving the ventilation you put in safety-
lamps you will destroy the system of ventilation. 
4081. Q. Even in the most perfectly-conducted mine, apd with the most perfect system, may not some 
contingent matter arise, such as the opening of a door or the falling of a brattice, or anything else outside 
the normal conditions of a mine? A. Yes. 
4082. Q. As a matter of fact, safety-lamps are never introduced in gas I A, Safetylamps are not intended 
as a remedy for bad ventilation. 
4083. Q. I mean that safety-lamps are never introduced into a mine for the purpose of working in gas 
A. No. 
4084. Q. Then what are they introduced for, if it is not to provide for contingench s that may arise 
in the best regulated mine I A. They are introduced into mines where it is not safe to work with open 
lights. 
4085. Q. I mean that with the most perfect system of ventilation, and the most perfect system of manage-
men, gas may accumulate? A. Well, it is under very rare circumstances. 
4086. Q. Do you think so? A. Under the conditi in3 where open lights are used. I am speaking of Durham 
and Northumberland, where the whole face is almost invariably worked with open lights, and the goafs 
with safety-lamps. 
4087. Q. Worked with mixed lights? A. Yes. 
4088. Q. Are you aware that the mixed light system has been condemned by competent authorities? A. It 
all depends on the authority. Take Duiham, where I think they produce 40,000,000 tons of coal ; and 
the system has been open lights at the face and safety-lamps at the goaf. 
4089. Q. Do you say that in Northumberland the general system up to the present has been naked lights 
at the face? A. Yes. 
4090. Q. I thought I know a good deal ; but I confess my ignorance of that ? A. I think they produce 
40,000,000 tons there. 
4091. Q. You consider that, under ordinary circumstances, efficient ventilation will meet the case-that is, 
under ordinary conditions and with an ordinary quantity of gas? A. I consider that open lights and good 
ventilation are the best means of preserving the science of ventilation. 
4092. Q. Is it not a fact that accidents frequently occur in mines which are moderately gassy 1 A. Yes, 
where the ventilation is neglected. 
4093. Q. With respect to the inspection of districts, will you tell me whether the system in New South 
Wales is different from that prevailing in the Old Country? A. The system in the Old Country is very bad. 
That here is not worse. It is better. 
4094. Q. In what respects is the system in the Old Country bad? A. The system has been to appoint a 
Chief Inspector for a district, and to appoint two or three young men who have not had very much 
experience; and they are taken care of by the Chief Inspector; but the proposed system is, I think, to 
make each man responsible for his own district; and then you have a more efl'ective system. 
4095. Q. You would subdivide the district coal-tields into a number of separate districts I A. Yes. 
4096. Q. Do you know whether fault has been found with the inspection in the Old Country? A. I would 
like to give you an illustration. I was ten years in my last situation in England, and twice saw the 
Inspector. 
4097. Q. That does not mean a change to separate districts;-do you mean there are not sufficient 
Inspectors? A. I desire to show that separate District Inspectors should be individually responsible. 
4098. Q. You could not have more inspections without more Inspectors? A. I would not like to say that. 
4099. Q. We assume that the Inspectors are doing their duty? A. Let me show you a case where a proper 
system of inspection would prevent explosion. 
4100. Q. This is a matter of time? A. Now, take the Burwood and the other mines making fire-damp. 
You would expect the Inspector, when visiting these, to see how the ventilation was carried out, and 
whether the air currents were efficient, and to see into other matters ; if not, it is time the inspection was 
carried out properly. 
4101. Q. Do you consider that the Kembla mine was dangerous-I mean before the accident; itis so easy to 
be wise after the event? A. it was not my duty. The conditions are sufficient ; and now, having seen the 
plan (Interrupted). 
4102. Q. Did you consider this a dangerous mine? A. It was not in my province to think of it. 
4103. Q. You must ansas-er me? A. I cannot say no or yes. It was net in my province. 
4104. Q. Did you ever hear it described as such? A. No. 4105, 
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Examined by Mr. Ritchie 

4105. Q. Is that the only system in the workings which was defective-I mean the single doors being 
defective? A. The single doors are defective and dangerous. 
4106. Q. Do you regard that as neglect on the part of the Manager or the Inspectors? A. Where the 
Manager overlooks a defect, the Inspector ought to see that it is remedied. 
4107. (2.  In this case, where they have seen it and not reported, how would you regard the inspection ? A. I 
would regard it as defective. The quantity of gas given oil' there ought to have been known. It ought to 
have been known that the conditions under which the bords were worked were dangerous, and the conditions 
of the furnaca and air circulation ought to have been well-known by the Inspector. 
410. Q. Had some of these well-kim-sn defecs been remcdied--1 A. Then there would have been danger, 
because of the furnace. 
4109. Q. What arc the defects of the furnace 1 A. The furnace under present conditions may produce 
60,000 cubic feet of air to day and 10,000 to morrow. Or say that there is a reversal of the air current ; and 
there are two circumstances under which you could have that. One is with air increase of temperature, and 
the other with the wind coming from the west. Either will point to a disaster. 
4110. (). Do you think it was wise for a manager who knew the air current had been reversed to allow the 
miners to continue at work 1 A. It would be unsafe. 
4111. Q. I think you said something about Inspectors ;--do I understand you to advocate the abolition of 
the present check-inspectors appointed by the miners ? A. Yes with a view of making the Government 
inspection more effective. - 
4112. (7. Elow? A. By independent Inspection Districts. 
4113. (7. Would you have more of them I A. Yes. 
4114. Q. Do you think the number of inspections now is sufficient? A. What is the use of a number of 
visits if you do not detect 2 per cent, of gas, when 1 per cent, is dangerous 1 
4115. Q. Do you mean the effectiveness of the visits? A. Yes ; I am speaking of their effectiveness. 
4116. (7. Do you mean that the present system is not effective? A. It is not effective ; and it is dangerous. 
4117. Q. Just give us the points where it is innfihctive? A. I say that the condition of the bards at Kembla 
ought to have been known to the Inspector-the percentage of gas ought to have been known to the 
Inspector--and the condition of the doors should have been known to the Inspector. 
4118. Q. What method is adopted by the present Inspectors when they go to a colliery to examine 1 A. I 
do not know. I cannot tell you. 1 only know from their results. 
4119. Q. And you assume, because of the reu1ts and the cnditijns shown by the plan, that their method 
is not satisfactory. A. I judge by the results. 
4120. Q. Do I understand you to say that there are no miners in this district competent to act as check-
inspectors ? A. The chuck inspector shoul I be a mcii equal in (loaf ifiect ions to the Manager. lie should 
hold a first class certificate. Iieiice my statement that the office should be abolished, and that the Iiiiiiers, 
instead of taxing themselves to do the work, should have separate diti-icts, and more complete Government 
inspection. 
4121. Q. You know that there are men working in the pit who have certificates of competency 1 A. I know 
that there are bright men, and intelligent men, working in the pi h  some of whom have certificates. 
4122. Q. Do you think they would be q'malitiud I A. Those vls have passed the ttst, yes. 
4123. Q. If the miners think fit to appoint a in in of that kind to represent them, do you think it would 
be proper? A. It would be a sensible thing to do ; but why should the miners tax themselves when they 
ccii get the work done otherwise I 
4124. Q. WTould it not meet your views if we were to strike out the words in the present Act exempting 
it mining engineers " from holding office as ehleek-inspeetoL-s ? A. I think that would be well ; and their 
you conid select men who have had both practical and theoretical experience. 
4125. Q. Do you think that the work would be more etlbctivly clone? A. Tue most effective method would 
be to abolish the practice and introduce a system of independent inspection. 
4126. (7 Do you not think it a wise provision for the men to have the power of appointing officers 
of the kind 1 have mentioned? A. It is a good provision. They could select their own men and be more 
satisfied. 
4127. Q. What I mean is that the miners may be suspicious that neither the Managers nor the Inspectors 
are doing their work properly lout if they could appoint their own men to make an inspection they i n 
discover that the examination by these otlicials was good and effective. Do you not think that it would be 
a wise provision to enable these workmen to have this power to fluid this information out for themselves ? 
A. When this provision was first introduced it was very popular with the work men. I had a great opinion 
of it myself at the time lout, having \vatclmedl its operations, I have had to conic to the conclusion that the men 
do not dare to report the conditions of a niLe. I will say this-that they arc always less afraid where the 
l\Ianager is competent ; but they know that a second-class Manager clues no,  like the idea. 
4128. (7. Even although there ni e miners who hold first-class certificates, and are fully competent, they 
would be 'afraid to report when they find anything out against the Company 1 A. The trouble would be 
that if these men accepted positions under the workmen they would not have a chance of getting work under 
the proprietor. 
4129. Q. You think that if they hold first class certficates they would not, for that reason, take the 
position if it was offered to them 1 A. Yes. 
4130. Q. Now, with i'egard to what you say about safety-lamps. Supposing a mine was to suddenly generate 
a large quantihy of gas, would you expect that it would be wise that safety-lamps should be used. Say that 
the Inspector ordered that safety-laumps should be used. The management are of a difibrent opinion, 
and would not notice it. In that cisc who should have the authority to determine whether safety-lamps 
should be used or not. Supposing the miners and Inspectors want them on the one hand, and the manage-
ment on the other band say no ? A. It is a very old and debatable point. 
4131. Q. I would like to know your opinion ? Al . My  opinion is this-that nothing should be done to 
remove the responsibility from the Manager of the niinc'. 
4132. Q. In that case the woikmnen would have to continue work under conditions which they thought 
dangerous, and that might plunge them into eternity 1 A. The Inspector, when his attention was drawn 
to Ccc matter, might clm'aw the attention of the Manigi r to certain conditions, and ask him to remedy them. 
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He might then use the safety-lamps. But the Manager might have had twenty more years' experience than 
the Inspector. Just, for instance, take the case of a boy coming up to a mine where Mr. Robertson was 
Manager, and saying, " I think you ought to do so and so." 
4133. Q. We will assume that the canditions are dangerous. What would you do then? A. There is a want 
of some effective Court. His Honor has suggeste1 that. an Inspector should get an order from the Court to 
put the safety-lamps in the wine and let the matter go to arbitration. If the Manager found that lie was 
harassed, and the award went against the Government, let them pay. But by all means hold the Manager 
responsible for the working of the mine. 
4134. Q. If a condition arose, that the Inspector thought it necessary to have safety-lamps, and the 
management held a different view-do you say that under these circumstances the men should be withdrawn 
f roin the mine and the matter referred to the Arbitration Court? A. The Inspector should obtain an order 
from the Court empowering the men to work with lamps. 
4135. Q. What sort of Court would you have A. I suggested a Court; and I have suggested that whenever 
any trouble arose it should ha referred to that Court. 
4136. Q. In the meantime would the miners remain idle until the matter was determined ? A. No I do 

not believe in stopping men working. 
4137. Q. Have you ever heard of a colliery where the miners requested to have safety-lamps and the 
Manager refused ? A. That is pcssible. 
4138. Q. Under conditions such as those, would you refer the question to the Court? A. Yes. 

4139. lfr. Robertson.] With regard to check-inspectoms, are you aware that a great many inspections have 
been made in this district by workmen? A. I was under the impression that there were very few, and that 
the men did not take advantage of the provisions in the Act. 
4140. (7. I may tell you as a fact that there have been a gool many? A. I was not aware of it. 
4141. Q. Can you tell mae whether any persons have sulbied or been victimised because of acting as 
Inspectors ? A. I have no knowledge of it. - 
4142. Q. Not at all? A. Not at a] 1. 
4143. Q. Can you say whether or not their presence has been welcomed by the Manager ? A. I never heard 

it mentioned in ray pretence, an1  how. 

Mr. ALEXANDER HICKS was sworn, and examined as under:- 

Examinetion-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght :- 

4144. (7. What is your name? A. Alexander Hicks. 
4145. (7. Are you a miner? A. I am not at present engeged in hewing coal : I am a check-weigher. 
4146. Q. Where are you engaged? A. At the Corrimal Colliery. 
4117. (7. What experience have you had? A. Ten years. 
4148. Q. In this district 1 A. Yes. 
4149. (7. Where at? A. At Mount Pleasant and at Corrimnal. 
4150. (7. Are you a member of the Delegate Boani of the Illawarra Union ? A. I am. 
4151. Q. You are familiar with the i ecoiinmendations made by that Board? A. I am. 
4152. Q. Now, dealing with the first-That Managers, ureier-mau-ager.s, deputies, and shot-firers, should 
hold certificates of competency by examination, and should have five years' practic d mining experience 
befo:w being eligible for their positions,-What do you say to that? A. I cordially agree with that 

recommendation. 
4153. Q. Have you any reasons to offer in support of it? A. Well, yes, at the present time I voice the 
opinion of nine-tenths of the miners in this district in saying that there is a feeling of insecurity and dread, 
more especially since the Mount Kembla disaster and the fire at Corrimal. 
4154. Q. Do you suggest in effect that, if these officials were only appointed by certificate after examination, 
that that sense of insecurity would be removed? A. I believe it would. I have no doubt that these officials 
are efficient - and competent men. At the same time we have the dread that they may be utterly 
incompetent-I mean when they are brought into contact with dangerous gases; and we want an 
examination to demonstrate whether they are competent or not. 
4155. Q. At the Corrimnal Colliery are the othicials certified to by examination : A. The Manager is, I believe. 

4156. (7. And the under-manager? A. 1 (10 not know. 
4561. (7. The deputies? A. 1 do not think so. I can be sure that they are not qualified by examination. 
4157. Q. Are the shot-firers? A. With one exception I can say that they are not. 
4158. Q. And this particular one? A. lie may be for anything I know to the contrary. - - 
4159. Q. Do you know whether there are any persons in this district who have qualified themselves by 
examination for any of these positions? A. For First and Secoad Class Certificates, I know of several 
persons who are qualified. 
4160, Q. Are these men still working on coal? A. Some of them are; and I think the mnajomity of them are. 
4161. 0. What examination would you suggest that the deputies and shot-firers should pass. Would you 
suggest the present Second-class Certificate examination? A. [ hardly think it is necessary to go as high as 
that. Of course, at the present time the danger of gases is occupying our attention. They should 
understand and kno v where to find the different gases alit know in w-hat proportion they become 
dangerous. 
416112. Q. Can you give me time names of any of the men who have qualified for Second-class Cirtificatesi 
A. Yes, I can. 
4162. AIr. Bruce Smith.] This evidence can be of no assistance to the Court. 
4163. His Ilosmor.1 No, I do not think it is worth while troubling us with it. 
4164. dIr. L!1'sa!ht. (7. YOU mentioned aboo t a fire at Core-immI. Do you know what muted it? A. I 
believe it v,as caused by lime dnmp. 
4165. Q. What kind of lamps are you uieg ? A. Safety-lamps. 
4166. Q. Do you know whether before that there had bet ii any ,,,is discovered at Corrimal ? A. In small 

quantities. 
4167. Q. Now it is proposed that the Inspectors should be vested with absolute power to order time use 
of safety-lamps? A. I think it is necessary they should have that power. 4168. 
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4168. Q. Do you know under what particular circumstances that would have been beneficial I A. No, not 

any particular circumstances. But I notice that in Mr. Atkinson's report lie says, That it is matter for 

regret that certain colliery owners did not comply with the request that safety-lamps should be introduced 
into the colliery " ; and lie wound up by saying that a great responsibility rested upon the management." 

It appears to me pretty clear that in that ease the Insector had no power to enforce his recommendation. 
4169. Q. Was that statement made in a recent report? I. Yrs, the report for 1900. 

4170. Q. Is this the statement - 
It is matter for regret that arrangements have not been completed at this colliery for the use of safety-lamps, as 

any temporary interference with the ventilation of tins mine may SOO:i cause an explosive mixture of gas and air to 
accumulate which, ignited, might, with the assistance of the dry cal -dust, result in a serious explosion-a contingency 
which may arise iii even the best regulated colliery. The whole tespiisibiliiy-iO grave one-in toe matter, however, as 

the management is aware, rests upon it. 

Now, is that the passage you refer to, upon page 135 of the Annual Report of the Department of Mines 

for 19003 A. Yes, and I can bring proof that the introduction of safety-lamps would mean a loss of 20 

per cent. in our wages. 
4171. Mv. Jiroce South.] This has all been settled by the Arbitration Court. 
4172. Mr. Lysaght.] This evidence is of importance as applying to the introduction of safety-lamps. I am 
trying to show the Commission that to introduce safety-lamps into a mnilii3 means a loss in wages to the 
men, and yet the men ask for the introduction for their own safety, which shows that they do not consider 
the matter of cash where their safety is concerned. 
4173. Mr. Brwte Snmi/Ju.] This suggestion would never hive been made since the Arbitration Court said that 
no additional wages were to be pad hocauso safety-lamps were used in a mine. 
4174. AIr. J1Tale.] In the past the miners insisted upon being paid extra rates if safety-lamps were used 

but now no extra rate is paid. 
4175. his honor.] And do the miners still press for the use of safety -lamps? 
4176. Mr. L,sayii.] Yes, they still press for them, although they would lose 20 per cent. of their wages. 

4177. Mr. JVade.] They do not lose 20 per cent, of their wages. 
4178. his hionor.j Safety-lanps are being continually i-nprved ; and miners will soon be able b work 

quite as well with safety-lamps as with all open light. 
4179. T/u JVitumess.] Any disability is inconnection with shot-firing. That is where the loss comes in, It 
is a disability having to vait the convenience of the shot-firer. 
4180. His Ilomwr.] 'lb-mt may cause a little dclay. 
4181. dIr. lwle. I might he compelled to call evidence to show that theme is no loss. 

4182. his Ifonor.j If Mr. Lysaght wishes to press time evidence, I donot think it is inadmissible. There 

has been a suggestion as to possible want of bond idcs on the lent of the men in making the proposition 

and it is proposed now to state facts which indicate that there is no want of bond jide. Do I understand 

Mr. Wade to pr as his am-gumnint 1 
4183. Mr. L,ysayhL] The question i whether it will assist the Commission in any way. If it will not assist 

the Conmniiesion, I will not pri ss the evidence. - 
4184. His i-loner.] I hardly think that this particular evidence will be of any ue to us. 

4185. Mr Lyeayhtj. Q. Would the Inspectors be the proper persons to order the use of safety-lamps? 

A. Yes ; they are qualified officers. 
4186. Q. 

It i-s rcomneudecl that ventilation by furnace should be prohibited, and that fans should be 

substituted? \Vlmst do you say to that? A. Asregards my exi)eliCnCP, I think that ventilation produced 
by a fan is far superior to that of the furnace. Authorities tell you that furnace ventilation is liable to be 
interfered with by natural conditions, or by changes in the temmiper-ature or time id-which I have found 

in my experience to be borne out. 
4187. Q. \Vhere was that experience gained? A. At Corrimal, and at Mount Pleasant. 

4188. Q. What was the condition of the air supply? A. In Mount Pleasant it was very bad indecd. 

4189. Q. how long ago? A. Seven years. 
4190. Q. Could you give me any specific instances? A. Well, black-damp had been present in such quanti-
ties that both umy mate and myself have been prostrated with it. We were lying on our backs and 
vomiting. We attributed that to black-damp, w'hich was present in large quantities. 
4191. Q. 

Was Mount Pleasant known to be a gaseous maine? A. Fire damp was kno vu to exist there. I 

frequently saw it, and ignited it. 
4192. Q. Flow long is it since you-  ignited it at Mount Pleasant 1 A. Between seven and eight years ago. 

4193. (3. Was this ignition of gas known to the officials ;-did you report it to any persons? A. No; it was 

pretty generally known. One of the officials told me on more than one occasion to brush my place out 

before I went to work in it. 
4194. (3. Who ti he? A. Deputy Gillies. lie is now under-manager at Mount Pleasant Colliery. 

4195. Q.What did you brush your place out with? A. With a bit of brattice, or my slnrt, or the best thing 

that came lmanmly. 
4196. Q. In addition to this black-damp stretching you and your mate out, do you know of any otimer time 

when the air had been bad 1 A. I have seems gas ignited in small volumes very often after going back to a 

shot that had been fired. 
4197. Q. Can you say whether any official knew of the gas igniting [Jimtei rmmpted]. 

4198. dIr. Wade.] He can say if lie reported it to any,  officials. 

4199. His honor.] I cannot see how the knowledge of time officials at Mount Pleasant concerning the presence 
of gas in a mine can be of any service, so far as matters at Mount Kemida are concerned. Of course it may 
be material, if this is the same seam of coal, to kno .v NN lmetlicr gas is found in it. The question now put to 

the witness is whether the officials at Mount Pleasant kmmcw of the gas being ignited? 

4200. dIr. Ls,saylut.] Time evidence is that at Mount Kembla, because no gas hma'I been discovered for 
twelve mnontli, naked liglmts were used. I propose to show that in the mines all along the eo.mst gas was 
discovered, but no steps were taken to prevemmt the danger. 
4201. His honor.] Anything relatimmg to Mount Kemnida is material ; Lot would the (1UCStiOfl of the gas 
being known to the mammngenment at another mine have anytimimig to rio with it? 
4202. dir. Lysajht.] I presume that it would, in relation to the Inspectors. I want to come to the fact of 

the Inspectors not taking action when they knew that gas had been found in the various collieries. 420:3. 
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4203. His honor.] The question is whether it is not unfair to the Inspectors. If they are treated as 
persons affected by this Commission's cle.ternrination—is it fair to seek to charge them with knowledge of 
gas, by proving a knowledge on the part of the mine officials? That may be a knowledge which the 
Inspectors may never have become aware of, 
420k hr. L?JsaL, t.1 If the witness says that the prc'senco of ,as in the mine was known to the officials, 
should not the Inspectors also have known of it? 
4205. He. Brrsce Seiith.1 The question objected to is whether the officials knew of it. 
4206. His honor.] Mr. Lysaglit states that knowledge coining to the minds of the officials should also come 
to the minds of the Inspectors. It does not follow that the precut Inspectors could be affected by that 
knowledge, because they were not here then. These tlrines happened seven or eight years ago. 
4207. Mr. Lysiçjlit.] I can show from Mr. Atkinson's report for 1900 that during the year fire-damp was 
reported, under General Rule IV, at collieries which included the Metropolitan, Bulli, Corrimal, Buili 
Pass, and Mount Pleasant, in the Southern or Illawarra District. I propose to show to you that the 
Inspectors had knowledge of the existence ofgas, and tools no steps whatever to prevent any outbreak of 
it, although they knew of it in the various mines. 
4208. His honor.] What is the good of this evidence 
4209. iii'. Lisruylit.] I am showing that for a number of ye trs gas has been in existence in the various 
mines on the coast. 
4210. His honor.] That will not increase our knowledge on the matter. The question is whether gas has 
been known to be there recently. I do not know how you could strengthen your case by proving that gas 
was known in the days of Noah. 
4211. dIr. LysagJrLl I will go on with another matter. 
4212. Q. Do you know whether a fan has bE en substituted at Mount Pleasant and, if so, within what 
period I A. Within the last nine months. 
4213, Q. And what is the ventilation at Corrimal 1 A. A fan. 
4.214. Q. When was it introduced? A. I am not sure—eighteen months ago. Perhaps more. 
4215. Q. Since the introduction of the fan, can you cry anything as to what the condition of the air has 
been ? A. I have not worked below ground myself; but the men have expressed themselves as being well 
satisfied with tile air as at present. 
4216. Q. When you did work below ground, what was the condition of the air? A. Generally good. 
4217. His honor.] There is no contention that ventilation by fan is not better than ventilation by furnace. 
We know that the fan gives much better ventilation ; and the onl question is whether any legislation 
C mid properly be introduced to compulsorily introduce fans for existing furnaces. 
4218. dIr. Lpsajlit.] I propose later on to show that in Prussia and Belgium there are Acts of Parliament 
prohibiting the use of furnaces for the ventilation of minEs. 
42 19. Q. There is a recommendation that all waste workings shall be absolutely sealed off and surrounded 
by return airways, such return, airways not to come in contact with the intake? A. We considered that 
question and many others ; and we considered that it was essential to our safety that the air from these 
waste workings should not be connected with the intake, inasmuch as we know that waste workings are 
I iahe at any time to give oil' poisonous gases, which, if they came into the intake, would go round 
probably to every man in the mine. 
4220. Q. It is also suggested that all places, except prospecting di ives, should have cut-tbroughs not more 
than 30 yards apart 1 A. I think that that suggestion is brought forward in consequence of there being a 
disposition to drive for more than the old-established 35 yards, which used to be the maximum distance. 
We recognise the fact that, where air is carried any distance behind a bratticecloth, it loses from 20 to 50 
per cent. in quantity. I notice that Mr. Atkinson deals xvii It the matter of ventilation in his report. I 
have seen brattice-cloth put up when you might as well have, had wirenetting. It was some distance from 
the floor in several places. 
4221. Q. In what colliery was that ? A. In Mount Pleasant. 
4222. Q. Is this Mr. Atkinson's report to which you are referring? It is on page 170 of the Annual 
Report for 1900 :- 

In a few mines where the toads are of considerable length, and the working places upwards of a mile from the shaft, 
great loss of air to the inner districts is caused by faulty stopping and constricted return. Many of the main-road 
stoppings are built with debris, and, although plastered with mortar, are far from being air-tight. 

4223. Q. In your opinion would there be any danger to the safety of the roof through cut-throughs being 
30 yards distance from each other ? A. Not in any roof that I have hod practical experience of; I have 
never known a roof that tender. 
4224. Q. It is recommended that inspection should be made with locked safetylamps in all cases ; but I 
think that that is agreed to, and there is also a proposition that monthly examinations and reports should 
be made by deputies and District Inspectors with the hydrogen flume? A. The object of this recommenda-
tion is for the purpose of testing for smaller quanti:ies of gas which may exist. We know that th&ordinary 
safety-lamp will not 1-egister anything below 22, or 3 per cent. We want to obtain a knowledge of the 
presence of gas, however small the quantity may be. 
4225. 9. Can you say anything about a weekly measurement of air being taken in each section, and that a 
report should be sent to the Inspector ? A. I think that suggestion is put in operation in several 
collieries, with the exception of the report being sent to the Inspector. 
4226. Q. In the Act it is a monthly inspection ; but we are asking for a weekly one. Now, where would 
you have the measurements taken 1 A. Measurements are easily taken in the intake and the different 
splits. 
4227. Q. Would that bo sufficient? A. If the bratticing and the steppings were all right, it would be ; if 
not, I should like the measurements taken in the innesniott working. 
4228. Q. It is recommended that an extra supply of safety-lamps and theii' requisites, equal to one-third of 
the number of persons employed below ground, should be kept constantly in good order' and ready for use? 
A. That is a suggestion which I approve of very much. On the occasion of the Mount Kembla explosion the 
nt jority of the lamps at Corrimal were taken to Kembla. If anything had occurred at Corrinial, we should 
have been in an unfortunate position, because we would not have had the necessary lamps. The same may 
apply in every district from which the lamps were taken away. 

- 4229. 
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4229. Q. How long after the Kembla accident was it that the fire at Corrimal occurred 1 A. About two 
months. 
4230. Q. Do you know whether the lamps had been returned ? A. I do not know. 
4231. Q. Do you know as to the condition of the lamps at Kembla? A. No. 
4232. Q. There is a recommendation that travc lung and haulage roads, and other places necessary, should 
be properly watered ;-wliat do you say to that 1 A. 1 think it is very essential indeed. I know that the
(lust S very niconveirient for the miners. If it is a dusty travelling road ; and when they are followg in 
their horses there they can hardly see their way into it and out of it. 
4233. Q. Has that been your experience? l. Yes; it would almost choke a man travelling u:hen horses 
are about. 
4234. Q. Now, where are the shots fired by the men? A. Tn the working faces. 
4235. Q. And what were the lights used? A. open and flare lights. 
4236. Q. There is also a proposition that Managers should be compelled to give more personal time and 
attention to the management of the Colliery ;-now, how often have you seen your Managr there? A. I 
was working at Mount Pleasint for three years ; and I do not recollect seeing the Head Manager in the mine 
during the time I was there. 
4237. Q. And at Corrimal ? A. I remember seeing him once in two years. 
4238. Q. It is recommended that the size of the manholes should be enlarged -what is your experience 
about that? A. I have often been impressed with the fact that the manholes were not sufficiently large. 
Three or four men would be going out. 'The travelling road was also the engine road, Two or three urea, 
or half a dozen men, would make a rush for one safety-hole, and we would be rather cramped. hence, the 
suggestion that they should be increased in size. 
4239. Q. Were the travelling road and the haulage roads the same ? A. Yes. 
4240. Q. To what size would you have them increased 1 A. To a width of 6 feet. 
4211. Q. It is recommended that instructions should be given to the employees regularly on the means of 
escape ;-how many means of escape do you know of at i\Iount Pleasant? A. I worked there three years; 
I know of only one-the way I went in in the morning. I knew of no other way out. 
4242. Q. At Corrirnal ? A. I was well acquainted with all the exit roads from Corrimnal. 
4242-. Q. Did any official show thorn to you 1 A. Well, no we used to break through the laws and find the 
shortest way out to our homes. 
4243. Q. Is there any other reason which you would give in further support of that recommendation ;-I 
should like to know who should give you the instructions ?1. I think it is a matter in which the deputies 
might give instructions, say once a week or once a fortnight. I have noticed that Mi'. Atkinson has 
suggested that guide-boards should be used. 
4214. Q. Is this Mr. Atkinson's suggestion 

Ta the event of a fli'e taking place in a mine, it is desirable that the work men should he acquainted with the road 
leading to the second outlet ran.?, where the roads are at all complicated, grndc-baards should be plaeml to direct them. 

l A. Yes. 
4245. Q. It is recommended that the Coal-mines Act should forbid a black-list of employees being kept, and 
should penalise the improper prevention of dischargtd persons obtaining employment ;-what can you say on 
this matter? A. We have a sense of being penalised. It is a matter of difficulty to explain ; but we have 
that ceAse ; and there is no doubt that the tiring has occcirrud, and is occurring every clay. 
4246. Q. Do you know of any pirticular instancas rh're the men have atistaineci from reporting defects of 
management, or dangerous conditions, [[rr1-r/)u(]. 
4211. J[e. Jlaae.] I ask if you know the names of the inca that the. men should be brought here. 
42-18. his honor ] I think an answer could be given in a general form without the names, and lie could be 
asked the names afterwards. He isbring asked now whether Ire knows of any. 
4249. Jim'. Wade.] We do not want the onus tlrro\vn upon us, by bringing forward witnesses, to contradict 
these statemc nts. 
4250, his honor.] Q. An answer, ycs or no, might be given 1 A. I have suffered in that way myself. In 
cases where naoney and skips were held back I hive suffered loss rather than jeopnrdise my position by 
complaint. 
4251. Q. At what Colliery? A. Corrimal. 
4252. Q. Recently? A. When working on coal five and a half years ago. 
425:1. 1hfi. hiobertson.] That is not a black-list. 
4254. Jir. Lysag/ct.] Q. Do you know of any cases where urea have been dismissed or prevented from 
obtaining other employment? A. I could not say of m own knowledge. 
4255. Q. You were giving us instances of where you had abstained from making complaints? A. Yes, 1 can 
give you some. 
4256. His honor.] I think this evidenco is absolutely inimat erial. 
4257. The 11"iticess.1 It was a threat of ciis:mnissal held out by the management. 
125$. Air. Lysaylit.] I propose to tender this evidence, as it show-s the state of terrorism that exists in the 
ranks of tire men. 
4259. his Jlcowr.] We cl-a not know what the evidence is. 
4260. AIr, Lqsarlca] Q. Can you give inc any instance of a person abstaining from reporting a tiring for fear 
of dismissal 1 A. The epacilic question is whother I know of anyone being dismissed for failing to report. 
4261. Q. Do you know of any threat bring held out to a nian of chisinisal for asking, or nirrkiirg any di-mnand 
on the proprietors, for things WIUd 11 they were entitled ti 1 
4262. His Honor.] 'rirat is a diflrent tiring entirely. 
4263.3/p. Lysaylrt. It is using a threat. 
4261. His honor'.] I do not see irov you can carry tIns matter fnrrtlrr-r by  giving a few inotancas of men 
who had disputes with the management., and who afterwards stood in a wrse position than if they had not 
had any disputes. lluinamr nature is iruirran nato re ; and it is very 1 km ly that a Manager has not the kindest 
feeliurgs towards a mrrrmn who Las qrr;rrm-n lied mm itir lnimn. 
4265. AIr. iirrmce Scuffle] Tried cider? in time 5ca1rc of thin Imrqriry is for tIre (1omnrission tcr report on any 
matter affecting tile management of collieries. If this imvrctce of h hrreatercing morn is widely resorted to, it 
ought to be brougirt before the C-imrr mission wIre rmciht see a me-ms of prtventirrg such things in tire 
future. 4266. 
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4266. His Honor.] That is, speaking go nerally, of course; but one or two cases would only prove what is 
already self-evident. This is really weaker evidence than if it were shown to the Commission that this 
matter had already been legislated upon in other parts of the world. At the same time, if it can he shown 
that cases are continually occurring it might be as well to go into the matter. 
4267. Mr Wade.] The same question was raised in the Arbitration Court ; and it came to nothing. 
4268. Mr. Lyscrgltt.] I think I can give you a number of cases, I can show that a number of witnesses 
have not reported things for fear of dismissal, and because of an intimation that it was not wanted that 
things should be reported. 
4269. Q. What was the experience which you were giving? A. This occurred in my capacity as check-
weighman. I act as agent for the miners. I act as their weighman : and any case of dispute is settled 
between myself and the Manager or myself and the weighman. A man had been fined a considerable 
amount for chir. After seeing the workman, I spoke to the Manager ; and I said, " I question your legal 
right to make any fine whatever or to stop any money." The Manager said, , You cannot question my legal 
right to dismiss the man.' I reported to the man the reply I got; and consequently he did not take any 
action. 
4270. Q. Who was the IManager I A. Mr. Sellers, 
4271. Q. And the colliery? A. Corrimal. 
4272. Q. How long ago? A. Two years. 
4273. Q. Now, I will ask you if you have anything to say about the recommendation that safety-lamps 

ought not to be unlocked for shot-firing I A. [think it is obvious that this is necessary. I think the 

custom has been to unscrew the lamps; and I think that this practice is dangerous with inflammable gas. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Wade 

4274. Q. You know that the question of tlealing with dirt has been troubling the Corrimal Colliery for some 
years? A. Yes. 
4275. Q. There was a difference between the men and the Manager how to stop it? A. No. 

4275k. Q. Did the Manager complain? A. lie inIhicts a fine. 
4276. Q. Frequently ? A. What would you call frequently ? 
4277. Q. Frequently I A. Not to my idea. 
4278. Q. Have not representations been made to the Miner's Lodge ? A. Yes. 
4279. Q. Did not Sellers say, "If you men will go on filling dirt I will sack you"; did he say that? A. Not 

that I am au-are of. 
4280. Q. Do you not know that a deputation from the Lodge agreed to the principle of fining? A. That is 

not correct. 
4281. Q. Was it not this-Mr. Sellers wanted to insist on the coal bAng sent up without dirt? A. That is 

an utter impossibility. 
4289. Q. Did he ark for it? A. No. He would not ask for anything so impossible. 
4283. Q. Does he flue them? A. Yes. 
4281. Q. He vants to get the coal clean? A. Yes. 
428-5. Did he say, " If the men agree to a fine, well and good; if they will not agree, it is better to dismiss 
them " ? A. They would not agree ; they did not think it equitable. 1 put it to him, "Dismiss the men 
and lie refused. 
4286. Q. When you t ilk about his saying, " You cannot question my legal right to dismiss the men," was it 
not to enforce upon the men the necessity of sending the coal up clean t A. It wasa threat. 
4287. Q. To forc the s:nding up of clean coal, one idea was fining and the other (llsnhissal ? A. Yes ; the 

fine was the first idea. 
4288. Q. You complained that the system was unfair I A. Not the system. 
4289. Q That the amount was unfair? A. That is something like it. 
4290. Q. You did not question his right as to dismissal ? A. He was fining them. 

4291. Q. When you complained about the legality of his action, did he not say he would fall back upon his 
legal right if he was nob allowed to fine. Is not that the sum and substance of the whole thing I 

A. That is it. 
4292. Q. Now do you remember where you found this gas in Mount Pleasant? A. It was in heading woile. 

4293. Q. Were you just opening it up I A. Oh, no, a few miles fiom the surface. 

4294. Q. You were driving a heading ? A. We were driving a heading. 

4295. Q. How long were you working in that district I A. I only worked in that particular spot for that 

quarter. 
4296. Q. You did not report this gas? A. I did not make any specific report. 

4297. Q. Did you or not? A. I cannot my. I most likely did. 
429$. Q. Did you not say, " I saw fire damp, and have often ignited it, but did not report it" ? A. I did not 

make any specific report. 
4299. Q. Do you mean a thing bound like a beautiful book? Did you report it to any official? A. I cannot 

say from recollection. 
4300. Q. Was this in the days before you had brattice up to the face? A. Oh, no, br-attice was used at that 

time. 
4301. Q. Was it before the new Act came into force? A. Yes. 

4301. Q. Whereabouts is the fan at Corrimal--where is it placed? A. Near the surface, on the return 

airway. 
4302. Q. What protection has that fan got in case of an explosion? A. Well, lot me see -[Interrupted]. 
4303. Q. Is there only some small galvaniz d-iron structure ? A. The fan itself would be safe ; it is 

considerably lower than the incline in the drive. 
4304. Q. Is it open to an explosion I A. An explosion would go where it would find the weakest surface. 

4305. Q. Would the explosion come there? A. It would go where the galvaiized-iron is. It is gall anized- 

iron and brickwork. 
4306. Q. That is the only protection? A. I believe so. 
4307. Q. You run the risk, if an explosion rau along there, of damaging the fan 1 A. It would, but the 

Coal Mines Act provides that they shall not be placed in a position where an explosion shall damage them. 
430$. 
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4308. Q. Now, what is your dread since the Corrimal fire-what do you mean by that 1 A. My dread is 

b ised on reports in the Press of the evidence given at the inquest, and it was that some of the witnesses 

1101(1 positions ___-[interrnpfr/j. 
1309. Q. But you said since the Corrimal fire 3 A. The I emhia accident and the Corrimal fire, 
4310. Q. I will take the Corrimal fire first 3 A. As far as that is concerned the place where the fire 
occurred had been examined before the accident. My dread was this. If it was soexamined it was not 
examined propeliy, or by competent persons able to detect gas. The two periods, the examination and the 
fire, vere only about twenty minutes apart, I believe. 
4311. ilfr. J3euce Srnzth.] (9. Twenty minutes between the examination and the accident? A. Yes. 

4312. JEEr. Wade.] Did you satisfy yourself that the man was not competent? A. I (10 not go that far. 

4313. Q. Did you follow the accident up, and ascertain how it happened, and how the gas came out of the 
workings 1 A. I have inquired ; but I do not know whether I got the right story. 
4314. Q. Was it dread lest the work should be done carelessly, or that careful men could not find the gas? 

A. I want some guarantee that these men are competent. 
4315. Q. You cannot say that these men are not competent? A. I can give you no proof. I would like 

to have some proof that a man is competent. 
4:310. Q. how long has he been at work? A. I have not come in contact with the under-manager or 

deputy the last few years. 
4317. (9. How long has he been an official at the mine? A. There were several engaged in the examination, 

4318. (9. How long is the shortest peiiod which one of them had been there? A. Nine months. 

4319. (9. And the longest period? A. Oh, many years. 
4320. (9. And you cannot tell whether a man is competent? A. The occasion may never arise to test a man. 

4321. Q. During that period notlnng may happen to show whether a man was competent I A. No. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Bruce Smith 

4322. Q. You spoke of the officials at the Corrimal Mine 1 A. Yes. 

4323. (). Which do you say are holding certificates? The Manager is one, what about the underground- 

manager? A. I cannot say. 
4324. (9. It is not the knowledge that men are employed without a certthcate which causes you to fear? A. No. 

4325. (9. It is only because you do not know that they have passed an examination that you are fearful? 
A. Yes ; we are anxious. 
4326. (9. \Vhat mine are you at now 3 A. Corrimal. 
4326-. Q. You do not mention Mount Pleasant. Do you know that men who hold important positions at 
Mount Pleasant passed examinations ? A. 1 do not think they did. 
4327. Q. Why did you not include Mount Pleasant among the collieries in which you feel no confidence 

A. The same clreal will apply to every cAhiery in the district. 
4328. Q. Did it apply when you verc in Mount Pleasant? A. At that time I was not so conversant with the 

dangers of difftrerit gass. - 
4329. Q. It is not from knwledge of theit inconipetence that you experienced this fear? A. There is no 

incompetence to our knowledge. 
4330. (9. have any of the officials in the Corrimal Mine dispi iyed any want of experince that you can 
name? A. I will not go so far as to say that. 
4331. (9. 1 suppose that every accident on a ship, railway, or cal-mine, produces some sort of panic in the 
,ninds of the people? A. Yes but it is more than twelve months ago since I recognised the importance of 
these things which I am speaking to you about. 
4332. Q. You tell the Commission that the dread has been since these two disasters ?-I suppose you know 
it is a dangerous undertaking, coal-mining 3 A. Yes, 
4333. Q. Now, you know there is a proposition that an Inspector should have the power to order the use 
of safety-lamps I Do you think the Inspector should have the absolute power to order them? A. Yes. 
4334. Q. \Vithout giving the mine-owners an opportunity of saying something on the other side? A. We 

take the Inspectors to be men of principle, and of groat experience. 
4335. Q. Do you know that whenever an Inspector sees anything going on in a mine that appears to be 
dangerous he can call on the Manager to take certain steps, and if the Manager wishes he can take action 
under the Arbitration Act? A. And in the meantime the men may get blown up. 
4330. Q. You know of that provision? A. No ; I dare say it is there. 
4337. Q. Your idea is that, if the Inspector comes to the conclusion that safety lamps ought to be used, he 
should have the power to order them, entirely on his own discretion? A. Yes. 

433$. Q. Now, I want to know how far you thought these matters out? You did not take part in the 
formulation of these suggestions? A. I did not say that I formulated them I made suggestions. 
4339. Q. It did not emanate from you originally I I want the Commission to see how far you thought this 
matter out. Do you believe that the Chief Inspector or the local Inspector should have this power I A. 
I suppose the District Inspector would not take steps without consulting his superior officer. 
4340. Q. You are presuming that he would first consult the Chief Inspector? A. Yes. 
4341. Q. Your suggestion is, that the local Inspector should have the power, subject to the approval of the 
Chief Inspector ? A. That is what it amounts to. 
4342. Q. have you made any special study of the difference between ventilation, by fans and the present 
mode of ventilation by furnace ? A. No. 
43 13. Q. Now, as to waste workings. Do I undertand from you that waste workings should be completely 
sealed off, or that they are not to be connected with the intake? The wording of the recommendation is 
That the workings shall be ahisoiutely sealed off? Do you commit yourself to that ? A. No not absolutely. 

4344. (9. You do not want theni to open into the intak s? A. That is all I want. 

4345. Q. With regard to the safety-lamps, I would like to know if, in endorsing the provision that an extra 
supply of safety-lamps and requisites equal to one third of the number of persons employed1 below ground 
be kept in good order and ready for use, you mean to include all mines in which safety-lamps are required 
to be ued regularly I A. Yes. 
4:346. Q. Take a case with 300 men working ina mine, what do you require--that 100 lamps should be 
kept ; that is, 100 in excess of those usually required I A. Yes. 
4347. Q. Then 300 men would mean 400 lamps? A. That is the proposal. 4348. 
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4318. Q. Where there are 300 men in the mine in two shifts, -and one shift is in the mine, how many lamps 
would there be over? A. In the middle of the day there would be none left. 
4349. Q. For how long? A. Between the hours of 9 and 3. 
4350. Q. The whole 300 would be in the mine 1 A. Yes. 
4351. Q. And what you suggest is an extra hundred? A. Yes. 
4352. Q. Do you suggest that they should be kept filled, and oiled, and trimmed? A. All ready for lighting. 
4353. Q. You want the oil kept in them, and the wicks lightel 1 A. We want them to have the material 
ready. 
4354. Q. Do you think it practicable that an extra hundred lamps should be kept by any company constantly 
filled, and oiled, and the wicks ready to be lighted 1 A. I would not go so far as that I am satisfied if the 
material is there. 
4355. Q. Now take the case of a mine in which lamps are not used, with 300 men working in it ;___what 
extra quantity would you suggest there 1 A. The same proportion as where the lamps are used. 
4356. Q. It would be a quantity- equal to one-third of the number of persons employed below ground-not 
an extra quantity of lamps 1 A. Yes. 
4357. Q. You want them trimmed A. Yes. 
4358. Q. How long will that take? A. A good while. 
4359. Q. That is something like saying A lump of chalk ;-how long would it take 1 A. It would take 
about a minute, or two minutes if there were dircy glasses. 
4360. Q. Nov as to the watering ;-have you thought that out ? A. Yes. 
4361. Q. What is the suggestiou-to water the none to keep down the dust ? A. I believe the suggestion is 
male owing to an improvement at South Bulli, where they water the mine with a very fine sprsy, which, 
moistens the air; and the air moistens the dust. 
4362. Q. \Vhicli part does it water-where is the water required 1 A. On the floor principally. 
4363. Q. You have recommended that the manholes should be enlarged, based on an experience gained in 
mines in which the travelling- road and the rope-road are in one 1 A. Yes. 
436 1. Q. At what speed in these mines do the engines travel, 10 miles an hour or, roughly, S miles an 
hour, if von like 1 A. That would be the speed, S or 10 miles per hour. 
4365. Q. Do you say that dust rises in the Corrimal Mine? A. Yes. 
4366. Q. At what rate do the skips go A. It is not the skips, but the men and the horses. 
4367. Q. In the Mount Pleasant Mine, dust is not raised by the travelling of the skips, but by the men 
walking in ? A. Skips raise the dust ; and the men and horses also. 
4368. Q. Have you seen some dust in Corrimal 1 1. Yes. 
43681. 2. Raised by the skips? A. I do not mention the skips at all, but the men and the horses. 
4369. Q. No',v, do you suggest that where there is a travelling road you should have the enlarged manholes ? 
A. The necessity does not arise so vitally there. 
4370. Q. As to the instructions to b given to the men, when do you propose that these should be given- 
that is the way out of the mine? A. It is simply a proposal that a deputy may take charge of a squad or 
district, or men employed in a heading, at knocking off time, and show them the difibrent ways out of the 
mine. 
4371. Q. Would a miner give the time that was involved in going out of the mine another way ? A. Yes, 
I think he wouid. 
4372. Q. That is, supposing that it involved no extra time ;-suppose it involved his going out of the mine 
at Kembla and walking round the Mountain ? A. I do not suppose you would make it compulsory. I am 
quite satisfied that the mejority of inn would do so. 
4373. Q. How do you account for some of the statements made with regard to men (leclining to act as 
check-inspeeters 1 A. They are not ia a sufficiently independent position to make the inspection. 
4374. Q. Is that the real reason? A. I think so. 
4375. Q. Is it not the question of payment 1 A. No. 
4376. Q. Does not that arise at all-are they not paid by the other miners? A. That question has nothing 
to do with it. 
4377. Q. The principal difficulty is that if these men report the state of things as unfavourable to the 
management it would injure them ? A. I believe that to be a fact. 
4378. Q. You believe that-that is your opinion ? A. That is my opinion in the matter. 
4379. Q. How long is it since you knew of an inspection at the Mount Pleasant Mine? A. I do not work 
there ; the Act was not in force when I wot keci there. 
4330. Q. In Corrimal ? A. Once in two years. 
4381. Q. Do they report? A. I do not know. 
4382. Q. }-Iave you seen a report? A. No, I do not know whether it is favourable or unfavourable. 
4383. Q. You do not remember its being either favourable or unfavourable to the nianagetnent? A. No. 
43831. Q. Do you know one man who ever asked to be shown out by the other ways, in the mines that you 
have been in? A. I do not recollect their ever asking to be shown out. I have known them to ask to be 
allowed to travel a road, and to travel to the daylight exir, and they have been ref used ;and there has been 
a danger board out across it. 
4384. Q. You smile when you talk about it ;-why? A. I do not know. 
4385. Q. Was there anything in the suggestion that men could get out of a mine before their time ? A. 
No ; their wages depend on the time they stop. 
43S6. Q. Do some of the men want to get away before their day's work is finished ? A. Not to my 
knowledge. 
4387. Q. Then, is there anything humorous about it? A. No. 
438$. Q. Do you know of any ease where they have asked to be shown out? A. I do not know of any case 
where they have asked to go out. 
4389. Q. You recognise that, with every change of mneu, it would be necessary to instruct them af esh 1 
A. An official inspection would be all that is necessary. Mr. Atkinson made that suggestion--I mean the 
suggestion about placing finger-boards at difFerent points in the mine. • 
4390. Q. What do you think of that suggestion? A. I think it is a very good one indeed.. 
4391. Q. When this recommendation came up at the Delegate Board, did you know of that? A. Yes. 

4392. 
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4392. Q. Did you suggest that that would be a better way than having these pilots to take the men out 
A. I think that both might be worked. 
4393. Q. With regard to the finger-boards alone, would that he sufficient direction if the men did not know 
the road? A. Not unless there was a series of them—one at each turn. 
4391. Q. And you ask if the men could also be shown the way out ? A. Yes. 
4395. Q. As to the request that the men should travel certain roads—was it complied with? A. No. 
4396. Q. Was it refused? A. A danger-board was placed on the heading ; and the men would have to go 
under the danger-hoard. 

[The Commission, at 450 p.m., adjourned until 10 o'clock the following morning.] 

TIIURSDAY 15 JAiYUARY, 1903. 

[77 Commission met at the Court house, ihoCongor'g] 

C. F. R. MURRAY, 1ESQ., D.C.J. (PItEsIDEY'i). 

D. A. \Y. ROBERTSON, ESQ., ColleIssIoaEn. 1 D, RITCHIE, Es., Co3iuJscIoNc7. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at--Law, instructed by _.Mr. \Voml, Crown Solicitor's Office, a1)pearcd on b-clmalf 
of tile Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-nones, assisted Mr. Bruce gmnith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared omi behalf of-- 
the represeiitatives of deceased mIners, svneelers, 1c. (victims of the exploeion) 
the employees of the Mount Kemhla Colliery (mimmers, wheelers, &c.) and 
the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' 1nioii). 

Mr. C. G. Mmdc, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Yr. F. Curtiss, appeared on behalf of the Mount Keiiibla 
Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of i'jeommt henmbla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was 1tresent to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceetliugs.) 

4397. His Honor.] Have you formed any opinion, Mr. Lysaght., a'.out when your evidence will finish? 
4398. Mr. Lysaght.] At Wollongong? 
4399. his h1000r. Yes. 
4400. df•. Lysag/mt.] About Wedaesday next. I have tao witne:;es from (?unnctiah whom I propose to 
call in Sydney. If the Commission are goinJ to sit at Ne-vcastl', I might call witnesses there in support 
of these recommendations of the Deli-gate B )arj. LTntil  Mr. \Vado indie:ites how far lie resists the 
recommendations, and uutil I know Low far Mr. lb uce Smith acquiesces, I must keep on calling this 
evidence, and suppom-ting it from other districts. 
4401. his honor.] You need not settle the witnesses at Newcastle until we decide whether we shall sit there 
or not. 
4402. AIr. Lysay/mt.] If either of the Counsel could indicate to me, or if the Commission could indicate to 
me in a general way, where I need not fLirther burden these recommendations with evidence, I would be 
glad to save the time of the Commission. 
4403. d[r. IJnmca Smith.] The difficulty is the form in which thay are ptmt. They are put in such an 
unconditional way. 
4404. Mr. 11'ade.1 It seems to me that the only reasons, jiro and con, for these recommendations have been 
given to the Court and I am not goimmg to take up titmie cross examining, unless some particular witness 
happens to give something outside these reasons that have been given which expressly requires questioning. 
4405. his 11000?.] There is no doubt that the general reasons for these various recommendations are 
utmderstoocl by the Commission and it may be that Mr. Wade or Mr. Bruce S.nitlm may call evidence 
going more into detail and touclmimmg more on the qurstn-n of experse, and that sort of timing, in relation to 
these various suggestions which will be of great assistance to the Commission, wiatreas a ri-petition of the 
general evidence in favour of the various recommendations would hardly be of much value. It is hardly 
possible to increase the value of a general rceomnmeudation by a belief in it being repeated by aim indefinite 
number of people. 
4406. dIr. Bruce Smith.] The position I feel I am in is this : On b.h:df of the Department I should not 
only not oppose, but I should feel it my duty to invite, any practical miners to oiler any suggestions to the 
Court that they think fit : but I should feel it my duty to see by crass-examination how far the suggestions 
are founded Upon actual knowledge of their own. If a in-an comes here and says, " Well, the Delegate 
Board has recommemmdecl this, and therefore I endorse it.,' it does not, conic NNith any more strength from 
hmiui than from the Delegate Board ; but if it conic fi-wim a maim who has evidently thought about these 
things, and can give some reasons for his opinions, I wifl do my best to draw that out for the information of 
the Commission. Then, with regard to assenting to any of these reconmnendations they are very bald in 
their formam, aimd vem y  unconditional ; and they appear to have been I ecomniended, I think, without any 
sufficient consideration for the interests of the industry. They appear to have only taken into consideration 
a1 possible precautions for protecting the miners' livem : bu t I think it is also necessary to think of the 
circumstances, and whether the industry might not p.ssibly be strangled under these recommendations. 
Of CourSC, one can carry precautions to such an extent that when you send a ship to sea you send another 
ship alongside it —[Interrupted.] 
4107. this Ilonor.1 What yoti say is, that in attemmpting to save life you may sacrifice the bread and butter 
which supports life. 
4408. Mr. Bruce .S'iniilm.] Yes. I am looking all round this industry not only looking at the interests of 
the miners, but at those of the public, and of the owners. The unconclitinal form of these recommendations 
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prevents me and Mr. Atkinson, as representing the Department, from consenting to anything in an 
unconditional form. It is quite possible, indeed probable, that with regard to some of these there will be 
assent, with conditions and modifications attached to them: and tLeret'rc it will be quite impossible for me
to save Mr. Lysaght time by saying, "\Vell, as far as I am concerned you need not call any more evidence." 
4109. his ilonor.] I might suggest, too, that there is nothing to prevent the DelegateBoard, if they think 
fit, from revising their own suggestions, or making fresh ones during the course of the Inquiry. 
4410. AIr. Lysay/tt.] They may make new suggestions, but I venture to say that they would not modify 
these, because I know they have very carefully considered them. 
4411. his honor.] That is a question entirely for them. 
4412. Mr. Lysaght.] But Your Honor will accept from me any new recommendation they might send tome? 
4413. us Honor.] Yes. It is suggested that the better plan, in revising the evidence of most of the 
witnesses called by you, Mr. Lysaght, is that you should settle any little question of error. I believe you 
are quite willing to do so 1 
4411, AIr. Lysaght'.] Yes. 
4415. his honor.] Instead of the evidence being sent out to the witnesses, and confusion possibly arising. 
If you are willing to adopt that course, the Commission think it is the b st course, on the suggestion of 
the Secretary. 
4416, Mr. Lysaght.] Yes, Your Honor. 

Mr. JOHN SWEENEY was sworn, and examined as under :-

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght 

4417. Q. What is your name? A. John Sweeney. 
4118. Q. Where do you work? A. South Bulli. 
4419. Q. What are you? A. A miner. 
4420. Q. Are you a member of the Delegate Board of the Illawarra Mmci s' Union? A. Ye's. 
4421. Q. What has been your mining experience, Mr. Sweeney 1 A. Fifteen years, since I was first engaged 
in coal mining. 
4422 Q. In what collieries 1 A. North Bulli, hembla, Corrimal, South Bulli. 
4123. Q. How long is it since you worked in Kembla 1 A. It is ten years since I worked in Kembia. 
4121. Q. At that time do you know whether gas existed in Kenabla Mine? A. Ihave no knowledge of any 
gas in Kenilla at that time. 
4 125. Q. Were you at NI ,unt Kembla Mine the evening of the disaster 1 A. No. 
4426. Q. Do you know anything about the disaster at all 1 A. Nothing whatever : only the evidence that 
was to Le seen outside the tunnel mouth. 
4127. Q. Now, regarding these rctcom niendations. No. 1, '' Monogers, under-managers, deputies, and 
so-firvrs, to hold certificates of competency by examination, and to have had five ye-Ira' practical 
eaperie'nca, before being e1igihe fr r(spectivo p sitjons.'' What 1-) you say in support of that 1 A. I do 
say th-it, owing to the position, and the responsibility that rests on men who are firing shots and examining 
the woeking places, I consider it is necesaarv that they should have an expel's knowledge of gas : that they 
should be able to test what quantity of gas is in the place, and whether it would be absolutely safe to lire a 
shot in the presence of it : and that they should also have a knowledge of the cleat conditions existing in 
that plaw', and whether, o'.viiig to the dust that was in the place, it would be unsafe to fire a shot. I 
consider it is necessary that those gentlemen should have a knowledge of those conditions. 
4428. Q. Do you know whether the deputies and shot-firers at South Bulli hold any ceitificates? A. I do 
not know. 
4129. Q. What sort of lamps have you at South Bullil A. Safety-lamps in one section of the mine. 
4430. Q. And in the other section 1 A. Flare lamps. Of course I am not working in the other section 
but I understand they are fl-are-lamps. 
4431. Q. Do you know of the presence of any ,as at South Bulli? A. I have seen the gas lighted in South 
Bulli on one or two occasions. 
4432. Q. When Ii A. Well, it would probably be about four months ago since I saw it last. It was just 
preious to the lamps going in. 
4433. Q. Was that reported? A. Yes. I to'd the deputy that we had lit a blower. 
4434. his Honor]. Q. That was since the Ketnbla explosion ? A. Since the Kembla exp?csion. 
4435. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. And before the disaster had you lit gas 1 A. Yes. On one occasion before the 
disaster I also saw a blower lit in one heading. 
4136. Q. And that was reported ? A. Ye, to the deputy. 
4437. Q. To the same deputy ? A. No. It was in a different district. 
4138. Q. Who was the deputy that you last reported the gas to, after the disaster 1 A. WilLam Gelding. 
He was the night deputy. 
4439. Q. And the first one? A. William Hinds. And also TlobertFeltun ; he was the day deputy on the 
last occas:on. 
4440. Q. Now, was anything done by those deputies when you made the reports? A. Not that I know of, 
unless they brought the CaII Cal further towards the face. 
4441. Q.That is all you know? A. Nothing extra that I know of was done. 
4142. Q. Recommendation No. 2.-' Jnspeetoi's be vested with absolute powers to order use of safety-
lamps." \V'iat do you say on that I A. I consider that, when the Government Inspector deems it neces-
sary that safe-t;' lamps should be used, lie should have the power to order t?teii use at once. 
4443. Q. Recommendation No. 3--'' Ventilation by furnace prohibited, and fans substituted" 1 A. Yes. 
I any most decidedly in favour of ventilation by fans. 
4144. Q. What have you at South Bullil A. We have a fan. 
4445. Q. I-Tow ]on ,,  has it been there? A. I have no knowledge of how long it has been there; but it has 
been there during the last two years and a half in which I have worked there. 
4-1-16. Q. Have you worked in collieries whet-c there was only a furnace? A. Yes. In fact, South Bulli was 
the only mine I has-c worked in where there wes a fan. 
4 147. Q. What were the conditions of the air in thee mines you worked in with a furnace 1 A. In soma 
ca'es the conditions \vcs-e very bad. - 44 4• 



	

195 
lit 55---J. Sweeney, 15 January, 1933. 

4418. Q. What cases do you refer to 1 A. I most distinctly remember on one occasion in North Bulli, when 
the air was very Lad in the heading in which I worked. 
4449. . How long ago was that 1 A. 'l'lust is some twelve years ago now. 
4450. Q. Do you know what they have now 1 A. The mine is idle. 
4451. Q. is there any other mine working with a furnace in which you know of the air being Lad I A. No. 
At South Bulli, on on(,  occasion irevious  to time erection of the fan, the air was very warm there. Of 
course that is some time ago. 
4452. Q. What was the condition at Corrimal when they had a furnace? A. Well, I have not a very good 
recollection of Corrimal owing to the length of time since I worked there. 
4153. Q. And what were the conditions at Kembla? A. Ole well, so far as I can remember, the air 
conditions were satisfactory. 
4454. Q. Recommendation No. 5-" All places except prospecting drives to have cut-throughs not more 
than 30 yards apart' I What do you say to that I A. I should consider that it is very necessary to 
have cnt-throughs at that distance, if you drive your headings a greater distance than 30 yards, you 
havetheim again got to drive the distance through the pillar; so that, if you have 30 yards between your 
cut-throughs, then before you get a connection you will have to drive another 10 or 12 yards before you 
get a connection through the pillar ; and, if you drive that, you will then be 40 yards ahead of the air. 
4455. Q. \Vlmat has been you experience of brattice I A. It is not very effective, because it is not of a very 
substantial nature ; and it is very easily disarranged ; and there is always a certain amount of leakage 
before the air reaches the face. It leaks through the canvas, either over the top or underneath the canvas, 
owing to inequalities in the floor and inequalities in the roof. It is almost an impossibility to make it 
air-tight. 
4456. Q. And do you think there would be any danger to the roof in having the cut-throughs only 30 yards 
apart I A. Oh, I do not think that it would make any great dilTerence. 
4157. Q. What is the longest drive that you have seen without a cut-through, in your experience? A. I 
could not tell you. I really have no knowledge. 
4458. Q. What is the average distance between cut-throughs, in your experience? A. Well about 40 or 45 
yards. 
4159, Q. Recommendation No. 7--"Monthiy examination and report by deputies and District Inspector with 
hydrogen flame " ? A. That would be in order to give the miners working in the colliery a feeling that 
they were in a certain degree of safety in the mine : a feeling that, owing to having time mine inspected 
freqoently, there would be no great danger of accumulations of gas, or other noxious gases that would be 
injurious or tend to cause an xplosion. 
4460. Q. Do you know of a feeling of insecurity now, in this district? A. Well, there is a feeling of unr st 
amongst the miners since Kembla exploded. The general feeling amongst the peole was that Kembla was 
a safe mine and that we wet-c working under iin'ich better conditions, and that the possibilities of such an 
occurrence as at Kembla or Bulli were very remote ; but the fact of the accident at Kembla having taken 
place has rendered the feeling of security miull and void ; and we are still of opinion that there is some 
room for imrmprovem€nt. 
4461. Q. Do you know of any other cause, besides the actual explosion, that has put time men in this slate 
of fear? A. Well, yes; according to the evidence given before time Coroner at the inquiry_that has caused 
the men to think that, from the evidence given by some individuals, perhaps, they have not got the know-
ledge that it is necessary that a Manager or overman should have. 
4462. Q. Recommendation No. 11-" Weekly measurement of air in each section, and report thereof sent to 
Inspector"? What do you say to that? A. Yes. I consider that there should be someone who would see 
that the necessary quantity of air is at all times travelling around the face of the workings. 
4163. Q. And would you have time inspection made at the face of the workings? A. Most certainly. That 
is where we are working; and that is where we require the air-on the face of the workings. 
4464. Q. Recommendation No. 12-" Extra supply of safety-lamps and their requisites, equal to one-third 
the number of persons employed below ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use"? 
A. Yes, I consider it very necessary to have safety-lamps, so that they may be got ready for use at the very 
shortest notice in case of accideimt such as at Kembla or Bulli. 

.4165. (). Do you know whether there were any safety-lamps at South Bulli at the time of the Kembla 
disaster ? A. Yes, there were lamps the:e. Ti; fact I saw them packing up lamps to send away to Kembla. 
4466. (7. \Vlmat time was that? A. It would be about 3 o'clock, as near as I can remember. 
1467. (7. And do you know whietimer they sent all their lamps away? A. I could not say. 
4468. (7. Recommendation No 13_"Traveliing and haulage roads, and other places necessary, to be 
properly watered." What has been your experience as to dust in these collieries? A. My experience is 
that some of the travelling roads have been very dusty ; and I have experienced at South Bulli that the 
travelling road has been watered, and that it is very much more convenient travelling these roads - 
[Tnkri'upted.] 
4469. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. That is since Kembla? A. Since Kembla. 
4170. Mr. Lysag/tt.] Q. Do you know of any other mine where they watered the travelling roads? A. No. 
4471. Q. Recommendation No. 14-" Managers compelled to give more personal time and attention to 
nmanagemnent of colliery." What has been your experience as to Managers coming to your working place I 
A. Oh, so far as South Bulli is individually concerned I think I have seen our Manager sufficiently often. 
4472. Q. About lmow often? What do you call sufficiently often? A. Well, I saw him once a week. 
4473. Q. And time other collieries I A. Well, I have nothing to say in respect to time other collieries 
because since I have worked in any other colliery some time has elapsed, and it is not clear to my mind 
how often J saw the Managers in those cases. 
4474. Q. Do you think once a week would be a reasonable and proper time for the Manager to visit the 
working face I A. Well, I think that once a week would be sufficient. 
4475. (7. As a matter of fact, I think South Bulli is the largest colliery in the Illawarra district? A. Yes. 
4476. Air. Jt'obertson.] No. 
4477. Q. How do you define it as the largest? 
4478. Aft'. Lysag/mt.] Q. As regards the employment of hands I A. Of course I could not swear as to which 
employs the most Imands; but it is my opinion that there are more hands employed about South Bulli than 
about any other mine in the district. 4179. 
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4479. Q. And your Manager has been able to visit, according to your experience, once a week? A. I cannot 
say he has visited the whole of the working places once a week. That is only my experience individually. 
4180. Q. Recommendation No. 16-" Size of manholes enlarged." What has been your experience about 
the size of manholes ? A. Well, it is some time since J1ever lied the necessity to use the manhole ; but 
when it was the case of course I considered that the manholes were rather small. I have only used man-
holes in the case of the travelling road being the engine road. 
4481. Q. What colliery was that in? A. At North Bulli. Part of the travelling road was the engine 
road-the hauling road. 
4482. Q. And what size do you say the manholes ought to be ;-they have to be now 3 x 4 x 6 1 A. Well, 
I should say certainly that they should be about ii feet wide. 
4483. Q. And what depth, how far back? A. Oh, about 4 feet. 
4481. Q. Recommendation No. 18-" Instruction to employees regularly on means of escape." You might 
tell us in each of the collieries that you have been in how many means of escape did you know of A. Well, 
practically, only the two roads-the travelling road and the engine road. Of course, they weie both very 
close to each other ; and those are the only roads out of the mine that ever I knew. 
448.5. Q. How much do you know about the roads from South Bulli now? A. I only know the one road 
out--the travelling road. 
4486. Q. Do you know if there are any other ways out? A. I have reason to believe there is a daylight 
tunnel at Bulli, driven to the surface. 
4487. Q. Do you know where it is ;-could you find your way out that way A. I could not. 
4489. Q. Whons would you have to give those instructions to-the miners-as to the way to get out? A. I 
would leave that to the deputy. 
4490. Q. When do you propose he should (10 it? A. He should do it periodically after the mine had 
knocked off. He could arrange with the men what time he would lead them out that particular way. 
4491. Q. Recommendation No. 19-" Coat-mines Act to forbid a black list of employees being kept, and 
penalising improper prevention of discharged persons obtaining 

WT 

employment." In your opinion would such 
a provision assist the better management of collieries ;-what do you say regarding this proposal ? A. itli 
regard to the black list 
4492. Q. Yes ; and as regards the proposal that a penalty should be provided for the improper prevention 
of discharged persons obtaining employment 1 A. I most certainly do not favour the existence of a black 
list-by no means. 

4493. Q. Do you know whether there is one in existence, or whether there has been one, in this district I 
A. I do not know, of my own personal experience. That is a thing that I have had no opportunity of 
knowing positively, whether such a thing exists or not; but I have an idea that such is the case. But I 
could not possibly swear that such a tiling exists, simply because I have no means of finding this out. 
4494. Q. And in what way would such a provision in an Act of Parliament assist the Letter management 
of collieries ? A. It would act in this way that if a man saw anything going wrong w'ith the working 
conditions of the colliery, he would not be afraid to report it. 
4195. Q. In your opinion, are men afraid to repoit things now ? A. Well, that is the suppoaiticn-that 
men are afraid. 

4496. Q. Recommendation No. 20-" Safety-lamps not to he unlocked for shot-firing." how are these shots 
fired in South BAli ? A. They have a lamp in South l4ulli now for the purpose-a shot-firing lamp ; and it 
is fired by inserting a wire through the lamp ; and the fuse is lighted by touch-paper. 
4497. Q. In your opinion, is it a very dangerous practice to unlock a safety-lamp to fire a shot ? A. It most 
certainly is dangerous. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade 

4498. Q. This statement of yours that men are afraid to report things now is merely a suspicion-is it 
not ;-purely suspicion ? A. Of course, it is purely suspicion. 
4499. Q. And the only instance you could give us of a man who has reported things is your own case-is it 
not? A. That is ridllt. 
4500. Q. And you have made no hesitation about reporting gas? A. No. 
4501. Q. And no trouble followed to you? A. No. 
4502. Q. And you reported gas, as you say, both before Kembla disaster and since ? A. Just to, at South 
Bulfi 

4003. Q. Than, as far as you know, the deputies in those cases took steps to increase the ventilation by 
bringing the brattice closer up to the face ? A. Yes. 
4504. Q. And it seemed to have the desired eulhct ;- you saw no more gas? A. Oh, I do not know that it 
had the desired effect. 
4505. Q. Did you see any more gas light? A. No. Simply because when once a man finds gas he takes 
every possible precaution, and the chances that he would find gas again would be much smaller. 
4506. Q. Then you were more careful ? A. Just so. 
4507. Q. Flow was the gas lit? A. It was in a heading. 
4508. Q. What had you been doing 1 A. Holding up time light to examine the coal more closely. 
4509. Q. Had you just fired a shot? A. No. 
4.510. Q. Was it when you first came? A. No ; we had been working. 
4011. Q. For what length of time were you working in Mount Kembla? A. Not a great length of time, 
4512. Q. What is that? A. About four months. 
4513. Q. In what part ? A. It was called No. 6 at that time. 
4514. Q. That would be in the shaft district? A. I could not say what district it i. 
4515. Q. Would you have more than one main haulage road at that time? A. No. Only the one that t know of. 

4016. Q. And there was a small furnace close to the tunnel mouth, was not there? A. I could not say. 
4517. Q. Do you not know that? A. I do not know. 
418. Q. DoT understand ynu to say that as long as n shot-firer can tell gas, and as long as-lie knows tim 
way to examine for gas, and can tell gas when be sees it in a safety-lamp ; and as long as lie has some 
knowledge of dust, that is sufficient to qualify him for shot-firing? A. No. I say he should be qualified 
by examination before a person competent to examine him. 4519. 
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4519. Q. I do not ask you how. I ask you, if he knows these things, is it sufficient? A. If he can prove it. 
4520. Q. Of courul', if lie can prove it ; if he knows these things : if it is known that lie has that 
knowledge ? A. If it is known by examination. 
4521. Q. Never mind how it is known. Suppose it is known by insliration : suppose it is known that he 
has that knowledge, is it sufficient then ? A. No. 
4322. Q. Why 1 A. It wants a certificate by a person competent to examine him. 
4523. . That is only one way of finding out that he knows it. Suppose you have a certificate by a person 
in the mine that he knows gas, that he can tell gas when lie sees it, and. that he knows what dusty conditions 
are? A. We want proof that he knows these things. 
4.524. Q. Suppose you have the proof: are you satisfied? A. If we are sat isfle3. 
4325. Q. If you have the proof, are you satisfied? A. If we have the proof, we are satisfied. 
4326. Q. Now, you can test for gas, can you not? A. No. 
4327. (7. Have you no idea how to do it? A. No. 
4528. (7. Do you mean to sty that you, a practical man for fifteen years, do not know lnw to test for gas? 
A. I do not know how to test for it. 
4329. (7. You have no idea? A. Well, I have a slight idea. 
4530. (7. Let us have that slight idea. Fifteen years has not taught you much, apparently. How do you 
(10 it? A. Not with a naked light. 
4531. (). What do you do it with? A. The only thing I have had all oppwlunity of doing it with is the 
ordinary safety-lamp. 
4532. Q. \Vehl, try that. What do you do with the ordinary safety-lamp ? A. I have fohowccl the action 
as nearly as I could of per5ons whom I saw testing gas or trying to test it. 
4533. (7. What did you see done ? A. I saw theni raise their lamp up to the roof gradually and watch the 
flame. 
45:34. (7. Yes 1 A. W011, I did the same. 
4533. (7. What did you notice on the Same I A. I noticed no alteration. 
4536. Q. Did you ever find out, or were you ever told, what to expect to see on the flame if there was gas ? 
A. Yes. 
4337. Q. What is that? A. I was told t hat there would lie a blue cap rise on the li,dit. 
4538. Q. So you know what to look out for, if you are called upon to test for gas? A. I do not consider 
myself qualified to test for gas. 
4539. (). I do not ask anyt lung about that. You may he a very modest man for all I know. Do you know 
that if there is much tine dust l ing about a place it may cause trouble after a shot is fired ? A. Only from 
what I have read. 
4510. (). Of course, from what you have real. Of course you have not had experience of it, luckily, or 
you would not be here. Now, what is the deepest mine you have worked in 7 How much cover was there 
overhead? A. I could not tell you. In coal-mines? 
4541. Q. Yes. Of course I mean in coal-mine i? A. I have only worked in those coal-mines in this district; 
and of cuure the dep: Ii of cover I do not know. 
4542. (7. You have not viom kel in Helensburglt 1 A. No. 
4543. (7. Just one word about these safety-lamps : did you tell us what time it was you first had 
information at South Bulb about the explosion at Keitilla ? A. I could. 
4541. Q. What was it--2 30 or 3 o'clock, or what I A. Well, it was about 3 o'clock when I saw them getting 
the lamps ready. 
4545. Q. And that was the firt you ken w of the explosion? ii. Yes. 
4.546. Q. And at that time they were getting lamps ready to send off to Keinbia? A. Yes. 
4547. Q. Do you know that messagEs were sent out from Wollongong hire at once, when they heard 
the explosion, to get lamps sent out from Soulli Lulli A. I do not know it. I take it that such was 
the case. - 
4.548. Q. With regard to these manholes (Recommendation No. 16). If you get a depth of 6 feet from the 
rails, a space of 6 feet between the solid wall and the rails, and a a-iddi of 4 feet, you can jamb in six 
men there, can you. not 1 A. Oh, of course, I suppose they could pack in ; but you have not very much 
time, in a case where it is necessary to use the mnanitole. You would not have munch time for packing. It 
is just a matter of getting in the best way you can. 
4319. Q. Of course you wou'd not pack scientifically I adroit that. But, if there were five or six men 
wanting to get into that manhole, they could get in A. If you could get them to go in in their order; but 
it would be difficult to get them in at once. 
4530. (7. Could not they get in? A. If they have the time and opportunity they could get in. 
4531. (7. I assume they have the time and opportunity, and everything. I ask, is there room for them? 
Is there not plenty of room for them ? A. In that case there would be. 

Cross examination by Mr. Bruce Smith 

4552. (7. Can you give me time date upon which you reported to Hinds ? A. I could not. 
4553. (7. 01 the month 1 A. No. 
4551. (7. After you had reported to hinds that you had seen this gas, you say that the brattice was earned 
further up? A. Yes, lie took the ordinary precautlots to keep the brattice closir to the face than perhaps 
he would if it had not been for the report. 
4555. (7. That is the only time you bach seen gas in that mine prior to the Kembla disaster? A. Yes. 
4556. (7. What (1uantity did you finch there? I ant not asking you to iame the cubic measurement: but to 
what extent did it go off? A. It. did not go off at all. It just simply iguitei.l, just the same as you light a 
gas jet. 
4557. Q. Was it oozhtg fiont the coal, and cliil it light like a gas jet ; or had it accumulated in the roof 
and gone off xvii It a fl tsh ? A. No. It was ocx ig from the coal. 
453d. Q. What you e,ill a blower 1 A. Yes. 
4359. Q. Oil the other occasion, when you reported to Gelding and Felton, was it oozing then or had it 
accumulated ? A. it was oozing. 
4560. Q. After you had discovered it on those t so occasions and lighted it, drcl it continue alight long I 
A. Olt no, only for a few seconds. 4561, 
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4561. Q. Now, with regard to this first suggestion you know that the Managers and under-managers now 
have to pass an examination? A. Yes. 
4562. Q. And you believe that the deputies and shot firci's have not at present ? A. I believe that they 
should. 
4563, Q. Yes, I know : but at present they have not and you are suggesting that they should ? A. Yes. 
4564. Q. Do I understand you to say that, if the miners knew that every man who occupied the position of 
deputy and shot-firer had passed an examination in those subjects you have mentioned, it would give greater 
confidence to the miners ? A. If the miners were absolutely sure that those men were competent. 
4565. Q. I ask you, do I understand you to say that, if the miners knew that these men had passed an 
examination in the subjects you have mentioned, the miners would feel more confident? A. Yes. They 
most certainly would. 
4566. (9. It would generate a feeling of confidence among the miners-make the miners more ready to 
work ? A. Yes, I know that. 
4567. (9. Do you know now of any man who would hesitate to take to this occupation because of the feeling 
of unsafety ? A. I cannot say positively that I know of anyone who would not take to it. 
4568. (9.  There is a feeling of less inclination to go in for it as an occupation ; is that what you mean 
A. That is what I mean. 
4569. Q. And these subjects that you have mentioned, I take it, are what- you consider they should know? 
They should have a knowledge of gas, a knowledge of dust, and of its explosive character; and they should 
have the ability to test for gas ? A. These are only my reconinienclations. I would leave it with an expert 
man, who was competent, to say how much knowledge they would require to have : it is not for us to say 
how much. 
4570. Q. And you think that would be the effect upon the miners as a body, if these men had to go through 
some test of that kind; there would be more confidence ? A. Yes. 
4571. Q. With regard to the second of these suggestions, that the Inspector should be vested with absolute 
powers to order the use of safety-lamps, do I understand you to suggest that the District Inspector should, 
without consulting any bocly,just upon his own motion, have this power? A. Yes. I take it that when the 
Inspector, who must be a qualified man, says that a place is dangerous to work with naked lights-I do say 
that either the men should be withdrawn or the safety-lamps should be at once put in use. 
4572. Q. You may or may not know that, under the Mining Act, there is a proviAou for arbitration where 
the Inspector and the management differ as to sonic new precaution which is to be taken. Do you know 
there is a proviion for arbitration in cases of that kind ? A. I do not know. 
4573. Q. Well, 1 will tell you that there is. Witere the Inspector thinks there ought to be some precaution 
taken for the safety of the mine, md the manaement think it ought not, there is a provision fir arhit-ratimie, 
and for the matter to be gone into en both sides. W'hat do you think of that as a method of arranging it, 
so that the propm ietor can be heard in the matter? A. 'I'hie reason for putting the lamps in is to avoid an 
accident; and, if the lamps were not put in whilst time Arbitration Board were sitting, there might be an 
explosion. 
4574. Q. Supposing they were put in in the mine in the meantime, until the arbitrator had settled the 
question? A. There is no doubt that would have the - [1 tcwr epic-el.] 
4575. Q. Let me put this to you 
4575k. Jfr. £ysag1t.] Let him answer you. 
4576. 1/is honor.] I understand him to wish to say theet that would do for the time. It is self-evident. 
4577. dIr. Bm'oce eS'rniilm.] Q. Supposing a very ciedulous Inspector is told by somebody that he has seen gas; 
and, without taking the trouble to inquire into it carefelly, the Inspector, in an impulsive way, rays, 1 1 Oh, 
I want safety-lamps all over the mine." Do you not think that in a case of that sort a careful investigation 
might lmow that, after all, the satement was not true, or that it might be an exaggeration? Do you not think 
that it would be fair to give the management an opportunity to hear what evidence had come under the 
Inspector's notice, and also to answer it? A. Well, of course [Inie-rupied.] 
4578. Q. Would it not also be fair to the miners, who would be compelled to work with safety-lamps, that 
they should have an opportunity to show that there wrts no necessity for the use of safety-lamps? A. We 
do not like to use the safety-lamps. 
4579. Q. You are less in love with them now that the Arbitration Court has decided that there should be 
no extra pay? A. No. 
4580. Q. Would it not be fair to the miners who have to work with the safety-lamp, and would it not be fair 
to the proprietcrs, who would be put to expense, if they had an opportunity of showing that this statement to 
timelnspector was either a falsehood or an exaggeration; and that no necessity reahlyhad arisen? Would not that 
be a better way than giving the absolute power to any Inspector to order the use of safety-lamps straight 
away ? I am asking you your opinion, quite apart from your duty as a member of the Delegate Board. I 
am asking you as a man, as a miner ? A. Well, of course, if the safety-lamps were ordered in without 
there being any necessity for it it would cem tainly be a disadvantage to miners and mine owners. 
4581. Q. So that, if a man had a spite, say, against the mine, he might go to an Inspector and say, "I had an 
explosion of gas there "  ; and if the Inspector were an impulsive man lie might order the use of safety-lamps 
all over the mine to the extent of 400 or so I A. Yes ; but I do not think the Inspectors should have that 
power, only of their own Ic non ledge - [[n(c'irupted. I 
4582. Q. You have passed this " Inspectors to be vested with absolute powers to order use of safety -lamps"? 
A. That would be after they have had an examination of it themselves, and had satisfied themselves that it 
was necessary. - 
4583. Q. You understand I am not cross examining you at all. I want to find cut what you think of I lese 
things. If I come acm-ms a miner who I think is loom-c cameful than o1n rs I want to get his opim kit. Now, 
I take it that you think that would be a very fair solution of this difficulty, that the miners, and the mine-
ownem-r, should be hcamd on this question of the uce of safety lamps ? A. But in the meantime the safety-
lamps should be us cl. 
4584. Q. But in the meantime the safety-lamps should be used until it is arcemtaimieel w'lether the statemcnt 
made as to the necessity of them is true or not? A. Yes ; I think that is the case. 
4585. Q. Do you endorse this (I%comniendation, No. 3.) : " Ventilation by furnace prohibited, and fans 
substituted " ? You see there it is put in a very absolute way : and you have said ycurself that during your 
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exi)erirce of the Mount KemLla Mine the ventilation was qoite satisfactory A. That is in the particular 
portion in which I worked. liegaioiing the general ventilation of the mine I have nothing to say. 
4586. Q. I say, as far as your experience went., the ventilation of 1\Iount Kembla Mine was satisfactory? 
A. Yes. 
4587. Q. Do you propose that this is to be an absolute rule, that no furnaces are to be allowed in any mines 
under any conditions or is not that a matter of discretion ? A. I contend that fans should be used in all 
mines. That is after they have got to a certain stage. 
458$. Q. There you are. You know there are some mines in this country with three miners in them 
A. That may be. 
4589. Q. I ask you if you know it? A. I do not know of any coal mine with only three working in it. 
4590. Q. Let me tell you that there are mines in this country with only three miners working in them ; now, 
do you wean to tell me that in a case like that the miners must have a fan ;-say three working miners like 
yourself get a mine near some centre, and cart, the ceal in you do not mean to suggest that those men 
should have a fan costing £600 or £700 1 1 want to show how easy it is to rush to a conclusion without 
suilicient thought. Now, do you suggest that a fan should be put in every mine I A. I do not suggest 
that three men should be put to an expense of £000 or £700. 
4591. Q. Do you think that would be fairly met in the same way that I have suggested to you with regard 
to the introduction of safety-lamps so that, if the Department desired a fan to be placed in a mine, and 
the management objected, it should be open to arbitration? A. Oh, a stipulation may be put on as to the 
area of the mine and the number of men ein1rloyed. 
4592. Q. Oh, you admit that it wants some sort of condition attached ;-you cannot make an absolute rule 
of it? A. I would not say that a mine with only three men employed should be put to the expense of £600 
or £700 for a fan. 
4593. Q. You know there are mines with only twenty men employed ? A. Possibly. 
4591. Q. You know there is a new mine opened up lately I A. Mines like that are only in the initiatory 
stage; and, in a general sense, they are not rrrines until they are openeclup extensively and are selling coal. 
4393. Q. \Vhat do you call them then ;-You know they come under the provisions of the Mining Act 
A. To a certain extent. 
4396. Q. Do not they altogether I A. I do not understand that they do. 
4397. Q. Do you know 1 A. I understand that they do not. They are open for a certain time before they 
come under the provisions of the Act. 
4598. Q. Suppose they are open for a certain time, and then they conic under the provisions of the Act, and 
then they only employ twenty men ;-do you not see that it is not necessary to call upon these men to go to 
the expense of several hundred pounds to put up a fan? You see you have discussed tin se things in your 
Delegate Board ; and there has been nobody to point out to you that they are a little too hard and fast I 
A. I admit that there slionid be soup tin ng as to the area of the mine and the no nrber of the men. 
1599. Q. Now, with reg rr-d to tile waste workin s: are you an advocate for time complete sealing oil of the 
waste workings I A. I am not an advocate for the i it aire passing by the waste workings. 
4600. Q. Are you an alvocat.e for rrbrolutely scaling oth rho waste workings of the mine I A. I would give 
no opinion upon that. I lave no expert opinion to give upon that ma te r. 
4601. Q. \Vhat I understand you to refer to is this that any ga-es which are generated in waste workings 
should not be riliowed to conic into the intake I A. That is so ; should not come into the intake and be 
carried round to the men. 
4602. Q. \Vitlm regard to these cut-througlrs every 30 yards (Recommendation No. 5), I understand you to 
say that, in your experience, the average has been about 45 yards ? A. Somewhere about that. 
460.3. Q. have you considereci at all the extent to which frequent cut-throughis might jeopardise the roof 
and interfere widl its seen rity I A. \Vchl, I do not consider that it would interfere with the roof. 
4601. Q. Well, clots not that depend 011 the. su }lerincuunl.ent weight ? A. It depends on the circumstances. 
4603. Q. Does it not depend on the weight that is on top I A. Yes. Still I think that any danger that 
may arise from that cause can be met by specirrl timnhorin.g if it is necessary. 
4606. Q. have you read a good deal upon miii ing 1 A. Not a great deal. 
4607. Q. Do you know that in England sonnetinres the pillars are 70 yards square -that is, 70 yards beth 
ways? A. I have read that. 
4608. Q. Do you know that 1 A. Yes. 
4609. Q. Do you know that that is found necessary in consequence of the great weight which is on 
top? A. Yes. But it was also found necessary to bratcice, not by means of canvas, but by brick or - 
[Infrrrupte'l.] 
4610. Q. Pirdon me. You are off at a tangent. I want to keep you on the spot. You do know that? 
A. Only by hearsay. 
4611. Q. Of course. We have not all been in thi se mints. I suppose we may take it that if, in in 
English mine, pillars 70 yards square are found to be necessary, the same tiring might apply in other 
places? A. Is is possible. 
4619. Q. Are you prepared to say that the same conditions do not exist in some of tlrce nines en this coast 
as exist in those Enghsh mines 1 A. I could not say. 
163:3. Q. Do you think you have emrouglr knowledge to say absolutely whether cut-tinroughrs should be, in 
every eas", 30 yards apart 1 A. I consider it is necessary for ventilation purposes. 
4614 Q. You consider it would be desirable for ventilation purposes I A. Yes. 
161.5. Q. I understand you to complain of the brattice, which is used instead of cut_tirroughrs ; and I quite 
appreciate what you said that the leakage by reason of the unevenness of the floor and the unevenness of 
the roof, and the. liability to drop, makes it necessary to be much more careful with (Ire I rattir e where 
these long pillars exist. Is that so ;-I am not trying to catch you? A. Yes. Where there is brattice to 
any great extent it is not substantial, and is very easily disarranged ; and, where it is disarranged, ins cad 
of the air going u-here the men are working, it will go thrrorrgh the short cut. 
4316 Q. T)e you know that in this district there ni-c cases in which there is a single drive of 700 yards I 
Q. Yes. I have heard so. 
4617. Q. [kr you know how the air is carried there 1 A. I do not know how it is carried there. 
1618. Q. I only want to show you the diversity of experience. There it is carried ill pipes. You diii ilot 
krro,v dia0 A. No. I did not knowtlrat. 46.9. 
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4619. (7. Do you know why one particular mine goes to the expense of pipes in order to avoid cut.- throughs 
A. No. I do not. 
4620. (7. You do not know whether that is to save expense or not? That is to say, to save the weight on 
top-to save the danger of weight 1 A. No. I do not know that. 
4621. Q. I suppose you do not know anything about the hydrogen flame (Recommendation No. 7), except 
that it registers a much smaller percentage of as than the safety-lamp 1 A. That is all. 
4622. (7. With regard to the 500 cubic feet of air for a horse (Recommendation No. ), you do not know 
how much a horse uses ? A. No. I have no knowledge of the measurement of air. 
4623 Q. What is your reason for recommending that the doors should close of their own motion? A. So 
that there would be less possibility of their being left open. 
4621. Q. And can you tell me the circumstances under which they are soinetines left open? A. Men passing 
thi-ough. And it is sometimes necessary that the coal has to be drawn through the doors. 
4625. Q. And there is a liability ? A. Of their being left open. 
4626. (7. \Yhat is your opinion as to the effect upon the miner's mind of a knowledge, "Oh, I can leave 
that : it will shut of its own acccrd " ;-do you think, or do you not think, that it will make men more 
careless with iegard to seeing they are shut ? A. Oh, I do not think it. 
4627. Q. You know that even where a door closes of its own accord, either by being hung so, by gravitation, 
or by a spring, there is still a ]iability for it to be blocked open by a bit of timber or a piece of coal 1 A. 
Oh yes. It is a possibility that there might be something to prevent its closing. 
462$. Q. Do you think that the knowledge that these doors are automatic-you know what that means-
that they close of their own accord, would or could not make men careless about seeing that they were 
closed 1 A. No. I do not think it would make them any more careless than now-men who have a sufficient 
knowledge of the responsibility. 
4629. Q. I am taking the average man ; not taking the careful man; but the average man who lets things 
slide and does not take the trouble to think. What sort of eilbct would it have on a man of that kind 1 
A. I do not know. 

4630. Q. 1 am asking you to judge of human nature generally, not of a man as careful as yourself; but of 
that class of people who let things slide, and say " Oh, that's all right, Bill : it closes itself." You know 
that class of man, do you not. l A. No. 
4631. (7.What ellect would it have on that class of mind? A. I really could not say. 
4632. (7. You could not say that it would make them more careless than when they know that some of the 
doors do not close of their own accord I A. The reason for asking that these doors should close of their own 
accord is so that if they become op-n from some cause-not opened by a man-they would close again. 
They may be cpenccl when there is no man thereto open them. 
4633 Q. 1 ask you, if tIe men know that all these dooms are constructed so that they will shut of their own 
accord, do you not think that the careless e'ass of in  in will never trouble to see wlmetlic-r they are closed or 
not and in some cases might they not be bloekud olsen by woxl or by coal ; whereas, if men knew that 
the doors did not close of their own accord, they would lie on their guard, ansi would constantly watch to 
see that the doors were closed ;-I just submit that to you. It did not occur to you, did it? A. Certainly 
it had occurred to me : but I do not think that men working in a mine would be so care.les. 
4634. Q. Well, what is your reason for suggesting double doors (Recommendation No. 10)? A. Because, a 
door being there, a peron has to go through it ; and, if it is only a single door, when he opens that door 
a certain amount of air aid pass through while, if it is a double door, the air will not escape. lie will 
close the first door, and pass through the other ; and no air will recipe. And, in other cases, ccal has to 
go through those doors ; and it is necessary for the dcoms to be opened while the coal goes through. 
4635. His Honoi.] It is hardly necessary for time witness to ex1,!ain this. It seems quite what may be 
called a reasonable precaution. 
4636. JI,. B,'imce S'oii'Jz,j Q. I c-ant you to give me your explanation of the fact that so few opportunities are 
taken by tl.e men themselves to cheek the air in the mines ? (tiecomnmendation No. ii). What do you say 
is the reason for that 1 A. For one tltiu, the majority have not got the knowledge for t Sting attimospliere. 
4637. Q. But you have power to choose men I 1• Yes, u-c have. 
4638, Q. There are sufficient men to choose who lace I list knowledge ? A. It may be ; but men are very 
dilatory about taking the position. 
4639. Q. Why I A. \Veli, I do not know why. 
4640. (7. Have you ever been asked to take the position? A. No. I have never. I am not competent to 
take it at all events. 
4641. (7. Do you knov of any reaso:a w-hiy men will not take it? A. I could not possibly say. 
4612. (7. What do you think? A. [ do think that amen have not got the courage to take the job and do it 
honestly and effectualle. I do not think that they have the courage to do it-men who am-c depending on their 
daily wage in a coal-nine. 
4643. Q. Now, you have talked about manholes-how ofen do you say you have Lad occenion to use the 
manholes urgently? 1L \Vel], it is so ninny years ago tli et I used one that I could not say. On three or 
four occasions-possibly mom e. 
464-b. Q. In that case cli?ou find lIme in m'wle suffiAently large I A. No, I did no". I found that it would 
be much more cmvemtiont if they were lagr. For instance, I would have reached it quicker if it had been 
2 feet wider. I would have reached the namihide LilaC much quicker. 
4645. (7. TIow missy of you Nvore these in that 1 A. I es,uld not tell you the number. 
4646. (7. Could you tell me if yos were there alone? A. I have been alone ; and I have been in the company 
of others. 
4647. 0. 1 suppose a train was peSsimig 1 A. A trait of skips. 
4618. Q. What distance was there then between the line of rails and the wall of the mine, irrespective of 
the manhole? A. That I could not tell now. 
4649. (7. Well, you see now you are suggesing a parteulnr meesurement? A. Yes that is in order to secure 
that there will be suthiciut moons L)t.' muon to get ii, 
4650. Q. The total depth you ask for new is 4 feet 
4651. 0. And the width of dint along the line (if et 1 A. Yes. 
4652. Q. And the high? A. Well, according (p the 
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4653. Q. Do you know what they are no 'i in depth, in the mine you are in? A. There are no manholes that 
I know of. We (In nob use the engin rosA ; we have a travelling road independent of the engine bank. 
4t15 I. Q. You do not think there is any necesdty for thein except in the engine road? A. No. 
4655. Q. You would not think it neesary in a rope road with skips only running 1 or 2 miles an 
hour A. An endless rope? 
4656. Q. Yes? A. It vouicI b3 necssary there if there is not sufficient space between the skips and the 
rope, if mcii have to travel that road. 
4657. Q. But supposing there is a travelling road? A. Well, if there is a travelling road, the men are 
supposed to go the travelling roid. 
4658. Q. if there is a travelling road there is no need for extra manholes? A. No. 
4659. (2.  It depends on the circumstances then--upon the distance between the rails and the wall of the 
niine ? A. Yes. 
1660. Q. Now, with regard to (llecommendmction No. 18) instruction to eniployees : I understand you to 
say that there isa daylight tunnel in the mine in which you are now engagmd I A. Yes. 
4661. Q. And you have been there some years? A. Yes. 
4662. Q. And how is it that you have never gone out that way, so that in case of an accident you would 
know what road to take? A. The rules of the colliery prohibit me from going out any other road but the 
travelling road. 
4663. Q. Have you ever asked for permission to go, so that you might know where you were? A. No, not 
personally. 
466 1. Q. Have you ever felt curious to know what is the best way out in case of an explosion? A. Yes, I have. 
4665. Q. Have you ever asked permission to go and see for yourself I A. No, I have not. 
4666. Q. You could have clone so ? A. Yes. But the rules strictly prohibit me -[Interrupted]. 
4667. Q. You know that rules are not made of adamant. You could ask the Manager, and say, "I would 
like to see the way out in case of an occident"? A. I could have clone so ; but I did not, because I heard 
that others had asked and had been refused. 
4668. Q. And you think the men would be willing to take instructions from the deputy as to the way out 
A. Yes. 
4669. Q. Even when they were moving about at every cai ill A. Yes. 
4770. Q. Different ways? A. Yes, 
4611. Q. Now, with regard to this feat' of reporting (Reccimmendlation No. 19) : 1 understood you to tell 
Mr. Wade that you have never had any Imesitabion 1 A. No, not personally. 

lie-examination by Mr. Lysaght 

4672. Q.As to these powers of the Inspector, do you know of an Inspector having differed with the 
management as to the advisability of safetylamaps being put in ? A. Not of my own knowledge ; but I 
u ricicm'stand that -----[Interrupted]. 
4673 Mr. lJTade.]  Your Honor, I think it would be much fairer for this evidence to conic from the 
parties themselves. This witness can only give it us through hearsay. The Managers will be here in all 
probability ; and I suppose the Inspectors will be here. 
4674. His Honor.] It is so easily conceivable, Mr. Lysaghit, that it is hardly worth while going on. 
4675. Mr. JVade.] The suggestion is that it has hmippened. I do not think that it is admitted. I object 
to that. 
4676. Mr. Lysaglit.] My object was to show that the danger (I1L1 continue after the Inspector thought it 
should be forthwith reined iecl. 
4677. dIr. hJ"aele.] The sugrsbion is that the Msnag.rs do not take any precautions, even when the lives 
of the men are endangered. 
467$. dir. Lysaylit.] I make that a deliberate statement. 
4679. Q. Did you hear of a difference? A. Yes. 
4680. Q. What was the colliery? A. I heard that it was at one of the colliei-ies in the Northern District. 
4681. Q. Did you hear anything concerning a colliery in this district? A. No. 
4682. Q. Do you think it wise to let the matter of the safety-lamps go to the arbitration of the masters 
and the men? Do you approve of that suggestion 
4683. Mr. Bruce Smith.] it is not suggested. I have not suggested it. I said, " Would it not be in the 
interests of the masters and the men that the matter should be subniitted for arbitration" ; but not to the 
arbitration of the masters and the men. 
4684. dir. Lysa1jlit,] Q. Do you consider that the men would have sufficient knowledge to say whether 
safety-lamps should he used in the mine or not? 
4655 .Jfr. Bruce Smith.] I never suggested that. 
466. ilLs Honor.] No. Mr. Bruce Simmitli simply suggested that it was just as niuchi in the interests of 
the men as of the mine owners to arl,itm-ate as it might not be expedient to allow the Inspectors to rush 
in safety-lamps where they might not ic wanted. 
4687. dir. Lysay/it.] Q. In the interests of the men, do you still say that the Inspectors should have the 
absolute power to order the use of safety -lamps? A. In mmiy opinion, the Inspector should have the power 
to say that the lamps should go in if necessary. 
4688. Q. Now, did the award of the Arbitration Court at all affect the position of the miners as regards 
this recommendation for safety-lamps l 
4689. dir. B,'uce Smith.] Sum'ely that is for the Court to say. 
4690. dir. LysayhiL] You made a suggestion that since the Arbitm-ation Court award the men had not been 
so anxious to have the safety-lamps, because they would not get anything extra for them. 
4691. Mr. Bruce Smith ] I clii not put it in that way at all. I rather suggested the opposite. 
4692. dIr. Lqsayhit.] I think you did suggest mh it.. 
4693. His Honor.] I cannot see how it can help this Commission. Mr. Bruce Smith simply half jokingly 
imiade the suggeslion that perhaps the nun would not be so very anxious -[futeri'upted]. 
4694. 31,', lJ,-uce Smith.] The ivitne.s Imimusulf smiled. 
4695. Mr Lijsoy/,t.] You see, yonr honor, this matter goes foi-th to the Press, and the public do not see 
the hi u us our in it at all. Ti inc afmer t me the expense is brought, in by Mr. i'mice Smu ithi as representing 
the Cm'own, and it is suggested that the macma do not care about the expei'ee, 4696. 
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4696. ,ilfr. Bruce Smith.] My friend is very unfair to say that I have suggested that the men do not care 
about the expense. I have pointed out time after tinie how far the witnesses had gone into the consideratien 
of the expense. I put it to him just now, and asked him whether he had considered that lie might have a 
party of twenty,  miners trying to develop a mine under the co-operative system ; and yet lie propos s under 
his rule that they should be compelled to g to the expense of £600 or £700 to put in a fan; and that 
would stifle their little industry altogether. 
4697. Mr. Ltjscmg/tt.] That is not the question at all. It was with reference to the safety-lamps. 
4698. his hioiwr.] \Viien Mr. Bruce Smith did suggest it, the witness repudiated it. Now, do you want 
anything more? 
4699. Mr. Ltsayltl.] Q. Now, you might tell us what in your opinion should be the number of men ;-how 
malay men do you say there should be in a mine before the furnace should be abolished and the fan 
substituted? A. I would leave that to those who have more knowledge, 
4700. Q. Whom would you leave that to ? A. To the Inspector of Mines. 
4701. Q. You told us that you know there were large pillars in the Old Country ; do you know how those 
pillars are bratticed up? A. I understand they are bratticed by brick or wooJ. 
4702. Q. Not canvas ? A. Not canvas. 

Examination by Mr. Robertson :-- 

4703. Q. With reference to the qualiiications for deputies and shot-firers, who, do you think, should examine 
them ;-who should be the examiners for these men? A. The individuals or Board who now examine 
Managers and under-managers, I should say. 
4704. Q. And do you know the composition of the Board at present? A. No, I do not. 
4 705. Q. Do you know that two of the members are Managers ;-one is your own Manager, Mr. Sellers 3 
A. No, I do not. 
4706. Q. And the other is S[i'. Parsons together with a Government officer, Mr. Humble ;__now, do you 
think that they are any more lilu ly to know the qualifications of a shot-firer than the Manager of the mute in 
\vhch the shot-firer is eng;mgd 3 A. Well, I take it tInt the individuals who examine men for those positions 
are competent to say that those men have the qnalt.fications. 
4707. Q. But do you think that Sir. Sellers, in his capacity as examiner, is any more competent to examine 
a pet son as to his qual.fieatiins than in his capacity as a Manager? A. The fact of his having that position 
would render him more competent than a titan who has not that position. I take it lie is put in that 
position because of his oopeteney. 
4708. (. But the man who is a Manager to day may be an examiner to morrow ;-do you not think that the 
Manager who knows the personal qualifications of the man, knows his experience, is in a better position to 
appoint a shot-firer or a deputy than a Board, for example? A. I cannot see how that would be. 
4709. Q. Do you not think the Marager of ycur mine knows your qualifications Letter than the Board of 
Examiners 3 A. I do not know, unless I collie before him for an examination. He cannot know my 
qualifications without lie examines we in the first place. 
4710. (). But do you mr-an to say that Managers appoint deputies or shot-firers without examination? A. 
I do not know. 
4711. Q. Do you think it is possible? A. I do not know. All I- wish to say is that these men should he 
'coiapetent--I do not know that they are not-but I say that they should be. 
4712. Q. But do you mt think that it is ccnceivaldc that a Manager, bofote lie apciits a d puty or sLot-
firer, would make a strict investigadon, or lie would nimtke the appointment ft omit his knowledge of the 
person ? A. If ho had the saute qialificitions ems the ic  soils who make the examina'ions, then lie might be 
competent to make the recommendation ; but lie may not have the competency himself to say whether these 
men are qualified or not. 
4713. Q. Do you mean to say that there is any Manager in New South W'ales who is not competent to 
appoint a deputy or shot-firer? A. No. I do not say that. I do not know. All I say is that they should 
be competent. 
4714. Q. You ask for measurements of air at certain points in a mine-for the air to be measured at 
different points in a mine A. Yes. 
4715. Q. Are you aware that that is done at present? A. No, I am not aware. 
4716. Q. But it may be? A. It may be done. 
4717. Q. Now, as to the watering of the roads : how would you water in the case of a mine with 20 or 25 
miles of i'oad way where there are no rails-no moans of taking a tank in? How would you water that to 
lay the dust? A. Well, I am not an engineer ; but I can give you an instance of how the mine is watered 
at South Bulli. 
4718. Q. Yes? A. At one section of the travelling road there are pipes which convey the water out of the 
mine ; and at intervals there are t a ps placed on these pipes ; and at intervals those taps are turned and 
allow the water to play on time road ; it is in the intake airway, and that cools and damps the air, and it is 
taken through the mine. And they have a pipe right across the mouth of the intake airway ; and the tap 
is placed on that with a spray. It sends a spray, and that is carried in right thr,)u,-Ii the whole of the 
mine with the air, and, consequently, damps the air. 
4719. Q. That means pipes, and taps, and so on. Now, what is the length of that section? A. That I 
could not tell you. 
4720. Q. Is it half-a mile? A. Scarcely half-a-mile, 
4720h. Q. That is a very different thing from 25 miles, is it not? A. Yes. Of course I take it that 
although those pipes are only half a-mile, they might just as well be a mile or half-a-mile more. 
4721. Q. But it would cost more? A. Yes but they serve another purpose. Independent of watering tl.e 
mine, the pipes were there to convey water out of the mine. 
4722. Q. St that the expense in that case was no cmsideration ;-as a matter of fact there was no expense? 
A. No. 
4723. Q. But suppose you had to begin cia nero, and pipe all the roadways, say, for 25 or 30 miles of road. 
\Vould not that be a lar.e expense 3A. Y a. I clara say it would be an expense. 
4721. Q. And a large quantity of watsi' would be used 3 A. Yes. 
4725. (9. Now, in the South Bulhi Mine the temperature is not very hgh,  is it ?• A. No ; in fact I do not 
know how Imigh the temperature is. 4726. 
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4726. Q. And the evaporation is not very great : that is, once watered, it remains damp for a long time? 

A. Not in all parts of the mine. 
4727. Q. Well, in a mine where the evaporation is vety much higher the consumption of water would Le 
very much greater? A. Yes. 
4728. Q. And I suppose you know that water is very scarce in many wines? A. No. I have known cases 

where it was the opposite. 
4729. Q. But do you know that there are collieries in this diettict tInt have had to pay £2,500 to bring 
water from Sydney? A. Oh, yes. I understand that during the late drought it cost the collieries 

large amounts for water. 
4730. Q. Now, with respect to the Ianager's duties you wish the Managers to be compelled to give more 
attention to their duties. Do you know anything of what duties they have to perform 1 A. No. My 

recommendation is that they should be seen more about the mine. 
4731. Q. Yes ; but of course you cannot say what a Manager's duties are ;--he may have duties that you 
are not aware of, other than merely visiting the working places? A. Well, 1 take it the chief doty of 

a Manager is looking after his men. 
4732. Q. Exactly ; but he may be outside thinking. Some proprietors may pay their Managers to think, not 
to work? A. Yes, just so. 
4733. Do you not think it would be a better plan for a Manager to ,it down and think, rather than exhaust 
himself physically by a useless walk through a mine 1 A. I do think it is necessary that the Manager 
should see the conditions under which the men are working from time to time. 
4734. Q. Do you not recognise that the Manager is an administrator? A. Yes. 

4735. Q. And that he may be doing very effective work sitting in his office thinking and directing? A. That 

may be possible. We (10 not say that all his time should be taken up in visiting the mine. 
4736. Q. You say something about visiting once a week? A. Yes, I suggested a visit once a week. 

4737. (7. Do you think that is practicable 1 A. I suppose it could be made so. 

4738. (7. Supposing you have a mine where it is impoesible, where a Manager, if he started at the beginning 
of the week and walked all through the mine would not have finished off at the end of the week, and would 
not have any time left for other duties? A. Not if he was walking all the t into, certainly. 
4739. Q. Now, I think you said if a juan saw anything wrong he was afraid to report it I A. No, I did 

not say that. 
4740. Q. Yes, I think you did. I have taken a note of it? A. I said in case of the check inspectors. 
4741. (7. No. I beg your pardon. This was with reference to the black list; that if a man saw anything 
that was wrong he was afraid to report things at present. 
4742. Mc. l]cnie.] Afraid to report things now 1 
4743. AIr. Robertson.] Yes. 
4744. Q. Are you aware that the difficulty is to get the men to report ;-that they are invited to report? 
A. No. I am not aware of it, except by the rules-----the Specid Colliery Rules. 
4745. Q. An I nothing short of a charge of dyisanite will cause them to make a report sometimes 1 Do you 
know that many ftl anagers will welcome information from their workmen ? A. No, 1(10 not. 
4746. Q. 1)o you know that officials have been prosecuted by the l\Ianagers for neglecting to report? A. No. 

4747. Q. You do not know everything. With reference to unlocking lamps for shot firing, you did not say 
what ditibrejice there was in opening a safety-lamp or using a wire? A. If it is unsafe to have a flare-light, 

it must be unsafe to have a safety lamp if it is disconnected. 
4748. Q. I am not defending the practice. I merely want to see if you know what is the difference. Is 
there a greater degree of safety in using a wire ;-what do you do with a wire? A. Make the wire hot 

and there is no flame. 
4749. Q. Does not the fose spark I A. Yes. 
4750. Q. Would not that ignite gas I A. I do not know, I am sure. But I understand that gas will only 

ignite from a flame. 
4751. Q. Would not the spitting of the fuse ignite gas? A. If it was a flame. 
4752. Q. To my mind, there does not seem to inc tohe much dilference. You made some reference to a colliery 
in the north where the Manager had oljected to use safety-lamps? A. That is only a vague recollection of 

mine in that case. 
4753. Q. Have you any recollection of the miners at the same colliery objecting? A. No. I have not. 

4754. Q. So you cannot say? A. I cannot say. 
4755. Q. With reference to the Inspectors having absolute power to order safety-lamps to be used, I think 
you said, if he had the provisional power to order safety-lamps while the matter was referred to arbitration, 
that that would satisfy you? A. No; I cannot say that it would satisfy me altogether. 
4756. Q. I understood that, in answer to Mr. Bruce Smith, you thought such provisional power would be 
satisfactory? A. It may get over it ; but I do not consider it would be altogether satiefactory to the men. 
4757. Q. But assuming that such provisional power were given to the Inspector, and the Inspector ordered 
safety-lamps, and afterwards, when the matter was referred to arbitration, it was found that lamps were 
not necessary, the company would have incurred the expense needlessly ? A. Oh, of course, that is a matter 

that I cannot go into. 
4758. Q. But would not that be so ;-suppose the Arbitration Court held that safety-lamps were not 
necessary, against the opinion of the Inspector I A. Yes ; but the fact of the Arbitration Court saying that 
they were not necessary may not satisfy us. We may still be of opinion that the Inspector was right. 
4759. Q. That may be. I do not question that. Would it not be rather hard on the proprietors to have 
incurred expense needlessly? A. It would also be hard on the men to have to use theni. 
4759. Q. Then do you know that lamps are not inaiiufactured in the State ? A. I understand that they have 

to be imported. 
4760. Q. Well, suppse an Inspector were to order safety-lamps to he used at any colliery in this district 
to-morrow, how could that he done when there are no lamps procurable 1 A. Well, if there were no lamps 
procurable, and it was altogether unsafe to use naked lights, I say the men should not work there. 
4761. Q. But, if the proprietors or owners thought that it was perfectly safe for the men to work there, 
do you not think it is fair that they should have an opportunity of being heard by an impartial tribunal? 
A. I do not think it is right that they should have the p  )wer to say whether it was safe or ui safe. 
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4762. Q. No. They would not have the power to say-they would merely express an opinion; and, if 
they were wrong, then they would have to abide by the decision of the Arbitration Court? jl. If that 
Court was constituted of independent men and expert men, then it might be effectual. 
4763. Q. But it is, Mr. Sweeney ; there is express provision here in the Act as to the constitution of the 
Court it says :- 

Every person who is appointed an arbitrator under this section shall be a practical mining engineer, or a person 
accustomed to the working of mines and no person shall act as arbitrator or umpire under this Act who is employed in, 
or in the management of, or is interested in, the mine to which the crbitration relates. (Sec. 25, sub-section 3.) 

So you see the arbitrators must be absolutely disinterested ; would not that arbitrators meet your views I 
A. if, in the meantime, lamps were used, or the men withdrawn. 
4764. Q. I cannot get any further with you. Do you know anything of the cost of fans? A. No, I do not. 
4765. Q. Do you know whether the cost would be £30, or £500, or £5,000, or £10,000? A. No; I base 
not gone into the matter of cost. 
4766. Q. Do you know that some ventilating plants have cost upwards of £10,000? A. It may be so. 
4767. Q. Do you not think, if a colliery is fitted with a furnace doing efficient work, that, if they were 
obliged to incur the cost, say, £3,000 or £10,000, of erecting a fan-do you not think that would be rather 
hard on the Company? A. Yes, it may be hard on the Company ; but it would be much harder on the 
miners, in case of accident or something through the use of the furnace. 
4768. Q. But, I think that you are aware that a furnace can do very efficient work, and furnaces are at 
present used in some of the largest collieries in the woi-ld 1 A. Still, I think, my own personal experience is 
that ventilation by fan is much better than ventilation by furnace. 
4769. Q. It is only a question of power. If you have sufficient powcr in the furnace, of course you can get 
the same ventilation with it as you can with a fan ; but I am not advocating furnaces; I merely wish to 
take into consideration the case of existing mines where the ventilation is efficient. 
4770. Q. With reference to the instruction of employees as to the different exits from the mine, I think you 
said it would not take a very long time to show 1 A. No I do not consider it would takea great time for 
men to get acquainted with those modes of exit. 
4771. Q. Now, if you have anything from 20 to 30 miles of roadways, exits, and so on, in a mine, how long 
do you think it would take to show all the men in the difibrent sections, not only their own sections, but 
the other sections ? A. But I am only speaking of what exists. 
4772. Q. I am talking of existing mines? A. In this district? 
4773. Q. Yes? A. Where it is 20 nsles from the wet king face to the surface 
4774. Q. No ; where there are 20 miles of roadway-,. If you wanted to show the men the different exits 
from the different districts, you would have to show them 20 or 25 miles ; how long do you think it would 
take, where there may be a dozen different districts 1 A. Well, T take it that I can walk 3 miles in an 
hour ; and I take it that, at the colliery where I am working, it is not more than 4 miles direct to the 
surface, from any one print. 
4775. Q. I am sure it is not? A. S that a man would do it in very much has than an hour, or about an 
hour. 
4776. Q. But, I am assuming that it is a very much la'ger colliery, and you started at one end ; and s"Jien 
you were instructing the men you could not rush them throuli like racehorses? A. 1 do not say that the 
men need a great deal of instruction. The deputy just walks on ; and they follow him. Their own 
practical knowledge and experience will show them the road so that they will be aide to find it again. 
4777. Q. But you are evading my question ; I sc-ant to know frna you how long it would take to show men 
over 20 miles, say, of roadway ? A. If a man walked 20 mites of roadway, 1 should say it would take him 
five hours to walk it; but I do not see that there is any necessity for him to walk that far. 
4778. Q. But you want him to be shown out the dilbitent exits ; therefore lie must be shown every possible 
exit from every district in the mine? A. If there is a daylight tunnel, I do not think it would be any 
inconvenience to have a road from that to the centre of the mite. 
4779. Q. They usually find a road from that to the centre of the mine? A. Yes ; but we do not know it. 
47791. But I am assuming half-a-dozen--do you want them shown every on', or only one? A. I w-ant 
them shown the way out by the daylight tunnel, when there is a daylight tunnel. 
4780. Q. But they are all daylight tunnels, I take it? A. Yes. But they are not the ordinary travelling-
roads. Men are not allowed to travel by them. If mcii have a knowledge of them, they get it by accident. 
4781. Q. I do not suppose I can get an answer from you as to how lug it will take to instruct men with 
reference to the different exits from a mine where von would have to travel, say, 20 miles? A. In. South 
Bulli, at all events, the men would not have to travel 20 mih s. 
4782. Q. I am not asking about Souls Bulli. Now, in the case of front and back shifts : when these men 
were to be shown the way out, the front shift wonii have to be shown the way out, and then the back 
shift ? A. Not necessarily. They could be tliwn the way out on back Saturday, when they come out all 
together. 
4783. Q. But suppose that back Saturday would not be sufficient time 1 A. I take it they would have more 
time on back Saturday than any other day, seeing that they knock oil at 2 o'clock. 
4784. Q. I know that. Supposing hick Saturday, or two bick Saturdays, or two days a week, were not 
sufficient what would you do? A. I take, it that the deputy ivonlci at least once every qualter, or twice, 
show the man in that district the way out by the darhiglt tunnel. 
4785. Q. But supposing once in every quarter, or t'xice, or hialf-a-d' zen times, was not suillcient to show the 
men the way out? A. If a man is show-n the way onc, I take it lie would lcnosv it. 
4786. Q. Yes, but if it was a matter of six or seven deys. travelling after hours, to know all the different 
exits [Interrupte'l] 1 A. Six or seven days' travelling 
4787. Q. Yes. A. I cannot understand you ; if it would ttke a man six or seven days to reach the daylight 
tunnel 
178$. Q. I did not say six or seven days' travelling : I say suppose it took the men six or seven days, 
after they finished their work, after hours, to become ti.cqttaiitcd with all the toads in the different
districts I A. Well, if the men think it is of sufficient importance, they wnld not grumble at the extra 
time. If they were seized with the importance of knowing the way out, the matter of time would not be 
any consideration with them. 

4789. 
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4789. Q. Do you think the men would willingly spend a couple of hours whenever they were required I 
Whenever they were called upon by the officials 1 A. Yes, 
4790, Q. They would ? A. I do think they would. 
4791. AIr. Robertson.] I am glad to l,ear that. 

Examination by i\Jr. Ritchie : 

4792. Q. Do the deputies examine your place on each working shift when 301,  are there? A. Yes they 

are supposed to. 
4793. Q. But do they do it? A. Well, of course I am not tb ic to see that they examine it twice on the 
working-day. They put the day of the month there. 
4794. Q. And is that all you see on some occasions that you work 1 A. That is all. 

4795. Q. You never see the deputies themselves? A. It has happened that I have not seen them. 
4796. (7. Has it happened frequently ? A. Not frequently only on one occasion that I remember that I 

have not seen the deputy. 
4797. Q. In your place on your working shift? A. Yes. 
4798. Q. And what method do they adopt when they examine your place? When they come in? A. They 

try it with the ordinary safety-lamp. 
4799. 0. Do they travel round in i lie daytime with time ordinary safety-lamp? A. Yes. 

4800. Q. And how do they try it ? A. By raising the light up to the roof, turning their flame down, and 

raising it up to the rcof. 
4801. Q. Do they test any particular pmert of the place? A. No particular part.. 
4802. Q. Just where they happen to be standing ? A. Oh, not always. They go generally to the furthest 
point of the working place. 
4803. Q. And do they do this on every occasion that they come in? On every occasion that you have seen 
them come in? A. Yes. Generally they do this. 
4804. Q. Have you known them to come in and make no examivation at all ? A. No. 
-1805. Q. That is time day examination I am talking of now? A. Oh, in the (lay examination; I have not 
known of a case where the deputy did not examine in the day. The time that I am referring to was in the 
night ; on the night-shift. 
4806. Q. You had no examination at all that night ? A. I had no examination I did not see the deputy. 

4807. Q. When was that? Do you know ? A. Yes. That was last Friday night. [Afterwards corrected 

by letter (Ex. iVo. 14), to ilfoncloy nij/mt, the I 2dm January, 1903.] 
4807. Q. Is that in a section where you are using safvty-lamps ? A. Yes. 
4808. 9. And you worked your shift then without having any examination whatever? A. I did not 

exactly stop the full shift.. I thitilt I left about twenty-five minutes befome time time for going. 
4809. 9. What time did you go on that shift 1  A. At half-past 2 : leaving the bank at 2 o'clock. 
4810. Q. Were you notified by any official that your place was safe? A. No. 
4811. Q. And you saw no official up tiIl---Wimen did 3 on have? A. About 9 o'clock, or it little lat  9. 

181 2. Q. What are you working in -a boyd or a heading 1  A. A heading. 
4813. Q. how far is time brattice generally kept from the face? A. The brattice in this heading I am 

working in now is about 10 feet froimm time face. 
481-1. (7. is that the distance generally allowed? A. Sometimes it is closer, and sometimes further away. 
4815. 9. That is, speaking of your prc.seut place? A. Yes. 
4816. Q. Well, going back to time places you have worked before this one, and recently, has the brattice 
always b en kept well U ? A. Yes, the hi attice has been kept near enough up to the face. 
4817. Q. Have you always hid, in Year opinion, sufficient ventilation travelling round the woiking face-- 
sweeping round time working face ? A. \Vcll, sufficient for working purposes but as to whether there is 
sufficient there to carry oil gaZes that may ho making, gases that may be coming from the face, I could not 
s my but what I can say is that there could be a greater quantity sweep ig round than there is, simply 
because of the ineffective bratticing-canvassing. 
4818. Q. At all events, you seem to think that you have suffi dent for working purposes ? A. Just so. 
4819. Q. And that is prctty general in time South Buhli Colliery during time time you have been there 1 
A. Yes. 
4820. Q. Do I understand you to advocate the abolition of time service certificates for Managcr ? A. Yes 
if they are found on examination not to be competent-not to be qualified for the position. 
4821. Q. And do you propose that they should go through the samne examination as others who have 
recently got certificates? A. Yes. 
4822. Q. And I think you have advocated also, before this Commission here to-day, that deputies and shot- 
firers should also be exanmiued by the same Board which examines time Managers and under-managers 
A. Yes. 
4823. Q. Would you, in the case of a Manager who may be nianacing a large colliery, who admits that lie 
does not know anything at all about ":is, would you regard that peromi as quahifimi .1 to examine the shot- 
firer 1 A. Certainly not, if lie dd niecl any kmmowle ige of gas. 
4824. Q. \Vouhd you regard that man as qualified to appoint a deputy 1 A. Cm rtiinly not. 
4825. Q. And you think that time mm iteci wisdom of a Board of Examminers of thyme is a better guarantee 
than time wisdom of one Manager, in time appointmnemt of shot-firers and deputies I A. It is a very much 

greater safeguard to time miners. 
4826. Q. That is what you advocate 1A. Yes. 
1827. Q. And you have t dd us now that you are advocating the appointment of Managers on their merits, 
on their qualifications? A. Yes. 
4828. 0. Do I understand you further to mean that you should have as much as posiblc of the time of a 

lmenager, with these qualificatiomms, inside of the niir.e ? A. Yes. 
4829. (7. And that clerical mvoilc, and other things of that kind, shou'd be left to other people? A. Yes. 
1830. (7. And you ought to have thu beneti b a? lie k uowledge inside the nil mu as um iclm as possible? A. Yes. 
.1831. Q. How often imeve you semi time Goverimnmmt Iums0eetor around time Bulhi Colliery ? A. L etely I have 

seen Imimmi pretty reguhmmly about South Buili. 
4832. Q. Ta that simic thme disaster? A. Yes. Sluice the disatey, an? simace time immtrxluction of time safety- 
Imemps. 4833. 
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4833. Q. And prior to that, what was tias rule, as far as your knowledge goes? A. Piior to that, I have 
no recollection of seeing as Inspector in South Billi previous to the explosion. It may be possible that he 
was there but I have no distinct recjllcciioa of seeing one there ; but I have since seen the Inspector very 
frequently at South BiiIli. 
4834. Q. Does the Inspector himself meke any exsn,ination when he comes into your place ? A. Yes. 

4833. Q. \Vhat does lie do? A. He gces through the usual performance with his lamp up at the roof and in 
various places about the __[Intera.upted.] 
4836. Q. He goes through the same process as the deputy ? A. Yes. Although of course he is armed with 
a different lamp. 
4837. Q. Have you a shooting-place there? A. Yes. 
4838. Q. And you have, a shot-firer there? A. Yes. 
4839. Q. What mode of procedure does he adopt prior to firing a shot? What method of examination? 
A. Just the ordinary examination with the ordinary safety-lamp. He raises it lip to the roof and goes 
through a performance. 
4840. Q. Is your shot hole drilled and prepared in every way ready for firing before lie comes in? A. Yes. 
Everything is done and the shot is just ready for lighting. 
4841. Q. Does he make any inquiries ahout the preparation you have gone to? A. Sometimes he may ask 
the depth of the hole. 
4842. Q. Does he measure the depth of the holing? A. Not in all cases. 
4843. Q. Did you ever see him do it? A. I have seen him do it. 
4844. Q. But the general rule is to take your word for everything? A. Yes. 
4843. Q. Does he ever come back after the shot has been fired? Q: Yes, sometimes. 
4846. Q. Sometimes lie comes hack? A. Yes. 
4847. Q. But not as a rule? A. In all cases he does not come back. As a rule lie does. Of course before 
the use of safety-lamps he always came back. 
4848. Q. Would it be possible to have your hole drilled in the sold coal, and that the shot firer would not 
know? A. It would be. 
4849. Q. So that he has got to depend entirely upon the word of the workman as to whether the hole is in 
the solid, or above the holing. 
4850. Q. And as to the charge that is in the hole? A. Yes. 
4851. Q. Does he ever ask you that? A. No. 
4 85 2. Q. He leaves it entirely to you whether you have a pound or three pounds? A. Yes. 
4853. Q, He leaves it entirely to the man tiat is there ? A. As far as I have experienced it. 
4854. Q. And really all the shot firer do(s do is to put the light to the fuse and light it, after making his 
examination with the lamp? A. That is all. 
4855. Q. Have you any dust about that part where you are working? A. Well, there is very little dust 
there now. The conditions are not nar s dusty as they were before this spi'iy which I have told the 
Court was playing about the intake airway. 
4856. Q. But they do not spray at the face ? A. N . But I have seen sprayers. 
4837. Q. But has the spraying of the traveding reads altered the condition of the face ? A. It has had a 

slight effect. 
458. Q. But do you regard this place as dusty I A. Yes. 
48.58 12 . Q. Does the eliot-firer ever make any xamination for dust? A. No 1 do not know that he does 
turn his attention towards the dust. 
48.59. Q. have you ever heard the shot-firer make any remarks a all about dust beforelie fires the shot? A. No 

Further examination by Mr. Robertson :- 
4860. Q. Did you say that before the introduction of safety-lamps the deputy alweys came back after a 
shot was fired? A. Oh, yes. 
4831. Q. But lie did not fire the shots, did lie, then? A. In cases where the shot-firer fired shots lie used to 
go and examine the places after lie had fired the shots. 
4862. Q. When did he do this? had you any shot firer prior to the introductirn of safetylamps I A. In 
one particular heading or tsvo particular headings. 
4863. Q. \Vei-e they using safety-lamps there ? A. No. 
4864. Q. And they bad shot fliers in that case l A. The deputy used to fire it shot for us. 

4865. Q. And what was the necessity for shot-tirers in these places? A. I suppose the management did not 
consider the conditions safe for men to fire their own shots and, therefore, they gave instructions for the 
men not to fire shots, and the deputy to the them for them. 
4860. Q. Were you working in that heading? A. No. 
4867, Q. how did you knox that? A. I was working at the turn imuiediately alongside it, and have been 
at the turn when the deputy flied the shot for them. 
4868. Q. Then you were in a position to watch the movements of the deputy ? A. I am not in a posimion to 
watch his movements at the face. 
4869. Q. But you were in a position to say he did or did not go back jsgaiu ? A. Oh, yes: and also T, 
individually, was prevented froin firing my own shots in this particular district, even before we got the lamps. 
4870. Q. And in that case lie always caine back ? A. Yes. 
4871, Q. But he does not always now ? A. Not at all times. Well, I have known cases where lie did not 
go back after firing the shot. 
4872. Q. That is within your own knowledge? Q. Within my own knowledge. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade 
4873.Q. You said that last Fcie'ay night was the first night you had known the deputy not to come to your 
place ? A. Yes. - 
4874. Q. Were you on the nightshift? A. Yes. 
4875. Q. Going in at 2.? A. Yes. 
4876. Q. Was somebody else working in your place before you went in? A. Yes. 
4877. Q. Another pair of men? A. Yes. 
4878. Q. And did you go in w1in they came out ? A. I went in as they came out. 
4879. Q. And you were workin successive shifts 1. Two successive shifts, 488). 
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4880. Q. Then you do not know whether the deputy had not been in the place just the shift before you 
were finished ? A. lie may have been in during the day. I was only referring to the time in which I was 
there myself. 
4881. Q. What time did you knock ofF? A. Shortly after nine. [Witness retired,] 

(At this stage Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings.) 

Mr. JOHN SELLS was sworn and examined as under 

Examination in-cinef by Mr. Lysaght 

4882. Q. What is your name ? A. John Sells. 
4883. Q. What are you? A. A miner employed at Mount Keira. 
4884. Q. What is your mining experience I A. I have been actually minitmg about two and a half years. 
4885. Q. Were you employed at the Kemlala Mine i A. Yes. 
4886. Q. Were you employed at the time of the disaster? Yes. 
4887. Q. Where were you working A. I was working down the 6th Right, near the Tommy Dodds, in a 
pillar. 
4888. Q. Can you tell us what you know of the disaster-the first indication that you got of any trouble 
A. There were four of us ; and we werejust going to pull down the timber when we felt a terrific current of 
air which put our lights out. 
4889. Q. Who were time others? A. C. Alien, F. Andrews, S. Beck-four of us. 
4890. Q. Are any of these men living? A. Yes ; they are all alive. 
4891. Q. After the lights were put out, what did you do? A. We lit our lamps; and a couple of minutes after-
wards Mat. Frost came along inquiring for Deputy Evans. He said, '' Have you seen the deputy I" It 
was about the (leput) 'a time to be round-a few minutes after 2 o'clock. We said " No." Frost hurried 
natty. About half a minute afterwards the deputy came round another road, and came up to us. 
4892. Q. \Vaa anything said by the dputv ?A. I said, "Did you see Mat. Frost looking for you I" and 
lie said ''i\O.'' 
4393. Q. Who was the d'puty 1 A. David Evans. At that time Frost came back again ; and we said, 

here lie is canting nou." Mat. Frost came up to us; and lie said, addressing the deputy-we were all 
t gtther, six of us-lie said, " The in tin hauling-rope was suddenly stopped ; and I am tAl that No. 1 is 
on fire. You know as much as I do." 
489 I. Q. Yes ? A. Evans said, " The best timing we can do is to -at out," and of course we left. 
4t59.5. Q. Where dii you g t 1 A. We in ule for home. Made for out of the mine on the travelling road 
and we picked up tlitleremit melt going along. We went along until we came to nearly the furnace, the 
smoke was thick iliete and we could go no further. It was a yellow smoke. 
4896. Q. Yes? A. At mh it there were some standing, and some sitting down. I was sitting down. 
'I'here were about sixty of us altogether. There may have been--more or less-fifty or sixty. We could go 
no further that way. That is, on the travelling road, the usual way to go out. The air was very bad. 
David Evans said that somebody should open a door. Sandy Beck and Davy Evans left for a few minutes 
but they did not go far away_they returned. While we were there Evans said, addressing all of us, " Is 
there any man here who knows his road outside by the D.mylight Heading, near Rogers' place? "-that is 
near Mr. Rogers' house. Harry James spoke as to how far lie knew the road out. I said, " If we stop here we 
wi,1 never get out." So it was decided that no one knew the roado4 of time mine by the Daylight Heading- 
neither Evans or anyone le. 
4397. Q. Not out of the sixty men there? A. Yes, nobody knew it. 
4898. Q. Yes? A. The only way was to retrace our footsteps over the same ground again. Evans took us 
to some old workings. We had to go back again to Mat's cabin ; in order to get through a door Nye had to 
go round on a horse-shoe circuit. He took us through the old workings ; and we came to within 200 yards 
of Mat's cabin, where Mat-. Frost worked ; and we saw a man there named Charles Woodroff face between 
the rails, with his mouth in the dust. We were all running or walking ; and I saw the majority passing 
by. What I said was a bit strong ; but I spoke it ; I said, "Jesus Christ, mates, are you going to go by 
and see a mate like this?" They said, " Every man for himself." Henry James, Joe Anderson, Arthur 
Clinton, and myself, stayed there with Woodroff. The rest went on. Of course we put a timber trolley on 
the main haulage road, and put Woodroff on it, and ran him to the cabin. 
4899. Q. Who sang out? A. Evans said, "Every man for birusef." 
4900. Q. When did lie say that? A. When we started off first. It was a stampede-some were ranning 
and some were walking. 
4901. Q. After that? A. They left Clinton and me there. We ran time timber trolley along and came 
across Frank Stewart, and put him into the trolley. We ran time trolley along a hit further. The next we 
came to was a little boy named 1-lunt. That is all between there and Mat's cabin. We threw him into the 
cabin. There is a telephone there. I tried the telephone; but there was no ring I tried and tried again. 
I do not know that I could enumerate the lots of bodies there. 
4902. Q. How did you get out, that is what I want to know? A. By the old No. 2. Jack Pearce came 
along lie had three brothers ; and they are living yet. We came out by the old No. 2. We got out above 
the road leading to the heading. I mean the Daylight Heading. 
4903. 11r. Wade.] Q. Not the Manager's heading ? A. No, 
4904. Au.. Lysctght.] Q. Who told you the way? A. Pearce. We dragged the others out. 
4905. Q. Do you know who first led the party out? A. I could not say, because they left us behind. 
4906. Q. It was not the Manager's daylight heading? A. No. We came out above the Daylight Heading 
near the tunnel. We struck that. We (lid not go out by time travelling road. 
4901. AIr. Wade.] Could not the witness have a clean map to mark? 
4908, The Witness.] It is impossible. I had never been in time road before. I could not trace it on the 
map. I could not find time road in the pit again I will acknowledge that. 
4909. Mr. Robertson.] Q. You went over the usual travelling road, and came back again ? A. Yes, past the 
deputy's cabin. 
4910. Q. Where did you go on the usual travelling road I A. To Mat's cabin,-and turned to the right. 
4911. Q. And through a door? A. Yes. 
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4919. Q. You went down by the long wall-old No. 2? A. Yes. It appeared that some of the men had 
worked there some years ago; and they struck it. 
4913. Q. You came out there? A. Yes. 
4914. Q. Did you crawl along some low places? A. Yes- some 2 or 3 feet high. 
4915. Jfr, Lysayht.] Q. Did you experience after-damp to any remarkable extent? A. I have had experience 
amongst gases ; and I took pecantions. I wetted a hand k erch ief, and tied it round my mouth, and breatlecl 
through that. 
4916. (7. Where did the after damp strike you first ? A. Getting near the furnace. The fumes would be 
centred towards the furnace. It was a ye]iow•colourcd smoke, so thick that you could hardly see the lamp 
and the flame of the, lamp would be 18 inches long. 
4911. Q. That is, a naked ]ighit? A. Yes. 
4918. Jrr. Bruce Smith.] Q. It was drawn up? A. Yes. 
4919. AIr. Lysaglil.] Q. Did you notice whether any burnt coal dust was thrown about? A. You had not 
much time to examine it. 
4920. Q. On this occasion 1 A. I never saw any burnt coal dust. 
4921. Q. What about the heat? A. The heat was intense, the temperature was high. 
4922. Q. Where was the heat greatest? A. The heat was, of coarse, going towards the furnace, and on the 
travelling road on the way out; the heat was great on the way out. 
4923. Q. Did you at any time see any flame there ? A. I did not see any flame ; but simultaneously with 
the blast I looked at the heading, and saw smething white earning down near where the Dixons were 
working, 
4924. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. That is the first part of sour experience. Dixon's was the next to your place 1 
A. Yes. 
4925. 2Ifr. Robertson.] (7. What was your place 1 A. Forty-one it was a beautiful place. 
4926. dIr. Wale.] Q. Good money? A. Gool money and easy going. 
4327. dIr. Lysaght.] Q. I want to know whether the smoke was coming from the east or the west, at the 
place where you were working? A. It was coming from Pnwell's Flat direction. 
4928. Q. As you saw it coming from Powell's Flat did you notice any flame? A. I did not notice any. 
4929. Q. You thought it was very white 1 A. It was very like white smoke. 
4930. Q. Did you afterwards go into the mine 1 A. I went back immediately I came out. 
4931. (7. Had you a lamp when going in again 1 A. A safAy lamp. 
4932. (7. Where did you get it from ? A. Somebody at the mouth gave it to me. 
4933. (7. Do you know anything as to the safety lamps which were available? A. I could not say it. Just 
what I heard. I know I got one and went in. I think I brought out the first dead body. 
4934. Q. What was the time? A. A quarter to 6 o'clock. 
4935. (7. What direction did you go in 1 A. I went down towards Mae's Flat. 
4936. (7. At any time did you observe any indications of flame anywhere? A. At places in No. 1, on the 
following day. I afterwards came across a number of bodies badly burnt-. 
4937. Q. Can you tell me whose bodies were badly burnt? A. I c-in tell you some-Kemp Stafford. He 
was somewhere about the 70's, sitting by the rib. A man named Rich-the flesh was peeling oil' him. I 
think he was working about the same locality. 
49.38. dIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Is lie dead? A. Yes, be is dead. 
4939. dIr. L ysaght-. Q. Yes? A. Alfred Hewlet was badly burnt, and a boy named Smith in a manhole 
with him. No, I think Smith was in the cabin with a man named Hewlet. Hewlet had a drill which had 
been driven through his thigh. lie- was badly burnt; he was unrccognisable. The flesh was peeling off 
him, and the hair was off him. 
4940. Q. Smith and Hewlet were in the cabin ? A. Yes ; the man and the boy. 
1941. Q. Yes? A. Jack Purcell was badly burnt; he was very close to there. Willy Silcock had all the 
clothes burnt off him ; all he had on was one boot; and that was shrivelled up with fire. His hair and 
evei'ything else was burnt. 
4942. .JIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Where was he? A. We found him a quarter of a mile from the tunnel's 
mouth. He was lying on the haulage rope road. He was a boy of 16 or 17. 
4943. AIr. Lsjscmyh(.] Q. Is there any other cv ides-ice of burning of anybody else that you can think of? 
A. There were other bodies which I picked U ; but I could not identify them. Some of them were 
undoubtedly burnt. I saw the flesh burnt off them. 
4944. Q. Can you say where you picked them up ; or caunot you remember? A. Of course, I saw a large 
number of bodies burnt outside the pit; but I am speaking of what I saw inside the pit. 
4945. Q. Is there anybody else you can think of in the pit; or can you say where you found any 
bodies which you could not recognise ? A. Well, about the 70's-down- about that portion. There 
were bodies there which we put into the timber trolley. 'We threw five or six into the trolley and 
some were badly burnt.. There was a man I met that I used to go to work with in the clay time ; but I could 
not say that they were so and so, unless somebody said to rue that they were so and so, and then I 
could tell. 
4916. (7. 'S,\Tlmat else I A. I saw the Aitleens and Morrises I coffined them. 
4947. (7. What about them l A. They were unreccgnisalile. 
4948. Q. From burning? A. Yes ; the hair and moustache were badly burnt. I could not recognise the 
father from the son. The father was identified, probably, by the flannel belt he were. 
4949. Q. Was there anyone else-anyone outside that you know was burnt? A. Of coors? I knew Jack 
Clark, who was burnt, a boy named Stone, and Stanley Richards. I saw them numerous times in the 
hospital since the explosion. They were working outside the colliery. 
4950. Q. in addition to observing the bodies burnt, did you notice any evidence of flame in any part of the 
pit? A. No. 
4951. Q. On time props? A. No ; I never saw any props burnt throughout the whole of the pit. 
4952. (7. Nor canvas? A. No,' I did not think that I did. 
4953. (7. Did you look to see whether it was done? A. It was not my mission-I did not look ; I did not 
trouble myself at all. 
4954. (7. Have you any idea as to what caused the explosion? A. I have my own opinion. - 
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4955. Q. You may say it? A. Well, of course, I do not know, but my opinion is that the Ai±ens went 
into some of those old workings, and they struck it. 
49.56. Q. Struck what? A. Gas. 
4957. Q. Fire-damp? A. Yes. 
4958. Q. And what then? A. They started it. 
4959. Q. Can you tell us whether you know anything of gas having been in Kembla before the disaster 
A. Well, it is generally understood (1?iteI'muptec?). 
4960. AIr. 11'ade.1 I object to what was understood. 
4961. Air. Lysaght.] 1 am going to get specific instances. 
4962. Q. Yes? A. I can say of my own personal knowledge. I was working at 41 or 42 ; I think that 
was the number. I was working a heading running down towards Powell's Flat ; and there was gas there. 
I know the men working on the other side of me. 
4963. Q. Who were they? A. Jack O'Farrell and Dan Healey had just started a bore on the right. 
C. Smith and Aif Prior were working a bord next to me. 
4964. Q. Can you locate that on the map? A. It is between where I was working and Powell's Flat. 
4965. Q. Next to Charles Smith? A. Jackson and howell were working next to Prior at the time. 
4966. Q. flow far back is this? A. I have had one cavil since-that would be three months. The disaster 
happened in the middle of the cavil, I think. It would he seven or eight months. 
4967. Q. What was it you observed? A. The ventilation was very bad there. When we went in the 
smoke was there from the preceding day. We would frequ'ntly complain to Deputy Evans about it. lIe 
would say, " I cannot understand it." I said, ' it is there right enough ; in the morning you can hardly 
find your road into the bord." lie could give no reason. lie thought the ventilation was good. It 
puzzled hint. 
4968. Q. Yes? A. Of course all the men complained as well as me ; the whole of them. 
4969. Q. What after that, regarding this place? A. Oh, the ventilation was bad. That was the only place 
I saw where I think the ventilation was bad. 
4970. Q. Did you observe anything else at that time? A. I was working with Allen in that place. After 
firing shots - (Interrvpfed). 
4971. Q. Is this the same time? A. Yes. After firing shots we waited until the smoke had cleared and 
you could go in, and I think on numerous occasions I spoke to him about his way of lighting gas. 
4972. Q. Spoke to whom I A. Allen. 
4973. Q. Did he light gas? A. He used to light it. 
4974. Q. How often? A. I would not say how often exactly ; I would say not after every shot; but on 
numerous occasions at all events-perhaps every other day. 
4975. Q. When he did light it, how long a time would elapse after the shot had been fired? A. Sometimes 
longer than others. 
4976. Q. The average? A. In some shots it went off quick with a report. 
4977. Q. How long elapsed after the shot had been fired to the time he lit the gas ? A. Generally you stay 
out for a few minutes at all events. 
4978. Q. When he came back, how far would he be from the face of the coal when the gas was alight? 
A. You can tell by the appearance of it. Always when approaching a shot you have the lamp up; and he 
would go and light it. 
4979. Q. What would he the nearest distance that he would get to the face before lighting the gas? 
A. Sometimes nearer than others ; sometimes .5 feet or 6 feet. 
4980. Q. Sometimes 2 or 3 feet, or 5 or 6 feet ;and sometimes in the coal ? A. On different occasions. 
4981. Q. On how many occasions would he be 5 or 6 feet from the gas? A. That is a big thing to ask me. 
4982. Q. Flow often would he be 5 or 6 feet from the face ? A. I have seen him do it very often. I think 
you could find him ; and he will tell you the same. 
4983. Q. Was he an old miner? A. Yes. A man who has lia.l years of experience-fifteen years_and a 
good miner too. 
4981. Q. Do you know whether any report was made about lighting the gas, and if so, to whom was it 
made? A. I think there was a report. 
4985. Q. To whom was it made? A. We were there; and you could hear the singing noise out of the ribs 
of the b)rd. On going up to it you could see the water oozing oat. Charles Allen said, " What is it? 
but he knew what it was. He said, " That is gas." 
4986. Q. Who said, "That is gas "? A. Evans said that. 
4987. Q. In addition to that, after the gas had been lit by your mate, were you present when he said to 
Evans about the lighting of it? A. He never spoke to Evans about lighting it. I said it was a dangerous 
thing. 
4988. Q. To whom did you say it was dangerous? A. To Allen, my mate. Sometimes it went off with a 
report. That was when a good shot had been fired, and the coal came down. 
4989. Q. When was it Evans said it was gas? A. While we were working there. The noise was there all 
the time; and the water was oozing out. The singing noise was from the rib behind you. 
4990. Q. Did Evans come down to where you were working.? A. We saw him every day while lie was our 
deputy. At other timrs Nelson was deputy. 
4t91. Q. Did lie make any inspection? A. He came in and looked at it. We thought him a good deputy 
-that is, David Evans. 
4992. Q. Did he test for gas in that place of yours? A. No. 
993. Q. Did Evans know whether your mate knew of the gas ? A. No, my mate never told him that 

while we wom-kiug there. He would not tell him afterwards. 
4994. Q. Was there any other occasion where gas was lit by you or your mate I A. No. 
4995. Q. Do you know of gas being lit in any other gersOii's idace A. I did not sin it. 
4996, Q. Have you heard any person tell Evans that gas was lit in Ids place ? A. No. 1 know a man who 
came into my bord, and said that lie had nearly got blown up. It was llaii-y Waples. 
4997. Q. When was that ? A. It was the cavil be fore I mu speaking about-about twelve months ago. I 
was working in Powell's Flat, in the next bord to Harry Waples and Thomas Powell. 
4998. Q. Have you any idea where he is ? A. I have seen him : I think he is in the country yet; although 
he told me he waa going to Africa. I think he could be found. 4999. 
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4999. Q. Was it before the explosion you were working there? A. I was working a pillar in a shaft-13 
I think. 
5000. Q. How long before? A. Eight weeks before. 
5001. (7. Was there any evidence of gas there? A. There was nothing there that I saw. 
5002. (7. have you anything to say about that part you were \voiking in ? A. I did not see anything 
wrong. It was a dangerous part of the pit to work in ; and it was pretty hard. 
5003. Q. Did you have any interview with Mr. Rogers about that place? A. Well, I may have had an 
interview with him ahdut the way the skips were running. 
5004. Q. Do you remember anything about it I A. It was not gas. We were not getting the number of 
skips we were entitled to. I was sent as a d1ogate to see Mr. Rogers; and the thing was rectified. He 
said that he did not think such things were going on. We were getting six or eight skips; and other men 
were getting up to thirty. 
5005. Q. He did not give any reason, did he? A. There were some places in particular that they wanted 
working out quicker-that was near the hundreds--lU 1-2, 3, 4. 
5006. Q. They wanted it working out quickly? A. He never gave any reason. 

[At this stage the Commission adjourned until 2 o'clock.] 

AFTEnNOo. 

On resuming at 2 p.m , Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings. 
Ma. JOhN SELLS, prevIously sworn, was further eaainined, as under 

5007. JLi. Lysag)it.] Q. 1 think you were telling us about Waplee, who was nearly blown up P A. Yes. 
5008. (7. Wrhere  was he working? A. lie was working in the adjoining bord to inc-in Powell's Flat. 
5000. (7. How long before the disaster? A. Well, about fire or six mouths before. 
5010. 0. Did you see anything up with Waples 9 A. No. Tie caine to me, and told me he had had- a 
narrow escape ; 1)0 was putting in a prop, and putting,  in a false bottom, when he struck this blower. 
5011. Q. Speaking about this place, where you were not gettnig the number of skips you wanted, and 
Rogers, you said, did not know the reason 9 A. I ivent to i\I r. Rogers-two of (is were sent by I he Lodge. 

Te were not getting the number ol skips we were eniticd to Some men were getting thirty skips a day, 
and we were getting eight or ten. This was three mnooths before the exploson. In particular there were 
Nos. 101-2-3-4. Four numbers, but it may have boon 99. They were the last numbers on the cavil. 
These men were woikng on some pillars they were to get out; and they had as high as thirty skips a day, 
and were making good money. We were getting eight skips a day, and not roalcing our salt. 
5012. Q. Did you discover the reason why they were furnished ivitli extra skips? A. From other miners 
I did. 
5013. AIr. Wade.] Anything which the Manager said I do not object to, but it is unsafe to take the gossip 
of the miners. 
5011. his Honor.l The witness might say what opinion he formed on the matter. 
5015. AIr. Lysaq/ü.] Q. Yes? A. 1 had the check-weighuan's sheet the previous month-the month 
before I went as it delegate to Mr. 16ers -and told him that we were not getting anywhere near the 
number of skips we were entitled to; an:1 drew his attention to the sheet. Some men were getting thee 
high numbers. About this Mr. Rogers said that these were special places, where they wanted to get the 
coal out very quick. I said, Here are men who are getting SO or 9.) tone and other inca 150 or 160, or 
perhaps 130, tone," and I read out the names of these men. Ho said that he did not know that tImings 
were going on like this. 
5010. Q. Regarding the statement that lie wanted to get the coal out quickly : from anything that you 
observed do you know why they wanted to get the coal out quickly? 
5017. AIr. Wade.] How can he tell why they wanted to get the coal quickly P 
5018. His Honor.] Q. Did the mine show why they wanted to get it out quickly? A. The usual talk was 
that it should be got out quickly. 
5019. Mr. Li/sa.qJit.] Q. Why P A. The talk was that there was bad air and gas there, and that they 
wanted the place worked out quickly. I got this from one of the shrewdest miners in the pit. 
5020. IRs Honor.] Q. Where were these pillars P A. 101-2-3-4. I could name some of the men. Andy 
Patterson I could name as working there. The numbers are dilferent now on the plan. 
5021. Q. Could you point the places out 9.1. I do not know whether I could. 
5022. AIr. Lysaq/it.] Q. Say where these pillars were that they were working out quickly? A. 101-2-3-4. 
They were getting four skips to our one. 
5023. Q. What was the place called? A. They were called special places. 
5024. Q. Could you name any of them P A. Not that I could say; they were called special places. 
5025. Q. Can von give me the names of the men P A. Andy Patterson and his brother were two of the 
men working there at the time ; I cannot think of the other men. 
5026. Q. Is Patterson living now 9 A. Yes ; he is a deputy at Kembla. 
5027. Q. Do you know of any other places of your own knowledge where there was gas in Kenbla, 
although it may not have been ignited, say within twelve months of the disaster? A. No, I would not 
say that I saiv it in any other place myself, only the place I hive specified, where Allen used to light it. 
5028. Q. You spoke about Evans being a good deputy? A. There is no doubt that he was what we call 
a good deputy, lie was a good moan, and had-a good name with the mnimmero. 
5029. Q. What do you mean P A.Iwill tell you this much : There are a number of things in the Mining 
Act which it says must be done. The Act says you must have sprags up. You can tell yourself, when 
working, that in certain cases the coal is cemented to the roof. A sprag would be in the way. lIe would 
not come up and say, You should have sprags tip,'' or that you should have a prop up. A ina:i like that 
was considered a good deputy. 
5030. Q. That is your idea of ii hat is eonAde -ed a good deputy? A. Yes. 
5031. AIr. Wade.] Q. lIe would not put you to unuecess:mry work P A. No. 
5032. 31r. Lq..ag'it.] (7. Because he did not mn:mke you co: ply with all the Regulations of the Act P A. No; 
and Mr. Nehon would not do it. You know there was no need to do it. Sonic of the stuff you could 
not blow off the roof-imnt in that part:cnlir section. 
5013. Q. You said Evans alivavs inspected the working places below. A. Well, he would come in-some-
tImes he would not come right up to the face. If it was a short day, sometimes he would sing out and. 
go by. 5033k. 
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f033l. Q. How often would he do that P A. Not often but he has done it. 
5034. Q. About how often P A. He may have done it eight or ten i imes. Safely,  speaking, if he happened 
to be in a hurry, he would go away. lie would be about as fbr as it is from here to the clock from the face. 
503. Q. What would he call out P A. C  lion- are you'" " How is it'," " How are you getting on P 
and casual remarks like that. 
5136. Q. Would he oome back that day P A. Not bust we were there: be would only pay one visit 
duly. 
5037. (7. In the Keira Mine what are the means of ventilation-a furnace or a fan? A. Furnace. 
5038. (7. What is the air-supply like? A, The air seems pretty good. I have not been there \'ery long-
or,iy a few months. Where I ain working, it is only about ten minutes from the Daylight Heading; and 
the air there is all right. 

Cross-examined by Mr. 'Wade:- 

5039. (7. How long were you at Mount Kcmnba? A. Two years. 
5010. Q. How long is it since you left P A. Six months ago. 
5041. (7. When did you start at Mount Keira? A. About six months ago ; about a week or ten or twelve 
days after the accident. 
5012. (7. Before Mount Kembla was reopened ? A. Yes. 
5013. (7. Is the whole of your experience-Iwo and a half years-coal-mining? A. I have been down a 
great number of mines, anti at work in coal-mines. 
5014. Q. What were you doing bcfore P A. Seven ye rs before. I was working at smelting works in 
the Colony-three years at Dapto, and three or four Years at Newcastle-Cockle Creek. 
5045. Q. What before that? A. I was in the Police Force before that. 
5040. (7. How old are you? A. Now you have inc b ul. I am about 30 years of age, I think. 
5017. Q. When you felt this terrific current of air, did it take you off your feet, or anything like that? 
A. No. 
5048. (). Give us some idea of the force-you know what a strong southerly burster is P A. Yes ; it 
was strong'r than that. Our lights went out instantly. 
5019. (7. It was stronger than a strong southerly ? A. Yes. 
5030. (7. Was it hot? A. There would, be no occasion for its being hot; it could not be just then. 
5051. (7. Did you feel it hot afterwards P A. When we got near where the fire was, it was hot. What- 
ever this whi:e s uff was, whether smoke or anything else, it did not reach our lamps. I saw it: that was 
all. I saw it coming down the heading. It m:iv not have gone straight on. 
50.52. (7. 'When at Mat's Flat, did you hear a number of men say, Go on, Dane; go on, Davie?" A. Of 
course, it all depends upon what you call Mat's Flat. 
5033. Q. After you joined Evans, did you hear a number of men say, Go on, DavieP " A. No one 
said that. 
3031. (7. 1)1 von see Mat Frost there? A. Tie was not there at that particular time. 
3055. (7. \Vhat time? A. \Viien you spoke of going to Mats Flat. The first man to speak was myself. 
I said, ' If we do not make a shift We shall never get out.." Mat Frost left with Bill Ridley. I saw no 
more of Mat Frost until 0 o'clock. 
5030. Q. Did you her anyone urge David Evans to get them out P A. I Nvas present when the news was 
first brought to David Evans. There were eight of us there-six miuers, David Evans, and Mat Frost. 
All of theso men got out safely. 
5037. Q. Is this a fact- that some men sugesIed that old No. 2 was the way out, and Evans said " We 
will take you that way out''? A. No ; that is oct correct. 
5058. Q. Was Mat Frost pro sent when it took place P A. it did not take place when Mat Frost was 
there. 
5059. Q. It did not take place while you were there PA. No. I am speaking of Old No. 2, right out by 
Rogers' place. David Evaiis asked that question. He.  said," Dues anybody know the road that leads out by 
Mr. Rogers plaev-the Daylight Tunnel P' Harry was saving what Ito knew ol the road. 
5030. (7. Were you inside the door of the ventilation shift, with David Evans and other muon? A. Yes. 
5031. Q. Were they in a great hurry? A. They di I not appear to be. We had travelled fast. 
5002. (7. Did the men ceein in a great hurry to get out ? A. We were talking (Inferrup fed). 
3033. (7. Were they in a great hurry to get out P A. Most decidedly. 
5001. Q. Were they excited? A. Some were, some were not; plenty were sittin(y down. 
500.5. Q. Did not Evans ask them to sit down and wait P A. Ne. 
5000. Q. Did not the inca say, " Go on '' ? A. it would be foolish. 
5007. Q. I did not say foolish or wise. What is your answer P -4. No. 
5)08. (7. What did they say ? A. Some of them said nothing ; they did not speak. 
5009. (7. Did they say they were in a hurry to get out? A. We could not all be speaking together. 
507). (7. What was to prevemit their all speaking together? A. If they were all speaking together you 
would not know what they were saying. 
5071. (). Did that help you to form an opinion, because some men did not speak at all? A. No; we were 
in a hurry to get out. 
5072. 0. Did some of the men say so ? A. They did not say, " We are in a hurry to get out." 
5073. Q. Did they use words to that effect P A. We were devising the best means. 
5074. (7. Did some say, " Go on, Davie"? A. No ; because we were all stationary. 
5075. (7. Did they say that P A. No. 
5070. (7. Anything like it ? A. No. 
5077. (7. What did they say to show that they were in a hurry? A. We were there. There is a door 
there. 
5078. (7. What did they say P A. I am going to tell you. There were sixty of us in one heap-some sitting 
and some standing--there was a door to open. The smoke was too thick -(Interrupted). 
5U79. Q. What did the men say? A. I will tell you. Some of them said, " What about the horses ?" 
Mat said, " Oh, b -- the horses --it is not horses but men." 
5080. (7. \Vlmat did they say P A. I go by their movements, We were running before we got there. 
5081. (7. What did they say P A.'Well, David Evans said, " Is there anyone here who knows the way 
out by Rogers' place." harry James was speaking to him, and he told him some of the road that he 
knew ; and it was agreed that no one knew the way out (In ft r1-u;(et7). 5( 82. 
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5082. Q. That does not answer my question ;-T say what did the men say to show that they were in a 
hurry IF A. I am telling you-that shows they were in a hirry. David Brims, after that, said, " Come 
on." We had to go back ; we could not go forward. lIe said, '1 will try to see the road out this way. 
He went back by the travelling road that we came, lie branched off near the Six tommy dodds, near some 
workins and came near Mat's Cabin aouiu. 
5083. Q. That is no answer to my question; did Evans say to Frost, ' There is only me and you know 
the way to No. 2; would it not be better for one of its to stay behind for fear other men may come out? 
A. No. David Evans said,-(Interruptec/). 
5081. Q. You say no ? A. I say no. 
5085. Q. Did Mat Frost stay while Evans went on? A. Mat Frost went away. 
5080. Q. Did lie go with Evans? A. No, there is too much of a man about him for that. 
5087. Q. Apparently the only man there was you? A. No; Mat Frost was there. 
5088. .Mi. Lysaqlit.] I submit that there is no need to put a question like that. 
5089. Ris honor.] The witness is only narrating what lie knows. 
5090. .M. Wade.] There are other persons who have given evidence on this point before. 
5091. Wifnes&.] I am only tellino- the truth. 
5092. ALe. Wide.J Q. When did you first make a statement about this matter-what you knew about the 
case? Did you mention it to anybody before you came here P A The first statement would be to 
my mates. 
5093. Q. Since the explosion? A. Of course I have spo1en about it--it is common talk. 
5094. Q. By anybody? A. Not by anybody. 
5095. Q. Anywhere in the mine? A. No. 
5006. Q. Where were you at the time of the inquest? A. Mount Keira. 
5007. Q. You knew the inquest was going on? A. Yes. 
5098. Q. And you knew men were giving evidence about the case ? A. Yes. 
5099. Q. Did you offer yourself P A. No ; I was asked here. 
5100. Q. Who asked you? A. Well, I knew I was to be called long ago. 
5101. Q. Who asked you? A. Mr. Lvsaght was the man who brought me here. 
5102. Q. When did be ask you? A. $ome time back. 
5102k. Q. how far back P A. A month. lIe told inc he would want me to give evidence here; and I said 

Very good." 
5103. Q. Did you see Harnmon after the explosion-Clifford Hammon? A. I have seen him since. 
51.04. Q. Did you see him shortly afterwards? A. I saw him coming out of the tunnel that evening. 
5105. Q. Did you notice his arm? A. No. 
.5100. Q. Was lie burnt? A. I cannot say. I remenibtr his coining out of the tunnel. 
5107. Q. You cannot say whether his arms were burnt or not? A. No. 
5108. Q. Was his face ? A. No. 
5109. Q. Do you mean that, when the people were burnt, the flesh was hanging on their arms ? A. The 
flesh was off in flakes, especially on the a rins and laces. 
5110. Q. The skin or the flesh? A. More than the outer skin. 
5111. Q. What was the colour ? A. Of course, all the bodies were black. 
5112. Q. What colour? A. If you washed them they might be cherry red. 
5113. Q. Do you say the colour was cherry red P A. I would not say that. The faces of the people burnt 
were black. 
5114. Q. There was the outside skin off the face-it was a loosening of the skin P A. It was broken. 
5115. Q. Enderneath the skin was black? A. Excepting where it was pink. 
5110. Q. Where the skin was off, what was the colour? A. I said that the bodies, where the sound skin 
was remaining, were of a pink colour. 
5117. Q. What was the colour of the flesh where the skin had been taken off it ? A. It would be black. 
5118. Q. From the coal dust ? A. Yes. 
5119. Q. And also the coal dust on it? A. I expect so. it would not be like a clean-cut wound. You 
would not see the blood or the cut. 
5120. Q. Is that the same appearance as the arms, so far as you could see? A. Some men work naked 
and some work wiih their shirts on. 
5121. Q. I am taking the eases that had the skin off in flakes? A. Yes. 
5121. Q. What was the colour? Did the colour of the flesh, where the skin came off the arms, seem 
to be much the same as the colour of the face, where the skin had come off the face? A. The flesh was 
off the face ; yu could see it as if half boiled-the flesh would be bursting out. 
5123. Q. Do you know what a water blister is P A. Y€s. 
5124. Q. You know how the skin rises P A. Yes. 
5125. Q. Do you know how the skin forms uuderncath-did it not flake off as the skin does off a water 
blister? A. No. 
5120. Q. There was no water or blister? A. No water there. 
5127. Q. Did not the skin flake off in the same way as when you have a water blister? A. No. 
5128. Q. How did it rise? A. it did not rise. They were like contused wounds. In the case of some 
ol the bodies which I helped to put in the skips you could hear the flesh slip through your arm. 
5129. Q. The flesh was ready,  to come off? A. Yes. 
5130. Q. You could feel the flesh? A. Yes. 
51:31. Q. And were the flesh and skin there? A. Yes, that is it, and the flesh was broken in some casts. 
5 13 2. Q. You did not see Aiiken? A. Yes. 
5133. Q. Is this the case -that his hair was singed as if it had been singed by a barber ? A. It was singed 
more than by a barber. 
5134. Q. That is not a fair description? A. No ; the man was burnt ;  I could not recognise him. 
5133. Q. I am talking about the hair? A. lime hair was burnt. If 'on bunt the hair off a man, the 
chances are that, if thee is no current of air, you would see the charred hair there. Some of the bodies 
had it. In some of the cases the charred hair was there. In some eases it was not there ; it had been 
burnt off clean to time scalp-burnt or blown off. I saw a horse with all his harness bloo ii off. 
5130. Q. Can you fix that spot? A. About 50 yards from where Keiimbla Stafford was, there was a grey 
horse lying; and every particle of harness was blown off him. 537. 
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5137. ('2. Was the horse dead? A. Dead right enough, 
5 [3S. His Honor.] Q. Was the hair of the horse singed as well? A. No ; although Kemp Stafford was 
sitting up 50 yards away, and he was singed. 
5139. Mr. Bruce S'init/i.] Q. Did you see the harness? A. No. 
5140. his Honor.l Q. Which way was Stafford sitting, to the east or ivest of the horse? A. He WOliI( 

be more west of the horse. 
5141. A[i. 1Yule.] 0. As a matter of fact he would be away from his own place when you found him? 
A. I think he was in Price's place. There were two dead horses there. '[here was one in the turning 
which had its harness on ; and the horse of w-hich I was speaking had no harness on. 
5142. His ilonorj Q. The horse with the harness on was not singed ? A. I did not pay much attention 
to the horse. I take it for granted that he was burnt. 
5143. .31r. Wadej Q. What position were Hewlett and Smith in--jammed against the side? A. No; 
thousands of tons of earth had fallen down. They were in the cabin-Hewlett and the boy Smith. 
514. Q. The cabin is a manhole? A. Yes, it is. 
5145. ('2. Were they lying down ? A. 1 think the boy Smith, who was about 15, was sitting upon a bench 
in the manhole. I-fewlett was on the floor; and there was a drill-Mick Quinn's drill-run into his thigh. 
lie had-left the drill in the cabin some time previously. 
5116. AL". Bruce Smith j Q. Perhaps he had been thrown against it in the cabin? A. Yes, perhaps so. 
5147. AIr. Wade.] Q. The drill may have been standing there; and he woull b-a blown against it ? A. I 
expect so. It was the next morning that we found him. 
5118. Q. Were hewlett's clothes burnt ? A. Yes I could not recognise him, although I worked alongside 
him. 
5149. ('2. Were his clothes burnt? A. I did not see it. I know the boy Smith was burnt. 
5130. Q. I am talking about the clothes ? A. They may have been burnt, but I did not see them ; the 
chances are they were not. 
515-I. Q. What was left of the boy Silcock ? A. All he had on him was one boot. his hair and everything 
was torn off him. I know he had a new pair of boot-, because I was living next door to him. They were 
now boots ; and the boot that was left was charred. 
552 Q. How charred? A. Shrivelled up with fire. 
5153. Q. What was the appearance of the naked body? A. Black, like a nigger. His legs were broke-n 
and twisted about; but I saw no skin broken. liewas lying on the rails; he was not covered up at all. 
5154. Q. You only guess that the clothes were burnt off him. You did not seen any burns? A. I did 
not see any burns- no. 
5155. Q. You did not find any loosening of the skin P A. I would not say that I did. 
5 15G. Q. Loosening-as you found in the case of Aitken ? A. I would not swear there was a loosening of 
the skin. It was not broken, although his hair was burnt off. 
5157. Q. His body was black? A. Yes. 
5138. Q. With coal dust P A. Yes ; the skin might be broken ; but we did not notice it. 
5159. 0. The other bodies were broken ; and you noticed it P A. Yes. 
5 [60. Q. Where was Torn Purcell? A. I think it was Jim Purcell who was burnt. His face was all burnt. 
No ; I think it was Jack Purcell. 
5161. ('2. You do not know who it was-you found his body in the 2nd Right, near the cabin? A. Yes. 
5162. ('2. Is he the one with the hooked nose ? A. Jack Purcell was a stout man. 
5163. Q. You found hini in the travelling road P A. Yes. 
5164. Q. Was lie it man over 30, with a hook to his nose? A. You mean Torn Purcell I do not think we 
had anything to do with him. 
5165. ATe. Robertson ] Q. I do not think you found the man on the travelling road ? 'fie man you refer 
to was found in the telephone cabin. One was Purcell-that is one-Purcell, A. i-Iewlett, and a boy 
named Smith ? A. Yes. 
5166. Q. Tlìere was another il-ian found in the travelling road ; and that was the one Mr. Wade is speaking 
of P A. I know nothinLr about thot The body I found was when Mr. Robertson was with me. 
5167. Atr. Wade.] Q. What was his condition P Was the skin loose on his face ? A. I will not swear 
that his skin was loose. 
5163. Q. What about his hair? A. I think it was burnt off; I could not recognise it. 
5169. Me. Bruce S-nit/i.] Q. You could not recognise it? A. No. 
5170. Mr. Jvade.] Q. Was his hair burnt off to the roots? A. I could not say-there was a doubt about 
his identification. 
5171. Q. Now, as to the cause of the explosion ? Were you in Aitken's working place ? A. I was close 
to it ; not in it. 
5172. Q. You are forming opinions really on conjecture-you think it might ba a likely place for tho 
explosion to start. They were old workings ; and if you struck a light it might have -one oil'? A. That 
is the easiest way to do it. It is my opinion that it originated there. 
5173. Q. As to the place where you worked ei'hit months ago, near Powell's Flat? A. Yes. 
5174. ('2. What time would you regularly fire the shots P A. You could fire a dozen times a day, if you 
Ii Iced. 
5173. ('2. What did you do? A. Fired at any time. 
5176. Q. When you fired during the day, did the smoke (lear off ? A. No ; not for a loin time. 
5177. Q. how long? A. There was always smoke there. I am speaki ig for over a quarter. For the first 
two or three weeks, or perhaps a month, there was alo avs a mist hanging about. 
5178. ('2. Was it thick A. Yes; when we went in in t lie morning. - 
5179. ('2. Was it thicker in the morning? A. I do not think it wa4 thicker in the morning. The more 
you added to it the more it would be. We were always firing sh As in that district. Of course, we told 
the deputy about it. 
5180. Q. Do you say there was no current of air there? A. I do not say there was no current thcrc-it 
was a slow one. 
5181. Q. A slow one PA Yes ; a very slow one. 
5182. ('2. What size shots did von pit in-how much coal did you bring down? A. It was not a good 
plane. It all depends liw the skips were going. 
5183. Q. What did you bring down on an average? A, You might bring down about 5 tons. 

5181. 
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5181 Q. When you found the gas light after a shot, was it in consequence of that that you complained 
about the ventilation? A. The reason we complained to Evans about it was that, when we went in in the 
morning, it was very bad. We all cOmplained, to him about it. He said, "I cannot make it out." 
5185. Q. Was the ventilation badly arranged? A. That is more than 1 can tell you. 
5186. Q. Was there any special difficulty P A. There must hive been soinethiug wrong. 
5 187. Q. Did it improve P A. After a while the ventilation was better-in a week or i,o. 
5188. Q. Were you in a bord? A. Yes. 
5189. Q. Was it bad when you were breaking off the bord? A. No. The bord started the preceding cavil, 
it was worked 15 or 20 yards. The smoke was there in the morning when you went into the place. 
5190. Q. How long did the smoke last P A. All day. 
5191. Q. What period of time-a week or a month? A. It lasted for a few weeks. 
5192. Q. Now about this singing noise that you speak of-was it from the water? A. No, it was not 
water. There was something else oozing out with it. 
5193. Q. Did that noise come from where the water was oozing out P A. Yes, from the same place. 
You might see a drop of water oozing out of the rib, and then hear the noise. 
5191. Q. Do you know whether the oozing out of water is not sometimes mistaken,for blowers of gas? 
A. The oozing of water mistaken for gas P 
5195. Q. People believe that they have gas, when it is only water? A. A. blower of gas would be when 
the gas is confined and escapes. 
5196. Q. That is the same with water. Do you not know that water is often mistaken for gas? A. No 
I do not think that water could make the sound I heard there. 
5197. Q. I do not ask you about there. Do you know that the sound of water oozing from the face could 
be mistaken for a blower of gas. Do you know whether the sound is similar at all? A. I could not say 
that water would make that sound. It was a babbling sound--a singing sound. 
5198. Q. Did you test it? A. Yes. 
5199. Q. Did it go off? A. No., 
5200. Q. Did Allen try it ? A. Yes. 
5201. Q. Did you make any experiments to try and light it before you spoke to Evans? A. I cannot say; 
I cannot remember that now. 
5202. Q. Where was this, in the face of the coal? A. On the rib-on the face. 
5203. Q. how far back from the face P A. The noise was on the rib, it might be 6 yards from the face. 
It was there daily. 
5201. Q. \Vhat kind of place was it, a wet place ? A. It was wet ; but there was no water---not to 
speak of. 
5205. Q. Was it wet? A. No. 
5206. Q. You say there was no water to speak of -what do you mean? A. After you knocked off in the 
evening, the floor would be danl1) in the morning. 
5207. Q. Where would it come from ? A. From the face-out of the coal I expect. 
5208. Q. You asked E ans what the noise was? A. I never did so ; my mate asked him. 
5209. Q. lie said, What do you call that" P A. He said, Oh, that is gas." 
520. 0. llefore you tried to light it? A. Before or after. 
5211. Q. Did you never hear the sound of water oozing out of some place before ? A. I have heard it 
oozing out of the bowels of the earth. 
5212. Q. I am speaking of a coal-mine? A. I found that water there you could put your ear to it and 
hear it. 
5213. Q. And you think the sound must have come from the gas you saw? A. It could not come from 
the water: the pressure of water from behind would not make that sound. 
5214. Q. Wee you just finishing the pillars? A.No; that work had been running on for some 
considerable time. 
5215. Q. Did they work the pillars out? A. I cannot say whether they did. 
5216. Q. Ilow long were they going on at the rate of thirty skips a day? A. A long time. 
5217. Q. how long would it take to work it out ;-a week, a month, a fortnight, or a quarter? A. In my 
opinion that part of the pit was being worlcei in advance for some months. They were making a good 
thing-and good money in that porioIi of the pit. 
5218. Q. Is it a common thing to rush a pillar, and get the coal out as quick as you can? A. It all depends 
on the system of getting the coal out. - 

A number of Lithographs used to illustrate the evidence of witnesses at the Coroner's Inquest 
were not marked as Exhibits thereat; but the Commission decided to accept them as evidence. They 
were thereupon marked Exhibits and numbered as follows, the order of the numbers being the order in 
which the witnesses were examined :- 

Exhibit No. 2-Broadheacl, W.-Map by which his evidence was illustrated at Coroner's Inquest. 
Fxhibit No. 3-Frost, Matthew do do do 
Exhibit No. 4-1orrison, .John-MIap by which his evidence was illustrated at Coroner's Inquest. 

(Put in during evidence on 21 :s /02.) 
Exhibit No. 5-Morrison, John-Map by which his evidence was illustrated at Coroner's Inquest. 

(Put in durin(.' evidence on 23!8/'02.) 
Exhibit No. 6-Evani, David-Map by which his evidence was illustrated at Coroner's Inquest. 
Exhibit No. 7-Frost, Adam, junior do do do 
Exhibit No. S-Rogers, W. do do do 
Exhibit No. 9---Mav, Jonathan do do do 
Exhibit No. lO-Ritchie, David do do do 
Exhibit iNo. lOx-Stafford. Adam do do da 
Exhibit No. 11-Ramsay, George do do do 
Exhibit No. 12--Stafford, Ernest do do do 
Exhibit No. 13-Atkinson, A. A. do do do 

(T'he Commission, at 3 o'clock, adjourned until 10 o'clock on the following Tuesday.) 

TUESDAT, 



	

215 

TUESD4Y, 20 JANUARY, 1903. 

[The CommLssion met at the Coert house, Wollongong] 

3ilreeccnt:- 
0. F. R. MURRAY, IESQ., D.C.J. (PREsIDENT). 

D. A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ., CoMnIssIoNau. I D. RITCHIE, Es•., CoMnIsSIONEE. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Ccal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of— 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c., (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, kc.) ; and 
the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. C. G. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. F. Curtiss, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla 
Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

5219. (His Honor staled that the Secretary bad drawn his attention to the fact that in the evidence 
various roads ii the mine were referred to by names which might lead to confusion in afterwards identifying 
them on the map. For instance, the road marked on the map as 5th Right rope road was sometimes 
referred to in the evidence as No.5 Right rope road, whereas the map showed that the No. 5 Right road was 
in another portion of the maine at a distanec from the 5th Right rope road. his Honor asked Counsel to 
bear in mind the fact that all the roads leading out from the No. I Right engine road were called 2nd 
Right rope road, 2nd Left rope road. 3rd Right rope road, 3rd Left rope road, and so on ; whereas 
those opening out from the main tunnel were designated as No. 2 Right, No. 2 Left, No. 3 Right, No. 
3 Left, &c., &c. If this was borne in mind, His Honor pointed out, confusion would be avoided.) 

Mit. JOHN SELLS was further examined as under :- 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wrade :- 

5220. Q. You said last Thursday that you had been in the Police Force ? A. Yes. 
5221. Q. When did you leave? A. I could not tell you. 
5222. Q. how long ago ? Was it in 1896? A. It might have been. 1896? Oh, it is longer back than 
that., h think. 
5223. Q. Was it not July, 1S93 ? A. I could not tell you the date or the month. 
5224. Q.  How did you come to leave P A. I left. 
5225. Q. I know you left. Just answer my question. I ask you how P A. I do not see what that has 
got to do with this. 
5226. Q. You do not? A. No. 
5227. Q. Do you decline to answer? A. I do not say that. I know bow I left all right. 
5228. Mr. Lysag/mt.] I will take your Honor's ruling on that. I would ask whether it is material that a 
witness should be asked why he left the Police Force. 
5229. His honor.] If it comes to a question of credibility, of course, a witness may be examined on his 
former history. It is generally better that a witness should answer. If a witness declines to answer, 
there are some cases in which it would be quite justifiable for counsel to press the qdestion ; and other 
cases in which counsel, using a fair discretion, would not do so. It depends very much on the history of 
the matter as known to counsel. 
5230. Wi/ness.] It was nothing that I need be ashamed of that I left for. 
5231. Mr. Wade.] Q. Were you dismissed? A. If you put the question like thai, I will sey "No." 
5232. Q.  Were you discharged P A. Aye; that is right—yes. 
5233. Q. Were you discharged for bad conduct? A. \Vbat you like. 
5231. Q. Yes or no? A. Principally through not divulging the name of a certain party. 
5235. Q. Were you discharged for bad conduct? A. You can call it what you like, it may be it was for 
a breach of the rules. 
5236. Q. Were you discharged for immoral conduct with a woman whilst on duty? Was that the charge? 
A. Alleged. 
5237. Q. That is the alleged ground of dismissal? A. That is it. 
5238. Q. Now, was it not in July, 1896 8 A. Well, 1 am not prepared to tell the month. If it was, I do 
not see much difference. It may have been. I do not see that it has got anything to do with this that 
these things should be raked up here. 
5239. Q. Whilst you were in the Force., a couple of years before that, were not you fined for assault ? 
A. I do not see why those things should be brought up to me, Your Bonor, here. If I did these things, 
and remained in the Force for two years afterwards, it cculd not be so bad. 
5240. Ills Honor.] Retention in the service for two years after a flue for assault almost speaks for itself, 
as the witness says. Assuming, for the sake of argument, that Sells was fined for assault, and was kept 
on in the Force for two years after that, then that action of the authorities pretty welt does away with 
the discrediting effect of the fine. A fine for assault is a matter immaterial to the question of the 
honesty of the witness. If he likes to explain it he can, but I do not think it ought to be pressed further. 
5241. Mr. Wade.] Q. Is that the only case of conviction for assault against you? A. I am not going to 
tell you anything more. That is all. It has nothing to do with this case at all. My antecedents have 
nothing at all to do with this case. 

5242. 
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5242. Q. Did you receive a sentence of six months' imprisonment? A. I am not going to answer you any 
more. 
5243. Q. Did you receive a sentence of six months' imprisonment in 1898? A. I am not going to answer 
any more questions to you. 
5244. Q. Did you serve that sentence ? A. I am not going to answer any questions to you at all. I 
know what you are hitting at. You are talking about an assault on a boat. I will explain in my own way. 
5245. Hi.i Honor.] If you wiTh to explain, you may explain it. 
5246. Witness.] I will say this and no more: I was up once for assa:iliing a ni.in on a boat, and it cost 
him an amount of money ; an-i I got out of it. 
5247. AIr. Wade.] Q. That is not what. I am referring to. Will you answer Inc this 9 A. No, I 
will not. 
5218. Q. Answer inn this: did not the occurrence of assaulting a man on a boat take place whilst you 
were in the Force ? A.Iwill not say. 
52 19. Q. Will you say it did not? A. I will not say. 
5250. Q. Now, I ask you whether you actually have not serve 1 a sentence of six months ? A. I am not 
going to answer any more questions with respect to my antecedents. I have been here seven years, and. 
I th:nk they speak for themselves. 
5251. Q. Now, I ask whether in ISDS you did nt actually serve as entence for six months for assault? 
A. 1 am not going to answer any questions. I do not think it is an honorable question to put to a man. 
I think it is a cowardly thing to ask questions of a man like this, when he ha3 lived an honorable life for 
years with no one to point the finger of scorn at him. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

5252. Q. Now, in describing the explosion in the Mount Keumbla Mine, you told us that you had great 
experience in gas P A. In gases. I have had good experience among gases. 
5233. Q. Do you mean in mines ? A. No, not in mines; but at other works that I have worked at ; in 
furnaces, and all those different kinds of gases and fumes. 
5254. Q. What sort of furnaces? A. Smelting furnaces particularly-that is all, 
5255. Q. What is your experience of gas in eonnecton wth smelting furnaces? A. Well, of course, in 
cleaning out these furnaces the gas is very bad. There are times when you go on for an eight-hour 
shift, and in reality you only do ten minutes' work. 
5250. Q. In what other form have you had experience of gases? A. Oatside the pit, none. 
5257. Q. And 1 understand you have worked in two mines only-Keira and Kembla? A. Yes, that is all. 
I have, been down a good many mines, but I have never laboured in them. 
5258. Q. How many times do you say you acquainted the deputy with the presence of gas in the Mount 
Kembla Mine? A. Well, only on this one particular occasion. 
5250. Q. One occasion-and that was Evans? A. That is the time I am speaking of-when my mate and 
the three of us were there. 
5260. Q. Who were the three? A. Charlie Allen, Davy Evans, and myself. 
5201. Q. Just your mate and yourself and Evans? A. Yes. 
5262. Q. I think you said you do not know where your mate is? A. I believe he is working in the 
Stanford Merthyr Colliery, near Maitland ; or I was told he was there. It is a new colliery. 
5263. Q. In the Mount Keira Mine, I think you said, the ventilation was bad? A. No; I did not say 
that. I do not think I was asked any question about that. 
5204. Q. What was the ventilation like? A. I have not been working there long. I have only worked in 
the two places in the mine. 
5265. Q. You said it was pretty bad there ; did you not? A. No; I do not think I was asked any 
questions on the ventilation of Mount Keira Mine. I said that the ventilation in one particular place I 
was working at in Mount Kembla was bad. 
5260. Q. What was the ventilation like in Keira? A. Some parts of it are pretty warm. 
5267. Q. What parts were they? A. When I was working there first, down in the old straight, it was 
very hot there. I was working on night work. 
5208. Q. Did you find gas in Keira? A. Well - (Interrupt(d). 
5200. Q. Did you complain that you had seen gas in Keira? A. No, I did not complain. 
5270. Q. Did not you state on one occasion that you had found gas in Keira? A. Outside the Court, or 
in the Court? 
5271, Q. Outside the Court ;-and did you not state that it had been lighted? A. Yes, I have stated. that. 
5272. Q. Who was your mate on that occasion? A. I was working with Billy Preece. I am working 
with him still. This is the last cavil. 
5273. Q. 'I am speaking, now, of Keira? A. Yes. 
5274. Q. Did he light the gas? A. No. We were working next to Paddy and. Alfred Gleeson, two 
brothers. 
5275. A. In the next boyd? A. 'Yes. They were lust  breaking away a bord at this particular time. They 
had been further up our bord after firing a shot ; and evidently had their lunch. Well, Paddy called out 
to me, and said, Come up here, Jack." I said, "What is the matter 9" He said, " Come here." So 
Billy an'i I went up to his place. lie said, " Come in here "-that is, to go into his bord. I said, "What 
is the matter ?" He said, " Come in here." 
5276. Q. Never mind what was said; -what did you see? A. I went up to the face of his bord, and h 
took the lamp and held it up to the face. 
5277. Q. Did it light the gas? A. Yes. 
52771. Q. Through the lamp? A. With the naked light. 
5278. Q. Was that a jet coming out of the wall-the rib? A. No ; it was up near the roof. 
5270. Q. Was it continuous? A. It was a flare. He took his hat off, and belted the flame out with 
his hat. 
5280. Q. It was coming out -[Literrupted] ? A. I could not say where it came from. It was there. 
5281. Q. Did you report that to anybody? A. No, I did not. 
5282. Q. Did either of those three men, your mate or the Gleesons, report it? A. Oh, they reported it. 
5283. Q. To your knowledge? A. Yes. 
5281. Q. To whom? A. Alick McDonald and Deputy Jubb. 5285. 
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5285. Q. Who is Alick McDonald? A. A deputy, 
5280 Q. He reported it to two deputies? A. Well, I think Jubb's position is underground manager. 
5287. Q. Are there two Jubb's, or only one? A. Only one. 
5288. Q. Was it reported to both these men in your presence? A. I was there, close by. 
5289. Q. Were they together-Jubb and McDonald? A. No. I think McDonald came in first, and Jubb 
came in a few minutes afterwards; but there were the four of them there at the time. 
5290. Q. I understand that McDonald was told in your presence, and Jubb was told in your presence;-
were those three men present? A. I heard the report being made to McDonald; but I did not hear it 
being made to Jubb, although they both went into the one place afterwards. Of course, Jubb came in a 
few minutes after McDonald. 
5291. Q. You heard it reported to McDonald? A. Yes. 
5292. Q. Do you remember what was said to McDonald?• A. They told him that the gas was there, and 
that they had lit it. 
5293. Q. Do you know whether McDonald said anything? A. No; I could not say anything that 
McDonald said. I did not hear what he said. 
5991. Q. You did not hear them say anything to Jubb? A. No. 
5295. Q. Where are the G-leesons? A. I expect they are working at Keira to-day. 
5290. A. You are working in Keira? A. Yes. 
5297. Q. And you believe they are working there still? A. Yes; they are working there still, right 
enough. 
5298. Q. When was this? A. Last year. 
5298. Q. About what quarter? A. It is about four weeks ago, perhaps less. 
5299. Q. Did you see Mr. Watson, the Inspector, when he went over the Keira Mine? A. I have seen 
him there several times. 
5300. Q. Since that time when you saw gas? A. I will not be very particular whether it is before or 
since. Yes, I have seen him there before and since. 
5301. Q. But since? A. Yes, since. 
5302. Q. Have you any knowledge as to whether Mr. Watson found gas there? A. Yes. 
5303. Q. Personal kilowledge? A. Yes. 
5304. Q. Where did he find it in your presence? A. He found it in o:mr bord; an I found it in the 
heading the Gleeson's were driving in. 
5305. Q. Also in your presence? A. I was not in Gleeson's place. 
5306. Q. I want to distinguish what you know through being told, and what you know of your own 
observation ? A. In my own place he came in and tested; and he said " It is here." 
5307. Q. In that very same place? A. In the same bord. 
5308. Q. How often before that occasion which you have mentioned did you find gas in Mount Keira 
mine? A. When the G-leesons started this cut-through from mnybord into their heading-[Inferrupted]. 
5309. Q. First of all I ask you how many times can you remember gas being found in Mount Kiera 
before that occasion ? A. Of my own personal knowledge? 
5310. Q. Yes. A. Once. 
5310. Q. How long was that ago? A. It may be two months ago. 
5311. Q. You never saw it before that in the mine? A. No. 
531112  Q. Are you sure? A. Yes. 
5312. Q. Think now. How long  is it since you went into Keira? A. About six rnotlis. 
5313. Q. You did not go there until after the Mount Kembla disaster? A. Not until about a week 
after. 
5314. Q. On this particular occasion, about two months ago, where was the gas that you found.? A. The 
0-leesons had started a cut-through it few yards from where I was working. 
5315. Q. The same part of the mine that you were in a month ago? A. Yes. They had started this 
cut-through to go through from my bord into the heading they had driven. They had a shot holed and 

the stemmed; and y called out "Fire "; and we had to go away a distance from the shot; and after the 
report there was a flare that lasted about ten or fifteen seconds. 
5310. Q. That is when you were returning to the face? A. We did not return. 
5317. Q. Could you see it? A. Yes; we could see it out from the cut-through; out into my bord. 
5318. Q. Who were looking at it at that time? A. Four of us-two Gleesons, Billy Preece, and myself. 
5319. Q. Was that reported to anybody? A. To my knowledge I do not think so. 
5320. Q. Do you know why? A. Well, there are a groat many things that are not reported in collieries, 
of course. 
5321. Q. I know: but did not you consider that as indicating a considerable danger in working in that 
part of the mine? A. Oh, I consider there is a danger in working there, and avorking-[Interru.pted]. 
5322. Q. But did not you then? A. It lay more with them to report it than with me. 
5323. Q. It was in their bord; not yours? A. Yes. 
5:324. Q. Do you know why they did not report it? A. No. 
5325. Q. Had they been in the mine longer than you? A. They had been in Keira a good. while. 
5326. Q. Did they treat it as a novelty; or dii they say anything about seeing gas in Keira before? 
Did they regard it as quite a new thing there, or did they seem accustomed to it? A. I think Paddy 
Gleeson said it was the second time it had happened there. 
5327. Q. You say the 0-leesons are there still? A. They are there still. 
5328. Q. Can you form any idea of the extent of the gas? How long the flame was? A. The flame ran 
from the face out to the bord. Of course they were not very far in from the bord. 
5329. Q. How far is that? A. About 10 or 12 feet. 
5330. Q. Did it fill the bord? A. Oh, yes ; you could see where it had been. 
5331. Q. It filled the bord? A. Yes; pretty well. You could see the flame out from the cut-through, 
in time bord. 
5332. Q. Looking at the bord when the shot was fired you could see the whole place filled with flame? 
A. You could see the flame. 
5333. Q. You said that \Vaples was nearly blown up-speaking of another experience of gas in Kembla 
Mine ? A. He came rushing into my bord-[Inkrrupied]. 
5334. Q. Was this in Mount Kembla? A. Yes. 5335. 
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5335. Q. How long ago ? You said five or six months before the disaster? A. Yes. 
5330. Q. Was anybody told of that inyour presence? A, Well, no. I fancy I was working by myself 
that clay. 
5337. Q. You cannot say whether anybody was told of that; or whether it was brought in any way to the 
knowledge of any official of the mine? A. No; not to the officials I could not say that. 
5338. Q. Where is Waples? A. He may be working at Coaldale, down there. I am not sure. I believe 
he is. 
5339. Q. What led you to the conclusion that the harness had been blown off these horses F A. I knew 
pretty well that there was nobody in there taking the harness off. 
5340, Q. I want to know why you thought that P A. That is the conclusion I arrived at; and others 
'Vith me. 
5341. Q. There was no harness on the horse? A. There was nothing  left on it. 
5312. Q. The horse was down? A. Down on its side, 
5343.. Q. Did the horse appear to be lying where it had stood? A. Yes. 
5344. Q. Would not he have fallen with his harness on? A. lie may not have. 
5345. Q. Did not he appear to have fallen where he had stood? A. Yes; he did. 
5316. Q. If he had fallen where he had stood would not he have fallen with the harness on him before 
the actual force came? A. Some force, coming at a terribc rate, would take the harness off him before 
he had time to fall down. 
5347. Q. Was he against the rib F A. No ; between the rails, lying on his side. 
5318. His Honor.] Q. Did you see where the harness was? A. No, Your honor. 
5319. AIr. BruceSmith.] Q. And no part of the harness was left underneath his body, as if the rest had 
been blown off? A. So far as I could see there was no harness visible. 
5350, Q. No bridle? A. No. 
5351. Q. Was any part of the horse itself blown off? A. Not that I know of. 
5352. Q. Any limbs, or ears, or anything? A. No. 
5353. Q. He just looked as if he had never had the harness on? A. That is right. 
5354. Q. Was he, burnt ;-was his tail burnt? A. I could not say. I would not say. 
5355. Q. You say another horse had his harness on ;-was he near the one that had his harness off? 
A. Yes ; not many yards away, but in a different heading just round a corner. 
5356. Q. That is to say, one might have been exposed to a force and the other not? A. Yes. 
5357. Q. Was the harness of the one round the corner complete? A. It appeared to be. 
5333. Q. Did you take a sufficiently careful note of the things there-I do not say on paper, but in your 
mind,-to say whether there were any more evidences of force in the place where the horse without the 
harness was than in the other place where the horse was which had his harness on? A. No; 1 could 
not say. 
5359. His IIon.n'] Q. I suppose the harness would be only collar and hames? A. Collar and hanics, 
winkers and chains. I think they have a breeching; I am not sure. 
5:360 Q. But have they breeching? A. Yes, I think so. 
5301. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Just show inc on thit map where the horse was with the harness blown off, 
and where the horse was with the harness renuining intact? A. We went in from the daylight heading 
over the mountain. I believe Nye were down the No. 6 Riht rope road in the shaft section. 
5362. Q. I understand you to say that the horse that had no harness on him was in No. 6 Right, off the 
shaft travelling road? A. Yes. 
5363. -Mr. Robertson.] Pardon me ; he is all wrong. It was in Price's Flat. 
5361 Witness.] Yes; it was in Price's Flat. Mr. Robertson was there at the time with me ; and lie knows 
the places. lie was present at the time. That part of the pit is new to me. 
5365. Mr. Bruce Smith.] have you a careful note of where they were, Mr. Robertson? 
5300. AL'. Robertson,] I made a note. 
5337, Mr. Bruce Smith.] Then I do not thinic I need trouble about it. 
5368. Q. You said that for a month out of the quarter-that is a third of the time-there was always 
smoke about, oven in the morning? A. You are speaking of that heading. Yes, I said that. 
5369. Q. To whom did you complain of that? A. To Deputy Evans; that is all. 
5370. Q. More than once? A. Yes, a few times; several times. 
5371. Q. Are you accurate when you say that, for a ino:sth out of the quarter, there was always smoke 
about, even in the morning, when you went there? A. Yes. I would not say it was there every morning, 
you know; but for two or three weeks that place was very bad. 
5372. Q. What part of the mine was that? A. It was a heading-a bord off a heading that ran from the 
shaft down towards Powell's Flat. 
5373. Q. You cannot accurately place it? A. It ran from down near the Tommy-Dodds down towards 
Powell's Flat. 
5374. Q. Can you place it on tha map? A. I cannotplace it on that map. P was working on No. 41 on 
that cavil. 
5:375 Q. I pnderstood you to describe Mr. Evans thus: "Evans was a good deputy; he would not insist 
on the strict carrying out of the Regulations when they were not necessary"? A. No; he was not strict. 
5376. Q. Will you tell me of any ilogulations that Mr. Evans did not carry out; or that he did not insist 
on your carrying out? A. Well, for instance, I might be holding a shot without a sprag; and he would 
come in and say, " Oh, it is all right" 
5377. Q. Can you remember any occasion? A. That has happened several times. I cannot say now that 
I can remember one particular occasion when he c.sme in, but it has happened. 
5378. Q. Do you know that he noticed that you had no sprag? A. lie could not be off it. He could not 
help noticing it. 
5379. Q. You cannot satisfy me that he knew that you had no sprag, can you? You say, "He could not 
help noticing it" ? A. No ; he could not help noticing it. 
5:380. Q. Was anything said about it;--you said he said, "Oh, that does not matter"? A. Yes. 
5381. Q. How was his attontion drawis to the absence of the sprag on that occasion? A. I was holding 
a shot; and it was a very hard place, and the coal was cemented on to the roof in that portion of the 
pit - [ Interrupted]. 
5382. Q. How long ago was this? A. It was the cavil before the disaster. 5383. 
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5383. Q. Go on? A. He passed some remark about the pit. I said, "there is not much fear of it 
falling; you cannot blow it off." He just passed a casual remark like that, and. would then go away again. 
5381. Q. You say he said what? A. lIe passed some remark about my not having a sprag; and I said, 

You could not blow it off; there is no fear of it falling." 
5385. Q. Is that the only occasion when he spoke of it? A. That is the only occasion I can speak of. 

5386. Q. You say you have often done it to his knowledge? A. Every miner does it. 
53S7. 9. You personally have olten done that to his knowledge? A. Yes. 

5388. 9. nd he has not interfered with it, although he has seen it? A. Yes. 

5389. 9. That is to say, although he has been there, and had an opportunity of seeing it? A. Yes. It 

was not necessary. 
5300. 9. What is the height of the seam at that point? A. It was under 5 feet. 

5301. 9. Will you tell me any other regulation which Evans allowed you to ignore? A. No. 

5392. 9, You said he was a good deputy, and he would rot insist on the strict carrying out of the 
regulations when they were not necessary ;-may I take it that that is the only one ? A, In Kembla you 
are supposed to keep your timber within 6 feet of the face. Well, if the roof is a good roof you can 
keep your timber 12 feet or 14 feet from the face. Of course it is breaking the Act, all right. 
5303. Q. 1-lave you ever had your tiuiler at more than 6 feet from the face when Evans has visited you ? 

A. Yes. 
5301. Q. Has any conversation ever taken place? A. Sometimes he might mark you up for a prop ; and 
say, " Put a prop there," and put a ring. 
5395. Q. Where does that regulation come in about, putting props 6 feet from the face? A. I could not 

say. I believe it is in the Coal Mines Act. I am not sure. 
5394). Q. You do not know that? A. No. It is understood at all events. 
5397. Mr. Wadej Q. What did Evans say then P A. Oh, it would not be an uncommon thing for him 

to put a ring up. 
5398. Mr. Bruce Smiflij Q. You say he would sometimes come in? A. Yes ; and chalk you_ up. 

5309. 9. What would he chalk up? A. He would put a circle on the roof there. 
5100. 9. To show where you were to put a prop? A. Yes. 
540011-. 9. Then he did direct you sometimes to put a prop in? A. Yes. 

5101. his honor.] Q. What you mean is that lie would come in and see what you had done, and see what 
ought to be done ;-and lie would direct you to do it? A. Yes. 

5102. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did not you say that Evans did not make a proper examination of the face 
each time? A. Sometimes he would; and sometimes lie would not. 
5103. Q. That is before the men went to work? A. I do notsay that. It is whilst we are at work. Of 
course the night deputy used to make that examination before we went to work. 
5101. Q. What o you say he did not do that he ought to have done-1 mean according to the strict 
regulations? A. Sometimes he would go past your bord, and call out; and would not come in to the 
pillar. 
5105. 9. Did you ever complain of that? A. No. 
5106. 9. is that what you mean when you say that he would sometimes come in without making a proper 
examination? A. That is what I mean. 
5107. Q. That sometimes, instead of coming into your bord, lie would simply walk by and call out? 

A. lie would not come up to the face where you were working. 
5108. 9. Call out what ?J. " Are von all right ? I low are you going on P 
5109. 9. And you would reply " All right "P A. Sing out 'Yes." 
511.0. Q. What, in your opinion, ought you to have done? A. In my opinion then I was quite satisflid 

with it. 
5111. Q. What did you consider was his duty then that you say he did not do? A. I knew it was his 

duty. I was breaking the rules myself; and he was doing the same. 
5112. Q. I understand you to take a rather lax view of these things yourself; you think it is all right 
but what was his duty, in your opinion, which you think he did not fulfil? A. Certainly his duty was to 

come in and inspect the face of your working place. 
5113. 9. Every time he passed ? A. Once during working time at all events. 
5414. 9. That you say, lie did not do? A. No. 
5115. Q. Frequently he would come in and go out without having inspected your face at all? A. Yes. 

5116. 9. That is Evans? A. Evans. 
5417. 9. Did any other deputy do that? A. No. Nelson was more strict than Evans was. The other 
deputy was more strict than Evans was. 
511.8. Q. And how many times would it occur that the deputy would walk by instead of coming in-in 
the case of Evans P A. It may have happened ten or twelve times. 
5119. Q. In how long? A. During all my experience there. 
5420. Q. And that is how long? A. Pretty well two years. 
5.1.21 Q. On all other occasions lie came ill? A. Oh yes ; lie would come in; and sometimes he would 
stay there a few minutes to have a conversation with us; and sonietines lust come in and turn ruiid 
again and go out. 
5122. Q. Did you, on Thursday, fix the time at wliih Evans came into your place, when that singing noise 
was going on, and when lie said it was gas P A. I did fix the time. I think I said it was about four or 
five months before. 
5123. Q. It will be down on the notes if you have ; it is all right. When Evans walked by on these 
dozen occasions, was it at the beginning of the shift, or the middle, or the end? A. At different times. 
Sometimes he would come round to your place at 10 o'clock in the morning; other times at 12, or any 
hour. 
5124. 9. But when he passed? A. No; I could not fix the time when lie passed. 
512g. 9. Nor the part of the shift? A. No; I could not. 

Ho-examination by Mr. Lysaght :- 

5 126. Q. :tftem' time gas was reported by the, (I lccsou's iii Keira, tie von know wlue6ier any precautions 
were taken regarding that place P A. No ; there were i,ot---no alterations. 
5127. Q. Are you still working in tüiiu NvIth the naked light P A. Ves. Examination 
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Examination by Mr. Robertson :- 
5428. Q. You made some remark tending, it appeared to me, to reflect on the management for rushing in 
skips to pillars? A. That is the time we had the meeting-yes; I did, Mr. Robertson. 
5429. Q. In what way did that show any bad management? A. Oh, I did not reflect on the management 
in connection with that part. We were working in the shaft at this time-in this bad place that I speak 
of,-and we were not getting runny skips there. We were getting about eight or nine a day, that is all; 
but in those four places in particular they were getting as high as thirty skips a day; and the miners 
had a meeting, and a deputation was sent to Mr. Rogers in connection with the matter, and I was one of 
the deputation; and I had the sheet from the check-weighman for the month previously, showing the 
number of skips that each pair of men had throughout the pit. Some of them would be getting, say, for 
the fortnight's pay, 60 tons; others had 130 and 140, and, I think, pretty well up to 200 tons. Well, 
Mr. Rogers-when I read those out to him-said "Sells, I had no idea that things were like this; and I 
thought they were more equally distributed than this, but those four places there are special places." I 
said, " We will give you that in; it does not mattee if you give them fifty a day, those four, if you call 
them special places; but we want to have them more equally distributed to the other places." He said, 
"All I can do is this: I will promise you that you will get your share of skips." Wewentback; and the 
next day there was a difference in the skips. 
5430. Q. What you say now is not quite the same as you said previously. What you said previously 
seemed to convey an impression to my mind that there was something wrong; that it was being worked
too quickly? A. Yes. 
5431. Q. As a matter of fact-you have not had much experience in mining-to work out pillars quickly 
is the best possible way? A. Yes ; but those four places were worked out with extra quickness. 
5132. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I think he suggested that Mr. Rogers had an object in working that out qukly, 
because it was extra dangerous. 
5433. Witness.] Yes; that is the opinion of the miners generally on it. 
5434. Mr. Robertson.] I understood him to say that the practice of working pillars out quickly was 
dangerous. 
5135. Mr. Bruce Smith.] No; he conveyed that those were worked out quickly because they were 
dangerous. 
5136. Witness.] That is what I said. 
5437. Mr. Robertson.] Q. As a matter of fact, pillars are always worked out quickly? A. Certainly. 
5438. Q. You will admit, I presume, that it is considerably more difficult to ventilate pillars than bords? 
A. Yes; it would be. 

Examination by Mr. Ritchie :- 
5439. Q. I think you told us about Mr. Evans passing your place and making no examination at all;- 
was Mr. Evans always the day deputy while you were there in that section of the mine? A. In the shaft 
section always. 
5410. Q. Lie was always the day deputy in the shaft section whilst you were there? A. Yes; Mr. Nelson 
was the deputy for No. 1. 
5441. Q. How did he examine your place when he came in? A. He would come into the face sometimes; 
and look round and turn back again. 
5442. Q. Did he ever ask any questions about seeing gas; or anything of that kind? A. No, never. 
5443. Q. Did he make any attempt to examine for gas himself any part of the working place? A. No, 
never. 
5444. Q. On no occasions? A. On no occasions. 
5445. Q. And on those occasions when Mr. Evans did not come into your Lord did any other deputy come 
into your bord during your shift that day or on those dates? A. No. 
5446. Q. In other words, you had no examination of your working place that day or on those dates? A. 
That is right. 
5417. Q. Did the under-manager frequently call into your place? A. The under-manager? Yes 
frequently. 
5148, Q. After you had that gas did he ever make any inquiries about finding gas? A. No. 
5419. Q. About how often did the under-manager call round? A. Mr. ILeitch used to come around, and 
the other man, too, (Nelson), when he was promoted to underground-manager; we used to see them pretty 
often: perhaps once or twice a w-eek. 
5150. Q. How often did you see the manager in your place? A. I never saw lum in my place. 
5451, Q. Did you ever see the Government Inspector? A. In Keira. 
5452. Q. In Mount Kembla? A. Never; only at the time of the accident. it is working time I am 
speaking of. 
5453. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did you ever see the G-overnmnent Inspector in the mine at all in Mount 
Kcmbla? A. Not in Mount Kembla, until, at the time of the explosion, I saw Mr. Atkinson. 

(Witness left.) 

Mx. WILLIAM MARSHALL was sworn, and examined as under:- 
Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lvsaght :- 

515 1. Q. What is your name? A. William Marshall. 
5455. Q. What are you? A. A miner. 
5456. Q. Where are you employed? A. In Old Bulli. - 
5457. Q. What mining experience have you had? A. Twenty years. 
51.58. Q. Where? A. In different parts of the Home country. 
5459. Q. Give me the names of the collieries? A. In the Home country I will give you Logan's, Dalziel, 
Camp Creek, Meadow Pit, Mayfield No. 1, and Mayfield No. 2. In New Zealand - (Interrupted). 
5160. Q. What collieries there? A. Kia Ora., Shag  Point, and Bulli, in the old mine. 
5101. Q. Which Bulli? A. Old Bulli. 
5462. Q. How long have you been employed at Old Bulli? A. A little over eleven years-about twelve, 
as near as possible. 

5463 
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5463. Q. And during the whole of that time have you been cutting coal? A. Well, I have been cutting 
coal all the time I have been employed at Bulli. I might be a day out on stone-work, mind. 
5101. Q. And you are a member of the Delegate Board of the Illawarra Miners' Union? A. Yes; at 
present. 
5465. Q. Tell me., did you go to Kembla the day of the disaster? A. Not on the day of the disaster. 
5466. Q. Did you go into the Kembla Mine after the disaster? A. Yes. 
5467. Q. When? A. On Saturday ; into No. 1. 
5408. Q. Were you with the party of inspection headed by Mr. Ritchie? A. No; I was not with that 
party. 
5409. Q. Was it the Saturday immediately following the disaster? A. Yes. 
5470. Q. Who went with you? A. The late Mr. Cater was the leader of the party. 
5471. Q. And what was the party? An exploring one? A. No; a party to bring out the dead bodies 
which were in No. 1. 
5472. Q. Can you show on a plan any of the places in No. 1 where you visited? A. I do not know-unless 
I saw the plan very clearly. 
5473. Q. This is No. 1 Right, all the way up there? A. Where is the daylight tunnel, coming in? 
5474. Q. This is it? A. We took the daylight. 
5475. His Honor.] Q. You went in by the daylight heading? A. Yes; we entered by the daylight. 
5476. Mr. Lysag/it.] Q. This is the 5th Right rope road here? A. We came down the main rope road 
after we came in the daylight; and then we had to leave that rope road on account of a heavy fall, and 
get down the back heading on to Powell's Flat. 
5477. Q. Did you observe anywhere any signs of flame having passed ? A. Down below there were signs. 
5478. Q. What do you mean by down below? A. Down below, where there were split props. Those have 
always got a certain amount of-well, they are not chips, but fine fibres, sticking where they have been 
split. 
5479. Mr. Wade.] Q. Splinters? A. No; but finer than splinters. What I mean is that there are 
sphiiters with a fine hair-like tail to them ; and fire passing along had singed that off. 
5480. Mr. Lysagltt.] Q. Where was it you noticed the props singed like that? A. Down about where the 
fall was; and even the other side of what I believe was a trap-door, which was all smashed, where we 
brought the dead bodies through. 
5481. Q. Can you say who was found near where these props were burned? A. The last two that were 
brought out; but not out of Powell's Flat: they were brought out of somewhere about the back heading. 
I could not really describe that. 
5482. Q. Who were they? A. Morris and son 
5183. Q. Did you see the place where Morris and son were brought from? A. Not exactly; because our 
party went to Powell's Flat and brought so many bodies from there; and then we came back; and when 
we came back a gentleman-I cannot say exactly who the gentleman was-told us that there were some 
other dead bodies, and asked would Mr. Cater send some of his party to bring them. He had been 
at them previously to us. We went and brought those two other bodies out and took them right outside; 
and the last thing I did was to see them on the cart. 
5481. Q. Were those two bodies the -bodies of Morris and his son? A. So I wastold by the people who 
knew them. 
5485. Q. Did you observe whether any of their clothing was burnt? A. Yes; I did. 
5186. Q.  Which of them ? A. Both. The hair of both was completely burnt down. When you touched 
their arms or their breasts to lift them or move them about-this was out in daylight, away from the pit 
altogether-everything you touched seemed to come away; and the hair-you would not know there had 
been hair there unless you ran your hand over; and then you would get what you might call ashes. 
5487. Q. Do you speak of the hair of their head? A. Yes; that is what I speak of. 
5488.Q. Had Morris, senior, a beard? A. Well, now, I could not exactly say. That I would not like to 
swear to. 
5489. Q. Leaving their bodies themselves, what about- their clothing? A. Their clothing even seemed to 
be singed. The young man's arms were bare to above the elbow; but the older gentleman had got his 
coat on. It seemed as if he was about to leave the mine. 
5490. Q. Dealing now with the older man first-did he appear to be completely dressed to go out? 
A. Yes. 
5491. Q. What articles of his clothing were burnt? A. I should say that everything on him was perfectly 
singed. That is giving my opinion. 
5492. Q. Did you notice his boots? A. Yes; they even seemed to be browned. I took more notice of 
that than of anything else. 
5493. Q. His boots seemed to be what? A. To be what I would call scorched. 
5494. Q. Had he his cap on? A. Yes; lie had his cap on. I could not say whether it was on, mind, when 
the dead body was lifted, or not; but the cap was there on him. The young man had none on. 
5495. Q. Keep to the old man first. Did you see whether the old man's tools were anywhere near where 
he was found? A. I cannot say about that. 
5490. Q. Is there anything else you want to tell us about the body of the old man-about its condition? 
A. No. I cannot tell you more than that, by examining out-side when we came to the daylight, I could 
see it had been burnt: it had been in the flame, in my opinion. 
5197. Q. In addition to being burnt, were any of the clothes torn? A. Not that I am aware of. They 
might have been torn, and I would not take any notice of that; because many a man will wear a torn coat 
to the 1)it. 
5498. Q. Tell us exactly what clothing the younger man had on him? A. lie was in trousers and flannel-
a flannel shirt ; and when he was lifted I believe he had his cap in his hand ; and I know there is a pipe 
which another mate of mine from Bithli picked up and put on the stretcher with him. The cap was at the 
back of the neck when he was picked up. 
5199. Mr. Wade.] Q. What do you mean by the neck? A. I-Ic had his Cal)  like that (imitating). He 
was lying on his face; he had his hand at the back of his neck with the cap, like as if he was shielding 
himself from something. 
5500. ]lIr. Lysaq/it.] Q. Do you know if he was lying on his face when he was found? A. Yes; because 
we had to turn him over to put him on the streclier. 5501. 
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5501. Q. Do you know whether he was facing outhye or inbye? A. I am not acquainted with the mine, 
and cannot say. 
5502. Q. Do you know whether he was facing towards the coal or facing out? A. I could not say, 
because I was not at the face of the coal. I would not like to say what I do not know. 
5503. Q. Did you actually help to lift lAin and turn him over? A. No, I did not. I think Spears and 
another man did. 
5501. Q. How far were you away when he was turned over? A. It may be a few yards. 
5505. Q. Cannot you tell me whether he was facing the way you came up? A. No ; I cannot. A good 
few of us turned away because there was too great a stench. 
5.503. Q. In what way were his clothes affected? A. They were about the same as the old man's, I should 
say, apparently ; only that the flannel shirt, of course, is not as liable to catch fire. You could not tell 
so much with the flannel shirt as you could with any other garment, because it will not catch fire nearly 
so quickly. 
5507. Q. What about his boots ? A. his boots were about the same as the oJd man's. They looked as 
if they had been scorched. 
5.508. Q. Then, in addition to the burning or scorching, did any injuries appear to them otherwise? 
A. No ; I saw no other injuries. 
5509. Q. No bones broken, or anything like that? A. I could not say. We did not examine for that. 
5510. Q. What was the condition of the place near where they were found P Was there any broken 
timber, or anything like that lying about? A. Well, of course, there may be loose timber and the like of 
that—i would not like to say that there was not blown out timber because, not really knowing the mine, 
to go into that would be a serious question. 
5511. Q. You have not told its yet where it was exactly that these bodies were found P A. I could not, 
really, because, not knowing the mine, it would be impossible. I might say it was in a certain place. 
But, according to accounts that I have of the mine from other people that knew the mine, it was about a 
back heading in No. 1. It was my first time in that mine. 
5512. Q. You were told it was the back heading of No. 1. Did they tell you how far you were from the 
working face? A. No; I do not know. 
5513. Q. How far were the bodies from the place where you saw the props singed? A. They would be a 
good bit. 
5514. Q. What is a good bit P A. Well, you see, the one was in one direction and the other in the other, 
about where the big fall occurred. Well, of course, I could not tell how it would lie. One road you go 
this way, and another that; and it is hard for me to tell by just simply walking into the mine what the 
difference would really be. 
5515. Q. Perhaps you could tell me this: besides these bodies, did you notice anything else burnt about 
where they were found—anything you like, the ribs, props, bratlice, anything? A. As far as I saw of 
what timber was there, or about where they were, there were none of these small tail ends of split timber 
that I saw. They appeared to have been singed off. 
5510. Q. When you say there appeared to be none there, do you mean that they had been burnt off, or 
that there were none burnt or singed P A. I said that any of the split timber that was there had none of 
those tails on it. They appeared to be singed off. There are some round props; and there are some of 
these split props. 
5517. Q. In addition to the timber, did you notice the brattice? A. I cannot say that I noticed any 
brattice burnt. It might have been ; but I did not pay that particular attention. 
5518. Q. Did you notice on the rib sides any indication of burning? A. No ; I cannot say that I did, on 
the rib sides. 
5510. Q. Can you say whether there was any broken timber near either of these bodies? A. No ; I 
cannot say that I can. 
5520. Q. Do you know whether the lamps were near the bodies? Their lights P A. I believe that - 
[Interrupted]. 
5321. Mr. iVade.] Would it not be as well, for the sake of accuracy, to know,  what he himself saw, and 
what he was told? 
5.522. His Honor.] The witness is very careful about that. I noticed that when he came to something 
he was told he was careful to say so. 
5523. ADS. Lysaqht. Q. What about the lamps ? A. I believe, as near as I can think, that the son's lamp 
was in the cap that he had—close to the cap, I think it was. I know there was one lamp that I brought 
out ; but where the other one was I cannot say. I believe it was the son's lamp that I brought out. 
5.524. Q. What do you mean by "near the cap "P Do you mean fixed in the cap? A. You see I might 
have the cap there; and the lamp might happen to fall off the cap, and be cloe to it. I know the lamp 
came out with the stretcher; and I believe it was the son's. 
552.5. Q. Did you notice, where this body was lying, whether it had left an impression in the dust? A. 
That I cannot say. 
5.526. Q. Was that place it (lamp place or a dry floor? A. I believe they are all dry that I saw. I saw 
no real wet there. 
5327. Q. Can you remember whether, when you turned over that body, you turned it out of a dusty place 
or out of a damp place? A Well, I believe it was all dry. It must have been dusty, because it was all 
dry. I know the back heading that we went down first from Powell's Flat was very,  dusty. 
5528. Q. Did you notice what sort of dust was lying there—black, or gray, or what? A. No. I cannot 
say that I did notice what sort of dust it was. 
5529. Q. Did you notice whether there was any extra amount of dust lying over the bodies? A. I know 
there was dust on all their clothes. 
5530. Q. But, apart from the ordinary pit-dust that would get on the clothing, did you notice any other 
sort of dust P A. Oh, well, you might call it sooty dust, or anything like that; but there was dust on 
them. 
5531. Q. That is what I want to know. Did you notice whether the di.umt on them appeared to have been 
burnt P A. That I cannot say. That is a very serious question—as to whether it was singed or not. 
5332. Q. I would like you to be careful on that—as to whether the dust that was lying on the bodies 
appeared to have been singed or burnt P A. Well, now, I think that would take a chemical test to answer 

that 
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that question. In my Opinion it might be burnt; but then I could not swear it was burnt. In my ojinion 
this was the dust that fell after the explosion; but that is only my Opinion. 
5533. (). Now, can you tell us of any other body found near Morris and son's? A. I cannot. There 
were only the two in that part of the mine that day. Those were the last two that were found on 
Saturday evening. 
5534. Q. Can you tell me of any body that you yourself turned over, and put into a truck? A. I think 
Crawford was the name of one I turned over and put into a truck. 
3535. Q. Where was that? A. In Powell's Flat. He was an elderly man. IL was on the right side' of 
Powell's Flat. 
5536. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. What name was that? A. Crawford, I think, was the name. 
3537. ][is Honor.] Q. They were all strangers to you? A. Yes. 
5338. Air L . ysag/ut.] Q. Was that body burnt? A. No; it did not show any signs of burning. Where 
the hair was off the heads of the other bodies, the hair of this was all complete; which drew my attention 
to the other two. There were several; but I cannot tell you their names. 
5339. Q. Were any of the bodies that you assisted to bring up from Powell's Flat in any way burnt or 
singed? A. I cannot say that one body we lifted at Powell's Flat seemed so. They did not show signs of 
that. They may have been; but they did not show it openly enough for me to see it in the mine. 
5510. Q. In addition to the bodies in Powell's Flat, are there any other bodies that you yourself turned 
over and helped to put in a truck ? A. No others. 
5541. Q. Then the only bodies that you think were burnt were the two Morrises? A. The only two I 
saw. 
5512. Q. Was there any sign of flame having been in the vicinity of Powell's Flat? A. Oh, yes; you could 
see there had been flame there. 
5343. Q. Why? A. Because you could see the roof discoloured where it had passed over. 
5541. Q. What do you mean by discoloured? A. Well, it leaves a sort of blackness on the roof that is 
not always seen in a mine. I will explain what I mean : in coming down the main road you see a white 
clear roof where the coal has been taken out. When I went there, of course, I saw quite a different affair 
altogether ; it was a different colour-the roof was. 
5545. Q. What sort of colour? A. it was a clarkish-well---- soot] flcd-affair as you passed along. 
5516. Q. Was it a dull black? A. Yes. 
5517. Q. You say a sooty appearance P A. Yes. 
5548. Q. Did you examine it? Did you feel it with your hand ? A. You could easily mark it. My hand 
was on it several times. You could easily mark it in this place; but in the main tunnel it was quite different. 
5549. Q. Did you say you had frequently marked the soot? A. Yes; because we had a very bad light-the 
lamps were not showing well-and really sometimes we used to even bump our heads. 
3350. Q. Can you say really that there was soot along the roof? 
5531. AIr. Wbde.] He said "sootified." 
5552. his Honor.] A dark appearance which he described as sootified. 
5353. Mr. Lqsaqlut.] Q. Did you get anything on your hand when you felt it that way P A. Well, you 
see, you would get a black, sticky-a black scum-sort of stuff. I could not really describe it so that you 
gentlemen could understand it 
5551.. Q. What was it like? A. Well, it might be the same as if you rubbed your hand along the kettle 
but not so black ; not so dry as that ; but of a damper, grittier nature. 
5555. Q. Can you •tell me where it was, coming along to Powell's Flat, that you first met that black 
substance on the roof P A. I could not exactly tell you that. You see I am not acquainted with the 
roads ; and not being acquainted, I could not exactly say. 
5556. Q. To what extent did that appear to be about Powell's Flat ? Was it all over it; or did you notice 
it only in any particular place? A. No I believe it had been all over it, in my opinion. 
5357. AIr. Biucc Smit/i.1 Q. All over Powell's Flat? A. Yes; all over and round there-round that 
locality. 
5558. AIr. Lysaqlit.] Q. In addition to that on the roof, did you notice the brattice cloth there? A. The 
brattice was torn in many a place; and the wires knocked down. We had to struggle through the wires 
(meaning the teleph one wires). 
5559. Q. Keep to the brattice? A. We had to clear some out of the road to get through to the dead 
bodies. 
5560, Q. Was the brattice cloth burnt or singed at Powell's Flat? A. That I cannot really say ; because 
1 did not examine that closely to see if it was burnt or singed. I was simply hurrying to get those dead 
bodies away; and we shifted it away out of the road and went on. 
5561. Q. Did you notice whether the props were singed there? A. There were very few props going down 
where I am telling you ; only this door that I tell you of that was broken up ; and there was canvas there 
when I got there. \Vhether it had been a door or a brattice I cannot say ; but it appeared to me that 
there had been a trapdoor, and it had been smashed to pieces. Well, that did not appear to be burnt. 
5562. Q. Did you notice anywhere in the pit this gray dust lying on the floor? A. That was all down the 
back heading; and all through there there was a lot of dust on the floor. 
5503. Q. I mean, not the natural black dust that you see, but a thin gray dust? A. You mean the dust 
that falls by the way. There was plenty of that there ; but not the dust that you meet in a coal face in a 
dry place. In a dry place at the coal face there is always a certain amount of dust; but in a road there 
is always a certain amount of dust in the air that falls on the ledges and on the floor; and there was a lot 
of that in the back heading. 
5504. Q. Did you notice any gray dust-that is, coal-dust-that apparently had been burnt and gono to 
ashes? 
5505. Mr. Bruce Smith.] What does lie mean by back heading? 
5506. Mr. Lysaqiut.] Q. Do you mean where Morris was found? A. No. You could not get down the 
rope road to Powell's Flat. You had to go down the back heading to get down to Powell's Flat. There 
was a white horse in the main road. He was down at this fall I spoke about. 
5567. Q. Was this white horse burnt or sineed? A. I could not tell you. 
5568. Q. Had he harness on ? A. I could not say. There was white lime on him. Another man went 
and put lime on him to keep the smell down. 
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5560. Q. How do you know you were at Powell's Flat? A. Because some of the men that were with us 
belonged to Kembla; and they said we were on Powell's Flat; and that is where we started out to go to. 
5570. Q. If I show you where Powell's Flat is on the map can you show us this back heading? A. I 
think I can. 
5571. Q. Here is the 5th Right rope road; up here is where Morris was found; and here is the 4th Left 
travelling road; and here is Powell's Flat (indicating them on the map) ? A. I came through this (mdi-
catin7). What heading is this P Is not this the back heading P 
5572. Q. Yes. That is the back heading you refer to? A. Yes. 
5573. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. The back heading between Stafford's Flat and Powell's Flat? A. Yes. 
5574. 1r. Lysaght.] Q. Is there anything you observed anywhere during that inspection that you want to 
tell the Commission ;-any assistance you can give the Commission as to what caused the disaster? A. 
Oh, I could not prove to them what caused it. Of course, I believe it was by fire-gas; but, of course, that 
is my opinion only. 
5575. Q. Now, coming to these recommendations: No. 1-" Managers, under-managers, deputies, and 
shot-firers, to hold certificates of competency by examination." What do you say regarding that? A. I 
am quite of opinion that it should be so; that they should all understand their work thoroughly before 
they are allowed to undertake it. 
5576. Q. Who is the Manager at Old Bulli now? A. Mr. Johnson. 
5577. Q. Is lie certificated by examination? A. That I really could not tell you. Some say yes, and some 
say no. Of course, I am not certain. 
5578. Q. You say that some say yes, and some say no? A. Yes. 
5579. Q. Whom do you mean? A. Some of the miners. 
5580. Q. Do you know that the miners object to Mr. Johnson's being Manager? A. I do not know that 
they object under that light. 
5581. Mr. Wade.] Because there has been no accident. 
5582. X,  r. Lysaght.] I ask him does he know if any of the miners object to Mr. Johnson. 
5583. Mr. Wade.] 1. object. If the question is put as to whether there is an objection to Mr. Johnson 
because be has not got a certificate by examination, then it may have something to do with this inquiry. 
5584. Mr. Lysaght.] I will put it that way. 
5585. Q. Do you know whether, the men being of the opinion that Mr. Johnson is not a Manager certifi-
cated by extmination, they have an objection to his continuing in the position of Manager? A. No ; I 
do not know that. 
5586. Mr. Brnce Smith.] Q. Do you say they do not know that? A. Some of them might say. I do not 
know. I will not say what the other miners know. I will only speak for myself. 
5587. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Who is your shot-firer at Old Bulli? A. One is Ted Rowan, and the other is 
Stan Woods. They take fortnight and fortnight about on the night-shifts. No shots are fired in our 
mine, only at night; so the one who is on at night for the fortnight fires the shots and loads. 
5588. Q. What lamps have you in Old Bulli? A. Safeties. 
5589. Q. How long have you had the safeties? A. I would safely say about three months, as near as I 
can tell. 
5590. Q. And before these safeties were introduced had you ever seen gas in Old Bulli? A. Oh, often, 
often; and I have been told of it by the deputy in the morning. 
5591. Q. Within, say, the last twelve months, how often have you seen gas in Old Bulli? A. I cannot 
speak since the lamps caine in vogue. 
5592. Q. Before the lamps? A. Taking the twelve months before the lamps were introduced, I might say 
I could see it nearly every day if I liked to look for it. - 
5593. Mr. Wade.] Q. Did you see it? A. Very nearly every day. If I did not see it, then I could 
hear it. 
5594. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. When you say you saw it did you ever light it? A. Yes; often. 
5595. Q. How often? A. I might light it once or twice a day accidentally by hanging the lamp on the 
side of the rib and going to cut; and I might just happen to hang it where there was what you might 
describe as a blower, and it would light; and it would no sooner light than it would be out-just fizzing 
like a blowfly. 
5596. Q. And that was an everyday occurrence? A. Yes. 
5597. Q. Did it ever light along the roof with you, in addition to lighting that way? A. No, never-not 
with me. 
5598. Q. Were you present when it ever lit along the roof in any other place? A. No. 
5599. Q. Did you not consider it dangerous when it used to light like that? A. No, I did not. 
5600. Q. Do you consider it is dangerous now? A. Well, if the same precautions are taken now as were 
taken before the introduction of safety-lamps, I should not consider it dangerous. 
5001. Q. What were the precautions you speak of? A. They did many things then. They always carried 
air close to the face; and never went more than 30 yards before they put a cut-through. I have put 
in cut-throughs in 20 yards where it was required. But, if they neglect those things now---[Interrupted]. 
5602. Q. Do they neglect those things now? A. We have not had time to prove it. 
5603. Q. But have they, as far as you have observed, not been so cautious ;-have they relied upon the 
safetylamps? A. There are no headings going now, so I cannot say that. 
5604. Q. But have you noticed it yet? A. I cannot say. There are no places extending ahead; and when 
we are not opening out ground these things are not likely to occur. 
5605. Q. You said you could hear gas ;-what do you mean by that? A. Well, you could hear it, because 
it is something like a blowfly. Lots of miners say, "Well, you have a blowfly in your corner." It just 
makes a noise similar to that. 
5606. Q. You say the deputies told you something about gas? A. Yes: 
5607. Q. What was that? A. When I used to be working the main heading, of course, at night, we 
might leave on a certain amount to cut. The day before, I would cut in about 3 feet, and leave her 
hanging; and next morning, going in, the deputy would say to me----[Interruptedj. 
5608. Q. What deputy? A. John Cavill. 
5609. Q. What would John Cavill say to you? A. He would say to me, "Marshall, keep your light out 
of the cut." That would tell me that, before I went into the cut to work, I would hang my light on the 
roof side, back a piece. 5010. 
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5610. Q. That is, that you could not wear your light in your cap? A. No. 
5611. Q. You had to keep it away from where you were cutting the coal? A Yes. 
5612. Q. Did he say anything besides "Keep your light out of the cut"? No; he knew that I knew 
what he meant by saying so. 
501:3. Q. That was what? A. Well, that he had reported that there was a certain amount of fire in the cut. 
5014. Q.  Fire? A. Well, gas. 
5315. Mr. Wade.] Q. You said that lie would report this? A. He would report this; he had reported 
this and he would report it to me, warn me, before I went in. 
5616. Mr. LvsagJi.] Q. Now, did you not consider it dangerous to work with a naked light, even outside 
the cut, if the coal was giving off gas? A. Well, no, not when she was well aired. I did not consider it 
dangerous, because I saw the Chief Inspector conic in there, and try her with his lamp-his hydrogen lamp. 
5617. Q. You say you saw the Chief Inspector try her? A. Yes. 
5618. Q. What was the result of his trying? A. Well, lie did not tell me that. 
5319. Mr. Wade.] He thought it was safe, at all events. 
5020. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. He did not say so; lie does not know what the Inpector thought? A. I did not 
know. 
5621. Q. In addition to that deputy, has any other deputy told you anything? A. No; that is the only 
deputy we have in Hill End. 
5622. Q. And that is the same mine where the big disaster was some fifteen years ago? A. Quite true. 
5623. Q. Were you working in that mine at the time of the old disaster? A. No. 
5624. Q. I want still to know what precautions were taken which, in your opinion, rendered that place 
safe? A. Well, cut-throughs were put over at very short distances. 
5625. Q. What short distances? A. Well, 30 yards, at the outside. And the canvas was always kept, I 
will say, well up the face. That was in the main heading. 
5626. Q. If either of these precautions had been neglected in the slightest, would the place have been 
dangerous? A. Yes. 
5027. Q. Had you ever to leave any of these places because the canvas was not sufficiently up to the face? 
A. No, I never had. 
5028. Q. Now, with regard to shot-firing-who bores the hole in your colliery? A. The miner. 
5629. Q. And is lie there when the shot is fired? A. No. 
5030. Q. Who charges the hole with the powder? A. The deputy. 
5031. Q. Do I understand that all the miner does is to bore the hole? A. Yes; and leave it, and report 
it to the night deputy, and tell him that he has bored a hole; and the night deputy comes in and loads it, 
and fires it. 
5632. Q. And the next morning you go in and pull the coal away, unless you are on the night-shift (no 
answer). 
5633. Q. I am speaking of yourself, in your daily duties as a miner? A. Yes. 
5631. Q. If men are on the night-shift, when is the shot fired? A. It is bored ; and it is fired while they 
are there. They are present in that case. 
5635. Q. Do I understand that they are not fired for the day-shift because it is dangerous to have the men 
there? A. That is quite right. 
5030. Q. Then is it not equally dangerous to the men to fire while they are there at night-time? A. There 
are only a few in. 
5037. Q. Is it not equally dangerous when there is only one there? A. Quite so. 
5638. Q. Do you consider that a safe practice? A. It is not a safe practice; but it is according to 
the law. 
5639. Q. Is not it a dangerous practice? A. Yes; it is a dangerous practice when anybody is there; but 
they have to do it. 
5640. Q. During the night-shift who charges the shot? A. The deputy. 
5611. Q. Do you know how he does fire it? A. Yes. 
5642. Q. How? A. By a wire. 
5613. Q. Have you ever known him to open a safety-lamp to ignite the fuse? A. No; it is locked. He 
cannot open it. 
5011.. Q. Would the opening of the safety-lamp to ignite a fuse, in your opinion, be a dangerous pro-
ceeding? A. I should think it would. You might as well have a naked light there. 
5645. Q. Do you know whether this shot-firer at Old Bnlli has had any experience as a shot-firer? 
A. Well, of course, these men are old miners; and I could not say whether they have experience as shot-
firers or not. I know they have been old miners in Bulli for years and years. I could not speak for 
their abilities as shot-firers, only as old miners. I know they are both men who have reared big families in 
the mine. 
5610. Q. Now, recommendation No. 2-" Inspectors should be vested with absolute powers to order the 
use of safety-lamps." What do you say in support of that? A. I should say that Inspectors ought to be 
entrusted with power to do so when they see danger; but at the same time they ought to have the power, 
when they come into a mine, to see that the brattico and those things are carried out to the same extent 
when the safety-lamp is used as when the naked light is used; and so not have the men stifled through 
having safety-lamps in. 
5617. Q.  What you mean is that you would not rely on the safety-lamp alone ; but you would want 
time Inspectors to have absolute power to make the management carry out the other details? A. Yes. 
5618. Q. Bratticing and that? A. Yes; keeping it up to the face. 
56-19. Q. Do you know of any mine in this district where an Inspector has suggested the use of safety-
lamps, and the management have refused to put them in ?- 
5650. AIr. [,Fade.] Would not it be better to confine this to Bulli? It is so easy to find the exact men, 
and the exact people to whom Mr. Lysaght refers, and to ask them about it. 
5651. AIr. Lysaq/it.] Q. I will ask that. Do you know that of your own knowledge? A. Of course, I 
do; but it is a private question, mind, you have asked me. Of course, I know it privately, you see-
that is, that I know that our Chief Inspector ordered them two or three times. 
562. Q. Where? A. In Bulli, 
5053. Q. IL do not care whether it is private or not. I want to know all about it? A. Simply we had to 
put them in when lie sent those letters about them ; and we wanted to get them out, because we knew 
there was no necessity for them. - 505-1. 
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5654. Q. Do you mean Chief Inspector Atkinson? A. I believe it was he. It came from that firm 
anyhow. 
56.55. Q. That firm? A. I mean to say it came from the Inspector. I cannot say whether it tvas the 
Chief Inspector or Mr. Watson. 
5650. Q. How long was that, before the lamps were put in, that the request came to put them in? 
A. Merely a few weeks. Of course, I could have seen the letters. 
5657. Q.  Did you see the letters? A. Idid not read them. 
5658. Q. Who brought you the letters? A. I will tell you, if you will allow me to explain, how it came 
about. I went as a deputation of one appointed by the miners, thinking there was no necessity, to see Mr. 
Johnson about not having the lamps in, because it was a great reduction to us. Of course, he showed us 
that he was powerless. He said, "Here are letters from the Mines Department; and I have got to put 
them in or take all responsibility." So of course we closed down then when we found where it came 
from, and nothing more took place. 
5659. Q. And you think the Inspector ought to have that absolute power? A. I think he ought to have, 
if at the same time he carries oflt the other. 
5060. Q. Now, No. 3-" Ventilation by furnace prohibited, and fans substituted." What have you at 
Old Bulli-a furnace or a fan? A. A furnace. 
5661. Q. Can you say whether, on any occasion, the air has been reversed in Old Bulli? A. Not in Bulli; 
but in other mines f know. 
5662. Q. In other mines in this district ? A. Not in this district. 
5663. Q.  And you approve of that recommendation? A. Yes. 
5661. Q. Recommendation No. 4-" Waste workings to be sealed off and surrounded by return airways, 
such return airways not to come in contact with intake." You approve of that? A. I do. 
5665. Q. Recommendation No. 5-" Cut-througha not more than 30 yards apart"? A. I approve of that. 
5066. Q. In your opinion, would the cut-throughs every 30 yards at all weaken the security of the roof? 
A. No. They can put them through as narrow as 0 feet it they wish to do so. It would not be noticed. 
5667. Q. Recommendation No. 7-" Monthly examination by deputies and District Inspector with 
hydrogen flame." You approve of that? A. I do. 
5663 Q. Recommendation No. 12-" Extra supply of safety-lamps and requisites, equal to one-third of 
number of persons employed, below ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use." You 
might tell us what your experience was at Kembla as regards safety-lamps P A. I think the safety-lamps, 
even on the third day, were not what they ought to be. 
5669. Q. In what way were they deficient? A. There were a few very good lamps, which would show a 
light; but there were others, mine, for instance, that I took in myself, that went out-died out. 
5670. Q. Was that due to the wick? A. I cannot say I did not examine it. There were more than 
myself. We met two or three others in the dark; they got in the dark also. There were a few good 
lamps, and there were a very few, in my opinion. Well, I can see-now I am using a fairish lamp-the 
difference; it was a great deal. 
5671. Q. Do you know whether the lamps were taken from Old Bulli for Kembla? A. No, none. 
5072. Q. Had you any lamps at Old Bulli? A. Yes, we had ; at that time we had nearly 200. We have 
broken many of those up since ; and we have a good lamp now. 
5673. Q. Were those 200 in good order? A. I could not say. 
5671. Q. You have broken them up since ? A. Yes. 
5675. Q. Recommendation No. 13-" Travelling and haulage roads to be pmoperly watered." Do you 
water the roads in Old Bulli? A. Yes. 
5670. Q. How? A. We have a square tank, which is fitted-well, you saw one of those watering, carts in 
Sydney? 
5077. Q. Yes. A. Well, it is fitted exactly on the same principle. 
5678. Q. Does that travel all over the mine P A. Yes ; and for the centre of the road we often send in 
casks fitted on a stand ; and they draw the plug out at certain places and let it run. 
5679. Q. Was that done before the Kembla disaster-the watering with a water-cart like those used in 
Sydney? A. Yes. 
5680. Q. For how long? A. I could not say. I do not know when this tank was first used. I know it 
has been there for years. I do not know whether the watering has been carried out strictly, but I know 
it has been there for a long time. 
5081. Q. Is Old Bulli a dusty mine? A. Old Bulli, the part which we call now Old Hill End, was very 
dusty ; but Ladysmith is different. There are some very wet places in it. 
5682. Q. Was this Hill End district then for years systematically watered to keep the dust down? A. 
That I could not say-at that time. 
5683. Q. For the past three or four years has it been watered with this tank like a Sydney water-cart P 
A. The roads were ; but this Ladvsinith did not require it. 
5684. Q. I am only talking about the Hill End district? A. Yes; but the Hill End district is done with. 
5085. Q. What I want to show is that years ago, at Old Bulli, they did systematically water the main 
roads? A. Yes; the main wheeling roads. 
5080. Q. Did you yourself see them do that? A. 01), yes. 
5687. Q. Were the travelling roads touched with water? A. There is no travelling road; there is only the 
one road in and out of Bulli. 
5688. Q. Recommendation No. 14-" Managbrs to give more personal time and attention to management 
of collieries." You might tell me how often you have seen Mr. Johnson in your working-place, say, in 
twelve months? A. Oh, well, I have seen him a good few times during that time. 
5089. Q. In twelve months what would be his attendance, say, in your working-place? A. I think I can 
say twelve times with safety. He may be in when I am not there; he might be in after the shift. I 
know often he has been. 
5090. Q. Recommendation No. 16---" manholes should he enlarged." Are the manholes large enough in 
Old Bulli, in your opinion P A. Our manholes are about 3 feet deep by 1 feet wide. 
5601. Q. And, I suppose, 6 feet high? A. No I do not say they are all 5 feet. 
5692. Q. Do you know of any instance where the manholes have not proved large enough P A. No. 
5093. Q. Recommendation No. 18-" Instruction to employees on means of escape ." how many roads 
have you out-of Old Bulli P A. One. 5091. 
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5694. Q. Is there any other escape? A. No escape. There is only the one road, unless you take the air-
course and know the road to take it. 
5095. Q. Do you know the road to take it P A. I believe I know the greater part of it, and that I could 
manage it myself. 
5996. Q. In case of a disaster, if you could not get out the way you went in, could you find your way out 
the other road? A. I might; but I would not say that I could. 
507. Q. And that is after working there for twelve years ;-now, is there any other road out of Old 
Bulli ? A. No; only the one to my knowledge. 
569. Q. How would you have the miners instructed as to the *ay to get out? A. I would have them at 
each quarter after the cavil, each part of the men led out by a deputy by a different road each quarter. 
I will show you my reason for that: men are so often changed from one part of the mine to another; and 
if you have been away for three or four months from a mine, certain bords fall in and certain headings are 
gone out and closed. And I am sure that I, for one, would not mind losing an hour on this appointed 
day, and meeting the deputy,  at a certain place, and all of us accompanying the deputy out and learning 
the means of escape from danger, either through a fall of the roof or anything else. 
5099: Q. Recommendation No. 10-" Coal Mines Act should forbid the keeping of a black-list" ;-do you 
want to say anything on that? A. Yes; I would be greatly against a black-list. I think that ought to 
be done away with. 
5700. Q. Do you know whether there is any black-list in existence? A. I know at one time-that is, 
shortly after I came here-I knew a man walked about in this district for a long time; and he went to 
some mines, and he told me himself that some of the Managers said to him that they could not employ 
him ; and others said " Come back next week," and so on, simply punishing him, keeping him walking 
backwards and forwards instead of telling him that they would not give him a job. 
5701. Q. Who was this man? A. John IDryden. His family was starved the half of the time. 
5702. Q. Is he in the district now? A. Working at Old Bulli. 
5703. Q. In your opinion, would such a provision result in the better management of collieries ? A. Of 
course it would. 
5704. Q. In what way? A. In many ways. Do you mean in the line of[Inferrup(ed]. 
5705. Q. A Manager not being able to let another Colliery Manager know about a man like that? 
A. Yes, it would. It would make a man more independent. He could turn round and say to a Manager, 

So-and-so is wrong in my place ; and I would like to see it righted." At present the Manager says 
" You must wait your time." Then the man has no other option but to stay and wait until the matter is 
righted, or to go; and if he goes he knows the news will be there before him ; and he may travel the 
country and not get a job. 
5700. Q. Do you know that that is the ease? A. Yes. 
5707. Q. Have you abstained from reportiig what you have observed P A. No ; because I have never 
cared. 
5708. Q. Now recommendation No. 20-' Safety-lamps not to be unlocked for shot-firing." I think you 
did say that was a very dangerous practice? A. Yes. I say so still. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade 

5709. Q. Do you mean that you think (Recommendation No. 19) that some men fear that if they lose 
their present billet they may not get another one? A. Quite so. 
5710. Q. Can you give me any specific instance in the last twelve years where a man has been hounded 
by one Manager to another Manager ? A. Now, Mr. Wade, you have asked me what is not a reasonable 
question. I would not attempt to bring a man's name before this public Court. I object to this question. 
5711. Q. You know perfectly well that under the Arbitration Act the Court has said that if a man is 
dismissed improperly they will see him restored P A if he can prove it. 
5712. Q. Do you mean to say that you cannot prove that you are dismissed inproperly? A. I can prove 
it provided I have got enough money to stand out and keep my family while I am proving it; but while 
I am proving it my wife and family are starving. 
5713. Q. Do you mean to say that you cannot go to the Arbitration Court and prove it in a few days? 
A. No ; I cannot. 
5711. Q. Not by going to the Union? A. Before it can go to the Arbitration Court from the Union it 
will have to go to the whole body; and it will take so long to do this and to get the vote of the district. 
5715. Q. You will have been dismissed already, before you go to the Union ; do you understand? A. Yes. 
5716. Q. Of course I do not mean you personally; but any man who has been improperly dismissed. If 
he thinks he has been improperly dismissed he has got the right to go to the Union; has not he ? A. He 
has after a time. 
5717. Q. Is not it a fact that your own Union rules provide that, if you have been improperly dismissed, 
you can get support from the Union in the interval? A. It is quite true; but let me show you - 
[Interrupted]. 
5718. Q. Is it true? A. You got my answer ; but I must show you the time it will take. I have first to 
lay my charge before the Committee; that takes a week or a fortnight. Then it has to go to the general 
meeting; and that will take a week or a fortnight. Then it has to go to the General Secretary; and the 
Executive have to deal with it; and the General Secretary has to go to Sydney; and I have to wait all 
the time, 
5719. Q. If you have been improperly dismissed does not your Union give you a certain allowance per 
week during the time you are out of employment? A. Yes ; after you go through all this routine. 
5720. Q. And does not that allowance date back? A. Quite so ; if you can stand waiting for that length 
of time. 
5721. Q. Does it cost you a single penny to put your grievance before the Union? A. No. It only costs 
me my living. It takes the time. That is what is the matter. 
5722. Q. Now, I ask you if you know a single instance? I would like you to give me the man's name P 
A. I refuse to do that. 
5723. Q. Can you give a single instance of a man who has suffered in this way during the last twelve 
years? A. I can prove no case ; because I do not know the circumstances of the case myself. 
5724. Q. Can you give me the name of a man who, you think, has suffered? A. I can give no names. 

5725. 
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5725. Q. You know it is an issue here? It is oe of the claims made by the miners? A. Quite true. 
5720. Q. And if you can give an instance of it, if you bring an instance in this way, it will make your 
claim all the stronger? A. Quite so; but I will bring no names. 
5727. Q. I will give you the chance if you want it ? A. I will not accept that chance at another man's 
loss. It would be all right for me to take the chance. 
5728. Q. Is Dryden in employment now? A. Yes. 
5729. Q. At Bulli? A. Yes. 
5730. Q. How long has he been there? A. I think he his been there on and off about five years. I could 
not say exactly. 
5731. Q. So he has left and has been taken back again at the same place since he first went to Bulli ? 
A. He was at Bulli before the explosion. 
5732. Q. But since you have known him he has actually been to Bulli, has left, and has been taken back 
again? A. No. I do not know that he has left and been taken back. I was reckoning up how long he 
had been there before the strike we had. I know he has been there since the strike; that is just about 
three years. 
5733. Q. That is just the very thing I want. You miners struck? A. Yes. 
5734. Q. Refused to work? A. We did not refuse to work at all: we got locked out. 
5735. Q. You called it a strike? A. No; it was a lock-out. 
5730. Q. It is worse still. it is a lock-out? A. Yes. 
5737. Q. Did the Manager take this man Dryden back afterwards? A. He had to take every man back 
by the terms of the arbitration. 
5738. Q. And he has stayed on since? A. Yes. 
5739. Q. Why did you give Dryden's name? A. I gave Dryden's name because his was a case that was 
known all over the district. Which is known to-day. 
5740. Q. And are not the other cases known all over the district? A. I do not suppose they are, because 
the men have simply cleared and left the place. 
5741. Q. Well, it can be no harm to them if their names are given? A. Oh, yes; there may be seine of 
them here in other mines. 
5742, Q. Have you reported things when you thought necessary yourself? A. Yes. 
5743. Q. And have you been continuously employed during the whole twelve years? A. Oh, no. 
574t. Q. You were away when you were locked out? A. No, I was not. 
5745. Q. Were you in the mine during that time? A. No. 
5740. Q. With that exception, have you been employed there continuously during twelve years? A. No. 
I have been there when [ worked. I went prospecting on the goldfields, perhaps, for a short time, and 
returned again. 
5747. Q. How long has Mr. Johnson been Manager? A. I cannot say. 
5748. Q. How far back can you trace him ;-how far back do you know? A. About seven years, as near 
as I can trace it. 
5749. Q. Now, with regard to the exits (Recommendation No. is), Mr. Lysaght put it to you that there 
is only the one way out from the mine? A. Yes. 
5750. Q. There is more than one way, is there not? A. No. 
5751. Q. What is this airopening' you refer to? A. Well, you could not go up the furnace. 
5752. Q. You said you knew the way out through the air-course? A. I said I might be able to find my 
way out by the air.course-that is, providing the mouth of the tunnel was not closed. 
5753. Q. How would you get out by the air-course? A. You would come to the furnace. 
5754. Q. What would you do then? A. Try to make the best of your way out. 
5755. Q. Is there no daylight-tunnel out? A. No. The furnace is not a great distance from the mouth 
of the tunnel ; and, of course, if you get back through the airway to the furnace, you might be able to 
make your way out through the tunnel, if it were not closed. 
5756. Q. Now, with regard to the watering of the roads (Recommendation No. 13) ;-the road in Bulli is 
a main and tail rope road ? A. Main rope road. 
5757. Q. And the skips come out in trains of about how many? A. From twenty to sixteen. 
5758. Q. What pace do they travel ;-do they go as high as 15 miles an hour sometimes? A. Oh, no. 
5759. Q. It may be a fair thing to say they go as high as 12; take the place you go in to yourself ;-how 
far do you go in to Hill End to your work ? A. About 2 miles. 
5760. Q. You used to get a ride in in the empty skips returiiig to the face ;-how long would that take? 
A. About twenty minutes, sometimes more. 
5701. Q. So you used to go at least 6 miles an hour? A. Yes. 
5762. Q. And that went a good deal slower than the full train of skips coming out? A. Well, it is about 
five minutes' difference; because if they bring them any faster they will pull the road out. 
5763. Q. And these twenty skips in a train, going at least 7 miles an hour, throw up a lot of dust? 
A. Yes, they do. 
5764. Q. And they travel on the road which has been watered for a number of years? A. Yes. 
5765. Q. Now, let us get some idea of the dust;-the dust there is very often over your ankles? 
A. Where? 
5706. Q. At Bulli? A. Not on the main road. 
5707. Q. That is because it is kept watered? A. Yes. 
5708. Q. Now, was it not actually over your ankles? A. 'No, Where? 
5709. Q. In what you call Hill End ;-was not the dust in some of those headings even lately over your 
ankles? A. No ; I never saw dust to my,  ankles in my life. I never saw dust that high. I saw slack 
lying where slack has been used for filling up places in the road, when it comes to stone-where the coal 
dips into the stone, as soon as we strike the stone, in the main heading we only take 6 feet 0 inches, and 
in the common heading 0 feet; and that is filled up. 
5770. Q. But take the ordinary skip road,where the skips run, is not the road churned up by the horses;- 
does not it get -very deep there? A. It gets to a few inches, but not like what you are describing. 
5771. Q. And those parts are also watered? A. Yes. 
5772. Q. 'What do they use there-the tub with a plug in it? A. Yes. 
5773. Q. Is that what you describe as very dusty? A. No. 
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57731. Q. Wait a minute ;-I want you now to tell me whether you are speaking of the main horse road 
headings, or whether you are speaking of a heading which is not a main horse road heading? A. In the 
main horse road heading there is no such dust as that; but it may be in a bit of a bye-heading where 
there are only two or three bords working down. 
5774. Q. Then in the main horse road headings you would not want the watering-it is not necessary? 
A. No-I mean to say, that is continuously watered, and the dust is not in there. 
5775. Q. In those parts it is kept continuously watered, and the dust has no chance to get dry and 
3 inches deep? A. No. 
577(3. Q. But in the side horse road it i not watered conuinuously ; and at times it does get dry? A. Yes. 
5777. Q. And does get to a depth of 7 inches? A. No ; not so dee1) as that. 
5778. Q. How deep? A. I might say you could kick it along with your foot when you are going. 
5779. Q. There are three things-the main engine road, the main horse road headings, and the bye-road 
headings? A. Yes, that is what I mean. 
5780. Q. I suppose you workmen at Bulli always walk out from your work? A. Yes. 
5781. Q. As a matter of fact you have to walk out along the road in which the two trains of skips travel? 
A. Yes. 
5782. Q. And you have got room-in fact it must be so-to always keep clear of the trains as you are 
walking out? A. Now, Mr. Wade, I am not going to answer that before I know what you mean. 
5783. Q. Quite right? A. Do you mean that 1 can walk all the road alongside the rib and be clear of the 
skips ? or do you mean that I have manholes here and there to go into? 
5784. Q. To your knowledge has there been any accident in Bulli through men not having room to pass 
skips either approaching them or passing them? A. There was one killed before my time; and there was 
one killed in my time; but I cannot tell you how be was killed. 
5785. Q. All you know is that be was killed? A. He was killed by the set on the road; but I could not 
tell you how it happened. 
5786. Q. Your view I understand with regard to Bulli is this : that the mere fact that you know there is 
gas there is not a ground for at once putting in safety-lamps (Recommendation No.2), but you would first 
see that the ventilation was improved? A. The fact of-[Inferrup(ed.] 
5787. Q. Supposing you were working and saw gas? A. Yes. 
5788. Q. You would not rush off at once and say "We must have safety-lamps"? A. No. 
5789. Q. If you were in authority, you would first take steps to see if the ventilation was deficient? 
A. Yes. 
5790. (2. And if it was deficient you would see if you could improve it? A. Yes. 
5791. (2. And you believe that it is quite safe to work in such a place, if you have sufficient ventilation to 
carry off the gas? A. Yes. 
5792. Q. And then if it gets too big an amount of gas, and the ventilation cannot carry it off, then you 
think of putting in safety-lamps? A. Yes. The first plan would be to improve the 'ventilation, if 
possible ; and then, if it could not be done, safety-lamps should be adopted, by all means. 
5793. Q. Then there is this further step, that you might even try some better method of ventilation 
before you resorted to safety-lamps? A. Yes; I would do that. Of course, I would take great 
precautions, during that time, to see that there was no derangement of the bratticing, or anything like 
that. 
5794. Q. You may have some temporary derangement of the bratticing in some particular spot? A. Then 
the men ought to be withdrawn at once. 
5795. Q. You would remedy that? A. Yes. 
5790. (2. And if the ventilating power was not sufficient, you would improve that? A. Yes. 
5797. (2. And then, if those things failed, you would think about safety-lamps? A. That is true. 
5798. Q. And I understand you were satisfied with the conditions in Bulli with the naked light at the 
time? A. Yes ; we were satisfied at that time. 
5799. Q. Now, I want to get it quite clear about this shot-firing ;-it is only in a particular part of Bulli 
that they have had shots fired under the naked light system? A. Under the naked light system? 
5800. Q. You have had safety-lamps all over Bulli, have you not? A. No; only Hill End. 
5801. (2. Before that the shots were fired at night? A. Yes. 
5802. But in Hill End only? A. Yes. 
5803. (2. But in Cox's, that is the other district, at the other end of the hill? A. Yes. 
5804. Q. Cox's have been working on the naked light for years and years? A. And are now. 
5805. Q. And the men there fire their own shots, do not they? A. No; they do not. You are not 
allowed to fire your own shot in Bulli. 
5806. Q. Who finds the powder? A. The men. You have to pay for your own ; but the deputy loads 
and fires. 
5807. Q. I thought you told me that it was only in Hill End that they fired at night? A. Quite so. In 
Cox's you can fire in the day time; but you cannot fire without the deputy to load and fire. 
5808. (2. Then, in Hill End, the shots are only fired at night? A. Yes. 
5809. (2. At Cox's you can fire the shots in the clay time or night ;-but you have to get the sanction of 
the deputy first of all? A. The deputy comes and fires it and sees it done. 
5810. Q. And be just takes the ordinary precautions to see that there is no gas about? A. There has not 
been gas seen there. 
5811. Q. It is an extra precaution which really is not necessary? A. Well, I do not know about that. 
5812. (2. So far as the presence of gas goes? A. So far as we know. 
5813. (2. So far as you know there has been no gas there to cause any risk in Cox's? A. Quite so, so far 
as I know. 
5814. Q. When you speak about seeing gas in the last twelve months nearly every day-[Ierrupfecfl? 
A. Not the last twelve months. I said the twelve months previous to the lamps going in. 
5815. Q. You are working in only one part of the Hill End district? A. There is only one part working. 
5816. (2. You are only speaking of one part of the Hill End district, where you worked for twelve months; 
say the whole of last year? A. Yes. 
5817. Q. How many headings were there altogether? A. At the commencement of last year, I think, 
there were six headings, which you saw yourself. 
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5818. Q. I did not see the best? A. Of course, you looked out that you did not see that. 
5819. Q. There were six headings ;-you were approaching a band or belt of cinder in that part of Hill 
End? A. No ; that is going to the jump. There is no cinder there. 
5820. Q. You have pretty we]] worked out the whole of that part through coming to faults or disturb-
ances? A. From what we see at present the headings are getting nearly all stopped. There is a 
prospecting heading going. I do not know what she will bring. 
5821. Q. Do you know whether they are more likely to End gas in the neighbourhood of disturbed country 
than in the place where the seams are perfectly solid? A. Yes; I quite believe you are right. 
5822. Q. Was it always in the headings that you found this gas? Q. No. 
5823. Q. Did you ever find it in the bord P A. Yes; the last bord I drove, previous to putting in the 
lamps, I put a cut-through over-I might say about 20 yards: it might be a little more-into the other 
bord, to get a better ventilation and have less canvas. 
5824. Q. Did you see gas there? A. Yes. The under-manager used to try nearly every day; and I have 
seen a show of it on his lamp; and at other times I have lit it myself; but only just a little thing coming 
out of the coal. 
5825. M. Bruce Smith.] Q. What is the under-manager's name P A. Charles Hope. He used to try 
nearly five days out of six. 
5826. Mr. Whcle.i Q. Now, about these safety-lamps--bow did you first come to hear about the Inspector 
asking for safety-lamps to be used? A. Well, I am telling you -- 
5827. Q. From Mr. Johnson? A. Yes; he said it was not his fault. 
5828. Q. What first took place was this, was not it: that Mr. Johnson wanted safety-lamps used? A. No; 
he simply put up a notice saying that on and after a certain date safety-lamps would be used in Hill End. 
5829. Q. He wrote a notice and put it up? A. Yes. 
5830. Q. And on that you men went to object? A. Yes, quite true. 
5831. Q. And when you went to object to the use of these lamps you found out that Mr. Johnson had 
got a request from the Chief Inspector to put them in? A. Yes; from the Department of Mines. 
5832. Q. Was that the only occasion that you heard the management propose to put safety-lamps in? 
A. Yes; that is the first we knew of it-when the notice went up. 
5833. Q. There has been no accident in Bulli since you have been there, from gas? A. No. 
5834. Q. In any shape or form? A. None that I am aware of. 
58.35. Q. Either an explosion or a man being burnt? A. None that I am aware of. 
5836. Q.Now, with regard to your examination of Mount Kembla, I suppose you took no note, did you? 
A. No ; I took no note. 
5837. Q. And I suppose you have not discussed what you saw there with anybody since? A. I may have 
talked the business over, the same as miners do, one with the other. We often talk in the mine of what 
each one saw and did not see. 
5838. Q. Whilst the thing was fresh in your mind you would compare notes and discuss things you had 
seen with other men ? A. No ; I did not compare notes. 
58381. Q. You would discuss what you had seen and what the others had seen? A. Oh, yes; we would 

i do that. We might not discuss what we had seen ; but give an opinion upon what we thought t was. 
5839. Q. Now, what was your mind chiefly fixed on? Getting out these bodies? A. Well, that is what 
we went there for. 
5840. Q. More than examining, I suppose, as to the cause of the disaster? A. Well, of course, we had a 
certain number of bodies to get; and everybody that happened to be in the mine was interested to see 
and know as much as he. could. 
59It. Q. Can you tell me, now, if Morris, senior, had a beard or not? A. W€ll, I told you that to that I 
was not prepared to swear. 
5842. Q. Did be have any hair on his face ? A. If he had a beard, I think the most of it was gone; 
according to his hair. 
5813. Q. I do not ask you what lie used to have. Did be have any hair on his face then ? A. The first 
two men that got to these men covered their faces with quick lime ; and it was only when you moved 
them. They covered them over because we could not really approach them. 
5841. Q. I understand. I want to know can you give us an opinion whether Morris, senior, had any hair 
on his face or not? A. I tell you I cannot tell you, because, as soon as we put them on the stretcher, the first 
thing we did was to cover their faces ; and even when they were outsida we tried to keep their faces 
covered from the public, even after we got thm in the cart. 
5845. Q. Then the head was exposed a very short time to your view? A. No; their heads were exposed 
all the time ; but we threw something over so as not to show their faces. 
5846. Q. If the head was in your view [Interrupted]? A. I had the head in my hands. I lifted 
it with my hands. 
5817. Q. Will you swear there was hair on the face or not? A. I am not certain. I will not swear. 
5848. Q. Did the father have his flannel shirt on? A. I did not examine into his clothes. I tell you he 
had his coat on. 
5319. Q. Was his coat buttoned? A. I could only swear what I know. 
5850. Q. I want to know- if you can tell us whether his coat was buttoned or not? A. I will not swear 
whether it was buttoned or not. 
5851. Q. Which one was it had the skin on his breast detached? A. That was the young fellow. 
5852. Q. Were they, as far as you could see, thoroughly black ? Was their skin all blackened? A. Their 
skin was discoloured ; but I will not say it was thoroughly black. 
5853. Q. What colour was it? A. It would be hard for me to tell what colour a man's skin is when it 
was blackened by coal dust. 
5854. Q. That is what I want you to tell me? A. It had been blackened ; but I could not tell you what 
it was. 
5835. Q. Was the whole body, as far as you could see, blackened by coal-dust? A. As far as I could see, 
it all had coal-dust on it; only, as I told you, when you touched the breast the skin came off. 
5856. Q. You mean that it is very much blacker than the ordinai.y condition when a man is at work P A. 
I cannot argue on that. It is according to what a man is doing in a mine. 
5857. Q. You know how much coal-dust a man gets on him in a mine P A. It is according to what lie is 
doing. If I am in the cut all day I will come home three times as black as a man that is working  in the 
face. It is impossible to answer such a question as that on oath. 5858, 
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5858. Q. Now, did the appearance of the father give you the impression that he had finished his work. 
for the day? A. He had either finished, or was going to start. You could not say which. The man had 
his coat on; and I consider when he has his coat on that he has either finished or is just going to start 
I would never put mine on unless under those circumstances, or except on an occasion when I am going 
to have dinner and there is a strong current of air. 
5859. Q. This was long past dinner-hour? A. You cannot say. Alen eat their dinners at all hours. 
5860. Q. But it is it bit late-about 2 o'clock? A. Yes ; I would reckon it was late for that. 
5801. Q. And the boy seemed to be -? A. At work. 
5862. Q. As if he had been at work? A. Yes. 
5863. Q. And was apparently trying to run away from something behind him? A. Yes; he had his pipe 
in one hand and his cap. 
5861. Q. He had something at the back of his head? A. Yes; he put his hand to the back of his head, 
with the cap in it. 
5865. Q. Now, with regard to the pieces of the props you saw burned, is not this what you mean; that, 
when you split the timber, you get long spikes or splinters, and they taper off to a point as sharp as a 
needle? A. Something like a fibre. 
5866. Q. All von saw was that that fibre at the very end of the splinter -? A. Had gone. 
5867. Q. And what was missing was this bit of fibre at the end of this bit of splinter? A. Yes. 
5868. Q. Flow long would the fibre be P A. Oh, well, it is according to what sort of timber it is. 
5869. Q. How long? A. I have seen it, say, as long as that. (Witness indicated with his frnger an-1 
thumb a ion 9th of about an inch.) 
5S70. Q. From an inch - ? A. Down to nothing. Mind, that is only when timber is split green. 

[At 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned for luncheon.] 

AFTERNOON. 

(On resuming at 215 p.m., Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings). 

Mr. WILLIAM MARSI{ALL, previously sworn, was further examined, as under :- 

5872. Mr. Wade.] Q. You said there was some dust on the roof which you said was 11 sooti6ecl"? A. Yes. 
5873. Q. Did you notice the same kind of dust on the props? A. I cannot say I examined the props for 
dust. Old props naturally carry a certain amount; but new props would not have so much dust on them. 
5871. Q. You say you were in the 4th Left road. Were you in the travelling road, or the rope road in the 
4th Left? A. What do you mean? 
5875. Q. The road between the tunnel and Stafford's Flat-is that a rope road or a travelling road? A. A 
rope road. 
5876. Q. Were there any props in that road? A. I think there may lie an odd one or two. 
5877. Q. Did you notice any dust on them? A. I did not notice; we were shoving the skips along at that 
time. 
5878. Q. Can you say there was any dust? A. I cannot ; I did not examine them. 
5879. Q. What examination did you make of the dust on the roof near Powell's flat-feel it with your 
fingers? A. I put my hands against it, and felt the stuff on my hands afterwards. 
5880. Q. Is that all? A. I did not examine it ; only just what you would do with your eyes. 
5881. Q. Did you notice the appearance of the dust on the 4th Left rope road-on the ground itself? 
A. I could not say that there was much dust there. The road seemed clear. 
5882. Q. There was no dust at all? A. There was no confusion. 
5883. Q. I am not talking about confusion? A. I told you there was no amount of dust to take notice of. 
I was pushing skips all the time. I had only a little pony in to bring the bodies up with. 
5884. Q. Were you in Morris' working place at all? A. o. 
5885. Q. Were you at the spot where they were actually picked up? A. I could see where it was. 
5886. Q. You saw them picked off the ground? A. Yes, I saw them rolled off the ground. 
5887. (2. Were they close together? A. 'l'hey were at no distance away. 
5888. Q. Did you examine their working place. A. No, I did not. 
5889. Q. Can you tell me where it was where you saw what you call this "fibrey" substance on the props? 
A. I saw it at Powell's Flat. 
5890. Q. You say the fibre ends had been singed off? A. Yes. 
5891. Q. Did you see it singed anywhere else? A. At the place where the dead bodies were, it was singed; 
but I could not say the name of the place. 
5892. Q. The "fibrey" ends had disappearel I A. Yes, they had disappeareds 
5893. Q. Where was this door you spoke of I A. At a back heading. 
5894. Q. Between the 4th Left rope road and Powell's Flat? A. Yes. I do not swear it was a door; 
it may have been it door, it was right boards anyway. It was all blown to pieces. 
5895. Q.  Now, about this black-list. Do you object to one Mine-Manager giving an account of a work- 
man, if another Mine-Manager asks him to do so? A. Well, do you mean so far as workmanship is 
concerned ; or do you mean of any little difference between him and the Company? 
5896. Q. First of all, take this case-a man has been employed at Bulli? A. Yes. 
5897. Q. He is dismissed? A. Yes. 
5898. Q. He goes to Clifton and asks for employment. Suppose the Clifton Manager asks the Bulli 
Manager what kind of character he could give him, do you object to the Bulli Manager's stating what lie 
knows about the man, supposing it is truthful? A. You say if truthful. No; if it is only as to his being 
a workman, I do not object; but I object to the Manager's asking whether a man is troublesome, or whether 
he is always taking a leading part in unionism, or whether he will cause trouble. 
5899. Q. Suppose a man is notorious as being a pei'soii who stirs up strife between man and master---would 
you object to one Manager's telling another Manager this fa'b LA i\liinager may call a luau CU agitator 
but it may be that the nian is capable of expressing a point and of explaining a point more fully than anyone 
else. He may then be called an agitator only because of being the mouthpiece of others. 
5900. Q. Wimulil you object to a Manager's expressing an opinion as to that fact A.lwould not object if 
they asked for it, but mostly the opinion is there beforehand. 5901. 
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5901. Q. If a Manager asks for it, you do not object? Not as to his being a workman but I object to 
their interfering with a man's liberty of speech. 
5902. Q. If a man exceeds his liberty of speech and causes trouble, do you object to one Manager's telling 

another Manager if he likes to do so 1 A. Not if be did so. 
5903. Q. Do you admit that, if these facts existed, and a man has been a trouble, you do not object to one 
Manager's telling what he knows? A. If he did so-[Interruplecl]. 
5904. Q. Would you object? A. I would not object the way you put it. I object in other ways. A man 
gets dismissed for being the mouthpiece of other people. His own opinion may differ; but he has to 
explain what he is sent for ; and then lie is blamed for being an agitator. 
5905. Q. Now you say that all waste workings should be sealed off? A. Yes. 
5906. Q. Do you think it a good idea? A. Yes; but if they lead into the return air, not to have them 
sealed off completely. 
5907. Q. You said you did. Mr. Lysaght asked you whether all waste workings ought not to be sealed 
off? A. Yes, from all intake airways. 
5908. Q. Can you say that, so long as the air from the waste workings is not mixed with the intake air-
ways, you are satisfied? A. So long as the intake air does not come in contact with them, and provided the 
air goes through them. 
5909. Q. You do not want them sealed off ? A. Not sealed off. 
5910. Q. You would have openings, and let the air from these openings go into the return air-ways only. 
A. Yes; but the air should not go near the working places. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith 
5911. Q. Have you given a deal of consideration to these recommendations? A. I have considered some of 
them. 
5912. Q. Take this one which you have been examined about-" That the Coal Mines Act shall forbid a 
black-list." I want to know what you mean? A. A man being victimised in a list which may be sent 
round. 
5913. Q. A regular system of sending a list round from mine to mine? A. Quite so. 
5914. Q. How would you prevent one Manager from communicating with another, and giving a name? A. 
The only way you could do it is, if a man got dismissed to-day he may have a chance to get a job to-day, 
but to-morrow he may not have a chance. He might be asked, "Where were you working last?" and he 
would be told he had better come to-morrow. We may know that the Manager or under-manager is putting 
on men; but you go to-morrow, and you are told, "We do not want any men," and you hardly go away 
before another man is put on. That is a good sample of what I mean. 
5915. Q. You are telling me of what may occur;-how are you going to prevent verbal communications. 
You cannot prevent Managers speaking to one another? A. No. 
5916. Q. You could not determine what they should speak about; and you would not know? A. No. 
5917. Q. All you wish to prevent is the passing between the Mine-Managers of what you call "a black-list" 
of people understood not to be desirable employees? A. Quite so. 
5918. Q. I see in this suggestion that mention is made as to forbidding and penalising the improper 
prevention of discharged persons obtaining employment. That opens up the question as to proper and 
improper prevention ;-do you think it is possible to lay down such a prolnbition to Managers communicating 
with one another as to prevent this-is it practicable? A. I think it could be done, but you would never 
put it down altogether. 
5919. Q. You could never find out what communication passed. Supposing two Managers were talking to 
each other in the street? A. It is not often done that way, but by letter, and there is certain information 
known privately which we are never likely to know how to stop unless we could take them into Court. 
5920. Q. Do you know that in Kentucky there is a law that prevents the passing of anything like this oii 
paper? A. I do not know. 
5921. Q. I am told that it is so in Ohio ;-have you thought out a practical way of doing that? A. I am 
showing you a way to get out of the difficulty. I could prove that a letter had passed from one Manager 
to another to prevent so-and-so getting work-then there should be some penalty. 
5922. Q. Supposing one Mining Manager arranges with another that, if the name of a miner is merely 
mentioned, it means that he ought not to be employed, then all a Manager has to do is to say, "I saw John 
Brown this morning" 3-can that be stopped ;-it is put before the Commission as a practical suggestion 
but do you think it is possible to stop this thing? A. Yes, I think it is possible to stop it to a certain 
extent, if you made it punishable; I believe there would be a remedy found out by Parliament. 
5923. Q. I will not be quite sure; but I think I understood you to say, with regard to the burning and 
singeing of the props, that they were at the back heading between Stafford's Flat and Powell's Flat 3-was 
there any other part of the mine where you saw a similar thing ! A. On the way that we went down for 
the bodies of Morris and son; but I cannot describe the place. 
5924. Q. I would like it described. 
5925. His Honor.] Q. I think this was the first time the witness was in the mine? A. Yes. 
5926. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Where did you find the other props that were burnt ;-I will refer you to this 
ma1) 1 A. As far as I can judge, the other place in which I saw burnt props was towards the end of No. 1 
Right heading, near where the Morrises were found. 
5927. Q. Then the first place you mention and the second place are the only ones where you saw burnt 
props? A. The only places that I would be in. 
5828. Q. As far as the 4th Left is concerned, you saw props there; but they did not appear to you to be 
burnt? A. I did not examine them ; we were shoving the skips. 
5929. His Honor.] The witness says that he does not know whether they ''ere burnt or not; he has no idea. 
5930. 31r. Bruce Smith.] I want to know whether he looked. You cannot speak as to that? A. No; I 
was working at the time. 
5931. Q. You have not had much experience of judging burnt timber, have you? A. I have seen some. 
5932. Q. Was this timber, up at the end of No. 1 1%iglit main level, and that between Stafford's and Powell's 
Flats, burnt more or less to the same extent? A. I could not notice any difference between them. 
5933. 9. There was no difference in the burning, to you ? A. Not to me, with such light as I had. 
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5931. Q. You have been examined by Mr. Wade as to the extent of the burning on Morris and son ? A. 
Yes. 
5935. Q. From what you saw of their hair, have you any doubt as to their being burned A. Not the least, 
as far as their hair is concerned. 
5936. Q. Is it true that the hair was siirivell€-d up tightly as the result of heat, or was it actually burnt so 
that you could crumble it into dust 1 A. It was burnt into dust. 
5937 Mr. IVmle.] Q. Do you mean that the whole of it crumbled away ? A. What I got of it did ; and it 
all appeared to be the same, 
5938. Q. You did not catch hold of the very ends of the hair? A. No, I caught hold of it with my hands. 
5939. J1. Bruce Smith.] Q. Regarding those timbers which you saw burnt up near Morris and son's 
bodies, were they in the same level or heading? A. I believe so. Of course I am not certain of the 
locality. 
5940. Q. Now you told its that the roof was what you called "sootifled " ; and you described that, when 
you put your hands up, you got black stuck upon them, such as you get off a kettle? A. Only more 
greasy. 
5941. Q. Was it distinct from coal-Ow-I ; or was it the same kind of thing ? A. It is different. 
5942. Q. With all your experience of coal-dust being burnt this was quite diffei'ent ? A. Yes. 
5943. Q. Suppose you put your hand on ordinary coal-dust, has it that greasy feeling? A. It niight have 
on certain sorts of timber, if the sap happened to be in it, 
5944. Q. I am taking dust on any ledge of coal ? A. No, it is not the same. 
5945. Q. The stuff you get off the roof had quite a distinct feeling? A. Yes. 
5946. (9. You say it had a greasy feeling? A. Yes. 
5947. Q. Now, in speaking with regard to the Bulli Mine, you said that ''if the same precautions were 
taken now you have the lamps as were taken previoa.sly t your having the lamps, you think there would 
be no danger? A. Yes. 
5948. Q. \Vhat are the precautions? A. I do not think there are any at present but Tam saying that, now 
the lamps are in use, anything may occur if the mine is not kept up to the standard that it used to be. 
5949. (9. I think you suggested that there is now a less cam-efnh slate of things 1 A. No. 
5950. (9. Have you seen any indications of a failing off in the care of, or the management of, the 
mine? A. No ; I cannot say so, as yet. 

in 

5951. Q. Did you not say before that the cut-tllrouglls used to be every 30 yards? A. Yes. 
5952, Q. Is there any difference now I A. We have no places in the mine g)ing ahead. We are starting 
to come back again. - 
5953. Q. You cannot say that there is any difference ? A. No. 
5 95 4. Q. Has there been any difference in the care of carrying the brattice up to the face 1 A. No. 
5955. Q. You said that, if the same precautions were taken now as were taken before the lamps were put 
in, there would be no danger? A. Yes. 
59.56. (9. Do you assume that the same care is not being taken 1 A. No. 
5 95 7. (9. Then, so far as your mind is concerned, you do not see any difference in the amount of care being 
exercised I A. Not during the last few months. 
5958. Q. I suppose you have some expectation that, by introducing lamps, there will be less care taken in 
the detection of gas? A. That is the general feeling among the minem-s. They are aft-aid that the same 
precautions will not be taken to keep the mine up to the original standam'cl of proficiency. 
5959. (9. You say that John Cavill said, "Marshall, keep your light out of the cut"? A. Yes. 
5960. (7 Is that all? A. Yes. 
5961. (7. How do you know what lie meant? A. Well, of cou-rse 
5962. (7. Had anything occurred previously between you? A. He might be in in the nsorning when a bit 
of the roof wouhibe wrong. Cavill would say, " Do not go in until I come with you." Tie mnigimt try it. 
Our underground-manager would often do the day tEsts, lie might say, ''I want to go in there ; there 
may be gas there." 
5963. (7. Gas has been mentioned. A. It may be. 
5964. (7. You said, "He would know what I mean "1 A. Yes. 
5965. Q. How long ago is this Cavill afibir? A. Twelve months. 
5966. Q. Did Cavill ever report your finding gas? A. Yes, I heard the underground-mnanmmger say so. There 
is a report nearly every (lay in the ]ook. \Yllem-e there is gas lie reports it. 
5967. (7. You said that they say sometlming-who are " they "1 A. Diflbrcnt mmners. 
5968. (9. I want to know whether you mean the miners or the deputy 1 A. Yes, the deputy. 
5969. Q. You heard the miners say that there were entries as to the presence of gas? A. Yes. 
5970. Q. Frequently? A. Yes. 
5971. Q. How long ago? A. Eight or nine months ago, or perhaps not so long. 
5972. Q. You said, " I saw the Chief Inspector try it? A. Yes. 
5973. (9. You know Mr. Atkinson by sight A. Yes. 
5974. Q. You saw him try it? A. Yes. 
5975. (9. With a safety-lamp, or with a hydrogen flanme? A. Witim a hydrogen flame. 
5976. Q. Did lie find any? A. I know lie found some. 
5977. Q. How do you know that? A. I had a talk with the Manager afterwards. 
5978. (7. Time Manager 7 A. The underground•manager-Charies Hope. 
5979. (7. Did Hope tell you that the Chief Inspector had found gas in your herd ? A. In the heading. 
5980. (9. Did not you say that before the lamps were put in there were cut-diroughms at intervals of 30 
yards 'amid canvas up to the face 1A. I told you that we were tlmemi going ahead and. that since the lamp 
hail been put in we had been working backwards. 
5981. Q. I und-rstand you to say that safety-'lanmps give nothing like the light which you had from the 
open hanmp ?A. I said so. 
5982. Q. Therefore, all timings being equal, you had much rather work with a naked light I A. A great deal. 
5983. 0. That is, everything being safe. A. Yes. 
5984. (9. Now, you endorse the recommendation that the Inspector-the local Inspector you mean-should 
have the absolute power of ordering lamps into a mine 1 A. Yes. 

16825 29-2 U 5985. 
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5985. Q. Now, I want to put this case to you. Suppose you have as Inspector a man who very easily 
believes what is told him, without taking the trouble to investigate. Supposing some one tells him a story 
about gas in the mine ; is there not the possibility of injury to the miners themselves, without you give 
power of investigation ? A. Yes. 
5986. Q. Do you not think that if the Inspector, after hearing and reporting, comes to the conclusion 
that there is danger by working with open lights, it would be the wisest course to order lamps at once, and 
then give the management the opportunity of going into the question to see whether it is a true report? A. 
In that case I believe his duty would be to go to the mine and make a thorough inspection, and then order 

them. 
5987. Q. That is another alternative. You think that he ought not to order them right away, but go and 
make an inspection ? A. Yes, make an inspection at once. 

5988. Q. I am going t -  put a case to you. Supposing a report comes to the Inspector. Suppose he goes 
straight to the mine, but finds no gas. What should he do then? A. I suggest that be should communicate 

with the Manager and the miners, and have a thorough representative inspection ; so that if he missed any 
gas it might be pointed out to him. 
5989. Q. If the Inspector reeeive.s information that leads him to conclude that a mine is dangerous, so long 
as the lamps are ordered, and in the meantime you have the matter investigated, you would be satisfied 

A. Yes, if there were an investigation by both sidcs. 
5990. Q. Otherwise you say that time Inspector should have power to order lamps straight away; and perhaps 
two or three hundred men may be compelled to work with lamps when open lights would meet the case? 

A. Yes. I am afraid the Managers would object to lamps, if there were no danger. 
5991. Q. I understand that you went in a body to protest against the use of safety-lamps, and that when 
the Manager satisfied you that the Chief Inspector required them you fell in with that view at once. A. Yes. 

5992. Q. And you withdrew the protest? A. Yes. 

5993. Q. You recognised that whatever was ordered by the Chivf Inspectr was in the interests of all 

concerned ? A. Yes ; and we withdrew the request-. 
539-1. Q. I want to know what you uuW-rstand by this 1 2th recommendation-1 will real it to you- 
" Extra supply of safety-lamps an-1 their requisites, equal to one-third of number of persons employed below 
ground, to be kept constantly in good orth-r and ready for use." I will put a case to you. Take a mine 
with 300 men at work, and they have 300 lamps, dm you suggest an additional hundred beyond t1iose? 

A. Yes. 
5395. Q. Why, in a case of that kinl -? A. If we had 100 spare lamps, and an explosion took place, then, 
with all the willing hands about to rush to our assistance, and the lamps ready, the men could be got out 

at once. 
5996. Q. If there were 300 men, and they were working in two shifts, would all the lamps be required ? 

A. You say if they were working in two shift-s--the two shifts could be in at once. 
5997. Q. What is the largest proportion which would be in use 1 A. There might be every lamp in use, if 

anything happened to occur b-tween 1 o'clock and half-past 2 o'clock. 
5998. (2. Then for one hour and a half the whole of the lamps would be in use ? A. Yes. 

5990. (2. And if an explosion took place there would be no lamps for the rescue party 1 A. No. 

6030. (2.Seeing that possibility, you suggest that a further 100 should be used? A. Yes; we suggest that 

they should be ready for use. 
6001. Q. Now, take the case of a mine with 300 men where lamps are not usrd? A. We say that a fair 
quantity of lamps should always be ready for use. 
6002. Q. You say that an hour and a half is the time that all the lamps would be in use? A. Yes; but it 

might overreach that time. - 
6003. Q. What do you mean by keeping the lamps in good order ? A. I mean clean, and with wicks all 

ready in them. 
6004. Q. Not oil-would you have the oil there? A. I say that in new lamps it would do if the oil was 

there. 
6005. Q. Supposing that the lamps are there, and the oil is there-how long would it take to 511 each lamp? 

A. It would take about half a minute to fill a lamp. 
6006. Q. Suppose you have a supply of lamps andwicks -that is all you want? A. No, I want the wicks 

put in them ; that takes the longest time. 
6007. Q. Now, you were describing the watering of the roads ;-I understand from what you say that you 

g the rails, and you took the plug out, and let it run on the floor? A. That is 
were running a barrel alon  
for watering the horse roads, 
6008. Q. Is that done for the purpose of watering the roads, or for getting rid of the water ? A. FOL' the 

purpose of watering them. 
6009. Q. Have you a superabundance of water? A. Sometimes we have. 
6010. Q. Are these casks used for meddy 1laces where water accumulates? A. No. \VLere the water 

accumulates we have a tank for the purpose, like an iron cart. 
6011. Q. The cask is taken along for the purpose of watering the roads? A. The cask i-s for the horse roads; 

and the cart is for the main roads. 
6012. Q. Does the water i-un outside the rails, or between them I A. The water-cart is the same as the 

Sydney water-cart. The water goes outside the rails ; it has a spray. 
6013. Q. I-low are the sides and the roof watered? A. The sides and the roof are never done. I do not 

think the spray rises that high. 
6011. Q. Then nothing but the floor is watered? A. The floor and pat't of the sides, 
6015. (2. how fat' up the sides? A. Just according to the water that is forced out. 
6016. (2. How much-how wide is it? A. Some places 6 feet; and some 10 feet. 
6017. (2. What space beyond time rails? A. In some cases a feet, and somotinics more. 
6018. Q. In some cases it reaches the sides? A. Yes ; sometimes. 
6019. (2. how high up does the sprey go ? A. According to the pressure of the water. 
6020. Q. What would be the lmihest-a couple of feet high ? A. Yes. 

6021. (2. Do I uncler.taiicl you that there is no travelling roa1 at all in Old Buili? A. No. 

6022. (2. All time men have to go back by time rope-road ? A. Yes. 
6023. (2. how many years have you been there 1 A. Eleven. 6024. 
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6024. Q. During that eleven years have you known a case in which the manholes were insufficient ? A. At 
one time they were ; but they are more plentiful row. 
6025. Q. What distance are they apart ? A. From 20 to 30 yards. 
6026. 0. How far apart were they before 1 A. I cannot tell. 
6027. Q. Are they about 3 feet deep and 4 feet wide? ii. Some of them are larger, and some smaller. 
6028. Q. You have from 1 to 2 feet between the rail and the wall? A. Yes. 
6029, Q. A man could stand safely away from the skips ? A. Yes. 
6030. Q. In any case he can resort to the manholes 1 A. Yes. 
6031. Q. Do you think in the case of Old Bulli that the manholes want increasing? A. I cannot say that 
there are often so many men together. 
6032. Q. You only remember one instance where there was an accident? A. Only one instance. I do not 
know whether lie was in front of the skips and got caught by them. 
6033. Q. It was not a case of a number of men crowding into a manhole, and the outer man being caught 
by one of the skips I A. No. 
6034. Q. Then, during eleven years in that mine you have not known of an instance in which the manholes 
proved too small? A. No ; because when coming out, in order to use the manholes, a few of the men would 
keep behind. 
6035. Q. And if you had travelling roads as wi-il ? A. Then we would have no trouble at all. 
6036. Q. About this proposal that a deputy should, from time to time, show the men the different ways out 
of the mine ;-I understand that you want every quarter that the deputy should take a number of men, 
and show them the different ways out of the mine ? A. Yes. 
6037. Q. You ray that there is a different way out from the main road ? A. I know there is the return airway. 
6038. Q. Flow is it that you never found that way out? A. You are not allowed, according to law, to go 
from your own place to another man's place. 
6039. Q. Did you ever ask ? A. 

'
I have never asked ; until the last three nionths they would not allow you 

to travel a return airway with a naked light. 
6040. Q. Now, would not the way round out of w mine depend very much on the position in which an 
accident took place I A. Yes, it might. 
6041. Q. This is what I mean. On the map there, there is the main tunnel and the daylight tunnel. Now, 
are there not a dozen places in that mine where an accident could take place which would make it desirable 
for the men to go out a dozen different ways in order to avoid that accident ? A. Yes. 
6042. Q. Merely showing the men out one way would not be of much assistance, if the men were woi'king 
and an explosion took place in a different part of the mine 1 A. No. 
6043. Q. Suppose the men were working in No. 1 Right main level and had been shown the way out by 
the daylight heading on the north side of the mine, that would not be of much use to men working near 
the longwall goaf to the west of the shaft district, if an accident took place near them 1 A. It might not 
be; but it would be possible for an explosion to take place in a part of the mine where they could get out 
at the clay light heading. 
6044. Q. Is it not possible to have an explosion in a dozen different places which would require the men to 
get out at a dozen different places: I mean that each explosion would require the teen to go out of the 
mine by a different way? A. Yes. 
6045. Q. Would it be possible for the deputy to instruct the men in one or two ways of getting out of the 
mine, and for the men in trying to get out by those ways to run themselves into danger? A. It is possible 
6016. Q. Is it not possible that., unless the men were instructed in every possible way, how to get round a 
difficulty, they might go by a way that they had been instructed in and run into danger? A. It is quite possible. 
6047. Q. Then that proposition would want a good deal of thinking about? Yl. Yes. 
6018. Q. And in that case a deputy would have to instruct the men-if an explosion took place here, you get 
out so-and-so ; if an explosion took place there, you would get out so-and-so ; and they would have to be 
fully informed of how to meet all the different contingencies that might arise? A. If every quarter, when the 
man are shifted from one district to another, they could be given instruction, they would soon Let to know 
every outlet in the mine. 
6019. Q. The men are ala-ays being shifted about the mm-a? A. Yes. - 
6050. Q. Let me see how many mines have you been in? A. A good few. 
6051. Q. You told us of about fifteen? A. Yes. 
6052. Q. In about twenty years mining 1 A. Yes. 
6053. Q. You have been in fifteen mines? A. Yes. 
6054. Q. You have been a wanderer? A. Yes. 
6055. Q. Now about Dryden's case. You say you know of other cases, but do not care to mention the 
names of the men? A. No. 
6056. Q. Without going into the names at all, do you know of any cases in which your mind is satisfied 
that men were kept out of employment by messages passing f rom Manager to Manager ; or is it a mere 
matter of conjecture? A. No ; we had proof of it; but I am not going into it. I am satisfied in my own 
mind that it has been clone. 
6057. Q. Can you tell me the reason why ? A. I will give you a solid reason. It is because they took the 
leading parts in different things in connection with Unionism, and because they spoke when the other 
parties wanted them to say nothing. 
6058. Q. They were good talkers? A. Yes. 
6059. Q. Was that the only reason? A. Yes, I believe the Managers told them so-that if they would keep 
their tongues quiet it would be better for them. 
6060. Q. Were they men who engendered a sort of illfeeling between the mine-owners and the men? A. 
No; the men I mean were most opposed to that-they were men who would keep that kind of thing down. 
6061. Q. What was Dryden's strong point? A. Dryden was taking leading parts and speaking strong. 
6062. fi. What do you mean by strong? A. By telling them what he thought. 
6063. Q. Was it true? A. That is how men get themselves disliked, by telling the truth. 
6064. Q. Was it anti-capital sort of talk ? A. About the Union-saying what the men ought to do. 
6065. (1. Were there other cases that you know of? A. I did not say so. 
6066. Q. Is Dryden at Od Bohli now? A. Yes. 
6067. (. Is he quiet? A. He is quiet eno'gh. He does not take any leading part now at all. 6068. 
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6068. Q. How long has this care that you spoke of been exercised in Old Bulli about not letting men fire 
shots ? A. Since I have been there I think since the explosion. 
6069. Q. That is since the Bulli explosion-that is fifteen years ago ? A. Yes. 
6070. Q. I think I asked you if you knew whether Hope, the under-manager, reported gas from time to 
time? A. Yes, I believe he did. 
6071. Q. You say you saw it in the book? A. No, I did not say that I saw it in the book. 
6072. Q. You s dcl that the miners told you that they saw it in the book ? A. Yes. 
6073. Q. I would like to ask you your opinion as to why the chock inspecting is not more thought of. 
What is your explanation as to that? A. The check inspecting [interrupted.] 
6074. Q. I mean the right of the men to make check inspections from time to time. What is the reason 
they do not do it? A. We do not feel ourselves up to it; and we find that we have not got really competent 
men todo the work. The men would not be able to explain matters to a Court. Perhaps they might be 
asked if the machine were correct, and they could not swear whether it was correct or not. 
6075. Q. Do you mean the meter for measuring the air? A. Yes. 
6076. Q. Do you mean to say that you have not men that you have confidence in who could do this work? 
A. We have lots of men; but they are looking for posts under the Colliery Managers, and take good care 
they will not do the work. 
6077. Q. Suppose the inspection is right, what is there to he afraid of in it? A. It is seldom that a man 
can go round and not find fault somewhere. 
6078. Q. Then there is an impression that any men who undertake this work may have to report things 
which will render them unpopular? A. Yes. 
6079. Q. You said something about a man going into Court? A. If he were wanted to prove something 
be might have to go there. 

Re-examined by Mr. Lynaght 

6080. Q. You said that Managers told men to keep their tongues quiet., and they would be better off? 
A. Yes. 
6081. Q. Can you tell me any names? A. I toM you before that I am not going to give any names. 

Examined by Mr. Robertson :- - 

6082. Q. You know that after the explosion at Bulli the mine was worked with safety-lamps? A. I have 
only been there about eleven years ; and the mine was under Manager Evans. 
6083. Q. Has not the mine been worked eleven years with .safety.laiaps? A. I cannot say how long before I 
went there. 
6084. Q. Did you bear whether the miners objected to the safety-lamps being withdrawn ? A. I cannot 
say I did. 
6085. Q. In the light of what occurred in the explosion at Bulli, do you think it was an improper decision 
to withdraw the safety-lamps I A. I do not unclerstanJ. 
6086. Q. In the light of what occurred at Bulli-there must be gas there--you described it-did it not 
occur to you that it was an improper decision to whhdraw the lamps from the mine? A. No, not if it could 
be proved that the mine was properly aired, and that there was sufficient air to carry away the gas without 
allowing it to accumulate. 
6087. Q. That is under the normal conditions of a mine; but accidents happen-doors are left open, brattice 
may be knocked down ;-you have to provide against contingencies? A. Yes, in cases of that kind it is right 
to have lamps. 
6088. 0. You said that you would only put in safety lamps, where gas was given off, if the ventilation could 
not be improved ? A. Quite so. 
6089. Q. Am I to understand that you think that safety-lamps are constructed for the purpose of working 
in gas? A. What I mean to say is, if there is a sufficient current of air to allow no gas to show unless by 
a sensitive lamp, there is sufficient air to carry the gas away, and then the mine could be worked with a 
naked light. 
6090. Q. If there is not sufficient air, you have the safety-lamp? A. Yes. 
6091. Q. That idea prevailed thirty or forty years ago; I think they have had a better knowledge of the 
use of safety-lamps now-a-days ; I think a safety-lamp is only intended to provide for contingencies or 
accidents which may cccur in the best regulated mine; however, you are of opinion that a safety-lamp is 
intended to work in gas? A. Yes, it was intended to work in gas. 
6092. Q. I am sorry you have that opinion 1 A. That is my opinion of the safety-lamp. 
6093. Q. Now, do you positively assert that a black list is in evidence in this district ? A. I do. 
6094. Q. Can you give me any proof of it? A. There has been proof enough in the district.. 
6095. Q. Can you give me any proof; you said something about something being done by letter? A. Yea. 
6096. Q. Do you know of any letters that have passed? A. If I say yes, you will ask me for the proof. 
6097. Q. Yes? A. I am not going to prove it. For that reason, I will not say I do. 
6098. Q. I have been longer in the district than you have, and I know of no such thing. I feel aggrieved; 
and I think you should give proof. You appear to know more than I do; and I do not think you should 
make charges unless you are in a position to prove them? A. There is one man's name that I gave you 
and you can call him before the Court, and he will give you proof. 
6099. Q. Who it that? A. Dryden ; and I believe there is another-Mr. Suttle. 
6100. Q. Mr. Suttle was employed by me and there is no black list there ; Mr. Dryden was not employed 
by me, although he applied ; but there was no case of black list ? A. No. 
.6101. Q. You know there have been numbers OF inspections by workmen throughout the district? A. Yes. 
6102. Q. Did you ever hear anyone suffer because he had male such an inspection? A. I have heard tell of 
them. Nothine has occurred at my own mine. Z. 
6103. Q. Can you give me any specific instance of any person who has suffered to the slightest extent, 
because of having acted in the capacity of check-inspector? A. I know lots of men who could do the work, 
but they will not take it; and that is the reason they give. 
6104. Q. You say that you cannot secure nuen to do the work? A. We have men who could do it-past 
Managers ; but they will not do it on that account. 
6105. Q. You cannot give us any sgc:i€c nstances of anyone who has suffered during all these years? 
A. No. 6106. 
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Examined by Mr. Ritchie :- 

6106. Q. You say that Cvil1 told you to keep your light out of the cut 1 A. Yes. 
6107. Q. You attribute that to mean that there was gas there 1 A. Yes. 

6108. Q. Was the brattice up on this occasion? A. Yes, pretty well up. 

6109. Q. What steps were taken to get rid of the gas 1 A, You hung the lamp back ; and the swing of the 

pick and your aim was sufficient to send that little out.. 
6110. Q. The ventilation was not blowing on the face of the coal? A. Yes, but there might be a little gas 

in the corner. 
6111. Q. Did the deputy take steps to remove it? A. You did it yourself. 
6112. Q. Did the deputy trust to you to take these steps? A. Yes. 
6113. Q. On any occasion did he go with you to remove it? A. No. 
6114. Q. In what way did they build the stoppings? A. Some were built with brick ; and others with stone 

and dirt. 
6115. Q. In what way? A. They would build it up with stone; and the other end of the cut-through would 

be open through the heading. 
6116. Q. I think you told Mr. Bruce Smith, with regard to the extra supply of lamps, that all the miners 
would be employed for about an hour and a half? A. it might he more. 

6117. Q. How many have you working on a night shift at Bulli? A. I think eighteen or twenty. 

6118. Q. How many on the day shift? A. I think on the last pay we had thirty-six. 
6119. Q. Only thirty-six in the day-shift? A. I do not think there would be many more ; that is the Hill 

End district. 
6120. Q. I am talking of the colliery generally? A. I think it would be fifty or sixty-perhaps about forty. 
6121. Q. How many wheelers, shift-men, and miners, w'ould be employed altogether-would there be 20? 
A. No, I do not think more than eighty or ninety. 
6122. Q. At all events, two-thirds of the lamps would he employed-eight hours would be a day's shift in 
the mine ? A. The wheelers are there longer. 
6123. Q. Then in the case of this colliery no lamps would be employed for six hours during the day? 
A. Yes. 
6124. Q. How often does the deputy visit your place? A. Once in the morning ; and he comes afterwards. 

6125. Q. Does he come round every day? A. Yes. 
6126. Q. Does lie examine a second time 1 A. Only when lie thinks there is something wrong. 

6127. Q. He would examine again if lie thought there was anything wrong there? A. Yes. 

6128. Q. Does he tell you that lie knows of it? A. No. 
6129. Q. Did you ever notice anything different in the face on the occasion of the second examination? 

A. I know lie is more particular. 
6130. Q. Have you any lcnosvledge of there being anything different in the face? A. I know that there 
were blowers in it ; but unless you put a naked light to theni you would not exactly know. 
6131. Q. Speaking generally, how does lie make an examination of the face? A. In the morning before 

you go in. 
6132. Q. You know nothing about that? A. Well, once a day, unl€ss lie happer.s to be coming back the 

same road-as a general rule, say, once a day. 
6133. Q. You tell us that sometimes he mnalses no examination at all? A. He may go for months and not 

make any examination while you are there. 
6134. Q. He siniply comes and asks you how you are gtting on, whether there is anything wrong, whether 
you have plenty of timber ? A. Yes. 
6135. Q. How often have you seen time District Inspector during your time? A. Twice in the main 
heading during one quarter, and once when working up a bord last quarter. I think that I saw the Chief 
Inspector four times. 
6136. Q. I mean the District Inspector? A. I have seen Mr. Watson about three time- : lie has been there 
more often but I have not 5( en him. 
6137. Q. Within what period ? A. Within the period of his being there. 
6138. Q. Since when 1 A. Since the 1\l ount Kembla explosion. 
6139. Q. Pmior to that, did you have visits fr,)m the local Inspector? A. I saw Mr. Bates there twice. 

6140. Q. Did the Inspector make any examination? A. In some places. We took it that., if they made 
an inspection at one place and not at another, they saw something before they came there. 
(il-il. Q. You took it that unless they saw something in the book they would not try? A. I have been in 
places where the Inspector has tm-iecl and in some places there lie has not tried. 
6142. Q. You think because of that lie must have seen something in the beck ? A. Yes. 
6143. Q. Have you any further reason to think that? A. No. 
6144. Q. Does time underground-manager look for gas? A. The underground-manager does. 
6145. (. Have you ever seen the Manager there? A. Not to may knowledge. I have heard tell of his being 
in the mine ; but I have never seen him nialce any examination. - 

Mr. ROBERT SCOTT was sworn and examined as under 

Examination in chief by Mr. Lysaght :- 

6146. Q. What is your name? A. Robert Scott. 
6147. Q. What are you? A. A miner working at the Mount Pleasant Colliery. 
6148. Q. What is the extent of your mining experience? A. Close on twent, -ihmrce years now. 
6119. Q. \Vhere have you worked? A. In Northumberland in England, and in this State. 
6130. () What mines have you worked in in England? A. At the Craiihington Colliery, at the Broonihill 

Colliery, at the Stobswoorl Colliery, and at Corrimal and soli th Bulli, and also Mount Pleasant. 

6 15 1. Q. How long have you been at Mount Pleasant? A. Three or four years, I think. 

6152. 0. Did you go to Kembla at the time of the disaster? A. Yes. 
6153. Q. What time did you reach there 1 A. About 4 o'clock. 
6154. Q. Do you know anything about the supply of safety-lamps? A. There wore s-erv few lamp, as far 

as I saw. 61l5. 
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6155. Q. What was your experience? A. When we went there they were going in with naked lights. They 
could not find safety-lamps. 
6156. Q. Did you look for any? A. Yes. 
6157. Q. What was the result? A. I could not find any. 
6158. Q. Where did you look-in the lamp cabin? A. I went to where there was a sulky. I carried a 
case over ; but they could not find the oil for them. 
6159. Q. Do you know where they were looking for them? A. They were looking for oil and lamp-cotton. 
They sent a boy to find lamp-cotton. 
6160. Q. Do you mean to a shop to buy it? A. Yes. 
6161. Q. Had there been an adequate supply of safety-lamps, do you think more lives might have been 
saved? A. I think so. 
6162. Q. Were the lamps that were there in good condition? A. They were in bad condition. One I had 
would not burn at all. 
6163. Q. Did you get it out of the sulky? A. It was one of the old fashioned Davy lamps. 
6164. Q. How long was it before a good supply of lamps could be got to give them to the rescuers? A. It 
must have been over an hour. 
6165. Q. Was it the absence of lamps that prevented the rescuers going in before? A. Word was left at 
the tunnel-mouth that no one was to go in with a naked light. 
6166. Q. Was it the absence of lamps that delayed the party going in? A. According to what I could see. 
6167. Q. What part of the mine did you go into? A. I never went into any part. 
6168. Q. Did you on any subsequent day? A. No. 
6169. Q. You do not know anything about the disaster? A. No. 
6170. Q. Are you a miners' delegate ? A. Yes. 
6171. Q. Now, with regard to these recommendations-(I) "That Managers, under-managers, and shot 
firers should hold certificates of competency by examination"? A. I believe in that. 
6172. Q. Do you offer any reasons? A. 1 believe that the Coal Mines Regulations should be carried out. 
The At says that a man should be competent before he takes a position as Manager. 
6173. Q. What about deputies and shot-firers? A. I consider that the deputy holds a responsible position, 
and that be should be competent to inspect the place thoroughly every morning. 
6174. Q. Who is deputy at present at Mount Pleasant? A. At present we have three deputies-Mr. 
Popple, Mr. Rhodes, and Mr. Murphy. 
6175. Q. Do you know whether they hold certificates? A. I cannot tell. 
6176. Q. Who are the shot-firers? A. We have none. 
6177. Q. Who fires the shots? A. The miners. 
6178. Q. Is there any inspection? A. Not that I am aware of. 
6179. Q. What sort of lamps do you use? A. Flare lamps, and in the pillars they have safety lamps. 
6480. Q. Do you know why 1 A. As far as I understand, for protection. 
P181. Q. From what? A. From gas, or something of that kind. 
6182. Q. Is gas known to be there? A. It has been reported in Mount Pleasant. 
6183. Q. Have you seen it? A. Yes. 
6184. Q. How long ago? A. I have seen it in every colliery I have worked in. I saw it last quarter. 
6185. Q. Were you working with a naked light? A. Yes. 
6186. Q. Did you report it? A. No. 
6187. Q. Did it light? A. Just lit up a little. 
6188. Q. Was the deputy there? A. No. 
6189. Q. When did you see it before that? A. The quarter before that. 
6190. Q. Did you report it? A. No; I never reported gas. 
6191. Q. Was there not enough for you to report it 1 A. I did not think there was sufficient to report it. 
6192. Q. Do you know whether gas has been reported in Mount Pleasant? A. If I am not mistaken, it 
has been reported by the Government inspector. I read it in the Annual Report. 
6193. Q. What ventilation have you ? A. A fan. 
6194. Q. When was that put in? A. At the beginning of the year, I think-about twelve months ago. 
6195. Q. Before that was the ventilation in Mount Pleasant good ? A. Not so good as at the present 
time. 
6196. Q. Have you known the ventilation to be reversed before the fan was put in? A. It never came to 
my experience. 
6197. Q. Now, with regard to Recommendation No. 2-" Inspectors to be vested with absolute powers to 
order the ue of safety-lamps "1 A. I think the Inspector should have that power. But, when he finds out 
that it is necessary to order the Manager to use safety-lamps, there is something strange about it. The 
Manager should find it out before then. 
6198. Q. Do you think that safety-lamps ought to be used in every part of Mount Pleasant? A. I think 
that some pai ts of Mount Pleasant can be worked with a naked light. 
6199. Q. Do you know of any mine where the Inspector suggested the use of safety-lamps, and the 
Manager refused to put them in? A. I have read it in the Annual Report this year. I-only know what I 
have read. 
6199k. Q. With regard to ventilation-No. 3-" Ventilation by furnace prohibited, and fans substituted"? 
A. I think the fans are a better means of ventilation. 
6200. Q. No. 4-" Waste workings to be absolutely sealed off and surrounckd by return airways; such 
airways not to come in contact with the intake"? A. I approve of that, as far as I can see. It is a thing 
that should be done. 
6201. Q. No. 5-" All places, except prospecting drives, to have cut-throughs not more than 30 yards 
apart?" A. I approve of that. 
6202. Q. What is the average distance they are apart in Mount Pleasant? A. I cannot tell you the average 
distance. I think there are some considerably over 30 yards. 
6203. Q. What is the longest distance? A. I could not tell you exactly I never made any measurements 
in that r€spect. 
6204. Q. In your opinion, would cut-throughs 30 yards apart at all weaken the roof? A. I do not think so. 
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6205. Q. Do these long drives in Mount Pleasant give proper ventilation at the face? A. In some of them 
the ventilation is very weak. 
6206. Q. You have noticed that? A. Yes. 
6207. Q. Have you noticed it since the fan was put up 1 A. Yes ; I noticed it last quarter. 
6208, (1. Was the bratticing close up to the face? A. Fairly close up ; sometimes 4 or .5 yards back, 
sometimes closer. 
6209. Q. You say that the air has been deficient? A. Yes. 
6210. Q. If cut-throughs were put every 30 yards, do you think that would improve the ventilation? A. 
In my opinion it would do so. 
6211. Q. Did you ask for these cut.througlis to be put in ? A. No. 
6212. Q. I will pass over No. 6. But now we come to No. 7- "Monthly examination and report by 
deputies and District Inspector with the hydrogen flame "1 A. I think that is quite necessary-the mine 
ceriainly ought to be inspected properly from time to time. 
6213. Q. I will not enter into Nos. 8, 9, and 10 ; now, with regard to No. 11-" Weekly measurement of 
air in each section, and report thereof sent to Inspector." Do you know how your measurement is taken 
in Mount Pleasant? A. 1 have never seen it measured at any time. 
6214. Q. Do you think the recommendation would materially assist in the safety of the mine? A. I should 
say that it would. 
6215. Q. Where would you take the measurements? A. At the main intake. 
6216. Q. Anywhere else-they take it at the main intake now? A. On the return airways. 
6217. Q. Anywhere else? A. You can take it at the face if you like. 
6218. Q. Is the measurement of the air at the intake any indication of what air there is at the face? A. If 
you have a lot of air coming into the main tunnel, you expect to get it at the face. 
6219. Q. What if the 1rattice gets disarranged 1 A. You cannot tell then. 
6220. Q. Have you ever known of the brattice getting disarranged? A. Yes. 
6221. Q. Is it a common thing? A. I have seen it. - 
6222. Q. I have already dealt with No. 12, referring to safety-lamps; and I will now is!,: you about No. 
13, "Travelling and haulage roads, in 1 other places necessary, to be properly watered." What is your 
experience ? A. We water the travelling road. It is the main engine plane. They have a water-cart 
nitli a spray. 
6223. Q. How long have they had it? A. Between six and nine months. 
6221. Q. Before the Kenibla disaster? A. I think it was before then. 
6225. Q. Do they water the roof at all 1 A. I never saw them water the roof. 
6226. Q. The sides? A. Jusi a little of the rib. 
6227. 9. You have not any independent travelling road there? A. I have never seen any. 
6228. Q. There is arecornmendation, No. 14-that " Managersbe compelled to give more personal time and 
attention to the management of the colliery." I-low often have you seen the Manager at Mount Pleasant 1 
A. A great many times. He is often there. Sometimes I have seen him three or four times a week. 
6229. Q. Now, regarding No. 16-that "the size of the manholes be enlarged"? A. I think the manholes 
should be enlarged. 
6230. Q. Are thy too small 1 A. I tiiink so. 
6231. Q. have you known of any accidents on the haulage road? A. I have not heard of any. 
6232. Q. 1-lave you known of cases where the men had to crush into the manhole ? A. Sometimes it might 
happen that four or five men come all at once ; and then you have to crush into the place. 
6233. Q. You recognise that they appear ta be too small? A. Yes. 
6234. Q. What is the size of them ? A. I cannot tell you exactly. They may be 4 feet wide; but they go 
in narrower at the back. I think they are about 4 feet from the front. 
6235. Q. There is a recommendation, No. 18-that " Instruction be given to employees regularly on the 
means of escape." What about this? A. I only know one way-the way I go in. 
6236. Q. You know of no other. Cannot you go out by the return airway? A. I have never been out 
by the return airway. 
6237. 9. You never heard of any other way out 1 A. No. 
6238. 9. In case of accidentyou would have to go down the main haulage road? A. As far as I know, I 
should have to do so. 
6239. Q. Have you ever asked any one to show you other ways out? A. I have not. I think it has been 
suggested by one of the Lodges that the miners ought to be instructed on the different ways out of the mine. 
6240. Q. When was the suggestion made? A. Six months ago. 
6241. Q. Before the Mount Keinbla disaster? A. Yes. 
6242. 9. The men asked that they should be instructed? A. Yes. 
6243. 9. Have they been instructed? A. I have not been. 
6344. 9. Who would give you that instruction? A. The under-manager or the deputy. 
6245. 9. When 1 A. At the change of each quarter. When the cavil was drawn, any man who did not 
know should be instructed as to any road in that portion of the mine which lie would work in. 
6216. Q. Recommendation No, 19 is-" The Coal Mines Act to forbid a black-list of employees being kept, 
and penalising improper prevention of discharged persons obtaining employment." What do you want to 
say about that? A. I cannot say much. If there is a black-list, I do not think it should be kept. 
6247. Q. Do you know whether one is kept? A. We all have a suspicion it is kept. That is all we have 
got. 
6248. Q. Do you know of any person who has ever been prevented from getting employment? A. I could 
not swear to that. 
6249. Q. Have you ever heard of any? A. I heard that Coulson was. He was at one time President of 
the Illawarra Association. I only heard it. 
6250. Q. In your opinion would the provision forbidding a black-list and forbidding Managers improperly 
refusing cmii ployment, conduce to the safety of the mine? A. I approve of the recommendation. 
6251. Q. Why did you not report the -as you discovered? A. A man does not care to be running about 
reporting these little bits of things. 
6252. Q. Why 1 A. Because he would get the sack. 
6253. Q. Do you think so? A. I had a suspicion that I would. 6251. 
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6254. Q. No. 20 recommends that "safety-lamps should not be unlocked for shot-firing." Do you think 
it is dangerous to unlock them? A. If safety-limps are being used I would not unlock them. 
6255. Q. How do you light the slnts at Mount Pleasant? A. With a lamp-with a naked light. 
62.56. Q. Is there anything else yoc want to say anything else about? A. Not that I know of. 

Cross examined by Mr. Wade :- 
5257. Q. How long have you been a delegate ? A. I think about eighteen months. 
6258. Q. Is it part of your duty to tell the Manager of the mine about things that ought to be looked into? 
A. Part of my duty -[Inteiiuptecl]. 
62.39. Q. Yes, as a delegate ? A. Not as a delegate. 
6260. Q. What is your duty as a delegate? A. My duty to the Delegate Board is to discuss anything the 
Lodge may send forward to be discussed. 
6261. Q. Have you anything to do with the mine Manager-making representations to him? A. Yes, when 
there is a deputation. 
6262. Q. Have you gene to your Manager on deputations from your Lodge? A. Yes. 
6263. Q. Frequently I A. On several occasions. 
6264. Q. Connected in any way with the miners' work ? A. No. 
626.5. Q. Then, with rJerence to what? A. About deficient piaccs and the like of that. 
6266. Q. Complaints by miners 1 A. Yes. 
6267. Q. Have you been dismissed? A. When I was a boy. 
6268. Q. Do not go back into ancient history. Have you been dsmissed for carrying complaints to the 
Manager I A. No. 
6260. Q. Have you been punished in any way? A. No. 
670. Q. Have you made complaints on your own account apart from the Lodge i -A. No. 
6271. Q. Have N ou had cause of complaint 1 A. I have had cause ; but I never complained. 
6272. Q. So far as you are concerned2  you have been none the worse because of carrying compltints? A. I 
never cirried any. 

6273. Q. You said something about drfi:ient i1as ? A.Inever carried any on my own account; they 
were for the Lodge. 
6274. Q. You are none the worse for having taken complaints on behalf of the miners ? A. I am not. 
627.5. Q. Do you know of any man in Mount Pleasant who has suffered becaus he has made complaints 
A. No. 
6276. Q. Your idea as to a black-list is suspicion 1 A. Yes. 
6277. Q. You have no cases that you know of? A. No. 
6278. Q. How far back in ancient history have we to go in the case of C'oulson? A. In 1895 or 1896. 
6279. Q. What became of him 1 A. He is the Manager now of a workmen's club at Helensburgh. 
6280. Q. What do you mean ? A. I do not knjw. You know what a club is. 
6281. Q. Is not a club, unfortunately, a p'aoe for unlimited drinking? A. Some people say so; but I do 
not think so. 
6282. Q. \Yhere was he dismissed from ? 1. From Heiensburgh, I think. 
6283. Q. On account of his being President of the Union? A. I do not know whether he was President. 
6284. Q. What for? A. For taking s eme prominent part in one of the Miners' Lodges; but what it was I 
cannot tell you. That is all I can tell you. 
6285. Q. You know that he was an official of the il iuers' Lodge when he was dismissed? A. Yes. 
62S6. Q. Have you special mining rules at Mount Pleasant 1 A. Yes. 
6287. Q. You know a rule about repoiting gas? A. I think there is some rule about it. 
6288. Q. Are you not sure 1 If you are not sure, you had better say so ? A. I do not know the rub s. 
6289. Q. H  Have you never heard of that rule 1 A. I may have beard of it ; but I have not got it at my 
fingers' ncls. 
6290. Q. Do you know about any rule for reporting gas if ycu find it? A. I do not. 
6291. Q. Do you know that you are supposed to study the iules? A. I am supposed to do a lot of things 
which I do not do. 
6292. Q. Can you tell the Court whether there is a special rule about reporting gas ? A. I cannot tell you. 
6293. Q. You have no idea ? A. No, if I read it I have forgotten it. 
6294. Q. Is there any rule about reporting danger in the mine I A. I think on one occasion I reported 
about a brattice. 
6295. Q. Is there any rut e  abut reporting danger? A. There is a rule that if any man finds his place 
unsafe lie sends for the Manager and reports it. But there is not a rule about gas, that I know of. 
6296. Q. Do you not think that ,as would make your place unsafe? A. Yes. 
6297. Q. ion are not bound to report gas? A. I suppose so. According to the way you report it. I 
would not get a chance of reporting it if it went off; it would report me. 
6298. Q. You cannot tell how much gas is dangerous, and how much would blow you up? A. No; a miner 
cannot tell. 
p6299. Q. You are to report it, large or small ? A. Yes. 
6300. Q. Why did you not report it? A. I do not report little bits of flares-up. 
6301. Q. They are dangerous? A. I did not say they are dangerous. 
6302. Q. You may have only a small light this moment, and an explosion a moment afterwards? A. I 
think that it would be very improbable that you would see a little light first and a big one afterwards. 
6303. Q. You think it worth risking? A . We (lid it. We have a suspicion that if we report things, as far 
as gas is concerned, we may gut the " stick." T here is a certain amount of suspicion about it. 
6301. Q. But during all your years, you never found that suspicion verified 1 A. I never found it verilied, 
because I never reported it. 
6305. Q. Do you know whether it is a common thing to find gas there? A. You may not find it every five 
minutes. I have seen it on occasions. 
6306. Q. In different parts of the none? A. Yes. 
6307. Q. Are you on friendly terms with the deputies ? A. I am on friendly terms with the Manager, so 
far as I know of. 
6308. Q. The deputy comes to your place every day? A. Yes, 
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6309. Q. And you did not trouble to tell him about the gas? A. For the simple reason that I never make 
a practice of reporting these thing. 
0310. Q. Is that all the reason you can give? A. Yes. 
6311. Q. Whether it is a large amount or a small amount? A. If it were a large amount it would report me. 

6312. Q. If it were a large amount, and it did not report you, would you report it ? A. If it were a large 
amount, I should not report it. I should think it would send inc flying. 
6313. Q. Your practice is to mi.so no report of any ga? A. My practice is to make no report on gas. 
6314. Q. Are you gping to continue that practice 1 A. As far as I know, I will. 
6315. Q. If you find as, you will not report it 1 A It depends on circumstances. 
6316. i11. ]Jruce Smith.] I do not think we are concerned with this witness' intention. 
6317. His honor.] I do not know that we have anything to do with what lie intends to do. He is only 
expressing an opinion Qn these matters ; and those opinions have been expressed before. 
6318. Ni. JVath'.] I wanted to know what his view is as to the matter of a black list, and whether the 
objection is a bod-fide one or not. 
6319. His honor.] I understand the witness to say that it goes very little beyond suspicion. They put 
two and two together and they arrive at a ccnclusiom They may be mistaken, or they may not. 
6320. Mr. JVacle.] Q. AN'ith regard to using water on the main road. The haulage road is the engine road 
at Mount Pleasant? A. Yes. 
6321. Q. Is that the road you travel on, to and from work I A. Yes. 
6:322. Q.  Do horses go on that road, too? A. Yes. 
6323. Q. That is the road you water I A. Yrs. 
6324. Q. How far in ? A. Somewhere ijear a mile from the mouth to the face. 
6325. Q. How far does the engine run in-not up to the face 1 A. It is not far away from the face to the 
main heading. 
6326. Q. For all that distance it is watered? A. Yes. 

[The Commission at 413 adjourned until 10 o'clock the following morning.] 

WEDSESDA Y, 21 JANUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Court house, JJollongorig] 

ittii'itt : - 

C. F. R. MURRAY, IESQ., D.C.J. (PllEsiI)EN'i'). 
D. A. W. I1OBBIUT80N, ESQ., ConMIssIornn. I I). RITCHIE, Es.R., CorslSIIssJoNEn. 

Mr. Bruce Sniith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. \\uo(l, Crown Solicitors Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Athineon, Chief inspector of C :I-nunca, assisted Mr. Bruce Sooth. 

Mr. A. A. Lvsaglit, Solicitor, appeared on lxdalf of 
the representatives of decease 1 luinera, wheelers, &c., (victims of the exploaiou) 
the employees of the i\Ic>unt Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, 9c.) ; and 
the I Ilawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. C. G. \Vade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. F. Curtiss, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kenibla 
Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of i\lount Kenib?a 31 mc). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

6327. dIr. Lysaglit.] I received this letter from John Sweenv, who, in par. 4807 of the evidence, said that 
on a Friday night a deputy did not examine his place. Ho wihes to correct it now to Monday night, Limo 

I 2th of January. I tender this letter to the Commission in c rder that the correction nis.y be made in the 
evidence, if Your honor think fit. 
6328. his Ilommor.] There is no olection to that being done, because it is a trifling matter. It evidently 
is an error. 
6:129. (Mr. Lysaghit then handed in the letter, in which Mr. Sweeney states that lie finds, after careful 
consideration, that lie made a mistake in his evidence ; and that it was on Monday night, the I 2h of 
January, that lie did nct see the (leputy in his working place. The letter was put in and marked Exhibit 
No. 14, and the evidenca of Mr. Sweeney was altered as requested.) 

Mr. ROBERT SCOTT, previously sworn, was further examined, as under 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade 

6330. Q. Do you know anything about the inspections by Chief Inspectors at Mount Pleasant Colliery? 
A. Well, I see their reports. 
6P131. Q.  How often do you see them 1 l. T think T have seen two at Mount Pleasant Colliery. 
(p1:32. Q. \VImc-n was the last I A. About, it might be, three months ago. 
0333. Q. And the one before. that? A. It must have been over twelve months. I think there have been 
two inspections in about eighteen months by cheek-inspectors. 
0:334. Q. Did the same man snake the inspection each timo 1 A. I think there was one man from helens-
burgh, and one of cur local men nameel Fee. 
03:15. Q. And the last time 1 A. Young and Weeki. - 
6:336. Q. Are they both Mount Pleasant men 1 A. Yes the last two inspections were made by both 
Mount Pleasant miners. 
6:337. Q. Is Young the clmeck-weigliman 1 A. No not now. He is a miner. 
63:38. Q. lie was check-weighman? A. Yes ; lie was at that time. 6339. 
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6339. Q. Are they both good men? A. They must have been good men to get the job, I suppose, as far as 
I know. 
6340. Q. But I suppose the miners elected them--the Lodge? A. Yes the miners elected them from the 
Lodge. 
6341. Q. As far as you know from their reports, was it a thorough inspection of the mine? A. According 
to our report it was a thorough inspection. 
6342. Mr. Lysag/d.] Does not Your Honor think that the production of these reports would be better than 
the witness' recollection of their contents? 
6343. AIr. TJade.] Yes. 
6344. His honor.] The questions on the reports are really not for the purpose of ascertaining their contents, 
but for the purpose of ascertaining how these check inspections are conducted generally. 
6345. AIr Wade.] Yes; whether they are made ; and how they are made. 
6346. Q. Have you got those reports? A. I do not know whether the local secretary has the reports or 
not, but I believe they are sent to the district; in fact they have to hand a report in to the management 
of the colliery. 
6347. Q. But have not you got a duplicate? A. I have not; not in my possession. 
6348. Q. But the Lodge? A. I could not tell you that either. I think they hand one copy to the 
management, and the other they keep. 
6349. Q. The Miners' Lodge keeps it? A. I think that is the way of it. 
6350. Q. Young is a man of experience, is he not? A. Yes. 
6351. Q. How long has he been at Mount Pleasant? A. I think be has been there all his life. 
5352. Q. Is he a man that you can rely upon? A. As far as I kiow. 
6353. Q. And the other man, WTeeks?  A. He is just something similar. 
6354. Q. A man you can rely upon? A. Yes. 
6355. Q. And did not you choose these two men to make an inspection in consequence of the disaster at 
Mount Kembla? A. No; I think the men made that inspection before Mount Kenibla.. 
6356. Q. You said three months ago? A. Well, I may be wrong as far as the date is concerned; but I 
think that inspection was made before Mount Kembla. I would not swear it was so; but I think it was. 
6357. Q. Do these men take a safety-lamp round with them? A. Yes ; they have two. 
6358. Q. One for each Inspector? A. Yes. 
6359. Q. And do they measura the air? A. Yes ; they measure the air, I believe. 
6360. Q. have they got a measurer 1 A. Yes. 
6361. Q. Does that b.-long to the Lodge ? A. It belongs to the distmL1t. 
6362. Q. What do yoa mean by the district ;-do you mean that it belongs to the Miners' Association? 
A. Yes. 
6363. Q. And it is available for any LoJge that wants it? A. Yes. 
6364. Q. Now, with regaid to these waste working.-, I want to know what your own proposal, your idea 
is. You see you weje asked some question about waste workings ; and yoo said, Ye,' you eirlorsed it. 
Now, I want to know what it is that you do endorse or that you approve of? A. The waste workings 
should either be thoroughly ventilated or sealed off. 
6355. Q. You were not asked about ventilating you were asked if they should be sealed off? A. Some- 
times you cannot thoroughly ventilate them. 
6366. Q. You would, first of all, get theni ventilated, if you could 1 A. Yes. 
6367. Q. And if that is not practicable, then you would consider the question of sealing off? A. Yes. 
6368. Q. I suppose you svoud make every endeavour to have the ventilation carried through, first of all? 
A. Yes I think it is the safest way to have thorough ventilation. 
6369. Q. have you got any waste workings at Mount Pleasant? A. I have never made an inspection. 
There must be some waste workings; but I have never gone round inspecting the mine. 
6310. Q. Have they taken any pillars out there? A. Yes ; they have takensome out there. 
6371. (2. Now, in regard to the Manager's visiting the underground workings, do you know low Mount 
Pleasant compares with Mount Kembla for size? A. I do not know. I was never in Mount Kembla. 
6372. Q. Never inside Mount Kembla? A. No. 
6313. Q. How many men are employed at Mount Pleasant at present? A. I think about 100 miners. 
6374. Q. Do you know what number they employed at Mount Kembla before the disaster ;-over 200 
miners? A. I think it was. 
6315. Q. About 210? A. Something like that. 
6376. Q. Have you had any experience of working in deep mines? A. Not extra deep. 
6377. Q. What is the deepest you have been in? A. About 100 fathoms, I think. 
6318. Q. Was that in England? A. Yes. 
6379. Q. What size of pillars do they have there? A. Twelve-yard pill a rs-thick n ess. 
6380. Q. Square, or what? A. That is the ordinary pillar; that is where they are working their bords and 
headings 12 yards thick. 
6381. Q. Twelve yards along the heading ? A. Twelve yards between tIme bords. 
6382. Q. And how far do they run ? A. About 35 yards. 
6383. Q. And when was that? A. When I left there : that was in 1881. 
6381. Q. You say there are some places in Mount Pleasant where there is a distance of more than 30 yams 
between cut-throughs 1 A. I never measured them. I could not swear. In those bords the cross cuts are 
between 60 and 70 yards apart. 
6385. (2. That is between bord and bord ? A. No ; from heading to heading. 
6386. (2. Take the headings themselves how far apart are the cut-throughs in the headings? A. I could 
not swear. 1 did not measure. 
6387. Q. About how far? A. Some might be 40 yards ; and some might be a little less ; and some might 
be more. 
6388. Q. You mentioned 60 yards just now? A. I said the distance between cross-cuts from one cross-cut 
to the other would be between 60 and 70 yards in some cases. 
6389. Q. And in some cases you have a distan:e of 60 or 70 yards wirltQut a, olio or communication 
between? Al. Yes; there must be. 
6390. Q. how is the ventilation carried through? A. With brattice 6391. 
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6391. (7. And that is the way you worked when you had a furnace at Mount Pleasant? A. Yes. 
6392. (7. Did YOU have any trouble through having these long distances, GO and 70 yards, without a cut- 
through ? A. We conside red - [ Jo terrupted.] 
6393. (7. It is not what you considered ;-did you ever have any trouble? A. The air was not as good as it 
ought to be, we always thought ; or in a good many instances. 
6394. (). Were you at Mount Pleasant before the present Coal-mines Act came into force in 1894 ? A. No; 
I do not think 1 was. 
6395. Q. \Vhere were you then? A. I think I was at South Bulk then. 
6390. AIr. Bruce Smith.] The Act came into force in 1896. 
6397. l[?tness.] I think I was at Corrimal Colliery at that time. 
6398. AIr. Wade.] Q. Do you recollect how far cut-throughs were apart in those days? A. Just about the 
same. No I think it was 35 yards at that time. 
6399. Q. And that would be without brattice? A. Yes; they were without brattice. 
6400. Q. You could work cut-throughs 35 yards apart ; and you were not bound to use brattice at all? 
A. No. - 
6401. Q. Did they have them longer than 35 yards apart in those days? A. I could not tell you. I never 
noticed. 
6402. Q. But now-a-days they use brattice whether cut-throughs are 35 yards apart or more? A. Whether 
they are more or less they use brattice. 
6403. Q. They all use it, do they not? A. Yes; they all use it. 
6104. (). How long have the present day deputies been employed in those positions that you know of? A. As 
far as I know, one of them who is there must have been there these last nine or ten years. He has been, 
off and on, for the same length of time : perhaps more. 
O 105. Q. And the night deputy? A. He has been on now about two or three years, as far as I can 
recollect. 
6406. Q. And you said yesterday that the deputies should have practical experience of the way to inspect 
a place? A. Yes. 
6107. Q. Then is not the experience you gain from working every day in the mine the best experience you 
cai have ? A. There are a lot of things a man can learn from going to those [Interrnpted.] 
6103. Q. From going to Mr. May, perhaps ? A. Mr. May, yes ; or any of these Technical Schocls,-lots of 
things that one cannot learn from practical experience, such as the composition of gas, and how much of it 
will explode, and all this. - 
6109. (7. You can learn from practical experience to tell -,-is from the cap on the safety-lamp? A. Yes. 
6410. (7. And you know yourself, as a practical man, that once the cap shows on the flame at all you ought 
to be careful? A. Yes. 
6411. Q. Now, that is a question entirely of experience -learning to see this cap on the safety-lamp? 
A. Yes. 
6412. (7. I mean that anew chum cannot see it at all? A. Oh, a new chum can see ib; but be would not know 
what it meant. 
6413, Q. Are you quite sure he could see it? A. He might not see it at first : but if he were given 
instructions where to look to find it he would flnd it. 
6414. Q. Is it not a fact that many of these deputies who are really good practical men would not be any 
good if it came to an examination with pen and ink ? A. I could not tell you that. 
6415. Q. Would you care to face an examination with pen and ink? A. I have faced one examination : I 
would not ol?ject  to facing another. 
6.116. Q. You have faced one I A. Yes. 
6417. (7. What was that? A. Not in a mine. 
6418. (7. What for? A. I decline to answer that question. 
6419. (7. Why? A. Because it is nothing in connection with a mine. 
6120. (7. Will you tell us? A. No; I will not. 
6421. (7. What was it? A. It was nothing at all in connection with a mine. 
6422. (7. Then why not tell us what it was? A. I will nottell you. 
6423. (7. It was nothing to be ashamed of? A. No. I got my certificate. That is all. 
6424. (7. Then why not tell us what it was? A. I will not tell you. - 
6425. Q. You are not ashamed of anything you have done in your life? A. No. 
6426. (7. Was it an examination as a Freemason? A. No. 
6427. (7. As a school-teacher? A. No. 
6428. (7. As a Sunday-school teacher? A. No; I never go to church. 
6429. (7. Nothing to do with a club, I suppose? A. It might be. 
6130. (7. Was it? A. No. I do not need a certificate to drink beer. 
6431. (7. But you want a license to hold a club ? - A. No. 
6432. (7. You do not? A. No. 
6433. 9. Do you know anything about a license in this district? A. I do not bother myself with a license. 
6434. 0. You said that if there had been more safety-lamps there would have been more lives saved in 
Mount Kembla? A. I said, " In all probability." 
6435. Q. Were not men who could help themselves walking out, a number of then), before the exploring 
parties first went in? A. Yes. 
6430. (7. And those who could not walk out had to be carried out? A. Yes. - 
6437. 9. And the only way to carry them out was on stretchers? A. Yes. 
6438. 9. Was not the whole difficulty this : that, even supposing you got in with the safety-lamps, you 
wanted the stretchers inside before you could carry them out ? A. No ; if there had been lamps there, the 
relief parties could have gone in and assisted men out with their hands, without stretchers, until stretchers 
were made. 
6139. Q. You think so? A. Yes ; some could have been brought out that way. 
6440, Q. I-Iowever, this is a fact, is it not, that as soon as they got the stretchers the men came out pretty 
quickly ? A. Yes. 
6141. Q. And there were exploring parties who had gone in with safety-lamps before they got the stretchers 
A. Yes; as far as I know there were. 6442. 
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6442. Q. As far as you know, those parties hal to wait for stretchers before they could carry men out ? 
A. As I understand it, they carried all the men they found alive out a certain distance to where the fresh 
air was in the mine. Some were carried a tlistance by two men getting hold of them, until they got to the 
fresh air. That is what I understand was done until the stretchers were got. 
6443. Q. D. you not know that a number of men who were actually in the mine carried out other men to 
the fresh air ? A. Yes. 
6141. Q. That was done by men who were actually in the mine at the time of the explosion? A. Yes. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Bruce Smith 

6445. Q. How would you desqrihe the ventilation of Mount Pleasant before the fan was put in ;—was it 
weak or very weak? A. It was very weak in a good many places. 
6146. Q. You told us yesterday it was very weak with the fan? A. That is, in one place where I was 
working last quarter. 
6447. Q. You said the ventilation was very weak sometimes in Mount Pleasant? A. In the heading that I 
was working in. 
6448. Q. That is the only one you know? A. Yes. 
6449. Q. As far as you know it may have been very weak in other places? A. As far as I know it might 
have been very weak in the others. 
6450. Q. Then, with regard to the place you have worked in, you have not Seen any difference between the 
ventilation with the fan and without the fan l A. The air would have been much worse if the fan had not 
been put in. 
6451. Q. I am not asking you to say what it would have been. You have described the ventilation before 
the fan, and the ventilation now that there is a fan, in the same words, ' very weak'? A. In that one 
particular place. 
6452. Q. But that is the only place you knew? A. Yes. 
6453. Q. But you do not know now that it is not very weak in some of the other places? A. There is much 
more air coming in now, I think, by half. 
6454. Q. But you do not know now that it is not very weak in some of the other places? A. I do not know. 
6455. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I do not propose te ask this witness any more questions, your Honor. Your 
Honor made a suggestion about cross-examining 'these witnesses upon their endorsement of these recom-
mendations; and since yesterday I have discussed with Mr. Atkinson the course he proposes to take 
in connection with these recommendations. I recognise that, in fairness, Sir. Wade ought to know what 
attitude Mr. Atkinson lakes up in regard to these proposals, before lie brings his evidence ; because 
it may save him bringing some evidence which, after hearing Mr. Atkinson, he may not consider it neces-
sary to bring 3 and it may induce into to bring other evidence in regard to the modifications which lie 
may suggest to Mr. Atkinson to adoot and which Mr. Atkinson may be disposed to adopt, And 
Mr. Atkinson wants to know what Mr. Wade's witnesses have to say from the management point 
of view before lie gives the Conimission his final recommendations ; and therefore lie proposes to 
do this--and it seems to me to be a very fair course, both for Mr. Lysaght and Mr. Wade—in giving 
his evidence he will tentatively state how far and to what extent he can fall in with the suggestions 
reserving to himself the iight to modify any of his proposals after hearing what Mr. Wad's witnesses have 
to say on behalf of the inine-o'vners. In that way lie will have heard all that Mr. Lysaglit's witueses have 
to say in support of the suggestions lie will have heard all that Mr. Wade's witnesses have to say in 
opposition to those twenty suggestions ; he will have indicated between the two what his present opinion is; 
and he will reserve to himself the right to modify his opinion in any way which SIr. Wade's evidence may 
convince him to be necessary. With that view I do not propose to cross-examine any of these members of 
the Delegate Board any further with regard to the twenty suggestions ; because I think we have really 
heard from those that have already been calle 1 the greater part at all events of the reasons which they have 
to advance in support of the recommendations. I think your Honor will see that that is a very fair course 
to take. 
61.56. His Honor.] That course does not put Sir. Wale in any different position from the position in which 
he stood before ; except that it might suggest to him to be more exhaustive than he otherwise would be in 
cross-examination. 
6457. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I had proposed originally in my own mind that I should not submit any proposals 
to the Commission until all the evidence had been given ; but it occurred to me that if that were done Mr. 
Wade would not know, until after lie had given the whole of his evidence, what attitude Mr. Atkinson was 
going to take up, unless lie cross-examined him and then, of course, lie would get it in a patchy soi-t of 
way. But, by this proposal, Mr. Atkinson will say tentatively what position he takes up with regard to 
these suggestions, and, if Sir. Wade bi-ings forward any evidence that farther modifies Mr. Atkinson's 
views, he will have an opportunity of altering it, modifying it, before putting it permanently and finally 
before the Commission. - 
6458. AIr. Wale.] Where is the limit? 
6459. Mi-. Bruce Smith.] I am doing this entirely in my friend's iuteresb. If my friend does not like it, I 
will adopt my original course of not making any suggestions whatever until the end of the case ; and that 
might lead, perhaps would lead, to Mr. Wade's having to call a good deal of evidence which he may not 
require to cell and it may lead him to leave out evidence which he may require to call in view of Mr. 
Atkinson's evidence. I only announce that because it is connected with my resolution not to examine any 
mre of those witnesses on these twenty suggestions. Their evidence is merely repetition; and I think they 
have now given us all the reasons they have to advance, in their corporate capacity, at all events, in support 
of these propositions. - 

Lxautiueticn by Mr. Robertson 

6460. Q. You said something about the road being watered in Mount Pe-asant---the floor, I mean? A. Yes. 
6 16 1. Q. Now, if the road is only watered on the fib w, the timbers and the sides must hold a lot of dust, 
must they not? A. Yes. - 
6462.- Q.-Then, in the event of an explosion starting at the end of one of your hauling rca-Is, there will be 
sufficient dust in the roof and the timbers and the sides to carry it on - A. Yes. 
6463. Q. Therefore, so far as preventing an explosion is concerned, the watering is absolutely useless ;--s 
far as preventing the extension of an explosion is concerned, watethsg the floor is useless ? A. It is 
practically use1ess 6464. 
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6 tIlt. Q. With reference to the diffidence of miners to complain to the management about any defects, 
assuming for the sake of argument that that is correct as far as the individual miner is concerned, has lie 
any hesitation, in the collective capacity of the Union, to complain A. No. I think it is just a suspicion 
that is amongst the most of us. 
6465. Q. But if Robert Scott hesitated by himself to complain to the management, Robert Scott has no 
hesitation whatever in complaining to the Union ; and the Union, in its turn, never hesitates to bring such 
matters before the Manager ;- -I think you vill admit that Unions frequently do complain to the manage-
ment? A. Yes. 
6466. Q. Therefore, there is no difficulty in finding it channel of communication between the individual 
miner and the management through the LTnion  ? A. No ; there is no difficulty in that. 
6167. Q. Do you know that officials in this district have been prosecuted by tiner own Managers for not 
reporting defects ? A. No I do not know that. 
6168. (i). Well, it is a fact? A. It may be. 
6469. Q. Do von think, therefore, that a Manager NAho would presecute his own official would hesitate to 
accept a report from the miner ? A. I can hardly grasp the meaning of that. 
6470. Q. If a Manager has sufficient sense of responsibility to prosecute his own officials for not reporting a 
defect, or not reporting gas, do you tlnnk lie would ohect to a miner's reporting a defect? A. Some 
Managers might not object to a miner's reporting it ; but others might. 
6 17 1. Q. So that there are at least no objections to some men reporting? A. There may not be. Some 
i\Ianagers may take a sensible view of it and others tony not. 
6472. Q. You admit that it is not the general rule ? A. According to what you say, it must not be a 
general rule. 
6173. Q. Now, as to the objections of miners to accept the position of chick-inspector for fear of dismissal, 
Ave have heard a good deal about that, have we not? A. 1 never heard that a man objected cxactly, for 
far of getting the ''sack," or anything like that. I never heard all say that straight out. 
6474. Q. We have heard it in this Court. Do you know that the district, through its General Secretary, 
apIhind to a Manager in this district to sujply him Avith proper safety-lamps for the purpose of making 
tIn-c inspections I A. Yes; I believe I heard the District Sccretary mention that myself. 
6 17.5, Q. Therefore, not all of the Managers have any oljections to those inspections? A. No. I suppose 
there are some Managers who will do their duty. 
6476. Q. Do you know, as a matter of fact-, that in many of the collieries, as a rub', the check-inspectors 
receive every assistance ; and they are invited to make the most titorotigh inspection 1 A. According to 
the report t?iat I have read from the Mount Pleasant Colliery, they got every assistance there. 
6 17 7. Q.  That is one place. \Vould you be surprised to learn that thet e are other places where cvi ry 
opportunity is given to the men to make a most searching and thorough investigation? A. I do not know 
anything about any of the other c Alierie since this check-insp:,,ction started. I have not worked at any 
other colliery but Mount Pleasant since this check.insp ct-ion was put in force. 
6 178. Q. Do you know that the suggestion for ventilating waste workings and surrounding thcni with return 
air-ways is not original ? A. It is not original. It has been proposed, I think, before. 1 think I have r(ad 
it in some of the repot ts. 
6479. Q. Exactly. As a matter of fact, a Commission which sat some years ago considered this? A. Yes. 
6180. 9. Can you say whether the ventilation has improved considerably since the new Act came into force 
in 1896 1 A. I know it has improved in.the Mount Pleasant Colliery in a great many places. 
6481. Q. As a general thing, I suppose you have conversations with miners from chiffierent parts of the 
country and I daresay you must have heard it reported if there was an improvement in the condition of 
the mine as far as ventilation i.s concerned 1 A. \V11, the bm'attico system was not always satisfactory. 
It has not always been satisfactory. 
6182. Q. 1 mean in a general way the ventilation has improved ? A. In a general way it may have 
improved. I think I have heard teen from various coll:ei'ics say that the ventilation has improved a little 
since the 1896 Act. - 
6483. Q. Do you know that previous to 1896 it was compulsory to have cut-thiroughs not over 35 yards 
apart I A. Yes I think that was in the Act-35 yards. 
6484. 9. And since that the restriction has been removed ? A. Yes. 
6 185. 9. So that the ventilation of mines has not suffered in any way by the removal of such a restiicticn 
in the  working of mines? A. I do not comprehend what you say. 
6486. Q. You said something about pilli a being .35 yards in the deepest mine ycu worked in in the Old 
Country, 100 fathonis dee1)? A. Yes. 
6187. 9. That was in 1887? A. It was iii 1887 when I loft. I was woiking  in those workings in 1887. 
6-188. Q. But since 1887 there has been a considerable advanceuient in tIme system of working mines?-
'rhete are always improvements, I suppose ? A. I have not seen any of the Act-s passed since I left. 
6189. Q. Not in the Acts at all. There have been ilimprovements in the methods of working mines, have 
there not ? A. There have been improvements hero; but what there has bren in England I do not know. 
6190. Q. And we may take it that England has not fallen behied ? A. Yes. 
6 191. Q. And as a matter of fact modern good mining prictice demarcls very munch larger pillars-that ii', 
to insure safety, and for the perfect recovery of the pillars afterwards? A. Yes. 
6192. Q. Now, the effect of your recommendation to have cut-throughs 30 yards apart would be to rstrict 
the size of the pillars to under 30 yards-would it not? A. It would. 
6493. Q. Aid if it is necessary in a deep mine to have pillars 100 yards square the efb ct would be rather 
disastrous ? A. I do not see that the cut-thronghms would weaken it very much. 
6494. Q. Do not you think, if it is necessary to have it 100 yards square pillar without any Opening at all 
to support the weight of the superincumbent strata -_[fut-srropi 1] ? A. 14 just depenls on what kind 
of work you are working. 
6495. Q. There are only two systems of working, gem-rallv speaking, in a mine ; and those are pillar and 
stall, and long wall and, if it is necessary to have pillars 100 yards  eq nave in ome cases, sit rely the effect 
of pu timig cut-thiroughis every 30 yards would w aken it to acme ext mit 1 A. Certainly it bight weaken it 
to it certain extent, 
6196. Q. And it might be disastrous? Al. I cannot see that there would be any disaster about it. 
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6497. Q. Is not it necessary even in this district to have certain pillars 100 yards A. You can make it 
100 yards if you like, if you make proper provision to cat t'y the air in. 
6498. Q. After all it comes to this then, that if you h tvo adequate ventilation it does not matter to you 
how that system of ventilation is secured 1 It does not matter to you by what system the mine is ventilated 
if it is ventilated ii. If it is ventilated thoroughly. 

Examination by Mr. Ritchie :- 

6499. Q. Have you any fear in your mind of being cut off front the ventilation by having long stretches of 
canvas carried on? A. Yes ; sometimes little bits of roof fall and carry the canvas down. In the Mount 
Ph asant Colliery they just brattice it from prop to prop, and it takes very little to pull this light brattice down. 
6500. Q. Is that one of the reasons why you advocate cut-throughs at regular distances? A. That is one of 
the reasons-the fear of this h;rattice being knocked down. 
6501. Q. And cutting you off from the air? A. Cutting us off from the air. 
6502. Q. Have you had any cause to complain of the ventilation at Mount Pleasant Colliery prior to the 
erection of the fans? A. Not at Mount Pleasant. I never remember complaining. 
6503. Q. And you have heard, in your meetings, complaints made about the ventilation? A. I could not 
say that I have. 
6504. Q Your cheek-inspectors' reports have all disclosed sufficient ventilation? A. So far as I remember 
they said there was sufficient ventilation, 
6505. Q. And has the ventilation increased since the erection of the fan 1 A. Oh, yes; considerably. I 
think it is very near one-half that it has increased since the fan. 
4505. Haveyour check-inspectors' reports, or any other reports you have had in your meetings, indicated 
that there is an improvement generally through the erection of the fan? A. Through the erection of the 
fan they consider there is great improvement all through the mine. 
6507, Q. You have heard satisfaction expressed with the ventilation since then 1 A. Yes. 
6508. Q. Do I understand you to advocate, in connection with one of your proposals there, that Managers 
who hold service certificates should have those certificates cancelled unless they can pats an examination 
A. I think the law should be carried out. It says, "Managers with certificates of competency." 
6509. (7. The law does not say that at the present time 1 A. I understood it. did. 
6510. (7. The law says that certain persons may hold certificates of service. Now, do I understand from 
you that your proposal is that those certificates should ic cancelled unless the persons are qualified by 
examination? A. It is a very severe question ; but I will answer it. If they are not competent to go 
through an examination they should have their time-service certificates withdrawn. 
6.511. Q. The service certificates should be cancelled unless the i\Ianagers are prepared to go through an 
examination? A. Yes. 
6512. Q. Do you think there is any greater danger in a miner's reporting danger in a mine to a thoroughly 
competent Manager, or in his reporting to an incompetent Manager? A. If lie reports to an incompetent 
Manager, perhaps the Manager would not understand the risk ; whereas the competent Manager would. 
6513, Q. You think there would be greater risk to the miner in reporting to an incompetent Manager? A. 
There would be. 
6514. Q. Do you know what system the check-inspectors adopted in making their examination? A. I 
could not give you any details about what method they adopted. 
6515. Q. Do you know if they examined the waste workings at all ? A. According to their repoit they 
did. I am sure it is in their report that they examined all waste workings to the face ; and all intakes 
and returns and travelling roads. 
6516. Q. I think you told me that one of the check-inspectors had worked the whole of his time in Mount 
Pleasant? A. Pretty nearly the whole of his time. 
6517. Q. That is where the whole of his experience had been gailned? A. Yes. 
6518. Q. That is Mr. Young? A. Yes. 

[Witness retired.] 

Mr. PATRICK GLEESON was sworn, and examined, as under :-

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght :- 

6519. (7. What is your name? A. Patrick Gleeson. 
6520. (7. What are you? A. A miner. 
6521. (7. Where are you employed? At Mount Keira. 
6522, Q. How long have you been employed at Mount Keira 1 A. I daresay I have been there about fire 
or six years. 
6523. (7. Have you worked in any other mine? A. No, not in any other mine. 
6524. (7. Now, have you any i'ecollection of.discovering gas at any time in Mount Keira 1 A. Yes. 
6525. 0. Give its particulars of each occasion ? A. The first time I found it was after firing a shot. 
6526. (7. \Ylien 1 A. Oh, Idaresay it would be about six or seven weeks ago. 
6527. (7. What part of the mine 1 A. In the place we called the Old Straight. 
652$. Q. What number 1 A. The number of the place we worked in was No. 29 ; hut this was in another 
place. We had turned away over like to whete we were working a cutthrough, driving into the heading 
where I was working. 
6529. (7. Who was your mate? A. My brothet', Alfred Gleecon. 
6530. (7. What happened ? A. I had lad a mis-eel thot the day kefore ; and of course I had to come out. 
The next morning I went in, and I bored another hole about a fcot or a little more away; and after the 
shot went off there was a terrible rumble and noise and, of course this flash came out. 
6531. Q. How far diii the flash come out? A. Well, I daresay the cut-through was in about 7 or 8 yards. 
I was away up the hot ci. 
6532. Q. Where did the flash come out? A. Into the bord where 1 broke away from. Of course, when I 
cante back again to see what it was, I could see the coal was, like, white ; a sort of burnt, you know-like 
you see coal when it is burnt. 
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6533. Q. What did you do A. I was a bit afraid of it.. I did not know what to do in fact. I did not 
say anything about it at the time ; not for a at oath or S ) after vard : not till I lit up the other gas. 
6334. Q. Did you say anything about that to any lNm  1 A. \Vehl, of course, there were a fellow named 
Jack Sells, and Billy Preece, and my mate, with me. 
6535. Q. Do you know whether Sells and your brother saw this flash A. Oh, yes. We all saw it. No 
I do not think Preece was at work that day. 
6536. Q. And Sells and your brother saw it? A. Yes. 
6537. Q. When was the next occasion 1 A. The next occasion I was working in the heading. 
6538. Q.  What number? A. No. 29. I had finished the cut-through. It was just about dinner time; 
and just as we were going to our dinner I fired the shot. 
6539. Q. How long ago? A. I daresay it would be just before the new year. Ny mate had gone to his 
dinner some distance, about 10 or 50 yards away ; and Sells and Preece were in at their work, in at the 
face. Of course I went in to see what the shot had done, about four or Live minutes afterwards ; and I 
went in with my light, looking the same as usual ; and it all flared up all round me. It gave me a great 
start; and I was almost thinking about running to leave the place at gnce. 
6540. Q. Where did it start to flare from? A. Over my head. 
6541. Q. The roof ? A. Yes, all round. 
6542. Q. At the time when it lit how far were you from the face of the coal A. From 2 to 3 yards, I daresay. 
6543. Q. What did you do? A. I got my hat; that was the only thing I had. I thought the best thing 
I could do was to try and knock it out. I took off my hat; and I suppose I was some minute or two 
knocking it out. 
6544. Q. Knocking what out? A. The flame, the light. I succeeded in getting it out; and I went out. 
I thought the others might not believe me; and I called them in ; and, when I went in to show them 
where it lit, it went off again ; and it burnt gradually out then with a blue light. 
6545. Q. How ]on- did it keep alight the second time? A. I suppose three or four seconds. 
6546. Q. How long was it aUght the first time before you got it brushed out with your hat? A. I daresay 
it would be a niinute or two. 
6547. Q. What did you do after that? A. The wheeler came in in the meantime and of course I wanted 
to report it and lie saw Jubb out on the flat and lie sent him in; and I reported it. 
6548. Q. What did you say to Jtmbb? A. I told him there was gas there. McDonald was there too. 
6549. Q; What is McDonald ? A. Alick McDonald, the deputy. 
6550. Q. And what is Jubb? A. He is a sort of head deputy or under-manager, or something like that. 
6551. Q. What did you say to them, or either of them ? A. I told them there was gas there. Of course 
they examined with their ljghts. I do not understand the lights. 
6552. Air. JVade.] Q. What do you mean? The safety-lamps? A. Yes. I have only been used to the 
naked light. Jubb examined it; and I had another shot ready to fire ; and ho asked me would I be ]on" 
before I bored the hole. I said No, I can bore it now." I thought lie was going to wait until I fired 
the shot. He waited until I bored the hole ; and lie put his lamp to the hole ; and then lie said it was not 
worth speaking of. - 
6553.11,. LysogJi.] Q. Jubb said it was not worth speaking of? A. Yes. 
6554. Q. Did McDonald say anything 1 A. Well, of course, Jubb more examined it. He said it was 
smoke from the shot ; but there was no smoke there. The smoke had gone when it lit. 
6555. Q. When Jubb told you it was smoke from the shot, you knew there was no smoke there when it lit i 
A. Oh, I am certain. 
6556. Q. Was anything else said by Jubb? A. No. He just let us go on working just the same as usual. 
6557. Q. Was there anything said by McDonald ? A. No; only that it was just like the smoke; lie said 
it was not gas at all. He said that powder smoke makes fire like gas ; but I have worked in smoke with 
the naked light where I could not see my hand in front of my face. 
655$. Q. Was that all that happened on that occasion ? A. Yes. 
6559. Was there any other occasion? A. My mate came out another time and told inc that it lit again 
but I was not there then. - 
6560. Q. You did not see that? A. No. 
6561. Q. Do you know whether either Jubb or McDonald reported in a book what you had reported 
A. I could not say. 
6562. Q. You were speaking about smoke? A. Y s. 
6563. (9. What was it you want-d to say I A. On night shifts I have fired it shot; and the smoke has 
never left there for the whole night but it never lit. 
6564. Q. Where was that? A. in a place called No. 4. 
(1565. Q. In Keira? A. Yes. 
6566. Q. How long ago? A. About twelve months ago or a little more. 
6567. Q. Then was the ventilating current good 1 A. No ; there was not the best of air. Of course there 
could not have been, or else the smoke would not have remained there. 
6568. Q. I understand there was not enough air to carry the smoke away all night 1 A. No. 
6569. Q. Has that been a frequent experience with you-the smoke accumulating 1 A. Yes. I have 
worked in places often when the smoke would be, pet-hops, an hour or SO before it would go away. 
6570. Q. Has that been recent? A. Vet. We have had to go round with our shirts and wave it out. 
6571. Q. That is shirt ventilation. How often have you had to do this shirt vemitilatin ? A. It is pretty 
often, when you are in those shiootiiig places where the smoke accumulates. 
6572. Q. And is that recent too? A. Even up to last quarter we were in a place where all the smoke from 
all the other men used to come to where we were ; and we had to be there all day too. 
6573. Q. Just tell me where that place is ? A. In the Od Straight. 
(5574. (7. What number? A. No. 29. 
6575. Q. Then do I understand that all your working day you were working in smoke that had come to 
on from other men's places ; and it was never moved ? A. 01) Yes. 

6576. Q. That is a fact? A. Yes. 
0577. (). And, al-tart from the smoke, what was the kind of air ? -A. It aliitost smelt time same as if it were 
sulphur in fact it did not agree too well with me ; I was cot able to eat my fl1Ci5 from the smoke. 
fi578. (9. 'l'hic effect of the smoke on you was that you could not eat your meals? A. No. 6579. 
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6579. Q. Did it make you vomit, or anything like that? A. No; I have never vomited ; but I used to have 
to leave sometimes and go out to get into where the air was fresh. 
6580. Q. Did you ever complain of that to 'the deputies? A. Yes; we have spoken of it many a time and 
of course they would say it was the other men's smoke. 
6581. Q. Who would say that it was the other men's smoke ? A. The deputies. 
6582. Q. Which one? A. Alick McDonald. He said we should have to stop shooting if the smoke 
continued that way ; and of course we told him then that it was from the other men. Sometimes, perhaps, 
we would not have fired a shot at all. Of course we would have to put up with this smoke that came from 
the other men. 
6.583. Q. And, in addition to the smoke, what was the air like? A. It was very hot. You would almost 
sweat if you were to just sit down. 
6584. Q. How long would you have to remain away from your work to get some fresh air? A. Just a 

few minutes. 
6.58.5. Q. And how far would you travel to get the fresh air ? A. You might have to go 20 or 30 yards. 
The air would not be so bad then. 
6586. Q. Was the brattice kept right Ul) to the face in that place? A. Not until I lit this gas. After I 
had lit the gas and reported it they macic a little more ventilation. 
6587. Q. How 1 A. By putting up more brattice. 
6588. Q. But at the time this smoke used to come from the other men and remain with you, how far was 
the brattice from the face ? A. I daresay it would be S or 9 yards. 
6589. Q. Do you know whether the Manager knew of that condition in the mine? A. Yes; the Manager 
knew of it. When he came in he would be going along, and almost trip ; you could not see with the light.. 
6590. 9. Who is that? A. Mr. Jons. 
6.591. 9. Mr. J. C. Jones? A. He would say we would have to stop the shooting altogether if there was 
so much smoke. 
6592. Q. How often has he had that tripping experience? A. He generally used to come round about once 

a fortnight. 
6593. Q. What would he trip over? A. They are not very level roads in there ; and if the smoke is that 
thick you cannot see where you are going properly. 
6594. 9. But still he let you work in there ? A. Yes. 
6595. 9. Areyou working in the same place now? A. No ; I am working a long way off. I am working 
near Dadight, they call it. It is good air where I am now. 
6596. Q. It is near the tunnel? A. It is within a few minutes' walk of in and out. 
6597. 9. You said, something about not understanding a safety-lamp : did yqu ever use a safety-lamp 1 

A. No. 
659$. 9. Do you know how to examine for gas? A. No. 
6599. Q. Have you any idea how to examine for gas with the safety-lamp '? A. They have often said there 
would be a little blue flare on the top. 
6600. 9. But could you examine ? A. No ; I do not know anything at all about it. 
6601. (7. Do you think you are competent to fire a shot 1 A. Yes. 
6602. Q. You think you are 1 A. I have had a lot of experience in it, anyhow. 
6603. 9. How do you light your shots ? A. With the naked light. 
6604. 9. And when you are firing the shot have you ever had anything g.e off wrongly ? That is, has the 
shot missed fire frequently with you ? A. No. 1 daresay I have had about three in all my experience. 

6605. 9. Is thsre any dust in Rena where you fire the shots ? A. Yes ; there is plenty of dust. 

6606. 9. What happens when you fire a shot ? A. We are not near the shot at the time ; you see we have 

to get a good hit away. 
6607. 9. But you see the result of what the shot docs. In addition to blowing out the coal does it do 
anything to the dust? A. It raises a great cleat about. 
6608. 9. How long does it take this great dust to settle? A. That always depends on the air. 

6609. (7. On an average, what is your experience ? A. It might be five or six minutes before the cleat would 
settle. I have never taken much particular notice. 
6610. 9. Where is that dust raised from '? A. I darosay, mostly, from the shot ; because where I was 
working last time, where this gas lit, the coal was of a sort of clamp nature. 
6611. Q, The coal was damp? I am keeping to theoe places where you say it was dusty. Where, in 
addition to the coal, clos the dust come fi one 
6612. iIfe. ?lTade.1 He does not say there was dust in addition to that from the coal. 
6613. our. Lyseght.] Q. Was there any place other than the coal where the dust came from ? A. Along the 

roads. 
6614. Q. What do you mean by along the roads? A Where the horse travels-al] round the roads. 
6615. Q. And the sides 1 A. Yes. 
6616. 9. And what about the roof 1 A. I could not say. I do not know whether any comes from the roof. 

6617. 9. Is there any dust on the roof ? A. A small quantity. 
6618. (7. And what is about time thickness of the clut in the dustiest places where you fired the shot, on 
the floor 1 About how much is there on the ground ? A. In some parts of the niine there would be perhaps 

2 or 3 inches. 
6619.. 9. Did you know that there was any danger in firing a shot in a dusty place 1 A. No, never. 
6620. Q. Do you know it now 1 A. Yes 1 have been afraid since I lit time ga. 
6621. 0. With the exception of the fright you got through igliting the gas, do you know that there is any 
danger in that dust using ? A. No only what I hear them talking of ; that they reckon the dust is 
ey plosive. 
6622. Q. Is that since KembLi ? A. That is all. 
662:3. 0. Is any water put on these place; where you fired these shots? A. No ; not where I have fired. 
6621. Q. have you ever seen any water up there? J. No. 
6625. Q. Not ec-en since time disaster? A. I have never seen water.; unless it has been put there in the 
night, when I was not there. 
6626. 9. You could tell that, surely A. Yes ; I do not think they have. 

6627. 
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6627. Q. Do you know whether they water the roads? A. I have seen the water lying on the roads when 
I have been travelling to and fro. They have water laid there now. 
6628. Q. You have never seen water in these places where you fired the shots? A. No. 
6629. Q. How long do you think it would take this dust to settle, when it is raised? A. About five or six 
minutes. 
6630. Q. Is your engine road the travelling road at Keira? A. No not just at present. Of course, it has 
been the travelling road. 
6631. Q. Do you know the size of the manholes there? A. I never took much notice. They might be 5 or 
6 feet, by about 3 or 4 feet wide. 
6632. Q. Do you know of any accident having occurred there through the manholes being too small? A. No; 
I have never known of any there. 
6633. Q. In your opinion, are those manholes big enough in case of any accident; or should they be bigger? 
A. They would be big enough for one man, in fact for three or four men. If there were a lot of men going 
along at a time they would not be big enough. 
6634. Q. If there were more than four men, would they be big enough? A. Oh yes, they could "scroodge", 
into them. 
6635. Q. About how many men could " scroocige" into them? A. I have never taken much notice. You 
might pack six or seven. 
6636. Q. Do you know the various roads out of Keira (Recommendation No. 18)? A. I know them pretty 
well. I have travelled pretty well all the roads there. 
6637. Q. How many are there? A. There are the main tunnel and two other travelling roads. 
6638. Q. Would you be able to find your way out by any of those three roads? A. Yes, I can get my way 
out on any of them. 
6639. Q. Has any person ever showed you those roads out? A. No. 
6640. Q. Did you discover them by working in places immediately adjoining them? A. In different parts 
of the mine. When men were coming out I would go with them. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade :- 
6641. Q. Just let me understand more clearly where it is that you had this trouble with the smoke. What 
do you call that? A. No. 4. 
6642. Q. No. 4 District? A. Yes. 
6643. Q. What were you working in? A. A horcl on night shift. 
6644. Q. What particular work were you doing? A. Ge ting coal. 
6645. Q. How far in would that be from the tunnel mouth ? A. I suppose it would be 21  miles. 

6646. Q. What district was this place in, where you say the shot flared up ? A. In the Old Straight. 
6647. Q. Whereabouts is that, compared with No. 4 ? A. It is working, like, towards this No. 4 District: 
in fact they had holed into this No. 4 ; but not, of course, where I was working; but I believe they are 
now bringing the coal out from No. 4 by the Old Straight. 
6648. Q. How far in was that? A. I daresay it would be 2 miles. 
6649. Q. You are working in a. cut-through off a bord? A. Yes. 
6650. Q. You say you had put a shot in before that which flared up? A. Yes; I had a missed shot the day 

before. 
6651. Q. You mean to say that the shot the day before did not go off? A. It never went off. 

6652. Q. What did you do with the hole? A. I had to go home that day, and had to report it. 
6653. Q. Was that shot drawn or left? A. It was left. 
6654. Q. How close to that shot did you put the second one in? A. From 1 foot to 15 inches. 
6655. Q. Did the shot that went off, as far as you know, light the missed shot too? A. Yes. 
6656, Q. You had a double explosion? A. Yes. 
6657. Q. Did you notice the colour of the flame that leaped out or flared out? Was it reddish? A. No; it 

was a blue light. 
6658. Q. Did not you see any red flame at all? A. No. 
6659. Q. Not when the shot went oft? A. No; I never noticed any red flame. 
6660. Q. Not at all? A. No. Of course I was some distance away from it. It just flashed out of the bord 
round the brattice; and I saw it flash out and heard this rumble and noise. 
6661. Q. What becameof the flame. Let us understand? Was it a long tongue of flame? A. It must have 
been a good flame; it came out about 6 or 7 yards. 
6662. Q. Did it stay like that I A. It stayed like that for some seconds or so. 
6663. Q. What happened then? A. I was half afraid to go back at the time. 
6664. Q. What happened to the flame? A. Then it went out. 
6665. Q. It was only a question of seconds then? A. Yes; something like that. 
6666. Q. Then you went up with your light, I understand, to the face? A. Yes. 
6667. Q. Whereabouts did it light then? A. It was not on that occasion that it lit with my light at all. 
It was in the heading that it lit with my light. 
6668. Q. That is the whole of the flame you saw at that time? A. That is the whole of the flame that I saw 
at that time. 
6669. Q. When was it you first spoke to Sells about it? A. Sells saw that himself. 
6670. Q. That is not what I asked you. When was it you first spoke to Sells about it? A. I spoke to him 
then. I said "That was gas right enough." We went in then afterwards and saw where the coal had 
been turned like vinte, the same as if it had been singed. 
6671. Q. Nothing lit then when you were with Sells? A. No. 
6672. Q. Where was the next occasion? In the same particular place? A. Within about 7 or S yards. We 
were in the heading, driving the opposite way. 
6673. Q. This cut-through was between two headings ; the cut-through where you had the flare? A. We 
were driving the cut-through in to where we were working, to fetch better air. 
6674. Q. And after you had driven the cut-through? A. We were then driving the heading. 
6675. Q. After you had driven the cut-through you went back to the heading? A. Yes. 
6676. Q. And you saw this light again in the heading ? A. In the heading. 

16825 29-2 1 6677. 
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6677. Q. Who were working in the heading '1 You and your brother? A. Yes; only me and my mate. 
6678. Q. Where was Sells? A. He was working in his own bord, going the same way as the heading; but 
there were about 16 yards between the two. 
6679. Q. Was the coal between you and him 1 A. Yes. 
6680. Q. A shot was fired that time; and I understand you to say that there was no flare-up when the shot 
went off I A. Yes; no flare. 
6681. Q. Whereabouts did it light afterwards 1 What particular part? A. I went in afterwards to see 
what the shot had done, just before I sat down to my dinner. 
6682. 9 Where did it light ? A. It lit all over my head, and went down all over the coal that the shot had 
knocked down. 
6683. Q. How far off was the flame? A. I suppose it was 6 or 7 feet high. 
6684. Q. The flame was on the roof above your head; and it came down to the coal that had fallen? A. 'Yes. 
6685, Q. How far did it come from the roof? A. Down on the coal, I suppose 6 feet,. 
6686. Q. There were 6 feet in height of flame? A. Yes. 
6687. Q. And how long over your head? A. It was up to the roof. 
6688. 9. And along the roof ? A. It ran, I suppose, from 2 to 3 yards back from where the face was. 
6689. 9. You said it was round you? A. Yes. 
6690. 9. Was it on your sides too? A. I stepped back out of the way when it lit. 
6691. Q. '\Vlien it lit it came down almost 6 feet, almost to the floor; and it was over your head at toat 
time? A. Yes. 
6692. Q. Was it on your sides at that time? A. Yes ; it was all round me. 
6693. Q. You were a lucky man : were you not burnt? A. No; I got back too quickly out of the way. 
6694. 9. You beat tl.e gas? A. Yes ; of course, I stepped back all at once. 
6695. Q. Did it run back when it lit? Did it run back from the face? A. Yes, where the coal was ; 2 or 
3 yards from the coal. 
6696. Q. Was there any report, any noise, when this lit? A. It gave me such a start I did not take much 
notice of anything else. 
6697. Q. Where was your light when this was first lit? A. I had it in my hand, looking at the shot to see 
what was on the floor; to see what the shot had done. 
6698. Q. How much coal was there on the floor? Three or four tons? A. Yes ; about that. 
6699. Q. Were you goiug to ekamine the coal on the floor that had fallen? A. Yes. 
6703. Q. Were you standing over the coal? A. Just standing like this to see what the shot had done; 
and away it went. 
6701. Q. What did you do then? A. I took off my hat. Of course it was gradually getting smaller; and 
I belted it out with my hat. 
6702. Q. How far back did you step before you began to belt it out with your hat? A. About two yards. 
6703. Q. And it never touched you? A. No ; the flame never hurt me. 
670t. 9. How long was the flame playing 6 feet in height? A. Some few seconds. 
6705. 9. Until you put it out? A. Yes. 
6706. Q. You came back; and you say it lit again? A. Yes; I thought they would not believe me that 
there was gas there. 
6707. Q. Never mind about that. You went away; and when you came back it lit again? A. Yes; I 
went to shew them where it lit. 
6708. Q. What part did it light this time? A. In the face, and all over the coal, in the cracks. 
6709. Q. Was that like a gas-jet burning? A. You could see a little blue light run along the coal, that 
way-(indicating). It burnt away nice and gradual. 
6710. Q. Did you tell all these details to Jnbb or McDonald about this big flame? A. Yes. 
6711. Q. Exactly as you have told us? A. Yes; in fact, I told them it was just the same as if you lit up 
a bag saturated with kerosene. 
6712. Q. Now, let us understand about these places where there was so much smoke; were there many 
people firing shots in that split ? A. Yes; they fired shots in almost every place there. 
6713. Q. Did they fire many during the course of the day? A. Two or three shots in the day sometimes; 
sometimes one. 
6714. Q. How many places were firing shots at that time? A. Sixteen or seventeen places. 
6715. Q. And they might fire two or three shots in their shift? A. Yes. 
6716 9. Is that an unusual amount of firing, as far as you know, in Keira? A. No. 
6717. Q. it is a common thing to have? A. It is a common thing to have them fired in that way. 
6718. Q. To have as many as forty or fifty shots fired in the one split? A. Yes; in fact, you would hear 
them all day long. 
6719. Q. How long did it stay like this, in this smoky condition? A. It was not so bad after I had lit the 
gas. They put up more brattice ; and that used to take it away a little quicker. 
6720. Q. But I underctand there is no gas in this No. 4 District ? A. I never saw any gas there. 
6721. Q. That is where the smoke was so bad, you say? A. The smoke was there every night, if we fired 
the shot ; but we used to try and avoid firing the shot in the shift we prepared it the night before, if we 
could. 
6722. Q. How many days did this continue in this way? A. All the time we were there. 
6723. Q. How long was that? A. Three months. 
6724. Q. it never improved? A. No ; it was ,just the same when we left as when we started. 
6725. Q. Did you see any of the Government Inspectors or the District Inspector? A. We worked there on 
the night shift ; and of course they did not come round in the night. 
6726. Q. There were no Government Inspectors in that place during the night ? A. No. 
6727. 9. What month was this? Just before Christmas? A. This was over twelve months ago. 
6728. 9. With regard to the dust, you said one of these places was damp, where you were thing shots I 
A. The coal was not damp ; but of it sort of damp nature. 
6729. Q. It must have been a bit damp then? A. It was not damp and it was not dry, exactly. You 
could raise the dust theie. You could go along and kick the dust up with your feet. 
6730. 9.  The coal at the face I am talking about. That was damp 1 A. No, it was not damp. It was of 
m sort of a damp nature. - 6731, 
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6731. Q. That will do me if you cannot get any nearer than that. Was it damper than usual? A. No; it 
is always the same. Well, of course, I could not explain. If you were there I could show you the difference 
between the dampness and the very dry coal. It is a very dusty coal altogether. Some parts of the mine 
you see very dusty; in fact, when you go into it the dust would almost choke you. This place was not as 
bad as that. 
6732. Q. What is the nature of the coal there I Is it hard? A. Yes ; it is a hard coal. 
6733. Q. Is that more dusty than the soft coal, or less dusty 1 A. The soft coal, I believe, is the dustiest of 
the lot. 
6734. Q. And this is about the hardest coal in the mine in the Old Straight? A. Yes, pretty well. Mostly 
all were shooting there. 
6735. Now, the dust in the working-place is very different from the dust in a haulage road-is it not? 
A. No; it is a regular fine dust. 
6736. Q. It is much coarser, taking it as a whole? A. 01), no; something about the same. 
6737. Q. You mean to say the dust in the working-place is the same as in the haulage road? A. Yes. 
6738. Q. Just the same? A. Yes. 
6739. Q. No difference? A. No. The horse stirs it up as he goes along the main travelling road. 
6740. Q. And the horse is mainly between the rails? A. Yes. 
6741. Q. The only traffic is the men who are walking in there, and the officials when they come in? A. Yes. 
6742. Q. You have made a statement that it is dangerous to fire a shot in a bord? Do you know anything 
about coal dust; and what kind of dust is dangerous? A. No; I know nothing at all about it. 
6743. Q. So you are going on what you have been told? A. Only what I have heard about the dust causing 
an explosion. 
6744. Q. With regard to the smoke, let us get some idea what it was like. Do you say it was sothick that 
you could not see? So thick that a man would actually trip up? A. Yes; it is in such great volumes of 
smoke all along the road : in fact., the wheeler was always complaining. 
6745. Q. I do not want to know about the wheeler. I want to know about your place. Do you mean to 
say it was so thick that you could not see where you were stepping? A. Yes. 
6746. Q. Even with the naked light? A. Yes. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

6747. Q. What is the name of that wheeler? A. I think his name was Dibden. 
6748. Mr. JVade.] Q. Did you say the smoke was always coming in? A. Yes, every day. 
6749. Q. But whilst you were working did you say the smoke kept coming into your working-place? 
A. Yes ; it had to come right round our face to carry it away. 
6750. Q. Therefore evidently there was a current of air? A. Yes; or it would never get there at all. 
6751. Mi. Bruce Smith.j Q. I understand the air was going directly towards your working-place from a 
number of other working-places down below ;-and the smoke from their shots hai to come past you before 
it got out? A. Yes. 
6752. Q. And it hung about your place? A. Stopped about for hours; in fact, for the whole shift at times. 
6753. Q. And you say this wheeler was constantly complaining of this smoke-Dibden? A. Yes. 
6754. Q. Is he there now? A. Yes; he is there at the present time. 
6755. Q. Do I understand you have never had any experience except in the Mount Keira Mine? A. That 
is all. 
6756. Q. And only five or six yeai-s? A. Yes. 
6757. Q. What other occupation have you followed? A. I have been woiki.ng  in the town here, at the 
grocer's. 
678. Q. Other work, not mining? A. Yes. 
6759. Q. When did you first know that you were coming here as a witness? A. When this gentleman 
came to me and gave me a [fntei.reipted.] 
6760. Q. When the constable came to you and gave you a subpmna I A. Yrs. 
6761. Q. That is yesterday afternoon 1 A. Yes. 
6762. Q. Whom did you inform in the mine that you were coming I A. I was home from work. 
6763. Q. And you have not been back to the mine since? A. No. 
6764. Q. And you have had no conversation with anybody in connection with the mine? A. No; I have 
Md no conversation whatsoever. 
6765. Q. You say that when you went back after firing the shot you found all the smoke hanging about. 
How long was that after the shot had been fired ? A. On each occasion? 
6766. Q. When you informed dcDonald and Jubb? A. There was no smoke hanging about then at all. 
6767. Q. No smoke? A. No. 
6768. Q. How long was it after you had fired the shot before you went back, when this explosion of gas 
took place? A. About four or five minutes. 
6769. Q. And that is about the usual time you remain away, is it not? A. Yes. 
6770. Q. Do I understand you to say you told McDonald distinctly ? A. Yes. 
6771. Q. And you told Jubb? A. Yes I explained it to both of them. 
6772. Q. And you have told me that Jubb said that it was only smoke? A. Yes ; he said the smoke makes 
gas of itself, after firing the shot. He said there is a certain quantity of gas in it. 
6773. Q. He did not seem to believe your statement about gas? A. No ; he did not. 
6774, Q. I understand you told Jubb and McDonald distinctly about it, and described to them what 
occurred? A. Yes. 
6775. Q. Were you in the Mount Keira Mine before the fan was put in? A. There is no fan in Mount 
Keira Mine. 
6776. Q. You say, "I have often complained to the deputies of this smoke coming out from other men." 
Are there any other names, besides those of Jubb and McDonald, to whom you complained? A. No. 
6777. Q. Are there any other deputies there? A. No; there are only two deputies there. 
6778. Q. Jubb is an assistant unier-manager, I understand ? A. Something to that effect I cannot tell 
you what he is. 
6779. Q. You cannot tell me the names of any others to whom you complained? A. No. 

6780. 
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6780. Q. Did you complain to the Manager, Mr. Jones, when he came round on that occasion and tripped 
on the floor? A. No; he came round and said we would not have to fire so much. It was he that 
complained. 
6781. Q. He complained of the smoke? A. Yes; and said he would have to stop so much shooting. 
6782. Q. Did you ever tell him, on that occasion or any other, about the gas you had found there? A. No. 
6783. Q. Did he speak of it to you? A. No. 
6784. Q. About the firing, is the same amount of firing going on in all parts of that mine, or more in that 
part? A. That was the main part of the mine where this firing was mostly done. 
6785. Q. You are firing then every time there? J. Yes; we could not, get the coal without shooting. 
6786. Q. In the other portions of the mine, what proportion of times did you have to fire? A. I am 
working now in a portion where we have not got to fire at all. 
6787. Q. But in that one you had to fire every time? A. Yes. 
6788. Q. And the others had to fire every time? A. Yes. 
6789. Q. How many times did you fire in the day? A. I could fire as much as three shots in the day. 
6790. Q. And how many places were there down below you whose smoke was coming up to you? A. 
About sixteen or seventeen. Of course, I do not know exactly. 
6791. Q. Roughly? A. Yes; I should say there were that many. 
6792. Q. Will you tell me what watering is done in that mine? A. There are pipes laid in; but I have 
never seen it watered ; but as I have been travelling through I have seen the roads wet. 
6793. Q. The road-that is the floor? A. Yes; the haulage road. 
6794. Q. Have you ever seen the sides wetted by water? A. I never took any notice. 
6795. Q. Have you never seen any apparatus for watering, spraying, or anything of the kind? A. No. 
6796. Q. In the whole of your five years? A. Yes. 
6797. Q. When the smoke came up to you from the other places, did any dust come up? A. No; I never 
took any notice of the dust; mostly the smoke. 
6798. Q. You were asked by Mr. Wade whether you did not see a red flame when the shot was fired. 
Would you be in a position to see the flame of the shot when it goes off? A. No; not in the face. 
6799. Q. You would be some distance down, and round a corner? A. Yes. 
6800. Q. You would not expose yourself to the line of the explosion? A. No. 
6801. Q. So that even if there were a red flame from the actual shot you would not see it? A. No; I 
could not see any red flame. 
6802. Q. But what you saw -----I A. Was blue. 
6803. What you saw was what was exposed after you had gone up to see the face after the shot? A. 
Which? 
6804. Q. The blue ? A. Oh, no; while I was up after the shot was fired. 
6805. Q. Then you looked round the corner? A, No; I was standing in the road waiting for the shot to 
go off. 
6806. Q. Supposing the face is where you are; and you come back as far as to me; you would not stand 
here and look at it? A. No; [would come baOk to where you are; and then go up this way. 
6807. Q. Where you were you could not see the face of the place where the shot was? A. Yes. 
6808. Q. How ]on,  would you remain away? A. I would remain away that time, getting on pretty well 
ten minutes. 
6809. Q. It was, then, after that ten minutes that you came up and this explosion of gas took place? A. 
No. 
6810. Q. When? A. I do not know which time you are talking of. 
8811. Q. Did you see the flame come round the corner then? A. Yes. 
6812. Q. How far down had it to come to come round the corner? A. It had to come 6 or 7 yards ; I 
could see the flash, the blue. 
6813. Q. Then you saw it clearly as it came round the corner? A. Yes. 
6814. Q. Is Dibden in this mine now 1 A. Yes. 
6815. Q. Still a wheeler 1 A. Still wheeler. 
6816. Q. Do I understand that ever since this explosion, as you call it, you have still used naked lights; 
and that you still fire your shots with the naked lights? A. Yes. 
6817. Q. But the brattice has been improved? A. The brattice has been improved; yes. 
6818. Q. What was the position of that shot in the face of the coal-down below, or the middle, or high I
A. Where I 'bored the hole? 
6819. Q. The second hole? A. The second hole? 
6820. Q. When the first did not go off? A. I suppose it would be about 3 feet from the roof. 
6821. Q. About half-way up? A. Yes, the second shot. The first was between 2 and 3 feet. 
6822. Q. It is about 6 feet from your roof to the floor? A. About 7. 
6823. Q. And your first shot is put where? A. About 1 foot 9 inches from the roof. 
6824. Q. And your second shot was put in about -1 A. About 3 feet down. 

Examination by Mr. Robertson :- 
6825. Q. Since you reported the firing of this gas to the officials, have any of them shown any ill-feeling 
towards you? A. No; there has been no ill-feeling shown towards me. 
6826. Q. Then you had no hesitation in making a report? A. Not a bit. 
6827. Q. You had no fear of being dismissed or suffering in any way? A. No fear at all. I would not be 
frightened if they put me off to-morrow. 
6828. Q. And you would not hesitate to report to-morrow? A. No. I think there are just as good fish in 
the sea as ever were caught. If I do not get work there, I can somewhere else. 
6829. Q. I think you said that the air from sixteen or twenty places had to pass over your place? A. Yes. 
6830. Q. Therefore, if shot-firing is carried on in every one of those sixteen or twenty places, you would 
have to endure sixteen or twenty times more smoke than the first man would experience? A. Yes. 
6831. Q. And, with the very best ventilation, you must have this smoke from all the other places? A. Yes 
I used to get the smoke. 
6832. Q. You could not avoid it? A. It had to come that way. 
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6833. Q. If there were a hurricane of air that way it is still inevitable that you must have the full benefit 
of all the smoke produced by the shots in that district? A. Yes. 
6834. Q. What ep1osive is used in firing shots? A. Powder. I always use blasting powder. 
6835. Q. What tamping? A. Clay, since the explosion. 
6836. Q. Since what explosion? A. Mount Kembla. 
6837. Q. What before that? A. Anything we could get hold of-the dust off the road, damped. 

Examination by Mr. Ritchie :- 

6838. Q. In that place in No. 4 where you complained of smoke, how far was the last cut-through from the 
place where you were working? A. It was a 4 yards heading; and I drove this place down some certain 
distance, and then I had to come round and put a cut-through in. 
6839. Q. You drove the heading a certain distance, and then came round to put in a cut-through? A. Yes. 

6840. Q. How far was that from the face of the heading? A. I suppose about 40 yards. 
6841. Q. And how far was the brattice carried up from the cut-through towards the face of the heading? 
A. From the cut-through? 
6842. Q. Yes, towards the face of the heading? A. I do not understand exactly what you mean. 
6843. Q. You say now the cut-through would be about 40 yards from the face of the heading which you 
drove up a certain distance after cavilling? A. Yes. 
6814. Q. You cavilled a 4-yard heading? A. Yes. 
6845. Q. You drove it up a certain distance and then you came back into the cut-through? A. Into a bord 
to drive a cut-through into the heading. 
6846. Q. How far was the cut-through which gave you your ventilation from the face of the working of the 
heading? A. The heading was not quite down to where we drove the cut-through. We had to drive back 
over to meet it. 
6847. Q. How far was the other one that was driven previously? A. About 40 yards. 
6848. Q. That was the nearest opening to the face of your heading? A. Yes. 
6849. Q. How far was the brattice? A. The brattice was down to the bord. It was down the 40 yards 
where we broke away from. 
6850. Q. Your ventilation would require to come through this cut-through in order to go up the heading or 
bord? A. Yes; after we had finished the cut-through. 
6851. Q. Can you make a sketch of it? I cannot get the meaning of this? A. [FVitnes8 drewa sketch and 
explained it.] There was a gannon bord down this way; and there was a cut through across here (at right-
an(yles to gannon bord) and our heading went down there (beginning at end of, and at right angles to, the 
cut-through first mentioned, and parallel to the gannon bord). We went down that, way about 35 yards 
(meaning the heading was continued 35 yards from the end of the cut-through). Then, of course, this bord 
(the gannon bord) continued straight on. 
6852. Q. The gannon bord? A. Yes. The gannon bord continued straight on; and we came into the 
gannon bord here (indicating a point in gannon bord about 40 yards from opening of cut-through first 
mentioned) to hole over into this heading. 
6853. Q. What I want to know is what the distance was from that cut-through in the heading to the face 
of the heading? A. The brattice was kept up fairly close in the heading. 
6854. Q. The distance would be between 30 and 40 yards? A. -Yes. 
6855. Q. Your ventilation, of course, went through that cut-through? A. When we worked in the heading 
the ventilation had to come up this (gannon) bord, and then come down (the cut-through) behind the brattice 
into our heading. 
6856. Q. The current would not go through the second cut-through until after you holed I A. No. The 
current of air that was travelling had to go down this gannon bord first (to the end), and then came back 
behind the brattice, and down into our place (through the first mentioned cut-through into the heading) 
and then it went round the brattice and down to the other men. 
6857. Q. The ventilating current came up this gannon bord, up to the face of the gannon bord, and down 
the side of the canvas, through this cut-through, and up this side into your heading? A. To the face of 
our heading. 
6858. Q. I take it you drove to the point where you thought you would hole, before you stopped I A. No; 
we did not. He marked us off too soon. We did not meet the heading when we drove the second cut-
through there. 
6859. Q. They stopped the heading really before you were up to the distance for the cut-through. A. Yes. 
6860. Q. How far was the brattice carried from the end of the cut-through to your heading towards the 
face? A. It used to be kept up fairly. Of course, at one time the Inspector came in when we were in this 
heading; and he said it would be as well to put over a cut-through. 
6861. Q. What would be the distance then? How far would the brattice be from the face of your heading 
when you were complaining about the smoky conditions? A. I suppose it would be about 3 or 4 yards. 
6862. Q. And was the smoke thicker at the face than on the outside of the canvas? [Witness did not answer.] 
6863. Q. You see you have 3 or 4 yards where you have no canvas? A. Yes. 
6864. Q. Was the volume of smoke thicker there? A. Oh, yes. Sometimes we would go in to fill the skip, 
and we would have to grope to feel where the coal was. 
6805. This is at the face of the workings? A. Yes. 
6866. Q. Was it clearer some way back? A. Some distance back; a long way back. 
6867. Q. When you complained of that smoke, did they make any attempt to increase the ventilation? A. 
Yes; put the brattice up. 
6868. Q. Did that make any difference? A. It did not make a great deal of difference ; but, once the Inspector 
came round, they turned us out and told us to put in this cut-through. 
6869. Q. Could you feel the current? A. No. 
6870. Q. Did it cause any deflection of your light at all? A. Of course, your light would be still ; but if 
you put it at the brattice you might see it flutter a little bit. 
6871. Q. Behind the brattice? A. Yes. 
6872. Q. What would be the distance between the brattice and the side of the heading--about 18 inches? 
A. Yes, about that. 
6873. Q. And you could just see a little flicker then? A. Yes. 6874. 
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6874. Q. If you put a light behind the brattice, the distance between the brattie and the rib side being 
about 18 inches, you would get a slight deflection of your light, a flicker? A. Yes. 
6875. Q. This continued during the whole currency of the quarter-the smoky condition of the place? 
A. When we drove the second cut-through, of course, they ventilated it after we had the explosion, and it 
took the smoke away much quicker. 
6876. Q. But you did not have an explosion in this place? A. No. The smoke was there all the time. 
6877. Q. Did you ever complain to Mr. Jones himself when he came in about the ventilation? A. No; I 
never spoke to Mr. Jones about it. I thought it was quite sufficient to speak to the deputy. 
6878. Q. Did you regard the ventilation there as deficient? A. Not enough air? 
6879. Q. Yes? A. I know there was not enough air there. 
6880. Q. And I think you told us you complained to the deputy;-you were working in this place at 
night? A. No; it was No. 4. This is in the Old Straight you are talking about now, is it not? 
6881. Q. You have told us here that the smoky conditions were in No. 4? A. Yes; are you talking of 
No. 4 now? 
6882. Q. Yes. No. 4 is where you had the smoky conditions? A. I had it in both places. 
6883. Q. Now, we will take you to the place where you were working at night? A. That is over twelve 
months ago. 
6884. Q. That was in the Old Straight? A. No; No. 4. 
6885. Q. Very well, No. 4. Did you have smoke to complain of there also? A. Well, of course, I never 
saw anybody there very much, only the night deputy. 
6886, Q. Were the conditions smoky there at night? A. 01), yes; the day-shift men were complaining 
terribly about it. 
6887. Q. And did you have these smoky conditions at night? A. Oh, yes; there were only six or seven 
men working there at night, and the horses. 
6888. Q. And after firing a shot, did you have the smoke with you all night? A. Yes. 
6889. Q. Did you complain of that also? A. No; I never complained of it there. 
6890. Q. You are talking of the No. 4 now? A. Yes. 
6891. Q. Where you were working at night? A. Yes. 
6892. Q. Did you complain about that also-about the smoky conditions there at night? A. Iso; I never 
complained of it there. 
6893. Q. How far was the brattice off the face in that place? A. Sometimes it would be 8 or 9 yards. 
6894. Q. Did not you complain to the night deputy? A. No. I thought there was enough complaint 
about it in the day. If they could not improve it for the men in the day, I thought it was no use my 
complaining, and they could not improve it for me at night.. 
6895. Q. There were less men working at night; and you thought it would be clearer at night? A. Yes. 
6896. Q. Who was the deputy on that occasion? A. Richardson. 
6897. Q. Did he see these smoky conditions? A. Yes. 
6898. Q. Did he ever pass any remark about it at all? A. Not that I remember. 
6899. Q. Did he on any occasion put any brattice on 1 A. Yes; he used to put up the brattice. 
6900. Q. That was part of his work, I suppose? A. Yes. 
6901. Q. Was he the examining deputy for the places for the day-shift men? A. No; he was the night 
deputy. 
6902. Q. And who made the examination of the places for the day-shift men? A. Jubb. He was a deputy 
at that time. 
6903. Q. Did he come in during the time you were working your shift? A. No; I never saw him at all 
for the three months. Of course, I was on in the night; and he was on in the day. 
6904. Q. Now, getting to the place where you had this flare-up of gas, did the deputies visit the place there 
every day? A. Yes; Deputy McDonald was there every day. 
6905. Q. Did he carry a safety-lamp or a flare-lamp in the daytime? A. Sometimes the safety, aiid 
sOetimes the flare-lamp. 
6906. Q. After having reported this gas, did he generally make an examination when he called in every 
day? A. Yes; he generally made an ekaminaton. 
6907. Q. What did he do? A. Put the lamp up to the roof. 
6908. Q. The flare-lamp? A. No, the safety-lamp. 
6909. Q. Did he fire the cut ;-did you do any cutting there? A. No. 
6910. Q. He lifted his lamp to the roof and looked for the gash A. Y. 
6911. Q. Did he do that in every case? A. I think so. 
6912. Q. And he came in regularly every day? A. Yes. 
6913. Q. How far was the brattice off the working face in the place where you had this gas lit? A. I date 
ay it would be 4 or 5 yards-something like that. 

6914. Q. After having ]it and complained of that gas, was the brattice carried in closer? A. Yes; it was 
drawn up within about 6 or 7 feet then. 
6915. Q. Was it carried up any distance afterwards? A. No. Of course, I did not work in it a long time 
afterwards. After that there was a little spare brattice; and I would tack it up myself-like-to fetch it 
in closer to the face. 
6916. Q. What part of the mine are you working in now? A. Daylight. 
6917, Q. What is the state of ventilation there at the present time? A. There is good ventilation there. 
6918. Q. And all your complaints appear to be directed towards the straight section of the workings? 
A. Yes. 
6919. Q. That is, bad ventilation? A. Yes. 
6920. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did you ever tell Richardson whether you found gas there? A. That is over 
twelve months ago, when I worked for Richardson, and I never thought of gas. Gas was not in my head 
at all. 
6921. hr. Ritchie.] Q. You had not seen gas when you were working under Richardson? A. No. 
6922. Mr. Wade.] Q. Where you found the smoke was bad in No. 4, did you do any cutting there? A. No. 
6923. Q. You relied upon the powder to get your coal down? A. Yes; of course, we did not fire a great 
many shots there; it was a good place. 
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6024. Mr. Lysaght.] He did not give the name of the Inspector who ordered the cut-through. 
6925. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Who was the Inspector who suggested the cutthrough? A. I do not know his name. 
6926. Q. Is it the Inspector who is going round at present? A. Yes. 
6927. Q. Mr. Watson? A. I think so. 
6928. Q. Or Mr. Bates? A, No; Mr. Watson. 

[Witness left.] 

Mn. ALFRED GLEESON was sworn, and examined as under :-

Examination by Mr. Lysaght 

6929. Q. What is your name? A. Michael Alfred Gleeson. 
6930. Q. What are you? A. A miner in Mount Keira. 
6931. Q. How long have you worked in Keira? A. I have been at Keira a couple of times. I was there 
some time ago for about twelve or eighteen months; and the last time I went back I have been there a 
little over two years. 
6932. Q. Have you worked in any other pit besides Keira? A. No only Keira. 
6933. Q. Have you discovered gas at any time in Keira.? A. Yes, I have. 
6934. Q. Take the occasions separately, and tell me the particulars ? A. The first time I saw gas there we 
had lit a shot and had gone out into another bord ; and after the shot went we heard a terrible drumming 
noise-I thought it was the roof falling in, myself ; and some of them said it was the powder going off. I 
did not know what it was. 
6935. Q. How long ago was that? A. That must be about two months ago, I think. It may be a little more. 
6936. Q. After that? What happened after this drumming noise? A. We saw the flash from where we 
were standing : we saw the flash of light. 
6937. Q. Where did the flash come into? A. From the cut-through we were driving; it flashedout intothebord. 
6938. Q. How far out into the bord did it come? A. It did not come far. It just flashed, so that we 
could just nicely see it. 
6939. Q. What was the colour of the flash? A. That I could not say. I did not take much notice. 
6940. Q. What did you do after you saw this flash? A. When it topped we went back to see what was 
the matter, and went in to look; and the shot had knocked the coal down all right. We went up towards 
the face, and we saw the coal all like as if it had been singed. 
6941. Q. Did anything happen after that? A. No; nothing particular just about that time. We went on 
working as usual. 
6942. Q. When was the next occasion you saw gas? A. I suppose it would be, perhaps, a fortnight or 
three weeks after that again, as near as I could say. I could not say for certain. We lit a shot, and we 
both walked out into the other bord; and, about five minutes after it went off, my mate went into the 
bord, and I went and sat down and had a bit of lunch ; and I was not long in there when he came running 
up and said, "I have lit her up"; and I, and Mr. Sells, and another young fellow named Preece, ran in to 
see. When we got there he told us he had belted it out with his hat; and we said, " Where did you light 
her"? And he said, "Over there " ; and he was just holding up his light for us to see and she lit up again. 
6943. Q. When she lit up again how far was his light off the face of the coal? A. Somewhere about 2 
yards, I should think. 
6944. Q. And what part lit first? The face of the coal, or the roof, or what? A. Well, the coal, you see, 
had blown oil' about half-way up, and there was a roof underneath it; and it seemed to be underneath that 
that it went; and the flame seemed to die out up in a crack, up behind that again. 
6945. Q. How long did this gas remain alight? A. When we saw it then? 
6946. Q. Yes? A. Oh, about two or three seconds, that is all. 
6947. Q. And did it burn itself out, or did he put it out? A. It burnt itself out. 
6948. Q. Do you know whether any report was made about that? A. Yes. 
6949. Q. To whom? A. We told the wheeler. 
6950. Q. Who told the wheeler? A. My brother. 
6951. Q. What is the name of the wheeler? A. Harold Dibden. 
6952. Q. And after that? A. He went out and told the deputy, or under-manager, whatever he may ba 
termed. 
6953. Q. Who came in? A. Mr. J'ubh. 
6954. Q. What is Jubh? A. I think he is under manager. 
6955. Q. What did he say I A. He came in, and he looked for gas, and appeared as though he could not 
find it. 
6956. Q. What did you tell him? A. We told him that the gas had lit up; and he said, "Where?" and 
we showed him where; and he put his lamp to it; and he appeared as though he could not find any gas at all. 
6957. Q. What sort of a lamp had you? A. I think you call it a Davy lamp. 
6958. Q. What did lie say? A. He said he could not find any gas. He looked all over the roof, and about 
the coal with the lamp ; and then he asked us to bore a hole. So we bored a fresh hole on the opposite 
side of the face ; and when we had finished the hole he put his lamp up to the hole, and he said, "Oh, 
there is nothing worth speaking about." 
6959. Q. Did you notice what effect there was on the lamp? Were you watching it closely? A. No; I 
could not tell. I do not understand that business at all. 
6960. Q. You do not know how to detect gas with the lamp? A. No. 
6961. Q. Did you notice a small blue cap come on to the top of the lamp, on the top of the flame I A. No; 
1 did not notice it at all. 
6962. Q. Did McDonald come in too? A. Yes; and lie was there when Juhb was trying for the gas. 
6963. Q. Did he say anything I A. He said it must have been the smoke. "The smoke," lie said, ''composes 
gas ; and it must have been the smoke." 
6964. Q. Was there any smoke there at all when lie said it must have been the smoke A There was no 
smoke when we went back. 
6965. (, There was no smoke when it lit? A. No smoke when it lit. 
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6966. Q. Was there any other occasion when you discovered gas? A. Yes; there was another occasion 
just a few days afterwards. I went in after we had fired a shot; and it lit, and burnt out itself. It only 
lasted about five seconds. 
6967. Q. How long was it after the shot had been fired before you went in? A. Fully five minutes. 
6968. Q. And how long did it light on that occasion? A. It had just blown about half way up again ; and 
I was going up with my lamp, and saw all the coal lying on the floor, and went up to tap it with my pick 
to see whether it was safe to go near it or not ; and as I did so the flame caught my light. 
6969. Q. Where was your light? A. On my head. 
6970. Q. Then the flare lit the gas from the roof? A. It must have : but it ran down underneath. 
6971. Q. Did it burn long? A. About four or five seconds. 
6972. Q. Did you make any report about that? A. When the deputy came in I told him about it. 
6973. Who? A. Mr. McDonald. 
6974. Q. What did he say? A. He said it must be the smoke after the shot. He examined for gas and 
could not find any; and he said "There is no gas here now." 
6975. Q. Did you say anything to him? A. I said to him, "It is peculiar how smoke would light like that." 
I said, "It was a blue light." I said it put me in mind of my papa when he would be burning spirit over 
a pudding at Christmas time. 
6976. Q. Was there any smoke there on that occasion when you lit it the third time? A. No. 
6977. Q. Was there any other occasion? A. No. 
6978. Q. Have you ever had a safety-lamp in your hand to use? A. No. 
6979. Q. Do you fire your own shots? A. Yes. 
6980. Q. Is there any dust about when you fire these shots? A. At that time there was not; but at other 
times I have been in places where I could hardly see for the dust. 
6981. Q. Was this before you fired shots, or after? A. We were not allowed to fire shots there. They 
stopped us. This was while we were working -[fnterrupted,] 
6982. Q. Do you know why you were not allowed to fire shots? A. No. 
6983. Q. Who stopped you i The deputy. 
6984. Q. Did you ask him why? A. I do not think we did ask him why. 
6985. Q. Had you any reasons for not asking him? A. Well, the dust was so bad that we came to the 
conclusion ourselves that the dust was the cause of his stopping us. It was terribly dusty. 
6986. Q. And how long had it been terribly dusty and you firing shots? A. I think about a few weeks 
before the explosion-just about that time, with the worry we had, we got out of our reckoning. 
6987. Q. You think it was a few weeks before the Kembla explosion? A. Yes. 
6988. Q. And was it after the Kembla explosion that he stopped you firing the shots? A. Yes 
6989. Q. Can you tell me where that place was in Keira? A. It was what they call "Up the Jump." 
6990. Q. What district? A. In the Jump District. 
6991. Q. What number? A. The number of the place we were working then I really could not say. 
6992. Q. Do you know whether the firing was stopped because it raised the dust, or because of the danger 
from the lust that was there. 
6993. Mr. Wade.] That is only guess-work. 
6994. Mr. Lysaglet.] Q. How long had this shot-firing been going on, with the dust there, before the 
explosion? A. Well, you see we had cavilled the place a few weeks before the explosion; and we had only 
fired about two or three shots in it, because it did not need much firing. 
6995. Q. When you fired the shots, did any of the dust light at all? A. I did not see any light. 
6996. Q. Did you know it was dangerous to fire shots, with dust about like that? A. I had no idea it was. 
6997. Q. Was any water put about that dust while you were firing shots? A. No. 
6998. Q. Was water put anywhere where you were firing a shot in Keira? A. No. 
6999. •Q. And, now, is there any dust in the place where you are working? A. No; no dust. 
7000. Q. Is it watered there? A. No we never shoot. 
7001. Q. Is it a damp part of the mine? A. It is rather inclined to be damp. It is near to the surface. 
7002. Q. Are there many dusty places in Keira like what you speak of? A. Well, I have not worked in 
many myself. 
7003. Q. Do you know whether there are many? A. There are a few. We have been winning in a few 
places where it has been dusty. 
7004. Q. Have you ever had any of them watered? A. Not to my knowledge. I have seen them watering 
in the main road ; but, in this particular place where we had so much dust, it was up a very steep place 
and they could not get the water up to it. 
7005. You do not know whether they ever tried? A. I believe they tried. The horse could not pull the 
water.tub up. 
7006. Q. And then, when the horse could not pull the water-tub up, they just let it rip ? A. Yes; and 
stopped at the main headings. 
7007. Q. What sort of ventilation was it in these places where you were-good air or bad air? The air 
was pretty good in that place. 
7008. Have you worked in places where the air has not been good? A. Yes. 
7009. Q. Where? A. In No. 4 section. 
7010. Q. What do you say about that? A. We were there on the night shift in one quarter; and you 
could sit down, and the perspiration would teem off you sitting down. 
7011. Q. What for? A. It was so hot. 
7012. Q. Was there anything else, besides the heat of the air, objectionable? A. Yes; there was the 
smoke, when we fired a shot. When we first went in the smoke would be there, and would be there when 
we went out sometimes, and would never leave. 
7013. Q. And did not you do anything yourself to shift that smoke? A. We would take our shirts and fan 
it that way. 
7014. Q. Ventilation by the shirt? A. It would not shift it much. 
7015. Q. Did you make any complaint about those conditions? A. We have said to the night boss that it 
was very hot down there, and the air was not travelling much. 
7016. Q. Whom was that to? I. Mr. I%ielmardson. 

7017. 
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7017. Q. And what did he do or say? A. He said the furnace man had the furnace in good order, when he 
was round there. We thought it was the furnace man had gone to sleep. 
7018. Q. You were satisfied from what he said that the furnace man was awake? A. Yes. 
7019. Q. Is that the only explanation he gave you? A. That is about all he said. 
7020. Q. How many roads out of Keira do you know? A. Four. Three that we are allowed to travel: 
and the other that we are not. 
7021. Q. Could you find your way out on this other one that you are not allowed to travel? A. Oh yes, I 
could. It is the tunnel-mouth. 
7022. Q. Now, is there anything else you want to say about the conditions of the ventilation at Keira? A. No. 
7023. Q. Did you ever see Mr. Jones in this smoky place? A. Yes, 
7024. Q. Did he make any remark about the smoke? A. Oh no; I never saw him in the smoky place. 
7025. Q. Where did you see him? A. In the dusty place. 
7026. Q. Did he say anything about the dust? A. He said it was very dusty. It made him cough a little 
when he first came in, as we were just filling a skip. 
7027. Q. Did he say anything about shifting you? A. He told us to put a cut-through over as soon as possible. 
7028. Q. At that time how far was the cut-through away? A. I think it was pretty close to 50 yards. 
7029. Q. And what about the brattice? A. The brattice was kept up pretty well. They kept the brattice up 
pretty fair-not as well as they kept it up after, though. 
7030. Q. You mean after the explosion in Kembla? A. After the explosion. 
7031. Q. Have the conditions improved at Keira since the explosion? A. Wonderfully. 
7032. Q. At the present time are you getting enough air ; or is there smoke hanging about your place still? 
A. Where I am at present there is any amount of air. We get the first current of air that comes into the mine. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith :- - 
7033. Q. You knew nothing, I suppose, about coming here yesterday afternoon? A. Not the slightest. 
7034. Q. You were never asked to come? A. No. 
7035. Q. You simply got a subpmna when you came here? A. When I came home from work I got a 
subpmna. 
7036. Q. And you have not been to the mine since? A. No. 
7037. Q. You have spoken of a dusty place, and a smoky place, and a place in which you saw gas? A. Yes. 
7038. Q. How do you describe the one which you call smoky-whióh part of the mine? A. In No. 4 section. 
7039. Q. And the place that was dusty? A. In the Jump section. 
7040. Q. And the place where you saw this gas on two occasions l A. On the Old Straight section. 
7041. Q. They are all different places? A. All different sections. 
7042. Q. And I understand that, upon two occasions on which you saw gas, it was five minutes after the 
shot had gone off? A. Yes, 
7043. Q. That is to say, you had heard the shot ; so that there was no doubt that it was not the shot which 
you saw? A. No. 
7044. Q. But it was five minutes afterwards? A. Yes. - 
7045. Q. And, when you saw the light come round the corner, might that have been the light coming from 
the shot-a red light? A. It lasted too long. I cannot see that the powdt'r would last so long, it was 

-such a thumping noise, for a long time. 
7046. Q. How long did it last? A. It lasted a few seconds. 
7047. Q. Do you know there were two charges to go off on one of those occasions? A. Yes; there were. 
7048. Q. In your opinion, would that have accounted fcr what you saw? A. Well, at the time I thought 
perhaps that may have been the case. 
7049. Did you notice any difference, in the colour of the flame that came round the corner, from the usual 
flame? I suppose you have often seen the light come round the corner from a shot when you have got out 
of the way? A. No; never. 
7050. Q. You have never seen it before? A. No. 
7051. Q. Then this is an entirely new experience, to see the light coming round the corner in that way? A. Yes. 
7052. Q. When you got back after the shot, and saw the colour of the coal, what colour was it? A. It 
seemed to be whitish. 
7053. Q. Have you talked these matters over with your brother before you came here? A. Well, we had 
not much talk about it. Of course, when I got the subpmna I asked him did he get a subpcena; and he 
told me "yes." 
7054. Q. But have you talked these matters over as to what evidence you were going to be asked for? A. No. 
7055. Did you know what you were going to be asked about? A. No; I did not. 
7056. Q. Until when? A. Until I came to the Court. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade :- 
7058. Q. You had no idea? A. Well, only just from knowing -[Interrupted.] - 
7057. Q. Did you know you were going to be asked some questions about seeing gas? A. No; I did not. 
7059. Q. Knowing what? A. That Mr. Sells was at the Court; and when I got the subpmna I surmised 
that that must be what brought me here. I could not see what else it would be. 
7060. Q. And you asked nobody? A. No. - 
7061. Q. How much of the coal do you say was white? A. Oh, just round the back, the coal up near the top. 
7062. Q. You mean along the face? A. Yes, along the face, and a little bit along the rib too. It was not 
a great lot of white. - 
7063. Do you say that was a sign of singeing? A. Yes, it appeared to me to be so. 
7064. Q. How often do. you know of the deputy being told there was gas in this place? A. He knows we 
have told him about seeing gas twice ; and we have told him about this other occurrence too. 
7065. Q. How often did he examine the place? A. Every day. 
7066. Q. Did you say be made some special examination after you reported? A. Yes. - 
7067. Q. How often did he do that? A. Only the once. 
7068. Q. You have told us of twice at all events ;-you say he came in on one occasion, and asked you to 
bore a hole? A. That was on the same day. I call that all the one examination. 
7069. Q. On one occasion he specially examined the hole you had bored in the face? A. Yes. 
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7070. Q. And on another occasion he made an examination, when you told him there had been gas, did not 
he ;-you say you saw it three tiotes? A. Oh yes. When I saw it myself, McDonald examined; but that 
was only on his usual every day examination. 
7071. Q. And who was it examined the hole that was bored? A. Mr.. Jubb. 
7072. Q. Was McDonald there then? A. Yes. McDonald was there. 
7073. Q. Did you say that Jones was never in this place where the smoke was bad? A. I never saw him 
there. It was on the night-shift I was working then. 
7071. Q. Who was working there with you ? A. My brother. 
7075. Q. Did you go in at the same time? A. Yes. 
7076. Q. Did you come out together? A. Yes. 
7077. Q. Did he tell you to stop using so much powder? A. He never told us that. 
7078. Q. Are you sure of that? A. Yes. 
7079. Q. Was any complaint mache of your using too much powder? A. Yes; by Mr. Richardson, when we 
were firing shots in some loose coals there one night. I do not know whether he told it to us that we 
were using too much powder; or to some other men, and the other men told us. 
7080. Q. Did he complain of your using too much powder on this occasion 1 A. No. 
7081. Q. Did you use less powder after that? A. No. 
7082. Q. What do you mean when you say you fired shots among loose coal? A. He seemed to think we 
should get it without shots there. 
7083. Q. You did not do any cutting there, did you I A. Yes; we used to do a little cutting there. 
7084. Q. How deep did you go? A. According to the holing. If I had 2 feet of holing, I would do 2 
feet of cutting. If I had 3 feet of holing, I would do 3 feet of cutting. 
7085. Q. How used you to do? A. Generally shoot it. 
7086. Q. That is easier? A. That is easier in one sense. 
7087. Q. It is all the same to you ;-you get paid just the same? A. Yes, 
7088. Q. Now, did not Mr. Jones complain to you that you used too much powder? A. Not to us; meyer 
heard of it until this day. 
7089. Q. And you never saw the smoke so thick that Mr. Jones could not find his way, and tripped, or 
anything like that? A. I believe I did on one occasion. 
7090. Q. Did notJones then tell you you were using too much powder? A. No. He told the man in thenextbord. 
7091. Q. He never told you? A. We were present. My mate was just arguing the point there with him 
about something. 
7092. Q. Did lie tell you and your mate that you were using too much powder 1 A. No. 
7093. Q. Was not he speaking to you? A. He was speaking to the men in the other bord, and told them 
not to fire any more shots, except at knock-off time. 
7094. Q. Did he give any reason for that? A. Not that I know of, except that he hurt his toe when he 
kicked it. 
7095. Do you think that is why lie told them not to fire a shot I A. Yes. 
7096. Q. Because he hurt his toe? A. Yes; he could not see for the smoke. 
7097. Q. And that is the reason he told them not to fire the shots? A. Yes. 
7098. Q. Is that the place where the (lust was bad? No. 
7099. Q. Was the smoke so thick as all that-that he could not see where to put his feet? A. It was. I 
have seen the smoke so thick that -[Tnterrupted[. 
7100. Q. I am not asking what you have seen. I am asking was it so on that occasion I A. Yes; the 
smoke was very thick on that day. 
7101. Q. What was the size of the flame that lit when your brother pointed it out to you I A. He had been 
in himself, before. 
7102. Q. He had been in, and he told you that the place had lit; then he went back and pointed out where 
it was lit., and it lit again. A. Yes. 
7103. Q. How much flame was there then? A. There was a flare just lit up, about the size of a bucket 
under the coal, and gradually went away there. 
7104. Q. Did not it spread to the roof? A. No; it did not go to the roof at all. It went under this - 
[Interrupted.] 
7105. Q. It just went in straight? A. Yes. [The witness then retired.] 

CLIFFORD HAMMON was sworn, and examined as under 

(This witness was called by the Commission, who asked Mr. Bruce Smith, as a matter of convenience, to 
conduct his examination-in-chief) :- 

Examination by Mr. Bruce Smith 
7106. Q. What is ycur name I A. Clifford Hammon. 
7107. Q. What are you? A. A wheeler. 
7108. Q. And you were engaged in the Mount Kembla Mine at the time of the explosion? A. Yes. 
7109. Q. As a wheeler? A. Yes. 
7110. Q. What part of the mine did you do your work in? A. No. 1 5th Right. 
7111. Q. Just tell me what happened to you when the explosion took place? A. I was sitting down at the 
time of the explosion. 
7112. Q. Whereabouts? A. Where I was wheeling on the flat. 
7113. Q. I would like you to show me that ;-I suppose you understand a simple .plan of the mine I A. 
Yes. (looking at map), I was sitting here. This was No. 90. 
7114. (2. You were ettiug by the cut-through I A. Here ; yes. 
7115. Q. That is the first cut-through beyond the 5th Right rope-road? A. Yes, 
7116. Q. You were at the mouth of time cut-through? A. Yes. 
7117. Q. Which side of the bord were you sitting? A. On the right-hand side. going lrs. 
7118. Q. That is about your position (indicating position on map)? A. Yes. 
7119. Q. Which side of the cut-through? A. The outbye side. 
7120. Q You were sitting down 1-doing what-having lunch? A. Doing nothing. 7121. 
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7121. Q. What happened? What did you hear, or see, or feel I A. The first thing I heard was just like a 
rumbling noise, and like at the same instant a gust of wind came, and hot (lust. 
7122. Q. From what direction I A. From either the main tunnel or the travelling road. 
7123. 9. Do you mean the travelling road behind you ? A. Yes ; down below. 
7121. 9. Do you mean coining into No. 1 1 A. Going up the rope; yes. 
7125. 9. You felt a gust of wind ;-you are eFear as to the direction you felt it;-what way was it going? 
A. This way-(Tnd'icatiny) 
7126. Q. We will call that an easterly direction. 
7127. His loner.] I understand you were in the bord a little way 1 A. Yes. 
7128. Q. And it would come up the bord to you? A. Yes, 
7129. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. It came up this way, then, f rom the south? A. Yes. 
7130. 9. Now, that is immediately after the rumbling? A. Yes. 
7131. 9. Was there anything else with the wind ;-any dust or smoke? A. There waa any amount of dust 
there-fine dust like soot. I was covered in that ; and it was hot. 
7132. Q. What did it do to you ;-what efl'ect had it on you? A. It blew me from where I was sitting t 

about 5 yards away. 
7133. Q. It really moved ycu bodily ? A. Yes. 
7134. His honor.] Q. Rolled you over ? A. Blew me straight out. 
7133. Mr. Bruce 'mith.] Q. As you sat ? A. Yes. 
7136. 9. Shifted you as you sat? A. Yts. 
7137. 9. And you found yourself 5 yards away ? A. Yes. 
7138. 9. Were you banged against the wall or the rib? A. No ; straight in the middle of the road, like, as 
soon as it eased up. 
7139. 9. Were you knocked about? A. A little bit. My ears and the back of my neck were scorched. 

7140. His Honor.] Q. On the left side? A. Yes ; on this side -_-__(t/ie left indicated). 

7111. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Were you facing the opposite side of the bord at that time, when you were 
sitting down 1 A. I was sitting on the left-hand side, and looking straight across. 
7142. Q. At the rib-side I A. Yes. 
7143. 9. \Vliat happened after you were blown 5 yards? A. As soon as I got my senses a bit I sang out. 
7114. 9. Were you unconscious from the fom'ce of the wind ? A. No ; dazed like. 
7145. 9. What did you sing out? A. I sang out for some miners to come down to where I was. 
7146. 9. The names of the miners? A. Laidlaw and McKinlay. 
7147. 9. Did they come down immediately? A. Yes. After they came down I said to them-they 
wanted to know what had happened-I did not know. I said, "Come down here and have a look at tho 
horse." The horse was lying down. 
7148. Q. Where was the horse when you were sitting down? A. Just below me, between inc and the main 
rope road, at the feed-box. 
7149. 9. Which way was lie placed? A. He was faced inbyc. 
7130. 9. His head was up towards you ? Yes, looking up towards the bord. 
7151. 9. What happened to him? A. The last I saw of him he was lying down on the side of the road, 
avlien we left there. 
7152. 9. That is when you said, " Come down and have a look at the horse" I A. Yes. 
7153. 9. You,couicl not see the horse then from where you were sitting? A. Before the explosion. 
7154. 9. After the explosion? A. Oh, no. 
7155. 9. How far down would he be? A. Five or 6 yards. 
7136, 9. You had gone up to nieet these men? Yes. 
7157. Q. And you said, "Come down and have a look at the horse "1 A. Yes. 
7158. Q. How did you find the horse placed? A. Lying down. 
7159. 9. In the same place where you left him? A. He was shifted across the road, and lying down amorgst 

the timber. 
7160. Q. And outbye of where lie had been, or inbye? A. Inbye. 
7161. Q. He had been driven in the same direction as you? A. Yes. 
7162. 9. Only he was driven across the herd? A. Yes. 
7163. 9. And as near as you can say lie had been driven 10 yards? A. Yes. 
7161. 9. When he was standing feeding had he harness on? A. Yes. 
7163. 9. Had he harness on when you saw luni lying down? A. Yes; just the same. 
7166. 9. Was lie knocked about? A. We never stopped to see. As soon as we had a look at him, Laidlaw 
said, " He is dead ; let's get out of this." And we went then. 
7167. Q. Which way did you go out? A. We went straight out of No. 90, until we came to a cutthrough, 
and straight out of that. 
7168. 9. You went up bord No. 90, and then out by the daylight tunnel? A. Yes. 

7169. 9. Had McKinley and Laidlaw anything to say about it then ;_had they experienced anything? 
A. No; only a gust of wind like-just wind. 
7170. 9. And you simply went out? A. Yes. 
7171. Q. Did you see anybody else? A. Oh, we saw about twenty or twenty-five miners going out. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade: 

7172. Q. How long after you first heard the rumbling did you get blown away? A. The shock came almost 

the same instant. 
7173. Q. Do I understand that you were facing sideways on to this gust as it came up? A. Yes; side- 

ways on. 
7171. 9. Which side was towards the gust? A. The left. 
7175. Q. Did you see any flame? A. No. 
7 17 6. Q. No flanme or fire 1 l. I shut lily eyes as soon as it started to come. 
7177. Q. When you were first conscious of it coming, what did you see then 1 A. I did not see anything, 

only a black cloud. 
7178. 9. You did not see any red cloud? 11. No; no red. 

7179. 
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7179. Q. I suppose you discovered afterwards this black cloud was dust? A. That was dust and smoke. 
7180. Q. Now, was this very hot? A. Yes; red hot. 
7181. Q. You say there was no flame? A. Well, it would burn you wherever it touched you. Of course it 
was not red. 
7182. Q. But still it was hot enough to burn you? Yes. 
7183. Q. What were you, working in? A. Just in pants and short-sleeved shirt. 
7184. Q. Did it have any effect on the exposed parts of your body or arms? A. Just like a scorching.. 
7185. Q. It scorched you? A. It scorched me wherever I had no clothes on. 
7186. Q. What effect did it afterwards have on your skin? A. None. Afterwards I was all right. 
7187. Q. What about your skin afterwards? A. The skin all came off where it got scorched. 
7188. Q. That is the outside skin? A. Yes. 
7189. Q. That is wherever you were scorched? A. Just like it comes off when you are sunburnt; yes. 
7190. Q. Now, did you see some of those men who were dead afterwards? A. Yes. 
7191. Q. Did you see any skin come off any part of their body? A. Yes. 
7192. Q. Did it come off in the same way as it came off yours? A. No; it was worse. 
7193. Q. In what way was it worse? Do you mean there was more of it? A. More of it; and burnt 
worse, like. 
7194. Q. But what was burnt! A. All their body was burnt. 
7195. Q. Do you mean that there was more of the body burnt than in your case? A. Yes. 
7196. Q. Did you see the skin hanging loose, having come off their arms; A. Yes; I saw the skin all 
shrivelled up on them ; and they were burnt so that you could hardly tell them. 
7197. Q. And were their arms very black? A. Yes. 
7198. Q. And I suppose you were very black too? A. Oh; I was black. 
7199. What became of your lamp or your capL?  A. I kept them; they were on my head. 
7200. Q. They were not blown off? A. No; the lamp was fastened in the cap. 
7201. Q. I suppose the lamp was alight? A. Yes; the cotton wick got levelled off just like as if it was 
cut off with a knife. 
7202. Q. The part that was outside the spout 1 A. Yes. 
7203. Q. Was levelled with what? Levelled with the edge of the spout? A. Yes. 
7204. Q. Did you examine your horse at any time afterward to see if he was singed? A. I looked at him 
afterwards. He did not appear any the worse for it. 
7205. Q. He is alive now, and working? Yes; I am working with him now. 
7206. Q. Did you examine him to see whether the hairs under the jaw were singed or not? A. No; I just 
stood at a distance and looked at him in the stable. 
7207. Q. And then you went away from Kembla, I understand? A. Yes; I went to Newcastle. 
7208. Q. And you did not see him until you came back? A. No. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Lysaght: 

7209. Q. What made you come back from Newcastle? A. I expect because I liked this better than 
Newcastle. 
7210. Q. Did anyone write for you to come back? A. No. 
7211. Q. Were you asked by the management to come back? A. Well, yes; I believe I was. 
7212. Q. Now, look, Hammon, you know perfectly well you were? A. I just remember about this. The 
boss of the wheelers told another wheeler to write up for me ; but I never got that letter. 
7213. Q. Who is the boss of the wheelers? A. Adam Frost. 
7214. Q. And he directed another wheeler to write up for you? A. To write to me. 
7215. Q. You did not get that letter? A. I had left there before that letter got there. 
7216. Q. Before you left had you not got word that you were wanted back at Kembla? A. No. 
7217. Q. Did you ever get that letter that was sent on to you? A. No. 
7218. Q. Never got it yet? A. No. 
7219. Q. Now, have you had any conversation with Mr. Rogers regarding the disaster? A. Yes. 
7220. Q. When had you the last conversation? A. A week ago to-night, I think it was. 
7221. Q. Where was it? A. In his office. 
7222. Q. Did he send for you? A. Yes. 
7223. Q. Did he ask you on that occasion had you been burnt? A. Yes. 
7224. Q. And what did you tell him? A. I told him "yes." 
7225. Q. And what did he say? A. I do not know. I forget now what he said. 
7226. Q. Now, just try and think what he did say when you told him you were burnt? A. I could not 
think what he said. They took down whatever I told them. 
7227. Q. Who took it down? A. The clerk at the pit__Warburton. 
7228. Q. Was there anyone else present besides Mr. Rogers? A. Mr. Hotchkis, the underground manager. 
7229. Q. Anyone else? A. No. 
7230. Q. Did you know what they were taking this statement down for? A. No; I did not. I did not 
know they were taking it until they were very near finished. 
7231. Q. Then how did you know? A. Well, I dropped that they were taking it when I saw them 
writing. They were writing down as I told them. 
7232. Q. Behind your back? A. No; in front of me. 
7233. Q. Could not you see them writing it down 1 A. Well, I never took any notice for awhile. They 
were writing when I first came in there. 
7234. Q. Did you sign that statement? A. Yes. 
7235. Q. Do you know where it is now? A. No. 
7236. Q. Have you altered that statement since last week 1 A. No. 
7237. Q. Did not you tell Mr. Rogers that you were burnt in other places besides the neck? A. The ears, 
the neck, and the arms. Wherever there were no clothes on me I was scorched. 
7238. Q. And you told him that? A. Yes. 
7239. Q. Now, did not you also tell him that your clothing was burnt in parts? A. No, I did not. 
7240. Q. Not your shirt? A. No. 

7241. 
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7241. Q. Was not your shirt, near your arms here, singed? A. Well, I do not think so. I never looked 
at the shirt anyhow: but I never told him that it was singed. 
7242. Q. Do you know whether it was singed or not? A. No; I never looked. 
7243. Q. Did you tell Mr. Rogers that you did not see any flame? A. Yes. 
7244. Q. He asked you that question? A. Yes. 
7245. Q Now, as a matter of fact, directly you heard the sound you shut your eyes? A., Yes; as soon as 
the gust of hot dust and stuff came. 
7246. his honor.] Q. The question is : did you shut your eyes bçcause you thought there was something 
coming, when you heard the sound; or did you shut your eyes when you found there was something 
coming? 
7247. Witness.] A. When I felt it; 
7248. Aft. Lysaght.] Q. Could not you see what was coming? A. I did not want to see it. 
7249. Q. Did you see what was coming; or did you shut your eyes directly you heard the sound? A. 
No ; as soon as this stuff came I shut my eyes. 
7250. Q. Then you saw it coming? A. I saw it in a kind of a way. 
7251. Q. How long was it you saw it coming before it touched you? A. A second. 
7252. Q. And you at once shut your eyes? A. Yes. 
7253. Q. So that there might have been flame there, for all you know? A. There might have been flame 
there, for all I know. 
7254. Q. Do you know what it was scorched you, if it was not this flame? A. This hot dust. 
7255. Q. If there was no flame there could you account for your being scorched? A. Only the dust. 

7256. Q. Did it burn your boots? A. No. 
7257. Q. Did it shrivel them up? A. No. 
7258. Q. Had it any effect on your hair? A. No; I do not think so. 
7259. Q. Now, do you not remember whether it singed your hair ;_just you think whether you 
remember your Lair being singed. A. Well, I was not told about its being singed, anyhow; and I could 
not see it. 
7260. Q. Did not you notice after the disaster 1 Did not you look to see whether your hair had been 
singed at all? A. I never looked. 
7261. Q. Did you look to see the appearance at the back of your ear? A. I could feel it. 
7262. Q. Did you get a glass to look at that? A. Yes. 
7263. Q. Now, what was the extent of the burning on the back of the ear ;-did not it burn the hair too? 
A. That was after I went home and got a wash. 
7264. Q. Did not it burn the hair at the back of the ear too? A. I could not see it burnt then. 
7265. Q. When did you see it burnt? A. I did not see it burnt at all. 
7266. Q. Did the skin peel off your neck? A. Yes. 
7267. Q. Now, which was the more severely burnt-your neck or your arms? A. The ears. The ears 
were the worst. This ear [indicating the left ear]. 
7268. Q. Now, you might tell me this: is that the only conversation you had with Mr. Rogers about the 
disaster? A. Yes. 
7269. Q. You are clear upon that answer now, that that is the only conversation? A. That is all. 
7270. Q. Have you had any conversation with any other officials about the disaster-officials of Kembla 
Mine? A. No; I have not. 
7271. Q. When did you know that you were to come as a witness here? A. I did not know until last night. 
7272. Q. Did not Mr. Rogers tell you you were wanted l A. Mr. Rogers gave me a bit of an idea, you 
know. 
7273. Q. What did he tell you? A. He told me that I might be called. 
7274. Q. Where? A. Here. He told me that, the night I was there. 
7275, Q. Will you tell me what was in that statement that you gave to Mr. Rogers? A. Something the 
same as I have given here to-day. 
7276. Q. Was there anything that you told him that we have not got out from you ;_try and think 
carefully. It is only a week ago? A. I did not tell him any more. 
7277. Q. Who was it asked you to go into Mr. Rogers' office? A. Adam Frost. 
7278. Q. And did he tell you what sort of statement you were to make? A. No; he did not tell me 
anything: and when I was going home that night I saw Mr. Rogers, and I asked him what he wanted me 
for then; and he would not tell me. He said, "Come to the office at 7 o'clock"; and I did not know what 
he wanted me for until I got there. 
7279. Q. Why did you leave Mount Kembla? A. There was not much work. There were only about two 
days' work a fortnight after the explosion. 
7280. Q. Could you not be put on helping to clear the roads? A. I was doing that; and there were too 
many men; and I could only get two days a fortnight. 
7281. Q. Were you distharged, or did you leave of your own accord? A. I left of my own accord. 

[At 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned for luncheon.] 

AFTERNOON. 

(On resuming at 215 p.m., Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings.) 

CLIFFORD HAMMON, previously sworn, was further examined as under 

7283. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Did you have any conversation with any of 
the underground manager, when he told rue to come here. 
7284. Q. You have not been subpmnaed, have you? A. No. 
7285. Q. Who is the underground manager? A. Mr. Hotchkis. 
7286. Q. By his direction you came here? A. Yes. 
7287. Q. Is that all lie told you? A. That is all. 
7288. Q. At this interview with Mr. Rogers, Mr. Hotchkis, and 
A. Mr. Wai'burton. 

the officials that night? A. Only with 

Mr. Warburton, who did the vriting? 
7289. 
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7289. Q. Did he ask you any questions or did you give a statement? A. I gave a statement; and a few 
questions were asked, 
7290. Q. Did he ask you whether you had ever seen any gas in Kembla? A. No, they never asked me that. 
7291. Q. Do you remember seeing Mr. Bates or Mr. Nelson before the explosion? A. Yes, ten minutes or 
a quarter of an hour before. 
7292. Q. Where were you then? A. I was sitting down at the same place as I was when the explosion 
happened. 
7293. Q. Did they speak to you? A. They said good day. 
7294. Q. Which way did they pass? A. rilley  went out of the haulage road into the main tunnel. 
7295. Q. Do you know what time it was when they passed you? A. Somewhere about 2 o'clock, I expect; 
I cannot say to a few minutes. 
7296. Q. Do you remember how long it was after they passed you before you heard a noise? A. About ten 
minutes or a quarter of an hour. 
7297. Q. Do I understand you to say that your lamp was blown out? A. Yes. 
7298. Q. Did you notice any smell? A. There was a smell. 
7299. Q. What was it like? A. It was like smoke or steam. I cannot describe it. 
7300. Q. Did it smell like sulphur? A. No. 
7301. Q. Did you ever notice it before? A. No, 
7302. Q. Did it smell like canvas? A. Yes, like the smell of new brattice: 
7303. Q. Did you notice any brattice scorched or burnt? A. No. 
7304. Q. Did you notice whether the harness was torn off the boise? A. No, I never noticed. 
7305. Q. You told us that a number of men were burnt a good deal worse than you. Who were they 
A. F. Smith was one. That was the only one I noticed. 
7306. Q. Do you know where he was working? A. On the left hand rope road somewhere thrs, from 
what I am told. 
7307. Q. You do not know of your own knowledge? A. No. 
7308. Q. Did you notice which was his road out? A. Yes; lie would be going the way I went down every 
night. 
7309. Q. Did you travel that road daily? A. Yes. 
7310. Q. Is that the only way you know out of the mine? A. The trarelling road and daylight heading. 
7311. Q. Those are the only two ways? A. Yes. 

Re-examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

7312. Q. You told us where F. Smith was working; was it No. 91 on the plan ? A. I think that is 
Charles Smith. 
7313. Q. What did F. Smith do there? A. He was a clipper. 
7314. Q. Where would his work be? A. Oh, it would be about lmlfami1e away. 
7315. Q. In No. 1? A. In No. 1, on the left road. 
7316. Q. Near the telephone tunnel-by you? A. Half a mile from me. 
7317. Q. Do you know where the body of Nelson was found? A. No. 
7318. Q. Tell me the points between which F. Smith would work, as near as you can? A. (Looking at 
map.) Between Stafford's Flat and No. 1 main level. 
7319. Q. He only came half way down? A. He did not go up to the main level. 
7320. Q. Is it a fact that he was working near the telephone cabin ? A. His work was not near that place. 
7321. Q. Do you know that his work was between Stafford's Flat and No. 1 main level l A. No. 
7322. Q. Was your work and his connected? A. No. 
7323. Q. Did you meet him? A. No; we used to meet there. 
7324. Q. At that time? A. Yes. 
7325. Q. Where did you see him this last time? A. Outside. 
7326. Q. After the thing was over? A. Yes, the next day. 
7327. Q. Do you know that he was found near the telephone cabin-actually in it? A. No, I did not. 
7328. Q. You are asked whether you saw anybody burnt more than you were? A. That boy was. 
7329. Q. How was he burnt? A. He was burnt till all the flesh was parted on his body. 
7330. Q. Do you mean split open? A. Cracked and broke. 
7331. Q. Did you see his hair? A. I never took any notice of his hair. 
7332. Q. What clothes had he got on? A. Just a pair of pants and his boots. 
7333. Q. Where you saw the flesh had parted_was it on the chest? A. All over his body-in front. 
7334. Q. Do you mean cracked; or was the skin hanging off? A. Cracked and hanging off. He was 
terrible. 
7335. Q. What colour was it? A. Black. 
7336. Q. Was there any coal dust on it? A. He had coal dust all over him. 
7337. Q. Now how long were you with Mr. Rogers over this affair 1 A. About an hour, I should think. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Wade :- 

7338. Q. I want to ask you about that. Did you tell what you knew about the matter when you were 
asked? A. Yes. 
7339. Q. Did any one of those three gentlemen ask you to say anything that was not true? A. No; and 
what I gave I gave of my own free will. 
7340. Q. How long had you been back at Kembla before you saw Mr. Rogers 1 A. About a week and 
three days. 
7341. Q. With regard to Frost, the boss contractor, is that Adam Frost, senior? A. No, young Adam 
Frost. 
7342. Q. Were you under him before the explosion iA. Yes. 
7343. Q. His father is contractor to the mine 1 Al. Yes. 
7344. Q. With regard to Charles Smith, the man working in the 5th Bight., did you see which way he 
went out? A. The caine way as myself. 
7345. Q. Through the daylight heading? A. Yes. 7316. 
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Re-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith 

7346. Q. Were you asked to give evidence at the Coroner's inquest A. No. 
7347. Q. You were not here then? A. Not at the beginning; I was here for the first couple of days; and 
then I went away. 
7318. Q. Did you come to the Court? A. No. 
7349. Q. Were you ever spoken to about it? A. No. - 
7350. By nobody? A. No. 
7351. Q. Did you make any statement up to the time that you went away? A. No. 
7352. Q. Had you spoken to anybody connected with the mine? A. No. 
7353. Q. Did you offer yourself as a witness? A. No. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie :- 

7354. Q. Who first informed you that the Manager wanted to see you, or for you to make a statement? 
A. Adam Frost. 
7355. Q. Did he tell you while you were at work during the day? A. No; Jack Morgan told me the fht 
time, and Frost afterwards. 
7356. Q. What were the exact words lie said to you 1 A. He just told me that Mr. Rogers wanted to see 
me at the office at 7 o'clock. 
7357. 9. Did he tell you what it was about? A. No. 
7358. 9. Do you know Charles Smith? A. Yes. 
7359. 9. Do you know that he gave evidence here? A. Yes. 
7360. 9. Was it before Smith gave evidence, or afterwards, that you were told? A. Afterwards. 
7361. 9. Did Mr. Rogers ask you, or did any of the officials ask you, whether you had read what Smith 
said I A. No. 
7362. Q. Did they make any reference to what Smith had said? A. No. 
7363. Q. They did not say anything about what Smith had said? A. They told me something about Smith 
telling them that he had found me. He had come down and found me-I would not be sure what it was- 
and that he took a lot of men out, and that lie found a way out for them. 
7364. Q. Did they ask you whether it was correct? A. They asked me what 1 knew. 
7365. 9. Did Mr. Rogers tell you that they intended taking down in writing what you were saying. 
A. No. 
7366. 9. You only discovered that they were taking it down? A. Yes, the clerk was writing when 
I went in. I did not know that lie was writing my statement. When I went in he got another slip of 
paper, and wrote down what Mr. Rogers asked me and what I said. 
7367. Q. Did Mr. Rogers tell you why he wanted you to sign it ? A. No. 
7368. 9. What did lie say? A. He asked me to sign it; and I read it and signed it. 
7369. 9. It was absolutely correct? A. Yes. 
7370. Mr. Wade.] It is through a message that I sent to Mr. Rogers that I got this witness here. As soon 
as I found that Hammon was at the mine, I sent up to them to get a statement from him. 
7271. ill r Lysayltt.] I do not know whether Mr. Wade would have any objection to my seeing that 
statement, 
7372. Mr Wade.] I will get it. 
7373. 1./is honor.] Have you got it here I 
7374, Mr Wade.] I have seen it, but I have not got it here. 

Mn. WILLIAM hARLEY was sworn and examined as under:-

Exaiination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght 

7375. 9. What is your name? A. William Harley. 
7376. 9. What are you? A. A coal miner. 
7377. 9. Where are you working? A. At Woonona Colliery. 
7378. 9. How long have you been there? A. Several years. 
7379. Q. Have you worked in any other colliery? A. At Helensburgh, and at Bulli. 
7380. Q. How long at Helensburgh? A. Three and a half years. 
7381. Q. How long at Bulli? A. About ten years. 
7382. 9. What has your total experience been ? A. About sixteen years coal mining. 
7383. 9. Are you a member of the Delegate Board of the illawarra District? A. Yes. 
7384. (2.  Did you go to Keinbla at the time of the disaster? A. No. 
7385. 9. Well now, take the recommendations of the Board. No 1-" Managers, under-managers, deputies, 
and shot firers, to hold certificates of competency by examination, and to have had five years' practical 
mining experience, before being eligible for their respective positions." Have you anything to say regarding 
that I A. Regarding the experience of Managers. 
7386. Q. As regards that recommendation, can you say anything in support of it? A. Yes, I believe they 
ought to have certificates. it would be far better for all of them to have them. 
7387. Q. Has your Manager a certificate by examination? A. 1 cannot say. 
7388. Q. What sort of lamps have you at your mine? A. Naked lights. 
7389. 9. Who does the shot-firing? A. The miners do it themselves. 
7390. 9. Has gas been discovered at Woonona to your knowledge? A. Never, to my knowledge. 
7391. 9. Has it the reputation of being a nongassy mine? J. As far as I know. 
7392. Q. Who is your deputy? A. Joseph Fowler. 
7393. 9. Do you know whether he passed any examination? A. I could not say. 
7394. Q. Recommnemidation No. 2 is that "Inspectors be vested with absolute power to order the use of 
safety lamps "? A. Yes, I think it would be better if the Inspectors had that power. 
7395. Q. Do you know of any colliery where they desired safety-lamps, and the Manager refused to have 
them? A. No. 
7396. Q. Recommendation No. 3 is, " Ventilation by furnace prohibited, and fans substituted"? A. Fans 

are the best. 73974 
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7397. Q. Have you worked in collieries having furnaces? A. Yes, at Bulli and at Woonona. 
7398. Q. What was the air like at Bulli? A. \Tery  good. As far as I can recollect the furnance is at Bulli 
at the present time. 
7399. Q. What have you at Woonona now ? A. A fan. 
7400. Q. When was it put in I A. Three or four years back. 
7401. Q. Recommendation No. 4 is that "Waste workings to be absolutely sealed ofl and surrounded 
by return airways for fear of emissions such return airways not to come in contact with intake"? A. Yes. 
7402. Q. Are the waste workings sealed up at Woonona'? A. Some are, at all events. 
7403. Q. What with 1 A. Some with brattice, and some with bricks. 
7404. Q. Does the intake air pass these wastes? A. Yes. 
7405. Q. In your opinion does that materially affect the air? A. When the men are working. 
7406. Q. I mean where the intake air passes the waste workings;-does that make the air bad? A. No. 
7407. Q. That has not been your experience? A. No, it has not. 
7408. Q. With regard to No. 5-" All places, except prospecting drives, to have cut-throughs not more than 
30 yards aparts." How are your cut-throughs at Woonona? A. Some are 40 yards; some are 60 yards; 
and I have driven places myself 100 yards. 
7409. Q. Is brattice up to the face? A. Yes. 
7410. Q. If the cut-throughs were only 30 yards apart, would they weaken the roof? A. I do not think so. 
7411. Recommendation No. 6 is that "Inspection should be made with locked safety-lamp on all occasions"; 
but I will pass that over, and come to No. 7; which is that "A monthly examination and report be made by 
deputies and District Inspectors with the hydrogen flame." What do you say to that? A. I think it should 
be done. 
7412. Q. Is there any examination made with locked safety-lamps in your colliery? A. Yes. 
7413. Q. Every day? The deputy comes round about 11 o'clock. 
7414. Q. Do you know of any examination by the hydrogen flame? A. Only by the Government Inspector. 
7415. Q. How long ago was that? A. About a month ago. 
7416. Q. Do you know whether he discovered any gas or traces of it? A. I cannot say. 
7417. Q. I will pass over Nos, 8, 9, 10, and 11; and I now come to No. 12, which recommends-" An extra 
supply of safety-lamps and their requisites, equal to one-third of the number of persons employed below 
ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use." Have you any reserve at your colliery? 
A. Not that I am aware of. 
7418. Q. Have you seen any, except those which the deputy uses? No, only those which the deputy and 
Manager use. 
7419. Q. Recommendation 13 is-" Travelling and haulage roads, and other places necessary, to be properly 
watered." Is your colliery dusty 1.1 cannot say. 
7420. Q. Have you any appliances for watering? A. The only watering is by tubs, by water got out of the 
old workings. 
7421. Q. Are the travelling-roads watered? A. They are pretty wet themselves. 
7422. Q. Are the haulage roads watered? A. These are watered by water from the old workings. 
7423. Q. Are the working places watered? A. No. 
7424. Q. When you fire a shot, do you raise dust? A. I have seen no dust from a shot. 
7425 Q. I will pass over Nos. 14 and 15, and come to No. 16, which recommends that the "size of manhole 
be enlarged." What size are yours? A. About 4 feet square. 
7426. Q. Is the travelling-road at your colliery also the haulage road? A. Not now. 
7427. Q. Recommendation No. 18 is-"Instruction to be given to employees regularly on the means of 
escape." How many ways do you know out of the Woonona mine? A. One travelling-road, and another road 
out past the fan. The men themselves do not get instructed on that. I do not think they are allowed to go on it. 
7428. Q. You know that road in case of disaster i A. Yes. 
7429. Q. Those are the only two you do know? A. Yes. 
7430. Q. Recommendation No. 19 is that "The Coal Mines Act should forbid a black list of employees 
being kept, and penalising improper prevention of discharged persons obtaining employment." Can you give 
me any instances where people have been prevented from obtaining work? A. I cannot. 
7431. Q. You support the recommendation? A. Yes. 
7431?. Q. If such a provision is made, would it induce the men to report what they observe? A. Yes. 
7432. Q. Do you know whether the men have in the past abstained from reporting? A. I have heard of it. 
7433. Q. Is it your experieneel A. No. 
7434. Q. You have heard of it in your own colliery? A. Yes. 
7435. Q. Recently? A. Yes. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith 
7436. Q. You were at Bulli ten years? A. It is nine or ten years since I was there. 
7437. Q I thought you said that you were there ten years ;-how long were you there? A. Well, I was 
there nine or ten years. I was 13 years old when Istarted. 
7438. Q. During that time have you any reason to complain of the ventilation? A. No. 
7439. Q. The mine was well bratticed up? A. Yes. 
7440. Q. You cannot remember a case of the air reversing suddenly, so that you had to complain of it? A. No. 
7441. Q. There was a furnace in that mine? A. Yes, 
7442. Q. Woonona bad a furnace? A. It had previously. 
7443. Q. There is a fan there nOw? A. Yes. 
7444. Q. You say that there are some places where there are 100 yards between the cross-cuts? A. I have 
driven them myself. 
7445. Q. Have you had reason to complain of the ventilation there I A. Once. 
7446. Q. How long ago? A. Two years. 
7447. Q. Was that place well bratticed up? A. It was very narrow. We were driving a 7-foot heading; 
the brattice was close to the head. 
7448. Q. How long were you at it? A. Pretty well nine months. 
7449. Q. You only complained once during nine months I A. I did not make a practice of complaining. 
7450. Q. There was only one occasion on which you felt disposed to complain? A. Yes. 

451. Q. Was that remedied at all? A. No. 7452. 
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7452. Q. Was it the last part of the 100 yards 1 A. The last part. One man was in a bord; and the other 
was in a heading. The Inspector was coming in. I was driving the heading; and they brought me back 
to the bord. They fenced the heading off: but the next day I was put into it again. 
7453. Q. The alteration was only made for one day, when the Inspector came? A. Yes. 
7454. Q. And they put you back after he had been there? A. Yes, I was put back after he had been 
there. 
7455. Q. Did you know that the Inspector was coming? A. Not until they brought us out. 
7456. Q. Did any of the people of the mine know that he was coming? A. Not that I know of. 
7457. Q. Did you hear any conversation in the mine that led you to suppose that anyone knew that he was 
coming? A. No. 
7453. When did you hear it that morning? A. When I was coming out of the heading; when the Inspector 
was coming in. 
7459. Q. how long before lie came to your place? A. He brought me back to the bord to work with my 
mate. Then some one came up, and told us that we had to go out on the engine road, to timber it. The 
next day they put me back in the heading again. 
7460. Q. Who was the Manager? A. Charlie Heath. 
7461. Q. Who was the Inspector? A. Inspector iowan. 
7462. Q. You say you were at work nine months in that heading? A. In that and other parts. 
7463. Q. I mean the part where you were driving 100 yards up. When did you experience the shortness of 
air? A. A long way up. 
7461. Q. About half way? A. Yes. 
7465. Q. You had no reason to complain of air for 50 yards? A. It was my mate, he was always complaining 
I did not make it a practice to complain. 
7466. Q. Were you less sensitive than he was? A. I did not niake it a practice. 
7467. Q. Had you any reason? A. Yes, I could have complained. 
7468. Q. The air was not satisfactory? A. No. 
7469. Q. It was not satisfactory when you got past 50 yards? A. No, it was not. 
7170. Q. Up to that point it was all right ? A. No, it was not all right then. 
7471. Q. How long is this ago? A. Between twelve months and two years. 
7472, Q. Did your mate complain '1 A. He was complaining nearly every day. 
7473. Q. To the deputy? A. Yes, Joseph Fowler. 
7474. Q. Did lie do anything to remedy it? A. He tried to, by keeping the brattice well up and well down 
to the floor ; and he tried to cover all the holes in. 
7175. Q. Your mate complained for both of you 1 A. Yes. 
7476. Q. You were feeling that the air was not sufficient ? A. Yes. 
7477. Q. Is that the experience on winch you had founded the belief that cut-throughs should not be more 
than 30 yards apart? A. Yes. 
7478. Q. Now, have you any reason to believe that you were taken out of this heading because they knew 
that the Inspector was coming? A. None at all. 
7479. Q. You heard of it an hour before lie came? A. They put me back in the bord first, and then sent a 
man to put us both on the engine road timbering. I passed the Inspector on the engine road. 
74S0. Q. That is, an hour before he came to your part of the mine? A. Yes. 
7481. Q. You cannot tell me whether the Inspector had come to the mine before? A. No. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Wade :- 

7482. Q. In what direction was the Inspector going when you saw him ? A. He was in the engine road. 
7483. Q. What time-about 10 o'clock? A. About 10 o'clock ; we came in about 9 o'clock. 
7484. Q. Who came to you? A. A road-man named Arthur Reeves. 
7485. Q. You were by yourself? A. I was in a heading about 50 yards past the bord. 
7486. Q. How did the air circulate? A. It travelled up the heading first by the brattice, round the h :adiug, 
and back to the b )rd. 
7487. Q.  Did voo do any work in the healing? A. Yes. 
7188. Q. And at the herd ? A. About a quarter of an hour at the bord. 
7480. Q. And when wa it? A. As near as I can tell you about twelve months or two years ago. 
7490. 0. Where is heath now? A. Deal. 
7491. Q. And iowan I A. I believe lie is in the Old C untm'y. - 
7492. Q. You say that nobody tod you th it owning that the Inspector was comn ? A. No. 
7493. Q. The first thing you knew of it was when you met Iii ii on the road 1 A. Yes ; that is the first I 
knew of it. 
7494. Q. Do you know how long lie was there? A. I think lie passed us going out aglin, about 1 o'clock. 
7495. Q. When did you finis'h the job upon the engine road 1 A. That shift. 
7496. Q. You finished what you were to do? A. Yes. 
7197. Q. Is this the fact : that when you and your mate were in a bord together-but where were you in 
a bord, or in the heading I A. I was in the heading until they brought me out and then I did work for 
a quarter of an hour in the bord. 
7198. Where was the canvas put up? A. Across the heading. 
7499. Q. Is this what was done-to put the brattice across the heading, and give you the benefit of the 
air 1 A. No, they put a fence across the heading. 
7500. Q, To save the air travelling up the heading and take it to you? A. No. The brattice is put up to 
drive it in the bord and out again. 
7501. Q. This time you say that the brattice was put there to cut off the heading? A. No. 
7502. Q. You say that the air was turned into the bord, and that you were there ? A. No. 
7053. Q. Do you say that the air was not turned into the horS ? A. It had to go to the heading uirs. 
7504. Q. Then the air was not put off the heading ? A. It went up the heading, between the brattice and 
the rib, behind the bord, and out again. 
7505. Q. You say that when they brought you out of the bord they put a fence there ? A. Y, s. 
7506. Q. They did not put the canvas across there? A. No. 
7507. Q. Then the air travelled just the same that day as it had done on previous days A. Yes. 

16823 29-2 L 7508. 
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7508. Q. Then you say that a fence was put up across the heading from which you and your mate had 
been withdrawn ;-and that the air current travelled the same that day as on previous days? A. Yes. 
7509. (A rough sketch of the air current drawn by the witness was shown to the Commissioners.) 
7510. Q. Then the air was not better in the face of the bord than A was at the heaading that clay? A. No better. 
7511. Q. It would make no difference in connection with the examination of the mine ? A. No. 

Re-cross examination by Mr. Bruce Smith 
7512. Q. That fence which you speak of was an indication that you were not to go up there? A. Yes. 
7513, Q. And that the heading was dangerous? A. It was an indication that work at the heading had been 
stopped. 
7514. Q. Was there any gas there? A. No. 
7515. Q. If there had been gas there, it would have been brought round to your bord ? A. Yes. 
7516. Q. Anything in the heading would go to your bord? A. Yes. 
7517. Q. Do you know any reason for fencing it up? A. No. 
7518. Q. You say you never found any gas there? A. No. 
7519. Q. And never reported it? A. No. 
7520. Q. That was the only time in nine months that you had ever been stopped going there ? A. Yes. 
7521. Q. Did you ever hear any explanation of it? A. No. 
7522. Q. Was it taken away immediately ? A. Yes. 
7523. Q. The same evening? A. Yes. 
7524. Q. Did you ever ask why the fence was put across there? A. I did not. 
7525. Q. Did you express any surprise to the deputy ? A. I did not. 
7526. His Honor.] Q. Did the Inspector go up to that heading ? A. I cannot say. I was not there the 
remainder of the clay. 
7527. AIr. Bruce Smnlal Q. You were sent to cther work ? A. Out on the engine road. 
7.528. Q. Had you ever been put on that kind of work before? A. Yes. 
7529. Q. Often ? A. Not often. I might have been, three or four shifts. 
7530. Q. In nine months? A. Yes. 
7531. Q. Were you kept there the whole of the shift? A. The whole of the shift. 
7532. Q. And you came back? A. The next day. 
7533. Ifis limier.] Q. Was there anything wrong with the roof in that heading? A. No. 
7534. AIr Bruce Smith.] Q. Was anything done to strengthen the roof? A. No. 
7535. Was anything done to suggest why they had taken you off-any timbering? A. There was only the 
timber I put there myself. 
7536. Q. Had the Government Inspector been there at any time you were not working there? A. No; I 
did not see him. 
7537. Q. Had he been in the mine during the nine months? A. Yes. 
7538. Q. You say that you were working in the heading, and your mate in the herd? A. Yes. 
7539. Q. You were taken from the heading I A. Yes, and put in the bord, and afterwards on the engine road. 
7540. Q. And your mate, too? A. Yes, we were both working together. 
7541. Q. And if the Inspector went to that place lie would not find anyone working there, either you or 
your mate? A. No. 

Exaniimd by Mr. Robertson 
7542. Q. Is there anything strange in a miner being taken from his working-place to do repairs? A. Nothing 
that I know of. 
7513. Q. It might have been quite a legitimate instruction? A. Yes. 
7544. Q. When a man is removed from his place, is it net the practice to put up a danger board there 1 
A. It is. 
7545. Q. There is nothing strange about that? A. Nothing strange about it. 
7546. Q. What do you suggest from the circumstances you have mentioned? A. There is nothing that I 
can suggest about it. 
7547. Q. You seem to imply some sort of a bad practice or a suspicious practice on the part of the 
management? A. No. 
7548. Q. That was the impression conveyed to my mind. Why did you mention it? A. I was asked about it. 
7549. Q. You seem to suggest that you were taken out and put back again for some reason? A. No. I 
did not know that the Inspector was coming. I do not know what I was taken out for. 
7550. Q. The impression conveyed to my mind is, that this was done for a purpose? A. I did not state that 
it was done for any particular purpose at all. 
7551. Q. There is nothing wrong about it? A. Not that I know of. 
7552. Q. I think you worked for three and a half years at llelensburghi? A. Three years for the first time; 
and the last time for about six months. 
7553. Q. You must be aware that at Helensburgh drives are driven from 100 to 200 yards without cut-
throughs? A. I did not know. 
7554. Q. You did not know that that was a common practice? A. No. I never worked in those places myself 
7555. Q. Where did you work? A. At the Dip, the South Jig, the North Jig, and the Slant. 
7556. Q. That is a most extraordinary circumstance, considering that this is the practice carried out to-dny, 
and cut-throughs are 100 yards, or 200 yards or more, apart? A. I never worked in one; and I worked in 
headings. 
7557. Q. And you worked in boi'ds? A. Yes. 
7558. Q. And you did not work in bords IOU or 200 yards in length? A. Never. 
7559. Q. Do you say that seriously? A. Yes. 
7560. Q. All I can sy is that your evidence is not of any value ; because it is absolutely opposed to the 
facts? A. Well, I am not aware that I have worked in places driven 100 or 200 yards without cut.tl1roughis. 
7561. Q. After that opinion of yours I can only say that I place no value on your evidence in other 
respects ; because what you sy is so absolutely opposed to practice? A. I cannot remember any places 
being driven that far. 
7562. Q. You say that places have been driven 50, 60, or 100, yards, at Woonona? A. Yes. 
7563. Q. And that you only once had reason to comnlain 7 A. Yes. 7564. 
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7364. (7. And with that one exception there appeared to be no defect in the ventilation of the place? A. No. 
7563. (7. \Vhy should cut-tliroughs be put 30 yards apart 1 A. To carry ventilation better. 
7566. Q. If the ventilaticn can be carried to the face by other means, there is no reason why cut-throughs 
should be made? A. The air would be carried better by cut-throughs. 
7567. (7. If it is carried to the face, that is all that concerns you, is it not I A. Yes. 
7568. (7. Did you say that any examination was made with the hydrogen lamp? A. Only by the Inspector. 
7569. (7. Would you be surprised to learn that an examination has been made by the Manager? A. If an 
examination was made by the Manager, I was not aware of it. 
7570. Q. Who was the Manager at the time that this occurred-I mean this suspicions circumstance? 
A. Charles Heath. 
7571. Q. I thought it was Mr. Kater? A. The Manager was Mr. Kater; and the under-manager was 
Charles Heath. 
7572. Mr. Brue Smith.] The witness told me the name of the Manager was Charlie Heath. 
7573. Mr. Robertson.] Q. You said that your mate frequently complained? A. Yes. 
7074. Q. Was there any ill-feeling at all towards your mate? A. Not that I know of. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie 

7573. Q. How long is it since you were at llelensburgh Colliery? A. Three years. 
7576. (7. Did the distance between the cut-throughs wary ; or was it uniform. A. As near as possible uniform. 
7577. (7. The same distance between in one section as in another? Yes. 
7378. 0. TIme intake airways pass the waste workings in the \Voonona Colliery? A. Yes. 
7579. (7. Did you regard that as dangerous? A. No. 
7580. (7. There was no danger of the bad air coming out of the waste workings? A. Not that I know of. 
7581. (7. If any caine out, would it be carried into the general workings? A. Yes. 
7582. (7. Would there be any danger then? A. Ye-'. 
7583. (7. Do you think there is any danger now ? A. Well, I think there is. 
7584. (7. How long is it since you were at the Bulli Colliery ? A. About twelve months after the explosion. 
7383. (7. Were you coal-getting or wheeling? A. Both. 
7386. (7. how long were you on coal? A. About two years. 
7587. 0. And how long on wheeling? A. I wheeled nearly all my life, from when I first started. 
7588. (7. Would that be a number of years? A. Yes. 
7589. (7. Your actual experience on coal at Balli was two years? A. Yes. 
7590. (7. And, had the ventilation been defective, you would not know, you being in the air currents? 
A. Yes, that is so. 
7591. Q. Do you make that correction, that the parts of the colliery you were in were where the intake 
air currents were ? A. Yes. 
7592. (7. You say that, after doing a dmy's work tinibariug the main engine road, you went into the heading 
agm.in? A. Yes. 
7593. (7. Was the ventilation the same as it was before you were withdrawn? A. Just time same. 
7594. 0. How long did you work in a bord afterwards? A. About a week. 
7593. (7. Was there any improvement in the ventilation ? A. No. 
7596. (7. Do you know if any improvement took place? A. Not until the heading was put through into 
another heading. After working in the bord they put us on another heading, to drive it up to the first one. 
7597. (7. To meet it? A. Yes. 
7598. (7. And so the ventilation was put there? A. Yes, on the other side. 
7509. (7. What was the reply generally given to you when you made complaints? A. That they would try 
and remedy it. 
7600. Q. Did you notice any improvement? A. Only by fixing the brattice up. But it made it no better, 
because the current was not going. There was not sufficient room behind the brattice to carry the air, as 
the place was only between 6 and 7 feet altogether. 
7601. Q. Did the person who came to tall you in the morning say that the Inspector was coming? A. No. 
We asked him what was the matter ; and he said he did not know. 
7601. (7. Who brought you out? A. Reeves. 
7603. (7. What position does he hold? A. He is a road man. 
760 1. (7. Did he tell you to go to the engine road and work ? A. Yes. 
7605. (7. How long after that was it before you met the Inspector? A. It would be about from half an 
hour to an hour. 
7606. Q. How far was the Inspector from the surface of the mine when you saw him ? A. We met him 
about half way. 
7607. Q. How long would it take him to ti-awel from the surface? A. About ten minutes or a quarter of 
an hour. 
7608. Q. If the Inspector had arrived when word was first sent to you, that would be about the time it 
would take for you to meet the Inspector? Yes. 
7609. Q. The Inspector did not ask you anything about the place? A. No. 
7610. (7. He did not know that you were working in it? A. No. 
7611. (7. Did you say that the deputy visited the place every day? A. Yes. 
7612. (7. Did he carry a safety-lanip? A. Yes. 
7313. (7. Did he make any examination? A. Neatly every clay. 
7611. (7. What did he do? A. Put the lamp up to the face of the coal. 
7615. (7. Every day? A. Yes. 
7616. 0. Does he examine the waste workings? A. I cannot say. 
7617. (7. Did you ever read the reports in the book at the mine? A. No. 
7618. Q. Do you know that you are permitted to read the reports? A. Yes. 
7619. 9. So far as you know, were the waste workings inspected? A. I have no knowledge of whether 
they inspect the waste workings or not in that colliery. 

[The Commission, at 320 p.m., adjourned until 10 o'clock tIlT fell swing morning.] 
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THURSDAY, 22 JANUARY, 1903. 

[Ti,- Commission met at the Court house, JVoUonyosg] 

rcett : - 
C. E. R. MURRAY, ESQ., D.C.J. (PRESIDENT). 

D. A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ., CoManssIoxEn. I P. RITCHIE, Es., ConIIssIoxEri. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitors Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of— 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c., (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &e.) ; and 

(e) the illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. C. G. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. F. Curtiss, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kernbla 
Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of Mount Kensbla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garliek, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

7020. (Mr. Wade informed the Commission that he had a number of witnesses to be called in Wollon-
gong next week. He was, however, pledged to attend the sittings of the Arbitration Court in Newcastle, 
in connection with a case which had been part heard, and which would be resumed next week. He could 
not say how long that case would last ; and he desired to know whether, if it lasted after the examination 
of the witnesses whom he intended to call in Wollongong to give evidence on matters of fact, the 
Commission would grant him an adjournment of a week, in order that he might be able to attend to 
examine the witnesses who would afterwards be called by the Mount Kembla Company to give expert 
ev i dec Ce. 
7021. Mr. Bruce Smith pointed out that it was by no means certain that Mr. Wade really would require 
the adjournment for which he asked, as the arbitration case in Newcastle might be completed in time to 
allow Mr. Wade to be present and call the expert evidence to which he referred without the necessity of 
an adjournment of the Commission. Mr. Bruce Smith pointed out that he was appearing in a quite 
impartial capacity, and was examining the witnesses solely with the object of eliciting the truth. If Mr. 
Wade would supply him with the proofs of the evidence which he (Mr. Wade) expected his Wollongong 
witnesses to give on the matters of fact, he (Mr. Bruce Smith) would be prepared to examine them with 
just the same eye to Mr. Wade's case as if Mr. Wade were examining them himself ;  then he would put 
the proofs on one side, and would ask the witnesses any questions which might suggest themselves to 
him from any other standpoint. Mr. Wade might rely upon his witnesses being examined fully according 
to the proofs which he might place before Mr. Bruce Smith. 
7622. Mr. Wade said he had not obtained the proofs of these witnesses yet, but he would be quite willing 
to fall in with Mr. Bruce Smith's suggestion. 
7623. 1-Its Honor said that the tenor of Mr. Bruce Smith'-, examination of the witnesses so far showed 
that he took an independent position. There would be no dirneulty about that. The Commission would 
sit next week in Wollengong to take the evidence Qf local witnesses. Mr. Wade's application for an 
adjournment was too indefinite. There had been a great deal of delay in the inception of the work of 
the Commission, and they desire I to finish it as soon as possible. 
7021. Mr. Bruce Smith suggested that, if Mr. Wade found later on that he desired to have an adjourn-
inent, the Commission could meet specially to hear his application and deal with it then if the necessity 
arose.) 

Mn. JOHN McLEOD was sworn, and examined as under :- 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght. 

7025 Q. What is your name? A. John MeLeod. 
7626. Q. What are you? A. A miner. 
7627. Q. Where? A. Mount Keira. 
7628. Q. Have you worked in the Mount Kembla Mine? A. Yes, 
7629. Q. How long ago? A. From about last October twelve months, up to the explosion. 
7630. Q. How long did you work there? A. I reckon about nine months. 
7031. Q. What district? A. Shaft and No. 1. 
7632. Q. Do you remember the number in the shaft district? A. Yes, I worked in No. 41 bord. 
7633. Q. Now, while working there did you ever discover any gas ? A. Not in the place I was working. 
7634. Q. Do you know of gas being in the vicinity of that hord? A. Yes, I saw gas in the heading. 
7035. Q. What heading is that? You are not familiar with the map, are you? A. No, I am not. 
7636. Q. Can you tell me in whose heading it was? A. Maunders and Williams. They had cavilled 
another place, and the heading was stopped. It was a cut-through heading; and they were sent into that 
from another cavil. She had not been numbered. 
7637. Q. Can you say what part of the shaft district it was in ? A. It was in the right-hand section. 
7638. Q. Was it near any particular place that you can think of? A. It was a heading coining in the 
direction of Powell's Flat. 
7039. Q. I will show you Powell's Flat. When you travelled in, which way would you turn off? A. I 
turned off at Mat's Flat travelling road. 
7040. Q. That is here? A. Yes. 
7611. Q. Then where would you go? A. I turned off No.6 Right Rope Road. 
7642. Q. And then down the heading to the east. A. I came along this bord (indicatinj). 

7043. 
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7013. Mr. Bruce Smitle.1 Q. Then you travelled along the air course, did you? A. I travelled down this 
way. That was 39 bord, and that No. 40, and 41. 
70-11. Q. That is the last line of cut-throughs? A. Yes, this is the last line of eut-throughs. 
7645. Mr. Lysaqli&1 Q. It was in these bords between the 6th Right Rope Road and Powell's Flat? 
A. It was in the heading. . 1 worked in one of these bords and we came out of our bord. 
761.0. Q. It is clear that it is in this heading between the 0th Right Rope Road and Powell's Flat? A. 
Yes. 
7647. Afr. Robertson.] I do not think that heading was in operation at that time. 
7648. lVitness.] It was between April and June. 
701.9. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. What 

-
year ? A. Last year. 

7050. (7. Not the year of the disaster? A. Yes ; three or four months before the disaster. 
7031. (7. Tell us exactly what it was P 
7652. Mr. Bruce Smiilz.] The place was, No. 49, according to the numbers on the plan before the 
Comm issi on. 
7633. zl[r. Lqs rqht.] 01. What was it you saw? A. When there was a shot fired there, and we fired a 
shot in our place, we caine out at the time they fired a shot in their place. 
7051. Q. Who are ''they " ? A. Maunders and Williams. Their shot was a standing shot. We went in 
to have it look to see what it had done and when we got within-well, there were three of us going in- 
we were like following each other--and I got close to the face, within about a couple of feet of the face; 
and it was cracked down the right-baid side. I just went to look at the crack ; and, of course, I did not 
stop to see the rest. 
7655. (7. Of course what? A. When she flired up I [Iiitcrrupted]. 
7656. (7. What flarcd up P A. Well, I thought, gas. 
7657. (7. How long did that burn? A. I could not say, ; a few seconds, that is all. It just flashed out. 
7058. (7. [low high did it flash up P A. I suppose there was a flare about 3 or 4 feet high ; and it would 
come out about 10 or 12 feet. 
7659. Q. Into the -? A. Come out along the heading. It just whipped out_like-along the top of the 
heading. 
7600. Q. Had it any effect upon you ? A. No it had not. 
7061. His honor.] Q. It just misced you, did it? A. Well, I kept down. 
7602 Mr. Lqsaqht.] (7, Did you fall on your face'? A. No, not on my face ; but I fell so that I could 
get out of the road of it if there was too much of it ; or try to. 
7663. (7. Do you know whether that was reported to any official or not? A. I could not say. 
601. (7. It was not your working place? A. No. 

7605. Q. Where are those men now who were working that place? A. To the best of my knowledge they 
are in Newcastle somewhere; they wore there. One went there a few days before the explosion. The 
other was a man who was in the explosion ; and he left there as soon as he could get away. 
7600. Q. Give me their Christian names? A. There you have got in,_,. I could not tell you that. 
7067. (7. But I have not got you ;-that is the trouble? A. I think Paddy was the name of Maunders 
but the other one they wed to call " Smiler " for a nickname. 
7068. Mr. Ritc.ie.] Q. What?, I. lie was known by the name of "Smiler Williams." 
7009. Mr. Ly.saght.] Q. On any other occasion have you seen gas lit there ? A. No ; not in the shaft 
section. 
7070. . In any section P A. I have seen it something similsr, only not so much, in No. 1 section. 
7071. (7. In what part of No. 1 P A. In No. 72 heading. 
7072 He. Bruce S'niitJz.] Q. Was it No. 72 then P A. Yes; the quarter I worked in it. That would be 
the quarter after what I oke of. 
7073. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. \V here was that No. 72 heading? A. In Powell's Flat. 
7071. (7. Here is Powell's Flat (indicating on the map) P A. It was off Price's Flat. 
7075. (7. straight in there? A. Yes. 
7076. (7.  (toin.,  that way P A. Yes. 
7077. (7. How far up was it ? A. I cond not tell you the numbers of the places; but to the best of my 
knowledge there were six or seven bords in the heading. 
7078. (7. That would be near the end of the heading off Price's Flat P A. Yes. 
7079. (The heading pointed out by the witness is marked No. 72 on the plan before the Commission.) 
7089. Mr. Lijsaqht.] Q. i-low long was that before the disaster? A. I could not say. We- only worked 
in it a month, I think ; but [think it was a little before the disaster, anyhow. 
7631. (7. What do you call a little ? A. I would not say a week or a fortnight. 
7082. (7. Was it within a month of the disaster P 
7683. Mr. Bruce Smith.] The witness's name is down on the plan, and his mate's. 
7081. Mr. Lijsaqht.] Q. Who is your mate? A. head. 
7085. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Their names are down. 
7080. Mr. L11s7qltt.] Q. 1 want you to tell us exactly what happened there P A. It was something 
si in i I ar. 
7087, Q. 1 want to know exactly what happened ? A. We had fired a shot ; and it hung up something 
like the other one. For two or three inches it was hanging to the roof, just hanging and ready to fall 
and when I went back my mate s:mid, ' You want to be careful going back there ; she might light up on 
you." I went back, and, of course, with hi in tclliiig me that, I naturally kept my head down a little 
ani when I did put the light up to see if we would have to shoot her again, or to see whether we could 
loosen her with the pick and let her down, it flashed out about a yard and a foot, and then went back 
again behind the coal. 
7688. Q. How far were you off the face when it lit? A. No distance at all. I think I must have put my 
light pretty close to the face. 
7089. Q. What do you mean by close P A. Within a few inches of the roof. 
7090. 0. Was it at the roof when the gas lit? A. Yes. 
7091. Q. And caine out about 3 or 4 feet along the roof, and went back in behind the coal? A. Yes it 
appeare(1 to do that. 
7092. Q. Did you report that? A. No. 
7693. Q. Do you know whcth-r head reported it to any ocia18 ?A. 'No , I spoke to him; but lie only 
smiled at it. 7691. 
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7091. (7. Do you know whether he re1nrted it P A. Not to my knowledge. 
7695. (7. Had you any reason for not repovting it ? A. Tho only reason was, when be seemed to laugh 
at it, T took it to be a common occurrence with the likes of him who had worked there so long. 
7603. (7. What? The discovery of gas like that? A. Yes ; that was my opinion. 
7697. (7. But upon what did you base your opinion that gas was a comm )fl thing  in Kembla ? A. Oh, 
well, I suppose, simply conversation. 
709S. Q. Do you know that gas had not been reported there within twelve months of the disaster, 
according to the officials? A. I never made it my business to inquire ii they never reported gas, or if 
they ever reported it. 
7699. (7. Did you consider that gas was dangerous P A. I do not know th it I ever thought about it. 
7700. (7. But you recognise now that it was dangerous? A. There is no doubt now. 
7701. Q. Was that a dusty part of the mine, that last part? A. No. 
7702. A. Was it a damp part P A. Yes. 
7703. A. Was the place where you were working in the Shaft District a dusty part? A. No. 
770k Q. Was that a damp part? A. Yes. 
7705. Q. Were the roads ever watered in either of those places? A. Well, I believe on one occasion I 
noticed a drop of water on the roads, on the travelling road, that is-about one occasion only. 
7706. Q. Do you know of any dusty parts of Kernbla Mine? A. I do not know any dusty working-places. 
7707. Q. Well, what places do you know that are dusty P A. Well, the travelling roads-one travelling 
road in particular. 
7708. Q. Which one is that? A. It starts from Adam's Flat, the telephone cabin in. No. 1; and, as far 
as I have travelled down it, it was fairly dusty down to Price's Flat, or almost to Stafford's Shunt, as 
they call it. 
7709. Q. You say that, in your opinion, that was the dustiest part of the mine? A. The dustiest part 
that I have seen in the mine. 
771.0. Q. Was that every watered-that travelling road? A. Not to my knowledge. 
711, Q. And, as you would go along it, would the dust rise? A. If there were a few men together, of 

course there would be a good deal of dust; but if a man were by himself, of course he would always keep 
ahead of it. 
7712. Q. Did you ever report that the dust was too much, or too strong, there? A No; I have never 
bothered reporting anything. 
7713. Q. Now, tell me what sort of air had you in this last place at the No. 1 Right? A. I had good air 
in that No. 72 heading. 
7711. Q. At the time that this gas lit, was the brattice close up to the face ? A. Yes. 
7715. (7. And in the other (Shaft) District, when the gas lit, what sort was the air ? A. I could not tell 
you about the air, about the particular place where the gas lit. It was not my own place. 
7716. Q. But in your own place, when you were about there ? A. There was once or twice when I 
reported to Evans that I did not think that there was sufficient air coming in there, and it was a bit hot. 
7717. Q. Was anything done by Evans when you reported that the air was not sufficient A. He just tacked 
the brattice a bit closer to the face ; that is all. 
1718. Did you ever report to anybody else that the air was not sufficient? A. Yes; I reported to Mr. 
Nelson, when he was day deputy in No. 1. 
7719. Q. What part of No. 1 was the air deficient in? A. No. OS bord, in that quarter. It was a bord 
off Powell's Flat heading. 
7720. Q. And what was done by Mr. Nelson? A. lie just brought the brattice a little closer. 
7721. Q. When you say the air was hot, was it to) hot to work in P A. No; but it was not pheasant to 
work in. You know, you could feel the effects of it on you. It seemed to give you a drowsy feeling 
after you had worked a time. It was all kind of misty after you had worked in it for a length of time. 
7722. (7. It had that effect on your eyesight P A. I cannot say it had an effecton my eyesight. 
772:3. (7. In addition to this gas that you had discovered, have you ever discovered gas in Mount Kembla? 
A. Not to my knowledge. 1 have never seen it. 
7721.. Q. have you ever used a safety-lamp ? A. No. 
7725. (7. Do you know how to use one? A. No. 
7726. (7. What has been your total mining experience? A. I have worked on and off in coal-mines 
since I was a lad. 
7727. Q. About how many years? A. About sixteen or seventeen years, I suppose. Of course I have 
not been underground all the time, you will understand. 
7728. (7. Well, underground, how long have you worked? A. I am a bird of passage, I am not certain. 
772). Q. Well, roughly? A. I would say, I suppose I have been ten years underground. 
77:30. (7. Do you know how to use a safety-lamp in detecting gas? A. No; I would not say I do. 
7731. (7. Coining to the mine you are working in at present, what sort is the air at Keira? A. It is what 
I would call good air; what I have seen of it. 
7732. Q. Have you had any bad air there? A. Oh no; not to call bad air. It was slightly warm in one 
place I have worked in, but nothing out of the common. 
773:3• (7. How long ago was that? A. Just a few weeks ago. 
7731. Q. Was there any smoke in your place, accumulating P A. No; it used not to accumulate. It was 
simply that a lot of shots were fired in succession about the other places ; and of course there would 
naturally be a lot of smoke travelling at one time. 
7735. (7. have you ever found gas in Keira? A. No. 
7733. (7. How mauy roads do you know out of Keira? A. I know three roads out. 
77:37. (7. How many did you know out of Kembla? A. Two. 
773. (7. What were they? A. The daylight tunnel, and the main travelling road. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade 

7739. Q. I understand that you only saw this flare, which you think was gas, twice in Mounl Kembla? 
A. Yes. 
7740. Q. And I suppose you have fired a good many shots there yourself, have you not? A. Yes. 
7741. Q. How long were you working in Mount Keinbla? A. Somewhere near about nine months. 
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7712. Q. That would be the nine months iust before the disaster? A. Yes. 
77 13. Q. And what parts did you work in? You have told us of the last quarter just before the disaster 
-that quarter was only about three or four weeks P A. About a month gone. 
7711. Q. And the quarter before tlat you were in this heading between Powell's Flat and the No. 0 
Bight rope road P A. Not in the heading; I worked in a herd in that headiug. 
7715. Q.  What other parts did von-work in besides that P A. When I started first, I worked in a left 
hand bord off Powell's Flat beading. 
77-10. Q. You worked in aed about, or round. about, Powell's Flat all the time you were in Kembla? Is 
that it? A. Yes. 
7717. 4). You spoke about this flare up in Maunders and Williams' bord from a standing shot? A. Yes. 
7748. 4). Do you mean by that that the shot had not brought all the coal down? A. That was it. It 
fetched hardly any: it just left a few pieces. 
7749. 4). And I suppose it left a big crack P A. Yes. 
7750. 4). And did you notice the smoke oozing out of that crack P A. There was a good deal of smoke 
coining out of the top, where it had broken away from the roof. 
7751. Q. That would be where this crack was? A. Yes ; it was cracked along the top and down the side. 
7752. Q. And the smoke would rise to the highest point ? A. Yes. 
7753. 4). And the smoke was coming out of the crack apparently caused by the shot P A. Yes. 
775-1. 4). Now, in the other ease, in your own working place, was it the same kind of thing there; that 
there was a crack, and the smoke was oozing out of the crack? A. Yes ; it was something similar. 
7755. Q. That is, there was a crack; the smoke was oozing  out ; and your light seemed to set it on fire? 
A. Yes. 
7750. Q. Now, with regard to the first occasion, I understand that as soon as you saw the flame you ducked 
at once? A. Yes. 
7757. Q. Did you put your head down and close your eyes P A. I swung round out of the road down 
below. 
7758, 4). Did you turn your head away from it? A. I swung round quickly and got down. 
775. 4). Did you turn your head away from or towards the flame? A. I turned it away after I saw what 
it was. Of course, I could see it was a flame. 
77140. Q. 1 want to know-, did you see the length of the flame? Can you be precise about that? You 
say it was a yard back P Q. Yes ; I could see that. I saw it come that distance back. 
7701. Q. What distance P A. I reckoned about 12 feet, as near as I could judge. I would not say 
positively 12 feet. 
7702. Q. What was the length of the crack caused by the shot in the first case? How long would it be- 
a few feet? A. The crack down the side of the coal, as far as I could see, of course, was pretty near to 
the bottom of the coal. 
7703. 4). From time roof? A. Yes; it was a crack along the roof and down the side. 
7701. 4). Pretty well the full height of the seam, 0 feet P A. Yes. 
7705. Q. And how far along the roof P Would it be 3 or 4 feet across the face along the roof P A. Oh 
yes ; more than that. It might have been a couple of yards, or, perhaps, even more than that. 
7700. Q. Did you yourself fire shots pretty frequently P A. Yes. 
7707. 4). Were you firing shots pretty well erery day P A. Yes. 
770g. 4). And 1 understand, when the coal actually came down after the shot, you never saw anything 
like this? A. 
7700. Q. You have been asked vaious questions about the slate of the air. I suppose in any mine you 
have over been in you have found time air warmer at some times than at others? A. Yes ; of course 
different places, different conditions. That is my idea of it. 
7770. Q. And it may get warmer, I suppose, if they are firing too many shots about the same time in your 
split., and time air comes down pretty thick? That makes it warm or stuffy P A. Of course, that may 
have an effect on it ; I daresay it would. 
7771. Q. Does not the smoke coming down make it hotter P Supposing you have seven or eight people, 
or seven or eight places, above you, firing shots all about the same time, and the smoke coming round to 
your place, does not that make the air warmer P A. Yes. I daresay you would not get all the smoke off 
everybody firing. 
7772. Q. 1 did not say you did. But that in itself tends to make the air warmer? A. Yes; I should 
think so. 
7773. Q. What collieries have you worked in besides Keira and Kembla? A. For a while in Bulli, North 
Bulli, Corrimal, and Mount Pleasant. 
7771. 4). When were you at Corriuial P A. It is a good while ago ; just after Corrimal opened. 
7775. 4).  Were not you in the pit on the day of the disaster? A. No. 
7770. 4).  What was the substance used for firing these shots P Was it powder P I mean in these places 
where you saw the flare PA. Yes. 
7777. Q. Ordinary blasting powder? A. Yes. 

Examination by Mr. Bruce Smith 

7778. Q. I understand you have been in Bulli, North Bulli, Mount Pleasant, Corriinal, Keira, and Kembla? 
A. Yes. 
7779. Q. When you were in Bulli, what was the means of ventilation ? A. A furnace ; or two furnaces, 
I believe ; but one for certain. 
7780. Q. And what was your experience of the ventilation in that mine at that time? A. I considered 
Bulli was well ventilated. 
7781. 4). How long were you there P A. I was there a few months, that was all. 
7782. 4). And you had no cause to complain of it P That is to say, you had no more cause to complain than 
you had in any other mine P A. No ; it was very well ventilated, I thought. 
7783. Q. Now, with regard to North Bulli, what was the method of ventilation there? A. I could not tell 
you. 
7781. 4). Was that satisfactorily ventilated PA. It appeared to be then, although 
7785. 4). What were you going to say? A. I have lost it now. 
7780. 4). Now, Mount Pleasant, what was the method of ventilktion when you were there P A. Furnace. 
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7787. Q. And how long was that ago? A. It was years ago. I left Mount Pleasant and went to Old Bulli. 
It was nine or ten years ago, I think. 
7788. Q. Can you recollect it sufficiently to say whether the ventilation was satisfactory? A. No; it was 
not. It was very unsatisfactory while I was there. 
7789. Q. And that was a furnace at the time? A. Yes. 
7790. Q. Now, Corrimal, what was that when you were there-a fan or a furnace ? A. There was no 
fan. 
7791. Q. It was a furnace then? A. Yes; and it appeared to be all right. 
7792. Q. Can you account for Mount Pleasant being so unsatisfactory as compared with the others? A. I 
think it was the bad system of ventilation. Of course, a man is not allowed to roam over a mine to find 
out the cause of it ; but there was something scandalously wrong somewhere. 
7793. Q. You mean not necessarily because a sufficient amount of air was not introduced into the mine; 
but because it was badly managed inside? A. I think that had a lot to do with it. 
7791. Q. You are in Mount Keira at present? A. Yes. 
7795. Q. That is a fan? A. No ; a furnace. 
7790. Q. What is your experience of the ventilation there ? A. Mount Keira is pretty well ventilated 
now. 
7797. Q. It is satisfactory ? A. Yes. 
7798. Q. And what was your experience of Kembla with the exception of these hot places that you told 
us you reported once? A. I thought Kembla was well ventilated. That is my experience of it, of 
course. 
7799. Q. I am not speaking about other people's experience through you? A. No. 
7830. Q. During the nine months that you were in Keinbia, did you ever experience the air becoming 
suddenly stationary? A. No; I do not recollect that. 
7801. Q. Did you ever experience the air being reversed-suddenly going the opposite way ? A. Not in 
Kembla. 
7802. Q. Did you ever hear of its doing so? A. I have seen it occur in Mount Keira a good few years 
ago. 
7803. Q. To what did you attribute that? A. Well, I had no experience. 
7804. Q. Did you ever find out? A. The miners considered it was westerly winis that did it then. I do 
not know. 
7805. Q. That is what you heard from your fellow miners? A. Yes. 
7806. Q. Did that occur mona than once in Keira? A. It occurred almst every time a westerly wind 
blew in Keira, at one time. 
7807. Q. Did it occur latterly? A. I never heard tell of it latterly. 
7808. Q. And the westerly winds have not stopped blowing, have they? A. No. 
78 9. Q. You have told us that you knew two ways out of Mount Kembla; that is to say, that you knew the 
way you came in, and you knew the daylight tunnel on the east side? A. Yes 
7810. Q. How did you find that daylight tunnel out ? A. I found it out from other miners. 
7811. Q. The miners told you of that way out? A. The minors came out that way for a short cut home; 
and it suited me to come out that way for a short cut home too and I took advantage of it. 
7812. Q. Were you ever stepped from going out that way? A. No. 
7813. Q. Were you ever told that you were not allowed to go out that way? A. No; not by an official,. 
like. 
7814. Q. I mean by an official. Did any official know you went out that way? A. I did not meet an 
official on the road; but it was well known that the men did go out that way. 
7815. Q. And no objection was ever offered to your going out? A. No. 
7816. Q. How came you to go out that way-was it a short cut home for you? A. Yes; it cut off about 2 
miles. 
7817. Q. And that was your reason-it was not because you wanted to know the means of escape in case of 
accident? A. No. 
7818. Q. Do many of the miners go that way ? A. Only those living on that side who take advantage 
of it. 
7819. Q. That herd 72, in which you worked; was not that in the highest pan of the mine, as far as you 
know it? A. Yes ; it was in the false bottom. 
7820. Q. There is a considerable rise as you go up to it? A. No. 
7821. Q. Then is 72 not a high part? A. It is out of a bit of a swallow; but not a really high part. 
7822. Q. Do you know of a rule by which you miners are required to report anything you may discover 
in the mine? A. I have heard tell of it; but I have never read it. 
7823. Q. You have a copy, 11 suppose, of this little book (book of rules) P A. I have been too busily 
engaged working to study it. 
7821. Q. You have sixteen hours out of the twanty-fourP A. Tmat is to eat audslcp. 
7825. Q. You do not sleep sixteen hours? A. Well, I have never studied that. 
7826. Q. You know this rule: "41. All employees must report to the Manager or official in charge any 
defect they may discover in the machinery or appliances, or any appearance of fire-damp, choke-damp, or 
other noxious gas, or any defect in the roof or sides of the mine, or any other indication of danger from 
any other cause"? Al. Yes I have heard tell of the rule. 
7827. Q. You know very well that when gas appears frequently in the mine it becomes an element of danger 
to yourself and all your fellow miners? A. I know it now. 
7828. Q. Did not you know it before? A. I suppose a man gets accustomed to those things. 
7829. Q. Your mate, you say, used to treat it as a joke? A. He used to kind of ridicule me when I spoke 
about it. 
7830. Q. He chaffed you? A. Yes. 
7831. Q. And you thought it a proper thing I suppose to succumb to the chaff; and to also treat it 
lightly? A. That is it. 
7832. Q. What would you do now if you discovered gas? A. I woull report it. 
7833. Q. Fearlessly P A. There is no doubt about that. I would not be the slightest bit frightened to. 
report it. 
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7831. Q. Whom would you report it to? A. I would report it to the deputy. 
7835. Q. Do you think that would be done by most men now if they discovered gas? A. No; I do not 
think so. 
7836. Q. You do not think that the majority of them would do that ? A. No. 
7 83 7. ( ). 1 think I know why; but I would like you to say why-for what reason? A. Oh, well, I suppose 
they are a bit frightened of the management, that is all. 
7838. Q. And, as far as your experience goes, has that been the old objection? A. Yes. 1 have never had 
any objection myself. 
7839. (7. Then, I understand, you have changed your attitude in that respect ? A. No doubt. 
7810. (7. Late events have given you more courage than you had before? A. It was not for the want of 
courage. 
7811. (7. Would you have never done it before if you had realised the danger? A. There is no doubt 
about it. 
7842. Q. And chanced the result ;--you are a bird of passage, you said? A. Yes. 
7843. life. Wade.] He had no fear of the result. 
7841. Witness.] I would take my chance. 
7815. life. Bruce iSrnith.] 0. Would you be afraid of the black-list? A. I am not afraid of it, in a sense. 
Of course, a man might be thrown out of work; but that would not make me a bit frightened. 
7816. 0. You are not married? A. No. 
7817. Q. You have not so much anxiety as a man who has a lot of bairns ? A. That has an effect, no 
doubt. 
7818. Q. When you saw that flame which Mr. Wade examined you about, I think you said you did 
not put your head down so that you could not see it; and you did see it ;-can you tell me what colour 
that flame was ? A. 11 had not time to see the colour. 
7819. Q. I did not ask what Liberty shade. Was it red or blue? A. No red or blue; in my opinion it 
was just like a white light. 
7850. Q. Was it like an ordinary red flame? A. No; there was no red flame about it. It was more like 
the light of a kerosene lantern-just a light like. I did not have time to look at the edges of it to see if it 
was blue. 
7851. Q. Do you remember the flame on the other flare that you saw when going into the face, when it 
come out 12 feet-oh, that is the occasion ? A. Yes. 
7852. Q. But there is another occasion when the staff lighted and went in agtio? A. I did not stJ1) to 
see the colour of the flame. 
7853. Q. You told us of too occasions - one in which it came out about 10 or 12 feet? A. Yes. 
7831. Q. And another in which it Caine out about a yard or 4 feet? A. Yes. 
7833. Q. Were they about the same colour? A. Yes; as near as I could jtldge. 
7850. (7. \Vhich was it you saw first-the 3 or 4 feet one? A. No ; the one in the shaft section. 
7857. (7. That is the one that caused you to bob down? A. Yes. 
7858. (7. The other one-did you see that? A. Yes; I just saw it the same as I saw the other: just a 
flash, and it was gone. 
7830. Q. You cannot tell me the colour? Was it nearer to red, or blue, or white ? A. It appeared to 
be white. 
7860. (7. Is it the sort of flame which you got from a coal fire? A. How do you mean? An ordinary- 
7861. (7. Coal fire. 
7802. His Honor.] The witness honestly says he had not time to see it. 
7863. Mr. Bruce S'mit1s.] And I honestly ask him something further. 
7804. His Ho'nor.i It was very much a case of stand from under. 

Examination by Mr. Ritchie :- 

7805. Q. Where you saw that 12 feet of flame, was that in No. 72 ? No; that was in the heading in the 
Shaft section. 
7a66. (7. That was the heading that Maunders and Williams were working in? A. Yes. 
7867. (7. Did you go up to the face after you saw the flame? A. No; I did not bother going back agai:i. 
7861. (7. had you been i:i the face previous to the flame? A. 1 had often been in for the loan of the 
machine, and different things like that. 
7869. (). l[ow far was the brattice off the face there P A. I could not tell you that. I Lever took that 
much notice. 
7870. (). Would it be within 12 feet of the face? A. I would not like to say exactly, as far as the bratce 
is concerned ; because I never took any notice of anything like that. 
7S71. Q. how far were you off the face when you saw the 12 feet of flame? A. I got pretty close to the 
face ; and when I put my light up she caine over me. I got in a crouching position, down low. 
7872. (). How do you manage to know the exact distance the flame was P A. I suppose I guessed it, like 
anybody else. 
7873. Q. Do you recollect if the flame came on the outbye side of the brattice; or was it all on the 
inside P A. On the inside. The brattice was not close in then. 
7874. Q. Then the brattice was not close in ? A. Not at that particular time. 
7873. (7. Was there much smoke at that time? A. A good deal of smoke. 
7870. (2. Were the smoky conditions right along the face? A. It was coining round the brattice. There 
was a certain amount of smoke behind the brattice when we went in. Itwas driven in by the shot. 
7877. (7. What was it ]it it? A. My lamp. 
7878. (7. Were you the first that went in after the shot had been fired? A. I was the first that went in 
to have a look at it. I was a bit inquisitive. 
7879. (7. You were not so inquisitive afterwards? A. No. 
7880. (7. Was the smoke thicker than you have seen on other occasions after firing shots? A. I would 
not think so. 
781. Q. have you ever seen the smoke lit after firing shots at all? A. Whl, I would not like to say. 
Well, I suppose it would be smoke: I have seen a red flare burn in a hole after a sh t had been fired 
but of course it is more like coal-dust-a little bit burning. 
7882. 0. What made you think this was gas ? A. The liveliness of it, I suppose. 7883. 
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7833. Q. It lit up in a hurry? A. It did; very quickly. 
7834. Q. And did not you notice the colour of the light at all when it lit A. It was a light colour; 
that is all I noticed-a rather bright light. 
7885. Q. Did it flash all across the face at once or burn gradually outwards? A. It flashed from low down 
UI) ]fl that direction out and towards the roof; out that way and up. to the roof at the same time. 
78S0. Q. Were you examining the top of the shot, or down in the bottom part of it P A. I looked for a 
crack to see whether she was broken in the bottom. I just put my light down like that; audI kept down 
low for fear anything might be there. I had boen warned by different mcii that it was possible to light 
things like that. 
7887. Q. Possible to light what? A. They considered it was powder smoke. 
7888. Q. What did you consider it was? A. I considered it was gas. 
7889 Q. Who warned you previous to that about the probability of some smoke igniting after a shot? 
A. It was a mate I worked with in Kembla-a Yankee fellow-that told me to be careful when we went 
back to a shot like that. 
7800. Q. I suppose you have fired many a shot, have you not? A. Yes. 
7891. Q. And, apart from these two occasions that you have mentioned Iiere-'Maunders and Williams' 
heading, and No. 72, which you were working in your-have you seen it light any other times P Are 
those the on] times you have seen it light ? A. Yes. 
7892. Q. Have you seen the smoke equally as thick in other places P A. Yes ; and I never lit it. 
7893. Q. Quite as thick? A. Yes, 
7891.. Q. And you have taken your lamp and examined in the same way P Yes. 
7595 Q. And had no light? A. Yes. 
7899. Q. How far was the brattice from the face of No. 72 ;-you had a light there, which, in your 
opinion, was gas P A. Yes ; what I thought was gas. 
7897. Q. That was after a shot had been fired? A. Yes. 
7898. Q. 1{ow far was the brattice off the face on that occasion? A. I would say it was about, as near as 
I could judge, 4 yards. 
7899. Q. And how far did the flame come back on that occasion in No. 72 P A. In my opinion it was 
about 3 or 4 feet ; it just made a quick flash out and back again. 
7900. Q. Was this shot also hanging? A. Yes. 
7901. Q. Were the conditions very smoky then P A. Yes ; there was a good deal of smoke there. 
7902. Q. Did the smoke hang about the place long after you had fired the shot? A. No; it got away 
pretty quickly. 
7003. Q. About how long P A. It was a thing I never took particular notice of, you know ; but I will say 
about ten minutes, I suppose, and she would be pretty clear. 
7901. Q. It would take about ten minutes to ('lear ? A. Yes ; that is to be pretty well clear. 
7905. Q. had you any reason to complain about the ventilation in that hadiag at all? A. No; not in 
that heading. 
7900. Q. Are these the only tn-u places you worked in ii Mount Kembla-that number off that beading, 
and No. 72? A. 1 worked in about four or five different hods. 
7907. Q.  All in the same locality P A. Yes :just in the middle of the qmiaiter I alaiti d ; and I was shifted 
from one to the other ; and then I got a cavil from one to another, and then I was in the general cavil 
after that. 
7908. Q. And the whole of your experience Li Kcmbla, from a coal-getter's point of view, was in this 
particular section? A. Yes. 
7909. Q. That is between No. 41 bord, which you worked in, and No. 72 P A. Yes. 
7910. Q. You have not any knowledge of the state of the ventilation in other parts of the colliery, have 
you? A. No. 
7911. Q. You told us that you thought the ventilation at Bulli Colliery war very good during your time 

Bulli there ;-what part of the Colliery were you working in then? A. lull End. 
7912. Q. In a heading or bord? A. A bord. 
7913. Q. Was the brattice kept well up there ? A. Yes ; fairly close. Well, within a reasonable distance. 
7914. Q. Were you in one place the whole of the time? A. 1 worked in two different places. 
7915. Q. One close to the other? A. I suppose it would be two or three headings away from the other; 
but both in the right-hand section. 
7910. Q. Both ventilated by the one current P A. I could not say. 
7917. Q. I suppose, generally, you do not know anything at all about the ventilation of Bulli Colliery? 
A. No. 
7918. Q. You told us about the ventilation bein somewhat bad at Mount Pleasant ;-did you see any 
black-damp there? A. Yes. 
7919. Q. Did you ever complain of that ? A. Well, there wore four or five double mcn tlicrë at one tine 
knocked off through black-damp, so there is sure to have been complaint. 
7920. Q. ilow long was that ago? A. I could not tell you the exact date. 
7921. Q. Five or six months? A. It is more than that number ofyears ao. 
7922. Q. How long have you been working at Mount Keira this last time? A. Since the begi nnmpg of 
Septem her last. 
7923. Q. In what part of Mount Keira? A. I have worked in what they call the Old Straight. 
7924. Q. Are you working in a heading? A. Yes; at present. 
7925. Q. And did I understand you to say that the ventilation was satisfactory there? A. Ycs. 
7920. Q. Is the brattice well kept up P A. Yes; pretty well. 
7927. Q. Does the examining deputy call round every day? A. Yes ; be examines every day. 
7928. Q. You are working day shift? A. No. night shift; 1 work day shift too. Day and night. 
7929. Q. You have an examining deputy at night ; and one who calls round during the day P A. Yes. 
7930. Q. Does the deputy call round regularly when you are on the day shift P A. Yes. 
7931. Q. Does he make all examination of your place? A. Yes. 
79.32. (9. What does le lo ? A. 1 could aol deci'ibe the lamp. 
7933. (9. A safety-lamp P A. Yes; and he I urns it down pretty low, and I e cxamines, perhaps, twice in 
the roof, or or, the face of the coat, or anyo here where there micht be a possible chance of anything 
dangerous. 79,34. 
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793 Ii. Q. Tie does that every day? A. Yes. 
7935. Q. Do you know anything about the ventilation of other sections of Mount Keira? A. No. 
7933. Q. So, as far as your knowledge goes, it is confined, to this particular place you are working in? 
A. Yes ; that is so. 

[Witness retired.] 

Mn. SIDNEY MIDGELEY was sworn and examined as under 

Examination-in-chief by lIr. Lysaght :- 

7937. Q. What is your name? A. Sidney Leitch Midgeloy. 
79:38. Q. What are you? A. A, miner: at present my occupation is check-weighman. 
7939. Q. 'Where? A. South Clifton. 
7910. Q. Are you a member of the Delegate Board of the Tllawarra Miners' Union? A. Yes. 
7911. Q. llave you ever worked in Mount Kembla? A. No. 
7.01.2. Q;What has been your mining experience? A. About ten years' Coloni:d experience, and five in 
the old country. 
7943. Q. What mines in the old country P A. In Yorkshire. 
7911. Q. How long have you been working at South Clifton? A. A.bout a year and nine months. 
791.5. Q. What style of ventilation have you there; it furnace or a fan. A. A fan 
7916. Q. Have you worked in any mines in this district where the furnace was used ? A. Not in this 
Colony. 
7917. Q. You know these recommendations from the Delegate Board Y A. Yes. 
7918. Q. Take the first one, that Managers, under-managers, deputies, and shot-firers should hold. 
certificates of competency by examination. have you anything to say in support of that recommendation? 
A. I have got authority from my Lodge that I am a member of, the South Clifton Lodge of Miners, to 
strongly support these recommendations. They think it is fit and proper that these recommendations 
should be put in force for the protection of their lives. Men take the positions of deputies ; and, in our 
opinion, their ambition is too high for their capabilities. 
7919. Q. has that been your own experience? A. Yes ; that has been my own experience. 
7950. Q. Who is your shot-flre.r at South Clifton? A. Well, at present the shot-firers are different from 
what they were when I was on the coal there. 
7931. Q. When you were on the coal, who was the eliot-firer? A. Alyward. 
7932. Q. Do you know whether ho had any experience as a shot-firer? A. l[e is a man that I was not 
acquainted with before I went to work there. 
7953. Q. And how long has it been the practice at South Clifton for a special shot-firer to be employed ? 
A. On the first occasion that the safety-lamps VOrO intro huccd they were appointed : and then the safety- 
lamps were taken out, and put in again on the 8th of September ; and on both occasions they appointed 
special shot-firers. 
7031. Q. Do you know why the lamps were put into South Clifton? A. Owing to the gas. 
79.35. Q. Did you ever discover gas there? A. Yes ; I have seen gas there. 
7956. Q. how long before the lamps were put in ? A. They were put in shortly after we saw gas there- 
in certain portions of it the first time ; but about the other portions I do not know. The lamps were 
introduced into the portion I was in. 
7957. Q. had you seen much gas there ? A. I had seen it flare up after firing a shot. 
7958. Q. Is the whole mine worked with saftev-lamps now P A. Not quite. The whole of the miners 
that are on contract work, and the wheelers, are using safeties ; but there are it lot of shift-men on the 
roads that are using naked lights. We requested the Manager to put safety-lights in the whole of the 
pit ; and lie told us lie was responsible for that, not we. 
7959. Q. Who is your Manager there? A. Mr. Wilson. 
7900. Q. Do you know whether lie holds a certificate by examination? A. No ; it is a service certificate, 
so I believe. 
7961. Q. Did you give him any reason why you wanted safety-lamps in the whole of the pit? A. We 
gave Inmn this reason : that we did not consider ourselves safe if our neighbour was using the naked light 
u hen we were using the safey_liglits. 
7002. Q. Was that a deputation that went to him ? A. Yes.. 
7933. Q. In your opinion is it now safe to work any part of that pit with a naked light ? A. In my 
opinion it is not. 
7901. Q. And do you voice the opinion of all men when you say that ? A. Well, the meeting carried 
the motion unanimously that a deputation should wait upon him to have these naked lights taken off the 
road. 
7935. Q. When lie refused to put the safeties in all parts of the mine, did you do anything, or diii the 
Lodge do anything P A. No ; lie gave us to understand that the responsibitity all lay on his shoulders 
and we told him that after the mine had blown up it would be too late to have the responsibility on his 
shoulders. 
7900. Q. What did be say to that A. Tie said that wos his business. 
7937. Q. Did lie make any suggestion about dismissal or anything like that? A. No; lie did not, not 
that I am aware of. The deputation's report was not to that effect, 
793$. Q. Did you, as a Lodge, make any representations to the Inspector or the Cluef Inspector con-
cerning what von regarded as the non-safety of the mine P A. No ; we do not carry it any further than 
that. 
7969. 9. how many inert are employed there ? A. There are, I suppose, from about 160 to 170. 
7970. Q. Do you know whether as has often been found there? A. Well, it is there occasionally now. 
It is seen there now very often. 
7971. Q. Do yorr know whether that is reported ? A. I cannot say whether it is reported or not. The 
(overnment Inspector is in there very often now. 
7972. Q. is the deputy that you have there certificated by any examination ? A. The underground-
manager I believe has got a çei'tificate as second or third, I am not sgre whfch. 

7973. 
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7973. Q. By examination or service? A. I think it is by examinatLn. 
7974. Q. What about the deputy? A. I could not say. 
7975. Q. And you do not know about the shot-firer? A. He has none at all. - 
7970. Q. Is no provision made for watering the place where the shot is fired ? A. Since the Kembla 

disaster there has been. 
7977 Q. Before that, was any provision made? A. No. 
7978. Q.  Is this a dusty mine? A. Yes. 
7979. Q. You have had experience of dusty and non-dusty mines? A. Yes. 
7980 Q. You say that this is a very dusty mine? A. Well, in portions of it-that is to say, it is not one 

of the worst I have worked in, by a long way. 
7981.. 0. Is this watering now carried on systematically ? A. I believe it is. They have arrangements 

there, and the water is constantly coming down for the nurpose. 
79S2. Q. Recommendation No. 2, 'That Inspectors should be vested with absolute powers to order the 
use of safety-lamps." In view of what you have told us, do you think an Inspector should have 
absolute power to order in the safety-lamps ? A. Yes ; I consider they should have more power than 
they have. 
79S:3. Q. Would the men at South Clifton be more satisfied, if the Inspectors had that power, to leave it 
to him P A. They unanimously agreed to that motion from the Delegate Board. They unanimously 
agreed to the recommendation from the Delegate Board. 
7oS I. Q. And it is a fact that they would lose in their wages from the introduction of tim safety-lamp 
it would make a difference? A. Yes a vast difference. 
7985. Q. You know there is a vast difference? A. Yes. 
7989. Q. You know that as eheck-weighman P A. Yes. 
7987. Q.  What would the men suffer in a general way if the lamps were introduced all over the place? 
A. Well, we have suffered a 25 per cent. reduction, I consider. 
798S. Q. And, notwithstanding that, the miners unanimously wanted this extra precaution? A. In the 

first instan w ce, hen the iauager introduced them the first time, on the 8th of September, he was only 
going d to introduce them to one side of the pit ; and we waited on him then, and told him we wishe 
them to be introduced throughout the pit. I-Ic did that then, bar the rope roads ; where they used the 
naked lights. All the miners and wheelers have safeties-all, bar the shift-men on the roadway. 
799. Q. Recommendation No. 3, substitution of fan for furnace. What do you say to that? A. I 

consider it is right. A fan is more to be depended upon than a furnace. 
7900. Q. Illave you had experience of bad ventilation through furnaces? A. I have worked in a colliery 

in Victoria where we have had to cease w'ork through it. 
7991. Q. From the defective working of the furnace? A. I do not say it was from the defective working 
of the furnace; but we had to cease work ; and we sent word down to the Department; and they sent 
an Inspector up; and lie said it was defective, as our check-inspectors had reported. 
7992. Q. What was the name of that colliery P A. Outtrim. 
7993. Q. Was a fan put in afterwards? A. No. I do not think it is put in yet. 
7991. 0. 1-lave you ever known the air to be reversed in a mine with a furnace? A. I cannot say that I 

have. I have felt a check in the air. 
7995. Q. have von felt the air stationary P A. Some days you get air very good, and other days not so 
good. In my opinion, the condition of the atmosphere and the direction of the wind have a lot to do 
with it. 
7900. Q. Recommendation No. 4, the sealing off of waste workings, and surrounding them by return 
airways ;-what do you say on that matter P A. I have seen a little of it (sealing off), but not a great 
amount of it. But if there is anything lodges in it (the waste), I think it ought to be allowed to 
come out. 
7907. Q. Recommendation No. 5, cut-throughs every 30 yards -what do you say on that? A. Where 
eut-throughs dre further apart than that, there is a great chance of the bratticing being knocked down 
and the air escaping. 
7998. Q. What is the average length of the cut-throughs at South Clifton ? A. They are about 33 yards, 

I suppose, or 10. 
7909. Q. And is the bratticing kept well up at South Clifton? A. Pretty well. 

SOtO. Q. Then what distance from the face ? A. Sometimes it is put up .too far for us working without 
a shirt the cold air comes right up on you at the face. 
8001. .Mr. Wrule.] Q. Do you mean you catch cold-it is too cold? A. Yes; it comes on your back too 

cold. 
8002. Afr. Lysoq/ifj Q. In your opinion would the roof be weakened by having the cut-throughs only 
30 yards distant from one another? A. It would, I suppose, nialce a slight difference in that. 
8003. Q. To a dangerous extent? A. I think it could be protected, though, by timber. 
8001. Q. Recommendation No. 0 ;-is the South Clifton Mine inspected every morning with a locked 
safety-lamp? A. Plugged. The safety-lamp is plugged there. 
S00.5. Q. Recommendation No. 7, monthly examination with hydrogen flame. What do you say on that ? 
A. It has a tendency to keep the mine more intact, more safe, by having constant examinations of that 
description. 
8000. (2. in your opinion would the men have a greater sense of security? A. Yes. 

80;7. (9. Recommendation No. 12, extra supply of safety-lamps to be kept at the mine. Did you go to 
Ken bla after the disaster? A. I was there on the Friday morning. 
8008. Q. Do you know whether any lamps were sent from South Clifton to Kembla? A. We took some 
down with us. 
8009. Q. had you any reason for taking them with voa? A. We took them with us with the intention of 
going in if we had the opportunity of assisting. 
801.0. (9. Did you know you could not get lamps at Kembla? A. Yes. 
SOIL (9. How did you know that? A. Word came, I think. 
8012. (9. Did you take more than you wanted for your own use ? A. Yes; 1. think so. 
SO[3. (9. had you any reserve of lamps at South Clifton, or have you now? A. No; not now I think. 
There may be. I could not say for certrin, because I know the Manager has ordered a lot from the old 
country. 8014. 
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801.-1. Q. Recommendation No. 13, watering the travelling and haulage roads : what do you say on that 
matter? A. in some mines the travelling roads are terribly dusty; and, in consequence, travelling 
arnongt the horses and panes, you cannot see and it makes it very bad travelling, and more dangerous 
travelling than it would be if there were water to keep it down. 
8013. (7. Do they water the travelling roads at South Clifton at all ? A. I believe there has been a little 
put on lately. 
8010. Q. Is there much dust on the travelling roads at South Clifton? A. Yes, there was; but I believe 
they have been cleaned up lately. 
8017. (7. Recommendation No. 1-f. You might tell me how often you have seen Mr. Wilson under-
ground P A. I sav him, perhaps, say, once a mouth, when 1 was underground ; but I see him go down 
very often now, pretty nearly every day. 
$01.8. 0. Is that since time Kembla disaster PAW Well, it is since then that I have held the position on 
to1) so that I can see him go down. 
Suit). (,,). Recommendation No. 10. have you manholes at South Clifton that you vise P A. There are 
manholes ott the main road. 
8020. Q. But that is not your travelling road P A. That is not our travelling road. There are bits of 
cut-thiroughs from the travelling road. 

(7. Do von think the manholes are large enough in case of accidents? A. I consider the man- 
holes on t he main road, on the main ban lv, at South Clifton are rather curious the manhole itself would 
be U feet high and 4 feet sonare, and the height of the road is only 4 feet, 

(). In your opinion, is it wide enough P A. In my opinion, a couple of feet wider would make it 
more convenient. 
8023. Q. Recommendation No. 18, instruction to miners its to the exits : how many roads do you know 
out of South Clifton? A. Well, there is only one travelling road. There are two from the pit bottom to 
daylight ; we have lust  closed one lately and opened another one. 
8024. (7. How do you get out of the South Clifton Mne P Do you walk out of the tunnel or come up a 
shaft P A. Out of time tunnel. 
802.5. (7. is that the only way you know out? A. That is the only way. 
8020. (7. In case of a disaster, and the pit getting blocked up, how can the men get out? A. I believe 
there is a way up by the return air course. 
8027. (. Do you know that way P A. No. I do not think out of 100 men there are twelve who know 
that. 
8028. Q. Recommendation No. 1.9. have you had any experience of a black list ? A. I have heard talk 
of it ; but I have never seen it in force. 
8020. Q. Do you know of any particular eases where men have been prevented ft omfl getting employment 
for having reported things? A. No. I knew a ceac in Victoria where a man got sacked from one 
colliery ; and lte could not get a start in the district. 
8030. Q. have you had any experience in New South Wales, in the lllavvarra district, of cases where men 
have by en vict i wised in that way P A. Not in my time ; but I have heard talk of it. 
80:31. (). In your opinion, would a provision like that tend to make the men report more than they do on 
bad manacement PA.That has a tendency to deter them from reporting things. 
8032. 0. The absence of a provision like that (Recnminendstioiv 10) P A. Ye.i. 
8033. (7. Recommendation No. 20. flow cia they light the fuse at South Clifton? A. With shot-firing 
lamps. 
803 1. (7. }Iow do they use the lamp ? Do they open it? A. No ; by wire. 
8033. (7. Iii your opinion, is it a dangerous practice to open a safety-lamp to light a fuse P A. If it is 
dangerous to use a nalced light, it is dangerous to open the safety-lamp, in my opinion. 
80:30. Q. You think that is a dangerous pm'act'e P A. Yes. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Wade :- 
8037. Q. Supposing time safety-lamp is used as a precaution, and there is nor, necessarily gas in the place; 
do you say it is dangerous then to open the safety-lamp P A. If the lamp is used asapr ecautwn. 
8035. Q. Yes? A. L think if they are use.i at all, they should be used right throughout properly. 
8030. Q. Supposing you k tow there is no ,,-,s in the place, is there any danger in opening a safety-lamp 
then to lire a shot 1? A. There may be a blower of gas. 
8010. Q. Supposing you know there is not a blower. There are ways of finding out, are there not? 
8011. Ills llonoi'.l It is realk' a waste of time to ask the witness that question ; which comes to this, ''if 
there- is no danger, is there danger ?'' lie says that, if there is a necessity for enforcing a provision to 
meet the possibility of danger, however remote, it is as well to continue enforcing it. That is a self-evident 

P"° poSi hit. 
80 12. Mr. Bruce Semi//i.] The witness really says there may be no gas at the time ; but there may be it 

blo wee. 
8013. Ills flonor.] Yes ; that is the answer that suggests itself. 
SO-li. Mr Wade.] Q. Now, what partof South Clifton did they put these safely-lamps into first of all ? 
A. On the right side. 
801.5. (7. \Vhiat are they passing through thieve? Disturbed countm'y ? A. A return airivay. 
SOLO. (7. Are they passing through some disturbed country P A. No. 
5017. (7. Was not there a big fault there P A. They had just gone through the fault a long way ; but it 
was time return. The air was passing that way back. 
8018. Q. \Vere not time lamps useil in going through this fault at all? A. Not while we were on the fault. 
8019. (7. That is only a small part of the mine at all events? A. Yes. 
8030. (7. And then they were taken away from there ? A. Ills. 
805 t. (7. And since then they have been put in in another part of the mine PA. They have been put all 
through the mine in time working places. 
8052. (7. And what do you call the roadways ;-do you mean the intake airway? A. It is the intake 
airway. 
S053. (7. Then you say that on the main intake airway the men work with naked lights P A. Yes. 
8051. (7. \Vhat is the (hanger of that? A. it is not the danger of the men worhcing on time intake; but it 
is the danger of time men leaving the road with the light on their hmead, and goimig into the return airway. 

6055. 
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8055. Q. That is, if they break the rules and do not do their duty, there may be danger? A. Yes; a 
man may be taken short, and go in there with the naked light. 
8050. Q. Then, if the men neglect their duty and disobey the rules, then, even with the naked lights 
allowed on the main intake, there may be dangr P A. Yes. 
8057. Q. I am quite prepared to admit that. Now, why was it that aou did not complain to the Govern-
ment Inspector if you thought this was a serious matter? A. if we complain to the Government 
ment Inspector we are in the black books, as the saying is, with the manageinet. 
8058. Q. Now, do you say that the Miners' Lodge, as a body, are afraid to report this to the Government 
Inspector? A. I do not say the Miners Lodge, as a body, are, but th rni.ir individually are. 
809. Q. You say, individually you do not like to do it, but, as a Lodge or a body, you have no fear to 
bring it under the notice of the Government Inspector? A. Yes; but it has to be done individually in 
the first place. Say a nian reports to the Lodge that gets to the Manager's ears. 
8060. Q. Now, you went as a body to the Manager? A. Yes. 
8061. Q. And you say lie 'would not grant your request? A. Yes. 
8002 Q. Now, as it is a serious matter, why did you not go to the Government Inspector in the same 
Wa? A. For the reason that the Government Inspector has not got the power to order him to do it. 
833.3. Q. Why did you not make some complaint to him about it? A. We did not think it worth while, 
when be had no power to alter the conditions.. 
8034. Q. Now, you say you have known the air to be., not reversed, but stationary, in South Clifton? 

n A. Not in South Clifto. 
8055. Q. In what place? A. In Victoria, by the furnace. 
8966. Q. You were asked, with regard to So"'ith Clifton, if you had known the ventilation to be reversed, 
and your answer was No, it has been still "P A. Not in South Clifton. 
8067. Q. You have not even known it to be still? A. Not in South Clifton. 
8069. Q. You are not prepared to say, I suppose, when you are on the coal, that the Manager was not 
down the pit very frequently during the week? A. I could not say except what I have seen. 
8039. Q. All you can say is how often you saw him in your working place? A. Yes. 
8070. Q. Now, when you happen to be on the pit-head, you can see if he goes down ? A. Not every day. 
8971. Q. You do not suggest that be has gone down more frequently since the dsaster at Kembla? 
A. Precautions have been taken since the disaster. 
3372. Q. You are not in a position to say he goes dowis more frequently than he used to P A. No ; I cannot say. 
8073. Q. Now, you complain that the manholes are only 4 feet high? A. I said 6 feet high. 
8074. Q. The manholes are 0 feet there? A. Yes. 
8075. Q. That is all right then? A. But they are not wide enough, inour opinion, to accommodate more 
than one or two, or two or three, men. 

(At this stage Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take Shorthand Notes of the Evidence and Proceedings.) 
Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith 

8076. Q. I understand you to say that, since the Mount Kembla affair, more caution has been noticeable? 
A. immediately afterwards they watered the main roads and introduced lamps. 
8077. Q. I understand that watering had not been done before? A. I never saw it done before. 
8078. Q. How do they do it now? A. By watering-tubs. 
8079. Q. How is the water ejected? A. How a pipe across the end of the tub, with a spray. 
8080. Q. Like the street watering cart? A. The same kind. 
8081. Q. How high up the ribs does the spray throw the water? A. A foot or 15 inches. 
8082. Q. It waters all the floor and outside the rails? A. Yes. 
S033. Q. Do I understand you to say that the mine is dusty? A. In parts. 
8181. Q. Are there any parts dusty now? A. Where the shots are fired they water it. 
8085. Q. The lamps were put in after the Kemnbla explosion? A. Yes. 
80S6. Q. You said something about lamps being put in, taken out again, and put in again? A. That was 
about fifteen or eighteen months ago. 
8037. Q. What was that for;-why take them out after they had been once put in? A. The airways 
were more connected. 
8088. Q. They were made more perfect, and the lamps withdrawn? A. Yes, 
80S9. Q. What occurred to induce them to put them in again? A. The mine got more gassy ; and they 
were put in again. 
8090. Q. Now do you know the mine was more gassy? A. By the Deputies. 
8031. Q. Do you know whether they reported gas P A. I do not know. We are not allowed the 
privilege of knowing what they report. 
8092. Q. How do you know that it became more gassy. How do you know that that was the impression 
on his mind? A. I do not know. - 
8393. Q. It is only surmise on your part? A. It is surmise on my part. 
8094. Q. You tell us that you met with gas in a good many places in that mine;-can you tell me how 
many places there are in which you have met with it? A. When using the lamps we do not take any 
notice of it. We may put a lamp np 
8095. Q. You find out that it is there, and take steps to brush it out? A. We often take our coats and 
knock it out. 
8006. Q. You are not anxious about it now A. No; with the safety lamps we feel more protected. 
8097. Q. How many furnace mines have you worked in in New South Wales? A. None. 
8003. Q. How many in Victoria P A. One. 
8099. Q. You said that whilst you were w-orking with a furnace the air was bad and you had to stop, 
and alterations were made P A. They had to make a lot of alterations before we were alloud to work 
again. 
8103. Q. After they had made a lot of internal alterations was it all right P A. It was not so bad; but 
it used to get hot at times. 
8101. Q. Is it hot now? A. Not so bad as with a furnace. 

8102. 
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8102. You have not had a chance of comparing the same mine with a furnace and without one ; but you 
are bearing a mine with it furnace in your mind -do you find it hut at South Clifton P A. The only 
time is when we have a lot of bratticing behind us and are driving cut_throughs. 
8103. Q. You have never had the opportunity of being in a mine with furnace ventilation, and in the 
seine mine with a fan? A. No, 1 never had that opportunity. 
8101, Q, Do I understand you to say that, in your opinion, it would weaken a roof to have cut-throughs 
frequently ? A. It naturally would; but .1 think the. roof could be protected at the same time. 
8105. Q. 1-lave you had occasion to form an opinion as to how it would weaken the roof :-what is the 
extent of your knowledge? A. I have seen the 1\Ietropoiitan, where they are from 30 to 35 yards. 
8106 Q. Do you know the necessity for support is regulated by the weight above the roof of the mine. 
You do not require the same support in shallow as in other ground. :Do you know what height of ground 
there is over the different parts of the mine you are in now P A. No. 
8107. Q. Therefore you cannot form an opinion? A. No. 

Examined by Mr. Robertson :- 

8108. Q. I think you said there were some deputies and shot-firers at South Clifton that you had not 
confidence in ? A. I did not say that I had not confidence in them, but I did not know who they were. 
8100. Q. I think your words were that, their positions were too high for their capabilities? A. My 
opinion is that their ambition is higher than they are capable of doing in many cases. 
8110. Q. how do you know that, did you examine them P A. We form an opinion when we seo a man 
come in and fire a shot first. 
8111. Q. Now why do you come to that conclusion? A. They come and do it in a careless way. 
8112. Q. flow P A. They pat the lamp up and down in. a mnormcnt-I do not consider that is a sufileicut 
test for -as. 
8113. Q. It does not take very long for any pemuon accustomed to detect gas to detect its presence? A. 
If a man has not held that position before, it would take him longer in my opinion. 
8114. Q. Do you know whether any of them have not leld that position before? A. I could not say. 
Vve have our own opinions. 
8115. Q. Do you know whether the Manager satisfied himself that this man was capable? A. I cannot 
sa. 
1L6. Q. Do you not think it probable that he would-do..you not think that no Manager would like an 

incompetent man? A. One would naturally think so. 
8117. Q. Now as to watering the roads-what do you think is the object in watering the roads? A. To 
keep down the dust principally. 
$118. Q. I think you said it was uncomfortable to walk along them? A. It is uncomfortable. 
8119. Q. It is a matter of comfort, is it? A. Safety and comfort. 
8120. Q. In what case would danger arise from the dust ? A. By reason of compression-from what we 
reail of in dusty mines. 
8121. Q. A dusty road is not in itself dangerous P A. No, in itself it is not; but it is uncomfortable. 
8122. Q. You do not know of any danger? A. There is danger with men travelling the road having a 
pick in one hand and a lamp in the other, because dust may arise and blow in their face,-,, and perhaps they 
may fall, and fall on the end of a pick. 
8123. Q. Through their not being able to see properly when walking along, they might fall on their pick P 
A. They mnigt also fall on some timber or something lying on the side of the read. 
8121. Q. You do not know of any other danger ? A. There is only danger by explosion in time pit, which 
causcs it to be dangerous. 
8125. Q. You do not know of any other danger- how would an explosion arise in a dusty road? A. If 
the road is dusty near the face-alter an explosion in the face - 
8120. Q. But if the face is not dusty ? A. If the face is not dusty, it may not carry it ; but it is hard -to 
say how far an explosion will go. 
8127. Q. Then if the face is not dusty there is no danger in a dusty road P A. It de1ends how far the 
explosion extends. If it extends until it comes to the dust there may be danger. 
8128. Q. If time face is sufficiently watered, and other precautious are taken, do you think a dusty road 
would be dangerous? A. Well, it would not be as dangerous as if the other parts of the pit were not 
attended to. 
8120. Q. Do you not think it of more importance to have the vicinity of the face watered where the shot-
firing is carried on than time roadway P A. I do not think it necessary to water the roadway every day. 
Perhaps once a week would do. 
8133. Q. It must be watered sufficiently ;-if it is to have any effect it must be thoroughly clone? A. It 
is thoroughly done in time face, I believe. 
8131. Q. Is it not of more importance to ivater in the vicinity of the face where the shot-firing is carried 
on P A. That is the principal place to be watered. 
8132. (7. With reference to ventilation, you like a fan better than a furnace P A. Yes. 
8133. (7. I think the suggestion is made that ventilation is not so good with a furnace as with a fan P 
A. No-in my opinion a furnace is not to be depended upon. 
8131. Q. Why is it not so good in the one case as in the other? A. The atinosjmhcre has a great deal to 
do with a furnace, but it would not interfere with a fan so munch. 
8135. Q. Is that not all a question of power P A. I think a fan keeps more uniform air than a furnace. 
Sometimes with a furnace it is all air, and sometimes none. 
8130. Q. Does not the amount of air depend on a human factor? A. I think that a fan can be kept going 
at time same rate better than a furnace can. 
8137. (7. Why should it P A. It appears to be so, in my opinion. 
8138. (7. It appears to be so in a good mammy cases because the mine outgrows the capacity of the furnace, 
but the same thing may apply to a fan, you know ? A. Yes. 
8139. 0. About a hydrogen lamp, have you ever used one? A. No. 
81-10. (7 have you any knowledge as to time time taken up in making teAs? A. It would take a man, in 
mr-v c"' etinat ion, a umilmu e to make two or three tests. 
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8141. Q. If you could take two or three tests in five or six minutes you would be very clever. It takes 
three or four times as long as with the ordinary lamp P A. I never saw one used, but I believe they can 
detect less gas with them. 
8142. Q. You never saw one used; but you think that they can take two or three tests a, minute with 
them P A. That is what I thought. 
8143. Q. Do you know whether hydrogen gas can be procured in the Colony P A. No, I do not. 
8 14 1. Q. You have no idea about the cost? A. No. 
8145. (2. Do you consider the lighting of shots by electricity to be safe? A. My opinion is that it is more 
safe by wire than by a lamp, 
8146. Q. Is there any difference in lighting a shot by wire and lighting by a naked light? A. A vast 

difference, to my mind. It is a flame in one case, and only a spark in the oilier. 
8147. Q. But in the lighting of a fuse by wire; does it not suggest itself to your mind that lighting by 
a wire is to a certain extent dangerous P A. It is dangerous to a certain extent. 
8148. Q. If you can light gunpowder by a wire, do you not think it is possible to light gas by a wire? 
A. If there was the amount of gas there, I believe you could. 
8149. Q. Then, after all, it is only a question of degree or fancy? A. I consider you can light gas by a 
red wire. 
8150. Q. Do you not think the comparative safety of lighting by wire or by a naked light is only fancy? 
A. I think it more safe by wire. 
8151. Q. Do you not think it looks better P A. It looks better. 
8152. Q. I think you said that you were not allowed the privilege of seeing the reports in the book at the 
mine P A. I do not think that I ain allowed that privilege. 
8153. Q. I think you should know better than that. Being it member of the Delegate Board, do you not 
know you can see the books ? A. The check-inspector has that poiver. 
81.51. Q. You said something about the cut-throughs in the Metropolitan Colliery being 30 yards apart? 
A. In the heading. 
8155. Q. You have worked in other places than the headings P A. I have worked in the pillars. 
8156. (2. Are not the pillars 103 or 2)0 yards without cut-throughs? A. They may,  be; but I have not 
taken notice of them. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie :-- 

8157. Q. Do I understand that all the ininoro hi your Colliery are using safcty-lampi ? Al. In the face, 
they are. 
8158. Q. Are the wheelers using them P A. Yes. 
8159. Q. The shift-men working' on the road are using fl.tre lights P A. Y s. 
8163. Q. Do I understand, furvhe, that, after having considered the in sttcr at a mneetiimg of the 
underground employees, they requested the Manager to make the whole of these men use safety-lamps? 
A. Yes. 
8 16 1. Q. And he refused? A. Yes, 
8162. Q. What reason did you put before the Managerthat it was dangerous? A. We told him that it 
was not safe to use naked lights in the pit. 
8163. Q. How far do these men's duties take them towards the face? A. I good way in the main heading. 
8101. Q.  Are these men still working with flare lights although you requested the use of safety-lamps for 
your own sake? A. Yes. 
8165. Q. Do you think there is any danger with naked lights supposing a strong concussion should raise 
the dust? A. If there was a big power behind, I believe it Nvould cause that dust to ignite. 
8106. Q. You mean if there was any gas mixed with the air P A. Yes, if there was only it small portion 
of gas mixed with the air, if there was concussion, it would light. 
8167. Q. For that reason you think it injudicious to have men working on the road with naked lights P 
A. The miners consider so. 
8168. Q. Is the mine gassy? A. Well, we think it so. 
8169. Q. Are the men, generally speaking, in a state of dread over the maltei'? A. Theme is not much 
dread now--or for some time : but when we first started we kept up the agitatinu for a good bit. 
8170. Q. The agitation was to have all the men below ground supplied with sa1ety-amps ? A. Yes, 
8171. Q. They wished it, for their 0-vu salbty? A. They thought it was not safe to continue this work 
with naked lights ; and we are of the same opinion as themselves on time subject. 
8172. Q. Do 1 understand that the Manager has only a service cci tificare P A. Yes, I think so. 
8173. Q. Do you think it possible that lie does not know the danger -that lme is not qualifiod to know P 
A. We cannot say what he is qualified for. 
8174. Q. Do I understand you to advocate the cancellation of service certificates unless tho. persons 
holding them are competent to go through an examination? A. Yes, we think that there should only be 
competent men in charge of a mine, where there are all the miners' lives to risk. 
8175. Q. Do you think that, if you had a thoroughly competent man as manager, you would have safety-
lamps throughout the whole of the mine P A. In nay opinion we should. 

]lc.cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

8176. Q. You told us that the men were afraid to report, even through the Delegate Board, cases of finding 
gas. You said that somebody would have to bring it before the Lodge, and that would identity the place 
in whicb the gas was found. You feared that by identifying the place you would reveal to the 
management the source of information? A. Yes. 

Mn. JOHN RAYNOR was sworn, and examined as under :-- 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght. 

8177. Q. What is your name? A. John IRaynor. - 
8178. Q. What are you? A. A mnine', working at the Metropolitan Colliery, Ilelensburgh. 
8179. Q. How long have you been there? A. A little over seven years. 
8180. Q. lIow long in experience have you had? A. About nineteen years mining, but I have been in a 
colliery about twenty-five years. - 8181. 
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8181. Q. Before going to JTelensburgh, where did you work P A. At Katoomba, in Queensland, and at 
Gundagai. 
8182. Q. Did you ever work in England P A. Yes for about nine years altogether. 
8183. Q. Where at? A. At Bell Brcthers-the Park Mine, and at Bolvhow and Yaughan. 
818L Q. Now, which is the most gassy mine that you have been in P A. I should say the M tropolitan. 
8185. 9. Did you visit Kembla at the time of the disaster P A. Yes. 
8180. 9. What time did you reach hare P A. I could net exactly say. 
8187. 9. Roughly speaking? A. I was in the Court Roam at the time of the disaster. 
8188. Q. Do you know whether there were any safety-lamps available when you reached the mine? 
A. There were none when 1 got there. 
8189. Q. What was your experience as regards gettia safety-lamps to go into the pit? A. When we 
arrived there we went straight to the lamp-raom. We applied for lamps ; but they were not available. 
8190. 9. To whom did you apply P A. 1 could not tell you the gentleman's name. 
8191. 9. Was he the person in charge? A. lie was cleaning a lamp at the time. 
8192. 9. \Vhat answer did he make P A. That there were none available. We eoud not get lamps. 
There were three or four gentlemen waiting to go into the mine at the time ; and I believe that they got 
lamps after waiting some time. 
819:3. Q. how long were you delayed? A. I imist have been there an hour or an hour and a half; I did 
not stay at the lamp cabin all the time, but went round to the tunnel noutli. 
8194. Q. had there been a supply of lamps, could you have saved more lives P A. Yes in my opinion 
we could. I could have been in twice before the time that I got in. 
8195. 9. When you did go in, were you in No 1 Bight section P A. No. 
8190. 9. What section? J. I think they called it the shaft district. 
8197. 9. Did you handle any bodies that were burnt? A. No, I did not. 
8198. 9. Did you afterwards go into the mine to make an mnspecton. A. No. 
8199. 9. Was that the only time you were in the mine? A. Yes. 
8200. 9. You do not know anything about the disaster P A. No. 
8201. Q. Now I will ask you about these recommendations. No. 1. " i\Ianagers, under-managers, deputies, 
and shot-firers, to hold certificates of competency by examination, and to have had five i ears' practical 
mining experience, before being eligible for respective positions." What do you say in support of that? 
A. I think it is only right that they should hold these certificates, as we have pretty well to rely upon our 
deputies and managers. 
8202. Q. Take the Metropolitan Mine, do the deputies there hold certificates by examination P A. I do 
not think they have certificates. 
8203. 9. The shot.firers P A. We have none. I think what is done is done at night by the deputies. 
8204. 9. You do not know anything about this yourself? A. No. 
8205. 9. You know nothing of the qualifications of the men employed? A. I take them to be pretty good 
men ; but I do not think they hold certificates. 
8200. Q. You think they are pretty good men ? A. Yes ; good, careful men, I have known them a number 
of years. 
8207. Q. Recommendation No. 2 is that "Inspectors should be vested with absolute powers to order the 
use of safety-lamps 9" A. Yes, I think that should be done. 
808. Q. Do you know of any colliery where the Inspector wanted safety-lamps to be put in, and the 
management refused? A. I do not remember any. 
8209. Q. Recommendation No. 3 is that " ventilation by furnace should be prohibited, and fans substi- 
tuted." What have you at ilelensburgh ? A. A fan. 
8210. Q. have you ever been in a colliery where the ventilation was by furnace? A. I was in one in 
England, and in one in Queensland. 
8211. Q. What was your experience of a furnace in Queensland P A. You could hardly call it a furnace 
it was only a kind of large fire grate. 
$212. Q. Was it good to carry air? A. No ; it was very hot.. 
8213. Q. Because of defective ventilation P A. Yes. 
8214. Q. In the old country the air was good ? A. Yes. 
8215. Q. Recommendation No. 4 is Waste workings to be absolutely sealed off, and surrounded by 
return air_ways, for fear of omissions, such return air_ways not to come in contact with the intake." I 
want to know what you do with the waste workings at the Metropolitan Mine, are they sealed off? A. I 
do not think they are. I think the air course is through them, as far as I know. 
8210. Q. If it is not practicable to ventilate a waste working, what can be done with it P A. Certainly it 
should be sealed off. 
8217. Q. In addition, should the return air-ways bound them, so that the intake air cannot got into them. 
What I mean is-is it good mining practice to allow the intake air to pass through waste workings P 
A. I do not think that it should be allowed. 
8218. Q. Recommendation No. 5-" All places, except prospecting drives, to have eut-tlmroughs not more 
than 30 yards apart." What is the average distance in the Metropolitan P A. I think the cut-througha 
are 44 or 15 yards apart, but in the Welsh bords they are 100 yards apart. 
8219. Q. how often do you get Welsh bords, 100 yards apart? A. Not very often. 
8220. Q. how many are there? A. I could not give you any idea, about one-half would be Welsh bords 
and pillars. 
8221. Q. I do not understand you P A. One-half of the places in the pit would be Welsh bords ; and they 
are driven 100 yards without a cut-through. 
822. 9. How is the air carried to the face? A. By canvas. 
8223. 9. What sort of canvas? A. Ordinary mining canvas. 
8224. 9. Does it become disarranged 9 A. It has a tendency to leave the roof. They only tack it up from 
one prop to the other, over 3 feet in length ; and it sags away in the middle. 
8225. 0. Did you notice loss of air because of this? A. Yes, by the air going over the top of the canvas. 
8220. Q. has your working place been defectively supplied with air through this sagging P A. The one 
we were in last. quarter is a heading. 
8227. Q. Have von worked in any of the Welsh bords ? A. I am in one at the present time. 

10825 20-2 N 8228. 
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8228. Q. What is the condition of the air there? A. The air where I am at present is very fair. 
$229. Q. What about the sagging of the brattice? A. It does sag away from the roof it little. It always 
does. 
8230. Q. You were going to speak of a hearlmg? A. I was in one last quarter. I got down 40 yards; 
aiA it got pretty \vai'm. I pit it down to the canvas being away from the roof, because there was pleuty 
of air outside. 
8231. Q. You think there ought to be more cut.thronghs P A. Yes. 
8232. Q. There are now cut-throughs at every 44 or 45 yards? A. Yes. 
8233. Q. have you had occasion to complain of the ventilation to the officials P A. I do not think I 
complained. 
8231. Q. I-lad you occasion to complain, whether you did or did not P A. I could have complained last 
quarter. I dare say they would have fixed it up ; but, owing to the way it is tacked at present, it is not 
possible to keep it to the roof. 
8235. Q. Is there any safer way of tacking it P_I. If a batten were taken across from one prop to 
another, it could not get away then. 
8236. Q. Was the working so bad that it was not a proper place to get coal in ? A. it was not that bad 
-I think we had sufficient for what we were doing. 
8237. Q. Von put up with it? A. Yes. 
S23, Q. Had you any reason for not complaining? A. I had no reason for not complaining. 
8239. Q. What has been your general experience of the air in the Metropolitan Mine? A. I could si )t 
complain about it myself. Some of the pillars were a bit warm ; but I could not complain. 
82 LO. Q. You have got used to the pillars getting warm P A. It is natural, I think. 
8241. Q. If cut-throughs were put every 30 yards, do you think it would weaken the roof? A. No, I do 
not think it would weaken the roof in the Metropolitan. 
8212. Q. Where these Welsh bords are being worked, if they were to put in cut-throughs, would it 
make any material difference in the safety of the roof? A. I do not think it would. 
823. Q. Do you know why they drive these Welsh bords so long without cut-tliroughs? A. I have not 
the slightest idea. 
8211. Q. What is the longest drive that you know of without cut-thronghs? A. The one I am now 
working in is the longest I have been in ; it is between 00 and 70 yards-somewhere about that length. 
$215. Q. I will pass No. 0 and go on to No. 7, which is that A. monthly examination and report should 
be made by deputies and inspectors with the hydrogen flame." Do they examine with the hydrogen 
flame in the Metropolitan? A. I cannot remember. I do not know ; I am not certain ; unless the 
Manager does. I do not know what kind of a lamp he uses. 
8240. (. I will pass Recommendations Nos. 8, 9, 10, and 11. Now, with regard to No. 12, "Extra supply 
of safety-lamps and their req insites, equal to one-third of the number of persons employed below ground, 
to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use." Do you know whether any lamps were sent 
from IIelensburgh to Kembla? A. Yes. 
8247. Q. When P A. The same evening. 
$248. (9. how many P. A. I cannot remember the number. 
$2 19. (9. 1-lave you a large reserve? A. I think there is a good amount. 
8250. (9. have you a reserve stock of one-third? A. I could not say. I have no idea; I am not in the 
lamp cabin. 
8251. Q. You know there is a large supply? A. Yes. 
8252. Q. Recommendation No. 13 is that The travelling and haulage roads, and other places necessary, 
should be properly watered." What do they do at the Metropolitan? Do they water the travelling 
roads? A. They used to water one section, as far as I can remember ; but it has not been done now for 
a long while past until they did it ihis week in one section. 
8253. Q. Did the travelling road become dusty through not being watered? It is dusty, especially when 
the men and horses go in in the morning. 
3251. Q. Does much dust rise? A. Yes. 
8255. (9. Of course, there are no naked lights anywhere P A. No. 
82.50. (9. Where is this dusty part on the travelling road? A. The dust is on the pit bottom, to all the 
lain p stations in each district ; they are pretty well all alike. 
8257. Q. What is the distance? A. They,  are different distances. I suppose the shortest distance would 
be i of a mile, and the longest distance about 14-  miles. 
8258. (9. Have you ever known these dusty parts to be watered at any time? A. Only these sections. 
8259. (9. How much accumulation of dust is there on the fioor-what is the height of the dust from, off 
the solid ground? A. I suppose in a good many parts it must be 2 or 3 inches; but it is mostly at the 
sides. 
$260. Q. In your opinion, would it be proper to water these travelling roads thoroughly? A. Yes, it 
would be much better. 
8201. Q. Recommendation No. 14 is that Managers should be eompellel to give more personal time and 
attention to the management of the Colliery." Who is your Manager? A. Mr. Jcffries is Under-
Manager and Mr. Robertson General Manager. 
8262. (9. T[ow often do you sea Mr. Jeifries going through the pit-once a week or once a month? A. [ 
think we see him every week-say once a week. He may miss a week occasionally-. 
8263. Q. ITo visits the mine once a week P A. Yes. 
8201. 0. That is your experience? A. Yes. 
8205. Q. I pass No. 15 and go on to No. 10, which is that "The size of the manholes should be enlarged." 
\Vhat about the manholes in the Metropolitan-are they large enough ? A. I could not say much about 
them-I think they are wide enough. 
8200. Q. What size are they P A. About 0 feet deep and 4 or 5 feet wide. 
8207. (9. Nov we come to No. iS, which recommends that " Intruction be given to employees regularly 
on the means of escape." A. Well, this week they have started at the Metropolitan to bring the men out 
by a different way ; each deputy brings his men out. The first lot came out on Tuesday, and another 
lot yesterday ; and I suppose they will take each section-probably another section coming out to-dmy. 
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8268. Q. Did yois get any notification that you were to be shown out? A. There was a notice at the pit-
bea(l that we were to meet a deputy, and that lie would conduct us out. 
8260. Q. A different road from that which iou had travelled before 9 A. On the return air-course. 
8270. Q. Did anyone object to go P A. Every man went. There was hardly any alternative, because the 
other roads were fenced off with a danger board. 
827f. Q. All the men went? Yes, in my district, on Tuesday last. 
8272. Q. Will this knowledge be of great service to the men? A. In my opinion it is better that we 
should know the roads out. 
823. Q. Was that done in the men's time P A. Not exactly in our own time. The men knock off about 
half-past 4; and we had to meet the Deputy at I o'c1ock. It took us till 5 o'clock to get out.. 
8274. Q. Did you hear any grumbling on the part of the men? A. No, but Mr. Jeffries told me 
8275. Q. Never mind what lie told you. As far as you know, none of the men objected? A. I never 
heard any one object. 
8276. Q. Hecomrneiidation No. 19 is that The Coal Mines Act should forbid a black-list of employees 
being kept, and penalising the improper pre'ent1on of discharged fersons obtaining employment." You 
do not know of any black-list at the Metropolitan ? A. I cannot remember any case at the Metropolitan. 
8277. Q. Do you know of any case in the district where men have been discharged, and prevented from 
getting employment elsewhere P A. Not of my own knowledge. 
8278. Q. In your opinion if this proposal were adopted, would it conduce to more reports being made as 
to the condition of a mine. Would it give the men confidence in reporting anything that they may have 
observed? A. I have only worked in the Metropolitan in this district, and none of the men there have 
any fear of reporting anything; I know I have not, at any rate. 
8270. Q. Recommendation No. 20 is that Safety-lamps should not be unlocked for shot-firing." I 
suppose they are not unlocked in the Metropolitan ? A. No. 
8280. Q. In your opinion, is it a dangerous thing to unlock a safety-lamp in a mine for this purpose? 
A. I should think it would be. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade 

8281. Q. With reference to that provision about a black-list-would it make any difference to the 
Metropolitan Mine? A. I do not think so. 
8282. Q. In fact you get into trouble if you do not report things? A. You are liable to get into trouble 
if you do not report anything which is wrong ; and I should say a man ought to get into trouble too. 
8283. Q. Wh.li regard to tho deputies at the. Metropolitan-now how long have you been there? A. 
little over seven years. 
8284. Q. Continuously P A. Yes, I have never been away from the mine. 
8285. Q. You have had a good opportunit.y of seeing whether the deputies were up to their work P A. I 
have been under most of them, 
8286. Q. It is a gassy mine? A. Yes. 
82S7. Q. Is there any reason to say that these men are not competent to do their work ? A. No-not so 
far as the Metropolitan deputies are concerned. I could not say such a thing. 
8288. Q. Have not all of them a good knowiedge of all that they ought to know with regird to tl.eir 
work? A. I think they have-they would not be in their positions if they had not. 
8280. Q. Do you know whether these men had been at work in the mine before being raised to the positions 
of deputies ? A. Yes, I can safely say that they have all worked in the mine. 
8290. Q. And they rose from working in the coal to the position of deputies ? A. Yes. 
8291. Q. Have you ever considered this question of cut-throughs weakening the roof? A. I spoke of the 
matter, not to officials, but to my mates, and pretty well all of the men have spoken about it at one time 
or another. I do not think you can avoid its sagging from the roof [Interruptel.] 
8202. Q. I am talking about cut-throughs. You said that out-throughs at 30 yards distance from each 
other would not weaken the roof? A. I cannot say myself ; but the cut-throughs are not very wide ; and 
the place is well timbered. 
8203. 43. You were told that one of the men objeatcd to go a different way out P A. He did not altogether 
object ; but lie was complaining about going out that way. 
8291. 43. Did lie, say that lie knew the way out by that road P A. He did not give that as a reason. I do 
not see how he could know his way out by that road. 
8295. Q. That was the first effort made to show the men out? A. Yes, last Tuesday was the first time. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 
8203. 43. What is the longest Imoadiug that you know in the Metropolitan, without eut-throughs? 
A. Without cut-throughs? I think they have all got cnt-throughs. 
8297. 43. What is the longest distance-you said 100 yards P A. I said 41 yards. 
8298. 43.  You said there was one 100 yards? A. That is one of the Welsh bords. 
8299. 43.  So that is the long n it est distace-100 yards without a cut-through 9 A. Yes. 
8300. 43.  With the exception of a little sagging on the top that works well ? A. Oh, yes, the canvas 
works will. 
8:301. 43. have you ever been in a part of the mine where the drives run some hundreds of yards, an:l 
they carry the air by means of pipes? A. 1 believe pipes are used somewhere, but I have never been in 
that part of the mine. 
8:302. 43. have you been in no other mine but this one in this district? A. No, not in this district. 
8:303. 43. You can only speak of this mine as regards the air P A. The air is satisfactory. 
83t4. 43. You complain of the (lust? A. Of the dust on time travelling road. 
8305 43. You say that it varies, but that in some places it is 3 inches thick P A. Two or three inches 
thick. 
8306. 43. Suppose you take a section-say a foot of the road-and gather up all the fine dust. What 
would it weigh P A. I have not the least idea, I cannot tell you. 
8:107. 43. Would it weigh 1 lb. 5 lbs. or 10 lbs. ? A. I have no idea.. 
8308. 43. Do you mean that there is a uniform depth of dust all across time road? A. Where you walk 
you kick it along, but there is more at the sides. 

8309. 
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S309. Q. You have no other complaint to make about the dust P A. 1 complain about it being dusty-it 
is very uncomfortable. 
8:310. Q. You do not think that there would be any danger? A. Only by explosion. 
8111. (9. Then you think there would be? A. Yes, only by explosion. 

[The Commission at 1 pm. adjourned for luncheon.] 

(On resuming at 2 pIn., Mr. W. B. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings ) 

CAPT. JOhN RAYNOR. previously sworn, was further examined as undLr 

Examination by Mr. Robertson. 

8313. Q. With regard to the small mine in Queensland, where you said that the furnace was only a fire-
grate, if there had been a propsr furnace, probably there would have been no defect in the ventilation P 
A. It night have been better if there had been a proper furnace what we had was absolutely no good. 
It was a large fire-grate standing on tir cc legs. 
8314. Q. That was not exactly a furnace, was it? A. It was something similar to one. 
8315. 0. Do you know, speaking of the Metropolitan Colliery, whether the waste workings open out en 
the return airways? A. L believe they are opn to the air-courses they are not sealed. 
S rIG. (9. You do not know of any that open out to the intake P A. No. 
8317. (9. You s di that you advocated having cut-throaghs every 30 yards? A. I said that I did not think 
that it would ma ke any difference to the roof. 
8318. (9. It is not a matter of the roof exactly P A. I fhought that was the way the question was put 
to me. 
8319. (9. TPat is not the point. have you observed, in both bords and in the pillar workings, that the 
timber is ci sashed and that the bat torn is heaving up P A. Yes. 
8:320. \Vhat causes that ? A. 1 cannot say exactly I would put it down to the weight on the timber, but 
I ma;y be wrong. 
8321. Q. The weight of the strata overhead. Do you not see that the effect of giving up the practice of 
having large pilLirs, and adopting much snaller ones, by making cut-throughs every 30 yards, would be 
to increase the crush on the pillars ? A. It might be on the pillars ; but in the heading which I was 
speaking about -[I nterrupted.] 
8122. (9. The mine is all pillars ? A. Eventually it is. 
8323. Q. You know what crush is A. Yes. 
8324. Q. Do you know that it brings on creeps? A. Yes. 
8325. (9. Have you heard of any disaster in this country through pillars being too small P A. I do not 
think I have, excepting up Broken Hill way. 
8326. Q. 1 mean in a coal-mining district-in Newcastle P A. I heard of a creep in the Metropolitan 
but it was before my time. 
8327. (9. Have you heard of a disaster of the kind I mention? A. No. 
8:328. Q. Do you know whether the creep would be aggravated by small pillars? A. I cannot say whether 
it would or not. 
832.9. Q. Do you not think it is good practice and good management to have large pillars? A. I do not 
think it would make that much difference. It may do so. 
8330. Q. If you found a creep or crush going on what steps do you think, as a practical man, should be 
taken to prevent it? A. I think that the best step would be to timber it with chocks. 
8331. Q. I mean to prevent such a thing occurring? A. I could not say what steps ought to be taken to 
prevent it. There may be different things which cause it to occur. it may be a large fall which brings 
it on. 
8332. Q. What do you think generally causes it? A. Sudden weight going on it. 
8333. (9. A sudden weight going on what ? A. On the seam. 
8:334. Q. Do you not think that larger pillars would prevent it? A. Large pillars would be stronger. 
8335. (9. if you cut a large pillar it would weaken that pillar, would it not? A. Yes, it would weaken it. 
83:36. Q. With reference to the brattice sagging-you know it is imperative. You cannot do without if, 
can you? A. I do not think they can altogether do without it, but 1 have seen them do without it in the 
Welsh bords. 
8337. Q. Before the passing of the 1890 Act there were many bords without brattice, but you are the 
men who asked to have that state of things remedied? A. I cannot remember a ease where they have done 
without it lately ; but they used at one time. 
8338. Q. I presume that leakage of air is inevitable? A. It may be to a certain extent; but I think it 
could be better than it is now, if the brattice was tacked up to a batten. 
83:39. (9. Do you know that, when it is tacked up first, it is taut and straight? A. Yes. 
8340. (9. And that the cause is not the brattice sagging but the roof being irregular? A. Yes ; but there 
are any amonnt of places where the roof has never stirred, as far as the naked eye can see, and the brattice 
is away from the roof, although the roof is as solid as ever it was. 
8341. Q. I think you said that the Metropolitan was the most gassy mine you have ever worked in. 
Therefore, if the leakage of air was bad, you would expect to find gas in the working faces? A. I claresay 
you would-1 daresay they do occasionally. 
8342. Q. Have you ever found it? A. I have not found it myself; I do not say it could not be found in 
heading. 
8343. 0. Do you think that it is absolutely necessary to carry all the air up to the working face; is it not 
enough if there is sufficient to dilute any gas that may be given off? A. The more air you get the better. 
8344. Q. Did you not get enough? A. I do not complain myself. 
8315. Q. Are there any places in the mine, besides the working places, which require to be ventilated? 
A. I should say that the whole of the working places require to be ventilated. 
8346. Q. Do not leakages serve a good purpose? A. I do not understand you. 
8347. (9. Do not leakages of air through the doors, the brattice, and sometimes through the stoppings 
serve a good purpose? A. There are leakages there-I have heard of them-through both the brattice 
and the stoppings. 8348. 
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8318. Q. I asked, do you not think that they erve a good purpose? A. I could not exactly say ; perhaps 
they may. I have had no experience to that extent. 
8349. Q. 1). you know what ventilation there is there? A. I do not know. 
8350. Q. Do you know whether it is small cr large PA. It is pretty large 
8351. Q. Would it be possible to have that large ventilation, if von atteinptd to carry all the air into the 
working faces P A. I cannot say whether it would be fossible to carry all the air there, perhaps it would 
not be. 
8352. Q. Speaking of thc se places being warm, what temporal ure do you think they would be? A. I said 
that the place we were in was warm, by the time we got down the h iigth of the cut-through. 
353. Q. When was that? A. Last quarter. 

8:354. Q. Do you know what was the natural temperature? A. No. 
8355. Q. Would you be surprised to know that it is 83° P A. It might have been ; I never say it. I 
neier saw the temperature taken. 
8:356. Q. You have check-inspectors going round ? A. We had one there this week, not in the back 
heading, but the one next to it. Last Monday we had Mr. Watson there. 
8357. Q. I am referring to your own check-inspector? A. There have been cheek inspectors there. 
8358, (3. Do they not take the temperature? A. I think they do. 
8359. (3. Do you not know from the report? A. They would report on it. 
8360. (3. If the natural temperature is 83°, you would not expect to find it as cool as a winter day on the 
surface? A. No, certainly not. 
8361. Q. You could not expect to find it otherwise than warm? A. No; you could not expect it very well. 
8362. Q. As to the watering of the roads You say the roads are dusty ; which is perfectly true. I think 
you said you would like th€in to be watered? A. It would make them much better if they were watered. 
8363. Q. You know that water has been very scarce at Helcnsburgh for many years? A. Yes. This last 
year it has. 
8:364. Q. You know the Company have twice spent a large sum of money in bringing water from Sydney 
for the boilers P A. Yes ; on tao occasions since I have been there-that is during the past seven years- 
I have known them to bring water. The remainder of the time they have had enough. 
8363. Q. Enough for what? A. Enough for watering the travelling roads. I do not think it would take 
a great deal. 
8366. (3. You have not gone into any calculation to ascertain how much it would take? A. No. 
8367. (3. Do you know how many miles of roads would have to be watered? A. No, I do not. 
8:368. (3. have you any idea how many miles of main roads, intakes, awl returns, there are in this Colliery 
which you are working at? A. Do you mean all the travelling roads put together? 
8:369. Q. Yes ; and all the intakes and returns ? A. I should say 6 or 7 miles. 
8:370. Q. Would you be surprised to learn that there are 30 miles, without counting the bord-roads. 
A. '1 hat would depend on the number of return air-courses. 
S371. Q. Of course it would ;-would that modify your opinion as to the practicability of watering them ? 
Q. 1 should say that the ones you are travelling on ought to be watered. 
8372. (3. What do you want them watered for? A. 'I o settle the dust. 
8:372. (3. What is the object of that ;-is it a matter of comfort to the men? A. It would be a matter 
of great comfort to them. 
8:373 (). Did you not say something about something happening in the event of an explosion P A. I 
think 1 was asked the question if it would be dangerous ; and 1 said it would be, in the event of an 
explosion. 
8374. 9. You would water the travelling roads, that is your suggestion? A. They should be watered. 
8375. Q. Would not an explosion travel through one of the return air-courses as much as it would along 
a travelling road? A. I daresay it would. 
8376. Q. What would be the use of watering one road unless you watered them all? A. It would do 
them no barm to water them. 
8377. Q. You think it would have no injurious effect on the roof? A. It might have ; but I should hardly 
think so. 
8378. 9. Have you never heard of water injuring a roof? A. I have heard of its injuring the floor. 
8379. 9. It causes it to swell, does it riot? A. Yes; you may have a ease like that, but perhaps only 
once in twelve months. 
8:380. Q. Is it not a fact that all these miles of roads are timbered? A. Yes. 
8381. 9. What would be the effect of constant watering on timber in a hot mine? A. I cannot say. 
8382. Q. \Vould it not rot the timber? A. I do not think it would be necessary to have the water closer 
than within a few inches of the timber. 
8383. Q. Does not the finest of the dust lodge on the timber? A. Yes, it lodges on the timber; but that 
is not the dust that stirs, up when the men are travelling up on the roads. 
8381. Q. Of course, if your idea is that we should water the roads for the comfort of the men, I can 
understand your suggestion that we should water the floor only ; but, if the watering is for the purpose of 
stopping an explosion, you must water all the roads, the timber, and the sides, as well as the bottom P 
A. I think that, if there was not a particle of dust, it would not stop an explosion. 
8385. Q. What would not stop an explosion? A. The dust. 
8386. Q. I do not quite follow you ;you see, as long as you have dust on the roadway, whether on the 
floor or on the timbers, an explosion might travel along that road? A. Yes. 
8387. Q. If you only water the floor, and do not water the timber, the watering is practically useless. A. I 
daresay it w ould be useless as far as an explosion is concerned. 
8388. Q. Do you know what system of firing shots is adopted at the Metropolitan ;-is it the naked light., 
or the wii'e, or what? A. I have never seen one fired since I have been there. I have heard them when 
I have been on night work. They water the place thoroughly well; that is so far as I know. 
8:389. Q. You have never been near one when it was fired? A. No. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie :- 

8390. Q. You said that you could have complained about the ventilation on some occasion? A. I could 
have done so last quarter. 
8391. Q. Did you think that the air was not sufficient? A. Ihere may have been a proper amount of air 
coming in, but at the same time I felt it warm. 8392. 
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8392. Q. Was it coming into your working place? A. Not into the heading. 
8393. Q. Was the brattice kept well up P A. Yes kept well up to the face. 
8394. Q. Was it away from the roof? A. Yes, a little. 
8395. Q. Was there not a sufficient current of air playing on the face? A. I daresay there was. 1 do 
not think we were really short of air, but it felt more warm than we usually get it. 
8396. Q. Was it very hot? A. No, not very hot, but just warm enough to make it uncom fortable. 
8397. Q. Was it warmer than in the pillars? A. No. I have had it warmer in the pillars at the 
Metropolitan than it was then. 
8308. Q. Is the ventilation kept well on the working face of the pillars ? A. As well as they can get it. 
8399. Q. Have yfiou  had any cause to complain of the ventilation being bad at the pillars? A. Not during 
the last four or ve years. Before that time, when I was in old No. 5, it was very warm. 
8400. Q. Do you think there has been a sufficient quantity of air playing on the face of the pillars? 
A. Yes, I think so. The workings lately have been reasonable. 
8101. Q. I take it from that that, in your opinion, you could do with more air? A. There are some 
places where we could do with more air, T daresay. 
8 102. Q. Do you tlunlc that what you are getting is sufficient? A. I think we get the amount allowable 
to us. 
8103. Q. What do you mean? A. I think we get sufficient, anyhow. 
8101. Q. You mean the minimum P A. Yes. 
8105. Q. Do you say that it is sufficient? A. You can always do with more than you get. 
8400. Q. As a practical man, do ou think you were getting sufficient air-that is, losing sight of the 
minimum allowance? A. Latterly I could not complain at all. 
8107. Q. Exceptmg in the pillars, where you have complained of its being warm, (10 you think you have 
sufficient? A. Not at the time that I mention; but that was a good while ago. 
8408. Q. Did you complain at that time? A. I daresay I complained about its being warm. 
8109. (7. Did they make any attempt to make it better? A. They could not make it any better; they 
could only Keep the brattice up. It was really warm in that district. 
8410. Q. What do you call it? A. Old No. 5. 
8111. Q. How long ago is that? A. It must be four or five years ago. 

Mn, CHARLES JOSLAND was sworn and examined as under 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaghi. 
8412. Q. What is yor name? A. Charles Josland. 
8413. (7. What are you? A. A miner. 
8414. Q. Where are you working? A. At Helensburgh, 
8115. (7. I think you are a member of the Delegate Board of the Illawarra Miners' Lrn m on ? A. Yes. 
8110. (7. Did you come to Kembla at the time of the disaster? A. Yes, on the night of the disaster. 
8117. Q. What time did you reach Kembla? A. About half-past 10 o'clock. 
8418. Q. Did you go into the mine ? A. No. 
8119. Q. Do you know anything about the supply of safety-lamps available that night? A. I saw very 
few of them about there. I was prepared to go into the mine; but I could not see any lamps to spare. 
8120. (7. Did you look for any? A. I made inquiries; but they said there was a scarcity of them. 
8421. Q. You could not get a lamp to go into the mine with ? A. No. 
81-22. Q. Did you afterwards go in with a party of inspection ? A. No. 
8123. (7. You did not? A. No. 
8124. (7. You do not know anything about this disaster? A. No. 
8-125. (7. You are familiar with the recomnendations made by the Delegate Board? A. Yes. 
8120. (7. Have you seen a complete copy of those recommendations? A. Yes. 
8127. Q. Do rou approve of them P A. Yes. 

His honor.] He could be cross-examined on these recommendations afterwards, it necessary. 
8128. Mr. Lysaq/mf.] Q. You were one of a company who inspected Mount Kembla mine on the 29th and 
30th of April and the 1st of May, 1902. You furnished this report, signed by you and C. II. Biggers. 
Is this your original report ? A. Yes. 
8129. Aft. Lysajlmf.] I tender this report. 
8-130. (Report put in and marked Exhibit 15). 
8131. Q. Who accompanied you besides Mr. Biggers? A. On the 29th and 3001 of April the under- 
ground-manager of Mount Kembla, Mr. Leitch ; and, on the 1st of May, Mr. Nelson. lie was deputy 
at that time ; he was underground-manager afterwards, and was killed in the explosion. 
8432. 0. On any of those visits was the pit not working? A. Yes, on the three days-the pit never 
worked. 
8433. Q. Were there any mcii in the pit at all while you were inspecting it? A. Only the officials ; that- 
is, the deputies. 
8 134. Q. You never saw a working-miner there P A. No. 
8435. Q. Did you make any inspection whatever of any of the waste workings P A. No. 
8130. (7. Let in.-draw your attention to this phan. lore is No. 1 Eight engine road. There is the main 
shaft. You saw all the bords between No. 1 main level and Stafford's going bord and went over the 
5th Right rope road? A. I think 1 recognise those roads. 
8-137. (7. Do you remember being in the .5th Right rope road? A. Yes. - 
8 138. (7. Do you remember being along the 4tl Left travelling road, towards Price's Flat? A. I canpot 
recognise time thing very clearly, but I understand the rope roads and the bords. 
8430. Q. How many bords did you examine? A. Oh, about one-half of them. 
8110. Q. What was the value of your examination as regards one-half of the bords which you did not 
examine P A. The value-I was taking it for granted that, when I vicited one bord, the others corre-
sponded with it. 
8411. Q. You teok it that the other corresponding bords were like it P A. If I went into two or three 
bords, and missed two or three bords, I should form the idea that those I missed were like those I visited. 

- - - - 8142. 
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84-12. Q. Was that your practice throughout? A. Yes. 
8413. Q. Did Mr. Leitch or Mr. Nelson say anything about the bords between No. 1 Right and Stafford's 
going bord ? A. They only suggested that it was no good to visit. all of them, because they were all pretty 
much alike. 
8141 Q. Who suggested that? A. Mr. Nelson. 
8445. Q. Can you.. remember at what part of the mine it was Mr. Nelson suggested to you not to visit 
these bords [Interrupted.] 
8440. Mr. Wade.] He said he did not visit all the bords. 
8447. lIIr Lysaqht.] At what part of the mine was it that Mr. Nelscn suggested it P A. I am not familiar 
'vit1i the names of any of the districts. I believe that is it (pointing to the plan). 
8148. Q. That is the 4th Left travelling road. You say that about one-half of the bords were inspected. 
What about the pillars P A. The pillars-I think we visited about half of them-and also the Iongwall 
workings. 
8449. Q. how long were you inspecting, say, one bord ? A. It just depended ; we might spend a quarter 
of an hour there or even half an hour, or perhaps only ten minutes. You might sit down in the face of 
the bard. 
8150. Q. Had you ever been check-inspector before? A. No. 
8151. Q.  Did you know what the duties of a cheek-inspector were P A. 1 had a pretty good idea of what 
was laid down for me to go by. 
8452. Q. As regards your own mine, do you know anything about it? A. I worked in it about eleven 
years ago. It is a different mine altogether now from what it was when 1 worked in it previously. 
8453. Q. Whom did you depend on to take you to the various places in the Kembla Mine? A. I relied 
on my partner, Mr. Biggers. 
8151. Q. Did you object when Mr. Nelson suggested that you should not go into some of the bords? 
A. I did not object. I agreed that it was no good to visit all these places, when the men were not at 
work. 
8455. Q. Summing it all up, I suppose I should put this to you. As far as the waste workings were 
concerned, they got no examination at all; and as far as one-half of the bords and one-half of the pillars 
were concerned, they got no examination P A. That is somewhere about it. Of course, I saw the waste 
workings whilst I was in the pillars. 
8456. (7. Is that a fair statement of the inspection ? A. Yes. 
8157. So that., in your opinion, nothing like a cheek inspection of the colliery was made? A. it seemed 
satisfactory. I was quite satisfied. 
8-158. Q. As a matter of fact, you did not know that the pit was not going to work? A. No. 
8459. (7. You did not know that the pit was not at work until you reached the pit mouth P A. No. 
8460. (7. Why did you make an examination on the day that the pit was not working? A. 1 did not 
know on what day the pit was going to work agun. 1 might have stopped there a week, and it may not 
have worked. 
8161, Q. Who had the lamp? A. I had the lamp. 
8462. (7. Had Biggers a lamp? A. A flare-lamp. 
8163. 0. What did Nelson have A. A flare-lamp, and for part of the time an old Davy lamp. 
8461. (7. What did Leitch have A. A flare-lamp. 
8463. (7. Was any part of the mine examined by Biggers while you examined another part ? A. No. 
8160. Q. You all kept togethr? A. Yes. 
8467. (7. What time did you go in in the morning? A. Between 8 and 9 o'clock. 
8468. (7. What time did you go out in the afternoon P A. Between 4 and 5 o'clock. 
8.169. (7. Will you admit, so far as the detection of gas is concerned, the examination was practically 
valueless. I inn not saying anything as regards the roof, because you gave that care? A. I do not hardly 
grasp that. 
b470. Q. I see in your report where you mention defects in the roof, but as to the detection of gas there 
is not one word. You have admitted, in fact, that you did not examine the wastes, and that you did not 
examine half the bords and half the pillars. - 
S-Ill. Mr. Wade.] I object to that. The witness said he examined the wastes while at the pillars. 
8472. Mr. Lqsaglit.] Well, I will leave him to you. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Wade :- 

8473. 9. Were you elected by the Kembla Lodge to make an inspection? A. By the District Lodge. 
8474. Q. You work in Helensburgh? A. Yes, 
8473. Q. You have had experience oi gas there? A. Yes, a little. 
8470. 9. You have worked with a safety-lamp for some time? A. Yes. 
8177. 9. Did you make any examination at Kembla for gas where you thought there was a likely place to 
find it? A. On two or three occasions I did. Of course, when I went to the mine with a safety-lamp, 
they said "It is no good bringing a thing like that here; we have had no gas reported for twelve months." 
I took their word for it, and was lax in my duty. 
8178. Q. You did examine for gas? A. At two or three places. 
8179. Q. Were they different places ? A. Yes. 
8180. 9. Who fixed those places ? Who proposed it, you or Biggers? A, It was my own idea. 
8481. 9. Did you find any gas? A. No. 
8182. 0. Did Biggers use a safety-lamp, ? A. No. 
84S3. 9. Did you do all the looking for gas yourself? A. I think, if there had been gas in any quantity, 
Biggers would have found it with his safety-lamp. 
8484. Q. Now, so far as you are concerned-I do not say you did not do your duty-but I want to know 
what you did do--do you remember being round the 35-acre goaf? A. No. I do not remember being 
there at all ; it was never pointed out. 
8185. Q. Did you go to the extreme places in the mine? A. Yes. 
81.80. 9. Do you remember a place at the end of No. I? A. Of course; I was in there. 
81.87. 9. Do you know that these are the  highest points in the mine? A. I can believe that  they are. 
8188. 9. Could you not see that you were rising? A. Yes. 

8489. 
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8189. Q. You actually made a oomplaint that there was too much water in one of the roads? A. Yes. 
8190. Q. You asked the management to make it drier? (Sb answer.) 
8191. Q. Was Biggers in the employ of the Mount Keinbia Mine? A. Yes. 
8492. Q. Do you know how long he had been there ? A. A  few rears, to my knowledge. 
8493. Q. Did the management oppose you in any way in doing what you wanted to do? A. Certainly not. 
8194. Q. You could go where you liked ? A. Yes. 
$19. Q. You did not know the mine yourself? A. No. 
S I9C. Q. You had three days in it ? Al. Yes 
8497. Q. Frain S to 4 each day? A. Yes, as near as I can tell, but the last day I was only in half a day. 
S 9)8. Q. Then you had two days and a half in the mine and I SUPPOSC  you travelled pretty well all over 
it P A. We did not visit every place, but the whole of the sections were visited. That is what I was 
told. 
8199. Q. The amount of the air was a good deal more than the minimum required by the Act? A. The 
report speaks for itse1 f on that matter. 
8500. Q. You state there was 4 10 cubic feet per man? A. That is the rate of supply. I do not say the 
men got that amount 
8501. Q. There were no men there to get it at the time you were in? A. No. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

8502. Q. Have you ever been appointed before as a check-inspector P A. No. 
6503. Q. Do you know why they appoint check-inspectors? A. I could not really say, 
8501. Q. Do you know where the definition of the word comes in P A. No. 
8503. Q. Do you know why they are called check-inspectors ; do you know how the word is spelt-it is 
not c-h-e-q-ue, but c-h-e-c-k ;-do you know the meaning of it? A. It is to check the management, I 
s ii ppose. 
8509. Q. And, when you go to check anyone else, you do riot generally take their word for the very thing 
you are sent there to check them upon? A. No. 
8507. Q. But you did; do you not think you neglected your duty by taking their word? Did you, at the 
time, think you were fulfilling your duty in taking the opinion of one of the very persons you were sent 
to check? A. I think I was fulfilling my duty, as I was given my own way in the matter. 
8508. Q. You know that the management had reported on these things, and you were sent there to see 
whether they had reported truly P A. Yes. 
8509. Q. Why were you chosen to do the work? A. Because I would be able to fill the position. There 
was nobody else aspired to the job. 
8510. Q. You were ambitious to fill it? A. No, I was not. 
8311. Q. You were willing to take it P A. With a lot of persuasion. 
8512. Q. You were not anxious? A. No. 
8513. Q. Were you the best man they could get? A. No. 
8.514. Q. Were you paid for doing it? A. Yes. 
8515. v•  How much a clay? A. Ten shillings. 
8510. Q. .About what you would earn? Q. Somewhere about it. 
8517. Q. That money is subscribed by the Lodge? A. It comes from the local fund. 
8551.s. Q. You took the report back to the Lodge. Was it read? A. Yes. 
8519. Q. Was it considered satisfactory? A. Yes. 
8520. Q. Was there no criticism about your accepting the Nanager's statement P- [Intr.'upted.] 
8.521. Mr. Wade.] That was rather a misleading question. 
8522. His Hanoi-.] I am trying to fathom wily this document is put in at all. 
8523. Mi. Bruce 'mith.] The document seems to cut bath ways. 
5524. His Honor.l Probably the idea is to see which way it cuts least. 
852.5. AIr. L11'saqht.] There is no report of gas in it:. I have tried to show that the statement was macic 
that there had been no discovery of gas for twelve mouths ; and that, therefore, it was not loolced for. 
8510 A&. Bruce Smith.] Q. You say that the management told you that there had been no gas ? Who 
did tell you? Can you give me the name of the person P A. Yes, Mr. Rogers. 
8527. Q. Then I understand Mr. Rogers told you as you went into the mine? A. Yes. 
8528. Q. He told you that there hnl been no gas found for twelve mouths before? A. Yes. 
8.529. Q. You accep'ed that? A. I did not altogether. 
8530. Q. Did you not check it ?- [Interrupted.] 
8331. Mi-. Wade.] How could he check it? It took place twelve months before. 
8332. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You did not go to the different places to check it? A. No. 
8333. Q. Do you know that a w'aste is considered a dangerous place, so far as gas is concerned? Q. No, 
I do not. 
8531, Q. Had you ever been asked before to become a check-inspector? A. Yes 
S535. Q. Months before? A. Yes. 
8.530. Q. Did you refuse? Yes, I refused. 
8537. Q. On what ground ? A. Well, in fact I really did not think I had the ability. I thought there 
were better men than me to be got. 
853$. Q. When you say in that report that there is too much water, you do not mean all over the mine- 
you mean in one place-a concentration of water P A. Water standing stagnant. 
8539. Q. In a certain place? A. About 100 yards of it. 
8540. Q. In a great part of the mine you found it dry P A. Pretty well. 
8341. Q. You would not say of the mine that it was too wet? A. Only in a certain part of it. 

Re-examined by Mr. Lysaght 
8.512. Q. Where did you see Mr. Rogers when you went in to inspect P A. lie came across to the mine 
as usual, I suppose. 
851 1. Q. Did he tell you anything else besides the fact that there was no gas there ? A. I cannot say 
that he did we had a talk for some time. 

8541. 
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8511. Q. Did you ask him; or did he volunteer the statement? A. He volunteered, the statement. 
8515. Q. Do you know it is difficult to get persois  to accept the position of check-inspector? A. Yes. 
8546. Q. What is the difficulty? A. Alen are afraid to take the position. 
8517. Q. Why are they afraid ? A. I can hardly say. 
8518. Q. You know they are afraid? A. It looks like it. I was the only one that stood for the position. 

Examined by Mr. Robertson :- 
8519. Q. I-low long have you been working at Ilelensburgh? A. Three or four years, more or less, off 
and on. I suppose I have been working there five or six years, between 1891 and the present time- 
that is, on three or four different occasions. 
8550. Q. You know all about gas? A. I know a little about it-I can detect it. 
8551. Q. You are quite able to detect gas? A. Yes. 
8552. Q. You were not afraid to take the position of check-inspector? A. No, not at all. 
8553. Q. Do you think there is any reasonable ground for the fear that exists about taking such a position? 
A. No. 
8551. Q. You never suffered from anything of the kind? A. No. 
8555. Q. You never heard of anybody being victiinised for having accepted such a position? A. No. 
8556. Q. You have no fear of complaining to-morrow if you saw anything wrong? A. No. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie 
8557. Q. Did your companion, Mr. Biggers, suggest looking for gas? A. No; be never made a suggestion 
of any description. 
8558. Q. Those places you did not visit- they may have had gas? A. I cannot say what was in the places 
I did not visit. 
8559. Q. Did your companion suggest the advisability of visiting the waste workings? A. No. 
8560. Q. You depended on him seeing that be was a local man ? A. Yes. 
8501. (2. Are you satisfied now that there is a great deal which you ought to have seen and did not see? 
A. I am satisfied now. 
8562. .ifr. Wade.] Do I understand from Mr. Lysaght that with the exception of the witnesses from 
Gunnodah his case is now closed ? 
8503. Mr. .Lysaqht.] I have two witnesses from Gunnedah and one from Appin. I have also received 
information to-day which may lead me to call witnesses who have been at Kembla and who are now at 
Newcastle. 
8564. His honor.] It will only be by special leave of the Commission that these witnesses will be called, 
because I take it that it would be impossible for Mr. Lysaght to secure their attendance by Tuesday. 
8565. Mr. Lysaqht.] I will ask you to allow me to call in Sydney any witnesses whom 1. may have 
availale, but whom I may not be able to call until then. I may say there are no more witnesses available 
now. 
8566. Ills honor.] It may be found more convenient to call certain witnesses in Sydney. It may be 
that the Commission may desire to call them ; but I am afraid that we canhot keep the case in anything 
like definite order. 
8507. Mr. Wade.] If necessary, I suppose I can call other witnesses in reply. 
8568. Ills Honor.] Yes, I presume that would be so. 

[The Commission, at 3 o'clock, aijourned until 1130 am, on the following Tuesday.] 

TUESDAY 27 JAHUARY, 1903. 
[The Commission met at the Court-house, Wollongon,q, at 1130 am.] 

C. F. lEt MURRAY, IESQ., D.C.J. (PIIEsIDENT). 
D. A. W. I1OBE1ITSON1  Esq., Commnissioxiom. I D. RITCHIE, FsQ., CoMnTssIoNEn. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. WTood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 
Mr. A. A. Lvsaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of- 

(a) the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, bc., (victims of the explosion) 
(/i) the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) ; and 
(e) the I llawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' tTniori). 

Mr. C. C. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. F. Curtiss, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla 
Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garliek, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings) 

Mi,. J. WYNN was sworn, and examined as under 
(This witness was called at his own request, and the Commission asked Mr. Bruce Smith, as a 

matter of convenience, to conduct his examination-in-chief.) 

Examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :-- 
8569. Q. What is your name? A. John Wynn. 
8570. Q. What are you? A. I am a contractor in a small way. 
8571. Q. But what kind of contractor? A. Chiefly in building. 
8572. Q. I believe you have had some experience of coal-mining, have you not, at some time in your life 
A. Yes; nearly twenty years. 8573, 
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8573. Q. In what capacity? A. From a boy of 10 years 
8574. Q. Up to ----P A. Up till getting coal. 
8575. Q. After that, have you ever acted as deputy or check-inspector? A. 1 have acted as check-inspector 
since leaving the mine. 
8576. Q. Did you ever hold any position beyond coal-getting, as deputy, or under-manager, or anythrng 
of that sort P A. No ; I never sought one. . 
8577. Q. You have been asked, since your experience, to act.as check-rnspector on behalf of the miners in 
some mine. What mine is that P A. For the whole of the district-Illawarra. 
8578. Q. When was that? A. It was about February, 1900. 
8579. Q. Can you tell inc what mines you inspected in that capacity? A. I have inspected all mines in 
connection with the Miners' Association. 
8580. Q. Along this coast P A. Along this coast : all of them once, and one tn-ice. 
8581. Q. Which one twice? A. Mount Keira, 
8582. Q. Then, within what period was all that done P A. That was done from March, 1900, till December, 
1901, twenty-one months. 
8583. Q. Were you continually occupied on that work during that time? A. No; r resigned because I 
had not enough to do,-mainly that was the reason, at least. It was a tie upon me inmy other business. 
8584. Q. You did your other work in the meantime? A. That is it; and, not having much to do, I 
resigned it. 
8585. Q. Did you make reports of your inspections ? A. Yes ; every one. 
8586. Q. Have you these reports? A. Not many. I hare some with Inc. 
8587. Q. Have you them here? A. Yes; I have two or three here. I have with me all that I have. 
8588. Q. Are there any facts in connection with those inspections that you wish to put before the Court P 
A. Yes. - 
8589. Q. Perhaps you will tell me what they are generally; and then I may ask you to produce the 
reports. What are the principal facts that you wish to put before the Court P A. The first thing that 
I would say would be in connection with the first inspection of Mount Keira. I found, in connection 
with that inspection, that there were some serious faults in the management of the mine. 
8590. Q. Have you your report of that here? A. No, I have not. 
8391. (2. Did you commit these facts, which you are now about to give me, to paper? Yes. 
8592. Q. And who has that report? A. Well, I wrote three reports; one was left at the mine immediately 
at the closo of the inspection. 
8503. Q. You made three copies of the same report? A. Three copies of the same report 
8591. Q. One was left at the mine: go on? A. And one was sent to the local Miners' Lodge at cacTi 
colliery; and one was sent to the District Secretary of the Association. 
8595. Q. Did you ever send a copy of it to the Department? A. No. 
8596. Q. Or to the Inspector? A. No. 
8597. (2. Did you ever send a copy of it to the Mine Manager ? A. At Keira? 
8598. Q. At Keira? A. I-fe read it before I left the colliery. 
8599. (2. What was the name of the Manager at Mount Keira then? A. I think the Colliery Manager's 
name is MeG-eckie, and the under-manager that accompanied me is named Phillips. 
8600. Q. You give me more information than I want at once. Who was the Manager at that time? A. 
I think Mr. McGeckie. 
8601. Q. Did you show it to hhn? A. I never saw him at all. 
8602. Q. Your answer is "No." Did you show it to the under-manager? A. I wrote it in a book. 
8603. Q. Did you show it to the under-manager? A. I did not show it. I left it there. 
8001. Q. You left the book then with the under-manager of the Mount Keira Mine? A. Yes. 
860.5. (2. And that would be in about the beginning of 1001 P I think you said February? A. No; that 
would be in about April, 1900. 
8006. Q. Then your entry of the report was made in the regular book P A. Yes; that is it. 
8307. Q. There had been other reports in that book? A. Yes. 
860. Q. That would be in what month of 1900? A. I am not sure-about April. 
8600. Q. You told me you began in February; and that Keira was the first you did? A. I will have to 
explain still farther to make it clear. In February I was asked by the Bulli miners if I would stand 
nomination for this office. I consented to do so. Then the nominations had to go down to the miners; 
and the election took place as near as I know in March. I commenced my duties in April-somewhere 
about April. 
8610. Q. Now, will you tell me what were those facts, which you discovered in connection with Mount 
Keira, which you entered in the book? A. Well, in one district, where they were working pillars, we 
found some black-damp. 
8611. Q. What light did you use in going round? A. I always carried a safety-lamp; but the others that 
accompanied me on that occasion carried fiae lights. 
8612. Q. The other check-inspectors? A. Yes; and the under-manager. 
8613. Q. Did you object to that? A. No, sir. They told me there was no gas seen for a long time 
previously ;  and no safety-lamps were used ; so I could not object to it. 
8614. (2. And you did not think it dangerous? A. I did not. 
8615. (7. Did you try for gas with your lamp? A. Only in old workings. In nearly every colliery I tiled 
in several places -- [Jnfervupted.] 
8616. Q. Just confine yourself to Keira at present ;-clid you find gas in Keira? A. I did ; not explosive 
gas. 
8617. Q. Black-damp I suppose P A. Yes. 
8618. Q. Did you find it in any quantity? A. Well, not a very large quantity. It was more partcularly 
so in one working-place, one bord, one pillar. 
8619. Q. You say waste workings-what sort of waste workings were they? A. Well, of course, in 
pillar work it means that they are taking out the supports of the roof-that is, the main body of the coal. 
8620. Q. You reported that? A. Very briefly, because I requested that the men should be remved to 
another place immediately. 
8621. Q. You did request? A. I did; and the under-manager complied with the request; and con 
sequently I did not make any great trouble about it. 8622. 
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8622. Q. But you did report it briefly. Now, did you find anything else in Mount Keira that you thought 
important? A. I found, in another district, two or three working places that, in my opinion, had nothing 
like the c1uantity of air that they should have had. 
8623. (7. Could you name them ;-have you named them in your report? A. One place would he called 
Bell's heading. 1 am speaking from memory ; I have not had the privilege of seeing it late]y. 
8024. Q. We may save some trouble-have you mentioned these three places in the report P A. Yes. 
8625. (7. We can get the report ; you found three places insufficiently ventilated did you mention that 
beyond the report ;-did you mention that verbally to the Manager or the under-manager? A. Yes; the 
Manager was with me at the time ; and he promised in these other cases too that the men should be 
removed. 
8626. (7. I thought you said the under-manager did. that? A. Yes; the under-manager. 
8627. Q. I asked you about the Manager? A. I never saw the Manager. 
8628. Q. Then you mentioned it to the under-manager, the same as you had done with the black-damp? 
A. Yes; be was with us at the time to check it himself. 
8629, Q. What was done in consequence uI that;-was any alteration made in the ventilation? A. 1 
never went back ; I could not say. 
86:30. Q. You recorded those facts in this report. Now, was there anything else in Mount Keira on that 
first occasion which you think it important to mention here? A. The only other complaint, I think, that 
was made was in connection with the haulage-road. It was in a very bad condition from wet and dirt-
mud. I recommended that it should be cleaned. 
8631. Q. Cleared up? A. Yes; cleared up; and kept a bit better. 
8632. Q. That also you put into your report? 1 think, your Honor, it would be well for the Commission 
to require that report to be produced. 
8633. His Honor.] Yes. There are three copies ; but it does not appear which is the most easily 
accessible. - 
8634. ilir. Bruce Smith.] I should think the Manager's copy at the mine would be most easily obtained. 
8635. His Honor.] If the Manager is to be called, Mr. Wade, you might ask him to bring this report 
with him. 
8036. Air. Wade.] As a matter of fact, your Honor, I do not appear for anybody outside Mount Kembla. 
I have got an intimation from Mr. Jones, the present manager of Mount Keira Mine, that be wants the 
two deputies referred to in Gleeson's evidence last week to be summoned before the Commission ; and I 
would suggest that these men might bring that book down. I have no control over Mr. Jones of Mount 
Keira in any way ; but 1. have no doubt they will bring the book if the Commission ask them. 
8637. His Honor.] I suppose the Manager himself keeps these books at the mine? 
8038, Afr. Wade.] Yes. 
8639. His Honor.] Then he might or might not care to hand the documents over to the deputies : and if 
the Manager or the under-manager is coming himself he might be requested to forward this document. 
8610. Air. Bruce Smith.] I think Mr. Garlick might write to him and ask him. 
8611. His Honor.] The only matter is to give him timely notice in order that lie may be able to find it. 
8642. Air. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Garliek will communicate with him and ask him when he comes to bring 
that book? 
8643. His hionor.1 Yes. 
8644. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. Is that all you wish to say generally about the first visit to Mount Keira? 
A. There is just one other thing in time same district where the black-damp existed there was a very 
serious fall of stone in the return airway-so much so that we had great difficulty in getting along 
over it. 
8645. (). Did you mention that in your report? A. Yes. 
8640. Q. You mean there was not sufficient space from the top of the fall to the roof to let the air pass 
freely? A. I mean that the fall ought to have been cleared up. 
8617. Q. To give a frec passage for the air? A. A free passage to the air. It was blocking the air-
stopping the current. 
8648. (7. Is that all with regard to your first visit to Mount Keira? We shall have the book here, you 
see. A. I think so. 
8649. Q. I take it that all you saw there which you thought important you mentioned in this report. 
Now, will you tell me of any other mine in the district which you wish more particularly to mention to 
the Commission? A. Well, I might say that my principal object in coming in to this Commission was to 
speak about, or to give some facts in connection with, the question of the position of check-inspector 
being held by others outside miners. 
8650. Q. Very well; just say what you wish to say about that. A. Well, when I went to Mount Kembla 
-[Interrupted.] 
8651. Q. When was that? A. That I could not remember, really; but somewhere about May. 
8652. Q. Of which year? A. 1900, about a month later on, I should think than Keira. When I went to 
Mount Kenibla my mate was named. Wickham, a man who was check-weighman at the time. He intro-
duced me to Mr. Leitch, the under-manager, informing him that I was there to make a check-inspection 
of the mine. Mr. Leitch asked me where 1 worked. 1 told him where I was working at the time, and 
what I had on generally. " You do not work in the mines, then ?" he said. " No," I said, "I do not." 
lie said, Then I do not see what right you have to be here.'' " Oh, well,'' I said, "that is.not my 
business. I am here to make the inspection, if I am allowed to do so; and, of course, if I am not allowed 
to do so, somebody else will see into the matter, I suppose." " Oh, well, I cannot allow you to go in," 
he said. And so, with that, he said, " Wait a minute, wait awhile, and I will go and see the Manager.'' 
lie went across to the Manager's house ; and came back saying it was all right and Kr. Rogers came ivitla 
him too. They said it was all right, and I could go in and make the inspeclion. I want to say that, in 
my opinion, Mr. Leitch was right. The law does not allow others than practical miners to be check-
inspectors. 
863. Q. That is to say, men who are practical miners at the time they make the inspection P A. " Prac-
tical working miners," I think is the wording of the law; and, in my own interpretation of it, 1 had no 
right to be in the office. 
8654. (7, You think that Mr. Leitch was right? A. Yes; and I think the law should be amended in that 
cspegt, That is the one thing that I want to bring before the Commission, 865, 
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8055. Q. You want to say that if a man has the experience, although he may not be a working miner at 
the time, he should be included. among the men who may be chosen by the men P A. Yes; I think it is 
much more important that he should be included than the working miners. 
8056. Mr. Robertson.] Do you say the law does not allow it? 
8057. Mr. Bruce Smith.] He says that he thinks Mr. Leitch's view was right; and that, as he was not a 
practical working miner at the time he made the inspection, the law did not enable him to do it; but he 
asks that the law should be altered. 
8658. Q. Is that what you said? A. That is what I said. T think the wording should be so clear that it 
should be made unmistakably plain that persons outside working miners have the right to be check 
inspectors. 
8050. Mr. Robertson.] That is what I said. He is under the itnpression that the law does not allow it. 
8660. Mr. Bruce Smith.] That is what I said: that he is under the impression that Mr. Leitch was right 
in his view that he (Wynn) had no right in the mine at the time; but be thinks that the law should be 
altered so that it should not be necessary for a man to be a working miner at the the time he goes in to 
make a check inspection. As to the state of the law, of course, I am not expressing an opinion. Your 
Honor will see in Rule 30 The persons employed in a mine may from time to time appoint two of their 
number, or any two persons, not being mining engineers, who are practical working miners, to inspect the 
mine, at their own cost . . ." As to what that means I do not think I am concerned, just now, in 
examining this witness. 
8661. His Honor.] The witness says that he has been a practical working miner ; but he did not happen 
to be a practical working miner at this time ; and, therefore, he thinks that, as there is a doubt, at any 
rate, about the construction of this rule, it would be as well that it should be made clear that a man need 
not be an actual working miner at the time of making the inspection, if he has had the practical 
experience. 
8602. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Atkinson tells me that there was a case at I-lowe in which a check- 
weighman was chosen as a check-inspector. It was contended that he was not a practical miner ; and it 
was decided that he was not, that he did not come within the category, and therefore could not be chosen. 
8603. His honor.] Although he had all the experience, but was not working at the time as a practical 
miner? 
8004. Mr. Bruce Smith.] That is it. So that there would seem to be some doubt at least. 
8665. Q. And you think that if there is any doubt it ought to be removed? A. Yes. 
8606. Q. You think that, if a man has the practical knowledge, the mere fact that he is not enga ged in 
practical mining at the time should not disqualify him from acting as check-inspector? A. Yes ; that is 

my view. 
8667. Q. Now, is there any other point of that kind that you would like to bring before the Court ? 
A. Not of that nature. 
8068. Q. Do you wish to say anything about any of the other inspections that you have made of other 
mines in this district? A. Yes. I would like to say something. 
8669. Q. I invite you to go on and say it. Which mine is it about? A. I would like to say, first of all, 
in connection with Mount Kembla mine, that I found things on the whole in a very satisfactory condition 
at Kembla. 
8070. Q. In 1900, this is A. Yes: that is the only visit that I made to Mount Kembla: and the only 
recommendation, I think, that we made in our report was an improvement in the travelling road. 
8671. Q. In Mount Keinbla? A. Yes. 
8672. Q. What was the matter with the travelling road? A. Along the part of the travelling road that 
the report referred to there was a stream of water running; and this water, instead of being kept on one 
side, was allowed to cross the road ; and the miners had to walk through water and mud in some places 
that might easily have been prevented by just a drain on one side. So we just made that recommendation. 
8673. Q. That was the only fault that you had to find with the general condition of the mine? A. That 
was about all ; but I wish to say this also, that the management got some word of my being likely to 
visit that colliery : and I was informed. by,  one of the miners that great preparations had been made to 
have everything put right : brattice was all put up ; and everything they could think of that was likely 
to be wrong was put right. It happened in this way : I arranged to visit Mount Kembla on the Monday 
morning ; and I had only informed the man who was to make the inspection with inc of my visit. I left 
home early in the morning, intending to be at the colliery before working time, 7o'elock ; and it rained 
heavily ; and by the time 1 got to Wollongong I was wet through. I had no change of clothing, so I 
turned back home from Wollongong. My partner, being checa-weighman, had engaged another man to 
take his place ; and thereby the management got to kno\v that I should have paid a visit that day. 
8674. Q. You were two or three hours late? A. I was not two or three hours late. I was two weeks 
late. When they know a day or two before, that is generally sulflcient time to put things right. 
8675. Q. You cannot tell, of your own knowledge, what changes had been made in the mine preparatory 
to your coming? A. No I could not say a word of that. 
8676. Q. What man told you what had been done? A. I would not care to mention names. 
8677. Q. Now, is there any other general fact that you wish to bring before the Court? A. About other 
mines? 
8678. Q. Yes; of a general nature? A. I would like to refer to Corrimal. 
8679. Q. Have you the report that you made on Corrimal with you? A. Yes. 
8680. Q. These have been printed, I see? A. Yes ; printed in the local paper. Of course, 1 had notlnug 
to do with this printing of them. 
8681. (Extract from newspaper handed to Mr. Bruce Smith.) 
8682. Q. Will you tell inc now, about the Corrimal mine, any fact of importance which you wish to bring 
before the notice of the Court P A. One particular fact is in connection with the part of the mine known 
as Main Dip. 
8683. Q. You might just show me in your report the gassage you refer to? A. [Wi/ness did so.] 
8684. Q. The registered quantity of air for Main Dip and Slant Districts was 17,873 cubic feet; out of 
that 7,260 cubic feet supplies the Slant ; and near the working places in Main Dip we only got a register 
of 5,260 cubic feet of air per minute for sixty one men, boys, amid horses, giving an average of 86- cubic 
feet for each. In the Main Dip return airway there were 5,100 cubic feet per minute." That s all you 
wish to mention, is it not ? A. That is all. 8685. 
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80S5. Q. You might take that back (newspaper cutting handed back to witness). Of course, you entered 

it in the report? That is a copy of it P A. Yes. 
8680. (7. And you do not know whether anything was done afterwards to remedy that? A. Yes; I do. 

8687. (7. You did not go into the mine again? A. No. 
86S8. Q. Then you heard. You might tell me what was the cause of that deficiency P A. Not sufficient 

ventilation. 
869. Not sufficient going into the mine? A. Not sufficient going into that district. 
8Gik). (7. It was badly divided in the mine ? Yes ; not fairly divided. 
SOOt. Q. That was remedied. Now, is there anything else you wish to say P A. I wish to say this about 

that matter: that a report was sent to the Government-to the Minister for 1\iines. The Government 
Inspector was instructed to immediately go and test the accuracy of this report. lie went ; and he took 
round with him the man that was with inc (Robert Vardy). He showed the Government Inspector 
where we measured the air : and the Government Inspector's measurement agreed with ours. The 
management disputed the accuracy of the measurement, got their own Colliery anemometer, and by their 
Colliery anemometer found just about sufficient according to law, 100 feet per man and horse. I got 
this ititorniation by letter from Robert Vardy, the man who was with the Government Inspector, Mr, 
Rowan. Mr. Rowan asked Mr. Vardy to write this letter, and give me the information that lie coiisidered 
that both my instrument and his own were out of order, and that the Colliery instrupent was the one to 
be taken as correct. 
8392. Q. Wh do you sty directed this letter to be written to you? A. I say that Robert Vardy made 

that statement in a letter to me-that Mr. Rowan told him to do that. 
8693. Q. Dii you let it stand at that? A. Well, I could not do anything at all. I had no poe er. 
8601. Q. Did you ascertain from Mr. Rowan whether he ever had said such a thing ? A. No: I never 

took any trouble : it was not my duty to do so. 
8095. lila. Wbds.] Q. Who was the Colliery Manager there? A. Mr. Sellers. 

8600. lIfe. Bruce Smith.] Q. You do not say of your own accord that the Colliery anemometer was 
wrung ; but that this man Vardy told you that Rowan had wished him to inform you that your anento- 
meter and Mr. iowan's were wrong, and that the Manager's was right P A. Yes. 
8097. Q. have you expressed an op:nion of your own as to whether your anemometer was right, or whether 
the mine anemometer was right? A. Yes in this report. 

8603. Q. In that report you have assumed that yours was right : but you have never arcertained whether 
i\1 r. Rowan made this statement? I. I never did. 
8609. Q. And you never tested yours in any way to ascertain whether it was a true statement ? A. No 
1 sent it in for it to be tested ; and it was tested. 
8700. (7. Where did you send it? A. To the District Secretary, 
8701.. (7. Who tested it? A. That I could not say. 
8702. (7. It would be sent to some instrument maker P A. I think 1airfax and Roberts, in Sydney. 
8703. Q. It was sent to somebody to be tested; and you were satisfied that it was right? A. I was 

satisfied in regard to the meusuremnent at the time the measurement was made : but I say in this report 
It should be mentioned that the anemometer is not in perfect order ; but the part of the instrument in 

fault is the sand-glass or stop, hence we have no reason to doubt the correctness of this register." 

8701 Q. You say one is not in order, there : which one ? A. The one I was using. 
805. 0. Then you had some doubt whether your own was in order? A. The anemometer has upon it a 
sand-glass to mark the time, one minute, in running; and, when you start for the measurement, you turn 
the sand-glass so as to get the time accurately. Well, on several occasions the anemometer had stopped 
when the glass was being turned. In some way it got some connection or friction inside in connection 
with the movement, the workings ; and the anemometer stopped : and therefore, of course, that was a 
fault. in every case where that happened we would have a second try ; and then it would be right. 
Almost to a certainty on the second try it would go without any stoppage at all: but in this case there 
was no stoppage. Therefore we have no reason to suppose that there was any inaccuracy in the 
me as nrc in ci t 
8706 Q. At all events, you never communicated with Mr. Rowan to ascertain whether he had made that 

statement? A. No ; I did not. 
8707. Q. Now, the Manager did do something to increase the ventilation ? A. Yes. 
8708. Q. So that, whether it was right or not, it does not matter. Now, is there any other matter that 
you wish to bring before the Court? 1 keep asking you this because I do not know how much you desire 
to say. Is that something you have written out there? A. Yes. 
8709. Q. Let me see it, will you? Is it something you wish to read to the Court? A. Nothing very 

particular; no. 
871.0. (7. is it a summary of what you desire to say P A. Yes. 
871.1. (7. Would not that be the shortest way of bringing the matter before the Coumt; to read what ou 
have written P A. Perhaps it would. 
8712. Mr. Brace Smnith.1 It seems that he has written out what he wishes to say : perhaps it may be the 

shortest way of getting it, to read it. 
8713. I/is honor.] We might find that we had got into the same sort of trouble as we got into with 

another witness. 
8711. Mr. Whde..] I do not think so. 
8715. Mr. Brece South.] (,).Will you let me see it? A. It is only abbreviated. 

8716. (7.Let me try, will you, to read it? A. I would like to say this: I think, if you will allow me, I 
will read what I have in connection with Helensburgh Colliery ; and that is about the only important 
colliery that need be referred to specially, I think. But before I go to that I would like to say that the 
nimder-inan:iger, at Corrinial, protested, when I made this report about the shortage of ventilation in the 
main dip, against its being entered. 
8717. (7. ( )n what grounds A. That it was not an accurate measurement. 

SiN. (7. Ieeause of your anemometer P i. Yes; becausa it (lid not agree with his own measurement, 
which lie had made recc ntiv. 
$710. (,). \\That  is the um:der-muamiagem's name, at Corrimul P A. Shepherd. 

8720. Q. Is he there iiow ? A. Yes. 
8721 
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8721. Q. Now, will you read what you have to say about Ilelensburgh P A. [Conuinuinq previous answer.] And it is on account of that protest that the qualification is put in the report, that there is 
some fault with the anemometer, 
8722. Q. Well, you are not using that now? A. No. 
8723. Q. It was not yours P A. No ; it was not mine. 
8724. Q. It belonged to the Lodge, I suppose? A. It belongs to the Union. 
872.3. Q. Now, will you pass on to this matter of Helensburgh P A. Yes. At llelenabuegh there was one 
of the miners, named Frank Morson, with toe in the inspection. We spent four days in the examination 
of that colliery, the workings and roadways of which are very extensive. In the p1lars the temperature
was rather high, 07 degrees, when we left the pit bottom, and 82 degrees in the piiinrs; so that there was 
a considerable rise by the time we got into that part of the mine. We found the ventilation was good all 
round: a large quantity, between 300,000 and 400,000 feet of air, was going fr om the main downcast shaft every minute : and this was very well divided, in my judgment, right throu gh the mine. The 
smallest measurement for a man and horse in any district was 300 feet. We found gas, explosive gas, in 
several of the working places-three, I think, in number. 
8726. Q. In any quantity? A. No ;  just what we could discover giving off from the coal face. It was a 
dusty mine, especially along the travelling roads. Some of these reacts were in a very bad condition in 
that respect when the inspection was made ; and on that account we made a recommendation that there 
should be two travelling roads, one for the horses, and one for the men. 
8727. Q. Do you mean a rope road and, a travelling road, or two travelling roads apart from the rope 
road? A. Two travelling roads apart from, separate from, all the engine roads. \V'hether that recom- 
mendation has been carried out I do not know. Also, that there should be an alteration in the method 
of entering the Deputies reports in their Daily Report Books. 
8728. Q. What did, you find to be the practice? A. I do not see any report of gas being found for a 
long time previous to my inspection. 
8729. Q. Had you reason to believe that it had been found? A. I had reason to believe it could, at that 
time, be found any day. 
8730. Q. In the Helensburgh Mine? A. Yes. The reports were too much of a general nature; and 
nearly all were alike for every district and every part of the mine. 
8731. Q. Too stereotyped P A. And, concerring gas, they always ended with the words "no accumula-
tion of gas." 
$732. Q. Let me stop you there a moment, Apart from your inspection, in which you found gas 
three times, what reason had you for believing that those reports were not correct? A. _Froin being in 
onversation with men from time to time for years past. 

3733. Q. You had been told by men from time to time that there was gas there? A. Yes. 
31. Q. Ant, if that was true, the reports were not correct? A. In my judgment they were not. 

8135. Q. Is that all you have to say about Helensburgh? 
8736. .Ais'. Robertson.] Q. Have you got that report here? 
8737. Mi'. Bruce iSmitb.] Q. Have you a CODY of the Helensburgh report? A. Yes, 
8738. Q. Let me see that. [The report was banded to life. Bruce Smith.] 
8739. Q. That was duly entered in the book at the time, I suppose, as in the other case? A. Yes. It 
might be a little more clearly specified in the other reports than it is in the colliery reports ;  but there is no alteration in the main facts. 
8740. .Mi'. Robertson.] Q. That is what I am asking. There is one official report, and another colliery 
report 
8741. His Honor.] Q. Is there any difference between those two copies, Mr. Wynn? A. I am not sure 
it is; but possibly it would be made a little clearer in detail to the miners than in the colliery book; but 
no fact of importance would be altered in any way. 
8742. Mi'. Bruce Smith.1 Q. It would be a little more in detail perhaps? A. A little more in detail as to 
the quantities of air. 
.8743. AIr. Bohr's Ison.] Q. Is that a true copy of time official report;-is that a true copy of what you 
wrote in the Mine Report ? A. I at not able to say that; but I am quite prepared to say that 1 wroto 
in the colliery report the opinion that I am no"- expressing. 
$744. .21fr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did you put into your colliery report anything about the Deputies' Report 
Book always saving that there was no gas? A. Yes, 
8745. Q. And did you express your opinion that gas was repeatedly being found there? A. No; I did 
not do that. I simply have to report what I find. I could not say what was being found at other times. 
8746. Q. But, if you did not report the fact that it had some to your knowledge that there was gas there 
from time to time, how could you say in your report that the Report Book was wrong in saying there was 
no gas P A. I said " In our opinion"_[Inte,'.r upted.] - 
$747. Q. Let me have that written statement ; and then perhaps I can pick out what I want. [The statement was handed to ALe. Bruce Smith.] \\ hat  the book said was " No accumulation of gas" ? A. No accumulation of gas. 
8748. Q. What you say about the temperature is this: "The temperature in this split is high, reaching 
82 deg.; and the lowest reading o f the thermometer was 67 cleg. That is what you referred, to just now' P A. Yes. 
8749. You say " We v]sited some of the old w'orkings and found them being ventilated to prevent the 
accumulation of noxious gases." " We found in several woi'king places a little explosive gas giving off; 
but, in every instance, there was a sufficiently strong current of air passing near  the face to render it 
harmless, or, at least, not a dangerous discharge". 
8750. His R'000i..] Then there would be "no accumulation," of course. 
S750. [Al's. Bruce Smith.] Yes: that would be right in that sense. 
8751. Q. You recommended "That the men be assigned one travelling road, and the horses a separate 
one, to travel to and from the workings" ;  that is what you mentioned just now; ' All the machinery 
that we saw was well and securely fenced ; but in our opinion the Deputies' Daily Reports in some cases 
should be w'orded to show when and where they find any gas, however small time quantity" ; that is all? 
A. That is it, sir. 

8752. Q. Well, that is so much for the Ilelensburgh Mine ;-is there anything more you would like to say 
about it? A, No, In that ease, also, the uuder.manager. protested against our putting in the report th finding of gas. 
8753. Q,  \Yhat was his pnue? 4, I do not remernbe, 8741 
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8754. Q. Did lie object to your putting this in, or object to your saying that the Deputies ought to put it 
in 9 A. lIe objected to the report that I had, written, lie objected to the statement, that we had found 
gas, being in the report. 
8755. Q. Did, he say why 9  A. It was of so trivial, so trifling a nature, and not worthrecording ; and I said, 
in reply, that whatever I found, especially of that nature. I was bound to report ; but I had made it as 
fair for him as it was possible, by the way I had worded it. 
8750. (7. Now, is there any other mine that you would like to mention P A. No other ; not of any 
8757. (7. Importance? A. That was the only place along the whole of the mines that I found any 
explosive gas. 
8758. Q. And you tried in all the others P A. Well. I tried in perhaps some old workings that would be 
standing, or working places which the men would not be in for the day ; but I never tried for gas where 
they used flare lamps. I always carried the safety-lamp with me, though, because some of the return 
airways went along the old workings, or passed through them ; and, in that case, I sometimes turned aside 
in the bords, and tested for gas just near at hand. 
8759. Q. Did your fellow inspectors go into the 1[elerisburgh Mine with naked lights, as they had clone in 
other mines? A. No ; no naked lights at Tlelensburgh. 
8760. Is that about all you wish to say to the Court P A. Yes. I wish to make some recommendations. 
8761. Q. What recommendations would you like to make P Perhaps you have put them in writing ; and 
you might reacT them P A. lcs. [Wilvess Juuuled a papr to Air. Bruce Smith.] 
6762. Q. " Summary of amendments: in the eligibility of cheelt-inspectors, not miners" [In(erruptcL] 
8703. fl/s honor.] That is the one lie spoke cf. 
8761. ALe. Bruce Smith.] Q. Also in not compelling cheek-inspector to be a member of the Union." 
That is included in the one you have made ? A. No ; that is simply a note of mine. 1 may say, in 
connection with that, that it is my opinion-let it be worth what it may-that the officers of the Union do 
not want check officers outside their own members ; otherwise they would not have the provision in the 
Rules for every check-insuector to be a member of the Union : and that is the reason of that note. 
8705. Q. That is a rule of the Union itself? A. Yes. 
8766. Q. But you think that a check-inspector ought not to be ncaessarily a member of the Union. 
A. I do. 
8767. Q. But, if the Union have the choosing of the eheck.inspectors, and if they do not care for anybody 
to be appointed who is not a member of their Union, do you think they would ever choose anybody outside P 
A. Well, there is the fact that they have chosen me, and I am not a member of the Union. 
8768. Q. Well then, they have broken the rule in your case P A. So far as II can see the rule has been 
made since I took the office ; and when I was re-elected, after holding it twelve months, and I received 
intimation that I was reappointed by the miners, I also received a copy of the rules of the association 
and in these rules .1 found out that 1 was not eligible for the position, according to their rules, because I 
was not a member of the association. 
8769. Q. Having elected you, did they call upon you to act? A. They never said anything to me about it. 
8770. Q. Not afterwards? A. Not afterwards. 
8771. 0. So that you have never acted since that rule appeared? A. Oh, yes; I have made two inspections. 
In the last nine months I made two inspections. 
8772 Q. Well, then, the existence of the rule has not prevented them from electing men outside the 
Union? A. No. 
8773. Q. Your second proposed amendment is this : ' In giving cheek-inspectors power to prosecute the 
management for any breach of the law, unless rectified without delay." You propose that? A. I do 
8774. Q. That the cheek-inspector should have the power to prosecute P A. Yes. 
8775. (7. About that I would like to asic you this question : you have heard it said, that members of the 
Union hesitate to act as check-inspectors for fear they should incur the displeasure of the management P 
A. Yes ; I have heard that. 
8776. Q. Do you believe that to he the case? A. I do. 
8777. Q. Do you not think that they would equally, or to a greater extent, object to be called upon to 
prosecute the management P A. Object to it? 
8778. (7. Yes. A. Certainly not ; where there is good reason for them to prosecute. 
8779. (7. Well, have not they good reason for reporting what they see in their cheek inspection 9 
A. Certainly ; that is why they should have the power. 
8780. Q. A pply yourself to the question which 1 want to put before you. You say they hesitate at present 
to report what they find because they do not wish to incur the displeasure of the management? A. Yes. 
8781. Q. Would not they be equally likely to incur the displeasure of the management by prosecuting? 
A. Most certainly they would. 
8782. Q. How do you propose to get over it? A. But if they had a man outside in that position- 
[Interriip fed.] 
8783. Q. You are supposing a case in which they choose a man outside-to make the inspection, and give hira 
power to prosecute P A. Yes. 
6781. Q. What is to prevent them at the present time from bringing any faults they find under the notice 
of the Department, or the Inspector? A. There is nothing that 1 know of. 
8785. Q. Why do you think they do not? A. What is the use of doing it? 
8786. Q. Why? A. Have not you had the case I have given you of Corrimral, the Government Inspector 
there? 
8787. Q. But that is only a statement made by another man to you of what the Inspector said ; and you 
have never tested it by going to the Inspector or writing to him P A. No;certaiuly. I take it for granted 
all the same. 
6788. Q. How do you know that what that man told you about the Inspector is true? A. I have no reason 
to believe that lie would write me that letter unless it was true. You have to talce this fact into 
consideration, that the man vent with the Inspector. 
8789. Q. Do you not think it an extraordinary thing for the Inspector to admit that his anemometer was 
wrong? A. No; not when lie wants to get out of performing a duty that is obnoxious to him. 
8700. Q. Do you not think it would have been a fair thing to have given this Inspector a chance to say 
whether lie said this? A. If that had been a part of my duty I should have known more about it. 

8791. 
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8791. Q. Would it not have been a fair thing-it would only have cost a twopennv stamp-to give him a 
chance of admitting or denying this statement concerning him, whhh was made by somebody else? A. it 
might have been done. 
8792. (2. it was not done by you 9  A. It was not done by me. 
8793. (2. And yours was the mind that was affected by this statement? A. Yes. 
S791. (2. You come into Court here to tell us that, according to information receired by you, the Inspector 
admitted his anemometer to be wrong ? A. That is correct.. 
8795. Q. Your tlnrd suggestion is to give check-inspectors power to inspect the plans, in crder that they 
may see the method of ventilation, and the position of doors, or crossings, return airways. &c. 9 A. Yes. 
8799. Q. You might explain to the Court why you made that suggestion? A. I irake the suggestion 
because, if a man is competent to do the work of a chec-inspect:or, he will, from his first visit, be entirely 
unaccustomed to The woikings of the Colliery ; and will not know what svstqm of ventilation is in 
existence until be has made his inspection : but if lie had the chance, and understood the examination of 
the Colliery plan, be would be able to find out, by that Colliery plan, the system of ventilation in the mine. 
8797. Q. In your opinion, it would enable the check -in spectors to do their work more completely 9 A. 
Yes. 
8798. Q. Especially where they have not been acquainted with the work before? A. Yes; that is the 
object of it. 
8799. Q. Your fourth suggestion is to compel the Government Inspector to leave a copy of his report at 
each colliery on completion of examination-the same to be seen on the land by the check-inspector? A. 
Yes. 
8800. Q. You want the check-inspectors to have an opportunity of seeing the Government Inspectors' 
report., whenever they visit a mine P A. Yes ; that is on a par with the prosecution of the Manager. On 
the one side, if there is a breach of rule, the managers have the power to prosecute the men for breaking 
them ; whereas the rules are for the safety of the men generally ; and, therefore, if they are broken by the 
managers, then the other side should have the right of punishing heavily those who break them. Then, 
in this case that you are now referring to, what was that? 
8801. Q. Compelling the Government Inspector to leave a copy of his report at each colliery on comple-
tion of his examiustian-the same to be seen on demand by the cheek-inspectors ? A. My reason for that 
is that at present the check-inspectors are compelled to leave a report of their inspection. The Government 
Inspector is supposed to look after the safety of the men as well as the check-inspectors ; and there is no 
reason that I can see why be should be exempt from leaving a copy of what he finds there for the check-
inspectors to see. You see, I am not providing that this shall be open to any of the miners, nor for the 
prosecution to be put in the hands of the miners; but simply to some person who would not take advantage 
of his position, but would see that right was done to all parties, and I think it is only right that tie 
Government Inspector should leave a report. We should be able to see then how far he omitted doing 
his duty. 
8802. Q. You said just now that, whilst seeking to give the Inspectors power to prosecute the manage- o 
ment, you also sought to give the management power to prosecute tIme mcii? A. They have it. It is a 
one-sided and unjust law. 
8S03. Q. Your fifth suggestion is this : that the return airways should be, as far as possible, through solid 
coal; and that back headings should be utilised P A. As far as possible. 
8801. Q. Yes, as far as possible. And you have here an abbreviation 'F.\T.,  sealing off" ;-what do you 
mean by that? A. The advantage of return airways through solid coal instead of through the old workings 
is that it will keep the current in one place. 
8805. Q. Yes, I understand that? A. And increase time velocity. The "V " is the velocity, you see. 
8803. Q. F.Y." P A. You would have a better chance of sealing off the old workings. 
8807. Q. Now, is that a proposal of yours, that all the old workings shoull be sealed off on all sides? 
A. That would depend I would not say all ef them. 
8808. Q. 1 want to know your opinion. Would you seal them off all round or only on the intake side? 
A. It would depend upon the plan. You see you could not decide a question like that right away like 
that. There would be some places, I daresay, where it would be a much better system to keep them open 
and allow all the foul air and gases to have a chance of coming out. 
8809. (2. You are not in favour of sealing them off altogether? A. Not altogether. 
8810. (2. You know that some people have suggested that, do you not P A. Yes. 
8811. (2. Your sixth suggestion is "Increasing the minimum quantity of air by 50 feet"; that is to say, 
you would increase it from 100 to 150 feet per man, horse, and boy? A. That is it. 
8312. Q. And "Allowing the measurements in any part of the area measured." Does that require that 
the measurements should be shown in any part of the mine ? A. No. 
8813. Q. What do you mean then? A. The system of measurements adopted now is to measure in the 
main road intake air; and then divide by the number of men and horses that this aggregate supply goes 
to. The rule is to neasure as near the centre of the roadway as you can get it. Say you have a 9-foot 
square; it would. be  30 square feet area; and the anemometer would be in the centre of that 6-foot square: 
and my experience is that you get a stronger current there than you do at some other parts of the same 
area. 
891t. Q. Then you require the measuements to be made in any part of the air? A. And I assume that, 
in a good many cases, there would be 20 per cent, less air going to the miners than is registered by the 
machine. 
8815. Q. Where would the 20 per cent, go, in your opinion? A. It would be by having the strongest part 
in the centre. If you held up the anemometer near the top on one side you would find that it would not 
register such a large amount as it would in the centre. That is what 1 mean. 
8816. Q. You mean that, if there were three offtakes from the main intake, one straight ahead and one on 
each side of the middle one, the middle one would get more than the side ones? A. Yes ; but I did not 
mean that. 
8817. Q. That would be the effect of what you say? A. No; I mean that if you take a measurement you 
should have the right to make it in any place-bottom, top, or middle. 
8818. Q. And you require the minimum amount of air at all places? A The minimum of all these places 
to be 150 feet wherever gas is known to be. 

8819. 
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8819. Q. So that the centre would require to be more than 150 feet? A. Yes. 
8820. Q. Something like iSO? A. Yes. 
8821. Mr. Wade.] Q. Do you not mean the average ? A. I mean the minimum alerage to le 150. 
8822. .3fr. Bruce Smith.] Q. is theie anything at the piesent time to prevent a check-inspector from 
testing the measurement at the side iost ad of the centre of -in airway P A. Not that 1 know of. 
883 Q. And suppose he went to the side and fount less than the minimum, cud repot ted it, do you think 
anybody could say, " Oh, well, you went to the side instead .f the middle'? A. '1 hey would say so. 
8824, Q. Under what clause, or rule, or regulation ? A. Oh, I do not know that there is anything to 
hinder that now. 
8825, Q. You say the minimum shoull be averaged all over the openiniz through which the air passes. 
Why do you ask for 150 minimum instead of 100, as at the prescnt time? A. Because 1 consider itO 
cubic feet is not sufficient where gas is known. 
8820. Q. 1 suppose you will admit that that depends upon how much a man or a horse uses dces it not P 
A. I would not admit that whatever the man or the horse absorbed would, make any difference to the 
quantity. 
8827. Q. Have you any idea how much a man does absorb P A. The question is that of removing the 
danger caused by the gas. 
8828. Q. You would not regulate it by what a ican or a horse requires for respiration ; but by the necessity 
for a greater force to carry off gas? A. that is the id, a. 
8829. Q. And would you apply that indiscriminately to all mines, whether they have gas or not? A. No 
you see .1 have put that in. 
8830, Q. Then you are of the opinion that where gas has not been found there is no necessity for any 
increase on the present minimum averae of 100 cubic feet P A. I think it is quite sufficient. 
8831. And from your check-inspecting 'You say there is only one mine in the district in which you would 
require 150 cubic feet-1 mean, if you judge from your own inspections P A. Yes ; from my own 
inspection,-. 
8832. Q. \Vould you go on one inspection P Do you t.ink that a sufficient test ? A. I do not ; a man is 
always at a disadvantage ott his first visit. 
8833. Q. Then you require to form a judgment in testing a hether a mi ic is gissy or not from more than 
one visit? A. Yes; but in every,  place besides lleleiisbitrgh the flare light was used; so that 1 would not 
think of testing for gas in a place where they were using the flare light. 

[The Commission then adjourned for luncheon.] 

A FTEI1NOON. 
(On resuming at 2 o'clock )i1r. W. H. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence 

and proceedings.) 
JOhN WYNN, previously sworn, was further examined as under:- 

8835. Me. Bruce Smith.] Q. You say that there should be all amendment of the law with it view of 
preventing shot-firers from making all examination of a mine with the same safety-lamp which they use 
in firing the shot ; and you have on your memorandum, in plreitheses, the words "A hole in the glass." 
What do you mean by that? A. The most common way of firing a shot in a mine where gas is known to 
exist is by a wire heated by a safety-lamp. You call either put the wire through the gauze of the lamp, 
or through a little hole which is cut in the glass. 
8536. Q. Do you say that the hole is cut t}irough the glass ? A. Yes; and I think that the examination 
ought not to be made with that lamp, because it might be that the shot-firer would not cover up the hole, 
and there is a danger in that case of the flame of the lamp igniting the gas. 
8837. Q. is that hole made artificially, or is it provided in the lamps? A. It is provided in the lamps, 
for the purpose I have mentioned. 
8838. 9. It is provided in some of the lamps? A. 'Yes. 
8839. 9. And you say that lamps of that description are not safe for the purpose of making an inspection ? 
A. N o ; because they may be the means of igniting gas. 
8840. Q. You say that there should be " Cut-throughs every 30 yards, or as it was before 35 yards. A 
mistake in removing it from the law." What do you mean by that P ii. Before the last amendment of 
the law there was a provision that cut-throughs should be 05 yards apart. When I went to make my 
first inspection of the Keira Colliery, I thought that that provision still existed, but found out that it had 
been removed from the Act f Parliament, and that the Manager of a mine could carry the air by means 
of brattice for any distance lie liked. I consider that it is dangerous to carry the air too far by means of 
brattice. 
8841. Q. Up to what length do they carry the air now without cut-throughs ? A. I found, on my first 
inspection of the Mount Keira Mine, places between 40 and 50 yards in extent being ventilated by means 
of brattice. 
8842. Q. What is the longest length you have known in the ilelensburgh mine? A. I do not think there 
is anything like that distance without cut-throughs. 
8843. Q. Are you aware that in some cases there are distances of several hundred yards without cut 
throughs P A. I am not aware of it. I have seen in other collieries places where the cut.throughs have 
been 40 or 50 yards apart. 
8844. Q. Do you know anything of the English practice with regard to the size of the pillars P A. The 
pillars would be about 70 yards square-that is, unless they are near a shalt. 
8845. Q. You have a note here of " £100 "-what does that mean P A. It refers to a suggestion I was 
going to make. I thought that the Government might offer a reward of £100 to anybody who could 
improve on the present way of testing air in mines. At present it is almost impossible to register 100 
feet of air per minute ; and, therefore, it is impossible to carry out the Act by measuring the air in the 
working-places, and you have to lake the aggregate quantity of air there. 
8846. Q. You say that you would also suggest, as being important, that there should be more " self-help." 
What do you mean by that ?A.By " self-help" I mean help from the Miners' Union. 1 mean that 
the miners should help themselves. 
8847. Q. You do not believe in their looking to Government and. Parliament for everything ?A. 1 do not 
think they should look to the Government to do everything for them. 
8818. Q. You say that "Competent check-inspectors should be selected as far as possible "P A. I mean 
that the mtners ought to select competent check-inspectors. 

10825 29-2 P 8819. 
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8819. Q. You also suggest that " More frequent check inspections should be made "-you say " once in 
every three months." Do you know how often check inspections are made now P A. I held the office of 
check-inspector for twenty-one months, and during that time I macic ten inspections. There are nine 
collieries in this district belonging to the Association. 
8850. Q. \Vhieh means that any inspection was only macla one-- in every tea months ? A. Once in every 
twenty-one months. It takes a lot off the value of an inspection when you only have so few of them. 
8851. (3. Were von not asked to make more inspections ? A. I made all the inspections that I could make. 
8852. (3. You suggest that A pernanent check-inspector ought to be appointed for the illawarra and 
the Western District " ? A. That is a suggestion which I make. I propose the appointment of a cheek-
inspector by the Union. If it is not practicable to have one appointed for Ihawarra alone, the appoint-
ment might be made in combination with the district. 
$5:3. Q. You say that the probable cost wonld be £1.70, which would be Is. 3d. per man. That would 
make up the salary of a permanent check-inspector for twelve months P A. Yes ; for twelve months. 
8851. Q. You say that "The cost of check inspection daring your term of office was £23-23s. per month, 
or Sd. each member ? A. Yes. 
8855. That is merely the cost in wages P A. Yes. 
8850. You say that you think that a regular check inspection would make the management keep things 
near the law? A. Yes. 
8857. Q. I think there is something which you said you wanted to say about Inspectors? A. I simply 
wanted to say what I have lust  said-that check-inspectors are of great importance, because the Govern-
ment inspections do not appear to be very satisfactory. 
8958. Q. You have formed some opinion as to the way in which Government Inspectors do their work P 
A. I know of the way, because when I was working at the Buili mine a Government Inspector caine 
there and took the measurement of the air at the intake, the ventilation of the furnace, and the measure-
ment of the return air, and left the Colliery without going into the workings at all. 
8859. Q. Have you any suggestion to make with regard to the work of the Government Inspectors--do 
you think they do their work properly P A. I have no suggestions to make as to that; but I think that 
you should give power to the check -inspectors to see that the Government Inspectors do theic work 
properly. 
83(0. Q. You wanted to say something about the Helensburgh mine? A. No. 
SSGI.Q. Is that all you wish to say? A. Yes, that is all I wish to day. 

Mn. JOHN MORRISON was sworn and examined as under 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Wade. 

8802. Q. What is your name? A. John Morrison. 
8803. Q. What are you? Q. At present I am a deputy at the Mount Kembla Colliery. 
884. Q. You were called as a witness at the Coroner's Inquiry relating to that disaster? A. Yes. 
8905. Q. I want to ask you one or two things which you may have observed after the disaster. Now, as 
a matter of fact, you lost two sons in this disaster? A. Yes. 
8805. Q. And you were not asked any questions about them in your examination at the inquest? A. No. 
8857. Q. I w-ant to ask you about the elder boy. Do you know where he was found? A. lie was found 
in the 4th Left travelling road, near the main tunnel. 
8808. A&. Ritchie.] Q. What was his name? A. Henry. 
83139. Mr. Wade.] Q. lie was a wheeler, was be not ? A. No, a clipper. 
8370. Q. Was be a small boy? A. He was 17 years of age. 
8871. Q. I suppose you saw- his kody when be was taken home ? A. Yes. 
8872. Q. Did you see the body before it was washed? A. No, I did not see the body until alter it was 
washed. 
8873. 0. Did you notice the face and the arms? A. Yes. 
8974. Q. Were there any marks on the body? A. On the back ol the hands the skin was raised, but it 
was not broken. 
8875. Q. Was it the same on both hands? A. Yes. 
8870. Q. On the back or on the front of the hands? A. On the back of the hands. 
8877. Q. To what extent was the skin raised-2 or 3 inches? A. It was jist slighity raised-you could 
see that the skin had been slightly burned and raised up. 
8S78. Q. What was the extent of the burning ? A. From the knuckles down to the wrist. 
8879. (2. Was the place as big as half-a-crown? A. It was the width of the wrist. 
83S0. (2. Would it be about 2 inches long? A. It would be about 27 inches long. 
8891. (2.  Was it the same on both wrists P A. Yes. 
8882. (2. Are these the only marks which you saw on the hands and the arms? A. Yes. 
8883. (3. What about the face? A. The skin was off the brow. 
8S81. Q. How much ? A. Just a little. 
8885. Q. Can you describe it? Was the place as large as a sixpence, a shilling, or half-a-crown? A. It 
was a long strip about half an inch broad; I should think it would be from 14 inc h to 2 inches long.. 
8880. (2. Was the skin hanging, or was the skin gone? A. The skin was gone. 
8887. (2. Did you see any marks anywhere else? A. I saw marks on the side of each cheek ; the skin 
was raised the same as it was on the back of the hand. 
8888. Q. What (lid you notice about the face? A. All round about the face there were little pieces 
picked out-the places were about the size of a threepenny-piece. 
SSSO. Q. What was picked out? A. Pieces of skin. 
8890. Q. Were these marks on the face or on the hands when the boy vent to work in the morning? 
A. No. 
8891. 0. With regard to the boy's hair. Did you notice anything about that? A. He had had his hair 
cut short the day before; I did not notice anything wrong about it. 
8892. Q. Did you notice if the ends were singed? A. No. 
8893. Q. Would his work be in No. 1 main tunnel rope road? A. Just on the opening of the 4th Left. 

8894. 



	

	

299 
lVitns-J. Moriison, 27 January, 1003. 

894. Q. How far was his body from where Dungey's body was found? A. It would be about 80 yards 
or so-I cannot exactly say. 
8895. Q. On the outbye side? A. Dungcv was found on the 5th Left. I forgot to say that there was a 
mark on my son's chest, as though something had struck him, or as though he had been thrown against 
so inethi n g. 
8890. C). Was the mark on the chest-bone? A. Yes, I think so. 
8507. C). Was there any other injury by way of broken bones ? A. Nothing that I noticed. 
8898. Q. When going up towards Aitken's body did you come across a man named Jones? A. Yes. 
8399. C). Was he dead ? A. Yes, he was lying on the back of a skip 7 or 8 yards from the face. 
8900. C). What was the number of his bord? A. No. 87. 
890). C). Would he be near Aitken's place P A. Nearer to the main tunnel. 
8902. C). Between the main heading and Aitken's place ? A. Yes. 
8903. C). What was Aitken's number ? A. No. 80. 
8904. C). TIe was next to him ? A. Yes. lie was in a bord next to Aitken's place, but that bord had not 
been holed through with a cut-through. 
8905. Q. Did you examine Jones? A. There seemed to be nothing wrong with him. Tie looked as if lie 
had only lain down. 
8900. C). Did you examine his neck afterwards? A. No. 
8907. C). Do you remember finding it shirt near Aitken's place? A. Yes. 
8903. Q. On what day P A. On the day that Mr. Ritchie was there-the 901 of August. 
8909. Q. Where did you find it ? A. Twelve or 13 yards inside of Tost's bord. 
81)10. Q. What do you mean by inside? A. Between Aitken's place and Tost's bord. 
8911. C). What is the number of Tost's bord ? A. No. 83. 
8012, C). Do you know whom the shirt belonged to? A. It belonged to Tost. 
8013. C). Was it an outer shirt? A. Yes. 
8911. C). Do you know where he usually kept it? A. It usually lay at the I urn. 
8915. Q. At the turn of his bord ? A. Yes. Tost was found between his bord and Aitken's place- 
about 15 yards from Tost's bord. 
8910. Q. had the shirt apparently been moved in a direction from the main tunnel towards Aitken's 
pl ace ? A. Yes. 
8917. Q. Did you notice any other things in Aitken's place? A. We saw a penknife sticking in the prop 
in James' place. 
8918. Q. In what position was it? A. It was stuck in the prop about an inch deep. 
8919. Q. On winch side of the prop would that be ? A. On the side next to Aitken's place. 
8920. Would it be between Aitken's and No. 1 main rope road, or near the side of Aitken's place? A. On 
the other.  side. 
8921. Q. Do you know anything about the ownership of it? A. I know nothing about the ownership 
of it. The knife was half closed when we found it; and the blade was bent. 
8922. Mi'. Bruce Smith.] Q. Was the blade bent sideways? A. Yes. 
8923. AIr. Wade.] Q. Suppose the knife had been flung there by force? A. It was the same as if it had 
been flung fromAitken's place towards the next place. 
8921. C). You saw a C " marked on the main rope road close to Morris' cut-through. Was a door there 
in position before the disaster ? A. Yes. 
8925. C). Did that door have the effect of turning the air from the main rope road, through a cut-through, 
out by Morris' place, and up the back heading? A. Yes. 
8926. Q. Did you find that door afterwards? A. Yes. 
8927. His Jlonor.1 C). Was that a wooden door? A. No ; a canvas door. 
8928. 31r. Wade.] C). Where was it lying ? A. The door was lying at the turn-inbve. 
$929. Q. Can you describe the place? A. I will describe it. [Referring to the plan.] The door was 
found on the outbye side of the cut-through leading to Purcell's and Tost's bord. It was exactly opposite 
the bord. 
8930. Q. Then it had evidently been forced inbye? A. Yes. 
8931. His Jlonor.1 C). It had been blown for a distance of 4 or 5 yards P A. Some 4 or 5 yards bibye. 
8932. Mr. Wade.] ç. Is not the cut-through actually opposite Morris' working-place, between the front 
and back heading - No. 1? A. Yes. 
81)33. C). Before the disaster, was there any screen there? A. Yes. 
8931. C). On Morris' side? A. On the cut-through between the two headings on the side ricer Morris'. 
803.5. Q. Was the canvas led from that particular screen across the cut-through to Morris' place? 
A. Yes, 
81)30. C). Was the canvas there? A. Yes; on the side of the cut-through nearest to Morris' working- 
plmmre. 
8037. C). That is on the side running up to the back heading? A. It was a canvas door, and it was across 
the mouth of the cut-through. 
89:18. C). On the back heading, not on the front heading? Q. Yes. 
8939. C). From that particular canvas, across that cut-through, the canvas was carried into Morris' 
working-place? A. Yes. 
$910. Air. Bruce Snmith.] Q. The same canvas ? A. Yes. 
8911. Mc. Wade.] C). The effect ot that would be that you bad the air going up main No. 1, to the 
cut-through, and out by Morris' place? A. Yes. 
8912. C). What I mean is this. Did the air come from that cut-through, up to the back heading, amid did 
the canvas at Morris' place take the air round it, out again, and up to the face of the back heading? 
A. Yes. 
8913. Q. Now, this canvas which was across this cut-through, opposite Morris' place-did you find that 
after the disaster P A. Yes ; it was lying up agaiust the corner. 
8911. C). What corner? A. Corner between Morris' place and the back heading. 
891-5. C). Do you mean the corner of Morris' place ? A. Yes. 
89W. C). How had it moved? A. It had moved in the direction of the main tunnel 
8947. I/is Honor.] Q. You mean at the north.east corner of the intersection of the heading that Morris 
was driving  and the back heading? A. Yes. 8948. 
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8948. Air. Wade.] Q. You say that you found some of the canvas blown against a corner? A. Yes; and 
some canvas was lying on the ground. 
8949. Q. A. little further away did you see some more canvas, inbye from Morris' working-place P 
A. Yes. 
8950. Q. In the back heading? A. Yes. 
8951. Q. I mean that there was some canvas inbye f Morris' working-place P A. Yes. 
8952. Q. how much was there? A. When we took Morris' body away we took some of the canvas and 
put it over the top of the body. There was a long piece of canvas lying there; it was against the rib on 
the inbye side of Morris' place. 
8953. (9. Where? A. On the left-hand rib going into Morris' place. 
8954. Q. In what direction had it gone P A. Inbye. 
8955. Q. How far was it from where it had been placed berore? A. About 5 yards, I think. 
8956. Q. You know the canvas that rcnt up to Morris' place to take the air in there? A. The canvas 
was all down in Morris' place. 
8957. .211r. Robrtaon. Q. is not that the same canvas? A. Ycs, the same canvas. 
8958. his Honor.1 (9. 1J0 you mean the same canvas that you were talking of last? A. Yes, just the 
same piece. 
8959. Air. TVzde.] (9. Then you mean that the canvas which took the air up to Morris' place had been 
blown inbye and had also been moved sideways for several feet? A. Yes. The canvas opposite the back 
heading was blown into the back headin g. 
8900. Q. The force was the same in each case-iiibyeP A. Yes. 
8961. (9. Do you remember a fire which was found three bords away from No. I rope road? A. Yes. 
8962. (9. Did you find a pipe in the remains of the fire? A. Ilotchkis did. 
8903. (9. What did you find-iou know where the ashes were? A. We kicked against some canvas there. 
8964. (9. Were there some pieces of canvas which had not been burnt? A. Yes; and a pipe was found 
there. 
8965. 0. Who has that pipe now F A. ilotchkis has it. 
8966. Q. Do vou knew whether that place was used by the men for their meals, or for sitting down iii? 
A. Not to my knowledge. 
8907. (9. The place was just off the road, was it not A. Yes, just off the rcad. 
8968. (9. Was there anything else lying about there P A. Some bits of newspaper. 
8969. (9. Were they burnt? A. No. the paper was not burnt. 
8970. (9. With regard to this 4th Left road, were there any doors on that road before the disaster ? 
A. Yes, there were five canvas doors on it. 
8971. Q. Between what points? A. Betivean Stafford's going hord and the entrance to No. 1 rope road. 
8972. Q. Were there any,  canvas doors in No. 1 rope road P A. Yes, two. There was a canvas door, and 
the first cut-through was canvassed over, and there was another canvas door after that. 
8973. Q. How far was this from the main No. 4 level, and the first bord on the 4th Left? A. About 
10 yards. 
8974. Q. How far was it to the travelling road ? A. About 10 yards. 
8975. Q. 1 am speaking of the 4th Left road? A. There were five on each road. 
8076. Q. Between No. 1 level and Stafford'sgoing bord? A. Yes. 
8977. Q. Are the remains of those doors lying about there now? A. Some of them have been put up 
and some of them are down. 
$97. (9. There was some timber lying about, inbye of tIre 4th Left rope road? A. Yes. 
8979. Q. It was scattered about? A. Yes, as far as the 5th Right. 
8980. (9. Had that timber been stacked P A. Yes, the timber had been stacked. 
8931. Q. In what position? A. in big stacks. 
8982. (9. Where ? A. Just past the 5th Right on the main level. 
S9S3. (9. Where was it found? A. It was strewed all about. 
8984. Q. In what direction? A. inbye of where it had been stacked. 
8985. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Where did you say that was before? A. On the road as you go by the 5th 
Right. 
8986. Mr. Wade.] Q. On the main rope road? A. By the side of the rope road. The rope road finishes 
on the 5th Right. 
8987. Q. Had there been any timber lying near the 5th Left before the disaster? A. None that I 
know of. You might get a couple of props there. There might be timber on the 4th Left, but no 
quantity; but inbye of the 5th Right a large quantity could be stacked. 
8988. Q. Do you remember the building round the door in the travelling road inbye of the 4th Right? 
A. Yes. 
8989. Q. Did you notice how that door had been blown? A. Yes, the door was knocked off the stone-
work. 
8990. (9. In what direction? A. Iubye. 
8991. (9. Did you notice the stonework of that same doorway-on the side next to the 4th Right? 
A. There was a very little knocked off. 
8992. Q. Which side had the most stone knocked off? A. The one on the left-hand side going in. 
8993. Q. How far was this stonework from the 4th Right? A. Three or 4 yards. 
8994. (9. Did the force seem to have struck the rib next the rope road? A. Yes. 
8995. (9. Can you say whether, if the force had come out of the 4th Right, and turned the corner, it 
would strike the left side? A. Yes, I think it did so. 
8996. His Hosmor.] If you fired out of the 4th Right outbye, froin the goaf, the westernmost corner 
would catch it most. 
8997. Air. Wade.] Q. You told us about a place where a fire was, near one of the bords of No. 1 main 
level. Did you notice whether there was any fall near these bords? A. Yes. 
8998. Q. On which side would the fire be, between the fall and No. 1 main level? A. The fall was 
between the 4th Left travelling road and where the fire was. 
8999. Q. Suppose you were going from No. 1 main level to the fire, would you find the fall after you 
passed the fire, or before you got to it? A. After you passed the fire. 
9000. Q. Had that fall taken place before the disaster? A. Yes. 0001. 
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9001. Q. If you wanted to walk from the place where the fire was to the 4th Left travellieg road, you 
would be blocked by this fall ? A. Yes. 
9002. Q. U you wauted to walk to Gill's going bord, you would be blocked by the fall on that side? A. 
Y es. 
0003. Q. Between the 501 Right and the place, where Morris' body was found-what was the floor 
there? Was it ordinary (lust or coal-dust -that is to sac, stone-d ust or coal-dust? A. There was a little 
stone.dus', and coal-dust to). 
0001.. Q. At present there is a good deal of stone there. has it b( en put there since the explosion ? 
A. Yes, there is some stuff ohich has been thrown about there. 
0005. ILs Honor.] Q. 1)o you inein thrown there since the explosion? A. Thrown there at the time. 
0000. Mr. JVade. Q. \Vhat do you mean by "at the time" P 1)o you mean by the force? A. Yes ; I 
think it was stufF t hro\vn out of the idcs. The stuff on the sides is thrown up and down-all over the 
place. 
0007. Q. have you had experience of small falls of the roof-I mean ordinary falls? A. Yrs. 
90)8. Q. WhIt is the roof at Kembla? A. Oh, it varies. 
90)9. (7. \Vhat is it, as a rule? A. In some places it is stone and shale, and in other places it is in layers. 
0010. (7. how do you know the time at which there is a fall from the roof-I aneaii when it takes place ? 
A. If there was a fall in one of the roads, I would know before I went there that the fall had taken place, 
because the white dust (rets on the rails and shows itself. 
0011. Q. The (lust settles after the fall ? A. Yes. 

Mit. JOhN \VYNN was recalled, and examined as under:- 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaght :- 

9012. Q. l)d you notice whether the anemometer used at the Corrimal Colliery was a new one P ii. Do 
You mean the one I was using? 
9013. (7. No, the one the Manager was using ? A. I never saw it. lie brought it up to v'heek mine. 
9 )1. I. (7. When the under-manager protested against the measurement of the air being entered, did he 
give any reason ? A. Yes ; on account of the instrument having stopped when lie started the measure- 
in en t. 
9015 (7. had you not taken the measurement ? A. Yes. 
Diii. 9. Was lie not satisfied with it then? A. He )iever made any complaint until lie i'ead the report. 
0017. A. And how long after the report had beeu written was it that lie read it? A. Immediately after 
I had done it. 
9018. A. Did you alter it ? A. No. 
9019. (7. Did you strike any of it out? A. No. 
00.!0. 9. Did you ask, when you were at Helensburgh, how it was that there was no entry in the book, of 
gas having been found P A. Yes. 
0121. 9. Who answered you? A. The under-manager. 
0022. 9. What did he say? A. Oh, lie said the firemen made their reports as they found the mine. 
0023. 9. Did you point out t him that you hal reason to believe that gas could be found there any day? 
A. I did not. 
0021. Q. And, in addition ta the under-uianaer protesting against your report of gas, did lie give any 
reason for that protest? A. Only on account of the smiliness of the quantity found. He said it was of 
a trifling nature. 
9025. Q. Did lie say why lie did not want it trifling amount of gas reported? A. He did not. 
9026. Q. You told us that the officers of the Union did not want check-inspectors appointed from outside 
the Union? A. I only gave an opinion on that. 
.9027. Q. have you anything to base that assertion on ? A. I have the sterling fact that they had only 
ten inspections in twenty-cne months. 
9028. Q. You were the Inspector, and were not in the Union ;-is there any fact which will warrant you 
in saying that the officers do not want to employ persons outside the Union? A. I mean only the officers 
have that rule. 
0029. Q. Do you not see yourself that the Union could more safely trust a man who was a member of 
their own body than an outsider, to make a cheek inspection? A. I do not see it. There have been 
opponents to me in election for that post. 
9030. Q. 1-lave the members of the Union any reason for not making a true report? A. I do not hint at 
that at all. 
0031. 9. Would they have any reason P A. They might have. 
9032. 9. What would be their reason? A. It might be the danger of being punished. 
9033. Q. Do you know that it is a poitive danger P A. I know it is. The fact of my making an entry 
about gas is quite enough to show tue what would happen if others did it. 
9031. Q. Do you know that one of the reasons given for choosing you, as being outside the Union, would 
be that you would not be afraid to report if you discovered things? A. I believe that was the chief reason 
for my appointIrent. 
9)35. Q. You told us that on one occasion Mr. iowan did certain thing. Is that the same Inspector 
who, at Old Bulhi, only came in and took the air measurements, and went out again? A. No. 
9036. Q. Who was it P A. That was a long time ago. It was when I was check-weighman outside. 
9037. Q. Who was it? A. His name was Lewis. 
0038. Q. Is he in the district now? A. He is dead I believe. 
9030. Q. After Mr. iowan had made this statement, had you any reason to doubt his integrity? A. What 
statement. 
9040. Q. About the anemometer being wrong? A. Most decidedly. 
0011. Q. Have you any reason besides those you mentioned? A. The only other reason is because of the 
faulty places I found in the other inspections, which ought not to exist if the Inspector had done his work 
satisfactorily. 
9042. Q. What do you mean? A. The case where I pointed out that there was a breach in the lw and in 
other respects. 9043. 
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9343. Q. Can you tell me of any case where a breach of the law came to his notice, and he did not act P 
A. A breach of the law - [interrupted.] 
9.41. Q. I mean a case where a breach of the law was brought under his notice, and he did not take 
proceedings P A. The only breach of the law is the Corriinal case-a case of short ventilation. 
90-15. Q. With the exception of the Corrimal case, have you any reason for doubting Mr. Rowan's 
integrity P A. Yes, because of the case at Keira-a partial stoppage of the air-course, and lie was very long 
in putting it riodit. There was also the existence of black-damp there. 
9016. Q. Do you know whether *Ir. Roivati saw these faults ? A. I do not know ; but I think he ought 
to have seen them. 
9047. Q. Do you know officially when he had been at Keira previously ? A. I do not know. 
9018. Q. have you any other reason for saying he w'as not a man of integrity P A. There is the helens-
burgh case. If P'Pr reports had been written, there would have been statements made of the finding 
of gas there. 
0049. Q. Is there anything else besides that P A. No. 
0050. Q. Coining to the Mount Kembla Mine ;-is there anything there to show that the Government 
inspectors neglected their duty ? A. I cannot think of anything. 
9051. Q. With regard to the measurement of the air in a- mine-is it a fact that the only reliable guide 
as to the amount of air in the working places is to take the measurement of the air in those places P 
A. That is the only,  reliable guide. 
9052. Q. Would you be in favour of recommending that the air should be regularly taken in the men's 
working places? A. I do not know. 
9053. Q. Why P A. Because it is impossible. 
9354. Q. Why? A. The anemometer will not give any registration. 
9035. Q. Can you give me the least registration it will take P A. I never made any test, but in a narrow 
area you can scarcely get less than 300 feet per minute. I should say that it would be impossible to get 
a registration of 100 feet in the working places. 
9050, Q. Where would you suggest that such measurements of air should be taken P A. I do not know 
that anything  better can be arranged than what you have at present, with the instruments you have. My 
own rule was to measure the air as near the working face as I could get, but I found that that was not 
the rule with the Government Inspector. 1 often went to 100 yards nearer the face to take my measure-
ments than the Inspector did. 
9057. Q. Has the management at a mine ever objected to your taking measureaients at the side? A. No. 
9058. Q. You would not think of testing for gas where flare lights are used P A. Yes, I said that. 
9059. Q. In Kenibla flare lights were used? A. Yes. 
9000. Q. You did not test for gas? A. I did not in the working places. 
9061. Q. So that this inspection of yours of Kembla, as liar as the working places were concerned, was 
not valuable in relation to gas? A. If there had been gas, the flare light would have found it before I 
went there. 
9002. Q. With rezard to the inspection of the wastes-you only went a few yards into them? A. Yes. 
9033. Q. Now, did you go into all the working pldces, or did you pass some of them over? A. I went 
into every one. 
9001. Q. You saw all the workings whilst you were there? A. Yes. 
9005. Q. What were the preparations which had been made to put thinds  in gool order P A. I heard 
of that. 
9000. Q. Now, with regard to your suggestion as to firing a shot, would you say that the practice of 
opening safety-lamps to light a fuse with was a dangerous practice? A. Certainly it would be, in the 
presence of gas. 
9007. Q. If a shot-firer in the Rembla Mine had, since the disaster, made it a practice to open a safety-
lamp to light a fuse, would you say that lie was a competent man P A. I would say that it was a 
dangerous practice. 
9068. Q. Would he be competent? A. He might have no other method of lighting a fuse. 
9039. Q. Would he be a competent man to entrust with the work? A. lie should not be entrusted with 
it, and lie should refuse to do it. 
9070. Q. With regard to this recommendation, " That eut-throughs should be 30 or 35 yards apart," do 
you think that these eut-throughs would weaken the roof P A. No. - 
9071. Q. Now, in what way is it that the miners should give more self help P A. I think there ought to 
be more frequent inspections. The inspections do not seem of much value as they are made now. 
9372. Q. You said that the Government ought not to do a lot of things for them? A. 1 mean in relation 
to carrying on the check inspections. The miners should appoint competent men, and have more 
inspections made, and these inspections should be by independent men who can make reports without fear 
of the consequences. 
.0073. Q. Now, I will take you through seine of the general rccotnmendations. No. 1 is--" Managers, 
under-managers, deputies, and shot-firers to hold certificates of competency by examination, and to have 
had five years' practical mining experience before being eligible for respective positions." Do you approve 
of that P A. I do not see that there is any need of the shot-firer's being a certificated man. If he has 
any knowledge of the w-ork at all that ought to be sufficient without knowing theory. 
9074. Q. Who is going to decide whether he has that knowledge? A. The mnfn who put him there ought 
to know that. 
9075. Q. Does that not mean that the Manager may appoint a man who may be wholly incompetent. 
Take the case of Kembla, for instance, where, since the disaster, a man has been firing shots with a naked 
light? A. Of course, there is a possibility of the management's appointing an incompetent man. 
9076. Q. And would not the effect be to endanger the safety of the whole mine P A. Yes. 
9077. Q. What objection can you have to the men owning a certificate ? A. I have no objection. 
9078. Q. Should they be ccrtidcated P A. Well, I think it might be better. 
9079. Q. llecornmendation No. 2 is-" Inspectors to be invested with absolute power to order the use of 
safety-lamps." In your opinion should the Government Inspectors have the absolute power of ordering 
these lamps to be used in a mine if they think it advisable? - A. Yes, I think so. 

9080. 
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0080. Q. Recammandation No. 3 is-' Ventilation by furnace prohibited and fans substituted." Have 
you had any experience of where a mine has been ventilated by furnace and the air has been defective P 
A. No ; I cannot speak as to that. All I can say is as to a fan being the better means of ventilation, 
because it is not subject to atmospheric influences like a furnace. 
9081. Q. I will pass on to No. 7-" Monthly examination and report by,  deputies and District Inspector 
with the hydrogen flame." in your opinion would that be a wise precaution to take P A. Yes, I think it 
would ; and I also think that the check-inspectors should make inspection at frequent intervals with the 
same lamp. 
9082. Q. I will pass on to No. 12-" Extra supply of safety-Ia.inps and their requisites, equal to one-third 
of the number of persons employed below ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use." 
Do you approve of that? A. Yes ; it would be a serious thing if an explosion happened where there were 
a large number of men employed, and there was not one-third extra lamps on hand. 
9083. Q. Recommendation No. 13-" Travelling and haulage roads, and other places necessary, to be 
properly watered." Do you know anything of the watering of coal-mines? A. Not much. 
9081. (7. Do you know anything of the danger of dust in coal-mines? A. No. 
9085. (7. When you examined Mount Kenibla, did it appe-ar in parts to be a very dusty mine? A. No, 
it did not. 
9080. (7. I pass on to Recommendation No. 18-" Instructions to employees regularly on the means of 
escape.'' Do you know the means of escape from the collieries you have worked in P A. Usually there 
is only one means of escape in England, on account of there being a shaft ; but then there is the upcast 
and the downcast. 
0087. Q. I mean in this State ? A. I have only worked at Bulhi. 
9088, 0. How many outlets are there? A. One only. Two for two different districts. 
9089. Q. Did you know the outlet for the district you were not working in ? A. No. 
0090. Q. Would you approve of the recommendation that the miners should be instructed regularly on 
the different ways of escape from a mine P A. Yes. 
0091. Q. Who should give them instruction? A. The Manager, or the under-manager. 
9002. Q. Recommendation No. 19 is-" Coal-mines Act to forbid a blaek-list of employees being kept, and 
pemmalising improper prevention of discharged persons obtaining employment." Do you know anything 
of a black.lisL in this district P A. No. 
9003. Q. Do you know of any instance where men have been discharged, and afterwards prevented from 
obtaining employment? A. No not directly. I have heard more than I have known about it personally. 
9094. 0. 1-lave you heard about it frequently? A. 1 have heard it talked about. I know a man was 
discharged from South Bulli for not spragging his coal, but the general talk was that he had made a cheek 
inspection and given in ,in adverse report, and this was a point taken on him. 
9095. Q. Who was he? A. I cannot remember his name. 
0000. Q. Was he prevented from obtaining employment elsewhere? A. Yes; he had, to leave the district. 
9097. Q. Do you think that the provision forbidding the keeping a black-list would conduce to the better 
management of the collieries? A. Yes if you can get it done. I do not think you will be able to deal 
with the question at all. 

Esamined by Mr. Robertson 

0098. Q. About this fall in the return airway in Keira. Do you know when the fall occurred P A. No 

I do not. 
9099. Q. It may have been quite recent, at your visit? A. I think not, for the reason that there were 
chalk marks on it, or round about it, of the firemen having travelled that way for some time. 
9100. Q. It is sometimes very diliieult to remove a fail in a return airway P A. I admit that, but this place 
might have been made better by the stuff being packed at the side. 
9101. Q. What space was there over the top of the fall? A. d.ust space enough for us to crawl over. 
9102. Q. Was it very much less than the usual state of the airway ? A. Yes. It was a heavy fall ; and we 
had to climb up one side and down the other side. 
9103. Q. As to your inspection of Mount Kenibla, when I think you said the management had been made 
aware of your intended visit? A. Yes, 
9101. Q. You think that great preparations were made in anticipation of your visit-tell us what 
preparations could be made P A. Preparations could be made in the way of putting in extra stoppinigs, if 
needed, making the stoppings up better than they were before in order to prevent leakages, and putting 
the brattice up nearer to the face. 1 know in one case as regards Keira [mien-up fed.] 

9105. Q. I am talking about Kembla P A. At Kembla that was the way in which they could improve 
matters ; and they could also clear the return airway. 
9100. Q. Do you say that the management at Keinbla was aware that your visit was postponed for a 
fortnight ? A. I did not say that. 
0107. Q. You might have gone the next day? A. That is so; I might have gone the next day. 
9108. 0. So that in that case no preparations could have been made? A. But because of the delay they 
had time to make them. 
9109. Q. Do you think they would keep on making preparations for six months if you had stayed away 
that time? A. Well, I believe that the expectation of visits keeps the management up to the law as nearly 
as possible. 
9110. Q. At the time of your visit to Corrimal, was the ventilation by means of a furnace? A. Yes. 
9111. Q. And the mine had been rapidly developed during that time? A. Yes; they were just driving 
out the work in the dip. 
9112. Q. Possibly the mine had outstripped the capacity of the furnace? A. Yes. 
9113. Q. Since then they have had a fan erected? A. Yes, 
91.11. Q. Was not that decided upon as soon as the necessity was recognised? A. Yes. 
9115. Q. At any rate, the fan was erected ? A. I always like to be fair ; if there is an explanation to 
justify a breach of the law I make it known. In that report I put in a paragraph that the management 
was pushing  on with a new fan. 
9110. Q. You mean that they were showing every disposition to improve matters? A. Yes T believe 
they did. The question is whether they should not have taken this action sooner, or have taken out some 
of the men working in that district until they had the fan erected, or had more air there. 0117. 
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9117. Q. As to the matter of the anemometer, there is no virtue in Government anemometers P A. They 
should be the same as the check-inspectors, and there should not be any difference between those of the 
managers and the Government Inspector. 
9118. Q. Do they not all buy them in the same market? A. Yes. 
9119. (2. And they are all liable to get out of order P A. Where there are two instruments against one, 
it is not justifiable to say that the two are wrong and that the one is right. 
9120. Q. You say that the Government Inspector admitted that his reachng was wrong? A. He believed 
that his instrument was out of order, and did not give a true record. 
9121. Q. Have you any reason to doubt that? A. Yes; because the Government Insp ctcr has power to 
get his instrument tested at any time. 
9122. Q. But he might find that his instrument is not working well? A. But lie can test it with the 
Mauage's instrument at any Colliery. 
9123. Q. When you say "two against one," you mean your own anemometer? A. Yes. 
924. Q. That did not seem to be as satisfactory as was desired? A. No; not in that one particular case. 
9125. Q. Who was Robert Vardy, whom you sp'kc of as having been the confidant of Mr. liowan? A. 
He was the check-inspector appointed at that Colliery to accompany me round. 
9126. Q. Is he there now ? A. Yes. 
9127. Q. Coming to this matter of the temperature iii the llelensburgh Colliery. I think you said it was 
rather high in the pillars-8 1° P A. That is what I think myself. It see med to me to be rather warm. 
912$. Q. Do you know what the temperature of ihe strata is there? A. No but probably it is pretty 
high, there being it deep shaft. It is 70° probably. 
9129. Q. It is 83°, so that there is nothing at all surprising in finding the air 82° where the natural 
temperature of the strata is 83° P A. Of c urse, I simply recorded that as being the highest I found. 
9130. Q. Do you know that the tempe ature has since been taken by the check-inspectors, and found to 
be lower? A. No, sir. 
9131. Q. You complain about the dusty roads in the llelensburgh Colliery? A. Yes; the travelling road 
is, what I call, very dusty. 
9132. Q. Do you know the length of the travelling road and the return airways in that Colliery P A. No 
I could form no idea. I know they are very long, because it took four days to travel round them. 
9133. Q. And you did not see all the mine by a long way P A. I asked them to show- me all over the place-
the abandoned workings, and some of the od workings. I inspected most of them. 
9134. Q. You admit that the contract for watering 30 or 40 miles of roadway would be a pretty big one? 
A. Yes; no doubt it would be. 
9135. Q. Especially when no water is available? A. Yes. I think I would make a suggestion which 
would help to alleviate that trouble. If you could make the horses travel the roads in the return airways, 
it would help to keep down the dust they make, and it would go out by the upcast shaft, and would not 
be so bad. 
9130. Q. Did you observe that in the llelensburgh AMine there are an unusual number of travelling ways 
provided ? A. There are a large number of travelling ways in the different districts. 
9137. Q. And in the intake airways P A. Yes. 
913$ Q. Do you not think that if your suggestion were carried out it would be guing a step backwards P 
A. I think it would be all right. 
9139. Q. Do you know that the miners actually petitioned the Minister to have a provision made that all 
travelling roads should be made in time intakes P A. I do not know. 
9140. Q. You were four or five days makieg your inspection and examination P Yes. 
9141. Q. It is an extensive mine, is it not? A. Yes. 
9142. Q. And a very gassy mine? A. Yes. 
9143. Q. And in that inspection you only detected gas in two or three cases P A. Yes. 
9144. Q. And that not in any quantity P A. We just detected it; and that is all. 
9145. Q. Does that not speak volumes for the vigilance of the officials ? A. Yes. 
9140. Q. Where you found three or four indications of fire-damp, was it near the face? A. Yes ; in the 
working face. In some plmces in tI e cut. 
9147. Q. Do you not think it possible, in a gassy mine, that you can go into every place throughout the 
whole of the mine and adjust your lamp at the face so as to detect gas in every one of them P A. No. 
9148. Q. You do not think so? A. It would be very gassy, if you could do so. 
9149. Q. I think I can demonstrate to you that you could so adjust your lamp as to find an indication of 
gas in any place. Now, do you think it is fair? A. Think what is fair P 
9150. Q. Because you find gas issuing from the face, in the cut, to pass a reflection en the management? 
A. I have not said it was a reflection on the management. 
9151. Q. You imply so in saying that you found, three or four small indications of gas at the face, and 
pointing out the fact that gas was not reported in the Deputy's book P A. That is what I say is a 
reflection. 
0152. Q. Do you think that if you examine an extensive mine and can only find three or four indications 
in a cut where gas is issuing, do you thin-k that is a reflection on the Deputies P A. Not because the gas 
is issuing. No. It is a reflection on the management that they do not report it. 
9153. Q. They did not report gas issuing from the face? A. Not as far as I know. 
91.54. Q. Then you demand that in every colliery gas issuing from the face, if it can be detected with a 
lamp, should be reported ? A. Decidedly so. 
9155. Q. It seems contrary to the experiences of most mining men. If your idea was carried into effect, 
you might as well close up every gassy mine in any country in the world. A. Not at all, sir. 
t;150. Q. Is not the only thing to have, what you got there, a plentiful supply of pure air to dilute ih 
gas and carry it away P A. Yes ; but if you do not make a report on the gas-and I was looking oi er 
the records for ten minutes to see if I could find such reports, and I have failed to find them-and if you 
have a gassy mine, and there is no report of gas in the book, it a calamity occurs what conclusion can you 
arrive at then? 
9157. Q. Did you examine all the waste workings PA.No; how could I in that time. 
9158. Q. You said that you examined all parts of the mine ? A. I said that we went into a few places in 
the old workings. We went into every working-place. 

9159 
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9159. Q. Did you find any as in the waste workings-places where gas would be most likely to accuinu- 
late? A. Gas would accumulate there if the place was not well ventilated. 
DIth). Q. You admit that the mine is well ventilated ? A. Yes, it is. 
9161. Q. And you think that, if gas is found issuing from the cut, it should be recorded P A. I think that 
it should be recorded. 
9162. Q. I think you said that the ventilation was good throughout Helensburgh P A. Yes. 
9163. Q. Now, will you be surprised to know that bords have been taken 200 yards and more without 
cut-throughs? A. I did not know that and I should be surprised at it. 
9161. Q. Do you know that the ordinary size of the pillars is from 100 Tards to 50 yards? A. No, I do 
not. 
0165. Q. That is so P A. That surely cannot be the ordinary size of the pillars. 
9166. Q. Yes it is? A. Then no wonder that you have 40 miles of roadway, 
9167. Q. There is no reason why cut-throughs should be marie every 30 yards? A. You increase the 
danger the further you go without them. 
9168. Q. But, in view of the necessity of having large pillars to support the roof in a deep mine, how 
can you have these cut-throughs ? A. Do you nieaii pillars for the protection of the main road P 
9169. Q. And also for the protection of the bords. The greater the depth, the greater the necessity for 
large pillars? A. That would be so. 
9170. Q. If you cut the pillars up by making cut-Lhroughs, you would weaken the pillars? A. A cut 
through 6 feet square would be nothing in regard to weakening the roof. 
9171. You think not? A. I do, especially in that si'i.ed pillar. I think there is no reason why it should 
not be carried out. 
9172. Q. how long is it since Inspector Lewis recorded the air at Bulli, and went home without doing 
anything else P A. It is twenty-two or twenty-three years ago. 
9173. Q. Is it not more than that? A. Perhaps it is. I would not say. it may be more than that. 
9174. Q. Inspector Lewis was then the only Inspector for the whole of the Colony? A. Yes. 
9175. Q. You said that the practice of opening safety-lamps for shot-firing was dangerous in the presence 
of gas? il. Yes, in the presence of gas. 
9176. Q. Who thinks that any one would fire a shot under any circumstances with gas in the place? 
A. I mean with the liability of there being gas in the place. 
9177. Q. Do you think it conceivable that any official would fire a shot with gas in the place P A. He 
would, of course, be very simple to do such a thing. 
9178. Is there any great difference between firing a shot with a wire and the firing of it with a naked 
light? A. A heated wire does not cause an expiosion, as a rule. 
9179. Q. Would you like to put a heated wire in fire-damp? A. it is considered to be a more safe practice 
to fire a shot with a heated wire. 
0180. Q. It there was a proposal for igniting a fuse without exposure to the air at all, would it not be 
preferable P A. I think it would. 
9181. Q. Would not electricity be preferable? A. I am not competent to answer that question ; I do 
not understand the composition. 
9182. Q. Is not firing by wire out out of date? A. It has been in practice for a long time. 
9183. Q. Is it not out of date? A. I know of no other method which has superseded it. 
9184. Q. have you not seen other methods in use at Illeleusburgh colliery? A. I have not seen any shots 
fired there. 
9185. Q. Now, about shot-firers. In answer to Mr. Lysaght, you said that managers might appoint 
incompetent men ; but previous to that you thought that Managers were the best persons to select 
shot-firers? A. Yes. Certainly, in a general way, I would empower the Manager to select the shot-firers. 
They ought to know best who are the mort capable of their workmen, 
9186. Q. The fact that a deputy fires a shot with a niked light need not necessarily imply incompetence 
on his part? A. No. If he thinks there is no danger he might fire it. 
9187. Q. He might be carrying out the system ordered by his manager. A. Yes, he might be doing thah. 
0188. Q. And the shot-firer might be perfectly comnpeteut? A. Yes ; but in the presence of gas it would 
still be a dangerous practice. 
91.89. Q. You mentioned the case of a man who had been dismissed for not spragging the coal, and you 
said it was believed that the real reason was that he had given in an adverse report when acting as a 
check-inspector. Can you give me the name of the man P A. I could not. 
91,90. Q. Can you tell inc the colliery ? A. Yes ; it was South Bulli. 
9 191. Q. About what date? A. I never thought about the matter until it was suggested to me here. I 
should say it was 10 years ago, or more than that. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie :- 

0192. Q. I understand you to advocate that managers, shot-firers, and under-managers, should have a 
certificate to be obtained by examination before they are capable of holding their positions. A. Yes, I 
would certainly be in favour of the under-managers, deputies, and shot-firers, holding such certificates. 
9193. Q. You said under-managers. Do you believe that managers should also hold such certificate? 
A. A manager ought not to hold such a position, in my opinion, without such certificate. 
9191. Q. And unless he was qualified by examination. And do you think that those managers who hold 
service certificates should have them cancelled, and should qualify themselves by examination ? A. Yes. 
9195. Q. Do you think that a manager who says that he has no knowledge of gas himself, and who does 
not understand its composition, would be a qualified person to appoint shot-firers? A. No, I should think 
not. I should think such a manager could not exist in this State. 
0196. 9. Do you think that such a person should be a manager? A. I do not think so. 
9197. 9. Now, I think that you told us that check-inspectors should be competent men. What standard 
of proficiency do you think a check_inspector should attain before he is appointed P A. Of course, the 
law does not touch them as it is at present. I think it is desirable that they should be as competent as the 
firemen and the deputies who examine the working places. 
0108. Q. Then you think that persons, before being appointed check-inspectors, should hold a certificate, by 
examination, to show that they are equally competent to a deputy ? A. Yes. 9199. 

16825 20-2 Q 
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9199. Q. Would you require it deputy to know the nature of gases, something about the danger of coal-
dust, and so on P A. He should know the composition of the various gases likely to be found in a mine; 
he should know about fire-damp, black-damp, choke-clamp, and the effect of atmospheric changes. }Je 
should know the relation of one gas to another; and he should know at what stages those gases would 
explode, and all technical knowledge of that kind. 
9200. Q. Do you think he should also have a knowledge of the danger arising from the accumulation of 
coal-dust? A. Yes, I think he should study that also, and make himself acquainted with all that kind of 
information. 
9201. Q. Should he also understand the different systems of ventilation? A. I consider that very 
important. 
9202. Q. Then those are some of the qualifications which you think every person should possess before 
being appointed a checkinspector? A. Yes. 
9203. Q. 1 think you said something in one of your recommendations that, in your opinion, the 
G-overmnent. Inspector's report should be open to the inspection of the check -inspectors? A. Yes. 
9201. Q. Should it not also be open to the miners? A. Yes, if you like. 
9205. Q. Do you know any reason why the Government Inspectors' reports should not b available for 
inspection by every man in the colliery P A. I do not know of any particular reason why they should 
not ; but, if you have good check-inspectors, you put the responsibility on them more than on the general 
body of the miners. 
9201 Q. But there might be men in the mine who are thoroughly qualified persons; and who, although 
they are not elseck-inspec'tors, could understand such reports P A. Quite so. 
0207. 0. Do you not think that the miners ought to have a right to see the report of the Government 
Inspector? A. I have no objection to it. 
9208. Q. Do I understand that you agree that, when a Government Inspector has made an examination, 
be should leave behind him a written report, to be open to the inspection of every employee in the 
colliery? A. Yes, I think it should be open to them. 
9209. Q. Now what rule of the Union is it which prevents the election of a person as check-inspector, 
who is not a member of the Union? A. I do not know. 
9210. A. Have you seen a rule to that effect? A. Oh, yes, I received a copy from yourself. 
9211. Q. Can you point it out from this copy of the rules [handing a copy of time rides to witness] P A. I 
cannot see it. 
9212. (7. I will tell you, to save time, that there is no such rule there P A. What is the year of these 
rules? 
9213. (7. 1902 ? A. It may have been taken out. The copy I had was for time year 1901. 
9214. Q. Now take the Coal Mines Regulation Act. There is a rule which reads as follows :- 

The persons employed in the mine may from time to time appoint two of their number, or any two persons, not being 
mining engineers, who are practical working miners, to inspect the mine, at their own cost. 

Would this alteration meet your views-say " Two of their number," and strike out the words, "Not 
being mining engineers." This would make the section read, "Two persons to inspect the mine, at their 
own cost." Would that suit you ? A. I think so. 
9215. Q. I propose to strike out the words in the section, " Not being mining engineers, who are practical 
working miners" P A. I think that the persons who are appointed should be competent by examination, 
and you might have those words in the Act. 
9210. Q. If we put in the words " Competent by examination," would that meet your views? A. Yes, if 
you can get the men to do it. 
9217. Q. Are those your opinions P A. If you can get competent men who have passed an examination, 
they would be the best we could get to do the work ; but I can see the doubtfulness of getting such men. 
9218. Q. You mean, in other words, that men who hold certificates of competency are looking for positions 
from the Manager? A. Yes, certainly that is what I mean. 
92 M. Q. Will this meet your views-you have no desire that they should hold certificates by examination? 
A. I do not desire to make it compulsory. 
9220. Q. You would make it necessary to have examinations if you thought the men could be got? 
A. Yes. 
0221. Q. Do you think that the exemption contained in the words " Not being mining engineers" should 
be struck out of the law'? A. I think it might be taken out. 
9222. Q. Further, do you also advocate the striking out of the words "Who are practical working 
miners"? A. I think it would meet the case if you made an alteration by adding after the words ." Who 
are " the words " or have been." My reading of the Act is that it is in the present tense. If you put 
the wording in the past tense you would make provision for the selection of any person who is not a 
miner now, but who has been a miner. 
9223. Q. You think that be ought to have been connected with a mine at some time or other ? A. May I 
read to you what Wi ]lliam I-In pton said in a prize essay, for the prevention of accidents in coal mines, 
which was read in Eimglancl thirty years ago, lie said 

In ad,lition to the Government Inspector, the workmen at every colliery should have power to appoint a competent 
person, that is, a person well informed in mining, to inspect the workings in which they are employed ; such person to 
inspect every part of the workings in a friendly manner, and give advice, if required, for the safe working of the mine. 

9224. Q. You endorse that P A. I endorse that. 
9225. Q. As to Mount Kembla. Did you observe any indications of recent alterations having been made? 
A. I noticed new bratticing in several places-that was the only change that 1 could observe. 
9220. Q. You said that if your visit had been longer delayed the mine might have been in a better state 
of perfection. You do not mean that they might have gone on improving from then until now? A. No. 

Re-examined by Mr. Robertson 

9227. Q. Is it anything uncommon to see new brattice in a mine? A. No, as the work extends they must 
bring in new brattice-cloth. 
9228. Q. Then that circumstance is not suspicious P A. No-that was the only thing that indicated that 
they had attended to the mine of late. 
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9229. Q. When you made your check inspections, were you offered every facility at the various collieries? 
A. No Manager or other person ever put the slightest hindrance in my way when making an examination. 
9230. Q. Were you not received with every civility and courtesy? A. Yes. 

9231, Q. No ill-feeling whatever was shown? A. No; I have not a single complaint in that respect. 

(The Commission at 420 p.m. adjourned until 10 n.m. the following morning.) 

WEDXESDAY, 28 JAI'TUA.RY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Court house, lVoUongonj.] 

3rcent:- 
C. F. R. MURRAY, FSQ., D.C.J. (PRESImiN'r). 

D. A. W. ROBEIlT$ON, ESQ., CouaITssIoxEii. j D. RITCHIE, FaQ., CoiculsaloNEit. 

Mr. Bru?e Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Siaitli. 

Mr. A. A. Lvsaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of- 
(a) the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &e., (victims of the explosion) 
(Ii) the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners. wheelers, &c.) ; and 
() the Illawarra Celliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. F. Curtiss appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of Mount 
Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garliek, Secretary to the.Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

Mn. WILLIAM LIVING-STONE was sworn, and stated as under 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. C urtiss. 

9232. Q. What is your name? A. William Livingstone. 
9233. Q. What are you? A. A miner. 
923 t. Q. Where? J. At Mount Kembla. 
9235. Q. How long have you been there? A. Fourteen years. 
9230. Q. Working as a miner? A. Yes ; well, lately, I have been deputy and shot-firer-these last two 
months. 
9237. Q. But you have been working as a miner at Mount Kembla for the last fourteen years? A. Yes. 

9238. Q. What parts of the mine have you worked in? A. I have been in all the parts, all the sections, 

in it. 
9239. Q. Have you ever worked in the 4th Right? A. Yes. 
9210. Q. When was that? A. It would be in 1901. 
0211. Q. How long did you work there P A. Nine months. 
9242. Q. While working there did you ever see any signs of gas? A. No. 
9243. Q. Have you ever seen gas in any other portion of the mine? A. No. 
9244. Q. None at all? A. None at all. 
9216. Q. You say you are a shot-firer now? A. Deputy and shot-firer. 
92 W. Q. How do you fire the shots there? A. With the wire. 
0247. Q. Have you ever fired them with an open lamp? A. Yes. 
9248. Q. And you have never seen gas then? A. No. 
9249. Q. What is your procedure when you are firing with open lamps? What precautions do you take? 
A. About 20 or 30 yards from the face I examine first to see if it is wet, about that distance from the 
coal-face ; and then, if I am satisfied that it is wet enough, I go into the working place and examine to 
see if there is any gas. I go to the side furthest away from the brattice. That is the first place I go to, 
to see if there is any there ; and, if I am satisfied that there is none there, I go then to the centre of the 
bard and examine there; and then go to where the shot is to be firel, and examine there, and satisfy 
myself that all is clear before I do fire. 
9250. Q. Is the mine a dry mine; or is it a wet, or damp, mine? A. Well, there is a part of it wet, and 

other parts of it dry. 
9251.. Q. Were you there on the day of the disaster? A. No ; I was not working that day. I was working 
the night before. 
9252. Q. You were not in the mine after the accident? A. Yes; I was in it after the accident, rescuing. 

9253, Q. Did you see any of the men that were rescued or any that were brought out dead? A. I saw 

some of them. 
9251. Q. Did you see any sign of burning or scorching on any of their bodies? A. Yes ; I saw one of 
the wheelers there, who was a bit scorched about the arms-Kembla Stafford. 
9255. Mr. Briece Smith..] Q. How do you describe what you saw on him? A. I saw him singed about 

the arms-burnt about the arms. 
0256. Mr. Curliss.] 9. In what way ? Was the skin off ; or was it blistered P A. The skin was 

hanging off. 
9257. Q. Both hands? A. Both arms. It might have been with lifting him. It was just when we had 
him lifted and put into the skip that I noticed this skin off his arms. 
9258. Q. You say you knew nothin,g about this explosion? You were not there until after it occurred? 
A. No. 
0259. Q. With reference to the iine, what is the state of ventilation there P A. At the present time? 

9200, 
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9260. Q. Take the average for the time that you were working there. Did you find it a well-ventilated 
mine P A. Well, I found it fair, you know, as far gs my experience is concerned. I have felt it pretty 
good at times; and at other times a bit close, where I, personally, have been working. I have felt it a 
bit warm. 
9261. Q. Does the outside atmosphere affect the ventilation? A. It does at times. It depends on which 
way the wind is blowing. 
9262. Q. How do you account for the mine being sometimes hot and sometimes not? A. The mine is 
sometimes warm for want of putting the brattice close enough up to the working face. 
9263. Q. I suppose that is easily rectified? A. Yes ; if the brattice is not close to the working face it 
must get warm. 
9204. Q. Do the miners themselves alter these bratticings? A. No. 
9205. Q. ou have got to get the deputy P A. Yes. 
9260. Q. And does be actually do it, or see that it is done? A. Well, there are two of them there; and 
if the one has not time to do it the other one has to do it. 
9267. Q. But the miner, generally, is not allowed to interfere with it? A. No ; be is not allowed. 
9208. Q. If you make a complaint about it is the matter attended to at once: is it rectified P If you make 
a complaint to the deputies, or the Manager, or anybody else, do they rectify any trouble that you com-
plain about? A. They have done it for me. I have made a complaint to the deputies as they came round, 
and have told them I wanted some more brattice, and that I found the powder smoke lying too long; and 
I always got it put right for me. 
0269. Q. And do you know that that is the general practice, of your own knowledge? A. As far as I know, it is. 
9270. Q. I suppose you know this mine well? A. Yes. 
9271. Q. Do you know the exits from the mine? A. No ; I only know the one road ; that is, like,forbye 
the haulage road, I know this daylight heading. 
9272. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. That is the one which you know in addition to the ordinary one? A. Yes 
that is the one I knou of. I knew the other one years ago; but I do not suppose I could go out by it 
no ',v. 
9273. Mr. Curtiss.] Q. You do not think you could find your way out? A. No. 
2274. Q. And you were never instructed in the ways out? A. No. 
9275. Q. Is it a custom in the mines to do that-to teach the men how they can get out of the mines? 
A. I do not think it is. It has never been told to me at all events. 
9276. Q. You have been deputy and shot-firer in the last two months? A. Yes. 
9277. Q. That is since the disaster? A. Yes. 
9278. Q. Is there any vast improvement in your income now as compared with what you were earning as 
a miner? A. T. 

9279. Q. What are you getting? A. Os. Cd. a shift. 
9280. Q. And as a miner what were your earnings? A. I could not tell you just exactly. My wages as 
a miner varied a terrible lot; because I have had good luck and bad luck: but I think, putting the two 
of them together for the twelve nionths, there would not be very much difference. They would run very 
close. 
9281. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. It would be about equal to what you get as a deputy ? A. Yes. 
9282. Mr. Curtiss.] Q. You are a night deputy? A. Yes. 
9583. Q. What are your duties? A. I have to go round the working places and examine them to see if 
they are free from gas, to see that the ventilation is good, and that the roof and sides are secure. 
9284. Q. And you do that ever day? A. Every night. 

Cross examination by Mr. Lvsaght: 
9285. Q. I think you gave evidence in the Brownlee ease? A. Yes. 
9280. Q. And, shortly after you gave that evidence, you were made shot-firer? A. No; it was before I 
gave that evidence. 
9287. Q. Had you given a proof of your evidence in Brownlee's case before you were made shot-firer? 
A. No; Idid not. 
9288. Q. And you know that your evidence was eontradirted by several witnesses? A. Yes. 
9289. Q. Now, have you had any conversation with Mr. Rogers -[Interrupted.] A. I have not. 
9290. Q. One minute-do you mean to tell me you have had no conversation with your Manager? A. 
Yes; I do that. 
9291. Q. When did you last see your Manager? A. I see him every other night. I have got to see him 
every other night. 
9292. Q. Did your Manager know you were coming here to give evidence? A. Ye. 
0293. Q. Did you tell him? A. No. 
9294. Q. Did he tell you? A. No. 
9295. Q. Well, how did be know? 
9296. Mr. Curtiss.] I think I might shorten that, your Honor. 
9297. Mr. .Lysaght.j I have a reason for asking these questions. 
9298. his Honor.] Mr. Curtiss, if you have some knowledge of a certain fact you might inform Mr. 
ILysaght privately if it would result in his not taking up more time. 
0299. Air. Curtiss.] Very well, your Honor. 

(Mr. Curtiss then spoke to Mr. Lysaght privately.) 
9300. Air. .L.qsrght.] Q. Can you tell me bow your Manager knew you were going to give evidence P 
A. No. 
0301. Q. Did be speak to you about your giving evidence? A. No. 
9302. (2. Did you speak to him? No. 
9303. Q. Have you given any personal statement of your evidence here ?A.Yes. 
9304. Q. When did you first give that statement? A. I think it was last Wednesda night, or Thursday 
night ;  1 am not sure. 
9303. Q. Was not Mr. Rogers present then ? A. Yes. 
9306. Q. Did not he hear the statement you were giving? A. Yes. 

9307. 
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9307. Q. And do you mean now to tell me you had no conversation with Mr. Rogers about your evidence? 
A. I do that. 
9308. Q. How lang did it take to prepare this statement of yours? That I am giving you now? 
9309. Q. The statement that you gave in the presence of Mr. Rogers last Wednesday? A. It took me no 
time at all. 
9310. Q. how long did it take to take the statement down? A. I was speaking to them the same as Tam 
sj,eaking to you. 
9311. (7. Was not it taken down in writing? A. No. 
9312. V/ho else was present besides Mr. Rogers ? A. Mr. Wade and some other gentleman : I do not 
know who lie was. 
9313. Q. What other officers of the colliery were present besides Mr. Rogers ? A. None. 
9314. Q. Now, you say that, with the exception of this conversation last Wednesday, you hal no 
conversation with Mr. Rogers about your statement? A. Yes. 
9315. Q. You might tell me how often you opened the safety-lamp to fire shots ? A. It depended upon 
how many shots there were that wanted firing. 
9316. Q. How often have you opencd the safety-lamp to fire the fuse ? A. I could not tell you jut 
exactly how many times I have opened the lamp. I have opened it as many times as it wanted opening. 
9317. Q. Then do I understand that you have not fired with the wire at all ? A. Yes. 
9318. Q. Your practice has been to open the lamp and fire the shot with the naked light ? A. Yes. 
9310. Q. Did not you say before that your practice was to fire with the wire? A. I say that it is my 
practice now. I am working on the night shift now; and there is no shet-firer. This was when I was 
working in the daytime. 
9320. (7. how long have you been on the night shift? A. I have been on the night shift five weeks now. 
9321. (7. Since you have been on the night shift have you fired any shots? A. No. 
9322. (7. Before you wentt on the night shift how long were you shot-firer P A. A month. 
9323. (7. And during the whole of that month you always fired shots with the naked light? A. Yes. 
0321. (7. On how many occasiors in a day would you fire shots that way ? A. Well, I could just about 
tell you that easily enough if I had time to consider; it might be about five or six times, but no more. 
9325. Q. Can you give me any one occasion when any special watering was done before the shot was 
fired? A. None ; during the time that I was on the day shift. 
9326. Q. Now, your answer is clear that for a whole month no watering was done in the vicinity of where 
any shot was fired by you? A. No; I can assure you of that. 
9327. Q. And were you not firing shots in an admittedly dusty pait of the mine ? A. I was not. 
9328. Q. Well, where were you firing shots? A. In the 2nd. Right. 
9329. Q. Is that the only place? A. That is the only place. 
9330. 9. Did not you fire any shots in the 5th Right? A. No. 
9331. 9.  Were' you not shot-firer for the whole No. 1 Right district? A. Yes. 
9332. Q. Who fired the shots, if you did not? A. There were none fired there. 
9333. Q. Then do I understand that for a whole month the only shots fired in the whole of that No. 1 
Ridht district were in the 2nd Right? A. Yes. 
9334. Q. Was that a damp place, the whole of it? A. Yes ; the lot of it. 
9335. Q. That being so, 1 may take it there was no need for you to make an inspection to see whether it 
was damp or not? A. I was keeping on the safe side. 
9336. Q. You said you always went back about 30 yards from the face, and examined to see if it were 
wet P A. Yes. 
9337. Q. If it was in a damp place, what did you want to go back every time 30 yards to examine whether 
it was wet for ,  A. I was doing my duty. it was caution, carefulness. 
9338. But would not you see whether the whole place was wet when you went into it? A. Yes. 
9339. Q. Then what would you want to go back 30 yards every time for? A. Well, I was making so sure 
that it was wet. 
9310. Q. Now, how long did it take you to examine for gas ? A. About a few seconds : not over long. 
9311. Q. And what would you do in examining for gas beftwe you fired the shot ; tell me what you would 
do;-1 want to know whether you know how to examine for gas? A. I would screw down my lamp till 
there was just a little flame; put it up cautiously to the roof; and see then if there were any gas there. If 
there were any gas there I would soon know by its drawing up the flame, and causing a little blue cap. .1 
would know that well. 
9342. Q. That was your examination for gas? A. Yes. 
9343. Q. Do you want to change that answer, or add anything to it? A. That is just about as plain as I 
can tell you. 
9311. Q. Then you did not put your lamp near the face of the coal at all? A. Yes; that is where my 
lamp was. 
9315. Q. You did not say so ;-I ask you again, do you want to add anything to that answer as to your 
earnination for gas? A. You can add that to it. I was expecting you knew what I meant. 
9346. Q. You said you put your lamp up to the roof? A. Yes. 
9317. Q. Well, now, how far would it be off time face? A. Just as close as I could get it to the coal face. 
9348. 9. And during the whole of that time, you say, you never got any indication of gas P A. No. 
9319. (9. Did you ever examine with the hydrogen lamp? A. No. 
9350. 9. Do you know how to use the hydrogen lain!)? A. -No ; I have never seen it. 
9351. (7 Do you know that the ordinary safety-lamp will only show from about 2 to 2 per cent, of gas ? 
A. Yes, I know that well. 
9352. 0. Do you know that il per cent, is dangerous under certain conditions of dust ? A. I believe it is. 
9353. Q. So that there may have been at least 2 per cent, of gas in any of the places you examined and 
you could not discover it P A. Yes ; the lamp that I use only shows about 2-i per cent. 
9334. Q. Ainh, having done that-haxing examined as to the dampness and as to the gas-did you then 
open your lamp and light the fuse? A. Yes. 
9355. Q. Did you know how deeply the hole had been drilled P A. No ; I had to take the miner's word 
for it. 
9356. Q. In each case you took the miner's word P A. Yes; and that is one point that I reckon is not 
right, 9357. 
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9357. Q. What do you mean by that? A. The shot-firer should know exactly the depth of the hole 
himself. 
9358. Q. Why did not you know? A. It was tamped up before I got there. 
9359. Q. Could not you order them to ta'e the tamping away? A. Well, it appears that it is the rule 
(meaning that the present practice is the rule). 
9360. Q. Then, in your opinion, was this practice of opening the safety-lamp and lighting the fuse with 
the naked light a dangerous one? A. It would be a hard question to answer whether it was or not. 
93 U. .Q. But you appear to have sonic doubt as to whether it was a safe practice P A. Well, there is no 
mistake that if there was gas there it was a dangerous practice. 
0332. Q. And I suppose if there was any accumulation of dust there it was a dangerous practice P A. 
Yes. 
9363. Q. Then will you not admit that it is a dangerous practice P A. Yes ; I admit that it is. 
9361. Q. And did your Manager know that you were lighting this fuse in this way? A. Yes. 
9365. Q. And I think that practice has been stopped for about two weeks, since some evidence was given 
here? A. I do not know. I am working at night time. 
9336. Q. Do I understand that, even when you were firing these shots with the naked light., you knew 
you were incurring a considerable danger PA. No I did not think there was any danger, or I would 
not have done it. 
0367. Q. Do you think now that there was a danger? A. In that particular part P 
936S. Q. Well, we are only talking about the shots you fired? A. Oh, well, there was no danger where I 
was firing shots. 
9369. Q. But there may have been danger there if there was gas, which your lamp would not detect P 
A. Yes. 
9370. Q. Well now, might there not have been danger from gas of which you did not know? A. Icannot 
tell. 
9371. Q. Now, as a matter of fact, was not there danger P A. No; I do not think there was. As a matter 
of fact, I would not open my lamp if I thought there was danger. 
9372. Q. Who ehose you as a deputy? A. I cannot tell you that. I can tell you how it was that I 
was appointed. I can tell you who it was that caine to me in my working place and asked me if I would 
take it. 
9373. Q. Who was that P A. Mr. Ilotchkis ; and I told him distinctly that I would as soon get a bit of 
coal ; and would say that yet. 
9374. Q. You felt, I suppose, that the responsibility was a bit too much for you? A. I suppose I am 
just as capable of bearing it as anyone who is there. 
0375. Q. And you do think you are competent to be a deputy? A. Until it is proved that I am not. 
9376. •Q. Have you studied any works upon gases P A. No; I have not. 
9377. Q. Have you read any mining works at all? A. No. 
9378. Q. Do you know what the constituents of light earburetted hydrogen are? A. No I do not. 
9379. Do you know what proportion of light carburettecl hydrogen is dangerous? A. No ; that is out of 
my latitude. 
9380. 2J&. Robertson.] Q. Why ask that, when he says he does not know the constituents of light 
carburetted hydrogen? 
9381. ALe. Lysaqbt.j With every respect to the Court, what I wanted to show was that a deputy was 
appointed who had no knowledge of gases. 
9382. His Honorj He says that all the knowledge lie has is a practical knowledge of coal-getting, and a 
practical knowledge of looking for gas, which does not involve a knowledge of chemistry. 
93S3. Air. Lysaqht.] What I submit to the Commission is this: that the Commission may find, as a fact, 
that a person who is appointed to the position of deputy,  should have a scientific knowledge of gas. 
9334. His Honor.] That may be so; but it is of no use going on asking this witness these questions after 
he has begun by repudiating any knowledge of chemistry. 
9385. Mr. Robertson.] I take it that you claim, Mr. Lysaht, that men in the position of deputy should 
have a scientific knowledge of mine gases P 
9386. Mr. Lysaglit.] To a certain degree-that they should know something as to the constituents of 
gases. 
9387. Mr. Robertson.] It will save us a lot of trouble if you assume that they do not knowit.. 
933S. Mr. Lysaqlit.] May I take it that the Commisaion assume that they do not? 
9389. Mr. Robertson.] You may take it that they do not. 
9390. His honor.] A few questions to the witnesses will settle that. The only reason why Mr. Robert- 
son made that remark, and I followed, was because it is really only w-aste of time to analyse a mau' 
admitted ignorance. 
9391. Mr. Lysaqlit.] Very well, your honor. 
9392. Q. 1 take it, Mr. Livingstone, that you liai-e never passed any examination for any certificate? 
A. No. 
9393. Q. Did you ever discover black-damp in Kemiela P A. No ; I never discovered black-damp either. 
9394. Q. Would you know the indications of black-damp P A. Yes I know it well when I see it. I 
have wrought too long amongst it. 
939.5. Q. I may take it that you have never acted as a deputy in any other mine? A. No. 
9396. Q. And, I suppose, until you were appointed as deputy in Kembla, you had not become used to the 
safety-lamp? You had used a flare light all the time? A. Ves ; used a flare light all the time. 
9397. Is it a fact that you only used the safety-lamp when you were appointed deputy P A. Yes. 
939S. Q. Who instructed you in the use of the safety-lamp two months ago ? A. Looking for gas? 
939g. (2.  Yes. A. I had four year's experience, following up a deputy at Home. 
9400. (2. 1 asked you who instructed you in the use of tile safety-lamp P A. Nobody. 
9101. (2. Did you tell me that Mr. Rogers knew you were firing the shots with this open lamp? A. Well, 
I expect he did. Mr. Hotchkis knew, anyway, if Mr. Rogers did not. 
9102. (2. You spoke of having complained of the smoke lying too long in your working-place P A. Yes. 
9403. (2. To whom did you complain PA. The deputies. 
0104. (2. Give their names P A. I have been amnoisgat the lot of themn. 
9405. Mr. Robertson..] Q. Did Mr. Livingtone say anything about smoke? - 
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9100. Mr. 1ysaq/if.1 Q. Yea ; who was the deputy to whom you complained? A. The whole lot of them. 
9407. Q. That gives us no information? A. Well, you know -[Infcrrupted.] 
9108. Q.  I do not know anything about it? A. Well, there were Evans, and Nelson, and Dungey. 
9409. Q. I want to know when it was that you complained to Evans, and where? A. I could not tell you 
when; but I could tell you the section. 
9410. Q. What was it? A. The shaft scetion. 
01.11. (2. What part? A. 1 could not just tell you exactly the part. I was working most in the headings. 
I know one of the places was the main heading in the shaft district. 
9112. And how long  had the smoke been lying there that you complained of P A. It would lie about a 
couple of hours after we fired the shot. 
0113. Q. What was the fault? A. The bratlice was not close enough up. 
0114. Q. how far was it away from the face P A. I have seen it 14 or 15 yards ; or, it may be, 20 yards 
back. 
9115. Q. And how far was the nearest cut-fliroucrii P A. Well, we generally put the cut-throughs about 
30 or 35 yards. 
0110. Q. But where was it then? A. As we went on ahead that is the distance we would expect to put 
the line (ineaninq the line of cut-f/i roug/is). 
9417. Q. Tn that particular case do you know how far the cut-through was anay ? A. I could not say. 
9118. Q. had the place been driven 41) or 50 yards without a cut-through P A. Not in that place. 
9119. Q. \Vhat is the longest drive in lcembla without a cut-through that you know of? A. I think the 
bords in the 5th Right are the longest. 
0120. A. What distance are they driven? A. There are some of theni up about 30 or 40 yards, I am sure. 
0421. Q. Those are the longest P A. Yes, 
0122. Q. And, in your opinion, is that quite sufficient to drive a bord without a cut_through? A. I do not 
say that. I do not believe in that at all. 
0-1.23. Q. What do you believe in? A. About 25 or 30 yards. 
012 C. Q. And anything beyond 25 or 30 yards, I suppose, would considerably weaken the ventilation? 
A. There is a chance of deranging the bratticing. It is a long way to carry the bratticing. 
9425. Q. And you speak about the westerly winds affecting the ventilation-have you known the air in 
Kembla to be affected by the westerlies? A. I could not tell you whether it was westerlies or 
southerhies: but I have seen it changed about. 
9426. Q. About how often? A. I could not tell you froin memory how often it was. 
0127. Q. About how often? A. I could not tell you. I would be committing myself if I said anything 
at all; because I could not tell you. 
9128. Q. I want an approximation, say, for twelve months,-once, twice, thrice, ten, twelve, or twenty, 
times P A. I could not tell you that. I do not want to say anything I know nothing about. It turned 
at times. 
0120. Q. Was it a common occurrence P A. No. 
91.30. Q. When it turned at times, do you know how long it remained turned P A. I could not tell you. 
9431. Q. Roughly speaking? A. I' could not tell you. 
0132. Q. how long ago is it since you last remember its being reversed? A. TI is of no use asking me 
that, because I could not give you any satisfaction as to how long it was. I would be telling lies if 1 
were to say anything else. 
9133. Q. But I credit you that, if you think a little, your memory is good enough to take you back to an 
occurrence w'hich you have remembered? A. It could not take me back to that. 
9134. Q. Was it within the last twelve months ? A. I am sure I could not say. 
9135. t9. But you do remember the occurrence? A. I do remember it; but the time I cannot tell. 
9136. Q. Where were you working at that time? A. That is another thing it is hard to tell, because I 
was shifting from one place to another pretty often. 
9137. Q. Have you any reason for not telling me? A. No ; if I knew I would tell you straight out. I 
am not afraid to tell, if I know. 
0438. Q. When the air was reversed, what was the effect on the mcii in their working places? A. It did 
not take much effect on the men, for the time being. It did not last that long before it changed again 
to its proper course. 1 have seen it changing with the furnace not drawing properly. 
0139. Q. how often have you seen it changing through the furnace not drawing properly P A. I cannot 
tell you. - 
9140. Q. Roughly? A. I cannot tell you. 
0441.Q. You remember two changes,-one caused through the furnace not drawing properly, and the 
other caused by the westerlies? A. No; I could not tell you whether it was a westerly or a southerly. 
1 have told you it was a change in the weather. 
0142. Q. Cannot you remember when it was that the furnace did not draw properly? A. No. 
9443. Q. 1-lave you no idea at all ? A. Not the slightest. 
0114. Q. Cannot you think back? A. No; I have a bad memory ; too bad to think back to that time, 
anyway. 
9145. Q. In addition to the air being reversed have you known the air to be stationary? A. I could not 
exactly tell you whether it would stand still or not. 
0146. (1. Well, say ominously near to standing still? A. It must be, when it is reversing. 
0417. Q. How long would it be in this standstill condition P A. It is of no use to ask me that, hccause I 
cannot give you an answer. 
044$. Q. Do you know anything about the dangers of coal-dust? A. No. 
9-149. Q. Now, I would, hike to ask you about these recommendations :-No. 1. Managers, under- 
managers, deputies, and shot-firers, to hold certificates of competency by examination, and to have five 
years' practical mining experience, before being eligible for respective positions." Do you approve of that 
as a general rule P A. I do. 
9150. Q. Recommendation No. 2,-do you think the Inspector should have the power, if be deem it 
necessary, to order the use of safety-lamps P A. I do. 
9151. Q. Recommendation No. 3,-" Ventilation by furnace prohibited; and fans substituted." Do you 
approve of that? I take it that, with your knowledge, you do know the advantage of the fan over the 
furnace? A. I know the advantage all right. 0152. 
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9152. Q. Do you approve of that recommendation? A. Well, I have seen fans that were not much better 
than the furnace which we have at Kembla. 
913:3. Q. But I take it from that remark that the farnace at Kembla is not too good? A. It is right 
enough. 
9154. Q. But the working of it has not been too good in your own experience? A. It has not been too 
good. 
9453. Q. Then I take it, from your own experience, you approve of this recommendation-" Ventilation 
by furnace prohibited ; and fans substituted" ; and your approval is based on your general prahtical 
knowledge? A. I think that is a part that I would just as soon not touch on at all. 
9156. Q. Why ;-do you not think you are competent to express an opinion? A. Well, I believe in the 
fans; I do that. 
9157. Q. But do you not think you are competent to express an opinion? A. As to which is the best? 
9158. His Honor.] The opinion is not as to whether fans are, or are not, better than furnaces. Everything 
points to that here. The opinion of the witness is asked as to whether it is expedient that there should 
be legislation to compel all mines in future to adopt fans instead of furnaces. 
9459. Mr. Lijsaght.] Yes, your Honor. 
9460. Q. You listen to the words of this recommendation -" Ventilation by furna3e prohibited; and fans 
substituted"? A. I understand perfectly well. 
9461. Q. You have reid all this, I suppose, before? A. I understand quite well what you mean. 
9462. Q. What I want to know is, do you consider yourself not competent to express an opinion on that 
third recommendation? A. No; I do not. 
9463. Q. You consider you are competent? A. Yes. 
9464. Q. Well, will you give me an opinion P A. I have given it to you. 
9165. Q. What is it? A. I tell you I believe in fans. 
9166. Q. I want to carry you a little further :-do you approve of this part of the recommendation, that 
the ventilation by furnace be prohibited? 
9467. His Honor.] Perhaps be hardly understands what that long word means. 
9468. A&. Lysaght.] Q. I understand you have seen all these recommendations already? A. Yes. 
9169. Q. And have you considered them? A. I did not consider that much. 
9470. Q. But you did consider it some? A. Well, I have told you the consideration I gave it. I told 
you I believed in fans. 
9471. Q. Now, do you approve of all the furnaces being done away with, and fans substituted for them? 
A. I understand quite well what you mean. 
9172. Q. Would you approve of all the furnaces being done away with and the fans substituted? A. Yes; 
if we can get it. 
9173. Q. Do you know of any reason why you should not get it? A. No. 
9174. Q. Would not the additional advantages more than compensate for the outlay? 
9475. Mr. Bruce Suit/i.] I-low does he know what the outlay I object to our time being occupied 
over expert opinion on matters on which the witness is not an expert. 
9176. His Honor.] The witness has said, practically, that be prefers a fan to a furnace, and believes a 
fan to be very much better than a furnace, lIe cannot pretend to say what be would advise on the 
larger question. 
9177. Mr. Lyjsaglit.] Very well. Perhaps your Honor thinks I have followed that sufficiently. 
9478. Q. Recommendation No. 4-" Waste w'orkings to be absolutely sealed off, and surrounded by return 
airways (for fear of emissions) ; such return airways not to come in contact with intake" ;-do you 
understand that? A. Yes. 
9179. Q. Do you approve of that A. Yes. 
9 l80. Q. Recommendation No. 5-" All places, except prospecting drives, to have cut-throughs not more 
than 30 yards apart"? A. Yes; I believe in that. 
9481. Q. Becornumendation No. 6-" Inspection with locked safety-lamp in all cases"? A. Yes; a very 
good recommendation. 
9492. Q. A good recommendation? A. Yes. 
9483. Q. Recommendation No. 8-' Minimum of 500 cubic feet of air per minute to be provided for 
every horse, instead of 100, as at present":? A. That is above me: that is beyond me. 
9184. Q. Recommendations Nos. 9 and 10. I think the Commission have already expressed an opinion 
on those. 
9485. .Mi'. Bruce Suit/i.] You abandon those? 
9486. Mr. Lysag/it.] I do not abandon them. The Commission have already indicated that they approve 
of those. 
9487. His Honor.] Of what? 
9489. Mr. Lysoqht.] Of Recommendations 9 and 10. 
9489. Mr. Robertson ] The Commission have not said that. 
9190. His Honor.] Only regarding the double doors. 
991. Mr. Lysctg/tt.h I understood that it was as regards both-the doors to close and remain closed of 
hei tr own motion; and the double doors. 

9492. Mr. Bruce Smith..] No. 9 is already provided for. 
9493. Mr. Lysaqh.t.] Well, I will pass on. 
9194. Q. Recommendation No. 11-" Weekly measurement of air in each section, and report thereof sent 
to Inspector"? A. Yes; a very good provision. 
9495. Q. Have you ever taken the air in Mount Kembla? A. No. 
9196. Q. Do you know how to take the air? A. No. 
9497. Q. Have you any idea? A. No ; not the slightest. 
9498. Q. Do you know what an anemometer is? A. No. 
9199. Q. Where, in your opinion, should the air be taken-the measurement of the air? A. I should 
think you would take it in the intake. That is where the strength is. 
9500. Q. And where else? A. I could hardly tell you. I never tried. I do not know anything about 
that. That is only my opinion of where it should be taken. 
9501. Q. Do you not know that the taking of the air in the intake is no indication of what air is 
circulating in the working places? A. No. 

9502. 
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9502. Q. Then, when you are examining for gas as a deputy, have you any idea at all of what current of air is 
passing P A. I have no idea what current is passing ; but I have an idea whether it is strong enough to 
wipe out the gas, if it is there. 
9503. Q. Supposing you discovered with your safety-lamp a considerable percentage of fire-damp? A. Yes. 
0504. Q. You would only know it was fire-damp, I suppose, from the blue cap on your safety-lamp? 
A. Yes. 
9505. Q. Now, what would you do to get rid of that gas? A. I would brattice close up to the face. 
9500. Q. Would you do anything else? A. No. I would put it up close to the face; and see if that 
would take it away. 
9507. Q. When would you find out whether it had taken it away or not? A. I suppose I would be back 
a bit later. I might go -into some of the other working places, and then go back again, before I would let 
any man in, to see if it were out and if it were not out I would put up a danger board there. 
9508. Q. Is that all you would do? A. Yes. 
9309. Q. After you put up the danger board, what would you do P A. Report it to the Manager and 
the boss. 
9510. Q. Then, do I understand you to say you do not know how to shift that gas P A. I have told you 
bov 1 would shift that gas. 
9511, Q. Beyond that, would you have any other idea as to how to shift that gas? A. No. 
9512. Q. 1 suppose you would not attempt to light it to get rid of it? A. It is likely I would if I wanted 
to get rid of myself. 
9513. Q. You know that one witness said that he lit the gas to get rid of it? A. I do not know. I heard 
you say that. 
9514. Q. Would not you think the weekly measurement of the air would be n better indication of what 
air was travelling if it were taken in each split? A. It would give you a better idea of how it was 
travelling. 
9515. Q. Recommendation No, 12-" Extra supply of safety.lamps and their requisites, equal to one-third 
of number of persoils employed below ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use." 
Do you approve of that? A. Yes. 
9510. Q. Do you know anything about the supply of safety-lamps at the time of the disaster at Kembla? 
A. No ; 1 do not. 
9517. Q. Did you try to get a lamp, to go in P A. No. 
0518. (1. Were not you there the night of the disaster P A. Yes. 
9519. Did you go into the mine? A. Not that night. 
9520. Q. Why not? A. Because I had a lot of trouble at home with some of those who were in it. 
0521. Q. You do not know anything as to the supply of safety-lamps that was there? A. No. 
9522. Q. Recommendation No. 13-" Travelling and haulage roads, and other places necessary, to be 
properly watered"? A. Yes; a very good idea, that. 
9523. Q. Can you tell tue the dustiest part of the Kembla Mine P A. At the present time ? 
9524. Q. Yes. A. Well, on my travels, it is the 5th Right. 
9525. Q. And you might tell me about how much dust is lying on the floor there, in inches? A. I could 
not tell you that very well. 
0520. Q. Well, is it in feet; or what is it in? A. In feet? 
9527. Q. how much is there, roughly? A. I could not tell you. It might be an inch or two, but not 
more than that, kicked up by the horses' feet, 
9528. Q. That is the dustiest part? A. Yes. 
9529. Q. Have you had that watered? A. Yes. 
9530. Q. How often? A. Every night. 
9531. Q. And, although it is watered every night, there is still an inch of dust next morning? A. Not 
where we water it. 
9532. Q. Then, although you water it, it still keeps up these dusty conditions? A. No; it does not. It 
keeps close to the floor. 
9513. Q. Where does this l inch of dust get ? A. Further down the road. Where it is watered is the 
30 yards from the face ; and below that is dusty. 
9534. Q. Then, except within 30 yards of the coal face, the 5th Right is not watered at all? A. That is 
right. OF course the haulage road is watered. 
9535. Q. And, in your opinion, should that particular road that is not watd'rd be watered? A. No. 
95313. (7. Why not? A. It is not necessary that it should. 
9537. (7. Do you not know of any danger arising from the dust there? A.- No I do not know of any 
danger in that part. 
9538. Q. Recommendation No. 14-" Managers compelled to give more personal time and attention to 
management of colliery." What has been your experience of Mr. Rogers in Kembla, underground? 
How often have you seen him? A. It varied. Sometimes I have seen him in my place, personally you 
know, twice a week ; and the next week he might not he in at all. 
9539. Q. Recommendation No. 10-" Size of manholes enlarged." What do you say about that? 
A. Well, they are not a bad size at Mount Kembla. 
9510. Q. What size are they? A. 4 x 6. 
9541. 0. Oh, well, that is a good size P A. Yes ; it is a fair size. 
952. (7. How wide are they? A. Four feet. 
9543. (7. how deep? A. About 6 feet; and 6 feet high. 
9544. (7. Recommendation No. 18-" Instruction to employees regularly on means of escape"? A. Yes; 
1 approve of that. 
9545. Q. And whom would you have to give the instruction? A. The best man would be the deputy. 
That is the man that should give the instruction, I should think. 
9516. Q. And when do you think he should give them the instruction-every month, or every quarter, every 
cavil, or how? A. I suppose, if you gave it to them once, you would not require to give it to them 
again. 
947. Q. I am supposing that the men would change every now and then? A. Then you should give it 
every quarter. 

16825 20-2 11 9518. 
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9548. Q. Would that occupy much time? A. No. 
9549. Q. Recommendation No. 19-" Coal Mines Act to forbid a black-list of employees being kept, and 
penalising improper prevention of discharged persons obtaining employment." Have you ever read of a 
black-list in this district? A. I have read in the papers about that black-list. Will you just explain 
what that means about the black-list? 
9550. Q. I ask you to explain? A. But I do not know what you mean. 
9551. Q. Then I will not ask you at all? A. Does that mean giving a man the sack? 
9552. Q. You say you do not know what a black-list is? A. No. 
9553. Q. Well, now, that will do me. Now, I want to know, do you know of any cases where men have 
been discharged for reporting anything? A. No; I do not. 
9.554. Q. Now, Recommendation No. 20-" Safety-lamps not to be unlocked for shot-firing"? A. Yes 
I approve of that. 

Examination by Mr. Bruce Smith 

0555. Q. You were asked a number of questions by Mr. Lysaght as to whether you had had interviews 
and conversations with Mr. Rogers? A. Yes. 
9556. Q. Did you ever have any interviews with Mr. Lysaght before you gave evidence? A. No. 
9557. Q. Will you tell me what experience you had before you went into Mount Kembla? A. Twelve 
years in Scotland; fourteen years in Kembla; twenty-six years all told. 
0558. Q. You said something about Now Zealand too? A. No. 
9559. Q. Then you were nearly as long at work in Scotland as you have been here? A. Yes. 
9560. Q. What were you in Scotland? A. A. miner, after the first four years of which, I told Mr. Lysaght, 
I was following up the deputy as water-baler. 
9561. Q. What was your business when you followed up the deputy? A. Water-baler. 
9562. Q. Were you always, or nearly always, with the deputy P A. I was with him when he examined 
the places in the mine in the morning. We had to go down at half-past 5 in the morning. 
9563. Q. Was that with a safety-lamp? Q. Yes; he had a safety-lamp, and I had a flare lamp. Mv 
lamp was left back in the road about 30 or 40 yards. I did not take it up to the face. 
9564. Q. I understand you have had those four years' experience in following him up and seeing how lie 
ascertained whether there was any gas P A. Yes. 
9565. Q. Is that the course you adopt now, the same as adopted by him ;-do you put the lamp in the 
same place and treat it in the same way P A. Yes. 
9566. Q. When you were appointed to this position did you make that known, that you had had that 
experience P A. Yes. 
9567. Q. To whom? A. To Mr. Hotehkis. 
9568. Q. Then, do I understand that, before you were appointed to this position, you had a conversation' 
with Mr. Hotchkis, and he ascertained what your experience bad been? A. No; he asked inc this when 
he came in to ask me if I would take the job. 
9569. Q. He asked you what? A. He asked me if I had had any experience in regard to gas; and that is 
what I told him. 
9570. Q. And that was before you were appointed? A. Yes. 
9571. Q. Now, do you know the special rules ;-have you a copy of them? A. Yes, 
9572. Q. Have you read them? A. Yes. 
9573. Q. Had you read them before you were made deputy? A. Not much. 
9574. Q. Have you studied them closely since? A. Yes. 
9575. Q. Have you been through the list of duties of the deputy? A. Yes : that is Special Rule No. 9. 
9576. Q. Are there any of these duties which you feel you are not competent to perform P A. No; I do 
not think there are. There might be, you know ; but I do not think there are. I have been carrying 
out these duties as far as these rules are concerned, as far as I have gone yet. 
9577. Q. And I understand that you do not claim to understand the chemistry of gas P A. No ; I have 
only a practical knowledge. 
9578. Q. You say you have never, in the fourteen years that you have been in the Mount Kembla Mine, 
met with gas? A. No ; I have never seen it. 
9579. Q. Have you heard it singing? You know the expression "singing "P A. Yes; I know it; but I 
have never heard it, or seen it. 
9580. Q. Have you heard men say that they met with it in the mine? A. Yes; I have heard different 
ones saying that. 
9581. Q. And have you had it described to you, as to what happened P A. No. 
9582. Q. For how many years have you heard them say that they have been meeting with gas? A. Oh, 
at different times I have heard them saying that. 
9583. Q. Over the period of fourteen years? A. Yes. 
9584. Q. Have you disputed that;-have you believe:l it, or disbelieved it? A. I did not know exactly 
whether to believe them or not. I have listened to them talking ; that is all. 
9585. Q. But you have never met with it yourself? No. 
9586. Q. Now, hearing of this from time to time over a period of years, did not that make you hesitate to 
go in to fire shots with a naked light? A. No. 
9587. Q. Why was that ;-did you discredit the reports? A. I did not altogether believe what they had 
said. 
9588. Q. Was it that, until this accident, you did not quite realise the danger? A Yes. 
9589. Q. This accident has altered your attitude of mind P A. Yes ; it has. 
9590. Q. Where did you learn the effect that the presence of gas would have upon a safety-lamp ? Was 
it in going through with this deputy in Scotland? A. Yes. 
9591. Q. Did you ever find gas during those four years? A. I did not find it myself. 
9592. Q. Did you ever see him find it P A. Yes. 
0593. Q. Frequently P A. Yes ; very often ; different times-a small quantity. 
9591. Q. Had you an opportunity of seeing, during those four years, what effect the presence of gas had 
upon the flame P A. Yes. 
9595. Q. So it was not mere theoretical knowledge that you had? A. No; just seeing it in his lamp, and 
his explaining it to me. 9596. 
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9596. Q. Now, is not there a very great difference between the condition of the Mount Kembla Mine, 
say, witlun the last month, as compared with its condition before the accident? Is it not much moister 
now than it was four months ago ? A. Yes ; and 1 think, personally, that it is much safer too. 
9507. Q. Quite apart from the watering, did not the rains that took place a few months ago make a 
complete change in the condition of that mine? A. Yes; especially the travelling road. 
9598. Q. Was not it very dusty four months ago as compared with the present day P A. Yes. Well, the 
travelling road never was very dusty, at its worst. 
9599. Q. Which do you consider the most dusty part of that mine? A. At the present time? 
9000. Q. No; say four months ago? A. That 5th Right : I will hold to that. Ireclon it was the dustiest 
place that was in the mine. 
9001. Q. What do you call that one oposite to it-the 4th Left? A. Yes ; it was a bit dusty, too ; but 
nothing compared with the 5th Right. 
9602. Q. Just show inc what you call the 5th Right on this plan ? A. (Witness pointel out correctly on
the plan the 5/h Bight and the 4/h Left, in the No. 1 Main L'vel Diitiict.) 
9603. Q. And I understand you to say that, from all your experience of the mine, this road, the 5th 
Bight, is the dustiest part of the mine I? A. Yes, 
9601. Q. Would you say that this 4th Left is the next dustiest part? A. Yes I believe it is. 
0605. (7. And always has becu, as far as you know ? A. Yes. 
9600. (7. 'What would you say about the depth of dust on the floor four months ago, that is, prior to the 
accident P Of course, it is very difficult to give an average? A. Yes; it is very difficult, because, with 
the horses travelling to and fro, you could not quite tell. There are some places quite bare with the 
horses kicking and slipping. 
9607. Q. Anybody seeing it now would hardly have an idea of its dusty charactar four months ago? 
A. No ; they would not. 
9008. (7. You say that you fired with an open lamp P A. Yes. 
9609. Q. When did you do that? I understand, that you have been deputy only five weeks? A. No. 
I have been nine weeks deputy altogether : I have been on the night shift five weeks. 
9610. Q. You were four weeks on the day shift? A. Yes. 
0611. Q. And was it during the day shifts that you fired with an open lamp P A. Yes. 
961.2. Q. After the disaster? A. Yes. 
9613. Q. Did not that strike you as rather dangerous P (). I did not think it was, where I was firing-in 
the 2nd Right. 
9614. Q. Because of the watering and the precautions ? A. Yes. 
9915. (7. 'I'hose watering precautions were never taken before the disaster P A. No. 
9616. Q. What caused you to suddenly change from firing with the open lamp to firing with the wire, 
when you became night deputy P A. I do not know. 'We have just to go by instructions. There was a 
lamp there for me with the wire there. I do not know why they changed. 
0617. (7. Were you told that in future you were to fire by the wire P A. Yes. 
HIS. (7. And was there no explanation? ii. No. 
9019. (7. No reason given to you? A. No. 
9020. (7. I understand you did not go in immediately after the disaster? A. No. 
9621. Q. You say you had enough trouble at home. Had you anybody injured? A. Yes; there were 
two of the young fellows who were staying at my place in the disaster ; but they were not killed. 
9622. (7. And they were living in your house with you? A. Yes. 
903. (7. And they were brought home P A. Yes. 
0624. (7. 'What were their names? A. One of them was Maunders, and the other one was Drysdale. 
0625. (7. Now, you say that you saw one of the wheelers singed and burnt about the arms P A. Yes. 0626. (7. How  many of the people who were in the explosion did you see when they were brought out? 
A. I have seen a good many of them. 
9927. Q. Half-a-dozen ;  or twenty? A. About eight or ten, I think. 
0628. (7. Including the two who caine to your house? A. Yes. 
9029. (7. Were they burnt at all? A. No ; the wheeler was the only one that I can think of (who was 
burnt). 
9630. Q. Where had they been working? A. In the 4th Left. 
9631. Q. How many did you see who presented this appearance of being singed or burnt P A. Only the 
0110. 

9 63 2. Q. What was his name? A. Kemnbia Stafford. 
0633. Q. Had you any doubt at the time you saw him that he had been burnt? A. Yes. Well, I should say - [ Interiup fed.] 
903t. Q. I mean as far as your practical experience went in seeing things? A. I have said that he had 
been burnt. 
0035. Q. You had no doubt? A. I had no doubt lie was burnt. 
9636. Q. Did it give you the idea that he had been exposed to a flame? A. Well, he looked like it. 
9037. (7. What colour was his skin? A. As black as a nigger; as black as could be with the dust, you 
know. 
9038. Q. Over the skin? A. Yes. 
9639. 9. And was there any dust over the flesh? A. Over the pieces of skin that came off? 
9610. 9. I mean over the whole of it? A. Oh yes ; lie was covered with dust. 
9611. 9. Did it give you the idea of dust that had been subject to fire: dust that had been burnt P A. I 
could not say that. 
0612. Q. Did you say anything about the hair? Did you look at the hair of this wheeler? A. Yes; it 
was singed. 
9613. Q. And the skin was hanging off both arms ; but I think you said you did not know whether that 
was the immediate effect of the burniug, or whether it had been torn in taking him up ? A. I could not 
tell that. 
961.4. You said that the ventilation in this mine, which was sometimes close, depended on the direction of 
the wind. How did you know that P Did you ever ascertain, after it had been close, that the wind had 
been in any particular direction? A. No. 
0615. Did you mean the wind outside? A. Yes, 904. 
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9016. Q. What brought you to that conclusion? A. That might be a saying, you know. They would 
say, "Oh, the wind must have changed." 
9617. Q. You have been in mines with a fan? A. Yes. 
9648. Q. You have only been in two mines in your life? A. No; I have been in lots of them at Home: 
I have only been in one here. 
9649. Q. In the twelve years at Home you were in a number. Were they all worked with fans? A. No; 
there was one with a furnace. 
9650. Q. How lone were you in the one with a furnace? A. Three years. 
9051. Q. Now, with regard to the mines which you were in with the fans, in Scotland, did you ever have 
any variation of the air in them? A. No ; not to my knowledge. 
9652. Q. DftI you in that which was worked by the furnace, in Scotland? A. No ; it was only a little 
m inc. 
9653. Q. Did that work as well as the olhers? A. Yes; just every bit. There were only about twenty 
men working in that mine. 
9354. Q. Well now, comparing your experience here in Mount Kembla with the mines you were in at 
Home, what do you say of Mount Kembla, as far as the air is concerned ? A. I think it is as well 
ventilated as any one I was in at Home. 
9355. Q. You do not pretend to know anything, I understand, about the cost of substituting a fan for a 
furnace? A. No; I do not. 
0656. Q. It is merely, then, that, all things being equal, you would prefer a fan ? A. Yes ; I would. 
9657. Q. You think it is more reular, I suppose P A. Yes. 
9658. Q. But, a i s to whether you would suggest an alteration involving a change being made ndiscriminately 
in all mines from furnaces to fans, you are not prepared to say ? A. I am not prepared to answer that. 
9650. Q. Do I understand that, whenever the closeness has occurred in the Mount Kembla Nine, the 
increasing of the length of the brattice up to the face of the coal has always cured it? A. Yes. 
0660. Q. Have you ever had any difficulty with the deputies? A. Never. 
9361. 9. When you wanted brattice? A. No. Whenever I wanted it I always got it. 
9662. 9. I-low did you learn the outlet of that daylight tunnel? Were you shown it? A. Yes, I was 
shown it first of all. 
91363. Q. By whom ? A. I was working close to it. 
9034. 9. Used you to go out that way sometimvs P A. Yes. 
6665. 9. Do I understand clearly from you that you were never consulted in any way as to what evidence 
you were to give here, until Mr. Curtiss and. Mr. Wade saw you and asked you to make a statement ? 
A. Yes. 
9666. 9. You were never consulted in any way?. A. Never consulted by anyone. 
9667. 9.  Did anyone know what evidence you could give, or would give P A. No. 
0668 (5. Can you remember at all when you have seen the air changed, in the Mount Kenibla Mine P 
A. No; I could not tell you. 
9669. Q. Could you tell me, for instance, whether it was a year ago or five years ago? A. No; I could 
not give a specified time at all. 
0670. 9. Have you any rean for connecting a change in the air or a cessation in the air with the westerly 
wind? A. No. 
9671. 9. No reason whatevcrP A. No. 
0672. 9. What do you mean when you say that you have seen it change when the furnace was not 
drawing? Do you mean that the furnace was not drawing on account of the wind at the upcast? A. Yes. 
0673. 9. It was said that it did not draw because the wind had changed. When the furnace was not 
drawing, you attributed the change to some disturbance of the wind at the upcast; and you attributed the 
closeness of the atmosphere to the furnace not drawing ? A. Yes. 
9674. Q. Could you tell me how long that lasted--two hours or three hours ? A. I could not say; but it 
would not be as long as that. 
0675. Q. Now, where did you see these twenty suggestions ? A. I have seen them in the papers. 
0676. 9. Now, with regard to No. 4--I do not know whether you noticed what was read to you-that the 
waste workings should be absolutely sealed off? A. Yes I believe in that. 
9677. Q. You would make a closed book of the whole thing? A. Yes. 
9678. 9. You, as a working miner, think it advisable to absolutely close up a place in which ther3 is likely 
to be an accumulation of gas P A. Yes; I approve of that. 
0679. Q. Not to let it open on the return, and be closed to the intake; but to absolutely seal it off? I 
want you to see what it inean. You see it might be sealed off at the part where it is contiguous to the 
intake, and might be left open at the part which is next to the return airway. That is one scheme. 
Another scheme is to seal it off, so that anything that is inside, anything that is given off inside, simply 
accumulates. Now, which of those two schemes do you recommend? A. I recommend sealing it off. 
9680. 9. And you do not regard that as a possible danger? A. No. 
9681. (5. You would rather seal it off than let it escape by the return airway from time to time as it 
accumulates? A. 1 think it should be sealed off. 
91582. Q. What do you think would become of the gas that is inside, if there is any in it? A. Well, I 
suppose, if there was any it when it was sealed off, it would be kept in. 
9683. Q. Suppose it increased in quantity inside after it was sealed off, have you thought out what might 
be the effect of it P A. ( Witsiess did not anawer.) 
9681. Q. Have you thought much about it, now? A. No; I have not. 
9085. Q. Is the measurement of air any part of the duty of a deputy, so far as you understand it? A. No. 
9686. 9. And you do not profess to understand that at all P A. No. 
0687. Q. You have never been chosen as check-inspector for a Lodge? A. No. 
96'8. 9. I will ask you this question : suppose a mine had 200 men in it, 100 in each shift; and suppos 
they were using safety-lamps, so that they had 200 lamps in use; how many lamps would there be 
generally in the lamp-room not in use P A. There would be 100 in use, and 100 left in the lamp-room. 
069. 9. Would there be any part of the day in which they would all be in use, the whole 206? Take 
Mount KmmbIa, for instance, supposing Mount Kembla had 200 men and 200 lamps. Is there any part 
of the clay at Mount Kembla in which the whole 200 lamps would be, in use, so that there would be none 
left iu the lamp-rooiaP A. No. 0660. 
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9690. Q. Is there any part of the day in which both shifts would be in the mine with their lamps in Mount 
Kembla P A. No. 
9091. Q. Do not the two shifts overlap at all? A. Do you mean the front shift and the back shift? 
9692. Q. Yes. A. Oh, yes. 
9093. Q. I thought I had made my question so simple. I will repeat it. Supposing Mount Kembla had 
200 men and 200 lamps. Is there any part of the day in which the whole 200 lamps would be in the 
mine? A. Yes ; from the time the back shift goes in till the time the front shift comes out: all the 
lamps would be in use then. 
9691. Q. 1 want to know what period that covers P A. From half-past S till 2 o'eloek. 
9095. Q. Then I understand that, even admitting the state of things I have put to you, from half-past S 
in the morning till 2 o'clock, that is, five and, a half hours, all the lamps would be in the mine. You are 
quite sure of that? A, 'Yes. 
0d90. Q. Do you know anything about the lamp supply at Mount Kembla at the present time? A. I 
could not tell you the quantity there are there. 
9697. Q. But all the men are using safety-lamps at Mount Kembla now P A. 'Yes. 
9098. Q. And during that period of five and a half hours that you have mentioned is there any surplus 
supply of lamps there P A. Yes ; there are it lot of lamps there. 
9090. Q. What do you call a lot? A. Well, a good many. 
9700. Q. What do you mean by a good many P A. I could not tell you the number. 
9701. Are there ten or fifty P A . There are about that, any way. 
9702. Q.  Between the two P A. Yes. 
9703. Q.  Then 1 understand the watering at present is confined to the 20 yards back from the face, is it 
not, when shots are fired P A. 'Yes. 
9704. Q. And to the main haulage-road? A. 'Yes. 
9705. Q. Down to a certain point? How far from the mouth? A. ilight to the mouth. 
9700. Q. Your experience of your Manager is that he has come in sometimes twice a week ? A. Yes. 
9707. Q. And sometimes not at all? A. Yes. 
9708. Q.  For how long? A. I could not say. 
9709. Q. Has this extended over some years? A. Yes ; it is not very regular. 
9710. Q. 'Which is more often-that you do not see him in for a week, or that you see him taice a week ? 
A. That you do not see him in for a week. 
1)71. Q. About three to one? A. No. 
9712. Q. About two to one? A. About that. 
9713. (1. There are about twice as many weeks in the year in which you do not see bun as there are weeks 
in which you see him twice P A. Yes. 
9711.. Q. Then, in regard to this black list, 1 understand you to say that you do not know what a black 
list is? A. I have a sort of idea, but I do not exactly understand. 
9715. Q. I suppose you have heard talk of a practice by which the names of men who are not in favour 
with the Managers are hauled round amongst the mine proprietors, with a sort of understanding that the 
men shall not be employed P A. Yes I have heard talk of that. 
9716. Q. Now, have you ever known of a case, in your experience of fourteen years, in which a man 
whom you knew to be fit for his work had failed to get work in any of the mines in this district? I 
am not asking you about loafers, or about people who really do not do their work; but I am talking of 
competent men-men whom you thought competent. have you ever known cases in this district in which 
that class of men failed to get work in any of the mines here, so that you would think that there must be 
something going on ? A. 1 suppose that is what we would call victimized? 
9717. Q. Yes. A. Well, I know of one. 
9718. Q. One that you think a competent man ? A. Yes. 
9719. Q. And he failed to get work in any mine in the district? A. Whether he failed to get it in the 
district or not I could not say. That is going too far. 
9720. Q. I am not asking of a case where he failed to get into any one colliery but where there seemed 
to be some sort of system by which he failed to get work in any colliery in time district P A. Well, my 
best plan would be not to have anything to say on that, because 1 might be wrong. 
9721. Q. You would not commit yourself to any case? A. N, I would not 
9722. Q. No case has ever caine under your notice of which you could speak definitely? A. No; I would 
mint like to say that I know of any. 
9723. Q. I mean iii such it way that you would draw some inference, and say, There is evidently some 
influence at work here." You cannot tell inc of a case? A. No. 
9724. Q. And no case has come under your notice that you would commit yourself ti as suggesting 
anything of that hind ;-I suppose you talk with your fellow-miners as much as other miners ? A. Yes. 
9725. Q. And you listen, too, I suppose? A. Yes. 
9720. Q.  $o you have had just as good opportunities as any other miner of hearing? A. Yes; just the 
same. 

Further cross.examination by Mr. Lysaght 

9727. Q. What is the name of this man you were speaking of, who was victimised? A. Well, I drew back 
what I said. I was not exactly sure. 
9728. Q. What was his name? A. Leave it at that. 
9729. Q.  I am asking you what was his name? A. I might have been wrong. 
9730. Q. l'erhaps you are ;-what was his name? 
9731. Ills Honor.] lIe says he is not sure. - 
9732. .M'r. Lysaqlmt.] I want to see whether the name has been given tieje nerore. 
9733. His honor.] He is not sure the man was vietimised. 
9731. ,Ir. Robertson.] He thinks he was vietimised at some colliery. 
9735. ilIr. Lysaqbt.] Q. What colliery was he victimised at? A. Kembla, 
9736, Q. Was it recently? A. No; a long time ago. 
9737. Q. What washis name P A. I do not think it would be right for me to say a'iiything about it. 
9738. Jib Honor.] Q. What has become of him ;-where is he now, do you know? A. He is sitting on 
the Bench, there--Mr. Ritchie. 9739. 
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739. Air. Iysaqhl.1 Q. Who is the person who examines the safety-lamps at Kembla? A. I am one 
of them. 
9740. Q. How often do you examine them? A. I examine them in the morning when I put the first 
shift in. 
9741. Q. You might tell us what is your opinion of the cause of the disaster? A. I cannot tell you that. 
9742. Q. Now, just watch this question: do I understand that you have no opinion as to the cause of the 
disaster ? A. I have no opinion whatever ; because I do not know anything about it. 
9743. Q. Do I also understand you to say that you have no theory as to what part of the mine the disaster 
originated in? A. No. 
9744. Q. Have you found gas since the disaster? A. No. 
9745. Q. Then I take it that you have never had occasion to carry the brattice close up to the face? 
A. No ; I never had need to do it yet. 
9746. 4). Then may I take it that, as far as your knowledge goes, no part of Kembla Mine is at present 
giving off any gas? A. I cannot say. 
9747. Q. I say "as far as your knowledge goes " no part of Kernbla Mine is at present giving off any 
gas? A. Yes. 
9718. Q. You said the deputies sometimes told the other deputy to do work if they had not time ;-have 
You had time to do all the work appointed to you? A. Yes; I have had time since I have been on it. 
9749. Q. Then what deputies did you refer to who used to tell the other to do the work when they had 
not time? A. Mr. Dungey and Mr. Nelson. 
0750. Q. Did you ever hear Dungey tell Mr. Nelson to do the work? A. No ; I have heard Mr. Nelson 
say he would tell the night-shift deputy to put up the brattice, if he had not time to do it. 
0751. Q. How often was that? A. I could not say. It was not very often. 
9752. 4). Did you ever hear complaints from one deputy as to having the work of the other deputy put on 
to him? A. No I have not. 
9753. Q. Do you give the waste workings any examination at all? A. No; I do not give any examination 
to the waste workings : only to the working places. 
9751. Q. Since your appointment as a deputy you have not examined any waste workings in Kembla? 
A. No. 
9755. Q. Do you know whether anybody else has? A. Yes. 
9756. Q. Who? A. Mr. Biggers and Mr. Morrison. 
9757. 4). Do you know how often they  have examined the waste workings? A. No. 
975S. 4).  But you have never touched them? A. No. 

Fxamination by Mr. Robertson 
0750. 4). What is your district ? A. No. 1 Right, at the present time. 
0760. 4). Will you tell me where you go to; just describe your journey when you start in the morning;-
do you understand that plan ? A. No I do not understand much about the plan. 
0701. [The witness then, in answer to Mr. Robertson's question, pointed out on the plan that his district 
€mbraccs all of the workings to the east of the No. 1 main level rope road and north of the 2nd Right 
rope road, including the 2nd Right. lie stated that, in making his inspection, he went in the mouth of 
the main travelling road, then down the No. I Right Main level travelling road as far as the 2nd Right 
rope road, then by the 2nd Right travelling road to the cross-cut heading rope road ; from there up to 
the tomrny-dodds at the 3rd Right rope road, and that he then inspected a number of new working places, 
to the east of the cross-cut off a continuation of the 3rd Right rope road, not shown on the mine plan 
befoe the ConAnission. From these places he returns to the tommy-dodds, continues northward along 
the cross-cut heading rope road as far as the 5th Right rope road, and then inspects each of the bords to 
the north of the 5th Right rope road, walking right up and down each of these bords. After inspecting 
the westernmost of these bords (No. 00), he goes back to the eastern end of the 5th Right rope road, and 
then walks through the 5th Right rope road-inspecting it-to Adam's Wheel ; and then back by the 
travelling road to where he starts from.] 
9762. Q. What time doyou start to make your examination for the morning shift? A. 2 45. 
9703. 4). When you said you had the No, 1 District, I understood you had the whole of the district? 
A. No. 
9764. His Honor.] Q. What about the western side of the No. 1 District? A. It is not working. 
0765. Mr. Robertson.] Q. In making your inspection, if you had one place standing, not being worked, in 
the middle of your district, would you examine that place? A. Yes. 
9766. Q. Is there any rule to that effect? A. No I was just told that I was to examine it-to go into 
it-because they dd not know but what there might be men working in it the next morning. 
9767. Q. Supposing you found a place fenced off, where you knew there were no men working, would you 
pass that place ? A. No; I go into it. 
9768. Q. If there are two or three places in your district? A. I go into them all, and do the lot of them. 
9769. Q. Were you ordered to do that? A. Well, I never got any authority to do so; but I expected that 
it was part of my duty, although they never told inc so. 
9770. Q. You thought so yourself? A. Yes. 
9771. 4). But you were never instructed to do it? A. No. 
9772. 4). And there is no special rule requiring you to do so? A. No; I do not think so ; not that I 
know of. 
0773. Q. What description of lamp do you use for making an inspection? A. Just the ordinary lamp 
that they use there at the mine. 
9774. Q. But what is used at the mine;-is it one of those Bifolds? A. I do not know it by name. 
0775. Q. Have the deputies any special lamps? A. Yes ; there are the shot-firing lamps. I think it is a 
Davy,  lamp that I have got there. 
9770. 4). You know what a Davy lamp is? A. It is one of them I have got. 
9777. 4). With a gauze and no glass ? A. Yes ; the glass is on it too. 
9778. 4). It has a gauze all the way? A. Yes. 
9779. Q. And it is surrounded with a glass that you slip up when you want to fire a shot? A. Yes. 
0780. Q. Well, of course, with that lamp you cannot find any indication of gas below 21 per cent.? A. No. 

9781, 
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O7SL Q. But there are other lamps with which you might easily detect less than 2 - per cent. You do not 
know anything about the hydrogen lamp? A. No, 
9782. ci.  You recommend that a test be made with the hydrogen lamp regularly? A. I do not know any-
thing about that. I have never seen one that I know of. 
9783. Q. You have no idea of the time it takes to make a test with the hydrogen lamp? A. No. 
9734. (1. Nor the cost of making it? A. No. 
97S5. Q. Then, may I ask why, knowing nothing about the hydrogen lamp, you so confidently recommend 
this inspection P A. With the hydrogen lamp ? 
0780. Q. Yes? A. Well, it is just through hearing them talk about it, you know. 
.9787. Q. You also recommend weekly measurements of the air in each split. A. Yes. 
0788. Q. Do you know that the measurements, although they may not be made weekly, are made in each 
split at present? A. Yes, they might I do not know. 
9780. Q. Now, you know that the Act provides for adequate ventilation being supplied. I suppose you 
have read the Coal Mines Act? A. Yes ; I have read part of it. 
0700. Q. What have you read P Have you read the general rules? A. Yes ; I have read part of the general 
rules. I have never read much of it. 
9701. Q. [t says, ' An adequate amount of ventilation shalt be constantly produced in every mine, to dilute 
and render harmless noxious gases to such an extent that the working place of the shafts, levels, stables, 
and workings of the mine, and the travelling roads to and from those working places, shall be in a fit slate 
for working and passing therein." Now, is it not your duty to see that the working places, and roads, 
and levels are adequately ventilated? A. Yes. 
9792. Q. And if you find them adequately ventilated, in what way would a measurement of the air assist 
you in your duties? A. I do not know. 
0703. Q. Would it be of any assistance at all to you? A. I do not think it would be of much assistance 
to me. 
9704. Q. Then, so far as you are concerned, and so far as the miners are concerned, it is absolutely 
unnecessary P Is not the main thing to adequately ventilate the working places and other parts of the 
mine? A. Yes. 
9705. Q. Now, you recommended that the travelling roads and haulage ways should be watered ;-what is 
your reason for making this recommendation ?A. Just for keeping down dust, or anything like that. 
9796. Q. Is it a matter of comfort and convenience in working? A. There is not much comfort in it; but 
just for safety and that kind of thing. 
797. Q. For safety? A. Yes. 

0708. Q. But then you said, further on in your evidence, that there was no occasion to water the workincy 
places more than 20 yards from where a shot was to be fired P A. Yes; I said that. 
9799. Q. Well, what danger do you apprehend from dust apart from shots? A. I do not know how much 
at all. It is only for a safeguard. 
0800. Q. But, if the places in the vicinity of where a shot is to be fired are sufficiently saturated with 
water, it is, humanly speaking, impossible for an explosioii to extend beyond ? Do not you think so? 
A. Yes I think so myself. 
0801. Q. Now, about this matter of detecting gas-I suppose it is not a very difficult operation to detect 
gas: any intelligent man could do it P A. Well, as far as I have seen it, there was not much trouble in 
detecting it if it were there. 
0302. Q. Do you not think any intelligent miner could learn to detect gas, in his experience as a miner? 
A. I should think lie could. 
0803. Q.  Then a knowledge of the chemistry of the gas you are detecting would not be of very much 
assistance to you in your practical duties P Do you think it would help you at all in your duties as 
deputy if you knew the chemistry of gases? A. Well, I do not know what " chemistry " means at all. 
.9SO1. Q. Do you think it would help you to detect gas? A. I do not think it would help me to detect it. 
9805. Q. Or would it assist you in any way to get rid of it when you did find it P A. I do not think so, 
0806. Q. How many bodies did you see? A. About eight or ten; I could not give you the total number; 
but it would be about that. 
9807. Q. As a matter of factyou do not know anything about the cond,itiou of nine-tenths of the bodies 
that were foulld? A. No. 
9303. Q. Now, this Stafford, who was black with dust-would not lie be black under ordinary circumstances? 
A Yes. 
0809. Q. Was lie any blacker on this occasion? A. Yes. 
0810. Q.  Now, for anything you know, this slackening in the ventilation may have been caused by some-
thing else than atmospheric conditions? A. It might. It was just as I said-that was what was said. 
9811. Q. The furnace-man might have gone to sleep ; or he might be lazy? A. Yes; there could be a lot 
of it on his part. 
0312. Q. You recommend that waste workings be sealed off absolutely : do you not think that it would be 
a preferable plami to ventilate waste workings ? A. Well, it would drive the gas out it there were any 
there-there is no mistake about that. 
0313. Q. I mean, if you cannot get the air into the centre of a waste, you can ventilate along the edge; 
and that is surely preferable to bottling it up? Can you tell me how you would seal off waste workings? 
A. It would be a very dilEcult job to seal them all off. 
0814. Q. But how could you do it where you are in the act of taking out the pillars: and that is constantly 
being done P A. You would have to take the heading and seal it off. 
9315. (/ Well then, your working places would actually be in the waste workings P A. Yes. 
OSlO. (2. You could not seal it off unless it was an abandoned district; because, in the act of taking out 
the pillars, you must necessarily be in contact with the waste? A. Yes. 
9S17. Q. So it could only be in the ease of an abandoned working that you could possibly seal off the 
waste. Now, with reference to the Manager's visits -for anything you know the Manager may have been 
visiting other districts and other men two or three times when lie did not visit you at all ? A. Yes ; that 
is quite true. 
9818. (7. The Manager, in point of fact, will go where lie is most wanted P A. Yes; that is quite true. 
9810. (7. Probably, if there is nothing very exciting or important in your place, lie might leave it, and go 
to places of more importance? A. Yes; I only speak personally of that. 1 do not know how often lie 
might be going to other places. Examination 
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Examination by Mr. Ritchie 

9820. Q. Who examines this left-hand side of the Main No. 1 Right? A. Biggers, 
9821. Q. The part that is not working at present? A. Yes. 
9822. Q. Is that examined daily, do you know? A. Not every day. 
9823. 9. how often is it examined P A. I think it is twice or three times a week, 
984. 9. And, if you make the examination which you have described, do you enter that in a book in the 
morning? A. Yes. 
9825. Q. Is this entering done before th a nen go in? A. Yes. 
9820. Q. And you have a system of tokens which you give? A. Yes, 
9827. Q. You do not use the words " all right" before the report is written, and allow them to pass in? 
A. No. 
9828. His Honor.] Mr. Bruce Smith, there is a question I would suggest to you, as to the relative 
dustiness of the 5th Right before and after the explosion, and of the 4th Left. 1 would suggest that you 
might ask something as to the relative dustiness of these two roads. 

Further examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

0329. Q. Take just before the explosion, say in June-the explosion was at the end of July. How did 
the dustiness of the 5th Bight compare with the dustiness of the 4111 Left, which, after all, is a 
continuation of the same road? A month before the disaster which was the more dusty, the 4th Left or 
the 5th Right? A. I think the 5th Right would be the dustier. 
0830. Q. Were they more dusty before the disaster than they are now ? A. I could not exactly say about 
before the disaster, because I was not working in the 4th Left before the disaster, I was in the 5th Right 
before the disaster. 
0831. Q. But you have told me generally? A. That it was a dusty district. 
9832. Q. But I have understood you to say generally that, before these late heavy rains, the mine 
generally was much drier than afterwards ? A. Yes ; it was. 
9833. Q. I think it is necessary for the Commission to know that: that the effect of those late heavy rains 
was very noticeable upon the whole mine. I mean that water came in almost everywhere and moistened 
everything? A. Yes ; the part of my section where I was walking about-it took effect on that. 
9831. 9. What district was that? A. 5th Right and 2nd Right. 
983.5. 9. It made a complete difference in the appearance of the mine? A. Yes. 
9830. 9. Well, that dry weather, which existed before these late rains, extended back to before the 
disaster-did it not P A. Yes. 
9S37. Q. So I may take it from you that there is a very n)tid'eahle difference in the dryness of the mine 
before the disaster as compared with the present time? A. Oh Yes; there is that. 
9338. Q. I want to ask a question with reference to one asked by Mr. Robertson. Mr. R,bertson asked 
you did you go up behind the fences ; and you said you had never been told to do it? A. Yes. 
0839. Q. Now, did not you know that, by this special rule No. 9, it was your duty  to "Make a true 
report of, and enter and sign daily, in a book kept at the appointed office for the purpose, the state of the 
mine roads, doors, stoppings, brattice, faces"-not " working faces," but "faces and brattice" P Now, 
could you examine the brattice up at the end of, say, No. 1 Main Heading, without going behind the 
fence P A. Not without going behind the fence. 
9810. 9. To examine all those brattices you must go behind the fence P A. Yes. 
9311.. Mr. Robertson.] But farther on in that rule it says "and shall continually, during his shift, inspect 
the working faces, roads, doors, brattice, and ventilating appliances." 
9312. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I know that: but before that it says "faces" not ' working faces." I also 
want to point out that it says " he" ; and you will notice that the " he" follows upon rule No. 8, which 
is the rule for the fireman-well, the " he" cannot mean the fireman, of course. 
9813. Mr. RberIson.] Well, in the same way, there is an obligation upon him to examine the workings, 
the state of the ivine roads, and so on. 
9314. MiS. Bruce Smith.] Q. "The mine roads"-that you did. "The doors"-that you did? A. Yes. 
9813. Q. "The stoppings and the brattices"? A. Yes 
0316. Q. And you admitted to me that you could not examine the brattice behind the fence without going 
up to the brattice through the fence? A. No. 
9817. Q. And the faces-I am not talking of the working faces, but the faces-you could not examine 
the faces behind the fences without going through the fences ? A. That is true. 
9818. Q. And it says "He shall also make a true report of the state of the mine roads, doors, stoppings, 
brattice, faces, and, ventilating appliances." You could not do that without going behind the fences? 
A. No. 
9819. Q. And, therefore, without any verbal directions from the management, your special rules required 
you to go behind the fences? A. Yes ; those are my duties. 
9330. Q. Besides that, 1 want to ask you this: even though work is stopped in these places, is it not 
necessary to examine them ? A. We do it, at any rate. 
9331. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I only ask that because he seemed to be under the impression that he had no 
instructions to do this. 
9332. AIr. Itaberfson.] You see you must also read. No. 10; and, according to that interpretation of 
No. 9, there is an obligation on him to examine every part of the mine every day. 
0833. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Yes. 
9854.. Mr. Robertson.] Then, what is No. 10 for? 
915.5. Mr. Bruce Smith..] I do not undertake to harmonize all these. It is additional : it is cumulative 
really ; and, if it repeats this, it is really redundant, I suppose. He had said that he had examined behind 
those fences, although he had never been instructed to do so. I only wanted to point out to him that, 
f rom the departmental point of view, he was expected to do that; and that he is impliedly instructed by 
these special rules, which he ought to have at his fingers' ends. 
9350. His Honor.] It looks very much as if this special rule applied to the reporting on the examination 
which he is expected to make afterwards-" He shall make a true report of . . . the state of the 
mine roads"-it is a question whether that means the state of the mine roads, or the state of the mine 
but I su'ppose it means the state of the mine roads- " doors, stoppings, brattice, faces, and ventilating 

appliances 
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appliances"; and then, afterwards, "He . . . shall continually, during his shift, inspect the working 
faces, roads, doors, brattice, and venti]ating appliances." Well, it looks here very much as if the "faces' 
mentioned in the second line of the rule were intended to be the same faces, the working faces ; because 
in the next rule it says that he shall, at least once in every week, examine the waste workings. 
9857. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Your Honor sees that he must enter in a book daily a report of, among other 
things, the brattice and the faces. He cannot enter them daily unless he sees them daily. Therefore he 
must see daily the faces and the brattice; and, if the faces and the brattice lie behind a fence, he must go 
behind the fence daily in order to see them daily and report daily. Then, in addition to reporting daily, 
the rule goes on to say that he must be continually moving about. 

If the Commission come to the conclusion that it is desirable that these faces should be examined, 
it might be advisable to remove the doubt by adding some other words. 
9858. M. Robertson.] I might say that I know of one place where, to remove that doubt, there is a 
special rule that the deputies shall examine such places. 
9850. Mr. Bruce Smith.] You know it did come out at the inquest, in Mr. Rogers' evidence, that that 
very extreme end--the end of No. 1 Main Level--had not been examined for some days. I do not know 
whether the Commission know that, but, as it is before the Court, I will refer you for a moment to the 
page. On page 40 (inquest depositions), about two-thirds of the way down, Mr. Rogers says:— 

Morrison inspected up to the fence at the very end of No. 1 Right. No one would examine the two faces right up 
to the end of No. 1 1-light on the morning of the 31st July. The fence is about 30 or 40 yards from the extreme face that 
30 or 40 yards would not be inspected on the morning of the 31st July by anyone. I do not say that that part of the mine 
is the highest in the mine ; from No. 5 Right up to the second cut-through there would be a rise of about 1 in 25 : the 
very end of No. 1 Right would be :30 or 35 feet higher than the point at No. 5 Right; ... there was no reason for not 
inspecting the 30 or 40 yards beyond the fence at the top of No. 1 Right except that there were no men working there. 

9860. Mr. Robertson.] Yes, that is it. That is the ordinary practice in most mines. 
9861. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Then, on page 41, while your mind is on that, four or five lines from the end of 
the first paragraph 

The fence at the top of No. 1 Right was put there because there was no one working up there. The brattieing was 
up to the face of that place; I saw it there myself some weeks before the disaster. The air would go from where Morris 
was working up into the cut-through, and to the place where Purcell was working. 

Then, compare that with the fact given by Mr. Atkinson in his evidence, that he found a quantity of gas 
up in that very cul-de-sac. 
0862. Mr. Robertson.] But I understand that he found it with a hydrogen lamp. 
9863. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But he found a large quantity. He gave the measurement. He found a large 
quantity with the ordinary safety-lamp. 
9804. .1l1r. Robertson.] But that was after the brattice was deranged. 
9865. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Yes, but it was a cul-de-sac; and it points to the necessity, I think, for testing 
those places, even though men are withdrawn. 
9860. Air. Robertson.] I quite agree. 
0867. .11Ir. Bruce Smith.] So that it may be necessary to make that clear, if it is not clear now. 
0868. Mr. Robertson.] riFjat  is the reason I asked the question. 

[TVitness retired.] 

HENRY JUBB was sworn, and examined as under :— 

(This witness was called by the Commission, who asked Mr. Bruce Smith, as a mitter of convenience, to 
conduct his examination-in-chief.) 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

0869. Q. What is your name? A. Henry Jubb. 
0870. (1. What are you? A. I am assistant under-manager now at Keira. 
9871. Q. And how long have you occupied that position? A. About five months. 
0872. Q. What were you before you occupied that position? A. I was deputy overman. 
9873. Q. How long have ycu been in the Mount Keira Mine? A. About nearly sixteen years. 
9874. Q. You know Gleeson? A. Yes. 
0875. Q. There are two Gleesons; are not there? A. There are several. 
0876. Q. You know P. Gleeson? A. Yes, Pat. 
9877. Q. Have you heard of some evidence that was given by Patrick (i-leeson? A. Yes; I saw it. 
9878. Q. Where did you see it? A. In the newspaper. 
9879. Q. What did you see in the newspaper? A. it said about lighting some gas. 
0880. Q. Did you see that your name was brought into it? A. Yes; I saw that much. 
0881. Q. I will just read you the part; and then I will hear what you like to say about it:— 

Q. Now, have you any recollection of discovering gas at any time in Mount Keira? A. Yes. 
"Q. Give us particulars of each occasion? A. The first time I found it was after firing a shot. 
"Q. When? A. Oh, it would be about six or seven weeks ago." 

This was said on the 21st of January. Then lie goes on to say 
"Q. What part of the mine? A. In the place we called the Old Straight. 
"Q. What number? A. The number of the place we worked in was No. 29; but this was in another 
place. We had turned away over like to where we working a cmt-through, driving into the heading 
where I was working. 
"Q. Who was your mate? A. Aly brother, Alfred Gle.eson. 
"Q. What happened? A. I had had a missed shot the day before; and, of course, I had to come 
out. The next morning I went in; and 1 bored another hole about a foot or a little more away; and 
after the shot went off there was a terrible rumble and noise, and, of course, this flash came out. 

Q. How far did the flash come out? A. Well, I daresay the cut-through was in about 7 or 8 yards. 
I was away up the bore. 
"Q. Where did the flash come out? A. Into the bord where I broke away from." (730-731.) 
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Q. What did you say to Jubb? A. I told him there was gas there. McDonald was there too." 

"Jubb examined it, and I had another shot ready to fire; and he asked me would I be long before I 
bored the hole. I said, 'No; I can bore it now.' I thought he was going to wait until 1 fired the 
shot. lie waited until I bored the hole, and he put his lamp to the hole, and then he said it was not 
worth speaking of.....He said it was smoke from the shot, but there was no smoke there. 
The smoke had gone when it lit. 
"Q. When Jubb told you it was smoke from the shot, you knew there was no smoke there when it 
lit.? A. Oh, I am certain. 
"Q. Was anything else said by Jubb? A. No. He just let us go on working just the same as usual." 
(733-784.) 

You see what that all amounts to—that he had reported to you that they had had a flash of gas; and that 
you came in, and he reported to you what he had seen; and there was a small thing in the same way; 
and you said that there was nothing in it, and it was all powder smoke. What have you to say about 
that? A. The wheeler told me [Infereupted.] 
9882. Q. What was his name? A. Dibden. Tile told me the G-leesons wanted to see me. I went into 
the place. I asked the wheeler what it was; and he said he did not know for certain, but he thought 
they had seen something. I went into the place, and he said " We have lit something, but I do not know 
what." They were working in the place, and had the coal filled up then into the skips. I said, "What 
was it you saw? Let me know all about it ?" ; and he told me. 
9883. Q. Who told you? Patrick Ojeeson? A. Patrick Gleeson. He told me that after firing the shot 
he went into his place, and held his light up to look; and he said something flashed, but he did not know 
what it was. I examined minutely all over the place. 
9884. Q. With what? A. A llepplewbite-Gray safety-lamp. That is the one we use for examinations. 
And there was not the slightest show of anything. 
9885. Q. Not when you tried it? A. When I examined it. And, after that, I said " How long will you 
be before you fire the next shot ?" and they had some coal holed ready; but they were not ready for 
getting the next shot ready. But I said, " You had better bore the hole, and I will see if anything shows 
off it"; and they bored the hole; and when the hole was bored I stood watching them ; and as they took 
each drill out I examined the hole; and there was not the slightest show of anything; and I never made 
the remark at all that there was nothing worth speaking of. 
9886. Q. You deny that? A. I deny that. I said there was nothing. 
9887. Q. You distinguish between saving there was nothing worth speaking about, and saying there was 
nothing? A. I did not use those words, that there was nothing worth speaking about. I said there was 
nothing, and called their attention to the light, and explained it to them; in fact, I gave them a lesson 
on the detection of gas; that is the meaning of it. 
9888. Q. You deny having said that it was not worth speaking of? A. Yes; I deny that. 
9389. Q. Well, did you come to any conclusion as to what they had seen? A. Well, on several occasions 
when I was working on the coal, after a shot had been fired and had not thrown the coal, I have lit powder 
gases. 
9890. Q. You have lit what? A. I have lit gases given off from the powder when there has not been any 
gas seen. 
9891. Q. How do you distinguish between the gases given off from the powder and the gases given off from 
the coal? A. Well, if you have a place, and there is never anything seen when the coal is worked with 
the pick, you can take it pretty well for certain that there is nogas giv en off. 
9892. Q. But where do you get your information about the gas given off from the powder P A. One of 
my authorities is Pamely, in the "Mine Manager's Handbook." 
9893, Q. Have you often had that take place in the Mount Keira Mine? A. Well, I suppose I had it 
half-a-dozen times. 
9894. Q. And how do you distinguish them, if you see a flash after a shot, between the gas which you 
mentioned as resulting from the powder, and the gas which comes out of the coal ? A. The gas which 
comes out of the coal you will get near the roof usually; and you will also get it when there is a hole 
bored into the coal first. 
9895. Q. That is not what I asked. That is where you got it. Is that how you distinguish it, by the 
position? A. The other gas you get after the shot is fired, but never before. 
9890. Q. Then, if you find anything after a shot is fired, you conclude that it is gas from the powder? 
A. Yes ; unless it continues to give off. 
9897. Q. Is it not a very likely time for gas to come out of the face when you have fired a shot and 
loosened a new quantity of coal? Is not that the most likely time for gas to be opened up, so to speak, 
from the body of the coal? A. Yes; I suppose it is a likely time. 
9898. Q. Well, if it is a likely time for gas to be revealed, and a likely time also for the gunpowder gas 
to be present, what I want to know is how you distinguished between them ; or have you any means of 
distinguishing between them ? A. It is rather hard to distinguish between them. 
9899. Q. Is not it a mere conclusion that you arrived at by,  the fact of its coming after the shot? A. That 
is my conclusion. 
9900. Q. And that is your only reason for concluding that it was gas from the gunpowder, because it was 
after the shot? A. Yes ; and the gas did not show when the hole was bored in the coal. 
9901. Q. And the gas did not show before the shot was fired ? A. Neither before the shot was fired nor 
when a hole was bored in the coal. 
9902. Q. You admit that something of the sort did occur ; but that, instead of saying "It is nothing to 
speak of" you said " It is nothing." Now, did you do anything in cbnsequence of what had been told 
you? A. Well, I kept the air current close up; in fact, we do that on all occasions. 
9903. Q. How was the Keipa Mine working then as regards lights ? A. All open lights, except 
[In terrup ted.] 
9901. Q. Did you report this to the Manager? A. Yes; I put it down in my report-book. 
9905. Q. And the open lights were continued? A. Yes. 
9906. Q. Could you say that you have known that half-a-dozen times? A. Yes. 
9907. Q. When you have worked yourself? A. Yes. 
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0908. (7. Have you heard of it on other occasions from the men since you have been assistant overman P 
A. ot that I can flidlltioii lately: not that I have heard lately. I have not heard of it since then. 
0909, (7. But have you before that? A. Yes se'eral Did miners have told me that. 
0010. (7. They have had a flash after the shot had been fired ? A. Yes. 
0911. (7. And in every case you have concluded that it was from the gunpowder P A. From the blasting 
powder. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Lysag 
w 

ht 

9912, Q. Can you sho me anywhere in Patnely this authority you speak of for gases coming from powder? 
A. Ithink so. 
0913. Mr. lJi'uce Sin/It.] Q. Look at page 420 ;-perhaps that is what you are referring to? A. It is on 
page 424. 
0914. Mr. Lysag/f.1 Q. Just read me the passage you refer to? A. " Composition of gas given off by 
m ining powder when fired: carbon monoxide 3375, hydrogen sulphide 710, hydrogen 524, methane 273, 
or a total of explosive gases of 48 82 per cent." 
0915. (7. That is what you referred to ? A. Yes. 
9910. (7. And that is all you referred to? A. That is all I referred to. 
0917. (7. Now, what sort of powder was being used in Keira? A. The usual blasting powder; compressed 
blasting powder. 
9918. Q. Now, tell me this, in what paper did you real the statement you complained of P A. It was in 
the Teleqraph where I saw it first. 
0919. (7. You read it there? A. Yes. 
0020. (7. Did the Manager speak to you about those statements ? A. He drew my attention to the report; 
and asked inc how far it was correct. 
9921. Q. Then you saw the report through the Manager's drawing your attention to it? A. I saw it in 
the TeIe,qreph first, last week, in Sydney. That is the first I knew of it. 
9922. Q. Then when did the Manager draw your attention to it? A. On Saturday, the first day I was at 
work. 
9923, Q. What was in the report that you complained of? A. That the Gleesons' did not give a correct 
statement. 
0024. Q. In what instance was the statement incorrect? A. In the first instance, he said I said there 
was nothing worth mentioning at the Chill hole. I never said such a thing. 
0025. (7. Is that all you compiaino 1 of ? A. That is one. 
0926. (7. And what else? A. Then he says that the fire flashed all round him, and also down on the coal 
infront of him. I reckon it would have taken the hair off his face if it had. 
0027. (7. And that is the reason you complain of that ? A. Yes. 
9928. (7. You were not there ;-and you (10 not know how far it flashed P A. I do not know. 
9020. Q. Then how had you anything to compiain of as far as you were concerned? A. Because it was 
making it appear that I was a little bit slow in finding it. 
0030. Q. And I suppose you have had a couversaton with Mr. Jones as to the evidence that you should 
give here? A. No, I did not. 
00.3 l. Q. Had not you a conversation with Mr. Jones P A. Ho told me that I was to come here. 
0932. Q. He wanted that denied by you? A. I wanted to deny it myself. I applied to come. 
0933. (). 1 think you have a certificate by examination P A. Yes. 
0931. Q. What certificate ? A. A second-class under-manager's certificate. 
99:35. Q. And you are now under-manager at Mount Keira? A. No; I am assistant to the under-
manager. 
9036. (7. Who is the under-manager? A. Mr. Phillips. 
.9937. (7. Has lie a certificate? A. Yes. 
0938. (7. By examination ? A. By service. 
9930. (7. how long have you worked in Kcira? A. Sixteen years next month. 
9010. (7. And during that time hw often have you known the air to be reversed by a westerly wind? 
A. I could not say. 
9911. (7. Roughly P A. The air has not been reversed in the last three years. 
0942. (7. Roughly, can you say how often it has been reversed during that period? A. I could not say. 
0943. (7. Give me some approximate number of times ;-give me fifty, or 100, or anything you like? A. I 
could not. I did not take any account of it. 
9944. (7. Do you know of any other causes, besides the westerly wind, reversing the air in Keira? A. No. 
0915. (7. Did you read the evidence giien by McDonald ? A. No, I did not. 
991.6. (7. Did you read that part of Gleeson's evidence where he spoke of smoke remaining in his working 
place all night ? A. Yes; I saw that. - 
091.7. (7. Are you prepared to say that that is not true? A. I was not there; it was not on my shift. 
99-18. Q. You do not know anything about it P A. No, 
9949. (7. have you known smoke to remain in your shift in any working place all night P A. No ; not 
the same smoke. 
9950. Q. What sort of smoke did remain? A. Well, if you start all round a set of workings, and they 
are firing shots all through, there is bound to be smoke coming through. 
0951. (7. The same smoke would remain in the place all night P A. No. 
0952. (7. Has there not been smoke in one place all night? A. No. 
0953. (7. Is the air good? A. Yes. 
9951. (7. Do you think it is sufficient for all places in the mine ? A. I do. 
0055. (7. Then, will you tell me why you are putting that tunnel in, to put in a fan ? A. To improve the 
ventilation. - 
0950. 0. Then it is not good enough P A. It is good enough : but we want to improve it. 
9957. (7. As a matter of fact, have not tenders been called for the construction of a tunnel, to put rip a 
fan at Keira? A. I do not know. 
9958. Q. Then, what did you tell me that thcy were putting up a funnel for a fan for P A. They have riot 
started yet. They are not going to erect a fumlilel ; tl:ev are going to sink a shaft, I understand, but they 
are not prepared yet. 
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0959. Q. What are you going to sink the shaft for? A. To work the coal further in. 
9960. Q. Are you not going to sink the shaft to put up a fan? A. Yes. 
9961. Q. And, that being so, will you not admit that the ventilation has been found defective? A. Not 
necessarily so; but we have to go further in yet. 
9962. Q. What part of your land are you going to sink this shaft at ;-over near Hurt's place P A. I do 
not know ;  I have not been to the top. 
9933. Q. Have you no idea? A. Not on the surface; I know at the bottom. 
996. Q. How far from the surface are you going to sink this shaft? A. As far as I understand, it is 
about 600 yards through the solid coal. 
9965. Q. Is it not the proposal to sink the shaft and then drive through the solid coal to your present 
workings ? A. Yes. 
0900. Q. And do you not expect to reach the present workings in a drive of 30 yards? A. No; there are 
no workings near where the shaft is to go down. 
9967. Q. And you expect the ventilation to be very much improved when you get that fan? A. I hope so. 
9908. Q. Do you know what this fan is to cost? A. No. 
9969. Q. Have you any idea? A. I have not. 
9970. Q. Have you been consulted about this, then? A. I have not been asked. 
0971. Q. Do you know who did recommend it? A. It has been recommended for years. 
9972. Q. Before there was any thought of opening up this new coal? A. Well, I suppose it was always 
the intention to open up the new coal. That is what the mine is there for. 
9973. Q. Now, are you prepared to say that 100 cubic feet of air is circulated in every working place to 
every man, boy, and horse, in Keira at the present time? A. I think we have more than that. 
9974. Q. Are you prepared to swear that 100 cubic feet of air are circulated in every working place to 
every man, boy, and horse in Keira at the present time? A. Yes. 
9975. Q. Do you take the records? A. No, I do not. 
9970. Q. Then, how do you know? A. Because I helped to measure it. 
9077. Q.  That is what I asked you;-do you taLe the measurements? A. Yes. 
0978. Q. That is part of your work? A. Yes. 
9979. Q. How often do you take the air measurements? A. Generally  about once a week. 
9980. Q. And when exceptionally-once a month ? A. Once a month is the time required by the Act. 
9981. Q. how often do you do it in practice? A. Generally about once a week. 
0982. Q. And where do you measure the air? A. Where the air starts from the split into the workings 
and in the returns where the air comes from the workings. 
9933. Q. Then, do you ever measure the air in the working place ? A Our instrument will not measure 
in the working place. 
0934. Q. That is what I want to know. Then, what is about the percentrgo of leakage from the split, 
from the working place- the average percentage of leakage? A. I am not prepared to say. 
9935. Q. What is your estimate ;-you hold a second-class certificate; surely you can give us an estimate? 
A. Well, the main current comes in to the first man, and the leakage that goes from him probably goes to 
the second man along with the original current, and that is the style right through the ventilating district 
in each split. 
99S6. Q. I am asking you, after the split is driven into one section, what is the average leakage through 
that section ? A. Well, as a matter of fact, practically the whole of the ventilation has to go into the 
faces of the workings. Every man does not get the whole current ; but he gets more than his share of it. 
0987. Q. That does not answer my question. If there are 5,000 cubic feet at the split, and there are, say, 
ten men working in the district, about what would be the probable leakage throug 

--
h detective bratticing 

and things like that? Cannot you give me now an estimate of what is the probable leakage so much per 
cent.? A. You might lose a quarter. 
9988. Q. Do not you know it is about 20 per cent. ;-is not that a fair estimate? A. In some cases it 
might be, in others it is not. 
99S9. Q. However, I may take 20 per cent, as a fair estimate of the leakage? A. In places. 
0990. Q. In Keira? A. In places, but not throughout. 
9991. Q. Now, how far are your cut-throughs driven? A. We have no tied distances. 
9092-3. Q. What is your longest drive without a cut-through? A. We might go 50 or 60 yards. 

[At 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned for Iuncheon.] 

AFTERNOON. - 

(On resuming, at 2 p.  in., Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and procedin.) 

HENRY J UBB, previously sworn, was further examined as under 

9994. Mr. Lyseg!it.] Q. Did you say you never discovered gas in Keira? A. I did not say that. 
9995. Q. When did you discover it'? A. Do you want the exact date? 
9996. Q. As near as you can give it to Inc I A. I can give you the exact date. 
9997. Q. Whut is that book which you are now looking at? A. It is a record book. I find that I 
discovered gas on the 2nd of January this year. 
9998. Q. Was that discovered with an ordinary Davy lamp? A. No, with a Hepplewbite-Gray lamp. 
9999. Q. When (lid you discover gas before that? A. On the 4th of September, 1902, I found a slight 
show of fire-damp in the working place. 
10000. Q. Without referring to your book, can you remember how often you discovered gas before that 
time? A. I reported it every time I say it. 
10001. Q. How often-can you tell nec without turning up the exact date? A. I cannot tell you. 
10002. Q. Has it been a common thing to discover it within the last two years? A. It has never been 
discovered except during the last six mouths. 
10003. Q. Then gas was never discovered in Keira, to your knowledge, until after the Mount Kembla 
disaster? A. It was within a few weeks afterwards. We had been trying for i for years. 
10004. Q. And since the Mount Kernbla accident it has been discovered at intervals of a couple of months? 
A. It ha L en discovered two or three times. 

10005. 
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10005. Q. On the last occasion in January in considerable quantity I A. No, there was just a slight show 

from a drill hole. 
10006. Q. In view of the fact that since the Mount Kembla disaster gas has been discovered, and that 
Gleeson swore that there was no smoke from the powder when he lit it, would it be right to assume that 
the flame was simply from the powder? A. Is it a fact that Gleeson says there was no smoke? 

10007. Q. Yes? A. He did not tell me that. 
10008. Q. If I tell you that was so are you still prepared that it was gas from the powder? Now, here 
is the question which was asked of Patrick Gleeson 

"Q. Did McDonald say anything? A. Well, of course, Jubb examined it. He said it was smoke 
" from the shot ; but there was no smoke there. The smoke had gone when it lit. 

Q. When Jubb told you it was smoke from the shot you knew there was no smoke there when it lit? 

A. Oh I am certain." 

Q. Do you still adhere to the opinion that it was gas from the powder that lit up? A. I am still of 
opinion that the gas from the powder was mixed with it, if there was a small percentage of gas. 
10009. Q. Will you admit that there was a small percentage of fire-damp coming from the coal? A. I 

cannot say, I could not find any. 
10010. Q. You are not prepared to say that it was all from the powder? A. I told him that it was fumes 
from the powder. 
10011. Q. You said "fumes" and did not mention gas at all? A. No, I did not mention gas. 
10012. Q. Had you been looking for gas before the ?Iount Kembla explosion? A. I have been looking for 
gas for the last six years. I have been looking for it every morning and every day that I have been at 
work as a deputy. 
10013. Q. With a safety-lamp? A. Yes. 
10014. Q. And you never discovered any trace of fire-damp excepting during the last six months? A. Not 

until the last six months. 
10015, Q. Are you working in gaseous coal at the present? A. No.. 

10016. Q. Now that gas is being constantly found there, is it safe to work in the mine with naked lights? 

A. Yes. 
10017. Q. And do you water the travelling roads there? A. Yes, all of the main roads. 

10018. Q. And in the vicinity of where you are going to fire a shot? A. Yes, when the place is dry. 

10019. Q. Who does it ? A. In places where there is no gas, the miners. If there is gas, the deputy. 
10020. Q. Hov ofien have you, as deputy, fired a shot? A. I have not been a deputy. 
10021. Q. How often? A. I cannot say. 
10022. Q. Roughly speaking? A. The deputy is not always there; but he is there before the light is put 

ZD 

and the shot fired. 
10023. Q. Do you not know that there may be a dangerous quantity of gas there? A. Whit about the 

men working with naked lights? 
10021. Q. Do you not know that there may be a lot of -gas there although it may not have been discovered? 
A. I do not think it is dangerous if the place is wet. 
10025. Q. If a man wanted a shot fired in a dusty place, and gas had not been discovered there, did you 
water that place? A. We watered all places if they were dusty. 
10026. Q. What I ask you is, if a man wanted a shot fired in a dusty place, and gas had not been found in 
that place, did you water it? A. If the place was dry we watered it. 
10027. Q. Can you tell me any places which have been watered where gas has not been discovered I 
A. I could not mention them by name. 
10028. Q. Do you know of a single place? A. All working places that are dry are watered before a shot 

is fired? 
10029. Q. How do you water them? A. By splashing the water out of a bucket. 
10030. Q. Have you any appliances to take the water up there? A. We take it up in a watering tub from 

mc cask standing in the mine. 
10031. Q. Do you know, within the last six months, of any working places which have been splashed with 
water from buckets in this way? A. Yes. 
10032. Q. Did you water the place where. Gleeson was working? A. It is clamp there. We do not water 
that side of the mine at all. 
10033. Q. I wai asking you about cut-throughs. You have driven for about 60 yards without cut throughs? 

A. That would be about the distance. 
10331. Q. In your opinion what would be about the propar distance to drive without a cut through ? A. It 

depends upon the vermtdati):i We can drive some places 30 yards, arid other is for 60 yards equally 
as wel1. 
10035. Is 30 yards a reasonabe distance to have cut-thiroughs apart from each other? A. I should say 
30 or 40 yards is a reasonable distance. But we have peculiar conditions in our mine; we may drive into 
a place where the seam is cut off and where it is all stone; it is fair to give us one or two yards extra in 
such cases. 
10036. Q. You would not have a drive mome than 40 yards in length without a cut-through ? A. I would 
not make a hard and fast rue. As long as you can get ventilation, it is all right. 
10037. Q. Do you not see the danger of the air supply being cut off fioa the men? A. There is always 

danger in a mine. 
10038. Q. Do you not see that the brattice may become disarranged and leave the men without any air 
60 yards away? A. You could do that at a distance of 30 yards away. 
10039. Q. But is it not a greater dtnger ? A. Not necessarily so. 
10010. Q. Do you not admit that there is a danger that the brattica may becme disarranges?, and that 
the men may be left without air 60 yards away? A. There is an equal danger if the men are only 30 yards 

away. 
10041. Q. You would not have cut-throughs 30 yards from each other as a minimum distance? A. I would 
not make a hard and fast rule. 
10042. Q. What rule would you go by? A. I would get the ventilation into the working places. 
10043. Q. And you would drive for 100 yards without a cut-through? A. Yes, if there was plenty of 
pressure, so far as ventilation is concerned. 10044. 
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10044. Q. Have you got that at Kiera? A. No, not in all the places. I do not recommend that cut-
throughs should be 60 yards apart in all places. What I say is, that we can drive in some places for a 
distance of 60 yards equally as well as we can in other places for a distance of 30 yards. 
10045. Q. Tell me what you think of these recommendations. No. 1-" Managers, under-managers, 
deputies, and shot-firers, to hold certificates of competency by examination, and to have had five years 
practical mining experience for respective positions" ? A. Yes, I would approve of that. 
10046. Q. Recommendation No. 2-" Inspectors to be vested with absolute powers to order use of safety-
lamps" 1 A. I do not believe in that. 
10047. Q. You know what it means. If the Chief Government Inspector anticipates danger in a colliery 
from the use of a flare-light, be is to have power to order safety-lamps to be put in. Do you not think that 
is a proper power for him to have? A. I think that the Manager should know more about the matter than 
the Inspector, who only visits the mine once a month. 
10048. Q. But if the Manager has no power to put them in owng to the proprietors of the mine objecting, 
who do you think should have the power of ordering them to be put in? A. The Manager has the power 
now. 
10049. Q. I am putting a case to you, where a Manager may desire safety-lamps to be put in, but the 
proprietors will not agree because of the expense? A. Any Manager would resign his position if lamps 
were not put in a mine when lie thought that they ought to be. 
10050. Q. What is the objection to the Inspectorshaving that power? A. Because lie does not know the 
local conditions attaching to the mine. 
10051. Q. Can lie not discover these conditions 1 A. He is not there every day. 
10052. Q. Cannot be see the danger as well as the Manager? A. I do not think so. 
10053. Q. Would lie not be likely to see the danger? A. I take it that the Inspector can make that 
recommendation now to the Manager. 
10054. Q. Do you think that is sufficient? A. Yes. If an Inspector sees danger lie can stop the working 
of the mine until the danger is removed. Is not that good enough I 
10055. Q. That is the view you take of it? A. That is the view I take of it. 
10056. Q. Recommendation No. 3 is-" Ventilation by furnace prohibited, and fans substituted." What do 
you think of that proposition ? A. What time would you give them to make the change? 
10057. Q. I would leave that to the Ccmn;issioners. I have no doubt that reasonable time would be given 
to the mine owners to make the change? A. I believe myself that a fan is the best. 
100.58 Q. We all know that. We are talking about the future. What time would you give the collieries 
to substitute fans for furnaces ? A. Suppose we have a case where it would not pay to have a fan I 
10059. Q. I am not arguing with you ;-what time would you give the nianegement to substitute fans for 
furnaces? A. I would? not make a recommendation for a hard and fast rule to be laid down. 
10060. Q. What explanation would you give of this view? A. The Manager is responsible for the working 
of the mine and for the safety of the men. Is that not enough? 
10061. Q. No, it is not enough. Let me put this to you. Mr. Rogers was responsible for the working of 
the Mount Kembla Mine, and over ninety men were kiiled, Do you know that Mr. Rogers admitted that 
lie knew nothing about gas ? A. I do not know anything about it. 
10062. Q. If a Manager said that he knew nothing about gas, and that lie had never taken a measurement 
in the colliery, would lie be fit to have that position ? A. That is not my business. 
10063. Q. Well, now what are your objections to having fans instead of furnaces? A. I approve- of having 
fans. 
10064. Q. What time would you give for the fans to be substitutedy A. I would not make any hard and 
fast rule. 
10065. Q. I ask what in your opinion would be a reasonable time I 
10066. His honor.] The answer, which would be a corollary to the witness' former answer is eternity," 
because be says that lie does not think that the change should be made compulsory at all. 
10067. Mr. Lysaçiht.] Q. Will you admit this, that at Keira the furnace has, at times, been found to be 
defective ? A. Some years ago it was, I believe ; but it has been improved a lot since then. 
10068. Q. Is it not proposed, in addition to ventilating the mine with a fan, also to make an independent 
shaft for the lowering of timber and stuff to the mine 1 A. Not necessarily. The shaft is to be an upcast 
shaft. Only one shaft is to be sunk. 
10069. Q. Do you say that the proposal is to have one shaft only? A. One shaft for the upcast. We have 
intakes already. 
10070. Q. Do you know exactly what they are going to build? A. It is not my business. 
10071. Q. Recommendation No. 4 is-" Waste workings to be absolutely sealed up and surrounded by 
return airways (for fear of emissions) ; such return airways not to come in contact with intake "I A. I do 
not believe in sealing up waste workings. 
10072. Q. What would you do? A. I would connect them with return airways. 
10073. Q. What about the intakes? A. I would allow a certain quantity of air to go through to keep the 
wastes clear. 
10074. Q. But would not the intakes carry any emissions of foul air to the wox-king  places? Q. If you have 
sufficient ventilation, you can do what you like with it. 
10075. Q. You would not have the intakes connected with the waste? A. Certainly not. 
10076. You would utilise the return air? A. Yes, as far as possible. When you have finished with 
the ventilation for the workmen, you can do what you like with it. 
10077. Q. Recommendation No. 6 is-" Inspection with locked safety-lamps in all cases " 1 A. The firemen 
examine with a locked safety-lamp every morning. 
10078. Q. Recommendation No. 7 is-"That a monthly examination and report should be ma0e by 
deputies and District Inspector with the hydrogen flame 'l A. I do not think that it would be bad. 
10079. Q. Do you think it would be good I A. I think it would. 
10080. Q. You know that the object is to discover less than 2 per cent, of gas? A. Yes, I know that. 
10081. Q. You support it? A. I do not suppose I shall be asked. 
10082. Q. I am asking you now? A. I believe that it would be fair. 
10083. Q. Do you support it ;-have you any reason for not supporting it;-are you afraid of supporting 
it? A. I am not afraid of supporting it, 10084 
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10084. Q. I will now come to Recommendation No. 11 :-" Weekly measurement of air in each section, 
and report thereof sent to Inspector " A. Yes, we do that now. We report it. 
10085. Q. To the Inspector? A. It is there for him to look at when he comes. 
10086, Q. You do not make the inspection evory week? A. We are not compelled to do so. 
10087. Q. Would you do it every week? A. I generally do it myself. 
10088. Q. Would you make it compulsory? A. I would not make it compulsory. The Ooal Mines Act 
says once a month. 
10089. Q. Where is the objection to making it compulsory ? A. I do not say I object to it; but I do not 
think I approve of it either. 
10090. Q. Do you know of any objection? A. I am not going to oject to it. 
10091. Q. What is the objection? A. You would make it a liardanel fast rule ; but there may not be time 
to do it. There are lots of things to do in a coal mine besides measuring the air. 
10092. Q. Do you know of any objection to it being done? A. I do not raise any ojection to it. 
10093. Q. Recommendation No. 12 is-' -An extra supply of safety-lamps and their requisites, equal to 
one-third of the number of persons employed below ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready 
for use "? A. I do not think it bad to have a supply of lamps ready. 
10091. Q. Have you got them ready at Keira 1 A. Yes. 
10095. Q. How many? A. I cannot say. 
10096. Q. Roughly speaking? A. I have no idea. 
10097. Q. Have you no idea, as under-manager, of the number of lamps which would be ready in case of 
disaster? A. I could get a lot ready at a couple of hours' notice. 
10098. Q. Have you no idea as to what number would he available? A. I have never counted them. 
10099. Q. have you any approximate idea 1 A. I have not. I know there are lamps ready. 
10100. Q. Would you support the recommendation that a reserve of lamps should be kept? A. We have 
had lamps for four years. 
10101. Q. Would you approve of that recommendation? A. I do not know whether I would make it 
compulsory as to the number. I would like some safety-lamps to be kept ready. We always do it. 
10102. Q. Did you come to the Mount Kembla disaster I A. I did come to Kembla. 
10103. Q. The same evening? A. No. 
10104. Q. The day following? A. Yes. 
10105. Q. Did you hear that there was a deficiency of lamps at Kembla? A. I do not know anything about it. 
10106. Q. There were some brought from Keira., I think 1 A. Yes, I think some were carried over. 
10107. Q. Was your pit working on that day? A. The pit worked until 5 o'clock. 
10108. Q. You knew of the disaster about half-past 2 o'clock ? A. We did not. It was 3 o'clock when I 
left the mine, and there was no word then. 
10109. Q. Recommendation No, 13 is-" Travelling and haulage roads and other places necessary to be 
properly watered"? A. Yes, we do that. 
10110. Q. Recommendation No. 14 is-" Managers compelled to give more personal time and attention to 
management of colliery"? A. It all depends on the time which they are giving now. 
10111. Q. What does your Manager do now? A, He is at the pit four times a week. 
10112. Q. How often does he go inside? A. Two or three times a week, but I cannot give you the stated 
number. If there is anything fresh he goes in more often. 
10113. Q. Recommendation No. 16 is-" That the size of the manholes should be enlarged." What is the 
size of the manholes at Keira? A. Some,3 feet by 4 feet, and some 3 feet by 6 feet. 
10111. Q. You know that the statute requires them to he 3 feet by 4 feet? A. Yes. 
10115. Q. Do you think it necessary to have them larger? A. No, there is no particular reason, but when 
we were making them it was just as easy to make them a foot larger. 
10116. Q. Would you have them 4 feet wide and P feet deep? A. I believe they are big enough at Keira 
as we have them now. 
10117. Q. Recommendation No. 18 is that-"Instruction be given regularly to employees on the means of 
escape"? A. Would the men make any use of it? 
10118. Q. Do you approve of the recommendation! A. I do not think it is a bad one; but it would be 
like talking to a stone-wall in many cases. 
10119. Q. You can only speak as to Keira, I suppose? A. Only as to Keira. 
10120. Q. Have you ever known any men ref use to be shown a way out? A. I do not think I have tried them. 
10121. Q. Then what reason have you for saying that it would be like talking to a stone-wall 1 A. Because 
some of the men can scarcely find their way out in a straight road. 
10122. Q. Then is it necessary that they should be shown their way out? A. Of course it is. 
10123. Q. Then, you do approve' of it? A. What roads would you make it necessary to show them? 
10121. Q. All possible escapes? A. We have three already. 
10125. Q. Would it be any trouble to show them to the men? A. They know them. 
10126. Q. Are the men not prohibited from travelling outside their working places? A. Yes. 
10127. Q. Would they not have to get permission to travel? A. Of course they would, unless it was a case 

f accident. 
10128. Q. Would it not be well to have the men instructed once a quarter? A. I believe it would. 
10129. Q. Would you have any objection to allowing your deputy to do that? A. Not at all. 
10130. Q. Do you think that he ought to do it? A. If the men wish it. 
10131. Q. Recommendation No. 20 is that--" Safety-lamps should not be unlocked for shot-firing." In your 
colliery the men light the fuse with a naked light I A. Yes, with a naked light. 
10132. Q. I would ask you this. In a case where gas has been discovered and it is necessary to use a 
safety-lamp, would it be dangerous to open a safety-lamp to fire a fuse-? A. I would not approve of doing that. 

Examined by Mr. Bruce Smith : -- 
10133. Q. You have for some years lately tried for a first-class certificate I A. Yes. 
10134. Q. You have ofléred yourself lately for a first-class certificate I A. Yes. 
10135. Q. You have been up for your examination I A. I have been up three times altogether. 
10136. Q. Did you fail twice? A. I failed twice in arithmetic. 
10137. Q. You do not know whether you have succeeded S A. I do not know yet. 10138. 



	

W. 
Witne&s-H. Jubb, 28 January, 1903. 

10138. Q. Have you changed your opinions at all as to these practical questions since you were a working 
miner A. Which questions? 
10139. Q. As to whether fans should supersede furnaces, or whether a certain number of lamps should be 
kept at a mine, and so on? A. I always approved of fans before furnace ventilation. 
10140. Q. What I mean is, has your mind undergone any change since you were a working miner? 
A. Not on that point. 
10141. Q. I understand that, the condition of thing.s being equal, you would prefer fans as a means of 
ventilation? A. Yes. 
10142. Q. But you do not recommend that a mine should be suddenly compelled, irrespective of conditions, 
to make a change? A. No. 
10143. Q. Are you a reader of mining literature outside of what you read for your examination? A. I read 
everything that I can get hold of. 
10144. Q. You did not tell me that you had found gas in the Mount Keira mine? A. No, I did not tell 
you. 
10145. Q. Will you tell the Commissioners what diflerence there was between your discovery of gas and the 
slight explosion, as you call it, which these men described to you ? A. Well, of course, I could not find any 
sign of their gas. 
10146. Q. If there is a light applied it generally goes off? A. Yes. 
10147. Q. And you would not find anything immediately afterwards? A. I do not think you would. 
10148. Q. The fact that you did not find it afterwards did not prove that there was none there before I 
A. I did not say so. 
10149. Q. Then what is your reason for distinguishing between what they saw and what you find? A. I 
judge from their description of it. 
10150. Q. What was their description? A. Gleccon said it flashed downwards. In all cases that I have 
heard of it rises to the roof. 
10151. Q. The gas being lighter than the air it rises to the roof? A. Yes. 
10152. Q. Suppose it suddenly escapes from the face or the rib and goes off; it would not necessarily be in 
the roof ? A. Do you mean a burst of gas? 
10153. Q. A small burst? A. A man would not have time to see how it went. 
10154. Q. A man might be singed and not seriously injured if the quantity of gas is small? A. Yes. 
10155. Q. How could you distinguish it in that case? A. I could not distinguish it then. 
10156. Q. Will you lend me that inspection book which you have there? A. What do you want to see? 
10157. Q. Do you not think that it ought to be quite open [addressing His Honor], Mr. Lysaght wishes to 
see it. 
10158. His Honor.] It is here. 
10159. iTr. Bruce 1S'rnith.] There are no secrets in it. 
10160. His Honor.] There can be no objection as far as I can see. 
10161. Mr. Bruce .'mith.] It is open to inspection, and I take it that itis public property. Is there 
anything which the witness objects to being seen? 
10162. Witness.] I do not think so. 
10163. His Honor.] The book is in Court; and I think anyone ought to be allowed to inspect it. 
10164. Mr. Roliertson.] The book is kept under special rules, but I think it comes under the Act of 
Parliament. 
10165. [After a little further discussion the witness withdrew his objection ; and the book was handed to 
Counsel. 1 
10166. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You admit that gas has been found several times at Mount Keira-you are 
not now working with lamps? A. We are working with open lights. 
10167. Q. Notwithstanding that you have found gas? A. We have never found gas so far in any quantity. 
It has been either from a drill-hole or on the face. It has never been on the roof. 
10168. Q. Do you examine the mine with a safety-lamp? A. I examine with a safety-lamp. 
10169. Q. Have you ever seen the gas flash 1 A. I believe I have. 
10170. Q. How long ago is that 1 A. It is about the time that we found it. 
10171. Q. The time which the men mentioned? A. No, not that time. 
10172. Q. How long ago? A. About five months ago. It was merely alight and out again. 
10173. Q. There was enough to light? A. It was like a glowworm. 
10174. Q. What size would it be A. Just about as big as a man's finger end. 
10175. Q. Where did you see it? A. In the face. 
10176. Q. In a hole? A. No, it was in a cut. 
10177. Q. That shows that there is gas in the mine? A. Yes, I suppose it does. 
10178. Q. Has that occasion been reported in your book? A. Every occasion on which I have seen gas has 
been recorded. 
10179. Q. You say you always examine with a safety-lamp? A. Yes. 
10180. Q. Have you ever recommended that it was necessary that safety-lamps should be used in the mine? 
A. No; it was not necessary. 
10181. Q. You do not think it is necessary now I A. No. 
10182. Q. How do you fire shots now? A. By fuse and by open light. 
10183. Q. You do that still? A. Yes. 
10184. Q. Then you have made no change whatever in the method of lighting shots or in the management 
of the mine since the Mount Kembla disaster? A. No ; we have only had extra inspection. 
10185. Q. So far as lighting shot is concerned, there is no difference? A. It is just the same. 
10166. Q. You tell us you water the mine with tubs 1 A. We have a hose and pipe on the thain 

road. 
10187. Q. For spraying? A. Yes. 
10188. Q. When was that adopted-since the Mount Kembla disaster? A. Yes; we have only opened up 
that district fully since then. 
10189. Q. So this system has only been adopted since that district has been opened up 1 A. The main roads 
were watered before. 
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10190. Q. How were they watered before 1 A. By watering-tubs. We had a spray out out of the back 
of the tub, so that it would distribute the water. 
10191. Q. Would it go on the ribs ? A. More would go on the floor. 
10192. Q. Would the sides be. touched? A. Yes. 
10193. Q. Do you follow that system now ? A. We use the pipes instead. 
10194. Q. And the hose? A. Arrcl the hose. 
10195. Q. How far up the ribs do you spray? A. To the roof. 
10196. Q. And you water the roof, too? A. Yes, where it is dusty. 
10197. Q. From the knowledge which you have of theoretical mining, is there any danger likely to arise to 
the roof from watering that way? A. There is. 
10198. Q. There is an objection to watering the roof? A. I know that there is. 
10199. Q. I want you to say of your own knowledge. 
10200. his honor.] A. I think the witness means that there is more than a theoretical objection-he 
knows of it. 
10201. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. have you seen the effects of the water on the roof? A. If you sodden the 
stone with water it breaks off. 
10202. Q. And that is an element of danger? A. Yes; if you put too much water on. 
10203. Q. That is one of the dangers which some persons urge against the use of water? A. Yes. 
10204. Q. How much of the mine do you water in that way-by hosing? A. I suppose we have from half 
to three-quarters of a mile watered with hose. 
10205. Q. That is the whole of the mine which is watered in that way? A. Yes. 
10206. Q. You mean the main haulage roads? A. Yes; a lot of the mine is wet. 
10207. Q. You do not do the branch roads? A. No; we do them with tubs. 
10208. Q. All this is not done merely to get rid of the water? A. No ; we have the water laid on into the 
mine. 
10209. Q Does the water go outside the rails on to the sides, where dust is liable to fall? A. Yes. 
10210. Q. You always water before firing a shot? A. Yes, certainly; all dry places. 
10211. Q. How is that done I A. With a bucket, by splashing it. 
10212. Q. Is that effectual? A. Well, it lays the dust down. 
10213. Q. Is it sufficient, in your opinion? A. Yes ; it will do. 
10214. Q. I suppose you look at the thing from the men's point of view, the same as when you were a 
miner? A. Yes; I do. 
10215. Q. You would not desist from doing anything you thought necessary merely because you wanted to 
favour the general ideas as to economy ? A. Our orders are to do everything necessary in the mine for the 
safety of the men. 
10216. Q. Are those the orders from the Manager? A. Yes. 
10217. Q. Have you any agent? A. Mr. Vickery is business manager. 
10218. Q. He is not called the agent? A. I have never known him cAled the agent. 
10219. Q. Does your 1\lanager spend money when it seems to him to he necessary ? A. Y s. 
10220. Q. You do not know of any case wh re he has had to consult the ag'mrt ? A. No ; not v here it is 
necessary for the safety of the mine. 
10221. Q. Are those instructions to you on paper, or were they verbal instructions? A. I do not think I 
have them on paper. 
10222. Q. What you would call general instructions or verbal instructions? A. They may have been verbal 
instructions. I have had written instructions given to me; but I do not know whether those were part of 
them. I know I have been told them. 
10223. Q. How do you account for the fact that gas does not seem to have been discovered in Keira until 
after the Mount Kembla disaster, although you have been there sixteen years? A. Because we have never 
got into the same seam of coal before. 
10224. Q. Have you been coming nearer to the Kembla boundaries? A. We are working nearer that way. 
10225. Q. How near are you? A. Oh, 2 or 3 miles away. 
10226. Q. I mean the district which you are now developing? A. It is working nearer to Kembla and 
further into the mountain. 
10227. Q. I take it that you never heard of gas before t'e Mount Kembla dbaster? A. No ; n.t in the 
sixteen years that I have he ii there. 
10228. Q. Did you hear of it before you went there? A. I do not think si'. 
10229. Q. How soon after the Mount Kinl,la disaster was it discovered? A. In September, 1902. 
10230. Q. Was that the firt time? A. I can tell you by looking at the boak. 
10231. Q. I want to know how near the first case of -;is was to the Mount Kembla, disaAcr, because it is 
certainly a strange coincidence? A. I see it was on the Ith of September, 1902. That seems to be the first 
time it had been seen. 

Re cross-examination by Mr. Lysaght :- 

10232. Q. Did you trouble to go through this book? A. When? 
10233. Q. At any time? A. Yes. 
10234. Q. Do you know that in August Mr. Phillips discovered -is? A. I do not interfere with his work. 
10235. Q. I want to kno .v where Phillipl discovered it? A. I cannot say. 
10236. Q. Do you know that gas was discovered on the 29th of August? A. That is the first time that Ire 
discovered it. 
10237. Q. Did you not tel me on the 4th of September ? A. That is the first time that I discovered it. 
10238. Q. Who discovered it before? A. The Inspector found it with the lrydrgen lamp in the same place. 
10239. Q. How ]on-0  before? A. A day or two before. 
10240. Q. Do you know that Phillips has this entry 

We examined No. 4 Left-hand, and discovered a small quantity of fire-damp in the back heading. The quantity of 
fi e-damp was so small that it would not show on the deputy's lamp. 
That entry is signed H. Phillips, and the date is 29th of August, 1902? A. That was when the Inspctor 
found it. Mr. Phillips was with the Inspector. 
10241. Q. You discovered it on September the 4th? A. Yes. How long was that afterwards? 
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10242. Q. Five or six days, and from that out did you not keep on constantly discovering it? A. It is all 
entered in the book. 
10243. Q. You say on September 11th, "Fire-damp was reported in No. 5 cross cut, front heading. A 
small blower was given off from a drill-hole. The brattice is close up to the work and the place is safe? 
A. Yes. 
10244. Q. There is appended to your entry the following :- 

NOTE-The name of this heading is No. 5 Right-hand main heading. No. 5 Right-hand heading, and all the 
places contiguous to it, were examined by me this day at 6 am., and no traces of gas could be discovered by the safety. 
lamp. I also examined the main straight tunnel and both the left and right.hand heading in the faces and found no trace 
of anygas. W. E. Jones accompanied me-September 12th, 1902. 

You see where the Manager says that he looked where you found gas and could not discover it? 
A. Because it was not there at that time? 
10245. Q. Then is there anything strange in Gleeson's having found gas and you not being able to discover 
it? A. I said that I could not find it. - 
10246. Q. There are several cases about gas. Has it not bcen found on the average about once a week? 
A. No. 
10247. Q. Once a fortnight? A. When I have entered it in the book, I have done with it, as far as I am 
concerned. 

Examined by Mr. Robertson 
10248. Q. Is it not a fact that the Mount Keira workings are being rapidly extended? A. Yes. 
10249. Q. Your furnace is not in the best position to make it efficient? A. It is not, the shaft is not deep 
enough for one thing. 
10250. Q. This proposal of a ventilating shaft with a fan. Is it not to provide for the future? A. Yes 
that is the chief intention. 
10251. Q. You expect that the strain on the furnace will be greater than it can supply; and you are 
anticipating the erection of a fan to provide sufficient ventilation? A. We have a long way to go; and we 
want an upcast shaft in the middle of the workings. 
10252. Q. With reference to the smoke that Gleeson speaks about. Gleeson says there was no smoke, and 
you suggested that the flame was from the smoke? A. From the fumes of the powder. 
10253. Q. Did you ever see a shot fired with powder without producing smoke? A. I never did. 
10254. Q. If Gleeson said there was no smoke be must have been mistaken? A. I did not see it. The 
smoke could not get away in that time. 
10255. Q. Since when did you discover that the smoke from gunpowder will cause an explosion? A. I saw 
it when working in a back heading five or six years ago. It was when a shot had not thrown the coal. I 
put a light to it; and it lit up. From what I observed, I judged that the gases from the powder are liable 
to explode. 
10256. Q. I confess it is not common in my experience, but it may be right? A. I have seen it, I am 
certain of it. 
10257. Q. Where is the gas which you are finding now? A. In the ineti's straglitstraight from the 
tunnel mouth. 
10258. Q. Further under the mountain? A. Yes, farthest in from the mouth. 
10259. Q. As the workings extend you may get gas? A. We have been looking for it for many years now. 
10260. Q. You do not approve of cut-throughs every 30 yards? A. tTnder  the conditions which we have to 
work. I do not approve of the limit of 30 yards. 
10261. Q. You think it is a matter of ventilation? A. That is the chief idea. 
10262. Q. If you have sufficient ventilation there is no reason why you should not carry drives 500 yards? 
4. If you have ventilation enough, I do not see why you should not. 
10263. Q. Is it not all a matter of arrangement, to secure adequate ventilation ? A. Yes. 
10264. Q. And if that is secured it is a mere matter of detail how if is secured ? A. That is my  opinion. 
10265. Q. Would it support your opinion if you know that in a gassy mine drives are carried from 200 to 
300 yards without eut-thvoughs? A. If the ventilation is looked after I do not see why they should not be 
carried that distance. 
10266. Q. As to the Government Inspector's ordering safety-lamps. You seem to think that the Inspector 
could stop the working of a colliery ? A. I think he could, if there was danger. 
10267. Q. I do not think he has that power? A. Do you not think so? 
10268. Q. Would it not meet the case if the Inspector had the power to refer the question of safety-lamps 
being placed in a mine to arbitration ? Q. I believe that might meet the case. 
10269. Q. If the Inspector was mistaken-and Inspectors ave fallible, like other people-the Company 
would have the opportuniv of being beard afterwards? A. Yes, certainly. 
10270. Q. As to monthly inspections with a hydrogen lamp. You have not used this lamp? A. I have 
not used it. 
10271. Q. You have no idea how long an inspection takes? A. I have seen an Inspector with a lamp. 
10272. Q. Is it not a tedious process? A. Yes. 
10273. Q. Would it not take a long time to make the same number of tests as are now made by the deputy? 
A. That would be every day. 
10274. Q. Have you no idea what time a test would take? A. I could not state the time; but I have seen 
an Inspector make the test. 
10275. Q. How many tests could you make with the ordinary lamp whilst the Inspector was fixing up the 
hydrogen lamp? A. I suppose I could take three. 
10276. Q. Then it would take three times as long to make the test with the hydrogen lamp i A. Yes. 
10277. Q. Do you know where the hydrogen is procured? A. It is in a cylinder. 
10278. Q. You do not know where it cosnes from. It cannot be purchased in the Colony. It has to be 
brought out in the cylinder and under great pressure and it is a costly process. Would that knowledge 
inodit' your opinion? A. I would not say that you should not make tests with the hydrogen lamp ; but I 
think that the llepplewhite-Grny lamp will aljswer ordinary requirements. 
10279. Q Do you think it would be necessary to have some places tested with the hydrogen lamp I A. Yes 
any suspicious places. 
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10280. Q. As to the weekly meisurements of the air, what is the necessity for that, if there is sufficient 
ventilation 1 A. I do not know ; but I think it is better to know what air is circulating. 
10281. Q. If it takes a couple of days now, once a month, to take the air in a large mine, it will take two 
days out of every week if you have weekly inspections I A. I said that I would not make it a hard and 
fast rule. 
10282. Q. You would leave it to the Managers? A. Yes. 
10283. Q. Is not a weekly inspection of air of greater importance in a mine where they are sailing close 
to the wind for ventilation than in a mine where there is sufficient ventilation ? A. In that case it is 
showing them up. 
10281. Q. But if you are sailing close to the vincl for ventilation, it is a matter of some importance I A. Yes. 
10285. Q. In an adequately ventilated mine it is of little or no consequence 1 A. As a matter of fact it 
would not matter. 
10286. Q. I think you said that at Keira you had a fair supply of safety-lamps four years ago? A. I said 
that we had some new ones. 
10287. Q. What did you get the lamps for? A. I suppose the Manager thought lie would get the best lamps 
that could be got. 
10288. A. Had you had gas found? A. No. The Hepplewhibe-Gray lamp we got for the deputies and officials. 
10289. Q. You did not get any lamps for ordinary usa? A. Not then. 
10290. Q. Do you think that there was any suspicion four years ago that gas existed in the mine? A. I do 
not think so. Our instructions were to keep a sharp look out. 
10291. Q. 1-lawe you any idea as the percentage of travelling roads which are watered, compared with the 
whole of the mine? A. None than half of theas are wateral. Some are naturally wet. All the dry roads 
are watered. 
10292. Q. You do not water the timber? A. Where the watering is cbne with the tub, we do not ; but where 
we water with the hose, we do. 
10293. Q. I think you said that the watering affects the roof? A. In my opinion it does. We have soft 
sandstone and it flakes. 
10294. Q. Is Mount Keira a hot mine? A. Not very. 
10295. Q. Do you not think that the watering of timber regularly has a tendency to rot the timber? A. I 
do not know. Some timber keeps better if it is kept damp. 
10296. Q. Yes, if it is wet ; but not if it is between wind and water? Not if it is between the two. 
10297. Q. Do you not think there would be sufficient dust lodging on the timber and on the roof to be 
dangerous in the event of an explosion? A. It would he'p. 
10298. Q. Is it any use watering a road if it is not done thoroughly? A. I do not suppose that it is. 
10299. (2. If you water in the vicinity of the place where the shot-firing is carried on, is not that sufficient 
to guard against explosion? A. I should prefer to have the whole lot kept damp. Time roads dry very quickly. 
10300. Q. Have you any idea of the mileage of the roads you have in your mine? A. I have uever reckoned 
it up. 
10301. Q. Have you any rough idea? A. There are S miles of engine roach, I suppose. 
10302. Q. Half of that area is naturally wet I A. I suppose that pretty well one-half is. 
10303. Q. If you have 30 or 40 miles of very dusty roads, and none of them naturally wet, it would be a 
heavy undertaking to water them 1 A. Yes, it would be, but as a preventative against explosion it would 
be a good safeguard. 
10304. Q. If done thoroughly? A. If done thoroughly. 
10305. Q. And you can do it thoroughly by hosing? A. We do not hose them at all, only the main road. 
10306. Q. But what is the good of cluing the main roads if there are other roads which harbour the dust? 
A, If the other roads are equally dangerous, they should be done as well. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie :- 

10307. Q. How long after the shot had been fired in Gleeson's place was it before you went in I A. I 
cannot say. 
10308. Q. Would it be half an hour? A. I should say fully that. 
10309. (2. In a place fairly ventilated, would there be any smoke left? A. Well, no. 
10310. Q. How long before you went in was it that the lighting of the gas took place? A. Glesson said 
that he went straight in after the shot was flied off. 
10311. Q. Was the brattice up to the face? A. There was a length of brattice, and it would not be more 
than 5 yards back from the face. 
10312. Q. Take it that the brattice was 5 yards from the face, if the current of air was travelling at a fair 
rate it would not take long to clear the smoke? A It would not take long. 
10313. Q. At the time they came back, the smoke would be there? A. They usually come straight back 
after time shot Immi gone off. 
10314. Q. Do they come back quickly? A. Yes. 
10315. Q. At all events, when you got there you saw no smoke I A. The smoke was not clearing off 
altogether, because other places were shooting in front of them ; and there is generally a small percentage 
of smoke there. 
10316. Q. With reference to that explosion vhmere you said you had seen the smoke burning. You have 
had hundreds of shots in your time to fire, and have had dense smoke ? A. I have had some with dense 
smoke. 
10317. Q. You have gone back very soon afterwards in some cases? A. Within a few minutes afterwards. 
10318. (2. Have you ever seen time smoke flash then? A. No. 
10319. Q. It would be supposition that the smoke caused the flash? A. They said it was probably partly 
that. 
10320. Q. Did I understand that you were annoyed at Gleeson saying anything about it I A. I have 
always told each man to report straight away anything he saw. 
10321. Q. Did you not say that you thought that their evidence tended to show that you were lax in your 
duty. A. Gleeson said that I said there was nothing worth mentioning. I never said any such thing. 
I drew their attention to time matter to see if they thought there was a light. I do not like them to state 
that I was lax in my examination. 10322. 
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10322. Q. You had no idea of coming here and trying to make the Commissioners believe that there was 
nogas? A. I do not wish to make the Commissioners believe anything but what I know to be correct. 
10323. Q. That was not your intention in coming here this morning ? A. Certainly not. 
1032 1. Q. What percentage of gas will your light find? A. From 2 to 2 per cent. 
1032.5. Q. Do you know what is the lowest per cent, of gas which is regarded as dangerous when mixed 
with coal-dust? A. Some people say that as low as 1 per cent. is dangerous when mixed with coal-dust. 
10326. Q. If that is so, do you not think it absolutely necessary that the hydrogen lamp should be used? 
A. I say that in any suspicious place I advocate its being used. 
10327. Q. What do you regard as being suspicious? A. I should say where gas has been seen in the same 
district. 
10328. Q. With the ordinary lamp you only discover 21  per cent. ? A. Yes. 
10329. Q. And you may not be able to discover which are the suspicious surroundings. Might it not occur 
that there would be sufficient gas to endanger lives? A. You mean sufficient gas when there is dust present? 
10330. Q. Yes. A. Then keep down the dust. 
10331. Q. As a protecfion you would advocate watering the dust? A. Yes, I have advocated that right 
through. 
10332. Q. You assume that if you carry out watering thoroughly, the 1 and 1  per cent. which you cannot 
disc iver with the ordinary lamp would not be dangerous? A. No, it would not. 
10333. Q. The watering is a safeguard ? A. That is the first safgeuard which I go for. 
10334. Q. Have you any regular method of examining the waste workings? A. The deputies examine them 
at least once a week, and go in as far as they can. 
10333. Q. Do the deputies make any report on that examination? A. Yes. 
10336. Q. Are the reports in that book? A. They are in a separate book. 
10337. Q. Have you done any part of that examination yourself? A. Yes. 
10338. Q. What do you mean by "as far as they can go in A. If a place is open they go into it as far 
as they can penetrate. 
10339. Q. As far as they can penetrate it the roof is fairly sound? A. Yes. 
10340. Q. You do not stop when you get to a fence or danger board? A. No, I do not know a danger 
board when examining waste workings. 
10341. Q. You do not know a danger board then? A. No. 
10342. Q. Do your special rules say that this inspection must be done in the evening? A. I think the Coal 
Mines Act states that. 
10343. Q. Well, this examination is made in accordance with the rules? A. Yes. 
10344. Q. You have been on both the night and day-shift? A. Not much on the night-shift. 
10345. Q. You have been some considerable time on the day-shift? A. Yes, for about six years. 
10346. Q. You have had a separate district? A. Yes. 
10347. Q. What method do you adopt when examining a mine during the day-time? A. All the travelling 
roads and working-places are examined in the morning before the men are allowed to pass the danger 
board. 
10348. Q. Do you make any examination afterwards? A. Yes. 
103 0. Q. What do you do? A. Our instructions are to leave the full examination for the latter end of the 
shift. Any time we went in between the two inspections was extra. 
10350. Q. You make regular inspections? A. At the front and back end of the shift. 
10351. Q. Do you go through the same method on the last occasion as on the first? A. Not always. 
10352. Q. What is the practice ? A. We did not examine with safety-lamps until perhaps three years ago. 
That is, on the second inspection. That is, unless we were going into a place where nobody was working 
and then we had to use safety-lamps. 
10353. Q. Did you examine each boyd and heading? A. Yes. 
10354, Q. You did the examination the same as in the early morning? A. Yes. 
10355. Q. Did you test for gas? A. After we started carrying a safety-lamp we did so. 
10356. Q. How many examining deputies are there now at Mount Keira? A. We have three. 
1035. Q. Three on one shift? A. Two on the day-shift, and one on the night-shift. 
10358. Q. What number of places are you working? A. About seventy. 
10359. Q. What is the area covered by those places? A. I cannot tell you. 
10360. Q. Did you have those three prior to the Mount Kemnbla disaster taking place? A. There had been 
three ; and then when the districts were put closer together we cut it down to two. 
10361. Q. Was that prior to the disaster? A. Yes. 
10362. Q. Since the disaster an additional one has been put on? A. Yes, but the matter was talked about 
befor-'. His district is opening out into new coal, and getting bigger. 
10363. Q. Do the deputies do the whole of the bratticing? A. No, we have brattice men. 
10364. Q. You have men told off for that work? A. Yes. 
10365. Q. What distance do you endeavour to keep the brattice from the face? A. Generally at the skip end. 

Re-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

10366. Q. In firing shots in your mine, who fires them? A. The miners generally fire; but in cases where 
gas has been seen the deputy has to examine the place before the hole is charged. 
10367. Q. Are not some of your places dry and dusty? A. The dry places are watered. 
10368. Q. But they are dry and dusty before? A. Some of them are. 
10369. Q. You know that the rule requires that they shall not be fired excepting under the direction of a 
competent person. But you are allowing the miners to do it? A. The miners are never allowed in a place 
which is dry enough to be dangerous. 
10370. Q. Are you not allowing the miners to fire shots in all places? A. The miner fires the shot in a 
sense, but the deputy is on the spot to examine the place. 
10371. Q. In what cases? A. In cases where gas has been seen or in any other case where the Manager 
has given instructions. 
10372. Q. The mere fact that the place is dry does not mean that the deputy has to go in? A. The order 
was given six months ago that dusty places have to be seen by the deputy. 

10373. 
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10373. Q. I see that. on August the 21st you began reporting when you did not find gas. You say, "I 
examined all the old workings as far as possible between Main Straight and No. 4 Cross-cut workings. We 
found no fire-damp or any other foul gases "? A. Yes. 
10374. Q. Why did you begin to report in the negative? A. That instruction was given many years ago. 

10375. Q. I can understand you having instructions to report gas when you find it? A. It was our 
instructions to report whether we found it or not. 
10376. Q. That begins in August? A. That is when I started. 
10377. Q. Are you prepared to say, without my looking in the book, that prior to this time, winch is 
twenty days after the Mount Kembla accident you never reported gas? A. I never reported fire-damp. I 
never reported it, and never saw it. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie 

10378. Q. Do you say that you had to report when you did not find gas? A. Those were Mr. McCabe's 
instructions. We had a printed book which had the question printed "Have you found gas or fire-damp"? 
and we had to fill in the answer. 
10379. AIr. Robertson.] Q. It only appears on this book on the 21st of August for the first time? A. That 
is the beginning of the book. I say that we had printed instructions before "Have you found any gas" 
and the practice of reporting has been continued since. 

ALEXANDER McDOALD was sworn and examined as under :- 

(This witncs was called by the Cmmission, who asked Mr. Bruce Smith, as a matter of convenience, to 
conduct his examination-in-chief.) 

Examination-in-chief by i.... Bruce Smith 

10380. Q. What is your name? A. Alexander McDonald. 
10381. Q. What are you? A. I am a deputy at Mount Keira. 
10382. Q. How long have you been there? A. I have been there a number of years I have been away for 

short times and back again. 
10383. Q. You know the two Gleesons? A. Yes. 
10384. Q. Do you remember a few weeks ago that Gleeson informed Mr. Jubb, in your presence, that he 
had found gas in their working-place? A. I remember it. 
10385. Q. Can you tell the Court what took place on that occasion? A. I remember going into Gleeson's 

bord. 
10386. Q. Alone? A. Mr. Jubb was there when I got in. ,Jubb informed me that Gleeson had reported to 

him that he (Gleeson) had (C Lit her up," meaning that he had ignited something in the bord. Jubb said, 
"I cannot find a trace of anything," at the same time putting his lamp to the roof near where Gleeson said 
he had "Lit her up." Gleeson was busy boring a hole on the other side of the face; and, when he had 
finished the boring, Jubb again examined at the shot-hole, at the same time calling Gleeson's attention to it. 
10387. Q. What did he say? A. When he examined it, Jubb said that "If there was any gas there it 
would show in a small blue cap over the fimme," and practically he gave Gleeson a lesmon of how to use the 

lamp. 
10388. Q. Did Jubb express an opinion as to whether there had been any gas there? A. He said, "There 

is not the slightest trace of gas here." 
10389. Q. Did he say it was not worth speaking of? A. Not in niy presence. 

10:190. Q. No in those words? A. No. 
10391. Q. Was there any smoke in that working-place when that took place? A. Very little smoke. 

10392. Q. Were there any indications as the result of powder? A. There had been shot-firing on the right- 

hand side. 
10393. Q. How long before? A. The coal had not been put in the skip, it was lying on the floor. 

10394. Q. Did Jubb say "It is not fire-damp, but gas from the powder"? A. He gave that as his opinion. 

10395. Q. What did he say? A. He said in all probability you have lit the powder fumes. 

10396. Q. At any time that you were there, did lie say "It is not worth speaking of"? A. He did not use 

those words in my presence. 
10397. Q. Did you say anything yourself? A. I remarked that probably they had ignited the powder smoke. 

10398. Q. Did you ssy it was not gas? A. I said that it was not gas, because I had never found the 

slightest traces there. 
10399. Q. Did you say, "Powder smoke makes fire like gas?" A. That is my opinion. 

10400. Q. Have you passed an examination? A. Yes, the second-class one. 

10401. Q. Have you been up for your first certificate? A. No. 

10402. Q. 
Where did you get your idea from that this had been an explosion of gas from powder? A. The 

authorities tell us that powder generates gas. 
10403. Q. What books? A. Pamely and Peel. 
10404. Q. You have been reading the same books as Jubb? A. Yes. 

10405. (2. Were you fellow students? A. We were. 

10406. Q. Have you seen the fumes from powder ignite and display a flame like gas? A. Yes. 

10407. Q. Where? A. At Mount Keira. 
10408. Q. What led you to believe that this flame was from powder? A. The fact of never having seen any 
gas there, and also the fact that when there is a hanging shot and the powder fumes get down I could light 
them underneath, but it is a small light. 
10409. Q. You have been there some years? A. Yes. 
10410. Q. You know that gas has been found in small quantities? A. Yes, I have found it. 

10411. Q. Where? A. Not in the place where I have ignited powder fumes. 

10412. Q. I am asking if you have found it? A. Yes. 
10413. Q. How did it ignite when you found it? A. I found it with a safety-lamp. 

10414. Q. Did you see it flare up? A. A small quantity once. 

10415. Q. What is the farthest date back that you have seen it? A. I found a small quantity last week. 
10416 
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10416. Q. That is the nearest date? A. The farthest date biek in my memory is some three months 
previous to that, somewhere about September. 
10417. Q. Never before that? A. No. 
10448. Q. You never heard of it being found bAore that? A. I never heard of it being found before 
that. 
10419. Q. You report in the book that Jubb reports it? A. No; in a diurent book. My report book is 
here to-day. 
10420. Q. Jubb reports in that book? A. No; my book was sent in to the Secretary to-day. 
10 12 1. Q. I understand you to say that you never saw gas, or found gas, or heard of its being found, or 
heard of it being seen, prior to the Kembla disaster 1 A. That is right. 
10422. Q. Do you report negatively in your book? Dc you say, "I found no gas"? A. I report fully 
whether I have found gas or not. 
10123. Q. If you find none do you report, "I have fonni none"? A. Eaactly so. 
10424. Q. How long have you been doing that? A. Ever since I have been a deputy. 
10425. Q. How long is that? A. Permanently for the last six months. 
10126. Q. Before the Mount Kembla disaster? A. No, after it. 
10127. Q. Here is a report of the 6th of June, 1902. Is not that yours? A. No. 
10428. Q. You report in someone else's book? Is this it [holding up a book] I A. No. 
10429. Q. Did you begin a new book when you became deputy 1 A. No; I made some reports in an old 
book. 
10130. [The last witness, Jubb, handed a book to Jfc. Bruce Smith.] 
10431. Q. Is this the book in which you report? A. Yes ; that is the book. 
10432. Q. Who is Phillips? A. He is the under-manager. 
10433. Q. Just show me a report of yours where you found fire-damp? A. Here is an entry on the 
25th of August, 1902 : "It has been reported to me that James and George Templeton lighted a 
small quantity of fire-damp in their working-place (No. 4 left heading, Old St. District), on Saturday, 
August 23rd." 
10434. Q. Is this the beginning of your work as a deputy I A. Not exactly I reported a little time 
back. 
10435. Q. How long before? A. After the Mount Kembla explosion. 
10436. Q. You never reported before the Mount Kembla explosion? A. When I was acting temporarily. 
10137. Q. Did you report gas whilst you were temporarily appointed? A. No. 
10438. Q. Nor ever heard of it? A. No. 
10439. Q. It was an entirely new thing in Keira after the Kembla explosion? A. Yes. 
10140. Q. What do you attribute the fact to of finding gas so soon after the kembla disaster, and not 
before it? A. I have not thought of that matter. 
10441. Q. You have not thought it an interesting problem? A. Well, yes, I have thought about it. 
10142. Q. Are you working up a new district? A. Yes, we are going into rising ground. - 
10113. Q. Are you going nearer to Mount Kembla? A. We are going about west. 
10444. Q. Are you going near to Mount Kembla or further from it? A. I believe we are going nearer 
to it. 
10445. Q. Now, you have not told me yet how you distinguish between a small explosion of gas and a 
small explosion of gunpowder fumes? A. How I distinguish between a small explosion of gas and a small 
explosion of fumes? 
10446. Q. Yes? A. If I ignited fumes I would not expect fire-damp to be there, because I would light 
the fumes on the floor. 
10447. Q. You mean that ifyou lit something on the floor you would not think it to be gas? A. No, I 
would not take it to be gas. 
10448. Q. And if you were to light something on the roof, you would not expect it to be fumes? A. No. 
10449. Q. Gas rises to the top? A. Yes. 
10450. Q. Suppose there is an emission of gas at the lower part, it would light at the lower part? A. Yes. 
10451. Q. Would you conclude, therefore, if you lisA a flare, that it was gunpowder fumes? A. Well, no. 
10452. Q. Why? A. There is a difference in the flames. 
104.53. Q. Is it a question of colour? A. Yes. 
10454. Q. Suppose you had not seen it, and were only told it was a flame? A. If I had not seen it it would 
be hard to tell. 
10455. Q. Did you see the flame in Gleeson's case? A. No. 
10456. Q. And you know nothing of the position? A. It was 3 feet from the roof. 
10457. Q. Was it nearer the roof than the floor? A. Yes. 
10458. Q. And yet you concluded that it was gunpowder flame? A. Yes, we had never found gas in the 
vicinity. 
10459. Q. You had found gas in the mine? A. Not at that particular part. 
10160. Q. But near it? A. Some distance from it. 
10461. Q. That is your only reason-you did not know anything of the colour of the flame-it was nearer 
the roof than the floor; but, because gas had not been found in that particular part of the mine, you 
concluded that it was gunpowder fumes? A. I thought that it might be ; but I was not sure. 
10462. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Did you ever know of fire-damp being found in this district on the floor? A. I 
have heard tell of it. 
10463. Q. Did you ever find it at Keira? A. No. 
10464, Q. You know that fire-damp can be found on the floor as well as on the roof? A. Yes. 

[The Commission, at 4 o'cock, adjourned until 10 o'clock the following morning.] 
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ThURSDAY, 29 JANUAJLY, 1903. 

[TJee Uommisszon met at the Court house, Jlroliongong,  at 10 a.m] 

Vrtrrtt:- 
C. F. R. MURRAY, Esi2., D.C.J. (PRESIDENT). 

D. A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ., ConreIsaxoNEn. I D. RITCHIE, Es., CoxiretsesoNEix. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chicf Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of- 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c., (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) ; and 
the Illawarra Colliery Eniployees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. F. Curtiss, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of 
the Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

Mr. ALEXANDER McDONALD, previously sworn, was further examined as under: 

Cross-examination by Mr. Lysaght 

10465. Q. Who directed you to come here ? A. Nobody, except the subpna. 
10465k. Q. Had you any conversation with Mr. J. C. Jones? A. I had. 
10466. Q. Did not he tell you that he wanted you to give evidence? A. He drew my attention to the 
evidence of the Gleeson brothers. 
10467. Q. But did not be tell you that he wanted you to give evidence? A. He asked me how far it was 
correct. He did not say he wanted me to give evidence. 
10468. Q. How far was it incorrect? A. Some of the statements, 
10169. Q. Which? A. Referring to Gleeson's having reported gas to me on a second occasion. 
10470. Q. Which occasion? A. As far as I understand the report in the newspapers, Alfred Gleeson, I 
think it was, said that lie reported gas to me after the occurrence that we spoke of yesterday. 
10471. Q. And is not that so? A. No. 
10472. Q. Did not he mention any gas to you at all? , A. No other, only the one that we referred to 
yes erday. 
10473. Q. And is that all you came to deny ? A. No. 
10174. Q. Well, now, how often have you found gas in Keira? A. You have my book here; every time I 
found gas I reported in the hook. 
10175. Q. Roughly I do not want to labour the Commisdon with your book? A. I think I found gas 
about, say, three times. I cannot be sure about it. 
10476. Q. Since the disaster ? A. Since the disaster. 
10477. Q. Was there a large quantity? A. No. 
10478. Q. And before the disaster you had never discovered it? A. No. 
10479. Q. Now, about how often has the air been reversed in Keira through the westerly winds? A. I do 
not remember it being reversed. 
10180. Q. From any cause? A. Not from any cause. 
10481. Q. Do you remember it being at a standstill? A. No. 
10482. Q. Do you know that your brother gave evidence that he had known it to be reversed? A. I do. 
10483. Q. Were not you in the pit at the same time as he was? A. I may have been. 
10484. Q. You are not prepared to say that his evidence is incorrect? A. No. 
10485. Q. I suppose you will admit that the furnace frequently does not work well? A. No; I never knew 
it to work badly. 
10486. Q. You do know that they are making arrangements to put up a fan? A. I have heard that they 
are going to sink a shaft to erect a fan. 
10487. Q. Do you not know that several of the places are pretty hot in Keira from time to time? A. Not in 
my district. 
10188. Q. How long have you hal your certificate? A. About three and a half years, as near as I can 
remember. 
10489. Q. Now, I will ask you your opinion on some of these recommendations. Recommendation No. 1- 
11  Managers, under-managers, deputies, and shot-firers, to hold certificates of competency by examination, 
and to have had five years' practical mining experience before being eligible for respective positions!' Do 
you approve of that recommendation? A. I certainly believe in their having the practical experience. 
10490. Q. Do you not believe in their being certificated by examination? A. So far as Managers and 
under-managers are concerned, all the better-yes. 
10491. Q. And about deputies? A. I do not see that it is absolutely necessary. 
10492. (2,  And shot-firers? A. They would be on a par with the deputies, I tlnnk. 
10493. Q. Then do you siy that deputies and shot-firers should be appointed without giving any evidence 
to any competent authority of their ability to discharge their duties? A. I would not say that. 
10194. Q. Unless they are certificated by examination, how can you determine whether deputies are 
competent or not? A. I take it that the Manager would put a man under a certain examination befoi'e he 
would appoint him to the pesition. 
10195. Q. Then, would you rely entirely on the Manager in appointing him to the position? A. I think 
that is all that is necessary. 
10106. Q. That is your idea? A. Yes; my opinion. 
10497. Q. Do you know that one of the deputies in Kembla mine sad he had never looked for gas; and 
that it was no part of his duty to look for gas? A. No. 10498, 
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10498. Q. If he said that, would you consider he was a competent deputy? A. I would not. 
10499. Q. And, if the Manager said that he knew nothing about gas, would you consider him a competent 
person to appoint a deputy? 
10500. (Mr. Bruce Smith objected; but His Honor allowed the question.) 
10501. AIr. Lysaght.] Q. If a Manager admits that he knows nothing about gas, is he a competent persrn 
to appoint a deputy? A. Practically or theoretically. 
10502. Q. Both? A. Oh, if he knows nothing at all about it, I do not think lie is. 
10503. Q. In such a case, which has happened in this district, who should appoint the deputy? A. Oh, the 

Manager, by all means. 
10504. Q. The same Manager? A. I do not say so. 
10505. His Honor.] The question is whether any Manager has said that he knows nothing about gas. The 
Manager may have said that he knows nothing about the composition of gas chemically : but knowing 
nothing about gas, and knowing nothing about the composition of gas chemically, are different things. 
10506. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Your Honor, I am not concerned in shielding Mr. Rogers at all. 
10507. His Honor.] I do not think Mr. Rogers said he knew nothing at all about gas; but he said he did 
not understand its chemical composition, because he does not understand chemistry ; and that is a very 
different thing. A man may know a good deal about a horse without knowing anything about his anatomy. 
10508. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Now, do you not know that there are managers in this district who have only 
certificates of service? A. I have heard so. 
10509. Q. Do .you know whether Mr. Jones has a certificate by examination? A. I was told he had. 
10510. Q. Now, in the case of those Managers who have no theoretical knowledge of the composition of 
gases, would you consider them competent to appoint a man to be a deputy? A. I think so; provided they 

have a practical knowledge. 
10511. Q. And you think the same thing applies to the shot-firer? A. Yes. 
10512. Q. Then, are you in favour of these certificates of service being cancelled after a reasonable time? 
A. After a reasonable time, probably, yes. 
10513. Q. Recommendation No. 2. If the Government Inspectors think it necessary to order safety-
lamps into a mine, should they have that power? A. I would say the C!iief Inspector should have the 

power. 
10514. Q. Recommendation No. 3. "Ventilation by furnace prohibited; and fans substituted." D you 
approve of that as a general recommendation? A. No. 
10515. Q. What is your objection to it? A. My objection would be this : the property might not be large 
enough to warrant the erection of a fan. There would be a great expense. 
10516. Q. That is your only objection? A. Yes. 
10517. Q. Then what number of men, do you say, should be employed below ground, before you would 
enforce a fan? A. I do not think we should limit it to any number of men. 
10518. Q. Then, how would you limit the size. When would you consider a colliery large enough to warrant 
a fan being enforced ? A. In my opinion fan ventilation is the best ; but, at the same time, I do not think 
it would be right to make a hard and fast rule. 
10519. Q. You have given, as a reason, that the workings would not be large enough. Now, I am keeping 
you to that reason. I want to know, at what stage do you consider the workings would be large enough 
to warrant the enforcement of a fan? A. That would be a matter of pounds, shillings, and pence. 
10520. Q. What would you say would be large enough to warrant the enforcement of the fan? 
10521. His Ilonor.] The witness could not say that. That is a question that would take a deliberative 
assembly possibly a week to settle. 
10522. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Have you any other reason besides the size of the colliery I A. Provided the 
ventilation was sufficient without it., I cannot see any necessity for the erection of a fan. 
19523. Q. Is the ventilation sufficient at Keira? A. It is. 
10524. Q. And you do not see any necessity for the erection of the fan there? A. Not at the present 

time. 
10525. Q. And yet you know they are about to do it? A. I believe so. 
10526. Q. Did you recommend it? A. No. 
10527. Q. Recommendation No. 4, "Waste workings to be absolutely sealed off, and surrounded by return 
airways (for fear of emissions) ; such return airways not to come in contact with intake." Do you approve 
of that? A. I would sooner ventilate the waste workings. 
10528. But would you have them surrounded by return airways? That is, would you provide that no 
intake should pass them I A. That is, that the intake air shall not pass over thvm? Certainly. 
10529. Q. Yes; not to pass by them ? A. That they should be sealed off from the intake air? 
10530. Q. Yes? A. Yes; I believe in that. 
10531. Q. Recommendation No. 5 ; "All places except prospecting drives to have cut-througlis not more 
than 30 yards apart '? A. I do not agree with that. 
10532. Q. Why? A. I think that we can drive headings considerably over 30 yards, without any danger. 
10533. Q. How far do you think you could drive them? A. I think we could drive them a couple of 
hundred yards, provided we had a sufficient head of air. 
10534. Q. Have you ever driven them a couple of hundred yards? A. No. 
10535. Q. What is the longest you have driven them ? A. About 70 yards. 
10536. Q. Is there not a danger of the brattice becoming disarranged near where the drive starts, and the 
men being smothered through want of air? A. There is the same danger in the 30-yard pillars. 
10537. Q. Is not the danger lessened by 40 yards? A. I cannot see much difference. There is always a 
danger of the brattice becoming disarranged, of course. 
10538. Q. Is not there a considerable leakage from imperfect bratticing? A. In some places, yes. 
10539. Q. As a matter of fact, after the bratticing has been in use a few months, say six months, it 
practically becomes a sieve? A. No; we renew it. 
10540. Q. I know: but did not I say, after it was in use six months? A. In some cases it lasts longer 

than that. 
10541. Q. What is the average length of life of the brattice you use there? A. I could not say. 

19542. Q. Do not you put it up? A. Yes. 
10543. 
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10513. Q. Do you not know how often you have to renew it? A. Some of it would last six months, at 
any rate. 
10544. Q. Then, after six months it was practically a sieve? A. Not in all cases. 
10545. Q. The air can get through the brattice cloth itself? Is not that so? A. Not always. 
10546. Q. After about six months' wear and tear? A. We generally renew it when we see that there is any 
leakage. 
10547. Q. But apart from leakages through imperfect nailing up or uneven roads, does not the air go 
through the brattice cloth itself after about six months ? A. Well, it may; I could not say. 
10548. Q. Do you not know that from your own experience? A. Not unless there are holes in it. 
10549. Exactly. It becomes perforated right throughout, does it not? A. Not always. 
10550. Q. As a general rule? A. It depends on the atmosphere a good deal. 
10551. Q. Well, in Keira I A. I cannot say that it does. 
10552. Q. Do you say that you renew it every six months, although it is not perforated? A. No, not at all. 
I say, as venturing an opinion on the life of it, that six months would be about the life of it. I am not sure 
about that answer. It is only my opinion. 
10553. Q. I suppose you are constantly renewing it even now? A. No. 
10554. Q. Can you tell me when the last new bratticing was put up at Keira? A. The last new additional 
bratticing was put up, I suppose, yesterday. 
10555. Q. It is going on from day to day, repairing? A. Yes. 
10556. Q. Now, do you not appreciate the danger of men being 70 yards away from any possible escape in 
case anything goes wrong 1 A. There is plenty of ventilation. 
10557. Q. Yes; but, if anything goes wrong with the ventilation, do you not see they are 70 yards away 
from an escape, whereas if they have a cut-through 30 yards away they could escape through that? A. I 
cannot see any great danger in that. 
10558. Q. But do not you see any danger in that? A. There may be a little danger. 
10359. (9 \Vould not the cut-throughs every 30 yards be an improvement? I do not say it is necessary; 
but would it not be an improvement? A. It would be an improvement; Yes. 
10560. Q. Recommendation No. 7-" Monthly examination and report by deputies and District Inspector 
with hydrogen flame." Do you approve of that? A. I do not see that it would be out of place; that is, 
taken together with the district inspection. 
10561. Q. No, not at the same time ; but to have a monthly examination made by the Government Inspector, 
and also by the management as an extra precaution ? A. I do not see that it is altogether necessary. 
10562. (9. Would you ssy every quarter then? A. Yes every quarter. 
10563. (9. Recommendation No. 11-" Weekly measurement of air in each section, and report thereof sent 
to Inspector." Do you approve of that ? A. Yes ; as a matter of fact we take a weekly inspection. 
10564. (9. And that has not given you any extra trouble? A. No ; it is not much trouble. 
10565. (9. Where do you take the measurement? A. At the intake to the split and the outht. 
10566. (9. Do you take that? A. No; the under-manager. I assist sometimes. 
10567. (9. Recommendation No. 12-" Extra supply of safety-lamps and their requisites, equal to one-third 
of number of persons employed below ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use." Do 
you approve of that? A. Yes ; I dare say that would be a fair provision. 
10568. (9. Did you go to Kembla after the disaster? A. Yes. 
10569. (9. The same evening? A. Yes. 
10570. (9. Did you take your lamp with you? A. Yes. 
10571. (9. Did you know at the time that there were no lamps available at Kembla? A. No. 
10572. Q. You discovered that when you got there? A. Yes. There were lamps when I got there, mind 
you. 
10573. (9. What time did you get there? A. Between 7 and 8, I suppose. 
10574. (9. You know they came from other collieries? A. I do not know where they came from. I saw 
lamps there when I got there. 
10575. Q. Recommendation No. 13-" Travelling and haulage roads, and other places necessary, to be 
properly watered" ? A. Yes, I approve of that. 
10576. Q. Recommendation No. 14-" Managers compelled to give more personal time and attention o 
minagement of colliery" ? A. Well, so far as our colliery is concerned, I do not think our Manager could 
do more. 
10577. (9. How often is Mr. Jones inside, on an average? A. I see him two or three times a week. 
10578. (9. That is what you think would be proper attention ? A. I think so. 
10579. (9. Recommendation No. 18-" Instruction to employees regularly on means of escape"? A. I 
hardly understand that.. 
10589. Q. In case of disaster the men should be shown the different roads. Do you approve of that? A. It 
would be rather a difficult matter to do that. 
10581. Q. WIry? A. To get all the men together for that purpose would be rather difficult. I do not 
think you could do it. 
10582. Q. Could not the deputies get a division of the men, say, once a fortnight, each deputy in his own 
piace, and show the men out as they are coming out from work? A. \Vould the men be willing to do it? 
10583. (9. Of course they would. A. I doubt it. 
10584. (9. Assuming the men are willing to be shown a safe way out, do you think the deputies would have 
any objection to showing them? A. The deputies could not have any objection, provided it did not 
interfere with their other duties. 
10585. Q. In your opinion, would a quarlerly showing of the men out interfere with any of the deputies' 
duties ? A. It would ; or it would impede the working. 
10586. (9. I mean after the men knock off at the end of a shift? A. In our colliery it wuld. 
10587. (9. Could not the difficulties be got over? A. They might ; but there might be other ways of safety. 
10588. (9. What other ways would you suggest? A. I would suggest that the deputies should change 
districts every quarter so that each deputy would have a thorough knowledge of the whole of the mine. I 
think that would be sufficient, 
10589. (9. For the safety of all the men? A. Yes. 
10590. (9. You mean then, in case of disaster, the deputy should sbow the men out? A. Yes. 
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10591. Do you not know that the deputy got his head blown ofF in Kembla A. I have heard that. 
10592. Q. Now, how could a man who got the first full force of the explosion show the other men out? 
A. The other deputy may have been able to show the men out. 
10593. Q. Do you not know that the other deputy had to escape from the after-damp himself? A. I do not 
know. 
10594. Q. Do you not know that David Evans had to go a long way round to avoid the after-clamp? A. I 
understood that he showed a lot of men out also. 
10595. Q. Now, I put it to you that, supposing the deputies get into the disaster, what is the value of your 
suggestion ? Is it not much better that each man should know his own road out, and be able to save him-
self? A. It would be much better; but, supposing that we showed the men out once a quarter would they 
remember it again? 
10596. Q. That would be their look out. Now, do you approve of showing the men the way out if they 
are willing to be shown ? A. Provided that nothing better could be suggested. 
10597. Q. Recommendation No. 20-" Safety-lamps not to be unlocked for shot-firing." In a colliery 
where it is necessary to use safety-lamps do you consider it a dangerous practice to unlock the safety-lamp 
to fire the fuse? A. I think it would be much better to fire by electric battery. 
10598. Q. Is it not clearly a dangerous practice to fire with the naked light, if it is necessary to use safety-
lamps in the. colliery ? A. No,. not necessarily dangerous. 
10599. Q. In your opinion is it a good practice? A. I do not think I would go in for that practice. 
10600. Q. How long have you known the smoke to remain in the working places at Keira? A. I never 
knew it to stand in a place. 
10601. Q. Not for any length of time? A. No ; the smoke might move along with the current. 
10602. Q. Do you know that the Gleeson's gave evidence that the smoke has remained in their working 
place a whole night? A. Yes ;. I saw that reported in the newspapers. 
10603. Q. Are you prepared to say that that is not correct ? A. I will say that I visited their working 
place on one occasion, and it was not correct. I cannot see that they could have smoke standing in that 
place. 
10604. Q. Are you prepared to swear that their statement is not correct? A. No. 

Further examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

10605. Q. I would ask you first how runny years' experience have you had as a practical miner? A. Somewhere 
about twenty year a. 
10606. Q. And you have only been a deputy a few months? A. I have been permanently appointed a few 
months. 
10607. Q. Now, have you altered your opinion, in regard to these questions upon which you are being 
examined, since you occupied the position of deputy ? May I take it that the opinions you are prepared to 
express now are those which were formed as a working miner? A. Well, partly, yes. 
10608. Q. I mean, is the point of view so altered that the opinions you have expressed to day are not the 
same as you would have expressed six months ago, as a working miner? A. About the same. 
10609. And I take it that any opinions you give to-day are based on your experience as a miner, not as a 
deputy? A. Not as a deputy. 
10610. Q. First of all, with regard to the examination of deputies and shot-firers--have you found it 
necessary at any time as a deputy to understand tlia chemistry of gases, the component parts of gases 
A. No; I have not. 
10611. Q. What, in your opinion, is it necessary for a deputy to know in regard togas? A. It is necessary 
for a deputy to know how to use the safety-lamp. 
10612. Q. Is there anything difficult about that? A. No. 
10613. Q. It is simply a question of turning the flame down ? A. Tuining the flame down. 
10614. Q. So that you get an effect upon the flame by the presence of gas? A. Yes. A man must be 
careful, and a quick observer. 
10615. Q. That is a native faculty, is it not rather than a matter of examination ? An examination will 
not give a man a quick observation, though it may reveal whether he has got it'? A. Yes. 
10616. Q. There is nothing complex in the holding of the lamp? A. No. 
10617. Q. Is there anything else that could not be ascertained by just an oral examination of a man? A. I 
think any practical man with a fair knowledge of the Mining Act, as it refers to these dutis, ought to 
make a good deputy. 
10618, Q. Does it require any book knowledge? A. I do not think so. - 
10619. Q. That is the conclusion you have conic to? A. Yes. 
10620. Q Then a practical examination by a practical man, quite apart from tIme study of theory or loks, 
would, in your opinion, qualify a man with practical experience for either of these positions 1 A. I think so. 
10621. Q. Is there any more theoretical knowledge required in the position of shot-firer than to ascertain 
whether gas is present, and to water the place 1 A. If a shot-firer sticks closely to the rule relating to 
shot-firing and dusty places, and so on, he will be quite competent-, if he is a practical man. 
10622. Q. I gleaned, from what you said to Mr. Lysaght, that, all things being equal, you consider the fan 
is a more regular anda more reliable method of supplying air to a mine? A. I think so. 
10623. Q. Are you prepared to offer an opinion as to whether the conditions of a mine-I mean a mine in 
the abstract ; not your own mine, but any other mine--would justify suddenly ordering them to change 
their furnace to a fan, witi out respect to the cost or the convenience or other business aspects ? A. There 
may be such a case. 
10624. Q. But you are not prepared to offer an opinion on it A. No. 
10625. Q. And I understand that, in regard to the waste workings, you would not recommend that they 
should be sealed up altogether ; but only on the intake side 1 A. That is so. 
10626. Q. Well now, with regard to the cut-tliroughs, I understand you to say that, from your experience 
as a miner, you do not think it necessary to confine a drive or a heading ;o 30 or 35 yards? A. T do not 
think that is necessary. 
10627. Q. Have you read at all in regard to mining for your examinations? A. Yes. 
1062$, Q. Have you heard of the Slerton Colliery ? A. I think I have. 
10629. Q. Where the pillars are 4-1 yards square? A. Yes, 10630 
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10630. Q. What is the width of the pillar in your mine as a rule 1 A. We have a number of pillars over 
60 yards, I would say. 
10631. Q. 60 yards square? A. 60 yards thick. You take a 60 yard cut-through to cut them. 
10632. Q. Have you heard of the Eppleton Colliery, where there is a large pillar 66 yards square 1 [Yo 
answer.] 
10633. Q. You think, from your practical experience, that a drive of even 100 yards or 200 yards is 
practicable, so long as the bratticing is properly arranged and maintained 1 A. Yes. 
1063 t. 9. What is the longest you have ever seen yourself I A. I could not say for certain, 
10635. 9. Have you seen longer at home than here I A. I have not been home. 
10636. (7. Have you been asked certain questions about a hydrogen flame ;-do you know anything about 
the hydrogen lamp? A. No. 
10637. Q. When you expressed that opinion, were you aware that if, in turning on the hydrogen gas supply 
from the cylinder, you turn it too much, the whole lamp will burst suddenly in your hand? A. I have read 
something like that. 
10838. 9. And expose an open flame suddenly, perhaps, in the presence of gas? A. Yes. 
10639. 9. Do you recognise that it is an absolutely dangerous implement, as dangerous almost as firearms, 
in the hands of a careless man I A. I would not like to make use of it, without I had a lesson in it, anyhow. 
10610. (7. You have read enough to know that ;_you have read enough to know that, unless it is very 
accurately turned, the whole lamp may burst in your hands 1 A. Yes. 
10641. Q. Do you know how long it takes to make an inspection with a hydrogen lamp, as compared with 
the ordinary safety-lamp I A. No ; I do not know that. 
10642. 9. Do you think that every deputy, whose knowledge is confined to that practical character which 
you have just mentioned, would be a safe person to entrust in a gassy mine with a hydrogen lamp l A. Not 
unless he knows how to use it. 
10613. 9. You recognise that the use of such a lamp requires a much more scientific touch than a miner's 1 
A. I think so, yes. 
10641. Q. Now, I want to ask you about this showing the men the way out-what is the extent of the 
mine in which you have got most of your experience? A. I have had most of my experience in Mount Keira. 
10645. Q. What is the farthest distance you can go in Mount Keira? A. I think about 2 miles: hardly 
2 miles. 
10646. Q. And the farthest distance across? A. About a mile. It may be a mile. 
10647. 9. And how long has that been worked, to your knowledge? A. Ever since I was a boy. 
10648. 9. Suppose you know a certain exit thoroughly well, does it follow that, because you know that, 
therefore you would be able to take the safest course to it under all the conditions of possible explosion I 
You have not been asked that at all. You have been asked whether the men should not be instructed in 
the exits. Take that [pointing to the plan] as an exit from the mine. I ask you this, as a practical miner, 
would not the way in which you would reach that depend entirely upon the position of the spot at which 
the explosion took place I A. Yes. 
106 19. Q. Did yoa hear Mr. Lysaght say to you ju3t now that Mr. Evans had to take the men a long way, 
round in order to avoid the after-damp I A. Yes. 
10650. Q. Would it be any good showing a man a straight way out when what he really wanted was a 
knowledge of the geography of the whole mine, so that he could, as it were, dodge the after-damp, according 
to the position in which the explosion had taken place? A. He would require a knowledge of the whole 
mine. - 
10651. Q. And ca1mot you think of a dozen places in your own mine where, if there were explosions at 
those places, they would necessitate your taking a dozen different circuitous routes in order to enable you 
to get safely out, and to avoid the after-damp ? A. Yes. 
10652. Q. So that it is not absolutely necessary to show a man where the exit is, so that he may be able 
to take a straight course out in case of explosion but he would have to know all the different outlets, 
and would have to be aware of the route which the air was taking, so as to dodge the dangerous places 1 
A. Yes ; he would have to know the whole of them. 
10653. Q. Would it be practicable to so instruct all the miners that, in all cases, they could choose the safe 
route '1 A. I do not think so. 
10651. Q. I go further_suppose these men are shown a short cut out, and taught that that is a safe way, 
would not that be, in certain cases, under certain conditions of explosion, an absolute danger to the men? 
A. It would. 
10655. 9. Might not that lead them right into the after.d amp, for want of thought? A. Yes. 
10856. (7. So that, really, it wants a great deal of care to lay clown a hard and fast rule about that sort of 
thing? A. I think so. 
10657. Q. And the men would need to be taught different way out, on the assumption that accidents had 
happened in certain parts of the mine I A. I think so. 
10658. Q. Do you think there would be any difficulty in inducing the men to receive instruction in those 
matters? A. I think there would. 
10659. Q. I would like you to tell the Commission--I am not asking you a mere case of saying to the men, 
4 Now, boys, we will go straight out "-but if they were asked to undergo a series of instructions as to 
different routes, would there he any diihculby in getting the men to receive the instruction? A. I think so. 
10660. (). What would be the dilhiculty 1 A. They would not like to go to the trouble. 
10861. Q. Would they give the time, do you think, considering that their lives neight depend on it? A. I 
do not think they would be willing to give the time. 
10662. Q. But you do not se any harm in the deputy offering, every quarter, to show them the exits, and, 
if they liked to listen, to give them some general idea of what they should do in case of an explosion, 
without giving them the exact course? J. I do not see any harm in it. 
10663. Q. You think some of them would take advantage of the instruction? A. I believe they would. 
10661. Q. Now, Recommendation No. 20-can you tell me which is more dangerous, opening a lamp for 
shot firing, or firing a shot with gunpowder? A. They would be about on a par. 
10665. Q. Well, the firing of a shot with gunpowder throws a flame of considerable length right into the 
hoading where you are working ? A. Yes it would be the worse of the two. 
10666. Q. An open flame which you can see if you choose to watch it? A. I have seen it. 10667. 
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10667. Q. Do you not regard that as quite as great a Jcnger as opening the lamps? A. That is the greatest 
d.Lnger of the lot. 
10558. Q. Then, if it is necessary to prevent the opening of the lamps, is it not necessary to use some other 
explosive? A. I wouid not use gunpowder where safety-lamps are used. 
10669. Q. Do you not know that there are now used, in England and elsewhere, other explosives which are 
considered to minimise the danger? A. Yes. 
10670. Q. You have read about those? A. Yes. 
10671. Q. So that I take it that, utilising your practical knowledge, you consider that, if a mine is not safe 
enough for a shot to be fired with an open lamp, it is not safe enough to have gunpowder used as an 
explosive ? A. It is not. 

Further cross-examination by Mr. Lysaght :- 

10672. Q. As a working miner, would you not have been glad to have been instructed on the various ways 
out of the mine? A. Well, yes, as a coal-miner I would have liked to have known my way about. 
10673. Q. And do you not think other working miners would like to know the way now? A. I do not 
think all of them would. 
10674. Q. Do you mean to tell me that there is a single man at Keira who does not want to know the ways 
out of Keira? A. I believe there are men at Keira who would not go to the trouble. 
10675. Q. Would you mind telling me who they are, so that the men may know what you think of them 
10676. His honor.] That is not a fair question. 
10677. Mr. Lysaq/it.] But I do not like a reflec5ion of this kind from an official of the colliery made on the 
whole of the men. - 
10678. his honor.] It is not made on the whole of the Keira men. The men, generally, know who are 
the most happy-go-lucky amongst them. 
10679. Mr. Lysagltt.] Q. Do you mean to say that you have some reason for saying that there are some 
men in Keira who would not go with the deputy if he offered to show them. the way ? A. Yes. 
10680. Q. Do you know of any man who has ever refused to be shown the way out? A. No. 
10681. Q. Now, will you take back that statement that some of the men at Keira would refue to ha 
shown? A. No. I stick to that. 
10682. Q. I thought you approved of the men being shown the way out by the deputy every quarter; but 
I understand from Mr. Bruce Smith's examination that you do not think it would be of much avail? 
A. I approve of it if you cannot get anything better: but I suggest, as a means of overcoming the difficulty, 
that the deputies should exchange districts. 
10683. Q. Supposing that in a disaster the travelling road which the men know is blocked by a heavy fall 
of stone; is it not better for the men to know some other way out than to be penned inside, and to know 
no way out? A. Yes. 
10684. Q. Would you not, then, approve of their being instructed in some other way, even though there 
might be some danger in that way? A. I do not think it would be workable. 
10685. Q. Do you not know that in Mount Kembla the main travelling road of No. 1 Right was blocked 
by falls of stone? A. I do not know it; I have heard it. 
10686. Q. Do you not know that one man was struggling for three or four hours to get through that way 
because he did not know another way that would have taken him out in twenty minutes-a man named 
Morehead? A. No. 
10087. Q. Take a case like that, where the known way out is blocked by a fall, is it not better that the 
men should know some way out? A. Yes; but they may get on to the wrong road then. The road they 
know may be in danger. 
10688. Q. But is it not much better that they should know some road than no road at all? A. Yes. 
10689. Q. And, if they are not shown, how are they to know at all? A. It would be necessary to show 
them before they would know it. 

Examination by Mr. Robertson 

10690. Q. You are of opinion that a knowledge of the chemistry of mine gases is not necessary for shot-
firers or deputies? A. I think it is not necessary. 
10691. Q. And do you not think that a deputy, or a shot-firer's duties are somewhat analogous to those, say, 
of a boatswain on a ship ? A. They practically have the safety of the miners in their hands. 
10692. Q. Take the two, the boatswain on a ship and the deputy in a mine, their duties are much the same, 
they come directly under the officers? A. That is right. 
10693. Q. Do you think it would help the boatswain in his duties to know the chemistry of sea water? 
A. I do not think so. 
10694. Q. And, if deputies and shot-firers were required to pass an examination, do you not think that there 
would be a danger that some men with an aptitude for acquiring book-knowledge, but not possessing 
practical experience, judgment, and a knowledge of how to manage men, would obtain certiGcates, and that 
managers would be obliged to secure their services? A. I think there would be a danger. 
10695. Q. The managers would be forced to secure a purely theoretical man without the practical know-
ledge? A. There may be a danger of that. 
10696. Q. And then, in case of disaster, the theoretical man might be left? A. Yes ; there would be a 
danger of that. - 
10697. Q. As a matter of fact, the qualities that go to make a good deputy or shot-firer are, to a certain 
extent, personal? A. Yes. 
10698. Q. And they would be best known to his manager or his immediate superior? A. That is so. 
10699. Q. Now, with reference to furnaces-you do not approve of a hard and fast rule, or a compulsory 
rule, that furnaces should be abolished ? A. I do not. 
10700. Q. But, in the event of furnaces being continued in certain mines, would it not be desirable that 
there should be some authoritative approval of the methods of their construction ?A. Yes I believe it would. 
10701. Q. That is to say, that furnaces, if they are to be in use, should be constructed upon some principle, 
and surrounded with every possible safeguard ? A. Yes I believe in that. 
10702. Q. Now, we have heard about men being smothered by a derangement of tle brattice-cloth : do you 
think that is possible in the gassiest mine? A. I do not think so. - 
10703. Q. The men would have ample jndications of danger? A. Yes. - 10704. 
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